Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft

/

X-markets

Programme for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes.

This document constitutes a base prospectus (the "**Base Prospectus**" or the "**Prospectus**") according to Art. 5 (4) of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended), as implemented by the relevant provisions of the EU member states, in connection with Regulation 809/2004 of the European Commission.

Under this Programme for the issuance of certificates, warrants and notes (the "**Programme**") Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft (the "**Issuer**" or "**Deutsche Bank**") may from time to time issue securities ("**Securities**"). The Securities may relate to shares or equity securities, indices, other securities, commodities, rates of exchange, futures contracts, fund units or shares and/or interest rates (the "**Underlying**" and/or the "**Reference Item**"). Such issuance is carried out by the Issuer as part of its general banking business (set out in article 2(1) of the Articles of Association of the Issuer).

In respect of Securities to be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange AG (the "**SIX Swiss Exchange**"), this Base Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms will constitute the listing prospectus pursuant to the listing rules of the SIX Swiss Exchange.

Prospective purchasers of the Securities should ensure that they understand fully the nature of the Securities, as well as the extent of their exposure to risks associated with an investment in the Securities and should consider the suitability of an investment in the Securities in the light of their own particular financial, fiscal and other circumstances. Prospective purchasers of the Securities should refer to the "Risk Factors" section of this Base Prospectus. The Securities will represent unsubordinated, unsecured contractual obligations of the Issuer which will rank *pari passu* in all respects with each other.

The Issuer shall not be liable for or otherwise obliged to pay, and the relevant Securityholder shall be liable for and/or pay, any tax, duty, charge, withholding or other payment whatsoever in connection with the Securities. All payments made by the Issuer shall be made subject to any tax, duty, charge, withholding or other payment which may be required to be made, paid, withheld or deducted.

The Securities have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Any offer or sale of the Securities must be made in a transaction exempt from the registration requirements of such Act pursuant to Regulation S thereunder. The Securities may not be offered, sold or otherwise transferred in the United States or to persons who are either U.S. persons defined as such in Regulation S of such Act or persons who do not come within the definition of a non-United States person under Rule 4.7 of the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended. For a description of certain restrictions on the sale and transfer of the Securities, please refer to the General Selling and Transfer Restrictions section of this Base Prospectus.

An investment in the Securities does not constitute a participation in a collective investment scheme for Swiss law purposes. Therefore, the Securities are not supervised or approved by the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority FINMA ("**FINMA**") and investors may not benefit from the specific investor protection provided under the Swiss Federal Act on Collective Investment Schemes.

This Base Prospectus will be published according to Art. 14 (2) (c) of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended), as implemented by the relevant provisions of the EU member states, in electronic form on the website of the Issuer (www.xmarkets.db.com).

The date of this Base Prospectus is 9 June 2017.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Ι.	SUMMARY	.7
П.	RISK FACTORS	51
•••	A. Risk Factors in Respect of the Issuer	
	B. Risk Factors in Respect of the Securities	
	Certificates	
	Discount Certificates	
	Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery)	
	Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement)	
	Bonus Certificates	
	Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate	
	Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap	
	Product No. 5: Bonus Pro Certificate	
	Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap	
	Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate	
	Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap	
	Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate	
	Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap	
	Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap	
	Outperformance Certificates	
	Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate	
	Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate	
	Warrants	
	Classic Warrants	57
	Product No. 14: Call Warrant and Discount Call Warrant	
	Product No. 15: Put Warrant and Discount Put Warrant	57
	WAVE (Knock Out) Warrants	
	Product No. 16: WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant	57
	Product No. 17: WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	57
	Product No. 18: WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant	
	Product No. 19: WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	58
	WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Warrants	
	Product No. 20: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant	
	Product No. 21: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	
	Product No. 22: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant	
	Product No. 23: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	59
	WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Warrants	
	Product No. 24: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant	
	Product No. 25: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	59
	Product No. 26: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant	
	Product No. 27: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	
	One Touch Warrants	

Product No. 29: One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant. 66 Product No. 30: One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant. 66 No Touch Warrants 67 Product No. 31: No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant. 61 Product No. 32: No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant. 61 Product No. 32: No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant. 61 Digital Warrants 61 Product No. 33: Digital Call Warrant. 62 Product No. 35: Digital Put Warrant. 62 Other Warrants 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant. 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant. 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant. 63 Reverse Convertible Notes 63 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant. 63 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Reverset Canvertible Note (Physical Delivery). 63 Product No. 38: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement). 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement). 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery). 63 Product No. 43: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery). 63 <td< th=""><th>Product No. 28: One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant</th><th> 60</th></td<>	Product No. 28: One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant	60
No Touch Warrants 61 Product No. 31: No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant 61 Product No. 33: Inline Warrant 61 Digital Warrants 61 Product No. 33: Duo Inline Warrant 61 Product No. 34: Duo Inline Warrant 62 Other Warrants 62 Orduct No. 35: Digital Call Warrant 62 Other Warrants 62 Other Warrants 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant 62 Product No. 30: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant 62 Product No. 30: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant 63 Product No. 31: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 31: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 43: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 43: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 43: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 43: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 <	Product No. 29: One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant	60
Product No. 31: No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant. 61 Product No. 32: Infine Warrant. 61 Digital Warrants. 61 Product No. 34: Duo Inline Warrant. 61 Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant. 62 Product No. 36: Digital Call Warrant. 62 Product No. 36: Digital Call Warrant. 62 Other Warrants 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant. 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Call Barrier Warrant. 63 Reverse Convertible Notes. 63 Product No. 37: Down and Out Call Barrier Warrant. 63 Reverse Convertible Notes 63 Product No. 37: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery). 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery). 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery). 64 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement). 64 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery). 64 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement). 64 Product	Product No. 30: One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant	60
Product No. 32: No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant 61 Product No. 33: Inline Warrant 61 Digital Warrants 61 Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant 62 Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant 62 Other Warrants 62 Product No. 35: Digital Put Warrant 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Cull Barrier Warrant 63 Reverse Convertible Notes 63 Product No. 37: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 37: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 64 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 64 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)	No Touch Warrants	61
Product No. 33: Inline Warrant. 61 Digital Warrants. 61 Product No. 34: Duo Inline Warrant. 62 Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant. 62 Product No. 35: Digital Put Warrant. 62 Other Warrants. 63 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant. 62 Ortouct No. 37: Down and Out Call Barrier Warrant. 63 Reverse Convertible Notes. 63 Product No. 37: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery). 63 Product No. 37: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery). 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement). 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement). 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement). 64 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement). 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement). 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement). 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement). 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement). 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settle		
Digital Warrants 61 Product No. 34: Duo Inline Warrant 62 Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant 62 Other Warrants 62 Other Warrants 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant 62 Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant 62 Notes 63 Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant 63 Notes 63 Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convert	Product No. 32: No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant	61
Product No. 34: Duo Inline Warrant. 61 Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant. 62 Product No. 36: Digital Put Warrant. 62 Other Warrants 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant. 62 Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant. 62 Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant. 63 Reverse Convertible Notes. 63 Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery). 63 Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No.	Product No. 33: Inline Warrant	61
Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant. 62 Product No. 35: Digital Put Warrant 62 Other Warrants 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant 62 Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant 62 Notes 63 Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant 63 Reverse Convertible Notes 63 Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 64 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Contificts of Interest 64 GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 68	5	
Product No. 36: Digital Put Warrant 62 Other Warrants 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant 62 Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant 62 Notes 63 Reverse Convertible Notes 63 Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 43: Eary Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 65 <td< td=""><td>Product No. 34: Duo Inline Warrant</td><td>61</td></td<>	Product No. 34: Duo Inline Warrant	61
Other Warrants 62 Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant 62 Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant 62 Notes 63 Reverse Convertible Note 63 Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 47: East Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 C. Risk Factors Relating to The Market Generally 85 E. Conflicts of Interest 66 GENER	Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant	62
Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant 62 Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant 63 Notes 63 Notes 63 Reverse Convertible Notes 63 Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 65 General Description of the Programme 93 D. General		
Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant 62 Notes 63 Reverse Convertible Note 63 Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 47: Barrier Notice 85 E. Conflicts of Interest 66 GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 89 A. Responsible Persons – Important Notice 89 B. Form of Document – Publication 91 Ceneral Description of the Programme 92 </td <td></td> <td></td>		
Notes 63 Reverse Convertible Notes 63 Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 C. Risk Factors Related to Securities Generally 73 D. Risk Factors Relating to The Market Generally 73 E. Conflicts of Interest 86 GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 89 A. Responsible Persons – Important Notice 88 B. Form of Document – Publication 91 Certificates 101 Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) 101 Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) 101	Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant	62
Reverse Convertible Notes 63 Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 65 C. Risk Factors Relating to The Market Generally 62 E. Conflicts of Interest 66 GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 89 B. Form of Document – Publication 91 C. General Description of the Securities 101 <td>•</td> <td></td>	•	
Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 16: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 10: Interest 66 GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 89 B. Form of Document – Publication 93 D. General Description of the Securities 101 Discount Certificates 101 Droduct No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery)		
Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 C. Risk Factors Related to Securities Generally 73 D. Risk Factors Relating to The Market Generally 82 E. Conflicts of Interest 86 GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 89 A. Responsible Persons – Important Notice 89 B. Form of Document – Publication 91 Certificates 101 Discount Certificates 101 Discount Certificates 101 Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery)		
Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 42: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 C. Risk Factors Related to Securities Generally 73 D. Risk Factors Relating to The Market Generally 62 E. Conflicts of Interest 66 GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 89 A. Responsible Persons – Important Notice 89 B. Form of Document – Publication 91 C. General Description of the Securities 101 Discount Certificates 101 Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) 101 Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Product No. 5: Bonus Pro Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate (Cash Se		
Product No. 42: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 63 Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 C. Risk Factors Related to Securities Generally 73 D. Risk Factors Relating to The Market Generally 82 E. Conflicts of Interest 86 GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 89 A. Responsible Persons – Important Notice 89 B. Form of Document – Publication 91 C. General Description of the Programme 93 D. General Description of the Securities 101 Droduct No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate with Cap 102 Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap 103		
Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 63 Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 On A6: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Droduct No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Drikk Factors Related to Securities Generally 73 D Risk Factors Relating to The Market Generally 62 E. Conflicts of Interest 66 GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 89 A. Responsible Persons – Important Notice 89 B. Form of Document – Publication 91 C. General Description of the Programme 93 D. General Description of the Securities 101 Discount Certificates 101 Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) 101 Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Bonus Certificates 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate 102 Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap 102 Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate wi		
Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 C. Risk Factors Related to Securities Generally 73 D. Risk Factors Related to Securities Generally 73 D. Risk Factors Relating to The Market Generally 82 E. Conflicts of Interest 86 GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 89 A. Responsible Persons – Important Notice 89 B. Form of Document – Publication 91 C. General Description of the Programme. 93 D. General Description of the Securities 101 Discount Certificates. 101 Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) 101 Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate 101 Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate 102 Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate with Cap 102 Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap 103		
Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) 64 Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) 64 C. Risk Factors Related to Securities Generally 73 D. Risk Factors Relating to The Market Generally 82 E. Conflicts of Interest 86 GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 89 A. Responsible Persons – Important Notice 89 B. Form of Document – Publication 91 C. General Description of the Programme 93 D. General Description of the Securities 101 Discount Certificates 101 Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) 101 Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate 101 Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate 102 Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate 102 Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate with Cap 102 Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 103	Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)	63
Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)	Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)	64
C. Risk Factors Related to Securities Generally	Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)	64
D. Risk Factors Relating to The Market Generally 82 E. Conflicts of Interest 86 GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 89 A. Responsible Persons – Important Notice 89 B. Form of Document – Publication 91 C. General Description of the Programme. 93 D. General Description of the Securities 101 Certificates 101 Discount Certificates. 101 Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery). 101 Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate with Cap. 102 Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap. 102 Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate with Cap. 102 Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap. 103 Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap. 103 Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap. 103 Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap. 104 Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap. 104 Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap. 104 Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap. 104 Pr		
E. Conflicts of Interest	C. Risk Factors Related to Securities Generally	73
GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME 89 A. Responsible Persons – Important Notice 88 B. Form of Document – Publication 91 C. General Description of the Programme. 93 D. General Description of the Securities 101 Certificates 101 Discount Certificates 101 Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) 101 Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Bonus Certificates 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate with Cap 102 Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate 102 Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate 102 Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap 102 Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 104 Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 104 Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate 105 Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate 105 Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate		
A. Responsible Persons – Important Notice 88 B. Form of Document – Publication 91 C. General Description of the Programme 93 D. General Description of the Securities 101 Certificates 101 Discount Certificates 101 Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) 101 Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate 102 Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap 102 Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate 102 Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap 102 Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 104 Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 104 Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate 105 Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate 105	E. Conflicts of Interest	86
B. Form of Document – Publication 91 C. General Description of the Programme. 93 D. General Description of the Securities 101 Certificates 101 Discount Certificates. 101 Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery). 101 Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Bonus Certificates 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate with Cap 102 Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate with Cap 102 Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate 103 Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate 103 Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 104 Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 104 Outperformance Certificates 105 Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate 105 Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate 105	GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME	89
C. General Description of the Programme	A. Responsible Persons – Important Notice	89
D. General Description of the Securities 101 Certificates 101 Discount Certificates 101 Discount Certificates 101 Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) 101 Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement) 101 Bonus Certificates 101 Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate 101 Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap 102 Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate 102 Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap 102 Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate 103 Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 103 Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 104 Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 104 Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate 105 Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate 105 Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate 105	B. Form of Document – Publication	91
Certificates101Discount Certificates101Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery)101Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement)101Bonus Certificates101Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate101Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap102Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate102Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap102Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate103Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap103Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap103Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Outperformance Certificates105Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate105Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105Product No. 14: Digital Reverse Sonus Certificate105Product No. 13: Spr	C. General Description of the Programme	93
Discount Certificates.101Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery).101Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement).101Bonus Certificates.101Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate .101Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap.102Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate with Cap.102Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap.102Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap.103Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap.103Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap.103Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap.104Outperformance Certificates.105Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate105Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105Prod	D. General Description of the Securities	101
Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery)101Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement)101Bonus Certificates101Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate101Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap102Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate102Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap102Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate103Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate103Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap103Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap103Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Outperformance Certificates105Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate105Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105Product No. 13: Spri	Certificates	101
Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement)101Bonus Certificates101Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate101Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap102Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate102Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap102Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate103Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap103Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate103Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Outperformance Certificates105Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate105Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105	Discount Certificates	101
Bonus Certificates101Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate101Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap102Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate102Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap102Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate103Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap103Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate103Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Outperformance Certificates105Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate105Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105	Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery)	101
Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate101Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap102Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate102Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap102Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate103Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap103Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate103Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Outperformance Certificates105Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate105Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105	Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement)	101
Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap102Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate102Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap102Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate103Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap103Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate103Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Outperformance Certificates105Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate105Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105	Bonus Certificates	101
Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate102Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap102Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate103Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap103Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate103Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Outperformance Certificates105Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate105Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105	Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate	101
Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap102Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate103Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap103Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate103Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Outperformance Certificates105Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate105Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105	Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap	102
Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate103Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap103Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate103Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap104Outperformance Certificates105Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate105Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105	Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate	102
Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap	Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap	102
Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate 103 Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 104 Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap 104 Outperformance Certificates 105 Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate 105 Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate 105	Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate	103
Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap	Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap	103
Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap	Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate	103
Outperformance Certificates	Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap	104
Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate		
Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate105	Outperformance Certificates	105
	Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate	105
Warrants 106	Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate	105
Warrants	Warrants	106

III.

	Classic Warrants	. 106
	Product No. 14: Call Warrant and Discount Call Warrant	. 106
	Product No. 15: Put Warrant and Discount Put Warrant	. 106
	WAVE (Knock Out) Warrants	. 106
	Product No. 16: WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant	. 106
	Product No. 17: WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	
	Product No. 18: WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant	
	Product No. 19: WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	
	WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Warrants	
	Product No. 20: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant	
	Product No. 21: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	
	Product No. 22: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant	
	Product No. 23: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	
	WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Warrants	
	Product No. 24: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant	
	Product No. 25: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	
	Product No. 26: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant	
	Product No. 27: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	
	One Touch Warrants	
	Product No. 28: One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant	
	Product No. 29: One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant	
	Product No. 30: One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant	
	No Touch Warrants	
	Product No. 31: No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant	
	Product No. 32: No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant	
	Product No. 33: Inline Warrant	
	Product No. 34:Duo Inline Warrant	
	Digital Warrants	
	Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant	
	Product No. 36: Digital Put Warrant	
	Other Warrants	
	Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant	
	Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant	
	Notes	
	Reverse Convertible Notes	
	Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)	
	Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)	
	Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)	
	Product No. 42: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)	
	Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)	
	Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Denvery)	
	Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)	
	Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Derivery) Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)	
F	General Description of the Underlying	
	General Description of the Orderlying	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	1. Listing and Trading	125
	2. Offering of Securities	125
	3. Fees	126
	4. Security Ratings	126
	5. Interests of Natural and Legal Persons involved in the Issue	126
	6. Reasons for the Offer, Use of Proceeds, Estimated Net Proceeds and Total	
	Expenses	
	7. Country Specific Information	
	G. Information incorporated by reference	
	H. General Information	
	1. Authorisation	
	2. Post Issuance Information	
	3. Consent to use of Prospectus	
N7	4. Notices concerning the termination of the primary market	
IV.	GENERAL CONDITIONS	-
V.	PRODUCT TERMS	
	General Definitions applicable to the Securities	
	General Definitions applicable to Certificates	
	Specific Definitions applicable to Certificates	
	Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery)	
	Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement)	
	Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate	
	Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap	
	Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate	
	Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap	
	Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate	
	Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap	
	Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate	
	Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap	
	Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap	
	Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate	
	Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate	
	General Definitions applicable to Warrants	
	Specific Definitions applicable to Warrants	
	Product No. 16: WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant	286
	Product No. 17: WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	286
	Product No. 18: WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant	
	Product No. 19: WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination	
	X-DAX [®] Index	
	Product No. 20: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant	286
	Product No. 21: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	286
	Product No. 22: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant	
	Product No. 23: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional	
	Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	
	Product No. 24: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant	200
	Product No. 25: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index	286
	Product No. 26: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrants	286

Product No. 27: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Addition Determination X-DAX [®] Index	286			
Product No. 28: One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant	291			
Product No. 29: One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant	291			
Product No. 30: One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant	291			
Product No. 31: No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant	291			
Product No. 32: No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant	291			
Product No. 33: Inline Warrant	291			
Product No. 34: Duo Inline Warrant	293			
Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant	295			
Product No. 36: Digital Put Warrant	295			
Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant	296			
Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant				
General Definitions applicable to Notes	298			
Specific Definitions applicable to Notes				
Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)				
Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)				
Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)				
Product No. 42: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)				
Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)				
Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)				
Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)				
Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)				
Further Definitions applicable to the Securities				
VI. FORM OF FINAL TERMS				
Table of Contents	314			
Overview over the Security				
Terms and Conditions				
Further Information about the Offering of the Securities				
Issue-Specific Summary	331			
VII. FINAL TERMS FOR THE CONTINUATION OF THE PUBLIC OFFER				
GENERAL INFORMATION ON TAXATION AND SELLING RESTRICTIONS				
IX. DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER	390			
X. CONTINUED OFFERS				
SIGNATURES	403			

I. SUMMARY

[If this Summary relates to more than one series of Securities, to the extent that any term differs for one or more series, insert for the relevant item, which is marked "to be inserted for each Series of Securities", "In respect of each series".]

Summaries are made up of disclosure requirements, known as "Elements". These elements are numbered in Sections A - E (A.1 - E.7).

This Summary contains all the Elements required to be included in a summary for this type of securities and Issuer. Because some Elements are not required to be addressed, there may be gaps in the numbering sequence of the Elements.

Even though an Element may be required to be inserted in the summary because of the type of securities and Issuer, it is possible that no relevant information can be given regarding the Element. In this case a short description of the Element is included in the summary with the mention of 'not applicable'.

Element	Section A – Introduction and warnings			
A.1	Warning Warning that			
		 the Summary should be read as an introduction to the Prospectus, 		
		 any decision to invest in the Securities should be based on consideration of the Prospectus as a whole by the investor, 		
		 where a claim relating to the information contained in the Prospectus is brought before a court, the plaintiff investor might, under the national legislation of the Member States, have to bear the costs of translating the Prospectus, before the legal proceedings are initiated; and 		
		 in its function as the Issuer responsible for the Summary and any translation thereof as well as the dissemination of the Summary and any translation thereof, Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft may be held liable but only if the Summary is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of the Prospectus or it does not provide key information, when read together with the other parts of the Prospectus. 		
A.2	Consent to use of base prospectus	 [The Issuer consents to the use of the Prospectus for a later resale or final placement of the Securities by all financial intermediaries (general consent).] 		
		 [The Issuer consents to the use of the Prospectus for a later resale or final placement of the Securities by the following financial intermediaries (individual consent): [Inser- name[s] and address[es].] 		
		 The subsequent resale or final placement of Securities by financial intermediaries can be made [as long as this Prospectus is valid in accordance with Article 9 of the Prospectus Directive] [<i>insert time period</i>]. 		
		• [Such consent is also subject to [].] [This consent is not subject to any conditions.]		
		 In case of an offer being made by a financial intermediary, this financial intermediary will provide information to investors on the terms and conditions of the offer at the time the offer is made. 		

Element	t Section B – Issuer				
B.1	Legal and commercial name of the issuer	The legal and commercial name of the Issuer is Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft (" Deutsche Bank " or " Bank ").			
B.2	Domicile, legal form, legislation and country of incorporation of the issuer	Deutsche Bank is a stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) under German law. The Bank has its registered office in Frankfurt am Main, Germany. It maintains its head office at Taunusanlage 12, 60325 Frankfurt am Main, Germany (telephone +49-69-910-00).			
		[If the Securities are issued by Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch, insert:			
		Deutsche Bank AG, acting through its London branch (" Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch ") is domiciled at Winchester House, 1 Great Winchester Street, London EC2N 2DB, United Kingdom.]			
		[If the Securities are issued by Deutsche Bank AG, Milan Branch, insert:			
		Deutsche Bank AG, acting through its Milan branch (" Deutsche Bank AG, Milan Branch ") is domiciled at Via Filippo Turati 27, 20121 Milan, Italy.]			
		[If the Securities are issued by Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal em Portugal, insert:			
		Deutsche Bank AG, acting through its Portuguese branch (" Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal em Portugal ") is domiciled at Rua Castilho, 20, 1250-069 Lisbon, Portugal.]			
		[If the Securities are issued by Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal en España, insert:			

B.4b	Trends			acting through its S	oanish branch (" Deu t	acho Bonk AC Su	
B.4b	Trends			De La Castellana, 18	, 28046 Madrid, Spai		cursal en Espana")
		as to de	With the exception of the effects of the macroeconomic conditions and market environment, litigation risks associated with the financial markets crisis as well as the effects of legislation and regulations applicable to financial institutions in Germany and the European Union, there are no known trends, uncertainties, demands, commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a material effect on the Issuer's prospects in its current financial year.				
B.5	Description of the Group and the issuer's position within the Group	CO CO	Deutsche Bank is the parent company and the most material entity of Deutsche Bank Group, a group onsisting of banks, capital market companies, fund management companies, property finance ompanies, instalment financing companies, research and consultancy companies and other domestic nd foreign companies (the " Deutsche Bank Group ").				
B.9	Profit forecast or estimate	No	ot applicable. No p	profit forecast or estin	nate is made.		
B.10	Qualifications in the audit report on the historical financial information	Not applicable. There are no qualifications in the audit report on the historical financial information.					
B.12	Selected historical key financial information	ex as	tracted from the re of 31 December	espective audited con 2015 and 31 Decer	from the balance she solidated financial sta nber 2016, as well a and of 31 March 20	atements prepared in s from the unaudited	accordance with IFF
				31 December 2015 (IFRS, audited)	31 March 2016 (IFRS, unaudited)	31 December 2016 (IFRS, audited)	31 March 2017 (IFRS, unaudited)
			Share capital (in EUR)	3,530,939,215.36	3,530,939,215.36	3,530,939,215.36	3,530,939,215.36
			Number of ordinary shares	1,379,273,131	1,379,273,131	1,379,273,131	1,379,273,131*
			Total assets (in million Euro)	1,629,130	1,740,569	1,590,546	1,564,756
			Total liabilities (in million Euro)	1,561,506	1,674,023	1,525,727	1,499,905
			Total equity (in million Euro)	67,624	66,546	64,819	64,852
			Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio ¹	13.2%	12.0%	13.4%	12.7% ²
			Tier 1 capital ratio ¹	14.7%	13.9%	15.6%	15.2% ³

	A statement that there has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the issuer since the date of its last published audited financial statements or a description of any material adverse change	There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of Deutsche Bank Group or Deutsche Bank since 31 December 2016.		
	A description of significant changes in the financial or trading position of the Issuer subsequent to the period covered by the historical financial information	Not applicable. There has been no significant change in the financial position or trading position of Deutsche Bank Group or Deutsche Bank since 31 March 2017.		
B.13	Recent events	Not applicable. There are no recent events particular to the Issuer which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of the Issuer's solvency.		
B.14	Dependence upon other entities within the group	Not applicable. The Issuer is not dependent upon other entities of Deutsche Bank Group.		
B.15	Issuer's principal activities	The objects of Deutsche Bank, as laid down in its Articles of Association, include the transaction of all kinds of banking business, the provision of financial and other services and the promotion of international economic relations. The Bank may realise these objectives itself or through subsidiaries and affiliated companies. To the extent permitted by law, the Bank is entitled to transact all business and to take all steps which appear likely to promote the objectives of the Bank, in particular: to acquire and dispose of real estate, to establish branches at home and abroad, to acquire, administer and dispose of participations in other enterprises, and to conclude enterprise agreements.		
		Deutsche Bank Group's business activities are organized into the following three corporate divisions:		
		 Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB); Deutsche Asset Management (DeAM); and 		
		 Private & Commercial Bank (PCB). 		
		The three corporate divisions are supported by infrastructure functions. In addition, Deutsche Bank Group has a regional management function that covers regional responsibilities worldwide.		
		The Bank has operations or dealings with existing or potential customers in most countries in the world. These operations and dealings include:		
		subsidiaries and branches in many countries;		
		representative offices in other countries; and		
		one or more representatives assigned to serve customers in a large number of additional countries.		
B.16	Controlling persons	Not applicable. Based on notifications of major shareholdings pursuant to sections 21 et seq. of the German Securities Trading Act (Wertpapierhandelsgesetz - WpHG), there are four shareholders holding more than 3 but less than 10 per cent. of the Issuer's shares. To the Issuer's knowledge there is no other shareholder holding more than 3 per cent. of the shares. The Issuer is thus not directly or indirectly owned or controlled.		

Element		Section C – Securities ¹
C.1	Type and the class of the	Class of Securities
	securities, including any security identification number	[If the Securities are represented by a global security, insert
		[Each Series of the] [The] Securities will be represented by a global security (the "Global Security").]
		No definitive Securities will be issued.
		The Securities [in every Series] will be issued [in bearer form][in registered form][in dematerialised form].
		Type of Securities
		The Securities are [Certificates] [Warrants] [Notes].
		Security identification number(s) of Securities
		[ISIN: []*
		WKN []*
		[Common code: []*]
		[In relation to multi-series Securities insert following overview table of relevant information and complete for each Series of Securities;
		ISIN WKN [Common code]
]
C.2	Currency	[For each Series of Securities] []*
		[In relation to multi-series Securities insert following overview table of relevant information and complete for each Series of Securities, if required:
		ISIN Currency
C.5	Restrictions on the free] Each Security [of a Series of Securities] is transferable in accordance with applicable
0.0	transferability of the securities	law and any rules and procedures for the time being of any Clearing Agent through whose books such Security is transferred.
		[Insert for Uncertificated SIS Securities: As long as Uncertificated SIS Securities are considered to be intermediated securities (<i>Bucheffekten</i>), they are transferrable only by entry of the transferred Uncertificated SIS Securities into a securities account of the transferee, who is a participant of the Intermediary.
		As a result, Uncertificated SIS Securities <i>which</i> are considered to be intermediated securities (<i>Bucheffekten</i>) may only be transferred to an investor who is a participant of the Intermediary, i.e. has a securities account with the Intermediary.
C.8	Rights attached to the securities,	Governing law of the Securities
	including ranking and limitations to those rights	[Each Series of the] [The] Securities will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, [English law] [German law] [Italian law] [Portuguese law] [Spanish law]. The constituting of the Securities may be governed by the laws of the jurisdiction of the Clearing Agent.
		Rights attached to the Securities
		The Securities provide holders of the Securities, on redemption or upon exercise, subject to a total loss, with a claim for payment of a cash amount and/or delivery of a physical delivery amount. [The Securities also provide holders with an entitlement for the payment of a coupon.]
		Limitations to the rights
		Under the conditions set out in the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer is entitled to terminate and cancel the Securities and to amend the Terms and Conditions.
		Status of the Securities
		[Each Series of the] [The] Securities will constitute direct, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer ranking <i>pari passu</i> among themselves and

¹

THE USE OF THE SYMBOL "*" IN THE FOLLOWING SECTION C - SECURITIES INDICATES THAT THE RELEVANT INFORMATION FOR EACH SERIES OF SECURITIES MAY, IN RESPECT OF MULTI-SERIES SECURITIES AND WHERE APPROPRIATE, BE PRESENTED IN A TABLE.

		<i>pari passu</i> with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, subject, however, to statutory priorities conferred to certain unsecured and unsubordinated obligations in the event of resolution measures imposed on the Issuer or in the event of the dissolution, liquidation, insolvency, composition or other proceedings for the avoidance of insolvency of, or against, the Issuer.
		[At issuance, the Securities constitute, in the opinion of the Issuer, non-preferred debt instruments within the meaning of Section 46f(6) sentence 1 of the German Banking Act (<i>Kreditwesensgesetz</i>).]
		[No Securityholder may set off his claims arising under the Securities against any claims of the Issuer. No security or guarantee shall be provided at any time securing claims of the Securityholders under the Securities; any security or guarantee already provided or granted in the future in connection with other liabilities of the Issuer may not be used for claims under the Securities.]
		[Any redemption, repurchase or termination of the Securities prior to their scheduled maturity is subject to the prior approval of the competent authority, if legally required. If the Securities are redeemed or repurchased otherwise than in such circumstances, then the amounts paid must be returned to the Issuer irrespective of any agreement to the contrary.]]
C.11	Application for admission to trading, with a view to their	[Not applicable; no application has been made to admit [[each Series of the] [the] Securities to the regulated market of any exchange.]
	distribution in a regulated market or other equivalent markets with indication of the markets in questions	[Application [has been made] [will be made] to [admit to trading] [include in trading] [list] [and quote] [each Series of the] [the] Securities on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to quote them on the [Regulated market] [Euro MTF] of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, which is [not] a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC].
		[Application [has been made] [will be made] to [admit to trading] [include in trading] [list] [and quote] [each Series of the] [the] Securities on the [regulated] [] [market] [<i>Freiverkehr</i>] of the [[Frankfurt] [Stuttgart] [Spanish] [] Stock Exchange] [Borsa Italiana] [NYSE Euronext Lisbon][AIAF Fixed Income Securities Market][, which is [not] a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC] [<i>insert all relevant regulated</i> <i>markets</i>].
		[Application [has been made] [will be made] to [admit to trading] [include in trading] [list] [and quote] [each Series of the] [the] Securities on [<i>insert all relevant regulated markets</i>], which are [not] a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC]. [The Securities have been [admitted to trading] [included in trading] on the [regulated] [] market of the [] Stock Exchange [<i>insert all relevant regulated markets</i>], which are [not] regulated markets for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC.
		[Application will be made to list [each Series of the] [the] Securities on the <i>SIX Swiss Exchange</i> . Application has been made for the Securities to be admitted to trading on SIX Structured Products Exchange [with effect from []].]
C.15	A description of how the value of	[If the Security is a Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) (product no. 1), insert:
	the investment is affected by the value of the underlying instrument(s), unless the securities have a denomination of at least EUR 100,000	With the [Discount Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors participate in the performance of the Underlying during the term. However, the initial Issue Price or current selling price of the Certificate is below the current price or level of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount (discount), in each case taking into account the Multiplier.
		On the Settlement Date investors receive, depending on the Final Reference Level, either a Cash Amount or the Underlying based on the Multiplier or, as the case may be, the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount.
		 a) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Cap, the Cash Amount is equal to the Maximum Amount.
		b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) less than or (ii) equal to or less than the Cap, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or, as the case may be, assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. Fractional amounts are not delivered, but are paid out in the form of a corresponding cash payment in the Settlement Currency for each [Discount Certificate] [insert other marketing name, if any].
		In return for the discount, investors only participate in a rise in the Underlying up to the Cap.]
		[If the Security is a Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement) (product no. 2) , insert:
		With this [Discount Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors participate in the performance of the Underlying during the term. However, the initial issue price or current selling price of the Certificate is below the current price or level of the Underlying (discount) taking into account the Multiplier.

	On the Settlement Date investors receive a Cash Amount which is calculated on the basis of the Final Reference Level.
	 a) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Cap, the Cash Amount is equal to the Maximum Amount.
	b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Cap, investors receive a Cash Amount in the amount of the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier.
	In return for the discount, investors only participate in a rise in the Underlying up to the Cap.]
	[If the Security is a Bonus Certificate (product no. 3), insert:
	With this [Bonus Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying.
	a) If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the term either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Final Reference Level taking account of the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount.
	b) If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the term either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but instead equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying).
	In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]
	[If the Security is a Bonus Certificate with Cap (product no. 4) , insert:
	With this [Bonus Certificate with Cap] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying.
	a) If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the term either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Final Reference Level taking account of the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount and a maximum of the Maximum Amount.
	b) If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the term either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but instead equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier and to a maximum of the Maximum Amount (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying).
	In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]
	[If the Security is a Bonus Pro Certificate (product no. 5) , inser <mark>t</mark> :
	With this [BonusPro Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying.
	a) If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Final Reference Level taking account of the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount.
	b) If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but instead equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying).
	In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]
	[If the Security is a BonusPro Certificate with Cap (product no. 6) , insert:

re	ith this [BonusPro Certificate with Cap] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors ceive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the erformance of the Underlying.
a)	If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Final Reference Level taking account of the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount and a maximum of the Maximum Amount.
b)	If the price or level of the Underlying is at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the <i>Bonus Amount</i> , but instead equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier and to a maximum of the Maximum Amount (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying).
	return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive eir claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]
[<mark>][</mark>	the Security is an Easy Bonus Certificate (product no. 7), insert:
re	ith this [Easy Bonus Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors ceive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the erformance of the Underlying.
a)	If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount will be equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount.
b)	If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but instead equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier (1:1 participation in the negative performance of the Underlying).
	return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive eir claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]
[<mark>][</mark>	the security is an Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap (product no. 8), insert:
inv	ith this [Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], vestors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends the performance of the Underlying.
a)	If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount will be equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount and a maximum of the Maximum Amount.
b)	If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but instead equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier (1:1 participation in the negative performance of the Underlying).
	return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive eir claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]
[<mark> f</mark>	the Security is a Reverse Bonus Certificate (product no. 9), insert:
re pe	ith this [Reverse Bonus Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors ceive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the erformance of the Underlying. Another special feature of the Certificate is that vestors participate in the inverse performance of the Underlying.
a)	If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Reverse Level minus the Final Reference Level taking account of the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount.
b)	If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but is instead the Reverse Level minus the Final Reference Level

taking into account the Multiplier (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying), but not less than zero.
In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]
[If the Security is a Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap (product no. 10), insert:
With this [Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying. Another special feature of the Certificate is that investors participate in the inverse performance of the Underlying.
a) If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the <i>Barrier</i> , the <i>Cash Amount</i> is equal to the Reverse Level minus the Final Reference Level taking account of the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount and a maximum of the Maximum Amount.
b) If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but is instead the Reverse Level minus the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, but a maximum of the Maximum Amount (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying) and a minimum of zero.
In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]
[If the Security is a Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap (product no. 11) , insert:
With this [Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying. Another special feature of the Certificate is that investors participate in the inverse performance of the Underlying.
a) If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Bonus Amount.
b) If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Reverse Level minus the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, but a maximum of the Bonus Amount (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying) and not less than zero.
In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount requires investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]
[If the Security is an Outperformance Certificate (product no. 12), insert:
With this [Outperformance Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the Final Reference Level. They participate more than proportionately in the positive performance of the Underlying above the Strike, but 1:1 in the negative performance of the Strike.
a) If the Final Reference Level is above the Strike, investors participate more than proportionately at maturity due to the Participation Factor, and to an unlimited extent in the positive performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.
b) If the Final Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike, investors receive a Cash Amount in the amount of the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier. They thus participate in the negative performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.
Investors may assert no further claims in relation to the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends) in return for the increased opportunity to participate in the performance of the Underlying.]
[If the Security is a Sprint Certificate (product no. 13), insert:
With this [Sprint Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] investors participate in the positive performance of the Underlying within a certain range (between the Strike

	and the Cap) at maturity; the multiple and the Participation Factor are both specified in the applicable Final Terms.
	a) If the Final Reference Level is above the Strike but below the Cap, investors receive the Strike, taking into account the Multiplier, plus the multiple of the amount by which the Final Reference Level is above the Strike.
	b) If the Final Reference Level is equal to or above the Cap, investors receive the Maximum Amount.
	c) If the Final Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike, investors receive a Cash Amount equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, and thus participate 1:1 in the negative performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.
	Investors limit their possible return to the Maximum Amount in return for the possibility of participating in a multiple of the positive performance of the Underlying.]
	[If the Security is a Call Warrant or a Discount Call Warrant (product no. 14) , insert;
	Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this [Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].
	Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying is equal to or below the Strike. On the Settlement Date, investors receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level exceeds the Strike. For a [Discount Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], the Cash Amount is limited to the Maximum Amount. If the Final Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]
	[If the Security is a Put Warrant or a Discount Put Warrant (product no. 15), insert:
	Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the <i>Underlying</i> with this [Put Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].
	Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying is equal to or above the Strike. On the Settlement Date, investors receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level falls below the Strike. For a [Discount Put Warrant] <i>[insert other marketing name, if any</i>], the Cash Amount is limited to the Maximum Amount. If the Final Reference Level is equal to or above the Strike, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]
	[If the Security is a WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant (product no. 16), insert:
	Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this [WAVE Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].
	Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event). On the Settlement Date, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level exceeds the Strike.
	If the Underlying at any point during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the term of the [WAVE Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]
	[If the Security is a WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index (product no. 17), insert:
	Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this [WAVE Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying or the X-DAX [®] Index at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event). On the Settlement Date, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Performed Law Constraints of the Settlement for the settlement of the sett
amount by which the Final Reference Level exceeds the Strike.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the term of the [WAVE Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]

[If the Security is a WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant (product no. 18), insert:

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this [WAVE Put Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*].

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the barrier (Barrier Event). On the Settlement Date, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level falls below the Strike.

If the Underlying at any point during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the term of the [WAVE Put Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]

[If the Security is a WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index (product no. 19), insert

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this [WAVE Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*].

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event). On the Settlement Date, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level falls below the Strike.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the term of the [WAVE Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]

[If the Security is a WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant (product no. 20), insert:

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this [WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event).

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the term of the [WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption

Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final
Reference Level exceeds the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates plus a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based only on the respective percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

The Barrier is ultimately equivalent to the Strike applicable on such day.]

[If the Security is a WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index(product no. 21), insert:

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this [WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event).

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the term of the [WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level exceeds the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates plus a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based only on the respective percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

The Barrier is ultimately equivalent to the Strike applicable on such day.]

[If the Security is a WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant (product no. 22), insert:

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this [WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event).

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the term of the [WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is lower than the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates less a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based only on the respective percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

The Barrier is ultimately equivalent to the Strike applicable on such day.]

[If the Security is a WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index (product no. 23), insert:

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this [WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event).

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the term of the [WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is lower than the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates less a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based only on the respective percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

The Barrier is ultimately equivalent to the Strike applicable on such day.]
[If the Security is a WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant (product no. 24), insert:
Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this [WAVE XXL Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] with no fixed settlement date.
Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of the [WAVE XXL Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] immediately expiring (Barrier Event) if the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier. In such case, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Stop Loss Reference Level specified by the Issuer exceeds the Strike. If, at the relevant time, the Underlying is equal to or below the Strike – which may be the case particularly with strong movement of the Underlying at the time of the Barrier Event – investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.
If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is above the Strike.
Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates plus a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based on the respective percentage only determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.
In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.
If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.
Finally, the initially applicable Barrier is also adjusted on each following Adjustment Date so that it is equal in each case to the sum of the relevant Strike and the Barrier Adjustment Amount. The Barrier Adjustment Amount on the other hand is the product of the applicable Strike and the Barrier Adjustment Factor, where the Issuer may, in its reasonable discretion, reset the latter on any Adjustment Date, with respect to its level on the Issue Date, in order to prevent the security from expiring with no value and without any payment after occurrence of a Barrier Event with the same probability as at its issue (taking into account the volatility and liquidity of the Underlying).]
[If the Security is a WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index(product no. 25), insert:
Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this [WAVE XXL Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] with no fixed settlement date.
Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of the [WAVE XXL Call Warrant with additional barrier determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] immediately expiring (Barrier Event) if the Underlying or the X-DAX [®] Index at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier. In such case, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Stop Loss Reference Level specified by the Issuer exceeds the Strike. If, at the relevant time, the Underlying or X-DAX [®] Index is equal to or below the Strike – which may be the case particularly with strong movement of the Underlying or the X-DAX [®] Index at the time of the Barrier Event – investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.
If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption

Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final
Reference Level is above the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates plus a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based on the respective percentage only determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

Finally, the initially applicable Barrier is also adjusted on each following Adjustment Date so that it is equal in each case to the sum of the relevant Strike and the Barrier Adjustment Amount. The Barrier Adjustment Amount on the other hand is the product of the applicable Strike and the Barrier Adjustment Factor, where the Issuer may, in its reasonable discretion, reset the latter on any Adjustment Date, with respect to its level on the Issue Date, in order to prevent the security from expiring with no value and without any payment after occurrence of a Barrier Event with the same probability as at its issue (taking into account the volatility and liquidity of the Underlying).]

[If the Security is a WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant (product no. 26), insert:

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this [WAVE XXL Put Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of the [WAVE XXL Put Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] immediately expiring (Barrier Event) if the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier. In such case, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Stop Loss Reference Level specified by the Issuer falls below the Strike. If, at the relevant time, the Underlying is equal to or above the Strike – which may be the case particularly with strong movement of the Underlying at the time of the Barrier Event – investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is lower than the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates less a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based on the respective percentage only determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

Finally, the initially applicable Barrier is also adjusted on each following Adjustment Date so that it is equal in each case to the relevant Strike less the Barrier Adjustment Amount. The Barrier Adjustment Amount on the other hand is the product of the applicable Strike and the Barrier Adjustment Factor, where the Issuer may, in its reasonable discretion, reset the latter on any Adjustment Date, with respect to its level on the Issue Date, in order to prevent the security from expiring with no value and

without any payment after occurrence of a Barrier Event with the same probability as at its issue (taking into account the volatility and liquidity of the Underlying).]
[If the Security is a WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index(product no. 27), insert:
Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this [WAVE XXL Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] with no fixed settlement date.
Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of the [WAVE XXL Put Warrant with additional barrier determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] immediately expiring (Barrier Event) if the Underlying or the X-DAX [®] Index at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier. In such case, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Stop Loss Reference Level specified by the Issuer falls below the Strike. If, at the relevant time, the Underlying or the X-DAX [®] Index is equal to or above the Strike – which may be the case particularly with strong movement of the Underlying at the time of the Barrier Event – investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.
If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is lower than the Strike.
Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates less a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based on the respective percentage only determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.
In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.
If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.
Finally, the initially applicable Barrier is also adjusted on each following Adjustment Date so that it is equal in each case to the relevant Strike less the Barrier Adjustment Amount. The Barrier Adjustment Amount on the other hand is the product of the applicable Strike and the Barrier Adjustment Factor, where the Issuer may, in its reasonable discretion, reset the latter on any Adjustment Date, with respect to its level on the Issue Date, in order to prevent the security from expiring with no value and without any payment after occurrence of a Barrier Event with the same probability as at its issue (taking into account the volatility and liquidity of the Underlying).]
[If the Security is a One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant (product no. 28) , insert:
With this [One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.
Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if no Knock In Event occurs.
If at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (such event referred to as a "Knock In Event"), the [One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] will immediately expire and investors will receive the predetermined One Touch Amount.
If at no point during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]
[If the Security is a One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant (product no. 29) , insert;

With this [One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant] [insert other marketing name, if any],
investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the
Underlying during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if no Knock In Event occurs.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (such event referred to as a "Knock In Event"), the [One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will immediately expire and investors will receive the predetermined One Touch Amount.

If at no point during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]

[If the Security is a One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant (product no. 30), insert:

With this [One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*], investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if no Knock In Event occurs.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Lower Barrier or, as specified in the Final Terms, is either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Upper Barrier (such event referred to as a "Knock In Event"), the [One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will immediately expire and investors will receive the predetermined One Touch Amount.

If at no point during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Lower Barrier or, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Upper Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]

[If the Security is a No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant (product no. 31), insert:

With this [No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*], investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Barrier Event occurs.

If at no point during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the predetermined No Touch Amount.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (such event referred to as a "Barrier Event"), the [No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will immediately expire and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]

[If the Security is a No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant (product no. 32), insert:

With this [No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*], investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Barrier Event occurs.

If at no point during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the predetermined No Touch Amount.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (such event referred to as a "Barrier Event"), the [No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will immediately expire and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]

	[If the Security is an Inline Warrant (product no. 33), insert:
	With this [Inline Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.
	Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Barrier Event occurs.
: 	If at no point during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the predetermined Lower Barrier or, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the predetermined Upper Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the predetermined No Touch Amount.
as Lo at W re	at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, s specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the predetermined ower Barrier or, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) above or (ii) equal to or pove the predetermined Upper Barrier (such event a "Barrier Event"), the [Inline /arrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] will immediately expire and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no ayment.]
	If the Security is a Duo Inline Warrant (product no. 34), insert:
	With this [Duo Inline Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the two Underlyings during the term.
	Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Barrier Event in respect of at least one of the two Underlyings occurs.
	If at no point during the Observation Period the respective Barrier Determination Amount of both Underlyings is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the predetermined Lower Barrier for the respective Underlying or, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the predetermined Upper Barrier for the respective Underlying, the Cash Amount is equal to the predetermined No Touch Amount.
 (f at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount of at east one of the two Underlyings is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the predetermined Lower Barrier for the respective Underlying or, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the predetermined Upper Barrier for the respective Underlying (such event a "Barrier Event"), the [Duo Inline Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] will immediately expire and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]
	[If the Security is a Digital Call Warrant (product no. 35) , insert:
	With this [Digital Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.
	Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.
	If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the predetermined Digital Amount.
	If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]
Ì	[If the Security is a Digital Put Warrant (product no. 36), insert:
	With this [Digital Put Warrant] [insert other marketing name, if any], investors receive a
	predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.

If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii)
equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the predetermined Digital
Amount.

If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.]

[If the Security is a Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant (product no. 37), insert:

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this [Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*].

Conversely, investors bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (such event a "Barrier Event") or the Final Reference Level is equal to or above the Strike.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier ("Barrier Event"), the term of the [Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If at no point during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, but the Final Reference Level is equal to or above the Strike, investors likewise will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If, on the other hand, at no point during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier and the Final Reference Level is below the Strike, the Cash Amount is equal to the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is below the Strike.]

[If the Security is an Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant (product no. 38), insert:

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this [Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*].

Conversely, investors bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (such event a "Barrier Event") or the Final Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier ("Barrier Event"), the term of the [Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If at no point during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms,(i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, but the Final Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike, investors likewise will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If, on the other hand, at no point during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier and the Final Reference Level is above the Strike, the Cash Amount is equal to the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level exceeds the Strike.]

[If the Security is a **Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) (product no. 39)**, insert:

The [Reverse Convertible Note] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from two key features:

1. Coupon payments

The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective

Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.
If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.
2. Redemption at maturity
a) On the Settlement Date investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Strike.
b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, investors receive the proportion of the Underlying based on the Multiplier or, as the case may be, assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount and therefore participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike. Fractional amounts are not delivered, but are paid out in the form of a corresponding cash payment in the Settlement Currency for each [Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].
In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.]
[If the Security is a Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) (product no. 40) , inser <mark>i</mark> :
The [Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from two key features:
1. Coupon payments
The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.
If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.
2. Redemption at maturity
a) On the Settlement Date investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Strike.
 b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, investors receive a Cash Amount equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, and participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.
In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.]
[If the Security is a Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) (product no. 41), insert:
The [Barrier Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from [two] [the following] key features:
1. Coupon payments
The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.
If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.
[2. Early redemption

If the applicable Final Terms specify early redemption, a check will be performed for this Note on each Observation Date, as to whether the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Redemption Threshold. If it is, the Note will be redeemed early at the Nominal Amount.
3. Redemption at maturity, subject to early redemption if this is specified in the applicable Final Terms]
[2. Redemption at maturity]
a) On the Settlement Date, investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Strike or if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, but the Underlying at no point during the term is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier.
b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike and the Underlying on at least one occasion during the term is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or, as the case may be, assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount and therefore participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike. Fractional amounts are not delivered, but are paid out in the form of a corresponding cash payment in the Settlement Currency for each [Barrier Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].
In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.]
[If the Security is a Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) (product no. 42), insert:
The [Barrier Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from [two] [the following] key features:
1. Coupon payments
The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.
If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.
[2. Early redemption
If the applicable Final Terms specify early redemption, a check will be performed for this Note on each Observation Date, as to whether the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Redemption Threshold. If it is, the Note will be redeemed early at the Nominal Amount.
3. Redemption at maturity, subject to early redemption if this is specified in the applicable Final Terms]
[2. Redemption at maturity]
a) On the Settlement Date, investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Strike or if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, but the Underlying at no point during the term is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier.
b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike and the Underlying on at least one occasion during the term is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive a Cash Amount equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, and thus participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.
In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.]

[If the Security is a Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) (product no. 43), insert:
The [Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from [two] [the following] key features:
1. Coupon payments
The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.
If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.
[2. Early redemption
If the applicable Final Terms specify early redemption, a check will be performed for this Note on each Observation Date, as to whether the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Redemption Threshold. If it is, the Note will be redeemed early at the Nominal Amount.
3. Redemption at maturity, subject to early redemption if this is specified in the applicable Final Terms]
[2. Redemption at maturity]
a) On the Settlement Date, investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Strike or if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, but the Underlying at no point during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier.
b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike and the Underlying on at least one occasion during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or, as the case may be, assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount and therefore participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the form of a corresponding cash payment in the Settlement Currency for each [Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note] [insert other marketing name, if any].
In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.]
[If the Security is a Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)
(product no. 44), insert:
The [Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from [two] [the following] key features:
1. Coupon payments
The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.
If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.
[2. Early redemption
If the applicable Final Terms specify early redemption, a check will be performed for this Note on each Observation Date, as to whether the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Redemption Threshold. If it is, the Note will be redeemed early at the Nominal Amount

	3. Redemption at maturity, subject to early redemption if this is specified in the applicable Final Terms]
	[2. Redemption at maturity]
	a) On the Settlement Date, investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Strike or if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, but the Underlying at no point during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier.
	b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike and the Underlying on at least one occasion during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive a Cash Amount equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, and thus participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.
	In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.]
	[If the Security is an Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) (product no. 45), insert:
	The [Easy Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from [two] [the following] key features:
	1. Coupon payments
	The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.
	If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.
	[2. Early redemption
	If the applicable Final Terms specify early redemption, a check will be performed for this Note on each Observation Date, as to whether the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Redemption Threshold. If it is, the Note will be redeemed early at the Nominal Amount.
	3. Redemption at maturity, subject to early redemption if this is specified in the applicable Final Terms]
	[2. Redemption at maturity]
	a) On the Settlement Date investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier.
	b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or, as the case may be, assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount and therefore participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike. Fractional amounts are not delivered, but are paid out in the form of a corresponding cash payment in the Settlement Currency for each [Easy Reverse Convertible Note] [insert other marketing name, if any].
	In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.]
	[If the Security is an Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) (product no. 46), insert:
	The [Easy Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from [two] [the following] key features:
	1. Coupon payments
	The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective

The a Refer	on Payment Date or on the respective Coup amount of these variable Coupon Payments ence Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus ntage, if specified in the applicable Final Terr	depends on the development a Margin equal to a predeterm	of a
If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.			m of
[2. Early redemption			
this N is eith	applicable Final Terms specify early redemp lote on each Observation Date, as to whether her, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) ab mption Threshold. If it is, the Note will be rede	the price or level of the Underlove or (ii) equal to or above	lying the
	edemption at maturity, subject to early red able Final Terms]	emption if this is specified in	the
[2. Re	edemption at maturity]		
a)	On the Settlement Date investors receive Reference Level is either, as specified in the to or above the Barrier.		
b)	If the Final Reference Level is either, as sp or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investo the Final Reference Level taking into accou in the performance of the Underlying based	rs receive a Cash Amount equ nt the Multiplier, and participate	al to
In retu	urn for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a	possible loss of capital.]	
Unan	rt og opprøprigtet The Underhung in determin	and in the Deference Currency	
amou	rt as appropriate: The Underlying is determir ints so determined will be converted into the s elevant Exchange Rate.]		·
Reve Unde be co the S [betw perfo the F Amou betwe	rt as appropriate: [The [•] Certificate] [The rse Convertible Note] is currency protected rlying is determined in the Reference Curren poverted 1:1 into the Settlement Currency] [Settlement Currency] without reference to the reen the Reference Currency and the Set rmance of the Underlying only]][the number of Physical Delivery Amount to be delivered so unts will be converted without reference to the een the Reference Currency and the Settleme poropriate corresponding wording for baskets]	ed [at maturity], i.e. although cy, [the amounts so determined the Cash Amount is determine e movement of the exchange ttlement Currency] [based on f underlyings or assets specifie o determined and any Adjustr he movement of the exchange ent Currency during the term] [<i>ii</i>	the d will d [in rate the ed as ment rate
Refe	rt as appropriate <mark>:</mark> The determination of [the Ini rence Level] is based on the arithmetic ave rlying on [the Initial Valuation Dates] [and] [th	rage of the [prices] [levels] of	f the
[Likev Unde	ng the term investors will not receive any wise, investors] [Investors] are not entitled to rlying] [deriving from the Underlying] [in re ring from the Basket Constituents] [(e.g. votin	assert any claims [in respect or spect of the Basket Constitute	f the
[Adj	ustment Date]	[]*	
[Bar	rier Adjustment Amount]	[]*	
[Bar	rier Adjustment Factor]	[]*	
[Bar	rier Determination Amount]	[]*	
[Bar	rier]	[]*	
[Bor	nus Amount]	[]*	
[Ca	 ٥]	[]*	
[Cas	sh Amount]	[]*	
[Cou	upon Amount]	[]*	
[Cou	upon Observation Date]	[]*	
[Cou	upon Observation Period]	[]*	
[Cou	upon Payment Date]	[]*	

[Coupon Period]	[]*
[Coupon Threshold]	[]*
[Coupon]	[]*
[Digital Amount]	[]*
[Dividend Adjustment Date]	[]*
[Dividend Factor]	[]*
[Early] [Settlement Date]	[]*
[Exercise Right of the Securityholder]	[Yes][No]*
[Financing Component]	[]*
[First Bonus Amount]	[]*
[Fixed Rate of Interest]	[]*
[Foreign Currency]	[]*
[Initial Reference Level]	[]*
[Initial Valuation Date]	[]*
[Issue Date]	[]*
[Lower Barrier]	[]*
[Management Fee]	[]*
[Maximum Amount]	[]*
[Maximum Coupon]	[]*
[Minimum Amount]	[]*
[Minimum Coupon]	[]*
[Multiplier]	[]*
[No Touch Amount]	[]*
[Nominal Amount]	[]*
[Non-Linear Factor]	[]*
[Observation Date(s)]	[]*
[Observation Period]	[]*
[One Touch Amount]	[]*
[Participation Factor]	[]*
[Physical Delivery Amount]	[]*
[Redemption Date]	[]*
[Redemption Right of Issuer]	[Yes][No]*
[Redemption Threshold]	[]*
[Reference Level]	[]*
[Reverse Level]	
[Rolling Costs]	[]*
[Second Bonus Amount]	[]*
[Settlement Amount]	[]*
[Settlement Currency]	[]*
[Specified Reference Level]	[]*
[Stop Loss Reference Level]	[]*
[Strike]	[]*
[Successor Future]	[]*
[Termination Date]	[]*

ĺ		
		[Upper Barrier] []*
		[Valuation Date] []*
		[Value Date] []*
		[If necessary insert further definitions] []*
		[In relation to multi-series Securities additionally insert following overview table of relevant information and complete for each Series of Securities:
		ISIN [] [] []
C.16	The expiration or maturity date of the derivative securities – the exercise date or final reference date	[Settlement Date: []*] [[Exercise Date[s]][Exercise Period]: []*] [Valuation Date[s]: []*] [<i>In relation to multi-series Securities insert following overview table of relevant</i>
		information and complete for each Series of Securities:
		ISIN [Settlement Date] [Exercise Date[s]] [Exercise [Valuation Period] Date]
]
C.17	Settlement procedure of the derivative securities	Any cash amounts payable by the Issuer shall be transferred to the relevant Clearing Agent for distribution to the Securityholders. The Issuer will be discharged of its payment [and/or delivery] obligations by payment
		[and/or delivery] to, or to the order of, the relevant Clearing Agent [or Physical Delivery Clearing System] in respect of the amount so paid [or delivered].
C.18	A description of how the return on derivative securities takes place	[Payment of the Cash Amount and/or delivery of the Physical Delivery Amount to the respective Securityholder on the Settlement Date.]
		[Payment of the Cash Amount to the respective Securityholders on the Settlement Date.]
		[Delivery of the Physical Delivery Amount to the respective Securityholders on the Settlement Date.]
C.19	The exercise price or the final reference price of the underlying	[Final Reference Level: []*] [In relation to multi-series Securities insert following overview table of relevant information and complete for each Series of Securities:
		ISIN Final Reference Level [] []
]
		[Not applicable; the Securities pay a fixed amount without reference to the Exercise Price or the Final Reference Level of the Underlying.]
C.20	Type of the underlying and where the information on the underlying can be found	[Type: [Share [or equity security]] [Index] [Other Security] [Commodity] [Rate of Exchange] [Futures Contract] [Fund Share] [Interest Rate] [Basket of assets comprised as follows: insert details of respective type or types of the Basket Constituents – Shares or equity securities, Indices, Other Securities, Commodities, Rates of Exchange, Futures Contracts, Fund Shares and/or Interest Rates:]
		Name: []*
		[ISIN: []*]
		[Information on the historical and ongoing performance of the Underlying and its volatility [can be obtained] [on the public website on www.[maxblue.de] []] [and on the [Bloomberg] or [Reuters] page as provided for each security or item composing the Underlying.] [If no public information exists, insert: Is available at the offices of [insert address/telephone number]]
		[In relation to multi-series Securities additionally insert following overview table of relevant information and complete for each Series of Securities:

ISIN	[]	[]	[]	
[]	[]	[]	[]	
]

٦

Element	Section D – Risks	
D.2	Key information on the key risks that are specific and individual to the issuer	Investors will be exposed to the risk of the Issuer becoming insolvent as result of being overindebted or unable to pay debts, i.e. to the risk of a temporary or permanent inability to meet interest and/or principal payments on time. The Issuer's credit ratings reflect the assessment of these risks.
		Factors that may have a negative impact on Deutsche Bank's profitability are described in the following:
		 Recent tepid economic growth, and uncertainties about prospects for growth going forward, especially in Deutsche Bank's home market of Europe, have affected and continue to negatively affect Deutsche Bank's results of operations and financial condition in some of its businesses and Deutsche Bank's strategic plans, while a continuing low interest environment and competition in the financial services industry have compressed margins in many of the Group's businesses. If these conditions persist or worsen, Deutsche Bank's business, results of operations or strategic plans could be adversely affected.
		• Deutsche Bank's results of operation and financial condition, in particular those of its Global Markets corporate division, continue to be negatively impacted by the challenging market environment, unfavourable macro-economic and geopolitical conditions, lower client activities, increased competition and regulation, and the immediate impacts resulting from Deutsche Bank's strategic decisions as Deutsche Bank makes progress on the implementation of its strategy. If Deutsche Bank is unable to improve its profitability as it continues to face these headwinds as well as persistently high litigation costs, Deutsche Bank may be unable to meet many of its strategic aspirations, and may have difficulty maintaining capital, liquidity and leverage ratios at levels expected by market participants and Deutsche Bank's regulators.
		• Continued elevated levels of political uncertainty could have unpredictable consequences for the financial system and the greater economy, and could contribute to an unwinding of aspects of European integration, potentially leading to declines in business levels, write-downs of assets and losses across Deutsche Bank's businesses. Deutsche Bank's ability to protect itself against these risks is limited.
		 Deutsche Bank may be required to take impairments on its exposures to the sovereign debt of European or other countries if the European sovereign debt crisis reignites. The credit default swaps into which Deutsche Bank has entered to manage sovereign credit risk may not be available to offset these losses.
		 Deutsche Bank's liquidity, business activities and profitability may be adversely affected by an inability to access the debt capital markets or to sell assets during periods of market-wide or firm-specific liquidity constraints. Credit rating downgrades have contributed to an increase in Deutsche Bank's funding costs, and any future downgrade could materially adversely affect its funding costs, the willingness of counterparties to continue to do business with it and significant aspects of its business model.
		 Regulatory reforms enacted and proposed in response to weaknesses in the financial sector, together with increased regulatory scrutiny more generally, have created significant uncertainty for Deutsche Bank and may adversely affect its business and ability to execute its strategic plans, and competent regulators may prohibit Deutsche Bank from making dividend payments or payments on its regulatory capital instruments or take other actions if Deutsche Bank fails to comply with regulatory requirements.
		 European and German legislation regarding the recovery and resolution of banks and investment firms could, if steps were taken to ensure Deutsche Bank's resolvability or resolution measures were imposed on Deutsche Bank, significantly affect Deutsche Bank's business operations, and lead to losses for its shareholders and creditors.
		 Regulatory and legislative changes require Deutsche Bank to maintain increased capital, in some cases (including in the United States) applying liquidity, risk management and capital adequacy rules to its local operations on a standalone basis. These requirements may significantly affect Deutsche Bank's business model, financial condition and results of operations as well as the competitive environment generally. Any perceptions in the market that Deutsche Bank may be unable to meet its capital or liquidity requirements with an adequate buffer, or that Deutsche Bank should maintain capital in excess of these requirements, could

Г

Т

intensify the effect of the	se factors on Deutsche Bank's business and
results.	
available for distributions of be affected by Deutsche I decisions, Deutsche Banl instruments may not be ali accordance with applicabl	bry capital and liquidity ratios and its funds in its shares or regulatory capital instruments will Bank's business decisions and, in making such it's interests and those of the holders of such gned, and Deutsche Bank may take decisions in a law and the terms of the relevant instruments yments being made on Deutsche Bank's shares ments.
European Union regardin	ates and in Germany as well as proposals in the g the prohibition of proprietary trading or its posit-taking business may materially affect model.
crisis – for example, extens derivatives activities, com possible financial transac	dopted or proposed in the wake of the financial sive new regulations governing Deutsche Bank's pensation, bank levies, deposit protection or a tion tax – may materially increase Deutsche d negatively impact its business model.
cautious investor sentimer and adversely affect Deuts its investment banking, br businesses. As a result, D	ns, asset price deteriorations, volatility and at have affected and may in the future materially the Bank's revenues and profits, particularly in okerage and other commission- and fee-based eutsche Bank has in the past incurred and may icant losses from its trading and investment
gave further details on it March 2017. If Deutsche successfully, it may be Deutsche Bank may incur base, and Deutsche Bank	d the next phase of its strategy in April 2015, in October 2015 and announced an update in Bank is unable to implement its strategic plans unable to achieve its financial objectives, or osses or low profitability or erosions of its capital 's financial condition, results of operations and ally and adversely affected.
announced its intention Finance and Transaction client-led Corporate & Inv growth through increased corporate clients. Clients	117 updates to its strategy, Deutsche Bank to reconfigure its Global Markets, Corporate Banking businesses into a single, corporate restment Banking division to position itself for cross-selling opportunities for its higher return may choose not to expand their businesses or ank, thereby negatively influencing its ability to unities.
announced its intention to (together with its subsidi commercial operations, a dispose of Postbank. De Postbank into the Grous separability from the Grous	17 updates to its strategy, Deutsche Bank o retain and combine Deutsche Postbank AG aries, "Postbank") with its existing retail and fter earlier having announced its intention to utsche Bank may face difficulties integrating up following the completion of operational up. Consequently, the cost savings and other spects to realise may only come at a higher cost ot be realised at all.
announced its intention to Asset Management division economic or market corr operations and business p if any required regulatory a ponly on disadvantageous to stake in Deutsche AM at a Deutsche Bank may not be	117 updates to its strategy, Deutsche Bank o create an operationally segregated Deutsche on through a partial initial public offer (IPO). If iditions, or the financial position, results of rospects of Deutsche AM, are unfavourable, or ipprovals are not obtained or would be available erms, Deutsche Bank may not be able to sell a favourable price or timing, or at all. Additionally, a able to capitalise on the expected benefits that segregated Deutsche AM can offer.
assets at favourable price	e difficulties selling companies, businesses or s or at all and may experience material losses other investments irrespective of market
that Deutsche Bank condu regulations applicable to	rnal control environment is necessary to ensure cts its business in compliance with the laws and it. Deutsche Bank has identified the need to rol environment and has embarked on initiatives

 b. accomplish this. If these initiatives are not successful or and financial condition may be materially adversely affected, and Deutsche Barks ability to achieve its strategic ambilitions may be impaired. c) Bustsche Bark operates in a highly and increasingly regulated ability and other costs, the amounts of which may be subartical and difficult to estimate, as will as to begin and regulatory assist to liability and other costs, the amounts of which may be subartical and difficult to estimate, as will as to begin and regulatory and difficult to estimate, as will as to begin and regulatory and difficult to estimate, as will as to begin and the window material agreeise globatics. b. Bustsche Bark is corrently subject to a number of investigations by migulatory and low enforcements in agreeise globatics and may as well as associated these matters are unpredictable, and may materially and adversely affect. b. Bustsche Bark is results of organges in nontradictional credit businesses in which credit is outsthee Bark is accurated. n addition to its traditional barking businesses and tabilities on Deutsche Bark is exposure to credit situativers that carries at far value, with charges in far values comprised in material interases in the future. b. Deutsche Bark is a subscription of the assets and labilities on Deutsche Bark's barance sheet comprise financies on the pagarance. It is a result on mark that are comprised in the accurate at far value, with charges in far values in the future. b. Deutsche Bark's condition and regulation and induced barance and the adverse in the page and the subscription in the partomates of the pagarance in the subscription in the partomates of the pagarance in the page and the page a			
 b. advices and the service of the service set of the set of the service set of the set of the			Deutsche Bank's reputation, regulatory position and financial condition may be materially adversely affected, and Deutsche Bank's ability to
 b.6 Key information on the risks that are specific and individual to the securities and the securitie			environment, potentially exposing Deutsche Bank to liability and other costs, the amounts of which may be substantial and difficult to estimate, as
 Iending, Deutsche Bank also engagés in nortraditional crédit businesses in which crédit is extended in transactions that include, for example, its holding of securities of third parties or its engaging in complex derivative transactions. These nortraditional crédit businesses materially increase Deutsche Bank's exposure to crédit trák. A substantial propriete l'innersial instruments that it carries at fair value, abiance shear particle transactions. These nortraditional crédit businesses materially increase Deutsche Bank's sequestre to crédit trák. A substantial propriete l'innersial instruments that it carries at fair value, abiance shear the future. Deutsche Bank's risk management policies, procedures and methods leave it exposed to unidentified or unanticipated risks, which could lead to material losses. Operational risks, which may arise from errors in the performance of Deutsche Bank's operational systems are subject to an increasing risk of cyber attacks and other internet crime, which could result in material losses of client or customer formation, damage Deutsche Bank's reputation and lead to regulatory penalties and financial losses. Deutsche Bank's operational systems are subject to an increasing risk of cyber attacks and other internet crime, which could result in material losses of client or customer learns's portable same with the spect to polytope. Bank's reputation and lead to regulatory penalties and financial losses. The size of Deutsche Bank's could material losses. Deutsche Bank's revenues and portability in identifying and executing acquisitions and avoiding them could materially ham Deutsche Bank's revenues and avoiding them could materially ham Deutsche Bank's revenues and avoiding them could materially and aversety after Deutsche Bank's securities, and portability or empresident by US. State Deutsche Bank's revenues and portatiolity and aversety after Deutsche Bank's securities and inde			regulatory and law enforcement agencies globally as well as associated civil actions relating to potential misconduct. The eventual outcomes of these matters are unpredictable, and may materially and adversely affect
 balance sheet comprise financial instruments that it carries at fair value, with changes in fair value coopilsed in its income statement. As a result of such changes, Deutsche Bank is incurred losses in the past, and may incur further losses in the future. Deutsche Bank's risk management policies, procedures and methods leave it exposed to unidentified or unanticipated risks, which could lead to material losses. Operational risks, which may arise from errors in the performance of Deutsche Bank's processes, the conduct of Deutsche Bank's services and infrastructure, or loss of business continuity, or comparable issues with respect to Deutsche Bank's vendors, may disrupt Deutsche Bank's errors and lead to material losses. Deutsche Bank's operational systems are subject to an increasing risk of cyber attacks and other internet crime, which could result in material losses. Deutsche Bank's clearing operations exposes Deutsche Bank's reputation and lead to regulatory penalties and financial losses. The size of Deutsche Bank's clearing operations exposes Deutsche Bank to a heightened risk of material losses and infrastructure, and both making acquisitions and avoiding them could materially harm Deutsche Bank's reputation and lead to regulatory penalties and financial developing acquisitions, and both making acquisitions and avoiding them could materially harm Deutsche Bank's reputation and lead to traction properly. Deutsche Bank's revenues and profitability. Transactions with counterparties in countries designated by the U.S. State Department as state sponsors of terrorism or parsons to avoid doing business with Deutsche Bank's pusches Bank's business. Key information on the risks that are specific and individual to the securities, are linked to the Underlying Manuse Statement As business. Securities are linked to the Underlying Manuse State Bank's business. Securities are ini			lending, Deutsche Bank also engages in nontraditional credit businesses in which credit is extended in transactions that include, for example, its holding of securities of third parties or its engaging in complex derivative transactions. These nontraditional credit businesses materially increase
 be we it exposed to unidentified or unanticipated risks, which could lead to material losses. Operational risks, which may arise from errors in the performance of Deutsche Bank's processes, the conduct of Deutsche Bank's employees, instability, maffunction or outage of Deutsche Bank's mystem and infrastructure, or loss of business continuity, or comparable issues with respect to Deutsche Bank's vendors, may disrupt Deutsche Bank's businesses and lead to material losses. Deutsche Bank's operational risks which could result in material losses of client or customer information, damage Deutsche Bank's reputation and lead to regulatory penalties and financial losses. The size of Deutsche Bank's clearing operations exposes Deutsche Bank to a heightened risk of material losses should these operations fail to function property. Deutsche Bank may have difficulty in identifying and executing acquisitions, and both making acquisitions and avoiding them could materially harm Deutsche Bank's could materially adversely impact Deutsche Bank's revenues and profitability. Transactions with counterparties in countries designated by the U.S. State Department as state sponsors of terrorism or persons targeted by U.S. economic sanctions may lead potential ustores and investors to avoid doing business with Deutsche Bank's revenues in a Deutsche Bank's securities, harm Deutsche Bank's neversing in Deutsche Bank's securities, as the case may be, are linked to the Underlying which may comprise one or more Reference tern(s). The putsche Bank's securities and individual to the securities in ket do the Underlying involves substantial risks.] The securities are not conventional securities and cardy before investment risks which prospective investors in the securities and individual to the securities and the date may baye are linked to the Underlying which may comprise one or more Reference tern(s). The putsche Bank's securities and should the may.]<!--</td--><th></th><td></td><td>balance sheet comprise financial instruments that it carries at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in its income statement. As a result of such changes, Deutsche Bank has incurred losses in the past, and may</td>			balance sheet comprise financial instruments that it carries at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in its income statement. As a result of such changes, Deutsche Bank has incurred losses in the past, and may
D.6 Deutsche Bank's processes, the conduct of Deutsche Bank's Projektion or outage of Deutsche Bank's Prodocs, may disrupt Deutsche Bank's businesses and lead to material losses. D.6 Key information on the risks that are specific and individual to the escurities and risk varning to the effect that investors may lose the value of the securities and risk varning to the effect that investors may lose the value of the securities and risk securities are inked to the Underlying which could dress or or exercise or redemption or exercise or redemption reset for the securities and risk varning to the effect that investors may lose the value of the securities and risk securities are inked to the Underlying involves substantial risks.] D.6 Key information on the risks that are specific and risk varning to the effect that investors may lose the value of the effect that investors may lose the value of the securities and risk varning to the effect that investors may lose the value of the e			leave it exposed to unidentified or unanticipated risks, which could lead to
 cyber attacks and other internet crime, which could result in material losses of client or customer information, damage Deutsche Bank's reputation and lead to regulatory penalties and financial losses. The size of Deutsche Bank's clearing operations exposes Deutsche Bank to a heightened risk of material losses should these operations fail to function properly. Deutsche Bank may have difficulty in identifying and executing acquisitions, and both making acquisitions and avoiding them could materially harm Deutsche Bank's results of operations and its share price. Intense competition, in Deutsche Bank's home market of Germany as well as in international markets, could materially adversely impact Deutsche Bank's revenues and profitability. Transactions with counterparties in countries designated by the U.S. State Department as state sponsors of terrorism or persons targeted by U.S. economic sanctions may lead potential customers and investors to avoid doing business with Deutsche Bank's reputation or result in regulatory action which could materially and adversely affect Deutsche Bank's business. 			Deutsche Bank's processes, the conduct of Deutsche Bank's employees, instability, malfunction or outage of Deutsche Bank's IT system and infrastructure, or loss of business continuity, or comparable issues with respect to Deutsche Bank's vendors, may disrupt Deutsche Bank's
 b.6 Key information on the risks that are specific and individual to the securities and risk warning to the effect that investors may lose the value of the securities and risk warning to the effect that investors may lose the value of the securities and risk warning to the effect that investors may lose the value of the securities and risk warning to the effect that investors may lose the value of the securities and risk warning to the effect that investors may lose the value of the Securities and the securities and risk warning to the effect that investors may lose the value of their entire investment or part of it 			cyber attacks and other internet crime, which could result in material losses of client or customer information, damage Deutsche Bank's reputation and
 acquisitions, and both making acquisitions and avoiding them could materially harm Deutsche Bank's results of operations and its share price. Intense competition, in Deutsche Bank's home market of Germany as well as in international markets, could materially adversely impact Deutsche Bank's revenues and profitability. Transactions with counterparties in countries designated by the U.S. State Department as state sponsors of terrorism or persons targeted by U.S. economic sanctions may lead potential customers and investors to avoid doing business with Deutsche Bank's reputation or result in regulatory action which could materially and adversely affect Deutsche Bank's business. D.6 Key information on the risks that are specific and individual to the securities, harm Deutsche Bank's reputation or exercise or redemption which could materially and adversely affect Deutsche Bank's business. D.6 Key information on the risks that are specific and individual to the securities, harm Deutsche Bank's reputation or exercise or redemption of the Securities, as the case may be, are linked to the Underlying which may comprise one or more Reference Item(s). The purchase of, or investment in, Securities linked to the Underlying involves substantial risks.] The Securities are not conventional securities and carry various unique investment risks which prospective investor in the Securities ahould fully review all documentation for and understand clearly before investing in the Securities having characteristics similar to the Securities and bould fully review all documentation for and understand the Terms and Conditions of the Securities and the nature and extent of its exposure to risk of loss. (If amounts payable or assets deliverable in relation to the Security are 			to a heightened risk of material losses should these operations fail to
 as in international markets, could materially adversely impact Deutsche Bank's revenues and profitability. Transactions with counterparties in countries designated by the U.S. State Department as state sponsors of terrorism or persons targeted by U.S. economic sanctions may lead potential customers and investors to avoid doing business with Deutsche Bank's reputation or result in regulatory action which could materially and adversely affect Deutsche Bank's business. B.6 Key information on the risks that are specific and individual to the securities and risk warning to the effect that investors may lose the value of their entire investment or part of it Securities are linked to the Underlying Amounts payable or assets deliverable periodically or on exercise or redemption of the Securities are not conventional securities and carry various unique investment risks which prospective investors should understand clearly before investing in the Securities are not conventional securities and carry various unique investment risks which prospective investors in the Securities should be familiar with securities having characteristics similar to the Securities and Solud fully review all documentation for and understand the Terms and Conditions of the Securities and the nature and extent of its exposure to risk of loss. 			acquisitions, and both making acquisitions and avoiding them could
Department as state sponsors of terrorism or persons targeted by U.S. economic sanctions may lead potential customers and investors to avoid doing business with Deutsche Bank or investing in Deutsche Bank's securities, harm Deutsche Bank's reputation or result in regulatory action which could materially and adversely affect Deutsche Bank's business.D.6Key information on the risks that are specific and individual to the securities and risk warning to the effect that investors may lose the value of their entire investment or part of itSecurities are linked to the UnderlyingMounts payable or assets deliverable periodically or on exercise or redemption of the Securities, as the case may be, are linked to the Underlying which may comprise one or more Reference Item(s). The purchase of, or investment in, Securities linked to the Underlying involves substantial risks.]The Securities are not conventional securities and carry various unique investment risks which prospective investors should understand clearly before investing in the Securities. Each prospective investor in the Securities should be familiar with securities having characteristics similar to the Securities and should fully review all documentation for and understand the Terms and Conditions of the Securities and the nature and extent of its exposure to risk of loss.			as in international markets, could materially adversely impact Deutsche
specific and individual to the securities and risk warning to the effect that investors may lose the value of their entire investment or part of it			Department as state sponsors of terrorism or persons targeted by U.S. economic sanctions may lead potential customers and investors to avoid doing business with Deutsche Bank or investing in Deutsche Bank's securities, harm Deutsche Bank's reputation or result in regulatory action
and risk warning to the effect that investors may lose the value of their entire investment or part of it	D.6		Securities are linked to the Underlying
investment risks which prospective investors should understand clearly before investing in the Securities. Each prospective investor in the Securities should be familiar with securities having characteristics similar to the Securities and should fully review all documentation for and understand the Terms and Conditions of the Securities and the nature and extent of its exposure to risk of loss. [If amounts payable or assets deliverable in relation to the Security are		and risk warning to the effect that investors may lose the value of their	of the Securities, as the case may be, are linked to the Underlying which may comprise one or more Reference Item(s). The purchase of, or investment in,
			investment risks which prospective investors should understand clearly before investing in the Securities. Each prospective investor in the Securities should be familiar with securities having characteristics similar to the Securities and should fully review all documentation for and understand the Terms and Conditions of

Г	
	Potential investors should ensure that they understand the relevant formula in accordance with which the amounts payable and/or assets deliverable are calculated, and if necessary seek advice from their own adviser(s).]
	Risks associated with the Underlying
	Because of the Underlying's influence on the entitlement from the Security[, as with a direct investment in the Underlying,] investors are exposed to risks [both during the term and also] at maturity, which are also generally associated with [an investment in] [the] respective [share[s] [or equity securit[y][ies]] [,] [and] [index] [indices] [,] [and] [commodity] [commodities]] [,] [and] [rate[s] of exchange] [,] [and] [futures contract]s]] [,] [and] [interest rate] [interest rates] [,] [and] [fund share[s]] [,] [and] [and also with [assets in emerging market countries] [and] [investments in hedge funds][in general].]
	[Currency risks
	[As the [currency] [currencies] of the Underlying [is][are] not the same as the Settlement Currency of the [Security][Securities],] investors are exposed to the risk of adverse changes in exchange rates [both during the term] and at maturity.] Investors [also] face an exchange rate risk if the Settlement Currency is not the currency of the investor's home jurisdiction.]
	[Correlation risk
	The amount of [any coupons and] any cash amount payable [or physical delivery amount due] under the Securities is dependent on the performance of multiple Reference Items. In this respect the performance of the worst performing Reference Item in comparison to the performance of the other Reference Items is relevant. The level of dependency among the Reference Items, so called correlation, may significantly impact the risk associated with an investment into the Securities. This risk will increase if the correlation among the Reference Items decreases because in this case the probability increases that at least one of the Reference Items will show an adverse performance compared to the performance of the other Reference Items.]
	Adjustment / Early Termination
	[The Terms and Conditions of the Securities include a provision pursuant to which, where certain conditions are satisfied, the Issuer is entitled to redeem the Securities early. As a result, the Securities may have a lower market value than similar securities which do not contain any such Issuer's right for redemption. During any period where the Securities may be redeemed in this way, the market value of the Securities generally will not rise substantially above the price at which they may be redeemed or cancelled. The same applies where the Terms and Conditions of the Securities (e.g. "knock-out" or "auto call" provision).]
	[The Issuer is entitled to make adjustments to the Terms and Conditions following the occurrence of an adjustment event. These may include any event which materially affects the theoretical economic value of a Reference Item or any event which materially disrupts the economic link between the value of the Reference Item and the Securities subsisting immediately prior to the occurrence of such event. [Unless Non-Consideration of Cost has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, insert: Such adjustments may take into account and pass on to Securityholders any increased direct or indirect cost to the Issuer as a result of or in connection with the relevant adjustment event.] [If Minimum Redemption Payable has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, insert: In case of an adjustment the Issuer will take into account the Minimum Redemption.]
	On the occurrence of an adjustment/termination event, the Issuer is also entitled to adjust the Terms and Conditions or in certain cases, substitute the relevant Reference Item affected by such adjustment/termination event. If such adjustment or substitution is not possible, the Issuer is also entitled to terminate and cancel the Securities by giving notice to the Securityholders, providing brief details of the Adjustment/Termination Event and of the payout amount ("Adjustment / Termination Notice").
	[In case Additional Termination/Adjustment Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, please insert. However, if the Issuer's action would alter characteristics of the Securities that are essential to the Securityholder (such as the Underlying, the Securities' term, the identity of the Issuer and a minimum redemption), the Issuer is only entitled to take the mentioned actions if the relevant event substantially alters the economics of the Securities compared to the Issue Date, or is a force majeure event that prevents the Issuer from being able to perform its obligations under the Securities, and is not attributable to the Issuer. In addition, additional restrictions also apply in case of a Settlement or

Market Disruption, as defined in § 3 (9) and § 5 of the General Conditions, and a number of further entitlements under the General Conditions to make changes to the Terms and Conditions (in § 13, § 17 and § 18 of the General Conditions).]
In case of a termination or cancelation the Issuer will pay, usually prior to the scheduled settlement date of the Securities, an amount which the Calculation Agent determines to be their fair market value [<i>In case Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms and the Adjustment Event is neither an Illegality Event nor a Force Majeur Event, insert:</i> increased by a sum representing the reimbursement of costs initially charged to investors by the Issuer for issuing the Security (as adjusted to take into account the time remaining to maturity) (the "Issuer Costs Reimbursement Amount")], taking into account the relevant adjustment/termination event [<i>Unless Non-Consideration of Cost has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, insert:</i> and, less the direct and indirect cost to the Issuer of unwinding or adjusting any underlying related hedging arrangements, and less any tax or withholding required by law]. Such amount may be significantly less than an investor's initial investment in Securities and in certain circumstances may be zero. [<i>If Minimum Redemption Payable has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, insert</i> : Nevertheless, such amount will be equal to the Minimum Redemption.]
[In case Adjustment / Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms and the Adjustment Event is neither an Illegality Event nor a Force Majeur Event, insert: However, the Adjustment / Termination Notice shall also state that Securityholders have the right to select settlement under the Securities at their scheduled settlement date by payment of an amount which the Calculation Agent determines to be their compounded fair market value for the scheduled settlement date, taking into account the relevant adjustment/termination event [if Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, insert: increased by the Issuer Costs Reimbursement Amount]. [If Minimum Redemption Payable has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, insert: Nevertheless, such amount will be equal to the Minimum Redemption.]]
An adjustment/termination event may include an event which materially affects the method by which the Calculation Agent determines the level or price of any Reference Item or the ability of the Calculation Agent to determine the level or price of any Reference Item. [Unless Adjustment/Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, insert. In addition, an adjustment/termination event may occur where it is illegal or no longer feasible for the Issuer to maintain its hedging arrangements for the Securities or where materially increased costs or expenses would be incurred by the Issuer in maintaining those arrangements.] An adjustment/termination event may also occur in a situation where certain market disruptions exist or a force majeure occurs (being an event or circumstance which prevents or materially affects the performance of the Issuer's obligation). An adjustment event or adjustment/termination event may materially affect the cost to the Issuer of maintaining the Securities or its hedging arrangements in a way which has not been factored into the issue price of the Securities. [Unless Adjustment/Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, insert: This may therefore require adjustments or a termination of the Securities.]
Any adjustment made due to an adjustment event or any adjustment or termination of the Securities or replacement of a Reference Item following an adjustment/termination event may have an adverse effect on the Securities and Securityholders. In particular, the value of the Securities may fall and amounts payable or assets deliverable under the Securities may be less and may be made at different times than anticipated. This is part of the economic risk Securityholders bear when investing in the Securities and the basis on which the Securities are priced.]
[If the Terms and Conditions provide for a redemption right of the Issuer, insert: Early redemption by the Issuer
The Issuer is entitled to terminate and to repay, or, as the case may be, redeem the Securities early in accordance with the Terms and Conditions for a Cash Amount predetermined in the Terms and Conditions. This amount may be below the market value of the Securities and the amount invested.]
Regulatory bail-in and other resolution measures
If the competent authority determines that the Issuer is failing or likely to fail and certain other conditions are met, the competent resolution authority has the power to write down, including to write down to zero, claims for payment of the principal and any other claims under the Securities respectively, interest or any other amount in respect of the Securities, to convert the Securities into ordinary

shares or other instruments qualifying as common equity tier 1 capital (the write- down and conversion powers commonly being referred to as the bail-in tool), or to apply other resolution measures including (but not limited to) a transfer of the Securities to another entity, a variation of the terms and conditions of the Securities or a cancellation of the Securities.
[If Eligible Liabilities Format is specified to apply in the Terms and Conditions, insert: Risk Factors in relation to regulatory requirements of issuances with eligible liability format
A new EU legislative proposal will, if adopted as proposed, prohibit all buy-backs of such Securities by the Issuer, including by way of market making, unless regulatory pre-approval has been granted for such buy-backs, starting in 2019. Such regulatory pre-approval would be expected to be restricted to a maximum transaction volume entered into by the Issuer. Where such maximum volume has been reached, further buy-backs would require a new approval to be obtained before any such transactions. If the EU proposal will be adopted as proposed, the Issuer intends to seek regulatory approval for a maximum volume of transactions which, based on past experience, it expects to allow continuous and uninterrupted market making during the term of the Securities under normal conditions.
However, in case the volume of securities investors are seeking to sell back to the Issuer should substantially increase, due to factors such as (but not limited to) a substantial deterioration in the general perception of the Issuer's financial situation, general stress in the financial markets and/or a major chance in market conditions affecting the relative attractiveness of an investment into the Securities compared to other potential investments (e. g. substantial changes in the general interest level), the maximum volume to which the regulatory approval of buy-backs is subject could be reached during the term of the Securities. There is no guarantee that the Issuer would be willing or able to seek a subsequent regulatory approval for further buy-backs, or, in case the Issuer does apply for such subsequent approval, that it will be possible to provide further market making without interruption or at all.
Investors should note that in such cases, the market making provided by the Issuer could be interrupted or end permanently, which could substantially reduce the price investors seeking to sell securities can realise, or could prevent investors from selling securities at the time they so wish.
Moreover, if Eligible Liabilities Format is specified to apply in the Product Terms, prospective investors should also note that their rights of redemption and set-off rights have been excluded in the Product Terms.] Risks at maturity
[If the Security is a Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) (product no. 1),
Insert : If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Cap, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. The market value of the Underlying or, as the case may be, of the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount, in each case based on the Multiplier, may be below the purchase price of the [Discount Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if</i> <i>any</i>]. In such case investors will suffer a loss. Investors must take into account that losses may still also occur after the Valuation Date up until the transfer of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
[If the Security is a Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement) (product no. 2) , insert:
If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Cap, the Cash Amount may be lower than the purchase price of the [Discount Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. In such case investors will suffer a loss. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
[If the Security is a Bonus Certificate (product no. 3), insert:
If, during the term, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the [Bonus Certificate] [insert other marketing name, if any] involves a risk of loss depending

	on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario,
	this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
	[If the Security is a Bonus Certificate with Cap (product no. 4), insert:
	If, during the term, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the [Bonus Certificate with Cap] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
	[If the Security is a Bonus Pro Certificate (product no. 5), insert:
	If, during the Observation Period, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the [Bonus Pro Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
	[If the Security is a BonusPro Certificate with Cap (product no. 6), insert:
	If, during the Observation Period, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the [BonusPro Certificate with Cap] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
	[If the Security is an Easy Bonus Certificate (product no. 7), insert:
	If, on the Valuation Date, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the [Easy Bonus Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
	[If the security is an Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap (product no. 8), insert:
	If, on the Valuation Date, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the [Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
	[If the Security is a Reverse Bonus Certificate (product no. 9) , insert:
	If, during the Observation Period, the price or level of the Underlying, is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the [Reverse Bonus Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is at least the Reverse Level.]
	[If the Security is a Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap (product no. 10),
	insert:
	If, during the Observation Period, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the [Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is at least the Reverse Level.]
	[If the Security is a Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap (product no.
	11), insert:

If, during the Observation Period, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the [Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is at least the Reverse Level.]
[If the Security is an Outperformance Certificate (product no. 12), insert:
If the Final Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike, the [Outperformance Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
[If the Security is a Sprint Certificate (product no. 13), insert:
If the Final Reference Level is either (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, the [Sprint Certificate] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
[If the Security is a Call Warrant or a Discount Call Warrant (product no. 14),
<i>insert:</i> If the Reference Level is above the Strike of the [Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>], investors will suffer a loss if the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price paid by investors for the [Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. Investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike of the [Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].]
[If the Security is a Put Warrant or a Discount Put Warrant (product no. 15),
<i>insert</i> : If the Reference Level is below the Strike of the [Put Warrant] [<i>insert other</i> marketing name, if any], investors will suffer a loss if the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price paid by investors for the [Put Warrant] [<i>insert other</i> marketing name, if any]. Investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Reference Level is equal to or above the Strike of the [Put Warrant] [<i>insert other</i> marketing name, if any].]
If the Security is a WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant (product no. 16), insert:
If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the [WAVE Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the [WAVE Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the [WAVE Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].
[If the Security is a WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier
Determination X-DAX® Index (product no. 17), insert: If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying or the X-DAX [®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the [WAVE Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investors will also suffer a loss if the

Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the [WAVE Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*]. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index; and potentially also outside the trading hours of the [WAVE Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*].]

[If the Security is a WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant (product no. 18), insert:

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the [WAVE Put Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the [WAVE Put Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*]. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the [WAVE Put Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*].]

[If the Security is a WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index (product no. 19), insert:

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the [WAVE Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the [WAVE Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*]. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index; and potentially also outside the trading hours of the [WAVE Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*].

[If the Security is a WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant (product no. 20), insert:

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the [WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the [WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*]. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the [WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant] [*insert other marketing name, if any*].]

[If the Security is a WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index (product no. 21), insert

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the [WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the [WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index] [*insert other marketing name, if*

<i>any</i>]. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying or the X-DAX [®] Index; and potentially also outside the trading hours of the [WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].]
[If the Security is a WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant (product no. 22), insert:
If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the [WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if</i> <i>any</i>] ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the [WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the [WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].]
[If the Security is a WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index (product no. 23), insert:
If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying or the X-DAX [®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the [WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if</i> <i>any</i>] ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the [WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if</i> <i>any</i>]. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying or the X-DAX [®] Index; and potentially also outside the trading hours of the [WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant with additional barrier determination X- DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].]
[If the Security is a WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant (product no. 24), insert:
If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Barrier Event will occur for the [WAVE XXL Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] and the term of the [WAVE XXL Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] will end immediately. A price recovery is ruled out. In this event the Cash Amount will be determined based on the difference between the value of the Underlying in the period after the Barrier Event occurred and the Strike, and investors may lose their entire investment or a large part of it except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the [WAVE XXL Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the [WAVE XXL Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].]
[If the Security is a WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index(product no. 25), insert:
If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying or the X-DAX [®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Barrier Event will occur for the [WAVE XXL Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] and the term of the [WAVE XXL Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] will end immediately. A price recovery is ruled out. In this event the Cash Amount will be determined based on the difference between the value of the Underlying in the period after the Barrier Event occurred and the Strike, and investors may lose their entire investment or a large part of it except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on

the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the [WAVE XXL Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying or the X- DAX [®] Index; and potentially also outside the trading hours of the [WAVE XXL Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other</i> <i>marketing name, if any</i>].]
[If the Security is a WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant (product no. 26), insert:
If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Barrier Event will occur for the [WAVE XXL Put Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name,</i> <i>if any</i>] and the term of the [WAVE XXL Put Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name,</i> <i>if any</i>] will end immediately. A price recovery is ruled out. In this event the Cash Amount will be determined based on the difference between the Strike and the value of the Underlying in the period after the Barrier Event occurred, and investors may lose their entire investment or a large part of it except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the [WAVE XXL Put Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the [WAVE XXL Put Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].]
[If the Security is a WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index(product no. 27), insert:
If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying or the X-DAX [®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Barrier Event will occur for the [WAVE XXL Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if</i> <i>any</i>] and the term of the [WAVE XXL Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>] will end immediately. A price recovery is ruled out. In this event the Cash Amount will be determined based on the difference between the Strike and the value of the Underlying in the period after the Barrier Event occurred, and investors may lose their entire investment or a large part of it except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the [WAVE XXL Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying or the X- DAX [®] Index; and potentially also outside the trading hours of the [WAVE XXL Put Warrant with additional barrier determination X-DAX [®] Index] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].]
[If the Security is a One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant (product no. 28) , insert:
If the Barrier Determination Amount is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms.]
[If the Security is a One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant (product no. 29) , insert:
If the Barrier Determination Amount is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms.]
[If the Security is a One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant (product no. 30) , insert:
If the Barrier Determination Amount is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the

	Lower Barrier and is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Upper Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms.]
	[If the Security is a No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant (product no. 31) , insert:
	If the Barrier Determination Amount is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event), investors receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the [No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].]
	[If the Security is a No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant (product no. 32),
	<i>insert</i> : If the Barrier Determination Amount is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event), investors receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the [No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant] [<i>insert</i> <i>other marketing name, if any</i>].]
	[If the Security is an Inline Warrant (product no. 33), insert:
	If the Barrier Determination Amount is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Lower Barrier, or as specified in the Final Terms either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Upper Barrier (Barrier Event), investors receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the [Inline Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].]
	If the Security is a Duo Inline Warrant (product no. 34), insert:
	If the Barrier Determination Amount for at least one of the two Underlyings is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Lower Barrier for the respective Underlying, or as specified in the Final Terms either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Upper Barrier for the respective Underlying (Barrier Event), investors receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlyings and potentially even outside the trading hours of the [Duo Inline Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].]
	[If the Security is a Digital Call Warrant (product no. 35) , insert:
	If the Final Reference Level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms.]
	[If the Security is a Digital Put Warrant (product no. 36), insert:
	If the Final Reference Level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, investors will receive as

	and a Condition that Elevel Tenners with an (1) works that Marinessen Assessment and (11) was
	specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms.]
	[If the Security is a Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant (product no. 37) , insert:
	If at any time during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Barrier-Event occurs and investors receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will likewise receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying is equal to or above the Strike on the Valuation Date.
	The Barrier-Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the [Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].]
	[If the Security is an Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant (product no. 38), insert:
	If at any time during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Barrier-Event occurs and investors only receive the Minimum Amount. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will likewise receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying is equal to or below the Strike on the Valuation Date.
	The Barrier-Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the [Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>].]
	[If the Security is a Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) (product no. 39), insert:
	If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. The market value of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the [Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. In such case investors will suffer a loss. Investors must take into account that losses may still also occur after the Valuation Date up until the transfer of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
	[If the Security is a Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) (product no. 40) , insert:
	If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, the Cash Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the [Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert</i> <i>other marketing name, if any</i>]. In such case investors will suffer a loss. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
	[If the Security is a Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) (product no. 41), insert:
	If the Underlying on at least one occasion during the term as specified in the Final Terms has been either (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier and the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. The market value of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the [Barrier Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. In such case investors will suffer a loss. Investors must take into account that losses may still also occur after the Valuation Date up until the transfer of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.]

[If the Security is a Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) (product no. 42), insert:
If the Underlying on at least one occasion during the term as specified in the Final Terms has been either (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier and if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, the Cash Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the [Barrier Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. In such case investors will suffer a loss. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
[If the Security is a Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) (product no. 43), insert:
If the Underlying on at least one occasion during the Observation Period has been either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier and the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. The market value of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the [Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. In such case investors will suffer a loss. Investors must take into account that losses may still also occur after the Valuation Date up until the transfer of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final <i>Reference</i> Level is zero.]
[If the Security is a Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) (product no. 44), insert:
If the Underlying on at least one occasion during the Observation Period has been either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier and if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, the Cash Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the [Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. In such case investors will suffer a loss. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
[If the Security is an Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) (product no. 45), insert:
If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. The market value of the Underlying or the assets plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the [Easy Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other</i> <i>marketing name, if any</i>]. In such case investors will suffer a loss. Investors must take into account that losses may still also occur after the Valuation Date up until the transfer of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
[If the Security is an Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) (product no. 46), insert:
If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the [Easy Reverse Convertible Note] [<i>insert other marketing name, if any</i>]. In such case investors will suffer a loss. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.]
Possible total loss
Where no minimum cash amount is specified investors may experience a total loss of their investment in the Security.

[If the Security is a Warrant which provides for a Minimum Amount, ins Although, the Securities provide for a Minimum Amount, investors may suffe loss which would be equal to a loss of almost their entire investment.
--

Element	Section E – Offer ²		
E.2b	Reasons for the offer, use of proceeds, estimated net proceeds	[Not applicable, making profit and/or he the offer.][]	dging certain risks are the reasons for
E.3	Terms and conditions of the offer	Conditions to which the offer is subject:	[Not applicable; there are no conditions to which the offer is subject.][]
		Number of the Securities:	[]*
		[The Subscription Period]	[Applications to subscribe for the Securities may be made [via the distribution agent[s]] from [] [(inclusively)] until [] [(inclusively)].]
			[The Issuer reserves the right for any reason to reduce the number of [each Series of] Securities offered.]
		[The Offering Period]:	[The offer of [each Series of] the Securities starts on [][and ends on []].]
			[Continuous offer]
			[The Issuer reserves the right for any reason to reduce the number of [each Series of] Securities offered.]
		Cancellation of the Issuance of the Securities:	[The Issuer reserves the right for any reason to cancel the issuance of [a Series of] the Securities.] [In particular, the issuance of the Securities is conditional, amongst other matters, on the Issuer receiving valid subscriptions for Securities amounting to an aggregate subscription value of at least[] on or prior to []. In the event that this condition is not satisfied, the Issuer may cancel the issuance of the Securities as of [].]
		[Early Closing of the Subscription Period of the Securities:]	[[Not applicable; the Subscription Period is not subject to early closing.] [The Issuer reserves the right for any reason to close the Subscription Period early. [If the aggregate subscription of the Securities at any time on any Business Day prior to [] reaches [], the Issuer will close the subscription of the Securities at such time on such Business Day, without any prior notification.]]
		[Early Closing of the Offering Period of the Securities]	[[Not applicable; the Offering Period is not subject to early closing.] [The Issuer reserves the right for any reason to close the Offering Period early.]]
		Investor minimum subscription amount:	[Not applicable, there is no investor minimum subscription amount.] []*
		Investor maximum subscription amount:	[Not applicable; there is no investor maximum subscription amount.] []*
		Description of the application process:	[Not applicable; no application process is planned.] []*
		Description of possibility to reduce subscriptions and manner for refunding excess amount paid by applicants:	[Not applicable; there is no possibility to reduce subscriptions and therefore no manner for

²

THE USE OF THE SYMBOL "*" IN THE FOLLOWING SECTION E - OFFER INDICATES THAT THE RELEVANT INFORMATION FOR EACH SERIES OF SECURITIES MAY, IN RESPECT OF MULTI-SERIES SECURITIES AND WHERE APPROPRIATE, BE PRESENTED IN A TABLE.

		refunding excess amount paid by applicants.][]*
	Details of the method and time limits for paying up and delivering the Securities:	[Not applicable; no method or time limits for paying up and delivering the Securities are provided for.] [Investors will be notified [by the Issuer or the relevant financial intermediary] of their allocations of Securities and the settlement arrangements in respect thereof. [Each Series of the] [The] Securities will be issued on the Issue Date and [the individual Series of Securities] [the Securities] will be delivered on the Value Date against payment to the Issuer of the net subscription price.]
	Manner in and date on which results of the offer are to be made public:	[Not applicable; a manner in and date on which results of the offer are to be made public is not planned.] []*
	Procedure for exercise of any right of pre-emption, negotiability of subscription rights and treatment of subscription rights not exercised:	[Not applicable; a procedure for exercise of any right of pre- emption, negotiability of subscription rights and treatment of subscription rights is not planned.] []*
	Categories of potential investors to which the Securities are offered and whether tranche(s) have been reserved for certain countries:	[Qualified investors within the meaning of the Prospectus Directive] [Non-qualified investors][Qualified investors within the meaning of the Prospectus Directive and non-qualified investors]
		[The offer may be made in [Luxembourg][.] [and] [Belgium][.] [and] [Denmark][.] [and] [Finland][.] [and] [France][.] [and] [Ireland][.] [and] [Italy][.] [and] [Germany][.] [and] [Norway][.] [and] [Germany][.] [and] [Norway][.] [and] [Austria][.] [and] [Poland] [.] [and] [Portugal][.] [and] [Poland] [.] [and] [Portugal][.] [and] [Sweden][.] [and] [the Kingdom of Spain[.] [and] [the Kingdom] [and []] to any person which complies with all other requirements for investment as set out in the Base Prospectus or otherwise determined by the Issuer and/or the relevant financial intermediaries]. In other EEA countries, offers will only be made pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus Directive as implemented in such jurisdictions.]
	Process for notification to applicants of the amount allotted and the indication whether dealing may begin before notification is made:	[Not applicable; there is no process for notification to applicants of the amount allotted.] []*
	[Initial Issue Price:	[]]*
	[Issue Price:	[]]*
	Amount of any expenses and taxes specifically charged to the subscriber or purchaser:	[Not applicable; no expenses or taxes are specifically charged to the subscriber or purchaser:] []*
	Name(s) and address(es), to the extent known to the Issuer, of the placement agents in the various	[Not applicable] []*

		countries where the offer takes place:
		Name and address of the Paying []* Agent: Name and address of the Calculation []* Agent:
		[In relation to multi-series Securities insert following overview table of relevant information and complete for each Series of Securities, if required:
E.4	Interest that is material to the issue/offer including conflicts of interests	[Not applicable; [save for the Distributor[s] regarding the fees,] as far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the issue of [each Series of] the Securities has an interest material to the offer.] []
E.7	Estimated expenses charged to the investor by the issuer or offeror	[Not applicable; no expenses are charged to the investor by the Issuer or offeror.][]*
		[In relation to multi-series Securities insert following overview table of relevant information and complete for each Series of Securities, if required:
		ISIN Expenses
]

II. RISK FACTORS

The paragraphs A to E below describe all material risk factors as well as conflicts of interest of the Issuer associated with an investment in the Securities.

A. RISK FACTORS IN RESPECT OF THE ISSUER

Factors relating to Deutsche Bank's ability to meet its obligations as Issuer of the Securities issued under this programme

In order to assess the risk, prospective investors should consider all information provided in the "Risk Factors" section in the Registration Document in English language of Deutsche Bank dated 10 April 2017, which is incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus in part "III. G. Information incorporated by reference".

B. RISK FACTORS IN RESPECT OF THE SECURITIES

1. Introduction

The paragraphs below describe all risk factors that are material to the Securities in order to assess the market risks associated with these Securities. No investment should be made in the Securities until after careful consideration of all those factors which are relevant in relation to the Securities. Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Base Prospectus and the respective Final Terms and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

Prospective investors should also consider carefully the assets, reference items or other reference bases (referred to as the "**Underlying**" and each such item as a "**Reference Item**") to which the *Securities* are linked as appropriate. These are specified where applicable in the relevant Final Terms and, as the case may be, the section "Information relating to the Underlying" set out in the section "Further Information about the Offering of the Securities" in the respective Final Terms and investors should consider further information which is available in relation to the Underlying. If the Securities are not linked to an Underlying, the following risk information does not apply where it relates to the existence of an Underlying.

This Base Prospectus is not, and does not purport to be, investment advice.

An investment in the Securities involves risks. These risks may include, among others, equity market, bond market, foreign exchange, interest rate, commodities, market volatility and economic, political and regulatory risks and any combination of these and other risks. Potential purchasers should have the necessary knowledge and experience with respect to transactions in financial instruments such as the Securities and (if applicable) the Underlying or Reference Item in order to be able to understand and appropriately assess the risks associated with investing in the Securities. They should only reach an investment decision after careful consideration, if applicable with their legal, tax, accounting and other advisers, of (a) the suitability of an investment in the Securities in the light of their own particular financial, tax and other circumstances, (b) the information set out in the Final Terms and the Base Prospectus and (c) (if applicable) the Underlying. Investors should consider in particular whether the Securities are appropriate in light of their overall investment portfolio and taking into account their exposure to each relevant asset class. Accordingly investors should consider carefully their own particular circumstances to determine whether an investment in the Securities is appropriate for them.

The Securities may decline in value and investors should note that, whatever their investment in the Securities, the cash amount or value of assets due at maturity or on exercise or periodically may only be equal to the specified minimum cash amount or minimum asset amount, if any. Where no minimum cash amount or minimum asset amount is specified investors may experience a total loss of their investment in the Security.

An investment in the Securities should only be made after assessing the direction, timing and magnitude of potential future changes in the value of the Underlying (if applicable), and/or in the composition or method of calculation of the Reference Items. This is because the return of any such investment will be dependent, among other things, upon such changes. More than one risk factor may have simultaneous effect with regard to the value of the Securities such that the effect of a particular risk factor may not be predictable. In addition, more than one risk factor may have a compounding effect which may not be predictable. No assurance can be given as to the effect that any combination of risk factors may have on the value of the Securities and no assurance is given that an investment in Securities will offer any greater return than other comparable or alternative investments which may be available at the time an investor acquires a Security.

Additional risk factors are set out under the headings "C. Risk Factors related to Securities Generally" and "D. Risk Factors relating to the Market Generally". In addition prospective investors should also review section "E. Conflicts of Interest".

2. Risk factors relating to certain features of the Securities

2.1 Securities where amounts payable or assets deliverable are calculated by reference to a formula

An issue of Securities may reference a formula in the respective Final Terms as the basis upon which the interest payable and/or the amounts payable and/or assets deliverable (on redemption or settlement or periodically) is calculated. Potential investors should ensure that they understand the relevant formula and if necessary seek advice from their own adviser(s).

In addition the effects of the formula may be complex with respect to expected amounts of interest and/or amounts payable and/or assets deliverable on redemption or settlement or periodically and in certain circumstances may result in increases or decreases in these amounts.

In some cases Securities may offer a "short" exposure meaning that the economic value of Securities will increase only where the relevant price or value of the Reference Item(s) falls. Where the price or value of the Reference Item(s) rises, the value of the Securities may fall.

2.2 Leverage

Where the amount of interest payable and/or amounts payable and/or assets deliverable on redemption or settlement of Securities or periodically may be determined by reference to a Multiplier greater than one, prospective investors should note that the effect of changes in the price or level of the amount(s) payable or assets deliverable will be magnified. While leverage may offer the opportunity for greater investment gain, this may mean that any investment loss is greater than it would be otherwise.

2.3 Debt securities issued at a substantial discount or premium

The market value of debt securities issued at a substantial discount or premium tend to fluctuate more due to general changes in interest rates than do prices for conventional interest-bearing securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of the Securities, the greater the price volatility as compared to conventional interest-bearing securities with comparable maturities.

2.4 Securities subject to optional redemption by the Issuer

Securities which include a redemption option by the Issuer or which may be terminated on the occurrence of certain events are likely to have a lower market value than similar securities which do not contain an Issuer redemption option. An optional redemption feature or termination feature of the Securities is likely to limit their market value. During any period when the Issuer may elect to redeem the Securities or such termination may occur, the market value of those Securities generally will not rise substantially above the price at which they may be redeemed or terminated. This may also be the case prior to any redemption or termination period.

The Issuer may be expected to redeem Securities when its cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate on the Securities or otherwise when its costs of keeping Securities outstanding are high. At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the optional redemption proceeds

at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the *Securities* being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time.

The relevant Final Terms will indicate whether the Issuer has the right to redeem the Securities prior to maturity or final settlement.

2.5 Option Risk relating to Certificates and Warrants

Certificates and Warrants are derivative financial instruments which may include an option right and which, therefore, may have many characteristics in common with options. Transactions in options may involve a high level of risk. An investor who intends to trade in Certificates or Warrants including options must therefore first of all understand the functioning of the types of options involved (for example, call options and put options). An investment in Certificates or Warrants including options may constitute a highly volatile investment and there is a possibility that the option may have no value whatsoever at expiration. In such case, the investor may lose the entire amount invested in the Certificates or Warrants.

The payment due under a Certificate or Warrant on exercise or early termination will depend on the value of the Underlying at the relevant time. This means that the performance of a Certificate or Warrant which includes an option is affected by the performance of the relevant option. If the value of the option decreases, the value of the Certificate or Warrant may also decrease as a result. Conversely, the value of the Certificate or Warrant may increase if the value of the option increases.

If the Underlying is a Rate of Exchange and if so specified in the respective Final Terms, early termination of a Certificate or Warrant is possible at any time during the period specified in the Final Terms and thus may even occur outside the usual trading hours of the relevant Certificate or Warrant.

2.6 Risks at maturity

Certificates

Discount Certificates

Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery)

If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Cap, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. The market value of the Underlying or, as the case may be, of the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount, in each case based on the Multiplier, may be below the purchase price of the Discount Certificate. In such case investors will suffer a loss. Investors must take into account that losses may still also occur after the Valuation Date up until the transfer of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement)

If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Cap, the Cash Amount may be lower than the purchase price of the Discount Certificate. In such case investors will suffer a loss. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Bonus Certificates

Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate

If, during the term, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Bonus Certificate involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap

If, during the term, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Bonus Certificate with Cap involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate

If, during the Observation Period, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the BonusPro Certificate involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap

If, during the Observation Period, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the BonusPro Certificate with Cap involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate

If, on the Valuation Date, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Easy Bonus Certificate involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap

If, on the Valuation Date, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate

If, during the Observation Period, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Reverse Bonus Certificate involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is at least the Reverse Level.

Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap

If, during the Observation Period, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is at least the Reverse Level.

Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap

If, during the Observation Period, the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is at least the Reverse Level.

Outperformance Certificates

Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate

If the Final Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike, the Outperformance Certificate involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate

If the Final Reference Level is either (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, the Sprint Certificate involves a risk of loss depending on the price or level of the Underlying at maturity; in the worst-case scenario, this may result in the total loss of the capital invested. This will occur if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Warrants

Classic Warrants

Product No. 14: Call Warrant and Discount Call Warrant

If the Reference Level is above the Strike of the Call Warrant, investors will suffer a loss if the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price paid by investors for the Call Warrant. Investors will receive, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike of the Call Warrant.

Product No. 15: Put Warrant and Discount Put Warrant

If the Reference Level is below the Strike of the Put Warrant, investors will suffer a loss if the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price paid by investors for the Put Warrant. Investors will receive, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Reference Level is equal to or above the Strike of the Put Warrant.

WAVE (Knock Out) Warrants

Product No. 16: WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the WAVE Call Warrant ends immediately and investors will receive, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the WAVE Call Warrant. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the WAVE Call Warrant.

Product No. 17: WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the WAVE Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the WAVE Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index. Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index.

Product No. 18: WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the WAVE Put Warrant ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms.

Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the WAVE Put Warrant. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the WAVE Put Warrant.

Product No. 19: WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the WAVE Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the WAVE Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index; and potentially also outside the trading hours of the WAVE Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index.

WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Warrants

Product No. 20: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant.

Product No. 21: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index; and potentially also outside the trading hours of the WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index.

Product No. 22: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant ends immediately and investors will receive, as specified in the Final Terms,

either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment. except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant.

Product No. 23: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event), the term of the WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index ends immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index; and potentially also outside the trading hours of the WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant with additional barrier determination X-DAX[®] Index.

WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Warrants

Product No. 24: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Barrier Event will occur for the WAVE XXL Call Warrant and the term of the WAVE XXL Call Warrant will end immediately. A price recovery is ruled out. In this event the Cash Amount will be determined based on the difference between the Strike and the value of the Underlying in the period after the Barrier Event occurred, and investors may lose their entire investment or a large part of it except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the WAVE XXL Call Warrant. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the WAVE XXL Call Warrant.

Product No. 25: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Barrier Event will occur for the WAVE XXL Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index and the term of the WAVE XXL Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index will end immediately. A price recovery is ruled out. In this event the Cash Amount will be determined based on the difference between the Strike and the value of the Underlying in the period after the Barrier Event occurred, and investors may lose almost their investment or a large part of it except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the WAVE XXL Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index; and potentially also outside the trading hours of the WAVE XXL Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index.

Product No. 26: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Barrier Event will occur for the WAVE XXL Put Warrant and the term of the WAVE XXL Put Warrant will end immediately. A price recovery is ruled out. In this event the Cash Amount will be determined based on the difference between the Strike and the value of the Underlying in the period after the Barrier Event occurred, and investors may lose their entire investment or a large part of it except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the WAVE XXL Put Warrant. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the WAVE XXL Put Warrant.

Product No. 27: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Barrier Event will occur for the WAVE XXL Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index and the term of the WAVE XXL Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index will end immediately. A price recovery is ruled out. In this event the Cash Amount will be determined based on the difference between the Strike and the value of the Underlying in the period after the Barrier Event occurred, and investors may lose their entire investment or a large part of it except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will also suffer a loss if the Underlying on the Valuation Date is so close to the Strike that the Cash Amount is less than the purchase price of the WAVE XXL Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index; and potentially also outside the trading hours of the WAVE XXL Put Warrant with additional barrier determination X-DAX[®] Index.

One Touch Warrants

Product No. 28: One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant

If the Barrier Determination Amount is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms.

Product No. 29: One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant

If the Barrier Determination Amount is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms.

Product No. 30: One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant

If the Barrier Determination Amount is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Lower Barrier and is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (ii) above or (ii) equal to or above the Upper Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the

Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms.

No Touch Warrants

Product No. 31: No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant

If the Barrier Determination Amount is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event), investors receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant.

Product No. 32: No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant

If the Barrier Determination Amount is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event), investors receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant.

Product No. 33: Inline Warrant

If the Barrier Determination Amount is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Lower Barrier, or, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Upper Barrier (Barrier Event), investors receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the Inline Warrant.

Digital Warrants

Product No. 34: Duo Inline Warrant

If the Barrier Determination Amount for at least one of the two Underlyings is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Lower Barrier for the respective Underlying, or as specified in the Final Terms either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Upper Barrier for the respective Underlying (Barrier Event), investors receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. The Barrier Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlyings and potentially even outside the trading hours of the Duo Inline Warrant.

Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant

If the Final Reference Level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms.

Product No. 36: Digital Put Warrant

If the Final Reference Level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms.

Other Warrants

Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Barrier-Event occurs and investors receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will likewise receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will likewise receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying is equal to or above the Strike on the Valuation Date.

The Barrier-Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant.

Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Barrier-Event occurs and investors receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment. A price recovery is ruled out. In this case investors will lose their entire investment except for the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will likewise receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount, if so specified in the Final Terms. Investors will likewise receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying is equal to or below the Strike on the Valuation Date.

The Barrier-Event may occur at any time during the trading hours of the Underlying and potentially even outside the trading hours of the Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant.

<u>Notes</u>

Reverse Convertible Notes

Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)

If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. The market value of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the Reverse Convertible Note. In such case investors will suffer a loss. Investors must take into account that losses may still also occur after the Valuation Date up until the transfer of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)

If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Underlying, the Cash Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the Reverse Convertible Note. In such case investors will suffer a loss. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)

If the Underlying on at least one occasion during the term as specified in the Final Terms has been (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier and the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. The market value of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the Barrier Reverse Convertible Note. In such case investors will suffer a loss. Investors must take into account that losses may still also occur after the Valuation Date up until the transfer of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 42: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)

If the Underlying on at least one occasion during the term as specified in the Final Terms has been either (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier and if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, the Cash Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the Barrier Reverse Convertible Note. In such case investors will suffer a loss. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)

If the Underlying on at least one occasion during the Observation Period has been either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier and the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. The market value of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note. In such case investors will suffer a loss. Investors must take into account that losses may still also occur after the Valuation Date up until the transfer of the

Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)

If the Underlying on at least one occasion during the Observation Period has been either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier and if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, the Cash Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note. In such case investors will suffer a loss. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)

If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. The market value of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the Easy Reverse Convertible Note. In such case investors will suffer a loss. Investors must take into account that losses may still also occur after the Valuation Date up until the transfer of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.

Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)

If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount plus Coupon Payments may be less than the purchase price of the Easy Reverse Convertible Note. In such case investors will suffer a loss. At worst, the investor will suffer a total loss of the capital invested if the Final Reference Level is zero.

3. Risk factors relating to the Underlying

The Reference Items comprised in the Underlying for the Securities (if applicable) may be one or more shares or equity securities, indices, other securities, commodities, rates of exchange, futures contracts, fund units or shares and/or interest rates. The Securities may relate to one or more of these Reference Items or a combination of them.

Some or all of the amounts payable or assets deliverable on exercise, redemption or periodically under the Securities will be determined by reference to the price or value of these Reference Items as set out in the relevant Final Terms. Accordingly, investors should review carefully the relevant Final Terms in order to understand the effect on the Securities of such linkage to the Underlying and the Reference Items.

The purchase of, or investment in, Securities linked to Reference Item(s) involves substantial risks. These Securities are not conventional securities and carry various unique investment risks which prospective investors should understand clearly before investing in the Securities. Prospective investors in such Securities should be familiar with securities having characteristics similar to such Securities and should fully review all documentation for and understand the Terms and Conditions of the Securities, the relevant Final Terms and the nature and extent of its exposure to risk of loss.

The Issuer may issue Securities where the amount of interest or other amounts payable or the amount of assets deliverable is dependent upon:

- a) the price or changes in the price of, one or more equity securities;
- b) the level or changes in the level of one or more indices;
- c) the price or changes in the price of one or more other securities;
- d) the price or changes in the price of one or more commodities;
- e) movements in rates of exchange;
- f) one or more futures contracts;
- g) the price or changes in the price of units or shares in one or more funds;
- h) the level or changes in the level of one or more interest rates; or
- i) other underlying assets or bases of reference.

Prospective investors in any such Securities should be aware that depending on the Terms and Conditions of such Securities (i) they may receive no amount or a limited amount of interest or other amounts and/or deliverable assets, (ii) payment of interest or other amounts and/or assets delivered may occur at different times than expected or in a different currency than expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment upon redemption or settlement.

In addition, the movements in:

- a) the price of the relevant equity securities;
- b) the level of the relevant index or indices;
- c) the price of the relevant other securities;
- d) the price of the relevant commodity or commodities;
- e) relevant rates of exchange;
- f) the price of the relevant futures contract(s);
- g) the price of the relevant units or shares in one or more funds;
- h) the level of the relevant interest rate or interest rates; or
- i) the level of any other underlying asset or basis of reference comprising the Underlying,

may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with the development of interest rates, currencies or other economic factors or indices and the timing of changes in the relevant price or level of the Reference Item may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price or level of the Reference Item, the effect on yield.

If the amount of interest or other amounts payable and/or assets deliverable is determined by reference to a multiplier greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the price or level of the Underlying or Reference Item will be magnified.

The market price of the Securities may be volatile and may be affected by:

- a) the time remaining to the Redemption or Settlement Date;
- b) the volatility of the Reference Item or other underlying asset or basis of reference;
- c) the dividend rate (if any) and the financial results and prospects of the issuer(s) of the securities comprising or relating to a Reference Item (which may include equity securities, index constituent securities or other securities);
- d) movements in commodity markets where the Underlying comprises a Commodity;
- e) movements in and the volatility of rates of exchange where the Underlying comprises a Rate of Exchange;
- f) the volatility of the price of units or shares in the fund or funds where the Underlying comprises a Fund Share; or
- g) the movements in interest rates where the Underlying comprises an Interest Rate,

as well as economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which any such other securities, commodities, fund units or shares may be traded.

If the Reference Item(s) relate to an emerging market or developing country, the Underlying or its constituents (if any) will be identified as an "Emerging Market Underlying" in the Final Terms. This is the case if the Reference Item(s) are, for example, listed or traded on a stock exchange in an emerging market or developing country (e.g. shares or commodity futures), or the Reference Item(s) are Rates of Exchange or government bonds or bonds issued by sub-sovereign issuers from emerging markets or developing countries, equity securities issued by companies which have their registered office in an emerging market or developing country or which do a significant part of their business in a country of this type, or Indices which track shares or other financial instruments from emerging markets or developing countries.

Emerging markets and developing countries are exposed to considerable legal, economic and political risks which may be greater than, for example, in EU member states or other industrialised countries. For this reason, investments relating to emerging markets or developing countries involve additional risk factors in addition to the general risks associated with investment in the respective Reference Item(s). These include the unstable political or economic situation, increased inflation and increased currency risks. The causes of the instability in these countries can include authoritarian governments or military participation in political and economic decision-making processes. They also include changes of government attempted or achieved by unconstitutional means, civil unrest in connection with the demand for improved political, economic and social conditions, hostile relations with neighbouring countries or conflicts arising from ethnic, religious or racist reasons. Political or economic instability can impact investor confidence, which may in turn have a negative effect on the rates of exchange and the prices of securities or other assets in these countries.

Political and economic structures in emerging markets and developing countries may be subject to considerable upheaval and rapid change.

The rates of exchange and the prices of securities or other assets in emerging markets and developing countries are often more volatile. Factors which cause these prices to change include interest rates, a change in supply and demand, external forces which have an impact on the market in question (particularly with regard to important trading partners), trade, tax and monetary policy programmes, government policies and international political and economic events and policies.

In addition, there is a possibility of adverse developments, for example restrictions against foreign investors, nationalisation or expropriation of assets, confiscatory taxation, confiscation or nationalisation of foreign bank deposits or other assets, the existence or establishment of foreign currency bans, foreign currency controls or restrictions on the free movement of rates of exchange. If a restriction on the free development of rates of exchange is lifted, it is possible that the currency of the emerging market or developing country will experience considerable rate of exchange volatility within a short period of time.

The aforementioned disruptions may in some cases last for a longer period, i.e. weeks or even years.

Any of these disruptions may result in a so-called Market Disruption with regard to the Securities, resulting amongst other things in no prices being quoted for the Securities affected by the Market Disruption in this period.

The development of securities markets is mostly still at an early stage in emerging markets and developing countries. This may lead to risks and practices (such as higher volatility) which do not usually occur in more developed securities markets and which may adversely affect the value of the securities listed on the stock exchanges in these countries. In addition, exchanges in emerging markets and developing countries are frequently characterised by illiquidity in the form of low trading volumes for some of the securities listed. Many of these securities markets have settlement and payment processes which are less developed, less reliable and less efficient in comparison to more developed securities markets in emerging markets and developing countries markets.

Disclosure requirements, accounting standards and regulatory requirements for equity securities may be less strict in emerging markets or developing countries than, for example, in EU member states or other industrialised countries, which may have an influence on the valuation of the Reference Item(s) if these are equity securities.

Correspondingly, less information about companies in emerging markets or developing countries may be publicly available than is the case with companies in more developed markets. The assets and liabilities and profit and loss reported in the annual or interim financial statements may give different view of the financial position of a company or its results of operations than if the annual or interim reports were prepared in accordance with recognised accounting standards. The valuation of assets, depreciation and amortisation, deferred tax, contingent liabilities and consolidations may be treated differently than under internationally recognised accounting principles.

All the aforementioned factors may have an adverse impact on the value of the Reference Item(s).

3.1 Risks associated with Shares or other equity securities as a Reference Item

Equity linked Securities may be redeemed or settled by the Issuer by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of one or more equity securities (which may include American depositary receipts or global depositary receipts) and/or by the physical delivery of a given number of specified assets and/or payment of the nominal amount and interest determined by reference to the value of one or more equity securities. Accordingly, an investment in equity linked Securities may bear similar market risks to a direct equity investment and prospective investors should take advice accordingly.

Securities may be subject to adjustments or early termination under §6 of the General Conditions in the event of certain corporate actions or events occurring in respect of the issuer(s) of the equity security(ies).

The Calculation Agent may also determine under §5 of the General Conditions that a Market Disruption has occurred at any relevant time. Any such determination may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the Securities and/or may delay payment or settlement in respect of the Securities.

3.2 Risks associated with indices as a Reference Item

Index linked Securities may be redeemed or settled by the Issuer by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of one or more indices or payment of the nominal amount and interest calculated by reference to the value of one or more indices or in certain cases by physical delivery of certain assets. Accordingly, an investment in index linked Securities may bear similar market risks to a direct investment in the components of the Index comprising such index or indices and prospective investors should take advice accordingly.

Index linked Securities may be subject to adjustment or early termination under §6 of the General Conditions in the event of certain relevant events in relation to an index. These may include:

- a) a failure to calculate and announce the relevant index by the index sponsor;
- b) a material modification in the way that the relevant index is calculated from that originally intended; or
- c) a permanent cancellation of the relevant index with no successor index.

The Calculation Agent may also determine under §5 of the General Conditions that a Market Disruption has occurred at any relevant time. Any such determination may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the Securities and/or may delay payment or settlement in respect of the Securities.

Accordingly investors should review §5 and §6 of the General Conditions carefully to determine the effect these provisions may have on the Securities. See further section C below. In addition, where the Securities are linked to one or more Deutsche Bank proprietary indices, investors should review the relevant risk factors section set out in each relevant index description.

3.3 Risks associated with Other Securities as a Reference Item

Securities linked to Other Securities may be redeemed or settled by the Issuer by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of one or more Other Securities and/or by the physical delivery of a given number of specified assets and/or payment of the nominal amount and interest determined by reference to the value of one or more Other Securities. Accordingly, an investment in Securities linked to Other Securities may bear similar market risks to a direct investment in the relevant Other Securities and prospective investors should take advice accordingly.

Securities linked to Other Securities may be subject to adjustment or early termination under §6 of the General Conditions in the event of certain relevant events in relation to the Other Securities or the issuer(s) of the Other Securities.

The Calculation Agent may also determine under §5 of the General Conditions that a Market Disruption has occurred at any relevant time. Any such determination may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the Securities and/or may delay payment or settlement in respect of the Securities.

Accordingly investors should review §5 and §6 of the General Conditions carefully to determine the effect these provisions may have on the Securities. See further section C below.

3.4 Risks associated with Commodities as a Reference Item

Securities linked to Commodities may be redeemed or settled by the Issuer by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of one or more Commodities (or traded contracts relating to commodities) and/or in certain cases by physical settlement. Accordingly, an investment in Securities linked to Commodities may bear similar market risks to a direct investment in the relevant Commodities and prospective investors should take advice accordingly and be familiar with

commodities as an asset class as well as the relevant traded contract type and any exchange(s) or quotation system(s) for such contract.

Securities linked to Commodities may be subject to adjustment or early termination under §6 of the General Conditions in the event of certain relevant events in relation to the Commodities or the exchange or contract obligors in relation to the relevant commodities contracts.

The Calculation Agent may also determine under §5 of the General Conditions that a Market Disruption has occurred at any relevant time. Any such determination may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the Securities and/or may delay payment or settlement in respect of the Securities.

Accordingly investors should review §5 and §6 of the General Conditions carefully to determine the effect these provisions may have on the Securities. See further section C below.

3.5 Risks associated with Rates of Exchange as a Reference Item

Securities linked to rates of exchange may be redeemed or settled by the Issuer by payment of an amount determined by reference to the rate of exchange of one or more currencies and/or in certain cases by physical settlement. Accordingly, an investment in Securities linked to rates of exchange may bear similar market risks to a direct investment in the relevant underlying currency(ies) and prospective investors should take advice accordingly and be familiar with foreign exchange as an asset class. The above risk may be increased if the relevant underlying currency is the currency of an emerging market jurisdiction.

Securities linked to rates of exchange may be subject to adjustment or early termination under §6 of the General Conditions in the event of certain relevant events in relation to the Rates of Exchange.

The Calculation Agent may also determine under §5 of the General Conditions that a Market Disruption has occurred at any relevant time. Any such determination may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the Securities and/or may delay payment or settlement in respect of the Securities.

Accordingly investors should review §5 and §6 of the General Conditions carefully to determine the effect these provisions may have on the Securities. See further section C below.

3.6 Risks associated with Futures Contracts as a Reference Item

Securities linked to Futures Contracts may be redeemed or settled by the Issuer by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of one or more Futures Contracts and/or in certain cases by physical settlement. Accordingly, an investment in Securities linked to Futures Contracts may bear similar market risks to a direct investment in the relevant Futures Contracts and prospective investors should take advice accordingly and be familiar with the relevant futures contract type and exchange(s) or quotation system(s) for such Futures Contract as well as the asset class to which the Futures Contracts relate.

Securities linked to Futures Contracts may be subject to adjustment or early termination under §6 of the General Conditions in the event of certain relevant events in relation to the Futures Contracts or the issuer(s) or obligor(s) or the exchange(s) or quotation system(s) for the relevant Futures Contracts.

The Calculation Agent may also determine under §5 of the General Conditions that a Market Disruption has occurred at any relevant time. Any such determination may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the Securities and/or may delay payment or settlement in respect of the Securities.

Accordingly investors should review §5 and §6 of the General Conditions carefully to determine the effect these provisions may have on the Securities. See further section C below.

3.7 Other risks associated with Commodities as a Reference Item

The yield on Securities linked to Commodities as well as the performance of indices which reflect commodities may not perfectly correlate to the trend in the price of the Commodities as the use of

future commodity contracts generally involves a rolling mechanism. This means that the commodity futures contracts which expire prior to the relevant payment date under the relevant Securities or prior to the maturity of the relevant index are replaced with future commodity contracts that have a later expiry date. Any rise/fall in prices on such Commodities may not be fully reflected in any payment under the relevant Securities or in the performance of the relevant index.

Moreover, investors in Securities linked to Commodities or Commodities-Indices should note that prices of commodity futures contracts may have a trend which differs significantly from that of the commodity spot markets. The trend in the price of a commodity futures contract is closely linked to the present and future level of the production of the relevant commodity or to the level of estimated natural reserves, particularly in the case of energy commodities. In addition, the prices of commodity futures contracts may not be considered an accurate prediction of a market price, since they include the so-called "carrying costs" (for example, warehouse costs, insurance and transportation etc.) which are taken into account in the determination of the prices of commodity futures contracts. As such, investors in Securities linked to Commodities or Commodities-Indices should note that any return on their investment or the performance of the relevant index may not fully reflect the performance of the commodity spot markets as a result of the discrepancy between the prices of commodity futures contracts and the prices of commodity spot markets.

If the Underlying is an index which is composed by the Issuer or a legal entity belonging to Deutsche Bank Group and such index comprises commodities or contracts on commodities, the Underlying may be particularly affected by disruption events relating to such commodities or contracts on commodities. In particular it should be noted that a Market Disruption Event may occur if, for example, there is a material suspension of trading or a limit on trading of any transaction entered into or asset purchased for the purposes of hedging any exposure to the constituents of the index. Disruption events may have a negative effect on the level of the index as the scheduled date of valuation of the commodities and contracts of commodities specified in the index description and thus the calculation and publication of the index might be delayed. The Index Sponsor calculates the index only after the relevant disruption event has ceased. Therefore, the calculation of the index might be delayed for several business days.

During such period, the delay in calculation would have a negative effect on the liquidity of the Securities. As a consequence, investors bear the market risk that liquidity may be limited during the relevant days on which a disruption event relating to constituents of the index occurs or continues and the calculation of the index is postponed.

In addition, the Calculation Agent may determine at any relevant time in accordance with § 5 of the General Conditions that a Disruption Event exists due to the postponement of the index calculation. Such determination may affect the date of valuation and thus the value of the Securities and may result in delays in payments or settlement in relation to the Securities.

The Index Sponsor may publish a level of the index on a business day on which certain disruption events relating to constituents of the index occur or continue.

Even though such Index Level may be published, investors should note that for the purposes of the Securities the Index Level on such Business Day may not be a level by reference to which the Securities are traded. As a consequence, a Disruption Event in relation to the Securities may exist. After the relevant Disruption Event has ended, the Index Sponsor may publish a fixing level of the Index in respect of each day on which a Disruption Event existed on the web page http://index.db.com or any successor page or service (the "Fixing Page") under information pertaining to the index. Investors should note that any such fixing level published on the Fixing Page may be relevant for the purposes of trading the Securities and may be used by the Calculation Agent to determine the value of the Securities for such day.

As a result, investors should note that liquidity in the Securities may be limited or may not exist, even if an Index Level is published upon occurrence or existence of a Disruption Event in relation to constituents of the index.

3.8 Risks associated with Fund Shares as a Reference Item

Securities linked to Fund Shares may be redeemed or settled by the Issuer by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value (or net asset value) of one or more shares or units in one or more funds and/or by the physical delivery of a given number of specified assets and/or payment of the nominal amount and interest determined by reference to the value of one or more Fund Shares. Accordingly, an investment in Securities linked to Fund Shares may bear similar market risks to a direct investment in the relevant Fund Shares and prospective investors should take advice accordingly and be familiar with the relevant fund type and its underlying investment asset(s) type as an asset class.

Securities linked to Fund Shares may be subject to adjustment or early termination under §6 of the General Conditions in the event of certain relevant events in relation to the Fund Shares or the issuer(s) or obligor(s) or other connected parties in relation to the Fund Shares.

The Calculation Agent may also determine under §5 of the General Conditions that a Market Disruption has occurred at any relevant time. Any such determination may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the Securities and/or may delay payment or settlement in respect of the Securities.

Accordingly investors should review §5 and §6 of the General Conditions carefully to determine the effect these provisions may have on the Securities. See further section C below.

3.9 Risks associated with Interest Rates as a Reference Item

Securities linked to an Interest Rate may be redeemed or settled by the Issuer by payment of an amount determined by reference to the level of the Interest Rate and/or payment of the nominal amount.

Interest rates are determined by factors of supply and demand in the international money markets which are influenced by macroeconomic factors, speculation and central bank and government intervention or other political factors. Fluctuations in short term and/or long term interest rates may affect the value of the Securities.

The Calculation Agent may make certain determinations in respect of the Interest Rate in accordance with §5 of the General Conditions in the event that it is not possible for the Calculation Agent to determine the relevant Interest Rate at any relevant time. Any such determination may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the Securities.

3.10 Risks associated with other Reference Items

Securities may be linked to other Reference Items or a combination of one of more of the above Reference Item types. An investment in Securities linked to any Reference Items may bear similar market risks to a direct investment in the relevant Reference Items and prospective investors should take advice accordingly.

Securities linked to Reference Items may be subject to adjustment or early termination under §6 of the General Conditions in the event of certain relevant events in relation to the Reference Items or the issuer(s) of the Reference Items.

The Calculation Agent may also determine under §5 of the General Conditions that a Market Disruption has occurred at any relevant time. Any such determination may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the Securities and/or may delay payment or settlement in respect of the Securities.

Accordingly investors should review §5 and §6 of the General Conditions carefully to determine the effect these provisions may have on the Securities. See further section C below.

3.11 No Claim against any Reference Item

A Security will not represent a claim against any Reference Item to which any amount payable or amount of assets deliverable in respect of the Securities is dependent and, in the event that the amount paid by the Issuer or value of the specified assets delivered on termination of the Securities is less than the amount originally invested in the Securities, a Securityholder will not have recourse under a Security to the Issuer or any Reference Item.

An investment in Securities linked to one or more Reference Items may entail significant risks not associated with investments in conventional securities including but not limited to the risks set out above. The amount paid or value of the specified assets delivered by the Issuer on termination of such Securities may be less than the amount originally invested in the Securities and may in certain circumstances be zero.

3.12 Risks in relation to multiple Reference Items

If the amount of any coupons or any cash amount payable or physical delivery amount due under the Securities is dependent on the performance of multiple Reference Items and in this respect the performance of the worst performing Reference Item in comparison to the performance of the other Reference Items is of relevance investors should note, that the level of dependency among the Reference Items, so called correlation, may significantly impact the risk associated with an investment into the Securities. This risk will increase if the correlation among the Reference Items decreases because in this case the probability increases that at least one of the Reference Items will show an adverse performance compared to the performance of the other Reference Items.

C. RISK FACTORS RELATED TO SECURITIES GENERALLY

1. No statutory or voluntary deposit guarantee scheme

The Issuer's obligations relating to the Securities are not protected by any statutory or voluntary deposit guarantee system or compensation scheme. In the event of insolvency of the Issuer, investors may thus experience a total loss of their investment in the Securities.

2. No Payments until Settlement

Prospective investors should note that a realisation by selling the Securities in the secondary market may be the only return potentially available to the investor prior to settlement of the Securities. Unless otherwise specified in the relevant Final Terms, there may be no periodic interest payments or other distributions made during the term of the Securities.

However, investors should note the risk factors described under the headings "Market value" and "The Securities may be Illiquid" below in this regard.

3. Adjustment Events and Adjustment/Termination Events (incl. PVR)

The Issuer is entitled to make adjustments to the Terms and Conditions following the occurrence of an Adjustment Event. These may include any event which materially affects the theoretical economic value of a Reference Item or any event which materially disrupts the economic link between the value of the Reference Item and the Securities subsisting immediately prior to the occurrence of such event. The respective events are generally defined in § 6 (1) of the General Conditions; in § 6 (5) of the General Conditions specific cases (without limitation) are mentioned for different types of Reference Items (for shares, for example, the case of a subdivision, consolidation or reclassification of relevant shares as well as the case of a share repurchase). Unless Non-Consideration of Cost has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, such adjustments may take into account and pass on to Securityholders any increased direct or indirect cost to the Issuer as a result of or in connection with the relevant Adjustment Event. In case of an adjustment, if Minimum Redemption Payable has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Issuer will take into account the Minimum Redemption.

On the occurrence of an Adjustment/Termination Event, the Issuer is also entitled to adjust the Terms and Conditions or in certain cases, substitute the relevant Reference Item affected by such Adjustment/Termination Event. If such adjustment or substitution is not possible, the Issuer is also entitled to terminate and cancel the Securities by giving notice to the Securityholders, providing brief details of the Adjustment/Termination Event and of the payout amount ("Adjustment / Termination Notice").

However, in case Additional Adjustment/Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms and if the Issuer's action would alter characteristics of the Securities that are essential to the Securityholder (such as the Underlying, the Securities' term, the identity of the Issuer and a minimum redemption), the Issuer is only entitled to take the mentioned actions if the relevant event substantially alters the economics of the Securities compared to the Issue Date, or is a force majeure event that prevents the Issuer from being able to perform its obligations under the Securities, and is not attributable to the Issuer. In addition, if Additional Adjustment/Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, additional restrictions also apply in case of a Settlement or Market Disruption, as defined in § 3 (9) and § 5 of the General Conditions, and a number of further entitlements under the General Conditions to make changes to the Terms and Conditions (in § 13, § 17 and § 18 of the General Conditions).

In case of a termination or cancelation the Issuer will pay, usually prior to the scheduled settlement date of the Securities, an amount which the Calculation Agent determines to be their fair market value and, in case Additional Adjustement / Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in

the Product Terms and the Adjustment Event is neither an Illegality nor a Force Majeur Event. increased by a sum representing the reimbursement of costs initially charged to investors by the Issuer for issuing the Security (as adjusted to take into account the time remaining to maturity) (the "Issuer Costs Reimbursement Amount"), and taking into account the relevant Adjustment/Termination Event and, unless Non-Consideration of Cost has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, less the direct and indirect cost to the Issuer of unwinding or adjusting any underlying related hedging arrangements, and less any tax or withholding required by law. Such amount may be significantly less than an investor's initial investment in Securities and in certain circumstances may be zero. If Minimum Redemption Payable has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the amount is equal to the Minimum Redemption.

However, in case Adjustment / Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms and the Adjustment Event is neither an Illegality Event nor a Force Majeur Event, the Adjustment / Termination Notice shall also state that Securityholders have the right to select settlement under the Securities at their scheduled settlement date by payment of an amount which the Calculation Agent determines to be their compounded fair market value for the scheduled settlement date, taking into account the relevant adjustment/termination event and, if Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, increased by the Issuer Costs Reimbursement Amount. If Minimum Redemption Payable has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, such amount will be equal to the Minimum Redemption.

The respective events are generally defined in § 6 (3) of the General Conditions; in § 6 (5) of the General Conditions specific cases (without limitation) are mentioned for different types of Reference Items (for shares, for example, the case of a De-Listing, Insolvency, Merger Event, Nationalisation or a Tender Offer)

Pursuant to the general definition an Adjustment/Termination Event may include an event which materially affects the method by which the Calculation Agent determines the level or price of any Reference Item or the ability of the Calculation Agent to determine the level or price of any Reference Item. In addition, unless Adjustment/Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, an Adjustment/Termination Event may occur where it is illegal or no longer feasible for the Issuer to maintain its hedging arrangements for the Securities or where materially increased costs or expenses would be incurred by the Issuer in maintaining those arrangements.

Such hedging arrangements refer to the arrangements the Issuer makes to ensure it will have available to it the relevant cash amounts or assets to be delivered under the Securities as these fall due. This will normally involve the Issuer investing directly or indirectly in the Underlying. An indirect investment might be made by an Affiliate or agent of the Issuer or other third party making an investment in the Underlying. Alternatively an indirect investment might involve the Issuer or an Affiliate, agent or other third party entering into a derivative contract referencing the Underlying. The Issuer will select hedging arrangements which are efficient for it in the context of the tax, regulatory and business environment in which it operates. The Issuer may also adjust hedging arrangements from time to time but it will not always be able to avoid adverse costs, taxes or regulatory changes which affect its hedging arrangements.

An Adjustment/Termination Event may also occur in a situation where certain market disruptions exist or a force majeure occurs (being an event or circumstance which prevents or materially affects the performance of the Issuer's obligation).

An Adjustment Event or Adjustment/Termination Event may materially affect the cost to the Issuer of maintaining the Securities or its hedging arrangements in a way which has not been factored into the issue price of the Securities. Unless Adjustment/Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, this may therefore require adjustments or a termination of the Securities. **This is part of the economic risk Securityholders bear when investing in the Securities and the basis on which the Securities are priced.**

Any adjustment made due to an Adjustment Event or any adjustment or termination of the Securities or replacement of a Reference Item following an Adjustment/Termination Event may have an

adverse effect on the Securities and Securityholders. In particular, the value of the Securities may fall and amounts payable or assets deliverable under the Securities may be less and may be made at different times than anticipated. This is part of the economic risk Securityholders bear when investing in the Securities and the basis on which the Securities are priced.

Prospective purchasers should review §5 and §6 of the General Conditions to ascertain how such provisions apply to the Securities and what may constitute an Adjustment Event or an Adjustment/Termination Event.

4. Taxation

Potential purchasers and sellers of the Securities should be aware that they may be required to pay stamp taxes or other documentary charges in accordance with the laws and practices of the country where the Securities are transferred. Securityholders are subject to the provisions of §10 of the General Conditions and payment and/or delivery of any amount due in respect of the Securities will be conditional upon the payment of certain taxes, duties and/or expenses as provided in the Terms and Conditions.

Potential purchasers who are in any doubt as to their tax position should consult their own independent tax advisers. In addition, potential purchasers should be aware that tax regulations and their application by the relevant taxation authorities change from time to time. Accordingly, it is not possible to predict the precise tax treatment which will apply at any given time.

Whilst the Securities are in global form and held within the relevant Clearing Agent, in all but the most remote circumstances, it is not expected that sections 1471 to 1474 of the US Internal Revenue Code ("**FATCA**") will affect the amount of any payment received by the Clearing Agent.

However, FATCA may affect payments made to custodians or intermediaries in the subsequent payment chain leading to the ultimate investor if any such custodian or intermediary generally is unable to receive payments free of FATCA withholding. It also may affect payment to any ultimate investor that is a financial institution that is not entitled to receive payments free of withholding under FATCA, or an ultimate investor that fails to provide its broker (or other custodian or intermediary from which it receives payment) with any information, forms, other documentation or consents that may be necessary for the payments to be made free of FATCA withholding. Investors should choose the custodians or intermediaries with care (to ensure each is compliant with FATCA or other laws or agreements related to FATCA), provide each custodian or intermediary with any information, forms, other documentation or consents that may be necessary for such custodian or intermediary to make a payment free of FATCA withholding. Investors should choose the custodians or intermediaries with care (to ensure each is compliant with FATCA or other laws or agreements related to FATCA), and provide each custodian or intermediary with any information, forms, other documentation or consents that may be necessary for such custodian or intermediary to make a payment free of FATCA withholding. Investors should consult their own tax adviser to obtain a more detailed explanation of FATCA and how FATCA may affect them. The Issuer's obligations under the Securities are discharged once it has paid the relevant Clearing Agent and the Issuer has therefore no responsibility for any amount thereafter transmitted through the relevant Clearing Agent and custodians or intermediaries.

Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and the provisions issued thereunder stipulate that for certain financial instruments (such as for Securities) a withholding tax (of up to 30% and potentially subject to the application of double taxation treaties) shall be imposed if the payment (or amount deemed a payment) on the financial instruments is contingent upon, or determined by reference to, the payment of a dividend from sources within the United States. Pursuant to these U.S. legal provisions, certain payments (or amounts deemed payments) under certain equity-linked instruments that refer to the performance of U.S. equities or certain indices that contain U.S. equities, as an underlying or a basket component, shall be treated as "**dividend equivalents**" and shall be subject to U.S. withholding tax of 30% (or, potentially, a lower double tax treaty rate).

The aforementioned tax liability shall apply even if pursuant to the terms of the Securities no actual dividend-related amount is paid or an adjustment is made and thus investors may only be able to determine with difficulty or not at all any connection between the dividend related amount and the payments to be made in respect of the Securities.

In withholding this tax, the Issuer may apply the general tax rate of 30% to the payments subject to U.S. withholding tax (or amounts deemed payments) rather than any lower tax rate pursuant to any potentially applicable double taxation treaty. In such case, an investor's individual tax situation may therefore not be taken into account. Prospective investors should consult their tax advisors regarding the availability of refunds in respect of amounts withheld under section 871(m).

The Issuer's determination of whether the Securities are subject to this withholding tax is binding for Securityholders but not for the United States Internal Revenue Service (the "**IRS**"). The rules of section 871(m) require complex calculations in respect of the Securities that refer to U.S. equities and application of these rules to a specific Securities issue may be uncertain. Consequently the IRS may determine they are to be applied even if the Issuer initially assumed the rules would not apply. There is a risk in such case that Securityholders would be subject to tax under section 871(m) with retroactive effect.

There is also the risk that section 871(m) withholding may also be applied to Securities that were not initially subject to such withholding. This case could arise in particular if the securities' economic parameters change such that the Securities are in fact subject to tax liability and the Issuer continues to issue and sell these Securities.

As the Issuer is not obliged to offset any withholding tax pursuant to section 871(m) on interest, capital or other payments to Securityholders by paying an additional amount, Securityholders will receive smaller payments in such case than they would have received without withholding tax imposed.

5. Changes in any applicable tax law or practice may have an adverse effect on a Securityholder

Any relevant tax law or practice applicable as at the date of this Base Prospectus and/or the date of purchase or subscription of any Securities may change at any time (including during any subscription period or the term of any Securities). Any such change may have an adverse effect on a Securityholder, including that Securities may be redeemed before their Settlement Date their liquidity may decrease and/or the amounts payable or receivable by or to an affected Securityholder may be less than otherwise expected by such Securityholder.

6. Exercise Notices, Delivery Notices and Certifications

If the Securities are subject to provisions concerning delivery of an exercise notice or delivery notice and such notice is received by either the relevant principal agent with a copy to the clearing agent after the latest time specified in the General Conditions, it will not be deemed to be duly delivered until the next following Business Day. Such deemed delay may in the case of cash settled Securities increase or decrease the cash amount payable at settlement from what it would have been but for such deemed delivery. In the case of Securities which are exercisable on one day only or only during an exercise period, any exercise notice, if not delivered by the latest time specified in the Terms and Conditions, shall be void.

The failure to deliver any delivery notice or certifications required by the General Conditions could result in the loss or inability to receive amounts or deliveries otherwise due under the Securities. Prospective purchasers should review the General Conditions to ascertain whether and how such provisions apply to the Securities.

Securities not exercised in accordance with the General Conditions will expire worthless unless automatic exercise applies. Prospective purchasers should review the Terms and Conditions to

ascertain whether the Securities are subject to automatic exercise, and when and how an exercise notice or delivery notice may be validly delivered.

7. Time Lag after Exercise

Where the Securities are to be settled by a cash payment or physical delivery, then, upon their exercise, there may be a time lag between the time exercise occurs and the time the applicable cash amount or asset amount relating to such exercise is determined. Any such delay between the time of exercise and the determination of the cash amount or asset amount will be specified in the General Conditions. However, such delay could be significantly longer, particularly in the case of a delay in exercise of such Securities arising from, as described below, any daily maximum exercise limitation or, as described below, upon the determination by the Calculation Agent that a Disruption Event has occurred at any relevant time. The applicable cash amount or asset amount could decrease from what it would have been but for such delay.

Prospective purchasers should review the General Conditions to ascertain whether and how such provisions apply to the Securities.

8. Physically Settled Securities

Where Securities provide for physical delivery, the Calculation Agent may determine that a Settlement Disruption Event is subsisting. A Settlement Disruption Event is an event beyond the control of the Issuer as a result of which, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, delivery of the specified assets to be delivered by or on behalf of the Issuer is not feasible. Any such determination may affect the value of the Securities and/or may delay settlement in respect of the Securities.

9. Settlement Systems

An investor will need to be able to hold the Securities (directly or through an intermediary). Securities may only be held directly through the relevant Clearing Agent or, in the case of Italian Securities, an authorised financial intermediary entitled to hold securities deposit accounts with Monte Titoli S.p.A. on behalf of their customers or, in the case of French Securities, any authorised financial intermediary institution entitled to hold securities accounts, directly or indirectly, with Euroclear France, which includes Euroclear and the depositary bank for Clearstream. Where Securities are held indirectly, a Securityholder will depend on the relevant intermediary(ies) through which it holds the *Securities* for receipt of payments, notices and for all other purposes in connection with the *Securities*. In case of physically settled Securities an investor will need to be able to hold (directly or through an intermediary) the relevant assets deliverable on settlement of the Securities. Investors should note the Securities are not intended to be held in a manner which would allow Eurosystem eligibility and this may limit their marketability for some investors.

10. Chinese Renminbi (CNY) as the Settlement Currency

If the Settlement Currency is the Chinese renminbi ("**CNY**") according to the relevant Final Terms, prospective purchasers should be aware that CNY is not a freely convertible currency and that this can have a negative impact on the liquidity of the Securities. In addition, there is only limited availability of CNY outside the People's Republic of China, which may negatively impact the liquidity of the Securities and the Issuer's ability to purchase CNY outside the People's Republic of China to service the Securities. In the case of illiquidity, inconvertibility or non-transferability of CNY, the Issuer may decide to postpone payments due, make payments in the Relevant Currency specified in the relevant Final Terms instead of in CNY or terminate the Securities early. A payment in the Relevant Currency may lead to an additional currency risk if the Relevant Currency is not the currency of the investor's home jurisdiction.

11. Regulatory bail-in and other resolution measures

On 15 May 2014, the European Parliament and the Council of the European Union adopted Directive 2014/59/EU establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms (commonly referred to as the "Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive" or the "BRRD") which was transposed into German law by the Recovery and Resolution Act (Sanierungsund Abwicklungsgesetz, or the "SAG") with effect from 1 January 2015. For banks established in the eurozone, such as the Issuer, which are supervised within the framework of the Single Supervisory Mechanism (the "SSM"), Regulation (EU) No 806/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council (the "SRM Regulation") provides for a coherent application of the resolution rules across the SSM under responsibility of the European Single Resolution Board, with effect since 1 January 2016 (referred to as the "Single Resolution Mechanism" or "SRM"). Under the SRM, the Single Resolution Board is responsible for adopting resolution decisions in close cooperation with the European Central Bank, the European Commission, and national resolution authorities in the event that a significant bank directly supervised by the European Central Bank, such as the Issuer, is failing or likely to fail and certain other conditions are met. National resolution authorities in the European Union member states concerned would implement such resolution decisions adopted by the Single Resolution Board in accordance with the powers conferred on them under national law transposing the BRRD.

If the competent authority determines that the Issuer is failing or likely to fail and certain other conditions are met (as set forth in the SRM Regulation, the SAG and other applicable rules and regulations), the competent resolution authority has the power to write down, including to write down to zero, claims for payment of the principal and any other claims under the Securities, interest or any other amount in respect of the Securities, to convert the Securities into ordinary shares or other instruments qualifying as common equity tier 1 capital (the write-down and conversion powers are hereinafter referred to as the "**Bail-in tool**"), or to apply any other resolution measure including (but not limited to) a transfer of the Securities to another entity, a variation of the terms and conditions of the Securities. The Bail-in tool and each of these other resolution measures are hereinafter referred to as a "**Resolution Measure**". The competent resolution authority may apply Resolution Measures individually or in any combination.

The competent resolution authority will have to exercise the Bail-in tool in a way that results in (i) common equity tier 1 capital instruments (such as ordinary shares of the Issuer) being written down first in proportion to the relevant losses, (ii) subsequently, the principal amount of other capital instruments (additional tier 1 capital instruments and tier 2 capital instruments) being written down on a permanent basis or converted into common equity tier 1 capital instruments in accordance with their order of priority and (iii) finally, the Issuer's unsecured and unsubordinated liabilities (unless exempted by the SRM Regulation, the BRRD or the SAG) – such as those under the unsubordinated Securities – being written down on a permanent basis or converted into common equity tier 1 capital instruments.

Within the Issuer's unsecured and unsubordinated liabilities, such as unsubordinated Securities issued under this Programme, Section 46f(5)–(7) of the German Banking Act (*Kreditwesengesetz,* "**KWG**") determines that certain unsecured and unsubordinated debt instruments of the Issuer (hereinafter referred to as "**Non-Preferred Senior Obligations**") rank below the Issuer's other senior liabilities (hereinafter referred to as "**Preferred Senior Obligations**"). As a consequence, Non-Preferred Senior Obligations would bear losses before Preferred Senior Obligations in the event of insolvency or the application of Resolution Measures, such as the Bail-in-tool, affecting the Issuer. Among the Preferred Senior Obligations are, as defined in Section 46f(7) KWG, senior unsecured debt instruments whose terms provide that (i) the amount of the repayment depends on the occurrence or non-occurrence of an event which is uncertain at the point in time when the senior unsecured debt instruments are issued, or settlement is effected in a way other than by monetary payment, or (ii) the amount of the interest payments depends on the occurrence or non-occurrence

of an event which is uncertain at the point in time when the senior unsecured debt instruments are issued unless the amount of the interest payments solely depends on a fixed or floating reference interest rate, and settlement is effected by monetary payment. Unsecured and unsubordinated Securities issued under this Programme that do not meet the terms described in (i) or (ii) above, including Fixed Rate Notes and Floating Rate Notes linked to LIBOR or EURIBOR, are, therefore, expected to constitute Non-Preferred Senior Obligations that would bear losses in a German insolvency proceeding or in the event of the imposition of Resolution Measures before Preferred Senior Obligations. In a German insolvency proceeding or in the losuer, the competent resolution authority or court would determine whether unsecured and unsubordinated Securities issued under the Programme qualify as Preferred Senior Obligations.

The holders of Securities are bound by any Resolution Measure. They would have no claim or any other right against the Issuer arising out of any Resolution Measure. Depending on the Resolution Measure, there would be no obligation of the Issuer to make payments under the Securities. The extent to which payment obligations under the Securities may be affected by Resolution Measures would depend on a number of factors that are outside the Issuer's control, and it will be difficult to predict when, if at all, Resolution Measures will occur. The exercise of any Resolution Measure would not constitute any right to terminate the Securities. Potential investors should consider the risk that they may lose all of their investment, including the principal amount plus any accrued interest, if Resolution Measures are initiated, and should be aware that extraordinary public financial support for troubled banks, if any, would only potentially be used as a last resort after having assessed and exploited, to the maximum extent practicable, the Resolution Measures, including the Bail-in tool.

12. Risk Factors in relation to regulatory requirements of issuances with Eligible Liability Format

If Eligible Liabilities Format is specified to apply in the Product Terms, a new EU legislative proposal will, if adopted as proposed, prohibit all buy-backs of such Securities by the Issuer, including by way of market making, unless regulatory pre-approval has been granted for such buy-backs, starting 2019. Such regulatory pre-approval would be expected to be restricted to a maximum transaction volume entered into by the Issuer. Where such maximum volume has been reached, further buy-backs would require a new approval to be obtained before any such transactions. If the EU proposal will be adopted as proposed, the Issuer intends to seek regulatory approval for a maximum volume of transactions which, based on past experience, it expects to allow continuous and uninterrupted market making during the term of the Securities under normal conditions.

However, in case the volume of securities investors are seeking to sell back to the Issuer should substantially increase, due to factors such as (but not limited to) a substantial deterioration in the general perception of the Issuer's financial situation, general stress in the financial markets and/or a major chance in market conditions affecting the relative attractiveness of an investment into the Securities compared to other potential investments (e. g. substantial changes in the general interest level), the maximum volume to which the regulatory approval of buy-backs is subject could be reached during the term of the Securities. There is no guarantee that the Issuer would be willing or able to seek a subsequent regulatory approval for further buy-backs, or, in case the Issuer does apply for such subsequent approval, that it will be possible to provide further market making without interruption or at all.

Investors should note that in such cases, the market making provided by the Issuer could be interrupted or end permanently, which could substantially reduce the price investors seeking to sell securities can realise, or could prevent investors from selling securities at the time they so wish.

Moreover, if Eligible Liabilities Format is specified to apply in the Product Terms, prospective investors should also note that their rights of redemption and set-off rights have been excluded in the Product Terms.

13. Regulation and reform of "benchmarks"

Regulation and reform of "benchmarks", including LIBOR, EURIBOR and other interest rates, equity indices, foreign exchange rates and other types of rates and indices which are deemed to be "benchmarks", could adversely affect any Securities linked to such "benchmarks".

The London Interbank Offered Rate ("**LIBOR**"), the Euro Interbank Offered Rate ("**EURIBOR**") and other interest rates, equity indices, foreign exchange rates and other types of rates and indices which are deemed to be "benchmarks" are the subject of recent national, international and other regulatory guidance and proposals for reform. Some of these reforms are already effective whilst others are still to be implemented. These reforms may cause such "benchmarks" to perform differently than in the past, or to disappear entirely, or have other consequences which cannot be predicted. Any such consequence could adversely affect any Securities linked to such "benchmarks".

Key international proposals for reform of "benchmarks" include the International Organization of Securities Commissions' ("**IOSCO**") *Principles for Financial Market Benchmarks* (July 2013) (the "**IOSCO Benchmark Principles**") and the *EU Regulation on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts or to measure the performance of investment funds* (the "**Benchmark Regulation**").

The IOSCO Benchmark Principles aim to create an overarching framework of principles for benchmarks to be used in financial markets, specifically covering governance and accountability as well as the quality and transparency of benchmark design and methodologies. A review published by IOSCO in February 2015 on the status of the voluntary market adoption of the IOSCO Benchmark Principles noted that, as the benchmarks industry is in a state of change, further steps may need to be taken by IOSCO in the future, but that it is too early to determine what those steps should be. The review noted that there has been a significant market reaction to the publication of the IOSCO Benchmark Principles, with widespread efforts being made to implement the IOSCO Benchmark Principles by the majority of administrators surveyed.

On 17 May 2016, the Council of the European Union adopted the Benchmark Regulation. The Benchmark Regulation entered into force on 30 June 2016. It applies across the EU from 1 January 2018, with the exception of certain provisions (specified in article 59) that began to apply from 30 June 2016 and certain provisions which amend Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 on market abuse, which became effective on 3 July 2016.

The Benchmark Regulation will apply to "contributors", "administrators" and "users" of "benchmarks" in the EU, and will, among other things, (i) require benchmark administrators to be authorised (or, if non-EU-based, to have satisfied certain "equivalence" conditions in its local jurisdiction, to be "recognised" by the competent authority of the applicable Member State pending an equivalence decision or to be "endorsed" for such purpose by an EU competent authority) and to comply with requirements in relation to the administration of "benchmarks" and (ii) ban the use of "benchmarks" of unauthorised administrators. The scope of the Benchmark Regulation is wide and, in addition to so-called "critical benchmark" rates and indices such as EURIBOR, will apply to many other interest rates, as well as equity indices and foreign exchange rates and other rates and indices (including "proprietary" indices or strategies) which are referenced in certain financial instruments (securities or OTC derivatives listed on an EU regulated market, EU multilateral trading facility (MTF), EU organised trading facility (OTF) or "systematic internaliser"), certain financial contracts and investment funds. Different types of "benchmarks" are subject to more or less stringent requirements, and in particular a lighter touch regime will apply where a "benchmark" is not based on interest rates or indices and the total average value of financial instruments, financial contracts or investment funds referring to a benchmark over the past six months is less than €50 billion, subject to further conditions.

The Benchmark Regulation could have a material impact on Securities linked to a "benchmark" rate or index, including in any of the following circumstances:

- a rate or index which is a "benchmark" could not be used as such if its administrator does not obtain authorisation or is based in a non-EU jurisdiction which (subject to applicable transitional provisions) does not satisfy the "equivalence" conditions, is not "recognised" pending such a decision and is not "endorsed" for such purpose. In such event, depending on the particular "benchmark" and the applicable terms of the Securities, the Securities could be de-listed, adjusted, redeemed prior to maturity or otherwise impacted; and
- the methodology or other terms of the "benchmark" could be changed in order to comply with the terms of the Benchmark Regulation, and such changes could have the effect of reducing or increasing the rate or level or affecting the volatility of the published rate or level and could lead to adjustments to the terms of the Securities, including Calculation Agent determination of the rate or level in its discretion.

Any of the international, national or other proposals for reform or the general increased regulatory scrutiny of "benchmarks" could increase the costs and risks of administering or otherwise participating in the setting of a "benchmark" and complying with any such regulations or requirements. Such factors may have the effect of discouraging market participants from continuing to administer or contribute to certain "benchmarks", trigger changes in the rules or methodologies used in certain "benchmarks" or lead to the disappearance of certain "benchmarks". The disappearance of a "benchmark" or changes in the manner of administration of a "benchmark" could result in adjustment to the terms and conditions, early redemption, discretionary valuation by the Calculation Agent, delisting or other consequence in relation to Securities linked to such "benchmark". Any such consequence could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on any such Securities.

D. RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE MARKET GENERALLY

1. Market Factors

1.1 Valuation of the Underlying

Where the Securities are linked to an Underlying, an investment in the Securities may be associated with risks regarding the value of the constituents comprising the Underlying. The value of the Underlying or its constituents may vary over time and may increase or decrease by reference to a variety of factors which may include corporate actions, macroeconomic factors and speculation.

The relevant price or value of a Reference Item may be observed continuously during the life of the Securities or over certain periods or on one or more valuation dates. It should be noted, however, that the relevant time for valuation may be delayed in the case of a relevant Market Disruption under §5 of the General Conditions.

Accordingly, any positive development of a Reference Item may have no effect on the Securities if this is not a relevant valuation time. Where the Underlying comprises more than one Reference Item then the positive performance of one or more Reference Items may be outweighed by any negative performance of other Reference Item(s).

Investors should review the relevant price or value which is to be observed for each Reference Item. These may refer to published prices or values on an exchange or quotation system or other market measures. It should be noted that market data may not always be transparent or accurate and to a large extent may reflect investor sentiment at the relevant time. No assurance or representation is given that any such price or value will accurately reflect any intrinsic value of the relevant Underlying.

1.2 The Historical Performance of the Underlying or its Constituents is not an Indication of Future Performance

The historical value (if any) of the Underlying or its constituents does not indicate the future performance of the Underlying. Changes in the value of the constituents of the Underlying will affect the trading price of the Securities, but it is impossible to predict whether the value of the constituents of the Underlying will rise or fall.

1.3 The Basis of Calculating the Price or Value of the Underlying may Change Over Time

The basis of calculating the level of the Underlying (if any) or its constituents may be subject to change which may affect the Market Value of the *Securities* at any time and therefore the amounts payable or assets deliverable on settlement.

1.4 The Value of the Constituents or Reference Items of the Underlying will Affect its Value

The value of the Underlying (if any) on any day may reflect the value of its constituents or Reference Items on such day (depending on the Terms and Conditions of the Securities). Changes in the composition of the Underlying and factors (including those described in these Risk Factors) which either affect or may affect the value of the constituents or Reference Items will affect the value of the Securities. The historical value (if any) of the constituents or Reference Items does not indicate their future performance. Where the value of the constituents or Reference Items is determined in a different currency to the settlement currency of the Securities, investors may be exposed to rate of exchange risk.

1.5 Rate of Exchange / Currency Risks

Prospective investors should be aware that an investment in the Securities may involve rate of exchange risks. This is the case, for instance, if the Securities are based on one or more rates of exchange. For example, the settlement currency of the Securities may be different from the currency of an investor's home jurisdiction or the currency in which an investor wishes to receive funds.

An investment in the Securities may involve rate of exchange risks even if the movement of the Exchange Rate between the Reference Currency in which the Underlying is expressed or calculated

and the Settlement Currency of the Securities does not have any influence during the term of the Securities on the level of the amounts to be paid under the Securities or on the number of the assets to be delivered (so-called quanto securities). This is particularly the case where physical delivery is specified for the Securities and there is a time lag between the time the applicable amount of assets to be delivered upon the exercise of these Securities is determined and the time the assets are delivered.

Rates of exchange between currencies are determined by various factors of supply and demand in the international foreign exchange markets which are influenced by macroeconomic factors, speculation and central bank and government intervention or other political factors (including the imposition of currency controls and restrictions). Fluctuations in rates of exchange may affect the value of the Securities and any amounts payable in respect of the Securities. The aforementioned risk may be increased if the relevant currency is the currency of an emerging market jurisdiction.

1.6 Interest Rate Risk

An investment in the Securities may involve interest rate risk where there are fluctuations in the interest rates payable on deposits in the settlement currency of the Securities. This may influence the market value of the Securities.

Interest rates are determined by various factors of supply and demand in the international money markets which are influenced by macroeconomic factors, speculation and central bank and government intervention or other political factors. Fluctuations in short term and/or long term interest rates may affect the value of the Securities.

2. Market Value

The Market Value of the Securities during their term depends primarily on the value and the volatility of the constituents or Reference Items of the Underlying (if any) and in some cases the level of interest rates for instruments of comparable maturities or terms.

The level of market volatility is not purely a measurement of the actual volatility, but is largely determined by the prices for instruments which offer investors protection against such market volatility. The prices of these instruments are determined by forces of supply and demand in the options and derivative markets generally. These forces are, themselves, affected by factors such as actual market volatility, expected volatility, macroeconomic factors and speculation.

Interest rate changes generally may have the same impact on the value of the *Securities* as for fixed rate bonds: rising interest rates will under normal conditions result in a lower, falling interest rates in a higher, value of the Securities. Investors should be aware that the rise in the price of the Securities may be limited in an environment of falling interest rates if the Issuer has the right to redeem the Securities early for a fixed amount on certain predetermined dates.

The value of the Underlying on any day may reflect the value of its constituents or the Reference Items on such day. Changes in the composition of the Underlying or the Reference Items and factors (including those described above) which either affect or may affect the value of the constituents or the Reference Items, will affect the value of the Underlying and therefore may affect the return on an investment in the Securities.

Where Coupon Amounts are payable in respect of the Securities and the relevant Coupon is determined by reference to a floating rate, the market value of the Securities may decrease if the Coupon Amounts to be paid during the remaining term of the Securities are expected to decrease, whereas an increase in the expectations of the level of the Coupon Amounts to be paid in respect of the Securities may result in an increase in the market value of the Securities. The Coupon will fluctuate, among other things, as a result of any changes in the method of calculating the relevant interest rate, changes in prevailing interest rates, general economic conditions, conditions of financial markets and European and international political events.

3. Market price determining factors

The Securities may trade at a market value below their purchase price during the term. In particular, depending from the structure of the Securities, factors such as the rise or fall of the Underlying, the volatility of the Underlying, interest rate levels of the Settlement Currency, the difference between the interest rates of the Settlement Currency and Reference Currency, the rise or fall of dividends as well as a decrease in the remaining term of the Securities and additional relevant factors may have an impact on the value of the Securities, result in a decrease in the value of the product.

Further, individual factors of the above mentioned factors may each have a separate impact or have a cumulative or offsetting effect.

The prices quoted in the secondary market are based on the Issuer's pricing models, which take account mainly of the value of the Underlying and any derivative components and in addition of the following circumstances:

- the bid-offer spread (the spread between the bid and offer prices on the secondary market), which is set depending on the supply of, and demand for, the securities taking into account revenue considerations
- an originally levied subscription surcharge
- fees/costs: including administrative, transaction or comparable fees, which reduce the investors' entitlement at maturity of the securities
- a margin included in the initial Issue Price
- income: dividends paid or expected or other income from the Underlying or its constituents, if the Issuer is economically entitled to them based on the structure of the securities.

As far as pricing on the secondary market is concerned, certain costs are not, in many instances, deducted from prices on a consistent basis over the term of the securities (pro rata temporis), but are subtracted from the mathematical fair value in full already at an earlier point in time as determined by the Issuer in its own discretion. These include in particular any administrative fees, any margin contained in the initial Issue Price and any income contained in it (as described above). The latter is often subtracted not only when the respective Underlying, or its constituents, are traded "ex dividend", but at already an earlier point during the term based on expected dividends. The rate at which such costs are subtracted depends, *inter alia*, on the net flow back of securities to the Issuer. Consequently, the prices quoted in the secondary market can differ from the mathematical fair value of the securities, or the value to be expected economically on the basis of the factors mentioned, at the relevant time. In addition, the methodology used to determine and set the quoted prices may be changed at any time, e.g. the bid-offer spread may be increased or decreased.

4. Certain Hedging Considerations

Certain risks apply to purchasers that acquire the Securities for hedging purposes.

Prospective purchasers intending to purchase the Securities for the purpose of hedging their exposure to the Underlying or its constituents or the Reference Items should recognise the risks of utilising the Securities in such manner. No assurance is or can be given that the value of the Securities will correlate with movements in the value of the Underlying or any of its constituents or the Reference Items and the composition of the Underlying or any of its constituents or the Reference Items may change over time. Furthermore, it may not be possible to liquidate the Securities at a price which directly reflects the value of the Underlying or any of its constituents or the Reference Items. Therefore, there can be no assurance as to the level of any correlation between the return on an investment in the Securities and the return on a direct investment in the Underlying or its constituents or the Reference Items.

Hedging transactions in order to limit the risks associated with the Securities might not be successful.

5. The Securities may be Illiquid

It is not possible to predict if and to what extent a secondary market may develop in the Securities or at what price the Securities will trade in the secondary market or whether such market will be liquid or illiquid. If so specified in the applicable Final Terms, application has been made to list or quote or admit to trading the Securities on the stock exchange(s) or quotation system(s) specified. If the Securities are so listed or quoted or admitted to trading, no assurance is given that any such listing or quotation or admission to trading will be maintained. The fact that the Securities may be so listed or quoted or admitted to trading does not necessarily lead to greater liquidity than if they were not so listed or quoted or admitted to trading.

If the Securities are not listed or quoted or admitted to trading on any stock exchange or quotation system, pricing information for the Securities may be more difficult to obtain and the liquidity of the Securities may be adversely affected. The liquidity of the Securities may also be affected by restrictions on offers and sales of the Securities in some jurisdictions.

Even where an investor is able to realise its investment in the Securities this may be at a substantially lower value than its original investment in the Securities. Dependend from the structure of the Securities the realisation value at any time may be zero. In addition, a transaction fee may be payable in respect of a sale of the Securities.

The Issuer may, but is not obliged to, at any time purchase Securities at any price in the open market or by tender or private agreement. Any Securities so purchased may be held or resold or surrendered for cancellation. Since the Issuer may be the only market-maker in the Securities or there may be no market-maker, the secondary market may be limited. The more limited the secondary market is, the more difficult it may be for holders of the Securities to realise value for the Securities prior to settlement of the Securities. Therefore, whether or not a market-maker is appointed and the number and identity of the market-makers appointed may have a significant effect on the price of the Securities on the secondary market.

In case of admission of the Securities to the SeDeX market of the Borsa Italiana, the Issuer in its capacity as market-maker will undertake to display and reset within 5 days bid and offer prices that do not differ by more than the maximum spread (the so called "*bid/ask spread*") as indicated in the Instructions to the Listing Rules of Borsa Italiana S.p.A. for a quantity at least equal to the minimum trade size, all as determined by Borsa Italiana S.p.A.

6. Certain considerations relating to public offers of Securities

As described in the applicable Final Terms, Securities may be distributed by means of a public offer made during an offer period specified in the applicable Final Terms. During such offer period, the Issuer and/or any other person specified in the applicable Final Terms may reserve the right to cancel such offer and/or to scale back applications for such offer in the event of over-subscription. In such circumstances, an applicant investor may not be issued any Securities or may be issued a number of Securities which is less than the amount for which such applicant investor applied. Any payments made by an applicant investor for Securities that are not issued to such applicant investor for any such reason will be refunded. However, there will be a time lag in making any reimbursement, no interest will be payable in respect of any such amounts and the applicant investor may be subject to reinvestment risk.

Further, investors should note that, in certain circumstances, Securities may not be issued on the originally designated Issue Date, for example because either the Issuer and/or any other person specified in the applicable Final Terms has reserved the right to postpone such Issue Date or, following the publication of a supplement to the Base Prospectus the Issuer has decided to postpone such Issue Date to allow investors who had made applications to subscribe for Securities before the date of publication of such supplement to exercise their right to withdraw their acceptances. In the event that the Issue Date is so delayed, no interest shall accrue (if applicable) until the Issue Date of the Securities and no compensation shall be payable.

E. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

1. Transactions Involving the Underlying

The Issuer and its Affiliates may from time to time engage in transactions involving the Underlying for their proprietary accounts and for accounts under their management. Such transactions may have a positive or negative effect on the value of the Underlying and consequently upon the value of the Securities. As used in this section "Conflicts of Interest", references to the Underlying shall be deemed to include any of its constituents and Reference Items, if applicable.

2. Parties Acting in Other Capacities

The Issuer and its Affiliates may from time to time act in other capacities with regard to the Securities, such as calculation agent, agent and/or index sponsor. Such functions can allow the Issuer to calculate the value of the Underlying or (where the Underlying is a basket or an index) to determine the composition of the Underlying, which could raise conflicts of interest where securities or other assets issued by the Issuer itself or a group company can be chosen to be part of the Underlying, or where the Issuer maintains a business relationship with the issuer or obligor of such securities or assets. Any non-fulfilment of Deutsche Bank's obligations in one of these capacities will probably have an adverse effect on the Securities. In particular, delays may arise regarding the determinations, calculations and/or payments in relation to the Securities.

3. Issuing of Other Derivative Instruments in Respect of the Underlying

The Issuer and its Affiliates may issue other derivative instruments in respect of the Underlying (if any) and the introduction of such competing products into the marketplace may affect the value of the Securities.

4. Conducting of Hedging Transactions

The Issuer may use all or some of the proceeds received from the sale of the Securities to enter into hedging transactions. The Issuer believes that such hedging activity will under normal circumstances not have a material impact on the value of the Securities. However, it cannot be assured that the Issuer's hedging activities will not affect such value. The value of the Securities might in particular be affected by the liquidation of all or a portion of the hedging positions (a) at or about the time of the maturity or expiration of the Securities or (b), if the Securities provide for a knock-out, knock-in or a similar feature, at the time when the price or value of the Underlying approaches the relevant price or level for the knock-out, knock-in or other feature.

5. Issue Price

The issue price charged for the Securities can, in addition to subscription surcharges, management or other fees charged, comprise a premium on the original mathematical ("fair") value of the Securities which is not visible to investors. Such premium is determined by the Issuer in its discretion and can differ from premiums charged by other issuers for comparable securities. The differential amount between the issue price of the Securities and their original mathematical value comprises the expected issuer margin and any distribution fee. The expected issuer margin covers, among other things, the costs of structuring, market making and settlement of the Securities and also includes the expected profit for the Issuer.

6. **Re-offer Price and Inducements**

The Issuer may enter into distribution agreements with various financial institutions and other intermediaries as determined by the Issuer (collectively the "**Distributors**"). The Distributors will agree, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, to subscribe for the Securities at a price equivalent to or below the issue price. The Distributors have agreed to bear certain costs in connection with the issue of the Securities. A periodic fee may be payable to the Distributors in respect of all outstanding Securities up to and including the Settlement Date at a rate as determined between the Issuer and the relevant Distributor. Such rate may vary from time to time. The Distributors will agree to comply with the selling restrictions set out in this Base Prospectus as amended and supplemented by the additional selling restrictions set out in the relevant distribution agreements and Final Terms of the Securities. The Distributors act independently and not as agent for the Issuer.

In particular, the Issuer may pay placement and/or trailer fees as sales-related commissions to the relevant Distributor. Placement fees are one-off payments from the proceeds of the issue; alternatively, the *Issuer* can grant the relevant Distributor an appropriate discount on the issue price (without subscription surcharge). Payment of trailer fees is recurring and conditional upon the volume of securities issued. If Deutsche Bank AG is both the issuer and the dealer with respect to the sale of the *Securities*, Deutsche Bank AG's distributing division will be credited with the relevant amounts internally. Further information on re-offer price and/or inducements or fees are included in the relevant Final Terms.

The Issuer has the right to close the offering of the Securities prior to the end of the subscription period in case of adverse market conditions, as determined by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion, including but not limited to increased equity market volatility and increased rate of exchange volatility.

In addition, potential conflicts of interest may arise where Securities are offered to the public, as the Distributors will act pursuant to a mandate granted by the Issuer.

7. Market-Making for the Securities

The Issuer, or an agent on its behalf, may but (unless otherwise stated) is not required to act as market-maker for the Securities. In such market-making, the Issuer or its agent will, to a large extent, determine the price of the Securities itself. The prices quoted by such market-maker will usually not correspond to the prices which would have formed without such market-making and in a liquid market.

Circumstances taken into account by the market-maker when setting the quoted bid-offer prices in the secondary market notably include the Securities' fair value, which, among other things, depends on the value of the Underlying, as well as a certain bid-offer spread targeted by the market-maker. The market-maker will in addition regularly take into account a subscription surcharge originally levied on the Securities and any fees or costs which at maturity or settlement of the Securities are to be subtracted from any cash amount due (including management, transaction or other fees charged on the basis of the Terms and Conditions). Furthermore, the prices quoted in the secondary market will be influenced, for example, by a premium on the Securities' original value contained in their issue price (see under 5), and by dividends paid or expected for the Underlying or its constituents, or other proceeds which, due to the Securities' design, are economically attributable to the Issuer.

The bid-offer spread for the Securities will be set by the market-maker based on supply and demand for the Securities and certain revenue considerations.

Certain costs, like for example management fees charged on the basis of the Terms and Conditions, are in many cases not taken out of the quoted prices on a consistent basis over the term of the Securities (*pro rata temporis*), but are subtracted from the Securities' fair value completely at an earlier point in time, as determined by the market-maker in its discretion. The same applies for a

premium contained in the issue price of the Securities and for dividends and other proceeds of the Underlying which, due to the Securities' design, are economically attributable to the Issuer. These are often subtracted not only when the Underlying, or its constituents, are traded "ex dividend", but already at an earlier point during the term based on expected dividends for the entire term or a certain time span. The rate at which such costs are subtracted depends, *inter alia*, on the level of net flow back of Securities to the market-maker.

Accordingly, the prices quoted by the market-maker can substantially differ from the fair value of the Securities, or the value to be expected economically on the basis of the factors mentioned above, at the relevant time. In addition, the market-maker can at any time alter the methodology used to set the quoted prices, e. g. increase or decrease the bid-offer spread.

8. Market-Making for the Underlying

The Issuer may, in certain cases, act as a market-maker for the Underlying, which might in particular be the case when the Issuer has also issued the Underlying. By such market-making, the Issuer will, to a large extent, determine the price of the Underlying, and consequently influence the value of the Securities itself. The prices quoted by the Issuer in its market-making function will not always correspond to the prices which would have prevailed without such market-making and in a liquid market.

9. Acting as Underwriter or Otherwise for the issuer of Underlying

The Issuer and its Affiliates may also act as underwriter in connection with future offerings of the Underlying or may act as financial advisor to the issuer of an Underlying or the Reference Entity or Reference Entities or in a commercial banking capacity for the issuer of an Underlying. Such activities could present certain conflicts of interest and may affect the value of the Securities.

10. Obtaining of Non-public Information

The Issuer and/or its Affiliates may acquire non-public information with respect to the Underlying, and neither the Issuer nor any of its Affiliates undertakes to disclose any such information to any Securityholder. In addition, the Issuer or one or more of the Issuer's Affiliates may publish research reports with respect to the Underlying. Such activities could present conflicts of interest and may affect the value of the Securities.

III. GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE PROGRAMME

A. RESPONSIBLE PERSONS – IMPORTANT NOTICE

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft (the "**Responsible Person**" and together with its subsidiaries and affiliates "**Deutsche Bank**") with its registered office in Frankfurt is responsible for the information given in this Base Prospectus and confirms to its best knowledge, that this information is accurate and that no material circumstances are omitted.

If it is shown that information in this Base Prospectus and/or the Final Terms has been sourced from a third party, the Issuer confirms that this information has been accurately reproduced and that as far as the Issuer is aware and is able to derive from information published by the relevant third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. The Issuer makes no representation as to the correctness or completeness in respect of such information.

No dealer, salesman or other person is authorised to give any information or to make any representation other than those contained in the Base Prospectus in connection with the offering or sale of the Securities and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer. Neither the Base Prospectus nor any further information supplied in connection with the Securities is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and should not be considered as a recommendation by the Issuer that any recipient of this Base Prospectus or any further information supplied in connection of the Securities. Each investor contemplating purchasing Securities should make its own independent investigation of the risks involved in an investment in the Securities. Neither the Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Securities any other information supplied in connection with the Securities. Neither the Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Securities constitutes an offer by or on behalf of the Issuer or any other person to subscribe for or purchase any Securities, i.e. no subscription agreement or purchase agreement may be effectively concluded in connection with Securities by way of unilateral statement by or on behalf of the subscribing or purchasing party.

The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offering of the Securities in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. The Issuer does not represent that this Base Prospectus may be lawfully distributed, or that the Securities may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements in any jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption available thereunder, and does not assume any responsibility for facilitating any distribution or offering. Accordingly, the Securities may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and this Base Prospectus, any advertisement relating to the Securities and any other offering material may not be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations. Persons in possession of this Base Prospectus must inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions. Please refer to "General Selling and Transfer Restrictions" contained in section VII entitled "General Information on Taxation and Selling Restrictions".

This Base Prospectus contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are statements that are not historical facts, including statements about our beliefs and expectations. Any statement in this Base Prospectus that states intentions, beliefs, expectations or predictions (and the assumptions underlying them) is a forward-looking statement. These statements are based on plans, estimates, and projections as they are currently available to the management of Deutsche Bank. Forward-looking statements therefore speak only as of the date they are made, and the Issuer undertakes no obligation to update publicly any of them in light of new information or future events. Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties. A number of important factors

could therefore cause actual results of the Issuer or of the Securities to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement.

In this Base Prospectus, all references to "€", "Euro", or "EUR" are to the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended, all references to "CHF" are to Swiss Francs and all references to "U.S. dollars", "U.S.\$" and "\$" refer to United States dollars.

B. FORM OF DOCUMENT – PUBLICATION

1. Form of Document

This document constitutes a base prospectus (the "**Base Prospectus**") according to Art. 5 (4) of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended), as implemented by the relevant provisions of the EU member states, in connection with Regulation 809/2004 of the European Commission. As such, the Base Prospectus contains all information which was known at the time the Base Prospectus has been approved. Final terms ("**Final Terms**") will be prepared in respect of the Securities and will contain the information which can only be determined at the time of the individual issue of securities under the Base Prospectus.

In respect of Securities to be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange AG (the "**SIX Swiss Exchange**"), this Base Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms will constitute the listing prospectus pursuant to the listing rules of the SIX Swiss Exchange.

2. Publication

The Base Prospectus was published in English. In addition, the Base Prospectus and the Final Terms, or the Summary and possibly other parts of both documents, may also have been published in other languages. The Base Prospectus has been published according to Art. 14 (2) (c) of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended), as implemented by the relevant provisions of the EU member states, on the Issuer's website (www.xmarkets.db.com) and (i) in case of admission to trading of the Securities on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu), (ii) in case of admission to trading of the Securities on the Borsa Italiana, on the website of Borsa Italiana (www.borsaitaliana.it), (iii) in case of admission to trading of the Securities on the Euronext Lisbon regulated market or in case of a public offering of the Securities in Portugal, on the website of the Portuguese Securities Market Commission to trading of the Securities on a Spanish stock exchange or AIAF, on the website of the Spanish Securities Market Commission (*Comission Nacional del Mercado de Valores*) (www.cnmv.es).

In addition, the Base Prospectus and any documents, from which information have been incorporated by reference shall be available free of charge, as specified in the Final Terms, at the registered office of the Issuer, Deutsche Bank AG, Mainzer Landstrasse 11-17, 60329 Frankfurt am Main, its London Branch, at Winchester House, 1 Great Winchester Street, London EC2N 2DB, its Milan Branch, Via Filippo Turati 27, 20121 Milan, Italy, its Portuguese Branch, Rua Castilho, 20, 1250-069 Lisbon, Portugal and its Spanish Branch, Paseo De La Castellana, 18, 28046 Madrid, Spain and its Zurich Branch, Uraniastrasse 9, PF 3604, CH-8021 Zurich, Switzerland (where it can also be ordered by telephone +41 44 227 3781 or fax +41 44 227 3084).

Final Terms, together with any translations thereof, or of the Summary as completed and put in concrete terms by the relevant Final Terms, will be published, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) on the Issuer's website (www.xmarkets.db.com) or (ii) on the Issuer's website (www.investment-products.db.com). The Final Terms will additionally be published (i) in case of admission to trading of the Securities on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu), (ii) in case of admission to trading of the Securities on the Borsa Italiana, on the website of Borsa Italiana (www.borsaitaliana.it), (iii) in case of admission to trading of the Securities on the Euronext Lisbon regulated market or in case of a public offering of the Securities in Portugal, on the website of the Portuguese Securities Market Commission (*Comissão do Mercado de Valores Mobiliários)* (www.cmvm.pt) and (iv) in case of admission to trading of the Securities on a Spanish stock exchange or AIAF on the website of the Spanish Securities Market Commission (*Comission Nacional del Mercado de Valores*) (www.cmvv.es). These documents are also available at the registered office of the Issuer.

The consolidated annual financial statements of Deutsche Bank AG for the financial years ending 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 (audited) and the financial statements and the management report (HGB) of Deutsche Bank AG for the financial year ending 31 December 2016 (audited) and Deutsche Bank Group's interim report as of 31 March 2017 (unaudited) are available on the freely accessible website of the Issuer (https://www.db.com/ir/index_e.htm) under section "Reporting and Events", subsection "Annual Reports" and subsection "Quarterly Results".

C. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

This Base Prospectus published by the Issuer contains information on Securities which may be issued under the Programme. These are structured securities and may have a wide range of economic terms.

A base prospectus does not contain all the information necessary for an investment decision, since the design of the respective Security will be described in the applicable Final Terms, rather than on publication of the base prospectus. A base prospectus thus presents a summary of the design possibilities for the securities which may be issued under the respective base prospectus.

No investment decision should be made until the Final Terms for the relevant Securities have been read in detail.

Description	The Programme of Deutsche Bank AG (the " Programme ") is a programme for the issuance of certificates, warrants and notes (" Securities ").
Issuer:	Deutsche Bank AG
	The Issuer may issue the Securities through its head office in Frankfurt or through its branch office in London ("Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch"), Milan ("Deutsche Bank AG, Milan Branch), Portugal ("Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal em Portugal") or Spain ("Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal en España") as specified in the applicable Final Terms.
Distribution:	Securities may be distributed by way of private or public placement. The method of distribution will be stated in the applicable Final Terms.
Approval, admission to trading and listing:	Application has been made by the Issuer to the BaFin as competent authority under and in accordance with the Securities Prospectus Act which implements Directive 2003/71/EC of the European Parliament and the Council of 4th November 2003 into German law (the "Law") to approve this document as a base prospectus.
	The BaFin approved this Base Prospectus after completing a review of this Base Prospectus for completeness, including a review of the coherence and comprehensibility of the information provided.
	An admission to trading or inclusion in trading or listing of the Securities can be made on different stock exchanges or multilateral trading facilities or markets, including on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the Frankfurt Stock Exchange, the Stuttgart Stock Exchange, the Borsa Italiana, the SIX Swiss Exchange, the NYSE Euronext Lisbon regulated market and on one or all of the Spanish stock exchanges, the AIAF Fixed Income Securities Market ("AIAF") or any other Spanish regulated market. Securities which are neither admitted to trading nor included in trading nor listed on any market may also be issued.
	Application has also been made to the SIX Swiss Exchange to approve the Base Prospectus as an "issuance programme" for

the listing of derivatives in accordance with the listing rules of the SIX Swiss Exchange.

The applicable Final Terms will state whether or not the relevant Securities are to be admitted to trading and/or included in trading and/or listed and, if so, on which stock exchange(s) and/or multilateral trading facility(ies) and/or markets. In addition, the applicable Final Terms will state whether or not the Securities will be publicly offered in connection with their issue.

Nominal Amount of Securities: If the Securities are specified in the applicable Final Terms to be Notes, they will be issued in such nominal amount(s) as specified in the applicable Final Terms, save that the minimum nominal amount of each Note admitted to trading on a European Economic Area exchange or offered to the public in a Member State of the European Economic Area in circumstances which require the publication of a prospectus under the Prospectus Directive will be Euro 1,000 (or, if the Securities are denominated in a currency other than Euro, the then equivalent amount in such currency) or such other higher amount as may be allowed or required from time to time by the relevant central bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or regulations applicable to the relevant currency.

Terms and Conditions of the Securities: Final terms ("**Final Terms**") will be prepared in respect of the Securities which will complete and put in concrete terms the General Conditions of the Securities set out in the section entitled "General Conditions".

Form of Securities: Unless it is specified in the Final Terms that the Securities are Italian Securities, Portuguese Securities, Spanish Listed Securities, French Securities, Swedish Securities, Finnish Securities and Norwegian Securities (each as defined below), the Securities will be represented by a global security (the "Global Security").

In the case of a Global Security governed under German law, such Global Security will be in bearer form.

In the case of:

- Notes governed under English law, the Global Security will be in bearer form or registered form, as specified in the Product Terms;
- (ii) Notes governed under German law, the Global Security will be in bearer form; and
- (iii) all Certificates and Warrants (other than those Certificates and Warrants which are Italian Securities, Portuguese Securities or Spanish Securities), the Global Security will be in non-bearer form (save that if governed under German law and if deposited with a clearing agent in Germany, the Global Security will be in bearer form for the purposes of German law); and
- (iv) all Securities which are specified in the relevant Product Terms to be Spanish Securities (Global Security) (being Securities governed by Spanish law but not listed on a

Spanish regulated market or cleared through Iberclear), the Global Security will be in bearer form.

No definitive Securities will be issued.

In the case of Securities which are specified in the Product Terms to be Italian Securities and are governed under Italian or English or German law (the "**Italian Securities**"), the Securities will be dematerialised and centralised with Monte Titoli S.p.A., Piazza degli Affari, 6. I-20123 Milan, Italy, ("**Monte Titoli**"), pursuant to Italian Legislative Decree dated 24 February 1998, No. 58, as subsequently amended.

In the case of Securities which are specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Securities (being Securities that are governed by Portuguese law), the Securities will be issued in dematerialised form (forma escritural), represented by bookentries (registos em conta) only and centralised through Central de Valores Mobiliários ("CVM"), a Portuguese securities centralised system, managed by Interbolsa - Sociedade Gestora de Sistemas de Liquidação e de Sistemas Centralizados de Valores Mobiliários, S.A., Avenida da Boavista, n.º 3433, 4100-138 Porto, Portugal, ("Interbolsa"), in accordance with Portuguese law. In accordance with article 78 of the Portuguese Securities Code (Código dos Valores Mobiliários) any investor holding Portuguese Securities in the accounts of authorised financial intermediaries entitled to hold securities control accounts with Interbolsa on behalf of their customers ("Affiliate Members of Interbolsa", which includes any custodian banks appointed by Euroclear Bank SA/NV and/or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme for the purpose of holding accounts on behalf of Euroclear Bank SA/NV and/or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme) may at any moment request that such Affiliate Member of Interbolsa provides to such investor a certificate confirming such registered holding.

In the case of Securities which are specified in the Product Terms to be Spanish Listed Securities (being Securities that are governed by Spanish law and listed on any or all of the Spanish Stock Exchanges, AIAF or any other Spanish regulated market) the Securities will be issued in uncertificated, dematerialised book-entry form ("**Book-Entry Securities**"), Book-Entry Securities which are admitted to trading on any of the Spanish regulated markets will be issued as *anotaciones en cuenta* and registered with Sociedad de Gestión de los Sistemas de Registro, Compensación y Liquidación de Valores, S.A., Unipersonal, Palacio de la Bolsa Plaza de la Lealtad, 1 ES-28014 Madrid, Spain, ("**Iberclear**") as managing entity of the central registry. Such Book-Entry Securities will be constituted as such by virtue of their entry in the corresponding accounting book or Iberclear.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Swedish Securities, the Securities (also the "**Swedish Securities**") will be cleared through Euroclear Sweden AB (formerly known as VPC AB), PO Box 191, Klarabergviadukten 63, 101 23 Stockholm, Sweden and issued in registered form in accordance with the Swedish Financial Instruments Account Act (SFS 1998:1479;

Lag (1998:1479) om kontoföring av finansiella instrument). The Securities will be issued in uncertificated book-entry form. No global security and no definitive securities will be issued in respect of the Securities.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Finnish Securities, the Securities (also the "**Finnish Securities**") will be issued in the Finnish book-entry securities system maintained by the Finnish Central Securities Depository, Euroclear Finland Ltd. (formerly known as Suomen Arvopaperikeskus Oy), PO Box 1110, FI-00101 Helsinki, Finland. No global security and no definitive securities will be issued in respect of the Securities.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Norwegian Securities, the Securities (also the "**Norwegian Securities**") will be registered in, and cleared through the Norwegian Central Securities Depositary Verdipapirsentralen ASA, Postboks 4, 0051 Oslo, Norway, and issued in registered form in accordance with the Norwegian Securities Registry Act, 2002 (No: Lov om registrering av finansielle instrumenter av 5. juli 2002 nr 64). The Securities will be issued in dematerialized and uncertificated book-entry form, as more fully described in the Product Terms.

In the case of Securities which are specified in the Product Terms to be French Securities (the "French Securities"), the Securities will be in dematerialised bearer form (au porteur) inscribed in the books of Euroclear France S.A. (acting as central depositary), 115 rue Réaumur, 75081 Paris Cedex 02, France, which shall credit the accounts of the Account Holders. For the purpose of these Conditions, "Account Holder" means any authorised financial intermediary institution entitled to hold securities accounts, directly or indirectly, with Euroclear France, and includes Euroclear and the depositary bank for Clearstream. Title to the French Securities will be evidenced in accordance with Articles L.211-3 et seq. and R.211-1 et seq. of the French Monetary and Financial Code (Code monétaire et financier) by book entries (inscriptions en compte). No physical document of title (including certificats représentatifs pursuant to Article R.211-7 of the French Monetary and Financial Code (Code monétaire et financier)) will be issued in respect of the French Securities. At least one Paris business day before the issue date of French Securities, the Lettre comptable relating to such French Securities shall be deposited with Euroclear France as central depositary.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Uncertificated SIS Securities, the Securities (also of the "**Uncertificated SIS Securities**") are issued in uncertificated form as uncertificated securities (*Wertrechte*) in accordance with article 973c of the Swiss Code of Obligations. The form of Uncertificated SIS Securities will be governed by and applicable laws and regulations will be construed by Swiss law exclusively.

The uncertificated securities (*Wertrechte*) will be created by the Issuer by means of a registration in its register of uncertificated securities (*Wertrechtebuch*). Such uncertificated securities will

then be entered into the main register (*Hauptregister*) of SIX SIS AG, Baslerstrasse 100, CH-4601 Olten, Switzerland, or any other intermediary in Switzerland recognised for such purposes by SIX Swiss Exchange Ltd (SIX SIS AG or any such other intermediary, the "**Intermediary**"). Once the uncertificated securities are registered in the main register (*Hauptregister*) of the Intermediary and entered into the accounts of one or more participants of the Intermediary, the Uncertificated SIS Securities will constitute intermediated securities ("**Bucheffekten**") in accordance with the provisions of the Swiss Federal Intermediated Securities Act (*Bucheffektengesetz*).

Neither the Issuer nor the holders nor any third party shall at any time have the right to effect or demand the conversion of the uncertificated securities (*Wertrechte*) into, or the delivery of, a Global Security (*Globalurkunde*) or definitive Securities (*Wertpapiere*).

Status of the Securities: The Securities will constitute direct. unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer ranking pari passu among themselves and pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, subject, however, to statutory priorities conferred to certain unsecured and unsubordinated obligations in the event of resolution measures imposed on the Issuer or in the event of the dissolution, liquidation, insolvency, composition or other proceedings for the avoidance of insolvency of, or against, the Issuer.

Regulatory bail-in and On 15 May 2014, the European Parliament and the Council of the other resolution European Union adopted Directive 2014/59/EU establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions measures: and investment firms (commonly referred to as the "Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive" or the "**BRRD**") which was transposed into German law by the Recovery and Resolution Act (Sanierungs- und Abwicklungsgesetz, or the "SAG") with effect from 1 January 2015. For banks established in the eurozone, such as the Issuer, which are supervised within the framework of the Single Supervisory Mechanism (the "SSM"), Regulation (EU) No 806/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council (the "SRM Regulation") provides for a coherent application of the resolution rules across the SSM under responsibility of the European Single Resolution Board, with effect since 1 January 2016 (referred to as the "Single Resolution Mechanism" or "SRM"). Under the SRM, the Single Resolution Board is responsible for adopting resolution decisions in close cooperation with the European Central Bank, the European Commission, and national resolution authorities in the event that a significant bank directly supervised by the European Central Bank, such as the Issuer, is failing or likely to fail and certain other conditions are met. National resolution authorities in the European Union member states concerned would implement such resolution decisions adopted by the Single Resolution Board in accordance with the powers conferred on them under national law transposing the BRRD.

If the competent authority determines that the Issuer is failing or likely to fail and certain other conditions are met (as set forth in

the SRM Regulation, the SAG and other applicable rules and regulations), the competent resolution authority has the power to write down, including to write down to zero, claims for payment of the principal and any other claims under the Securities, interest or any other amount in respect of the Securities, to convert the Securities into ordinary shares or other instruments qualifying as common equity tier 1 capital (the write-down and conversion powers are hereinafter referred to as the "Bail-in tool"), or to apply any other resolution measure including (but not limited to) a transfer of the Securities to another entity, a variation of the terms and conditions of the Securities (including, but not limited to, the variation of maturity of the Securities) or a cancellation of the Securities. The Bail-in tool and each of these other resolution measures are hereinafter referred to as a "Resolution Measure". The competent resolution authority may apply Resolution Measures individually or in any combination.

The competent resolution authority will have to exercise the Bailin tool in a way that results in (i) common equity tier 1 capital instruments (such as ordinary shares of the Issuer) being written down first in proportion to the relevant losses, (ii) subsequently, the principal amount of other capital instruments (additional tier 1 capital instruments and tier 2 capital instruments) being written down on a permanent basis or converted into common equity tier 1 capital instruments in accordance with their order of priority and (iii) finally, the Issuer's unsecured and unsubordinated liabilities (unless exempted by the SRM Regulation, the BRRD or the SAG) – such as those under the unsubordinated Securities – being written down on a permanent basis or converted into common equity tier 1 capital instruments in accordance with a set order of priority.

Pursuant to Section 46f(5)-(7) of the German Banking Act **Ranking of the Securities:** (Kreditwesengesetz. "KWG"), certain unsecured and unsubordinated debt instruments of the Issuer (hereinafter referred to as "Non-Preferred Senior Obligations") rank below the Issuer's other senior liabilities (hereinafter referred to as "Preferred Senior Obligations") in insolvency or in the event of the imposition of resolution measures, such as a bail-in, affecting the Issuer. Non-Preferred Senior Obligations rank above the contractually subordinated liabilities, Issuer's including Subordinated Notes issued under the Programme. This order of priority would apply in a German insolvency proceeding or in the event of the imposition of resolution measures with respect to the Issuer commenced on or after 1 January 2017, with effect for any senior unsecured debt instruments out-standing at this time. Among the Preferred Senior Obligations are, as defined in Section 46f(7) KWG, senior unsecured debt instruments whose terms provide that (i) the amount of the repayment depends on the occurrence or non-occurrence of an event which is uncertain at the point in time when the senior unsecured debt instruments are issued, or settlement is effected in a way other than by monetary payment, or (ii) the amount of the interest payments depends on the occurrence or non-occurrence of an event which is uncertain at the point in time when the senior unsecured debt instruments are issued unless the amount of the interest

payments solely depends on a fixed or floating reference interest rate, and settlement is effected by monetary payment. Unsecured and unsubordinated Securities issued under this Programme that do not meet the terms described in (i) or (ii) above, including Fixed Rate Notes, and Floating Rate Notes linked to LIBOR or EURIBOR, are, therefore, expected to constitute Non-Preferred Senior Obligations that would bear losses in a German insolvency proceeding or in the event of the imposition of resolution measures before Preferred Senior Obligations. In a German insolvency proceeding or in the event of the imposition of resolution measures with respect to the Issuer, the competent resolution authority or court would determine whether unsecured and unsubordinated Securities issued under the Programme qualify as Preferred Senior Obligations or as Non-Preferred Senior Obligations.

The German Federal Agency for Financial Market Stabilisation (FMSA), the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin) and the German Central Bank (Deutsche Bundesbank) published a joint interpretative guide on the classification of certain liabilities under Section 46f(5)-(7) KWG.

As of the date of this Base Prospectus, the following ratings were assigned to Deutsche Bank for its long-term preferred senior debt (Preferred Senior Obligations): A3 (Stable) by Moody's and A- by S&P. For information on the definitions employed by the Rating Agencies, see the information in the "Risk Factors" section of the Registration Document in the English language of Deutsche Bank dated 10 April 2017, which is incorporated by reference in this Prospectus in part "III. G. Information incorporated by reference".

- **Issue Price:** Securities may be issued at an issue price which is at par or equal to the mathematical ("fair") value of the Securities or at a discount to, or a premium over, par or the mathematical value of the Securities.
- Taxation:The Issuer shall not be liable for or otherwise obliged to pay, and
the relevant Securityholder shall be liable for and/or pay, any tax,
duty, charge, withholding or other payment whatsoever which
may arise as a result of, or in connection with, the ownership, any
transfer or other relevant events in respect of the Securities held
by such Securityholder.

Portuguese Withholding Tax Exemption for Notes Tax Exemption for Notes The general exemption from Portuguese Withholding Tax applicable to debt instruments (which is chargeable at a rate of 25 per cent. in case of legal persons and at a rate of 28 per cent. In case of individuals) is only available to non-resident holders of Notes except when they are domiciled in blacklisted jurisdictions with no double taxation treaty in force or tax information exchange agreement in force with Portugal.

> To benefit from this exemption, holders residing in jurisdictions to which such general exemption applies must comply from time to time with the applicable certification procedures described in Decree-Law 193/2005 of 13 November 2005 as amended (please refer to Portuguese Taxation section below). The

exemption available under this Decree-Law 193/2005 of 13 November 2005 does not apply to Certificates.

Spanish Withholding Tax Exemption for Spanish Securities:

The exemption from Spanish Withholding Tax applicable to Spanish Securities (which is generally chargeable at a rate of 19 per cent.) is only available to: (A) holders of Notes and Certificates who are Corporate Income Taxpayers or Non-Residents' Income Taxpayers acting through a Spanish permanent establishment and holding instruments that are either: (i) admitted to trading on an organised stock exchange in an OECD state provided that the Spanish Securities are placed in an OECD State other than Spain (as described in the Taxation Section) or (ii) represented in book-entry form and admitted to trading on a Spanish secondary stock exchange; (B) holders of Notes and Certificates who are Personal Income Taxpayers, in respect of any income arising from the transfer or repayment of the Notes and Certificates, where the relevant Notes and Certificates: (i) are represented in book-entry form, (ii) are admitted to trading on a Spanish secondary stock exchange and explicit vield (although, (iii) generate under certain circumstances, this withholding tax exemption may not apply); (C) holders of Notes and Certificates who are Non-Spanish tax resident investors, acting without a permanent establishment in Spain, who are either: (i) resident for tax purposes in a Member State of the European Union (other than Spain and excluding any country or territory regarded as a tax haven pursuant to Royal Decree 1080/1991, of 5 July) and provided further that said resident complies with certain formalities, or (ii) resident in a jurisdiction which has ratified a Treaty for the avoidance of Double Taxation with Spain containing an exchange of information clause, in respect of the income arising from any transfer of the Notes and Certificates through a Spanish official secondary stock exchange.

D. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SECURITIES

The Securities described below may be issued under the Programme:

Certificates

Discount Certificates

Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery)

With the Discount Certificate, investors participate in the performance of the Underlying during the term. However, the initial Issue Price or current selling price of the Certificate is below the current price or level of the Underlying or the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount (discount), in each case taking into account the Multiplier.

On the Settlement Date investors receive, depending on the Final Reference Level, either a Cash Amount or the Underlying based on the Multiplier or, as the case may be, the assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount.

- a) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Cap, the Cash Amount is equal to the Maximum Amount.
- b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) less than or (ii) equal to or less than the Cap, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or, as the case may be, assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount. Fractional amounts are not delivered, but are paid out in the form of a corresponding cash payment in the Settlement Currency for each Discount Certificate.

In return for the discount, investors only participate in a rise in the Underlying up to the Cap.

Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement)

With this Discount Certificate, investors participate in the performance of the Underlying during the term. However, the initial issue price or current selling price of the Certificate is below the current price or level of the Underlying (discount) taking into account the Multiplier.

On the Settlement Date investors receive a Cash Amount which is calculated on the basis of the Final Reference Level.

- a) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Cap, the Cash Amount is equal to the Maximum Amount.
- b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Cap, investors receive a Cash Amount in the amount of the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier.

In return for the discount, investors only participate in a rise in the Underlying up to the Cap.

Bonus Certificates

Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate

With this Bonus Certificate, investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying.

a) If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the term either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Final Reference Level taking account of the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount.

b) If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the term either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but instead equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying).

In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).

Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap

With this Bonus Certificate with Cap, investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying.

- a) If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the term either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount and a maximum of the Maximum Amount.
- b) If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the term either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but instead equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier and to a maximum of the Maximum Amount (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying).

In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).

Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate

With this BonusPro Certificate, investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying.

- a) If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Final Reference Level taking account of the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount.
- b) If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or fallen below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but instead equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying).

In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).

Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap

With this BonusPro Certificate with Cap, investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying.

- a) If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount and a maximum of the Maximum Amount.
- b) If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but

instead equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier and to a maximum of the Maximum Amount (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying).

In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).

Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate

With this Easy Bonus Certificate, investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying.

- a) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount will be equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount.
- b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but instead equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier (1:1 participation in the negative performance of the Underlying).

In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).

Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap

With this Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap, investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying.

- a) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount will be equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount and a maximum of the Maximum Amount.
- b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but instead equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier (1:1 participation in the negative performance of the Underlying).

In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).

Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate

With this Reverse Bonus Certificate, investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying. Another special feature of the Certificate is that investors participate in the **inverse** performance of the Underlying.

- a) If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Reverse Level minus the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount.
- b) If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but is instead always the Reverse Level minus the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying), but not less than zero.

In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).

Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap

With this Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap, investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying. Another special feature of the Certificate is that investors participate in the **inverse** performance of the Underlying.

- a) If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Reverse Level minus the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, but a minimum of the Bonus Amount and a maximum of the Maximum Amount.
- b) If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is no longer equal to a minimum of the Bonus Amount, but is instead always the Reverse Level minus the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, but a maximum of the Maximum Amount (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying) and a minimum of zero.

In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).

Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap

With this Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap, investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the performance of the Underlying. Another special feature of the Certificate is that investors participate in the inverse performance of the Underlying.

- a) If the price or level of the Underlying is at no point during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the Bonus Amount.
- b) If the price or level of the Underlying is on at least one occasion during the Observation Period either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is the Reverse Level minus the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, but a maximum of the Bonus Amount (1:1 participation in the performance of the Underlying) and a minimum of zero.

In return for the possibility to receive payment of the Bonus Amount investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).

Outperformance Certificates

Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate

With this Outperformance Certificate, investors receive a Cash Amount on the Settlement Date, the amount of which depends on the Final Reference Level. They participate more than proportionately in the positive performance of the Underlying above the Strike, but 1:1 in the negative performance of the Underlying below the Strike.

- a) If the Final Reference Level is above the Strike, investors participate more than proportionately at maturity due to the Participation Factor, and to an unlimited extent in the positive performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.
- b) If the Final Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike, investors receive a Cash Amount in the amount of the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier. They thus participate in the negative performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.

Investors waive their claims deriving from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends) in return for the increased opportunity to participate in the performance of the Underlying.

Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate

With this Sprint Certificate investors participate in the positive performance of the Underlying within a certain range (between the Strike and the Cap) at maturity; the multiple and the Participation Factor are both specified in the applicable Final Terms.

- a) If the Final Reference Level is above the Strike but below the Cap, investors receive the Strike, taking into account the Multiplier, plus the multiple of the amount by which the Final Reference Level is above the Strike.
- b) If the Final Reference Level is equal to or above the Cap, investors receive the Maximum Amount.
- c) If the Final Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike, investors receive a Cash Amount equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, and thus participate 1:1 in the negative performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.

Investors limit their possible return to the Maximum Amount in return for the possibility of participating in a multiple of the positive performance of the Underlying.

<u>Warrants</u>

Classic Warrants

Product No. 14: Call Warrant and Discount Call Warrant

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this Call Warrant.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying is equal to or below the Strike. On the Settlement Date, investors receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level exceeds the Strike. For a Discount Call Warrant, the Cash Amount is limited to the Maximum Amount. If the Final Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

Product No. 15: Put Warrant and Discount Put Warrant

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this Put Warrant.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying is equal to or above the Strike. On the Settlement Date, investors receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level falls below the Strike. For a Discount Put Warrant, the Cash Amount is limited to the Maximum Amount. If the Final Reference Level is equal to or above the Strike, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

WAVE (Knock Out) Warrants

Product No. 16: WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this WAVE Call Warrant.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event). On the Settlement Date, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level exceeds the Strike.

If the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the term of the WAVE Call Warrant will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

Product No. 17: WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this WAVE Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event). On the Settlement Date, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level exceeds the Strike.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the term of the WAVE Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

Product No. 18: WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this WAVE Put Warrant.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event). On the Settlement Date, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level falls below the Strike.

If the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the term of the WAVE Put Warrant will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

Product No. 19: WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this WAVE Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event). On the Settlement Date, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level falls below the Strike.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the term of the WAVE Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Warrants

Product No. 20: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event).

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the term of the WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is above the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates plus a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based only on the respective percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

The Barrier is ultimately equivalent to the Strike applicable on such day.

Product No. 21: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (Barrier Event).

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the term of the WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is above the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates plus a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based only on the respective percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

The Barrier is ultimately equivalent to the Strike applicable on such day.

Product No. 22: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event).

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the term of the WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is lower than the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates less a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based only on the respective percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

The Barrier is ultimately equivalent to the Strike applicable on such day.

Product No. 23: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (Barrier Event).

If at any time during the Observation Period the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the term of the WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is lower than the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates less a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based only on the respective percentage only determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

The Barrier is ultimately equivalent to the Strike applicable on such day.

WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Warrants

Product No. 24: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this WAVE XXL Call Warrant with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of the WAVE XXL Call Warrant immediately expiring (Barrier Event) if the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier. In such case, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Stop Loss Reference Level specified by the Issuer exceeds the Strike. If, at the relevant time, the Underlying is equal to or below the Strike – which may be the case particularly with strong

movement of the Underlying at the time of the Barrier Event – investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is above the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates plus a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based on the respective percentage only determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

Finally, the initially applicable Barrier is also adjusted on each following Adjustment Date so that it is equal in each case to the sum of the relevant Strike and the Barrier Adjustment Amount. The Barrier Adjustment Amount on the other hand is the product of the applicable Strike and the Barrier Adjustment Factor, where the Issuer may, in its reasonable discretion, reset the latter on any Adjustment Date, with respect to its level on the Issue Date, in order to prevent the Security from expiring worthless and without any payment after occurrence of a Barrier Event with the same probability as at its issue (taking into account in particular the volatility and liquidity of the Underlying).

Product No. 25: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this WAVE XXL Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the negative development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of the WAVE XXL Call Warrant with additional barrier determination X-DAX[®] Index immediately expiring (Barrier Event) if the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier. In such case, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Stop Loss Reference Level specified by the Issuer exceeds the Strike. If, at the relevant time, the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is equal to or below the Strike – which may be the case particularly with strong movement of the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index at the time of the Barrier Event – investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is above the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates plus a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based on the respective percentage only determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

Finally, the initially applicable Barrier is also adjusted on each following Adjustment Date so that it is equal in each case to the sum of the relevant Strike and the Barrier Adjustment Amount. The Barrier Adjustment Amount on the other hand is the product of the applicable Strike and the Barrier Adjustment Factor, where the Issuer may, in its reasonable discretion, reset the latter on any Adjustment Date, with respect to its level on the Issue Date, in order to prevent the Security from expiring worthless and without any payment after occurrence of a Barrier Event with the same probability as at its issue (taking into account the volatility and liquidity of the Underlying).

Product No. 26: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this WAVE XXL Put Warrant with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of the WAVE XXL Put Warrant immediately expiring (Barrier Event) if the Underlying at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier. In such case, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Stop Loss Reference Level specified by the Issuer falls below the Strike. If, at the relevant time, the Underlying is equal to or above the Strike – which may be the case particularly with strong movement of the Underlying at the time of the Barrier Event – investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is lower than the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates less a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based on the respective percentage only determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's Issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

Finally, the initially applicable Barrier is also adjusted on each following Adjustment Date so that it is equal in each case to the relevant Strike less the Barrier Adjustment Amount. The Barrier Adjustment Amount on the other hand is the product of the applicable Strike and the Barrier Adjustment Factor, where the Issuer may, in its reasonable discretion, reset the latter on any Adjustment Date, with respect to its level on the Issue Date, in order to prevent the Security from expiring worthless and without any payment after occurrence of a Barrier Event with the same probability as at its issue (taking into account the volatility and liquidity of the Underlying).

Product No. 27: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this WAVE XXL Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index with no fixed settlement date.

Conversely, investors also participate with leverage in the positive development of the Underlying and additionally bear the risk of the WAVE XXL Put Warrant with additional barrier determination X-DAX[®] Index immediately expiring (Barrier Event) if the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index at any time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier. In such case, investors will receive as the Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Stop Loss Reference Level specified by the Issuer falls below the Strike. If, at the relevant time, the Underlying or the X-DAX[®] Index is equal to or above the Strike – which may be the case particularly with strong movement of the Underlying at the time of the Barrier Event – investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If no Barrier Event occurs, investors will receive on the Settlement Date, after exercising the Security on an Exercise Date or termination by the Issuer effective on a Redemption Date, as Cash Amount the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is lower than the Strike.

Due to lack of a fixed maturity, the product is designed in a way that the initially applicable Strike is adjusted daily to reflect a Financing Component incurred by the Issuer based on the respective market rates less a percentage determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security. If the Underlying is a future, the adjustment will be made by the Issuer based on the respective percentage only determined by the Issuer at the issuance of the Security, irrespective of market rates.

In addition, if the Underlying is a share or a price index, upon payment of a cash dividend by the Underlying's issuer or, as the case may be, its Index-Sponsor, the Dividend Adjustment Date is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be reduced by the respective Dividend Factor, which takes into account the dividends paid less an adjustment amount for taxes and similar charges arising thereon.

If the Underlying is a future, any day on which a Replacement Event occurs is an additional Adjustment Date, and the Strike will be adjusted by the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying to be replaced and the determined Successor Future, if Rolling Costs are taken into account, less the Rolling Costs.

Finally, the initially applicable Barrier is also adjusted on each following Adjustment Date so that it is equal in each case to the relevant Strike less the Barrier Adjustment Amount. The Barrier Adjustment Amount on the other hand is the product of the applicable Strike and the Barrier Adjustment Factor, where the Issuer may, in its reasonable discretion, reset the latter on any Adjustment Date, with respect to its level on the Issue Date, in order to prevent the Security from expiring worthless and without any payment after occurrence of a Barrier Event with the same probability as at its issue (taking into account the volatility and liquidity of the Underlying).

One Touch Warrants

Product No. 28: One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant

With this One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant, investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if no Knock In Event occurs.

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (such event referred to as a "Knock In Event"), the One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant will immediately expire and investors will receive the predetermined One Touch Amount.

If at no point during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

Product No. 29: One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant

With this One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant, investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if no Knock In Event occurs.

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (such event referred to as a "Knock In Event"), the One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant will immediately expire and investors will receive the predetermined One Touch Amount.

If at no point during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

Product No. 30: One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant

With this One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant, investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if no Knock In Event occurs.

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Lower Barrier or, as specified in the Final Terms, is either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Upper Barrier (such event referred to as a "Knock In Event"), the One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant will immediately expire and investors will receive the predetermined One Touch Amount.

If at no point during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Lower Barrier or, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Upper Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

No Touch Warrants

Product No. 31: No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant

With this No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant, investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Barrier Event occurs.

If at no point during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the predetermined No Touch Amount.

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (such event referred to as a "Barrier Event"), the No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant will immediately expire and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

Product No. 32: No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant

With this No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant, investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Barrier Event occurs.

If at no point during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the predetermined No Touch Amount.

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (such event referred to as a "Barrier Event"), the No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant will immediately expire and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

Product No. 33: Inline Warrant

With this Inline Warrant, investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Barrier Event occurs.

If at no point during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the predetermined Lower Barrier or, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the predetermined Upper Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the predetermined No Touch Amount.

If at any time during the Observation Period, the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the predetermined Lower Barrier or, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the predetermined Upper Barrier (such event referred to as a "Barrier Event"), the Inline Warrant will immediately expire and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

Product No. 34: Duo Inline Warrant

With this Duo Inline Warrant, investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the two Underlyings during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if the Barrier Event in respect of at least one of the two Underlyings occurs.

If at no point during the Observation Period the respective Barrier Determination Amount of both Underlyings is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the predetermined Lower Barrier for the respective Underlying or, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the predetermined Upper Barrier for the respective Underlying, the Cash Amount is equal to the predetermined No Touch Amount.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount of at least one of the two Underlyings is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the predetermined Lower Barrier for the respective Underlying or, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the predetermined Upper Barrier for the respective Underlying (such event a "Barrier Event"), the Duo Inline Warrant will immediately expire and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

Digital Warrants

Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant

With this Digital Call Warrant, investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the predetermined Digital Amount.

If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

Product No. 36: Digital Put Warrant

With this Digital Put Warrant, investors receive a predetermined Cash Amount depending on the development of the Underlying during the term.

Conversely, they bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, the Cash Amount is equal to the predetermined Digital Amount.

If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

Other Warrants

Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the negative development of the Underlying with this Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant.

Conversely, investors bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier (such event referred to as a "Barrier Event") or the Final Reference Level is equal to or above the Strike.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier ("Barrier Event"), the term of the Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If at no time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, but the Final Reference Level is equal to or above the Strike, investors likewise will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If, on the other hand, at no time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier and the Final Reference Level is below the Strike, the Cash Amount is equal to the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level is below the Strike.

Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant

Investors can participate more than proportionately (with leverage) in the positive development of the Underlying with this Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant.

Conversely, investors bear the risk of receiving as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment if at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier (such event referred to as a "Barrier Event") or the Final Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike.

If at any time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier ("Barrier Event"), the term of the Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant will end immediately and investors will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If at no time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier, but the Final Reference Level is equal to or below the Strike, investors likewise will receive as specified in the Final Terms either (i) only the Minimum Amount or (ii) no payment.

If, on the other hand, at no time during the Observation Period the Barrier Determination Amount is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier and the Final Reference Level is above the Strike, the Cash Amount is equal to the product of the Multiplier and the amount by which the Final Reference Level exceeds the Strike.

<u>Notes</u>

Reverse Convertible Notes

Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)

The Reverse Convertible Note is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from two key features:

1. Coupon payments

The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.

- 2. Redemption at maturity
 - a) On the Settlement Date investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Strike.
 - b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, investors receive the proportion of the Underlying based on the Multiplier or, as the case may be, assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount and therefore participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike. Fractional amounts are not delivered, but are paid out in the form of a corresponding cash payment in the Settlement Currency for each Reverse Convertible Note.

In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.

Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)

The Reverse Convertible Note is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from two key features:

1. Coupon payments

The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.

- 2. Redemption at maturity
 - a) On the Settlement Date investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Strike.

b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, investors receive a Cash Amount equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, and participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.

In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.

Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)

The Barrier Reverse Convertible Note is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from the following key features:

1. Coupon payments

The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.

2. Early redemption

If the applicable Final Terms specify early redemption, a check will be performed for this Note on each Observation Date, as to whether the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Redemption Threshold. If it is, the Note will be redeemed early at the Nominal Amount.

- 3. Redemption at maturity, subject to early redemption if this is specified in the applicable Final Terms
 - a) On the Settlement Date, investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Strike or if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, but the Underlying at no time during the term is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier.
 - b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike and the Underlying on at least one occasion during the term is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or, as the case may be, assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount and therefore participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike. Fractional amounts are not delivered, but are paid out in the form of a corresponding cash payment in the Settlement Currency for each Barrier Reverse Convertible Note.

In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.

Product No. 42: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)

The Barrier Reverse Convertible Note is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from the following key features:

1. Coupon payments

The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate

and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.

2. Early redemption

If the applicable Final Terms specify early redemption, a check will be performed for this Note on each Observation Date, as to whether the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Redemption Threshold. If it is, the Note will be redeemed early at the Nominal Amount.

- 3. Redemption at maturity, subject to early redemption if this is specified in the applicable Final Terms
 - a) On the Settlement Date, investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Strike or if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, but the Underlying at no time during the term is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier.
 - b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike and the Underlying on at least one occasion during the term is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive a Cash Amount equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, and thus participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.

In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.

Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)

The Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from the following key features:

1. Coupon payments

The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.

2. Early redemption

If the applicable Final Terms specify early redemption, a check will be performed for this Note on each Observation Date, as to whether the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Redemption Threshold. If it is, the Note will be redeemed early at the Nominal Amount.

3. Redemption at maturity, subject to early redemption if this is specified in the applicable Final Terms

- a) On the Settlement Date, investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Strike or if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, but the Underlying at no time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier.
- b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike and the Underlying on at least one occasion during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or, as the case may be, assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount and therefore participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike. Fractional amounts are not delivered, but are paid out in the form of a corresponding cash payment in the Settlement Currency for each Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note.

In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.

Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)

The Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from the following key features:

1. Coupon payments

The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.

2. Early redemption

If the applicable Final Terms specify early redemption, a check will be performed for this Note on each Observation Date, as to whether the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Redemption Threshold. If it is, the Note will be redeemed early at the Nominal Amount.

- 3. Redemption at maturity, subject to early redemption if this is specified in the applicable Final Terms
 - a) On the Settlement Date, investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Strike or if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike, but the Underlying at no time during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier.
 - b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Strike and the Underlying on at least one occasion during the Observation Period is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive a Cash Amount equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, and thus participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.

In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.

Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)

The Easy Reverse Convertible Note is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from the following key features:

1. Coupon payments

The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.

2. Early redemption

If the applicable Final Terms specify early redemption, a check will be performed for this Note on each Observation Date, as to whether the price or level of the Underlying is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Redemption Threshold. If it is, the Note will be redeemed early at the Nominal Amount.

- 3. Redemption at maturity, subject to early redemption if this is specified in the applicable Final Terms
 - a) On the Settlement Date investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier.
 - b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive the Underlying based on the Multiplier or, as the case may be, assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount and therefore participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike. Fractional amounts are not delivered, but are paid out in the form of a corresponding cash payment in the Settlement Currency for each Easy Reverse Convertible Note.

In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.

Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)

The Easy Reverse Convertible Note is linked to the performance of the Underlying. The way this Note works results from the following key features:

1. Coupon payments

The Note is, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, either fixed-rate and pays a fixed Coupon on the Coupon Payment Date or on the Coupon Payment Dates or it is floating-rate and investors receive variable Coupon Payments on the respective Coupon Payment Date or on the respective Coupon Payment Dates during the term. The amount of these variable Coupon Payments depends on the development of a Reference Rate, plus or, as the case may be, minus a Margin equal to a predetermined percentage, if specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Coupon will, however, be a minimum of the Minimum Coupon.

2. Early redemption

If the applicable Final Terms specify early redemption, a check will be performed for this Note on each Observation Date, as to whether the price or level of the Underlying is either, as

specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Redemption Threshold. If it is, the Note will be redeemed early at the Nominal Amount.

- 3. Redemption at maturity, subject to early redemption if this is specified in the applicable Final Terms
 - a) On the Settlement Date investors receive the Nominal Amount if the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) above or (ii) equal to or above the Barrier.
 - b) If the Final Reference Level is either, as specified in the Final Terms, (i) below or (ii) equal to or below the Barrier, investors receive a Cash Amount equal to the Final Reference Level taking into account the Multiplier, and participate 1:1 in the performance of the Underlying based on the Strike.

In return for the Coupon Payment, investors risk a possible loss of capital.

E. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE UNDERLYING

The Securities may relate to shares or equity securities, indices, other securities, commodities, rates of exchange, futures contracts, fund units and/or interest rates as well as a basket consisting of shares or equity securities, indices, other securities, commodities, rates of exchange, futures contracts, fund units and or interest rates.

If the Underlying is an index and this index is composed by the Issuer or a legal entity belonging to Deutsche Bank Group and, at the time of approval, this Base Prospectus does not already contain the description of the index, such description will be included in this Base Prospectus exclusively by a supplement in accordance with § 16 German Securities Prospectus Act (WpPG) which implements Art. 16 of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC as amended) in connection with Regulation 809/2004 of the European Commission.

If the Underlying is an index, which is provided by a legal entity or a natural person acting in association with, or on behalf of, the Issuer, the governing rules (including the methodology of the index for the selection and the re-balancing of the components of the index and the description of market disruption events and adjustment rules) will be based on predetermined and objective criteria. In addition, the complete set of rules of the index and information on the performance of the index will be freely accessible on the website specified in the relevant Final Terms.

If the Underlying is an index, which is neither composed by the Issuer or a legal entity belonging to Deutsche Bank Group nor provided by a legal entity or a natural person acting in association with, or on behalf of, the Issuer, the applicable Final Terms will specify where information about the index can be found.

The applicable Final Terms will stipulate the relevant Underlying and specify where information about the relevant Underlying can be found, particularly about its past and future performance and its volatility, and whether the Issuer intends to provide further information about the Underlying.

F. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE OFFERING OF THE SECURITIES

1. Listing and Trading

Application may be made for admission of the Securities to trading or inclusion in trading on one or more stock exchanges or multilateral trading facilities or markets, including but not limited to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the Frankfurt Stock Exchange, the Stuttgart Stock Exchange, the Borsa Italiana, the Spanish Stock Exchange or the AIAF Fixed Income Securities Market, the NYSE Euronext Libon, the SIX Swiss Exchange and SIX Structured Products. Securities which are neither admitted to trading nor quoted on any market may also be issued.

The applicable Final Terms will state whether or not the relevant Securities are to be admitted to trading or included in trading and/or listed and, if so, on which stock exchange(s) and/or multilateral trading facility(ies) and/or markets. In addition, the applicable Final Terms will state whether or not the Securities will be publicly offered in connection with their issue.

In the case of admission to trading or inclusion in trading and/or a listing, the applicable Final Terms specify the minimum trading size, if applicable, and contain an estimate of the total costs for admission to trading or inclusion in trading.

2. Offering of Securities

The applicable Final Terms will state the details regarding the terms and conditions of the offer of the Securities.

In particular, the following information, if applicable, will be presented in the applicable Final Terms to the extent applicable.

- Total amount of the issue/offer
- Minimum or maximum subscription amount for investors
- Description of the Subscription Period or Offering Period and the early closing of the Subscription Period or Offering Period
- Details of the cancellation of the issuance of the Securities
- Conditions to which the offer is subject
- Description of the application process
- Description of the possibility to reduce subscriptions and manner for refunding excess amounts paid by applicants
- Details of the method and time limits for paying up and delivering the Securities
- Manner in and date on which results of the offer are to be made public
- Procedure for exercise of any right of pre-emption, negotiability of subscription rights and treatment of subscription rights not exercised
- Process for notification to applicants of the amount allotted and the indication whether dealing may begin before notification is made
- Amount of any expenses and taxes specifically charged to the subscriber or purchaser
- Name(s) and address(es), to the extent known to the Issuer, of the placement agents in the various countries where the offer takes place

The applicable Final Terms will state whether the Securities will be offered to the category of qualified investors within the meaning of the Prospectus Directive or the category of nonqualified investors or both categories and whether the offering of individual tranches is restricted to certain countries.

3. Fees

The applicable Final Terms will state, if applicable, the type and amount of fees which the Issuer will pay or charge.

4. Security Ratings

Securities to be issued under the programme may or may not be rated. A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell, or hold securities, and may be subject to suspension, downgrading, or withdrawal by the rating agency. The applicable Final Terms will specify whether the Securities have a rating and if they do, what rating they have.

5. Interests of Natural and Legal Persons involved in the Issue

The Final Terms may contain, if relevant, further information which is material to the offering about interests of natural and legal persons involved in the issue.

6. Reasons for the Offer, Use of Proceeds, Estimated Net Proceeds and Total Expenses

The reasons for the offer are making profit and/or hedging certain risks. The net proceeds from the issue of any Securities hereunder will be applied by the Issuer for its general corporate purposes. A substantial portion of the proceeds from the issue of certain Securities may be use to hedge market risk with respect to such Securities.

If reasons for the offer differ from making profit and/or hedging certain risks, these reasons will be specified in the Final Terms. If the net proceeds of an issue by the Issuer will not be used for its general corporate purposes or if the proceeds are to be used for several purposes, the applicable Final Terms will contain further information, including the estimated net proceeds, the intended principal uses and the order of priority of the uses.

Under no circumstances the Issuer will be obliged to invest the proceeds from the Securities in the Underlying or other assets. The Issuer is free in its decisions to use the proceeds from the issue of the Securities.

In addition, the Final Terms will specify any estimated total costs.

7. Country Specific Information

The applicable Final Terms will contain information about any Agents in the country or countries where the Securities are offered.

G. INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following information will be incorporated by reference in and form an integral part of this Base Prospectus:

a. Registration Document of Deutsche Bank AG dated 10 April 2017, as amended by the First Supplemental Registration Document dated 23 May 2017

Do	ocument:	Approved by:
Registration Document of Deutsche Bank AG dated 10 April 2017 (English Version)		Bundesanstalt für Finanz- dienstleistungsaufsicht (BaFin)
		Approved by BaFin on 13 April 2017 in accordance with § 13 WpPG
Сс	ontains all issuer information required under EU-Directive 200	3/71/EC:
-	Risk Factors	pages 4 to 10
		(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "II. A. Risk Factors in Respect of the Issuer")
-	Persons Responsible	page 11
-	Statutory Auditors	page 11
-	Information about Deutsche Bank	page 11
-	Business Overview (including Principal Activities und Principal Markets)	pages 11 to 12
-	Organisational Structure	page 22
-	Trend Information (including a negative statement as to adverse changes and recent events and prospects)	pages 13 to 21
-	Administrative, Management, and Supervisory Bodies	pages 22 to 24
-	Major Shareholders	page 25
-	Financial Information concerning the Assets and Liabilities, Financial Position and Profits and Losses of Deutsche Bank AG	page25
-	Historical Financial Information/Financial Statements	page 25
-	Auditing of Historical Annual Financial Information	page 25
-	Legal and Arbitration Proceedings	pages 25 to 39
-	Significant Change in Deutsche Bank Group's Financial Position	page 39
-	Material Contracts	page 39
-	Documents on Display	page 40
		(the information above is each incorporated by reference in this

	Base Prospectus under chapter "IX. Description of the Issuer")
First Supplemental Registration Document of Deutsche Bank AG dated 23 May 2017	Bundesanstalt für Finanz- dienstleistungsaufsicht (BaFin)
	Approved by BaFin on 24 May 2017 in accordance with §§ 13, 16 WpPG

All other sections in this Registration Document dated 10 April 2017 which are not incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus are not relevant for the investor.

b. Consolidated Financial Statement (IFRS) of Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft for the Fiscal Year ending 31 December 2015 (audited)

Dokument:	
Consolidated Financial Statement (IFRS) of Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft for the Fiscal Year ending 31 December 2015 (audited) (English version)	made available to the public pursuant to Sec. 37y of the German Securities Trading Act (<i>Wertpapierhandelsgesetz</i>) on 11 March 2016 and notified to the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin)
	Publication in the company register and under https://www.db.com/ir/en/annual- reports.htm
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "IX. Description of the Issuer")

c. Consolidated Financial Statements (IFRS) of Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft for the Fiscal Year ending 31 December 2016 (audited) and Non - Consolidated Financial Statements and Management Report (HGB) of Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft for the Fiscal Year ending 31 December 2016 (audited)

Dokument:	
Consolidated Financial Statements (IFRS) of Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft for the Fiscal Year ending 31 December 2016 (audited) (English version)	made available to the public pursuant to Sec. 37y of the German Securities Trading Act (<i>Wertpapierhandelsgesetz</i>) on 20 March 2017 and notified to the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin)
	Publication in the company register and under https://www.db.com/ir/en/annual-reports.htm
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "IX. Description of the Issuer")
Non - Consolidated Financial Statements and Management Report (HGB) of Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft for the Fiscal Year ending 31 December 2016 (audited) (English version)	made available to the public pursuant to Sec. 37v of the German Securities Trading Act (<i>Wertpapierhandelsgesetz</i>) on 11 March 2016 and notified to the German

Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin)
Publication in the company register and under https://www.db.com/ir/en/annual- reports.htm
(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "IX. Description of the Issuer")

d. Interim Report of Deutsche Bank Group as of 31 March 2017 (unaudited)

Dokument:	
Interim Report of Deutsche Bank Group as of 31 March 2017 (unaudited) (English version)	made available to the public pursuant to Sec. 37x of the German Securities Trading Act (<i>Wertpapierhandelsgesetz</i>) on 27 'April 2017 and notified to the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin)
	Publication in the company register and under https://www.db.com/ir/en/quarterly-results.htm
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "IX. Description of the Issuer")

e. Information from the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes dated 27 February 2015 as amended by supplement dated 11 May 2015

Document:	Approved by:
Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes dated 27 February 2015 of Deutsche Bank AG (English version) as amended by supplement dated 11 May 2015	Bundesanstalt für Finanz- dienstleistungsaufsicht (BaFin) Approved by BaFin on 11 March 2015 in accordance with
	§ 13 WpPG
- Chapter "IV. General Conditions"	page 135 – 234 (incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "IV. General
 Chapter "V. Product Terms – General Definitions applicable to the Securities" 	Conditions") page 235 – 258
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "V. Product Terms – General Definitions applicable to the Securities")

 Chapter "V. Product Terms – General Definitions p applicable to Certificates" 	oage 259 – 264
	incorporated by reference in
	his Base Prospectus under
	hapter "V. Product Terms –
	•
	General Defintions applicable
	o Certificates")
 Chapter "V. Product Terms – Specific Definitions applicable p to Certificates" 	page 265 – 267 and 270 - 271
(1	incorporated by reference in
ti	his Base Prospectus under
c	hapter "V. Product Terms –
S	Specific Defintions applicable
to	o Certificates")
	bage 272 – 275
	incorporated by reference in
	his Base Prospectus under
	hapter "V. Product Terms –
	General Definitions applicable
	o Warrants")
	bage 276 – 288
applicable to Warrants"	age 210 – 200
	incorporated by reference in
	incorporated by reference in
	his Base Prospectus under
	hapter "V. Product Terms –
	Specific Defintions applicable
	o Warrants")
 Chapter "V. Product Terms – General Definitions p applicable to Notes" 	oage 289 – 290
(1)	incorporated by reference in
ti ti	his Base Prospectus under
c	hapter "V. Product Terms –
	General Defintions applicable
	o Notes")
	bage 291 – 293
	incorporated by reference in
	his Base Prospectus under
	hapter "V. Product Terms –
	Specific Definitions applicable
	o Notes")
	bage 294 – 301
	incorporated by reference in
	incorporated by reference in
	his Base Prospectus under
	hapter "V. Product Terms – Further Defintions applicable to
	he Securities")

Supplement B related to the Base Prospectus for the issuance	Bundesanstalt für
of Certificates, Warrants and Notes dated 27 February 2015	Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht
of Deutsche Bank AG (English version) dated 11 May 2015	(BaFin)
	Approved by BaFin on 13 May 2015 in accordance with § 13, 16 WpPG

All other sections in this Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes dated 27 February 2015 which are not incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus are not relevant for the investor.

f. Information from the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes dated 25 November 2015

Document:	Approved by:
Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes dated 25 November 2015 of Deutsche Bank AG	Bundesanstalt für Finanz- dienstleistungsaufsicht (BaFin)
(English version)	Approved by BaFin on 27 November 2015 in accordance with § 13 WpPG
- Chapter "IV. General Conditions"	page 135 – 234
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "IV. General Conditions")
 Chapter "V. Product Terms – General Definitions applicable to the Securities" 	page 237 – 263
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "V. Product Terms – General Definitions applicable to the Securities")
 Chapter "V. Product Terms – General Definitions applicable to Certificates" 	page 264 – 267
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "V. Product Terms – General Definitions applicable to Certificates")
 Chapter "V. Product Terms – Specific Definitions applicable to Certificates" 	page 268 – 272
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "V. Product Terms – Specific Defintions applicable to Certificates")

 Chapter"V. Product Terms – General Definitions applicable to Warrants" 	page 273 – 276
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "V. Product Terms – General Defintions applicable to Warrants")
 Chapter "V. Product Terms – Specific Definitions applicable to Warrants" 	page 277 – 288
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "V. Product Terms – Specific Defintions applicable to Warrants")
 Chapter "V. Product Terms – General Definitions applicable to Notes" 	page 289 – 290
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "V. Product Terms – General Defintions applicable to Notes")
 Chapter "V. Product Terms – Specific Definitions applicable to Notes" 	page 291 – 292
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "V. Product Terms – Specific Defintions applicable to Notes")
- Chapter "V. Product Terms – Further Definitions applicable to the Securities"	page 293 – 301
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "V. Product Terms – Further Defintions applicable to the Securities")

All other sections in this Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes dated 25 November 2015 which are not incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus are not relevant for the investor.

g. Information from the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes dated 24 August 2016

Document:	Approved by:
Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes dated 24 August 2016 of Deutsche Bank AG (English version)	Bundesanstalt für Finanz- dienstleistungsaufsicht (BaFin) Approved by BaFin on 25 August 2016 in accordance with § 13 WpPG

	Chapter "IV. General Conditions"	pages 132 (starting with and
	Chapter IV. General Conditions	including the sub-paragraph "In
		all other cases, the following
		applies") to 232
		, ,
		(incorporated by reference in
		this Base Prospectus under
		chapter "IV. General
		Conditions")
-	Chapter "V. Product Terms – General Definitions	pages 235 to 262
	applicable to the Securities"	
		(incorporated by reference in
		this Base Prospectus under
		chapter "V. Product Terms -
		General Definitions applicable
		to the Securities ")
-	Chapter "V. Product Terms – General Definitions	pages 263 to 266
1	applicable to Certificates"	(incomposed by reference in
		(incorporated by reference in
		this Base Prospectus under chapter "V. Product Terms –
		General Definitions applicable
		to Certificates")
-	Chapter "V. Product Terms – Specific Definitons applicable	page 267 – 271
	to Certificates"	
		(incorporated by reference in
		this Base Prospectus under
		chapter "V. Product Terms –
		Specific Defintions applicable
		to Certificates")
-	Chapter"V. Product Terms – General Definitons applicable	page 272 – 275
	to Warrants"	
		(incorporated by reference in
		this Base Prospectus under
		chapter "V. Product Terms –
1		General Definitions applicable
	Chapter "// Droduct Torma Chapter Definitions	to Warrants")
-	Chapter "V. Product Terms – Specific Definitions applicable to Warrants"	page 276 – 287
1		(incorporated by reference in
		this Base Prospectus under
		chapter "V. Product Terms –
1		Specific Definitions applicable
		to Warrants")
-	Chapter "V. Product Terms – General Defintions	page 288 – 289
	applicable to Notes"	
		(incorporated by reference in
		this Base Prospectus under
		chapter "V. Product Terms -
		General Defintions applicable
		to Notes")

 Chapter "V. Product Terms – Specific Definitions applicable to Notes" 	page 290 – 291
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "V. Product Terms –
	Specific Defintions applicable to Notes")
- Chapter "V. Product Terms – Further Definitons applicable to the Securities"	page 292 – 300
	(incorporated by reference in
	this Base Prospectus under
	chapter "V. Product Terms –
	Further Defintions applicable to the Securities")
- Chapter "VI. Form of Final Terms "	page 301 – 320
	(incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "VII. Final Terms for the
	Continuation of the Public Offer")

All other sections in this Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes dated 24 August 2016 which are not incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus are not relevant for the investor.

Following the publication of this Base Prospectus, the Issuer may furnish a supplement which is subject to approval by BaFin in accordance with Art. 16 of the Prospectus Directive. Information contained in such supplement (or in a document, from which information has been incorporated by reference) shall be regarded, in the manner applicable (explicitly, implicitly or otherwise), as amendment or substitution of information which is contained in this Base Prospectus or which has been incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus. Information amended or substituted in such manner shall be regarded as part of the Base Prospectus solely in the form as amended or substituted.

H. GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Authorisation

The establishment of the Programme and the issue of Securities thereunder have been duly authorised by the competent representatives of Deutsche Bank.

The establishment of the Programme is considered to be in the ordinary course of Deutsche Bank's business and therefore was not authorised by board resolutions.

Deutsche Bank has obtained or will obtain from time to time all necessary consents, approvals and authorisations in connection with the issue and performance of its obligations under the Securities.

2. Post Issuance Information

The Issuer does not intend to provide any post-issuance information in relation to any Underlying of Securities under this programme, except if required by any applicable law or regulation or if indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

3. Consent to use of Prospectus

With respect to Article 3 (2) of the Prospectus Directive the Issuer consents, to the extent and under the conditions, if any, indicated in the relevant Final Terms, to the use of the Prospectus as long as the Prospectus is valid in accordance with Article 9 of the Prospectus Directive and accepts responsibility for the content of the Prospectus also with respect to subsequent resale or final placement of Securities by any financial intermediary which was given consent to use the prospectus.

Such consent may be given to all (general consent) or only one or more (individual consent) specified financial intermediaries, as stated in the Final Terms, and for the following member states, in which the Prospectus has been passported and which will be indicated in the relevant Final Terms: Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, the Netherlands, the Czech Republic and the United Kingdom.

Such consent by the Issuer is subject to each dealer and/or financial intermediaries complying with the terms and conditions described in this Prospectus and the relevant Final Terms as well as any applicable selling restrictions. The distribution of this Prospectus, any supplement to this Prospectus, if any, and the relevant Final Terms as well as the offering, sale and delivery of Securities in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law.

Each dealer and/or each financial intermediary, if any, and/or each person into whose possession this Prospectus, any supplement to this Prospectus, if any, and the relevant Final Terms come are required to inform themselves about and observe any such restrictions. The Issuer reserves the right to withdraw its consent to the use of this Prospectus in relation to certain dealers and/or each financial intermediaries.

In case of an offer being made by a financial intermediary, this financial intermediary will provide information to investors on the terms and conditions of the offer at the time the offer is made.

If the Final Terms state that the consent to use the Prospectus is given to all financial intermediaries (general consent), any financial intermediary using the Prospectus has

to state on its website that it uses the Prospectus in accordance with the consent and the conditions attached thereto.

If the Final Terms state that the consent to use the prospectus is given to one or more specified financial intermediaries (individual consent), any new information with respect to financial intermediaries unknown at the time of the approval of the Prospectus or the filing of the Final Terms will be published on the internet page www.xmarkets.db.com.

4. Notices concerning the termination of the primary market

The Issuer will publish any notices regarding the termination of the primary market, as specified in the Final Terms, either (i) on the internet page www.xmarkets.db.com or (ii) on the internet page www.investment-products.db.com as part of the information provided for the respective Securities.

IV. GENERAL CONDITIONS

In case of a further issuance or re-issuance of Securities issued under the Base Prospectus dated 24 August 2016 the following applies:

A description of the General Conditions is included in Chapter "IV. General Conditions" on pages 132 (starting with and including the sub-paragraph "In all other cases, the following applies") to 232 of the Base Prospectus dated 24 August 2016. This information is incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus.

In case of a further issuance or re-issuance of Securities issued under the Base Prospectus dated 25 November 2015 the following applies:

A description of the General Conditions is included in Chapter "IV. General Conditions" on pages 135 – 234 of the Base Prospectus dated 25 November 2015. This information is incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus.

In case of a further issuance or re-issuance of Securities issued under the Base Prospectus dated 27 February 2015 the following applies:

A description of the General Conditions is included in Chapter "IV. General Conditions" on pages 135 – 234 of the Base Prospectus dated 27 February 2015. This information is incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus as amended by supplement dated 11 May 2015.

In all other cases, the following applies:

The following "**General Conditions**" of the Securities must be read in their entirety together with the section "Product Terms" of the relevant Final Terms (the "**Product Terms**") for the relevant series of Securities that shall complete and put in concrete terms the following General Conditions for the purposes of these Securities. Product Terms and General Conditions together constitute the "**Terms and Conditions**" of the relevant Securities. Terms not otherwise defined in these General Conditions shall have the meaning given in the applicable Product Terms. The Terms and Conditions are subject to adjustment in accordance with §6.

Overview of Terms and Conditions

References in these Terms and Conditions to a numbered Condition denoted by the term "§" are to the section of these General Conditions so numbered. The Securities may be specified in the Product Terms as certificates ("**Certificates**"), warrants ("**Warrants**") or notes ("**Notes**"). Where the Securities are Notes, references to a Security shall mean a Security of a Nominal Amount. Where the Securities are Certificates, references to a Security shall mean a Security of a single unit or of a Nominal Amount. Where the Securities are Warrants, references to a Security shall mean a Security shall mean a Security shall mean a Security of a single unit or of a Nominal Amount. Where the Securities are Warrants, references to a Security shall mean a Security shall mean a Security of a single unit or of a Nominal Amount. The applicability of certain provisions depends on whether the Securities are Notes, Certificates or Warrants.

§1	Principal obligation: Entitlement of a Securityholder to receive Cash Settlement and/or Physical Delivery.	
§2	Exercise and Redemption: Exercise of Certificates or Warrants including the exercise procedure and redemption of Notes.	
§3	Settlement: Settlement of a Security, whether cash or physical settlement.	
§4	Coupon: Payment of Coupons.	
§5	Market Disruptions and non-Trading Day: What constitutes a Market Disruption and the impact of a Market Disruption and non-Trading Day on the Securities.	
§6	Adjustment Events and Adjustment/Termination Events,: What constitutes an Adjustment Event or an Adjustment/Termination Event and possible adjustments to the Securities by the Calculation Agent or early termination of the Securities on the occurrence of such event.	

§7	Form of Securities, Transferability, Status, Securityholders, Set-Off, Eligible
5	Liabilities Redemption Restriction: Form of the Securities, their transferability
	and status, holders of Securities, Set-Off and Eligible Liabilities Redemption
	Restriction.
§8 and §9	Agents and Calculation Agent: The appointment of Agents, the role of the
	Calculation Agent and determinations by the Calculation Agent.
§10 and §11	Taxation and Presentation Period and Limitation: Taxation, presentation and
	the limitation period for any claim, in respect of payments under the Securities.
§12	Events of Default: What constitutes an Event of Default, as a result of which the
	Securities may become subject to repayment.
§13	Substitution of Issuer and Branch: Substitution of an Issuer or a branch of the
	Issuer.
§14 and §15	Purchases of Securities and Further Issuances of Securities: The right of the Issuer
	to purchase Securities and to issue further Securities.
§16	Notices: The delivery of notices to Securityholders.
§17	Redenomination: The redenomination of the Securities in euro.
§18	Modifications: Power of the Issuer to modify the Terms and Conditions.
§19 and §20	Severability, Governing Law and Place of Jurisdiction: The way in which the
	Terms and Conditions should be read if any part is unenforceable or invalid and
	the governing law and jurisdiction of the Securities.
§21	Portuguese Securities
Annex 1	Form of Exercise Notice
Annex 2	Form of Delivery Notice
Annex 3	Form of Renouncement Notice
INDEX OF	An index of defined terms
DEFINITIONS	

§1 Principal obligation

- (1) Each security (each a "Security"), belonging to a series (each a "Series") of Securities identified by its ISIN, where the Security is, in the Product Terms, specified to be a Certificate or Warrant, entitles its holder (each a "Securityholder") to receive from the Issuer, or where the Security is specified to be a Note, will be redeemed by the Issuer in respect of each Nominal Amount, as specified in the Product Terms, by:
 - (a) where Settlement means Cash Settlement, payment of the Cash Amount to each relevant Securityholder; and/or
 - (b) where Settlement means Physical Delivery, delivery of the Physical Delivery Amount to each relevant Securityholder.
- (2) (a) Where Cash Settlement applies:

The Cash Amount will be rounded to the nearest two decimal places in the Settlement Currency, 0.005 being rounded upwards or if the Settlement Currency is Japanese yen rounded up to the nearest yen.

(b) Where Physical Delivery applies:

For each type of Physical Delivery Unit included in a Physical Delivery Amount, the number of the Physical Delivery Units to be delivered in this Physical Delivery Amount will be rounded down to the nearest whole number. Securities belonging to the same Securityholder shall, unless Aggregation is specified not to apply in the Product Terms, be aggregated for purposes of determining the relevant number of Physical Delivery Units to be delivered, provided that the aggregate number, in respect of the same Securityholder, will be rounded down to the nearest whole number. Fractional amounts are not delivered. In case of a rounding down to a whole number in accordance with the provisions above, an amount (the "Adjustment Amount") in the Settlement Currency will be paid which, unless otherwise specified in the Product Terms, shall be equal to the product of the remaining fraction and the relevant Final Reference Level or, if the Physical Delivery Amount refers to Basket Constituents, the sum of the products of the remaining fraction of each Physical Delivery Unit and the relevant Basket Constituent Level, in each case in respect of the relevant Valuation Date and, if currency exchange or Basket Currency Exchange is specified to apply in the Product Terms, each resulting amount being converted into the Settlement Currency at the Exchange Rate in respect of the last occurring Valuation Date.

The Adjustment Amount will be rounded to the nearest two decimal places in the Settlement Currency, 0.005 being rounded upwards or if the Settlement Currency is Japanese yen rounded up to the nearest yen.

(3) Definitions in respect of §1 and, if applicable, other Terms and Conditions:

Cash Settlement

(a) **"Cash Amount**" means an amount calculated as provided under the heading "Cash Amount" in the Product Terms and which shall not be less than zero.

Physical Delivery

- (b) "Physical Delivery Clearing System" means, in respect of a Physical Delivery Unit, the clearing system specified as such in the Product Terms or if none is specified, the principal clearance system customarily used for settling trades in such Physical Delivery Unit on the Settlement Date, or any successor to such clearance system as determined by the Calculation Agent.
- (c) **"Physical Delivery Amount**" is as specified in the Product Terms, or if none is specified, in respect of each type of Physical Delivery Unit, a number of the relevant Physical Delivery Units specified in the Product Terms multiplied, where applicable, by the Multiplier and, where the Physical Delivery Amount comprises Basket Constituents, the Basket Constituent Weight for the relevant Basket Constituent (as specified in the Product Terms).
- (d) **"Physical Delivery Unit**" means the number of units of the relevant asset as specified in the Product Terms.

Basket Constituents

- (e) **"Basket Constituent**" means, if applicable, each of the assets or reference bases specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms to be included in the Basket.
- (f) **"Basket Constituent Currency**" means in relation to each Basket Constituent the currency specified for such Basket Constituent under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms.
- (g) "Basket Constituent Level" means in respect of a Basket Constituent and any day, unless otherwise specified in the Product Terms, an amount equal to the price or level of the Basket Constituent determined at the time on such day and in the manner specified as "Relevant Basket Constituent Value" under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms, all as determined by the Calculation Agent.
- (h) "Basket Constituent Percentage Weight" means, in relation to each Basket Constituent and (if Portfolio is specified to be applicable in the Product Terms) a Portfolio, a number for such Basket Constituent and (if Portfolio is specified to be applicable in the Product Terms) such Portfolio specified as "Basket Constituent Percentage Weight" under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms.
- (i) **"Basket Constituent Weight**" means, in relation to each Basket Constituent, the number specified as "Basket Constituent Weight" under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms, or, if not so specified, the quotient of:
 - (i) 1. if Basket Currency Exchange is not specified to apply in the Product Terms, the relevant Basket Constituent Percentage Weight (as numerator); or
 - 2. if Basket Currency Exchange is specified to apply in the Product Terms, the product of (as numerator):
 - a. the relevant Basket Constituent Percentage Weight; and
 - b. the Exchange Rate for converting the Basket Constituent Currency of such Basket Constituent into the Settlement

Currency on the Basket Constituent Relevant Exchange Date for the relevant Basket Constituent; and

(ii) the Basket Constituent Level on the Initial Valuation Date (as denominator).

General

- (j) "Business Day" means, subject to it not being specified otherwise in the Product Terms, a day (a) on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET2) System is open, (b) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the business day location(s) specified in the Product Terms, and (c) on which each Clearing Agent is open for business and (d) if applicable, for the purposes of making any delivery of a Physical Delivery Unit, a day on which each relevant Physical Delivery Clearing System is open for business. Saturday and Sunday are not considered Business Days.
- (k) "Clearing Agent" means,
 - (i) unless the sub-paragraphs (ii) to (viii) apply, the entity specified as such in the Product Terms or, if not specified there, means Clearstream Banking AG, Mergenthalerallee 61, 65760 Eschborn, Germany;
 - (ii) if the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Italian Securities, Monte Titoli S.p.A., Piazza degli Affari, 6. I-20123 Milan, Italy;
 - (iii) if the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Securities, Interbolsa, Avenida da Boavista, n.º 3433, 4100-138 Porto, Portugal;
 - (iv) if the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be French Securities, Euroclear France S.A. (acting as central depositary) located in 115 rue Réaumur, 75081 Paris Cedex 02, France;
 - (v) if the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Spanish Listed Securities, Sociedad de Gestión de los Sistemas de Registro, Compensación y Liquidación de Valores, S.A., Unipersonal ("Iberclear"), Palacio de la Bolsa Plaza de la Lealtad, 1 ES-28014 Madrid, Spain, as managing entity of the central registry of the Spanish Securities;
 - (vi) if the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Swedish Securities, Euroclear Sweden AB (formerly known as VPC AB), P.O. Box 191, Klarabergviadukten 63, 101 23 Stockholm, Sweden;
 - (vii) if the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Finnish Securities, Euroclear Finland Ltd. (formerly known as Suomen Arvopaperikeskus Oy), P.O. Box 1110, FI-00101 Helsinki, Finland, or
 - (viii) if the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Norwegian Securities, Verdipapirsentralen ASA, PO Box 4, 0051 Oslo, Norway,

and in each case such further or alternative clearing agent(s) or clearance system(s) as may be approved by the Issuer from time to time and notified to the

Securityholders in accordance with §16 (and the term Clearing Agent will include any depositary holding the Global Security on behalf of a Clearing Agent).

- (I) **"Essential Characteristics**" of the Securities means the characteristics of the product that are essential for the Securityholder including the yield, the Underlying, whether there is a full or partial repayment of the investment at maturity, the identity of the Issuer and the duration.
- (m) "Exchange Rate", if relevant, means in respect of any day, unless otherwise specified in the Product Terms, the exchange rate prevailing at the Relevant Exchange Time as specified in the Product Terms (or at such time approximate thereto as the Calculation Agent determines to be practicable) on such day between (i) the Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency or (ii) the Basket Constituent Currency and the Reference Currency or Settlement Currency, as the case may be (expressed as the number of units of the Reference Currency or Basket Constituent Currency, as applicable, or a fraction thereof required to buy one unit of the Settlement Currency or Reference to such source(s) as the Calculation Agent may reasonably determine to be appropriate at such time.
- (n) **"Final Reference Level**" is as defined in the Product Terms.
- (o) **"French Securities**" means any Securities which are specified in the applicable Final Terms to be French Securities.
- (p) **"Initial Valuation Date**" is as specified in the Product Terms.
- (q) "Interbolsa" means Interbolsa Sociedade Gestora de Sistemas de Liquidação e de Sistemas Centralizados de Valores Mobiliários, S.A., as management company of the Portuguese securities centralised system Central de Valores Mobiliários ("CVM").
- (r) "Issuer" means Deutsche Bank AG. The Issuer may act through its head office in Frankfurt or through its branch offices in London ("Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch"), Milan ("Deutsche Bank AG, Milan Branch"), Portugal ("Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal em Portugal") or Spain ("Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal en España"), as specified in the Product Terms.
- (s) "**Multiplier**" is as specified in the Product Terms.
- (t) **"Restricted Change**" means any event (other than a Restricted Force Majeure Event) that accurs after the Issue Date that substantially alters the economics of the Securities compared to the economics as at the Issue Date and which is not attributable to the Issuer.
- (u) **"Restricted Force Majeure Event**" means a Force Majeure Event that prevents the Issuer from being able to perform its obligations under the Securities and which is not attributable to the Issuer.
- (v) "Restricted Event" means a Restricted Change or a Restricted Force Majeure Event.
- (w) **"Settlement**" means cash settlement and/or physical delivery, as specified in the Product Terms or, if not specified there, means cash settlement.

- (x) "**Settlement Currency**" is as defined in the Product Terms.
- (y) **"Spanish Securities**" means any Securities which are specified in the applicable Product Terms to be either Spanish Securities (Global Security) or Spanish Listed Securities.
- (z) **"Trading Day**" means:
 - 1. if the Underlying is, in the Product Terms, not specified to be a Basket or if it is specified to be a Basket and Separate Reference Item Determination is specified to be applicable in the Product Terms,
 - in respect of a Reference Item for which the Reference Source is an exchange, trading system or quotation system and which is not specified to be a Multi-Exchange Index, a day on which the relevant Reference Source is scheduled to be open for trading during its regular trading session(s);
 - (ii) in respect of a Reference Item for which the Reference Source is not an exchange, trading system or quotation system and which is not specified to be a Multi-Exchange Index, a day on which (aa) the relevant Index Sponsor is scheduled to publish the level of such Reference Item and (bb) the relevant Related Exchange, if any, in respect of such Reference Item is scheduled to be open for trading during its regular trading session(s);
 - (iii) in respect of a Reference Item for which the Reference Source is not an exchange, trading system or quotation system and which is specified to be a Multi-Exchange Index, a day on which (aa) the relevant Index Sponsor is scheduled to publish the level of such Reference Item, (bb) each Related Exchange, if any, in respect of such Reference Item is scheduled to be open for trading during its regular trading session(s) and (cc) each Relevant Exchange in respect of each Relevant Reference Item is scheduled to be open for trading during its regular trading session(s);
 - (iv) in respect of a Reference Item specified to be a Fund Share and if Fund Business Day is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, each day on which the net asset value of such Fund Share will be published and subscriptions and redemptions of such Fund Shares may be effected; or
 - 2. if the Underlying is specified in the Product Terms to be a Basket and "Separate Reference Item Determination" is not specified to be applicable in the Product Terms, a day which is
 - (i) in respect of each Reference Item for which the Reference Source is an exchange, trading system or quotation system and which is not specified to be a Multi-Exchange Index, a day on which the relevant Reference Source is scheduled to be open for trading during its respective regular trading session(s);
 - (ii) in respect of each Reference Item for which the Reference Source is not an exchange, trading system or quotation system and which is not specified to be a Multi-Exchange Index, a day on which (aa) the

relevant Index Sponsor is scheduled to publish the level of each such Reference Item and (bb) each relevant Related Exchange, if any, in respect of each such Reference Item is scheduled to be open for trading during its regular trading session(s) in respect of each such Reference Item;

- (iii) in respect of each Reference Item for which the Reference Source is not an exchange, trading system or quotation system and which is specified to be a Multi-Exchange Index a day on which (aa) the relevant Index Sponsor is scheduled to publish the level of each such Reference Item, (bb) each relevant Related Exchange, if any, in respect of each such Reference Item is scheduled to be open for trading during its regular trading session in respect of each such Reference Item and (cc) each Relevant Exchange in respect of each such Relevant Reference Item is scheduled to be open for trading during its regular trading session(s) in respect of such Relevant Reference Item; and
- (iv) in respect of a Reference Item specified to be a Fund Share and if Fund Business Day is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, each day on which the net asset value of such Fund Share will be published and subscriptions and redemptions of such Fund Shares may be effected.
- (aa) "Underlying" is as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms.
- (bb) "Valuation Date" is as defined in the Product Terms subject to adjustment in accordance with §5(1).

§2 Exercise and Redemption

(1) General

The obligation described in **§1(1)** falls due on the Settlement Date (as specified in the Product Terms) when the Security is duly exercised (in the case of Certificates and Warrants) or redeemed (in the case of Notes) in each case subject to **§5** and **§6**.

(2) **Exercise of Certificates and Warrants**

If the Securities are Certificates or Warrants, this para. (2) shall apply:

(a) **Delivery of an Exercise Notice**

Each Security, unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled and subject to as provided in the Terms and Conditions, is exercisable on any Exercise Date by delivery of an Exercise Notice at or before 10.00 a.m. Central European Time to the Principal Agent, with a copy to the relevant Clearing Agent, and, with respect to French Securities, the relevant Account Holder. An Exercise Notice delivered after such time shall become effective on the following Exercise Date, if any.

As used here in:

- (i) **"Exercise Date**" means
- if European Style has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the day specified under the heading "Exercise Date" in the Product Terms or, if such day is not a Business Day, the next following Business Day;
- if American Style has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, each Business Day during the Exercise Period; and
- if Bermudan Style has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, each of the days specified under the heading "Exercise Date" in the Product Terms or, if any such day is not a Business Day, the next following Business Day.
- (ii) **"Exercise Period**" is as defined in the Product Terms.

(b) Automatic Exercise

(i) Unless sub-paragraph (ii) applies and if Automatic Exercise is specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Securities will be exercised automatically on the last occurring Exercise Date, and a Securityholder will not be required to complete an Exercise Notice. Such automatic exercise will only occur if a Cash Amount greater than zero would be payable to the Securityholder.

However, if Automatic Exercise has not been specified to apply in the Product Terms, any exercisable Security not exercised by the last occurring Exercise Date shall expire worthless on such day and the Issuer shall have no further obligations in respect of any such Security.

(ii) If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Securities the Securities will be exercised automatically on the last occurring Exercise Date, and a Securityholder will not be required to complete an Exercise Notice. Such automatic exercise will only occur if a Cash Amount greater than zero would be payable to the Securityholder.

(c) Renouncement Notice for Italian Listed Securities

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Italian Securities which are listed and admitted to trading on an Italian regulated market or any Italian multilateral trading facility so requiring, as the case may be (the "Italian Listed Securities") the Securities will be exercised automatically on the Exercise Date. However prior to the Renouncement Notice cut-off time specified in the Product Terms (the "Renouncement Notice Cut-Off Time"), each Securityholder may renounce Automatic Exercise of the relevant Italian Listed Security(ies) by the delivery or sending by fax of a duly completed renouncement notice substantially in the form set out in Annex 3 (A), Annex 3 (B), or Annex 3 (C) as applicable, to the Terms and Conditions (the "Renouncement Notice") in accordance with the rules of the Borsa Italiana, applicable from time to time, to the Agent in Italy, with a copy to the Issuer and, if the Governing Law is specified to be German Law in the Product Terms, also with a copy to the Securityholder's financial intermediary accountholder at Monte Titoli. Once delivered a Renouncement Notice shall be irrevocable and may not be withdrawn. If a duly completed Renouncement Notice is validly delivered prior to the Renouncement Notice Cut-off Time, the relevant Securityholder will not be entitled to receive any amounts payable by the Issuer in respect of relevant Italian Listed Securities and the Issuer shall have no further liability in respect of such Italian Listed Securities.

After delivery of a Renouncement Notice, the relevant Securityholder may not transfer the relevant Italian Listed Securities which are the subject of such Renouncement Notice.

Any determination as to whether a Renouncement Notice is duly completed and in proper form shall be made by the Agent in Italy, in its reasonable discretion, and shall be conclusive and binding on the Issuer, the Agents and the relevant Securityholder. Subject to as set out below, any Renouncement Notice so determined to be incomplete or not in proper form shall be null and void. If such Renouncement Notice is subsequently corrected to the satisfaction of the Agent in Italy, it shall be deemed to be a new Renouncement Notice submitted at the time such correction was delivered to the Agent in Italy.

In the event that a Securityholder does not execute, where applicable, a duly completed Renouncement Notice in accordance with the provisions hereof, the relevant Italian Listed Securities shall be exercised automatically and shall be repaid in the manner set out herein, and the Issuer's obligations in respect of such Italian Listed Securities shall be discharged and no further liability in respect thereof shall attach to the Issuer.

(d) Uncertificated Securities by SIX SIS AG

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Uncertificated Securities by SIX SIS AG ("**Uncertificated SIS Securities**"), a copy of an Exercise Notice to the relevant Clearing Agent is not required.

(e) Form of Exercise Notice

"**Exercise Notice**" unless otherwise provided in the Product Terms is a notice of a Securityholder substantially in the form set out in Annex 1 to the Terms and Conditions which declares the exercise of one or more Securities and:

- (i) specifies the number of the Securities which are the subject of such notice;
- (ii) specifies the number of the account with the relevant Clearing Agent to be debited with such Securities and irrevocably instructs and authorises the relevant Clearing Agent to debit on or before the Settlement Date such account with such Securities, and authorises the Principal Agent to so direct the relevant Clearing Agent on behalf of the relevant Securityholder;
- (iii) specifies the number of the account at the relevant Clearing Agent to be credited with any cash amounts payable;
- (iv) in the case of Physical Delivery, includes account details at each relevant Physical Delivery Clearing System ("**Delivery Details**");
- (v) includes an undertaking to pay all Securityholder Expenses in accordance with §2(5) and the aggregate Strike and any other cash amounts, if applicable, payable to the Issuer in connection with the exercise and settlement of the relevant Securities and irrevocably instructs the relevant Clearing Agent to deduct an amount(s) in respect thereof from any cash amounts due as referred to in (iii) above and/or to debit a specified account with the relevant Clearing Agent with any such amounts in each case on or after the Exercise Date, and authorises the Principal Agent to so direct the relevant Clearing Agent on behalf of the relevant Securityholder;
- (vi) certifies that neither the Securityholder nor any person on whose behalf the Securities are being exercised is a U.S. person or a person within the United States, and that no cash, and in the case of a physical delivery of an Underlying, no securities or other property have been or will be transferred in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person in connection with any exercise thereof. As used herein, "U.S. person" means either a U.S. person as defined in Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or a person who does not come within the definition of a non-United States person under Rule 4.7 of the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended; and
- (vii) authorises the production of such notice in any applicable administrative or legal proceedings.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Securities any reference to Clearing Agent in the sub-paragraphs (ii), (iii) and (v) above shall instead be read as reference to the relevant Affiliate Member of Interbolsa.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be French Securities any reference to Clearing Agent in the sub-paragraphs (ii), (iii) and (v) above shall be read as reference to the relevant Account Holder.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Uncertificated SIS Securities, the sub-paragraphs (i) to (vii) above apply as follows in the following points:

- (viii) the Exercise Notice irrevocably entitles the bank of the Securityholder to transfer the exercised Securities to the Principal Agent;
- (ix) the Exercise Notice specifies the number of the account to be credited with any cash amounts payable;
- (x) where Physical Delivery applies, the Exercise Notice specifies the accounts to which Physical Delivery is to be made ("**Delivery Details**").

(f) **Delivery Notice**

If Automatic Exercise is specified to apply in the Product Terms and if Physical Delivery applies, unless "Delivery Notice" is specified not to apply in the Product Terms or the relevant Securities are otherwise exercised by the Securityholder, in order to obtain delivery of the Physical Delivery Amount, a duly completed Delivery Notice must be delivered by the Securityholder to the Principal Agent, with a copy to the relevant Clearing Agent and, with respect to French Securities, the relevant Account Holder, at or before 10.00 a.m. Central European Time on the last occurring Exercise Date. If a Delivery Notice is delivered after such time, Physical Delivery shall occur as soon as reasonably practicable following the Settlement Date provided that if a Delivery Notice has not been so delivered and copied with respect to a Security at or prior to 10.00 a.m. Central European Time on the thirtieth calendar day after the Settlement Date, then the holder of such Security shall have no right to receive the Physical Delivery Amount in respect of such Security and the Issuer's obligation in respect of such Security shall be cancelled. "Delivery Notice" means a notice of a Securityholder substantially in the form set out in Annex 2 which is as further described in para.(3) below.

(g) Exercise of Redemption Right and Exercise following a Barrier Event or Redemption Event

The exercise by the Issuer of the Redemption Right (if applicable) shall prevent any automatic exercise of Securities in accordance with para. (b) above, but shall not prevent Securityholders from exercising Securities on any Exercise Date up to but excluding the second Business Day prior to the Redemption Date. Any delivery of an Exercise Notice on or after such Business Day shall be void. Following a Barrier Event or Redemption Event, however, the Securities may no longer be exercised either automatically or by delivery of an Exercise Notice.

(h) Minimum or Maximum Exercise Amount

Where a Minimum Exercise Amount has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the number of Securities exercised on any Exercise Date by a Securityholder, as determined by the Calculation Agent, must not be less than such Minimum Exercise Amount or, if a number in excess of the Minimum Exercise Amount and if an Integral Exercise Amount has been specified in the Product Terms, an integral multiple of the Integral Exercise Amount. Any purported exercise of Securities in breach of this provision shall be void and of no effect.

Where a Maximum Exercise Amount has been specified in the Product Terms, if the Calculation Agent determines that the number of Securities being exercised on any Exercise Date by any Securityholder or a group of Securityholders (whether or not acting in concert) exceeds such Maximum Exercise Amount (a number equal to the Maximum Exercise Amount being the "Quota"), the Issuer may deem the Exercise Date for the first Quota of such Securities, selected on the basis of the chronological

order in which the relevant Exercise Notices have been delivered, to be such day and the Exercise Date for each additional Quota of such Securities (and any remaining number thereof), selected in the same way as above, to be each of the succeeding Exercise Dates until all such Securities have been attributed with an Exercise Date, provided, however, that for any such Securities for which the Exercise Date would thereby fall after the last occurring Exercise Date, such last occurring Exercise Date shall be the Exercise Date. In any case where more than the Quota of Securities are exercised on the same day by Securityholder(s), the determination of the chronological order of settlement in respect of such Securities shall be at the reasonable discretion of the Issuer.

As used here in:

- (i) **"Integral Exercise Amount**" is as specified in the Product Terms.
- (ii) **"Maximum Exercise Amount**" is as specified in the Product Terms.
- (iii) **"Minimum Exercise Amount**" is as specified in the Product Terms.

(3) **Redemption of Notes**

If the Securities are Notes and if it is specified in the Product Terms that a Securityholder may elect either Cash Settlement or Physical Delivery, in order to obtain delivery of the Physical Delivery Amount in respect of a Security, the Securityholder must deliver to the Principal Agent, with a copy to the relevant Clearing Agent, not later than the close of business in each place of receipt on the Cut-off Date specified in the Product Terms, a duly completed Delivery Notice. If a Delivery Notice is delivered after such time, Physical Delivery shall occur as soon as reasonably practicable following the Settlement Date provided that if a Delivery Notice has not been so delivered and copied with respect to a Security by close of business in each place of receipt on the thirtieth calendar day after the Settlement Date, then the holder of such Security shall have no right to receive the Physical Delivery Amount in respect of such Security and the Issuer's obligation in respect of such Security shall be cancelled.

As used here in:

- (a) **"Cut-off Date**" is as specified in the Product Terms.
- (b) "**Delivery Notice**" unless otherwise provided in the Final Terms is a notice of a Securityholder substantially in the form set out in Annex 2 to the Terms and Conditions which:
 - (i) specifies the number of the Securities which are the subject of such notice;
 - (ii) specifies the number of the account with the relevant Clearing Agent to be debited with such Securities and irrevocably instructs and authorises the relevant Clearing Agent to debit on or before the Settlement Date such account with such Securities, and authorises the Principal Agent to so direct the relevant Clearing Agent on behalf of the relevant Securityholder;
 - (iii) includes account details at each relevant Physical Delivery Clearing System ("**Delivery Details**");
 - (iv) specifies the number of the account at the relevant Clearing Agent to be credited with any cash amounts payable;

- (v) includes an undertaking to pay all Securityholder Expenses and any other cash amounts, if applicable, in accordance with §2(5) payable to the Issuer in connection with the exercise and/or settlement of the relevant Securities and irrevocably instructs the relevant Clearing Agent to deduct an amount(s) in respect thereof from any cash amounts due as referred to in para. (iv) above and/or to debit a specified account with the relevant Clearing Agent with any such amounts in each case on or after the Exercise Date (in the case of Warrants or Certificates) or the Cut-off Date (in the case of Notes), and authorises the Principal Agent to so direct the relevant Clearing Agent on behalf of the relevant Securityholder;
- (vi) certifies that neither the Securityholder nor any person on whose behalf the Securities are held or are being exercised or redeemed is a U.S. person or a person within the United States, and that no cash, and in the case of a physical delivery of an Underlying, no securities or other property have been or will be transferred in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person in connection with any exercise or redemption thereof. As used herein, "U.S. person" means either a U.S. person as defined in Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or a person who does not come within the definition of a non-United States person under Rule 4.7 of the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended; and
- (vii) authorises the production of such notice in any applicable administrative or legal proceedings.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Securities any reference to Clearing Agent shall instead be read as reference to the relevant Affiliate Member of Interbolsa.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be French Securities any reference to Clearing Agent shall instead be read as reference to the relevant Account Holder.

(4) **Redemption Right of Issuer**

If Redemption Right has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Issuer has, subject to the prior approval of the competent authority, if legally required, the unconditional and irrevocable right (a "**Redemption Right**"), upon delivery of a Redemption Notice by the Issuer, to redeem the Securities in whole, but not in part on the Redemption Date at the Cash Amount in respect of each Security. As used here in:

(a) **"Redemption Notice**" means an irrevocable notice given by the Issuer to the Securityholders in accordance with §16 that the Issuer will exercise its Redemption Right, which notice shall specify the date on which the redemption becomes effective (the "**Redemption Date**"), provided that if a Redemption Period is specified in the Product Terms, such date shall be within the Redemption Period, and shall not be earlier than the Redemption Notice Time Span following but excluding the date on which the Redemption Notice is deemed delivered in accordance with §16 and provided further that if such date is not a Business Day, then the Redemption Date will be the immediately succeeding Business Day. The exercise by the Issuer of the Redemption Right shall not preclude Securityholders from selling or transferring or, if applicable, exercising the Securities which exercise, sale or transfer, as the case may be, is effective on any day up to but excluding the second Business Day immediately preceding the Redemption Date.

- (b) "**Redemption Notice Time Span**" is as defined in the Product Terms or, if not defined therein, is 12 months.
- (c) "**Redemption Period**" is as defined in the Product Terms.

(5) **Conditions to Payment or Delivery**

The obligation of the Issuer to make payment or delivery is subject to prior full payment of any amount due to be paid by the Securityholder to the Issuer pursuant to the Terms and Conditions. In particular, such due amount includes any applicable Securityholder Expenses and, if the Security is specified to be a Warrant and Physical Delivery applies, the Strike as specified in the Product Terms. Any due amount will, as far as covered by a cash amount(s) to be paid according to the Terms and Conditions, be directly subtracted from such cash amount(s). As long as a due amount has not been settled by a Securityholder, no payment or delivery shall be made by the Issuer under the Securities to such Securityholder.

As used here in:

"Securityholder Expenses" means, in respect of a Security, all taxes, duties and/or expenses, including any applicable depository charges, transaction or exercise charges, stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax, issue, registration, securities transfer and/or other taxes or duties arising in connection with the exercise of such Security and/or any payment and/or delivery due following exercise or otherwise in respect of such Security.

§3 Settlement

For the avoidance of doubt, where the Securities are Certificates or Warrants, the provisions of this §3 are only applicable to the extent that the relevant Certificates or Warrants have been duly exercised in accordance with the provisions of §2(2).

(1) **Taxation, other laws and regulations**

All payments and/or deliveries will be subject in all cases to any fiscal or other laws and regulations applicable thereto in the place of payment and/or delivery (including, where applicable, laws requiring the deduction or withholding for, or on account of, any tax, duty or other charge whatsoever).

(2) Settlement Currency Conversion

Unless otherwise specified in the Product Terms, any cash amount payable by the Issuer shall be paid in the Settlement Currency. If payment of any amount to a Securityholder, according to the rules of the relevant Clearing Agent, cannot be made in the Settlement Currency, such payment shall be made in the currency principally used by the relevant Clearing Agent for payments to holders holding accounts with such Clearing Agent (or in the case of Portuguese Securities, for payments to Affiliate members of Interbolsa or, in the case of French Securities, for payments to the relevant Account Holders), following a conversion of the relevant amount from the Settlement Currency, using an exchange rate determined by the Calculation Agent by reference to such sources as the Calculation Agent may reasonably determine to be appropriate for such conversion.

(3) **Settlement / Payment details**

(a) Unless otherwise specified in the Product Terms and unless sub-paragraphs (c), (d),
 (e) or (f) apply, any cash amounts payable by the Issuer shall be transferred to the relevant Clearing Agent for distribution to the Securityholders. The Issuer will be discharged of its payment and/or delivery obligations by payment and/or delivery to, or to the order of, the relevant Clearing Agent or Physical Delivery Clearing System in respect of the amount so paid or delivered.

In the case of Notes in registered form, if applicable, such payment and/or delivery to the Clearing Agent(s) shall be deemed to be made for and on behalf of any nominee shown on the Register as the holder of such Notes.

- (b) If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms as Notes, the Cash Amount is payable as consideration for the use of the Nominal Amount and as compensation in recognition that the Cash Amount might otherwise have been less than the Nominal Amount.
- (c) If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Securities payments will:
 - (i) if such payment is payable in Euro:
 - 1. be debited from the relevant payment current account of the Principal Agent (acting on behalf of the Issuer) (such account being the payment current account that the Principal Agent has notified to, and that has been accepted by, Interbolsa to be used on the Principal Agent's behalf for payments in respect of securities held through Interbolsa) and credited to the payment current accounts of the Affiliate Members of Interbolsa, whose securities

control accounts with Interbolsa are credited with such Securities all in accordance with the applicable procedures and regulations of Interbolsa; and, thereafter,

- 1. be debited by such Affiliate Members of Interbolsa from the aforementioned payment current accounts and credited either (x) to the cash accounts of the owners of those Securities with such Affiliate Members of Interbolsa, or (y) to the cash accounts held by Euroclear Bank SA/NV and/or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme and thereafter to the cash accounts held by the beneficial owners of those Securities with Euroclear Bank SA/NV and/or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (as applicable), in accordance with the rules and procedures of Interbolsa, Euroclear Bank SA/NV or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, as the case may be; or
- (ii) if such payment is payable in a currency other than Euro:
- 1. be transferred, on the due date for such payment (in each case in accordance with the applicable procedures and regulations of Interbolsa), from the account held by the Principal Agent in the Foreign Currency Settlement System (*Sistema de Liquidação em Moeda Estrangeira*), managed by Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A., to the payment current accounts of the Affiliate Members of Interbolsa whose control accounts with Interbolsa are credited with such Securities; and, thereafter,
- 2. be debited by such Affiliate Members of Interbolsa from the relevant payment current accounts and credited either (x) to the cash accounts of the owners of those Securities with such Affiliate Members of Interbolsa or (y) to the cash accounts held by Euroclear Bank SA/NV and/or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme and thereafter to the cash accounts held by the beneficial owners of those Securities with Euroclear Bank SA/NV and/or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (as applicable), in accordance with the rules and procedures of Interbolsa, Euroclear Bank SA/NV or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, as the case may be.

The holders of Portuguese Securities must rely upon the procedures of Interbolsa to receive payment in respect of Securities. The Issuer will be discharged of its payment obligations in respect of any Portuguese Securities by payment to, or to the order of, the relevant Affiliate Members of Interbolsa, the clients of whom are shown as the registered holders of such Portuguese Securities in the records of such Affiliate Members of Interbolsa. The Issuer will be discharged of its obligations towards the relevant Securityholders in respect of each amount so paid.

(d) If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Spanish Listed Securities payments will be debited from the cash account held by the Principal Agent with the Bank of Spain and credited to the cash accounts held with the Bank of Spain by the members of Iberclear whose securities accounts with Iberclear are credited with such Spanish Listed Securities, all in accordance with the applicable procedures and regulations of Iberclear and the Target2-System of the Bank of Spain. Thereafter, each of the members of Iberclear shall credit the relevant payments to each of the accounts of the relevant Securityholders.

The holders of Spanish Listed Securities must rely upon the procedures of Iberclear to receive payment in respect of Spanish Listed Securities. The Issuer will be discharged of its payment obligations in respect of Spanish Listed Securities by payment to the relevant member of Iberclear appointed by the Issuer as paying agent which will procure payment to any of the relevant members of Iberclear, the clients of whom are shown as the registered Securityholders of such Spanish Listed Securities. The Issuer will be discharged of its payment obligations towards the relevant Securityholders when the paying agent has paid, on behalf of the Issuer, the relevant amounts to each of the members of Iberclear, the clients of whom are shown as the registered Securityholders of such Spanish Listed Securities.

(e) If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Italian Securities any cash amounts payable by the Issuer shall be transferred to the relevant Clearing Agent for distribution to the Securityholders.

The holders of Italian Securities must rely upon the procedures of Monte Titoli S.p.A. to receive payments in respect of Securities. The Issuer will be discharged of its obligations by payment to, or to the order of, Monte Titoli S.p.A. in respect of the amount so paid.

(f) If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be French Securities any cash amounts payable by the Issuer shall be transferred to the relevant account denominated in the relevant currency of the relevant Account Holder for the benefit of the Securityholder. The Issuer will be discharged of its payments and/or delivery obligations by payment and/or delivery validly made to such Account Holder.

(4) Verification

Each payment and/or delivery is subject to reasonable satisfactory evidence being provided of the relevant Securityholder's holding of the Securities.

(5) **Payment Day**

- (a) If any date for payment of any amount by the Issuer in respect of any Security is not a Payment Day, the holder thereof shall not be entitled to payment until the next following Payment Day and shall not be entitled to any interest or other payment in respect of such delay.
- (b) As used herein, a "**Payment Day**" means a day which is (i) a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the city where the Principal Agent is located and the Payment Day Location(s), if specified in the Product Terms; (ii) a day on which each Clearing Agent is open for business; and (iii) either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a currency other than euro, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country of such currency or (2) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day that the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET2) System is open.

(6) General

Without prejudice to para. (7) below, the purchase and/or holding of the Securities does not confer on any Securityholder any rights (whether in respect of voting, distributions or otherwise) in relation to the Underlying, any asset of any kind whatsoever by reference to which any amount due under the Securities is calculated, or (prior to delivery, if applicable) any asset to be delivered under the Securities.

(7) **Distribution**

- (a) Unless sub-paragraphs (b) or (c) apply any dividend, coupon, interest or similar payment or distribution (each, a "Distribution") in respect of any amount to be delivered will be payable to the party that would receive such Distribution according to market practice for a sale of the relevant amount executed for settlement on the Settlement Date, as specified in the Product Terms, and to be delivered in the same manner as such amount. Any such Distribution to be paid to a Securityholder shall be paid to the Clearing Agent for distribution to the Securityholders.
- (b) If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Securities any dividend, coupon, interest or similar payment or distribution (each, a "Distribution") in respect of any amount to be delivered will be payable to the party that would receive such Distribution according to market practice for a sale of the relevant amount executed for settlement on the Settlement Date, as specified in the Product Terms, and to be delivered in the same manner as such amount. Any such Distribution shall be paid to the Principal Agent for distribution to the relevant Affiliate Members of Interbolsa for subsequent distribution to the relevant Securityholders.
- If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Spanish Listed Securities (c) any dividend, coupon, interest or similar payment or distribution (each, a "Distribution") in respect of any amount to be delivered will be payable to the party that would receive such Distribution according to market practice for a sale of the relevant amount executed for settlement on the Settlement Date, as specified in the Product Terms, and to be delivered in the same manner as such amount. The holders of such Securities must rely upon the procedures of Iberclear to receive any such Distribution. The Issuer will be discharged of its payment obligations in respect of Spanish Listed Securities by payment to the relevant member of Iberclear appointed by the Issuer as paying agent which will procure payment to any of the relevant members of Iberclear, the clients of whom are shown as the registered Securityholders of such Spanish Listed Securities. The Issuer will be discharged towards the relevant Securityholders when the paying agent has paid, on behalf of the Issuer, the relevant amounts to each of the members of Iberclear, the clients of whom are shown as the registered Securityholders of such Spanish Listed Securities.
- (d) If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be French Securities any dividend, coupon, interest or similar payment or distribution (each, a "Distribution") in respect of any amount to be delivered will be payable to the party that would receive such Distribution according to market practice for a sale of the relevant amount executed for settlement on the Settlement Date, as specified in the Product Terms, and to be delivered in the same manner as such amount. Any such Distribution shall be paid by way of transfer to the account denominated in the relevant currency of the relevant Account Holders for the benefit of the Securityholders.

(8) **Deliveries**

Any deliveries due under the Securities shall be made at the risk of the relevant Securityholder and shall be transferred to the relevant Physical Delivery Clearing System(s) for delivery to the relevant Securityholder, provided that where the Issuer (or the Calculation Agent, in the case of Spanish Securities) determines in its reasonable discretion that the delivery by the Issuer is fully or partly impractical, illegal or unduly onerous to the Issuer, then the Issuer (or the Calculation Agent, in the case of Spanish Securities) shall have the option to determine that the Issuer will make the delivery in such other commercially reasonable manner as the Issuer (or the Calculation Agent, in the case of Spanish Securities) may determine to be appropriate for such delivery and shall notify the Securityholders in accordance with **§16**. The amount to be delivered shall be evidenced in such manner as the Issuer determines to be customary for the relevant amount. The Issuer shall be under no obligation to register or procure the registration of any Securityholder or any other person as the registered holder in respect of the amount to be delivered in any register of holders, including, but not limited to, a register of members of a stock corporation.

(9) **Settlement Disruption**

- (a) If and to the extent that any delivery becomes due under a Security and (i) if the Settlement Date is not a Business Day and/or (ii) prior to such delivery an event beyond the control of the Issuer occurs as a result of which the Issuer cannot make such delivery in accordance with such market method as it has elected at the relevant time for such delivery (a "Settlement Disruption Event"), then the Settlement Date for such delivery shall be postponed to the first following Business Day on which no such Settlement Disruption Event is subsisting.
- If such first following Business Day has not occurred by the fifth Business Day (b) following the day on which such delivery would have been due, the Issuer, in its reasonable discretion, will determine on each subsequent Business Day whether it expects the Settlement Disruption to end over the following five Business Days. If on any such subsequent Business Day, the Issuer does not expect the Settlement Disruption to end over the following five Business Days or if the Settlement Disruption Event is still subsisting on the tenth Business Day following the day on which delivery would have been due, the relevant delivery obligations will, in lieu of the affected delivery and notwithstanding any other provision hereof, be satisfied by payment of the Market Value of such Security taking into account any amounts already delivered or payments already made and the value of the remaining amount(s) which would otherwise be delivered or paid as shall be determined by the Issuer and, unless Non-Consideration of Cost is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, less a Security's proportionate share of the direct and indirect cost to the Issuer of unwinding any underlying related Hedging Arrangements (such amount the "Disruption Settlement Amount"), not later than on the third Business Day following the date that notice of such determination is given in accordance with §16. The Calculation Agent shall also take into account appropriate values for any other amount that would or could otherwise have been payable or deliverable under the relevant Securities.

Payment of the Disruption Settlement Amount willbe made in such manner as will be notified in accordance with §16. The Calculation Agent shall give notice as soon as practicable in accordance with §16 that a Settlement Disruption Event has occurred.

No Securityholder or any other person shall be entitled to any payment in respect of a Security as a result of any delay in a delivery due to the occurrence of a Settlement Disruption Event, and no liability in respect thereof shall attach to the Issuer.

"Market Value" is as defined in §6(4)(c).

(c) If Additional Adjustment/Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, the Issuer will only be entitled to exercise the rights set forth in paragraph (b) above, if the Settlement Disruption Event qualifies as a Restricted Event.

(10) Intervening Period

With regard to any delivery that is due under the Securities, for such period of time after the Settlement Date as the Issuer or any person on behalf of the Issuer shall continue to be the

legal owner of the amount to be delivered (the "Intervening Period"), neither the Issuer nor any other person shall (i) be under any obligation to deliver or procure delivery to the relevant Securityholder or any subsequent beneficial owner of such amount to be delivered or any other person any letter, certificate, notice, circular or any other document or payment whatsoever received by the issuer or that other person in its capacity as the holder of such amount; (ii) be under any obligation to exercise or procure exercise of any or all rights (including voting rights) attaching to such amount during the Intervening Period; or (iii) be under any liability to the relevant Securityholder or any subsequent beneficial owner of such amount or any other person in respect of any loss or damage which the relevant Securityholder or subsequent beneficial owner or any other person may sustain or suffer as a result, whether directly or indirectly, of the Issuer or any other such person being the legal owner of such amount during such Intervening Period.

(11) Liability (Settlement Risk)

Exercise, settlement and redemption of, and any payment and/or delivery in respect of, the Securities is subject to all applicable laws, regulations and practices in force at all relevant times, and neither the Issuer nor any Agent shall incur any liability whatsoever if it is unable to effect the transactions contemplated, after using all reasonable efforts, as a result of any such laws, regulations or practices. Neither the Issuer nor the Agents shall under any circumstances be liable for any acts or defaults of any Clearing Agent in relation to the performance of its duties in relation to the Securities.

§4 Coupon

(1) **Coupon Payment**

- (a) Unless Coupon Payment is specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Securities bear no coupon and pay no periodic amounts.
- (b) If Coupon Payment is specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Issuer shall, on each Coupon Payment Date, pay the relevant Coupon Amount. The Coupon Amount (if any) is payable as consideration for the use of the Nominal Amount (in case of Notes) or, as the case may be, the Initial Issue Price (in case of Certificates) in respect of a Security and as compensation in recognition that the Coupon Amount on any or all of the Coupon Payment Dates may be equal to zero or less than a commercial rate of return on the Securities and/or that the Cash Amount and/or value of the Physical Delivery Amount may be less than the Nominal Amount (in case of Notes) or, as the case may be, the Initial Issue Price (in case of Certificates). For the avoidance of doubt, in the event that the Coupon Amount for a Coupon Payment Date is zero, no amount shall be payable by the Issuer in respect of such Coupon Payment Date.
- (c) If Coupon Payment is specified to apply in the Product Terms and a Coupon Amount is required to be calculated for a period, such Coupon Amount will be calculated on the basis of the number of days in the Coupon Period, and, if specified, the Coupon applicable to such period (or if no such Coupon is specified in the Product Terms, the interest rate which the Calculation Agent determines would apply to a deposit of either the respective Nominal Amount or, as the case may be, the total outstanding nominal amount (in case of Notes) or the amount of the respective Initial Issue Price or the total outstanding Issue Volume (in case of Certificates) for the relevant period with a commercial bank determined by the Calculation Agent at the relevant time) and the Day Count Fraction. If Coupon Payment is specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Coupon Amount(s) shall be the only periodic amount(s) payable for the Security, and no further interest shall accrue in respect of the Securities.

(2) Accrual of Coupon

Coupon Amounts shall cease to be payable from and including the Coupon Cessation Date. Other than the Coupon Amount no periodic amount is payable for the Securities. In addition no interest shall accrue in respect of the Securities whether by reason of late payment of a Coupon Amount or otherwise.

(3) Definitions in respect of §4 and, if applicable, other Terms and Conditions:

Coupon Payment

- (a) "Nominal Amount" is as defined in the Product Terms.
- (b) **"Coupon Payment Date**" means each day specified to be a Coupon Payment Date in the Product Terms.
- (c) **"Coupon Cessation Date**" is as specified in the Product Terms.
- (d) **"Coupon Amount**" means, in respect of either each nominal amount or, as the case may be, the total outstanding nominal amount (in case of Notes) or the Initial Issue Price or, as the case may be, the total outstanding Issue Volume (in case of

Certificates), the amount specified in the Product Terms or the amount determined as specified in the Product Terms or,

(i) if adjusted Coupon Periods are specified in the Product Terms, an amount calculated by the Calculation Agent as specified under "Coupon Amount" in the Product Terms or if not specified there, calculated as follows:

if the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Notes:

Nominal Amount or, as the case may be, total outstanding nominal amount x Coupon x Day Count Fraction, or

if the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Certificates:

Initial Issue Price or, as the case may be, total outstanding Issue Volume x Coupon x Day Count Fraction, or

(ii) if unadjusted Coupon Periods are specified in the Product Terms, the Coupon Amount for the respective Coupon Period specified in the Product Terms.

Each Coupon Amount will be rounded to the nearest two decimal places in the Settlement Currency, with 0.005 being rounded upwards or if the Settlement Currency is Japanese yen, rounded up to the nearest yen.

The Coupon Amount shall in any case not be less than zero.

- (e) **"Coupon**" is as defined in the Product Terms.
- (f) **"Day Count Fraction**" means a fraction being any of the following as specified in the Product Terms:
 - the actual number of days in the Coupon Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of the Coupon Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the Coupon Period falling in a leap year divided by 366; and (B) the actual number of days in that portion of the Coupon Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365) (Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA));
 - (ii) (a) if the number of days in the Coupon Calculation Period does not exceed the number of days in the Coupon Period in which the Coupon Calculation Period ends, the number of days in the Coupon Calculation Period divided by the product of (1) the number of days in the Coupon Period and (2) the number of days in the Coupon Period which would occur in a calendar year; and
 - (b) if the Coupon Calculation Period is longer than the Coupon Period in which the Coupon Calculation Period ends, the sum of:
 - the number of days in the Coupon Calculation Period falling in the Coupon Period in which the Coupon Calculation Period begins divided by the product of (x) the number of days in the Coupon Period, and
 - (ii) (y) the number of days in the Coupon Period which would occur in a calendar year; and the number of days in the Coupon

Calculation Period which fall in the next Coupon Period divided by the product of (x) the number of days in the Coupon Period and (y) the number of days in the Coupon Period which would occur in a calendar year. (Actual/Actual (ICMA Rule 251));

- (iii) the actual number of days in the Coupon Period divided by 365 (Actual/365 (Fixed));
- (iv) the actual number of days in the Coupon Period divided by 360 (Actual/360);
- (v) the number of days in the Coupon Period divided by 360, whereby the number of days is to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 months each comprising 30 days (unless (A) the last day of the Coupon Period is the 31st day of a month, in which case the month that includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a month comprising 30 days or (B) the last day of the Coupon Period is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a month comprising 30 days)) (30/360, 360/360 or Bond Basis);
- (vi) the number of days in the Coupon Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 months each comprising 30 days, without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the Coupon Period unless, in the case of a Coupon Period ending on the Settlement Date, the Settlement Date is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a month comprising 30 days)(30E/360 or Eurobond Basis); or
- (vii) the number of days in the Coupon Period divided by 360, calculated according to the following formula:

Day Count Fraction =
$$\frac{[360 \times (Y_2 - Y_1)] + [30 \times (M_2 - M_1)] + (D_2 - D_1)}{360}$$

where:

 $^{"}\mathbf{Y}_{1}^{"}$ is the year in which the first day of the Coupon Period falls, expressed as a number,

 $"Y_2"$ is the year in which the day immediately following the last day of the Coupon Period falls, expressed as a number,

 $^{"}M_{1}$ " is the calendar month in which the first day of the Coupon Period falls, expressed as a number,

 M_{2} is the calendar month in which the day immediately following the last day of the Coupon Period falls, expressed as a number,

"T₁" is the first calendar day of the Coupon Period expressed as a number, where (i) if this day is the last day in February or (ii) if this number is 31, T_1 is changed to 30, and

 T_2 is the calendar day immediately following the last day of the Coupon Period expressed as number, where (i) if this day is the last day in February,

but not the Settlement Date or (ii) if the number is 31, T_2 is changed to 30 (30E/360 (ISDA)).

(g) **"Coupon Period**" means, unless otherwise specified within the Product Terms, the period commencing on (and including) (x) the Value Date or, (y) if no Value Date is specified in the Product Terms, the Issue Date, to (but excluding) the first Coupon Period End Date, and (where there is more than one Coupon Period) each period commencing on (and including) a Coupon Period End Date to (but excluding) the next following Coupon Period End Date and, if any Coupon Amount is required to be calculated for a period ending other than on (but excluding) the relevant Coupon Period End Date, the period commencing on and including the immediately preceding Coupon Period End Date (or if none (x) the Value Date or, (y) if no Value Date is specified in the Product Terms, the Issue Date) to but excluding the relevant payment date.

If adjusted Coupon Periods are specified in the Product Terms and in the calendar month in which a Coupon Period End Date should fall there is no numerical counterpart to this day or if a Coupon Period End Date falls on a day which is not a Business Day, the Coupon Period End Date is postponed in accordance with the Business Day Convention specified in the Product Terms and the Coupon Period is adjusted accordingly.

If unadjusted Coupon Periods are specified in the Product Terms, the Coupon Period End Date is not postponed and no corresponding adjustment is made to the Coupon Period.

- (h) **"Issue Date**" is as defined in the Product Terms being the date on which the Securities are first issued.
- (i) **"Value Date**" is as defined in the Product Terms.
- (j) **"Coupon Period End Date**" means each day specified to be a Coupon Period End Date in the Product Terms.
- (k) "Coupon Calculation Period" is as defined in the Product Terms.
- (I) "Business Day Convention" is as defined in the Product Terms.
- (m) "Initial Issue Price" is as defined in the Product Terms.
- (n) **"Issue Volume**" is calculated as the product of (i) the Initial Issue Price and (ii) the number of the Securities outstanding.

§5 Market Disruptions and non-Trading Day

(1) **Consequences of Market Disruption and non-Trading Day**

A Market Disruption or a day not being a Trading Day may affect the valuation of a Reference Item or Hedging Arrangements of the Issuer in an unintended way. It is therefore necessary when a Market Disruption occurs or a day is not a Trading Day for the valuation of the Reference Item to be adjusted as follows:

- (a) if any day in respect of which the Calculation Agent is required to determine the price or level of a Reference Item for the purposes of §1 or §4 or otherwise as set out in the Product Terms is not a Trading Day (with the meaning given above), the relevant price or level shall be determined on the first succeeding Trading Day, subject to as provided below. Any such day for determination is referred to as a "Scheduled Valuation Date";
- (b) if, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, on any Scheduled Valuation Date (including, if any Observation Date(s) occurring on a daily basis is specified in the Product Terms, the last occurring Observation Date but excluding any other such Observation Date(s) on which a Market Disruption exists, and for such other Observation Dates affected by a Market Disruption the relevant Observation Date determination shall not be made), a Market Disruption has occurred in relation to any Reference Item:
 - (i) subject to sub-paragraph (ii) below:
 - 1. if Separate Reference Item Determination is not specified to apply in the Product Terms, all determinations on such Scheduled Valuation Date for all the Reference Items (including the affected Reference Item) shall be deferred to the first succeeding Trading Day on which there is no Market Disruption for any Reference Items; or
 - 2. if (x) the Underlying is not specified to be a Basket or (y) the Underlying is specified to be a Basket in the Product Terms and Separate Reference Item Determination is specified to apply in the Product Terms, the determination on such Scheduled Valuation Date shall only be deferred for any affected Reference Item to the first succeeding Trading Day on which there is no Market Disruption for such Reference Item,

provided that in each case if such first succeeding Trading Day has not occurred by the Ultimate Trading Day following the Scheduled Valuation Date the Calculation Agent shall in its reasonable discretion determine the price or level of each undetermined Reference Item as of the Ultimate Trading Day following the Scheduled Valuation Date which in the case of a Reference Item for which a Market Disruption then exists shall be such price or level that it determines would have prevailed but for the occurrence of a Market Disruption, having regard to the then prevailing market conditions, the last reported, published or traded level or price of the Reference Item, if applicable in accordance with the formula for and method of calculating the price or level of the Reference Item last in effect prior to the occurrence of the Market Disruption, unless Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, in which case the Calculation Agent shall only be authorised to do so if the Market Disruption qualifies as a Restricted Event. The Calculation Agent shall give notice of any such determination as soon as reasonably practicable in accordance with §16; and

(ii) if Averaging is specified to apply in the Product Terms and (A) this §5(1)(b)(ii) is specified to apply in the Product Terms, the first succeeding Trading Day referred to in (a) or (b) above shall be the first succeeding Trading Day which is not itself a day on which the price or level of the relevant affected Reference Item is to be determined for the purpose of calculating an average price or level and on which a Market Disruption does not occur but in each case subject to the provisions applicable on the Ultimate Trading Day following the Scheduled Valuation Date in the manner set out in sub paragraph (b)(i) above, or (B) this §5(1)(b)(ii) is specified not to apply in the Product Terms, the determination for the relevant Scheduled Valuation Date shall be deferred to the relevant Averaging Disruption Date as provided in the Product Terms.

For the purposes of this §5(1) if the Underlying is specified to be a Basket in the Product Terms and Separate Reference Item Determination is specified to be applicable in the Product Terms, then, subject to as provided below, all references to a Trading Day shall be construed as references to a day which is a Trading Day determined as if the relevant Reference Item was the only Underlying and, for the purposes of determining whether a Market Disruption has occurred on any day, §5(4) below shall be applied separately in relation to each Reference Item and references therein to a Trading Day shall be construed as being a Trading Day determined as specified above in relation only to the relevant Reference Item, provided that where it is necessary to calculate a value or level for each Reference Item on any Trading Day for the purposes of the Product Terms then such Trading Day is required to be a day which is a Trading Day for all Reference Items.

If any determination(s) of the Calculation Agent in respect of any day and any Reference Item is delayed pursuant to this §5(1) then, for the avoidance of doubt, such day will itself also be deemed to be delayed in the same manner as such determination(s) and by reference to the relevant affected Reference Item(s), until the day on which each relevant delayed determination for the relevant affected Reference Item(s) has been made.

As used here in:

"Observation Date(s)" is as specified in the Product Terms.

(2) Rate Determination

Where the Underlying or a Reference Item is an interest rate or if a Coupon is to be determined by reference to one or more interest rates (each an "Interest Rate") for the purpose of calculating an obligation due under §1 or §4, unless otherwise specified in the Product Terms, the following provisions shall apply. If on any relevant day it is not possible, for reasons beyond the reasonable control of the Calculation Agent, to determine the relevant Coupon by reference to the relevant Interest Rate(s) according to the rules or normal or accepted procedures for the determination of such Interest Rate(s) (whether due to nonpublication of a price or value or otherwise), each affected Interest Rate will be determined on the basis of the rates at which deposits in the relevant currency for such rate are offered by the Reference Banks at or about the Market Relevant Time, on that day to prime banks in the Relevant Market for a period of the Designated Maturity commencing on that day and for a Representative Amount. The Calculation Agent will request the principal office in the Relevant Market of each of the Reference Banks to provide a guotation of its rate. If at least two quotations are provided as requested, the relevant Interest Rate for that day will be the arithmetic mean of the quotations. If fewer than two quotations are provided as requested, the relevant Interest Rate for such day will be the arithmetic mean of the rates quoted by

major banks in the Substitute Market, selected by the Calculation Agent, at the Relevant Time on that day for loans in the relevant currency for such Interest Rate to leading European banks for a period of the Designated Maturity commencing on that day and for a Representative Amount.

(3) Definitions in respect of §5(2) and, if applicable, other Terms and Conditions:

Rate Determination

- (a) **"Designated Maturity**" is as defined in the Product Terms or, if not defined there, is the term of the loans to which the relevant Interest Rate relates.
- (b) **"Euro-zone**" means the region comprised of member states of the European Union that adopted the euro in accordance with the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, as amended.
- (c) "Market Relevant Time" means, in respect of a Relevant Market or Substitute Market, approximately 11.00 a.m. local time in the location of such Relevant Market or Substitute Market, as applicable, provided that Brussels shall be deemed to be the location of the Euro-zone market.
- (d) **"Reference Banks**" means four major banks in the Relevant Market selected by the Calculation Agent, which may include the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates.
- (e) **"Representative Amount**" means an amount that is representative for a single transaction in the respective market at the relevant time and, with regard to the Relevant Market if the relevant Interest Rate relates to loans denominated in EUR, the assumption of an Actual/360 day count basis.

(f) "Relevant Market" means

- (i) if the relevant Interest Rate relates to loans denominated in USD or any currency other than EUR: the London interbank market
- (ii) if the relevant Interest Rate relates to loans denominated in EUR: the Eurozone interbank market.

(g) "Substitute Market" means

- (i) if the relevant Interest Rate relates to loans denominated in USD or any currency other than EUR: New York City
- (ii) if the relevant Interest Rate relates to loans denominated in EUR: the Eurozone.

(4) Events and/or situations constituting Market Disruption

"**Market Disruption**" means any of the following events or situations if, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, any of these is material to the valuation of a Reference Item or, unless Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, any Hedging Arrangements of the Issuer in relation to the Securities provided that any Market Disruption in respect of a Relevant Reference Item shall be deemed to be a Market Disruption in respect of the related Reference Item:

- (a) if the Reference Source for a Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item is an exchange, a trading system or a quotation system as determined by the Calculation Agent:
 - (i) the failure of a relevant Related Exchange or Reference Source, to open for trading during its regular trading session on any Trading Day; or
 - (ii) (aa) the failure of the relevant Index Sponsor to publish the level of a Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item which is an index on any Trading Day or (bb) the failure of a relevant Related Exchange to open for trading during its regular trading session; or
 - (iii) the occurrence or existence on any Trading Day at the Relevant Time for a Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item or at any time during the one hour period that ends at the Relevant Time for such Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item, as applicable:
 - 1. of any suspension of or limitation imposed on trading by the relevant Reference Source or Related Exchange or otherwise (and whether by reason of movements in price exceeding limits permitted by the relevant Reference Source or any Related Exchange or otherwise):
 - a. of a Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item on the relevant Reference Source; or
 - b. where the Reference Item is not, under the heading of "Underlying" in the Product Terms, specified to be a Multi-Exchange Index, on any Reference Source as a whole; or
 - c. in options contracts or futures contracts on or relating to a Reference Item on any Related Exchange; or
 - d. on any other exchange or trading system or quotation system on which a Reference Item is listed or quoted; or
 - 2. of any event that disrupts or impairs (as determined by the Calculation Agent) the ability of market participants in general (i) to effect transactions in relation to or to obtain market values for, a Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item on the relevant Reference Source or (ii) to effect transactions in, or obtain market values for options contracts or futures contracts on or relating to a Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item on any relevant Related Exchange; or
 - (iv) the closure on any Exchange Business Day of a relevant Reference Source(s) or any Related Exchange(s) prior to its Scheduled Closing Time unless such earlier closing time is announced by such Reference Source(s) or Related Exchange(s) at least one hour prior to the earlier of (aa) the actual closing time for the regular trading session on such Reference Source(s) or Related Exchange(s) on such Exchange Business Day and (bb) the submission deadline (if applicable) for orders to be entered into the Reference Source or Related Exchange system for execution at the Relevant Time on such Exchange Business Day;

(b) if the Reference Source for a Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item is not an exchange, a trading system or a quotation system as determined by the Calculation Agent:

it is not possible, for reasons beyond the reasonable control of the Calculation Agent, to determine the price or value (or an element of such price or value) of such Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item by reference to such Reference Source according to the rules or normal or accepted procedures for the determination of such price or value (whether due to non-publication of such price or value or otherwise);

- (c) if the Reference Item is specified to be an "Emerging Market Underlying" in the Product Terms:
 - (i) where the Reference Currency for a Reference Item is different from the Settlement Currency, the occurrence at any time during the term of the Securities of an event which the Calculation Agent determines would have the effect of preventing, restricting or delaying the Issuer and/or any Hedging Party, unless Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the product Term, from:
 - 1. converting the Reference Currency into the Settlement Currency through customary legal channels or transferring within or from any Relevant Country either currency, due to the imposition by such Relevant Country of any controls restricting or prohibiting such conversion or transfer, as the case may be;
 - 2. converting the Reference Currency into the Settlement Currency at an exchange rate at least as favourable as the rate for domestic institutions located in any Relevant Country;
 - 3. transferring the Reference Currency or Settlement Currency from accounts inside any Relevant Country to accounts outside such Relevant Country; or
 - 4. transferring the Reference Currency or Settlement Currency between accounts inside any Relevant Country or to a party that is a non-resident of such Relevant Country; or
 - (ii) a Relevant Country (a) imposes any controls or announces its intention to impose any controls; or (b)(i) implements or announces its intention to implement; or (ii) changes or announces its intention to change the interpretation or administration of any laws or regulations, in each case which the Calculation Agent determines is likely to affect the Issuer's ability to acquire, hold, transfer or realise or otherwise to effect transactions in relation to a Reference Item,

provided that where the Reference Item is, under the heading of "Underlying" in the Product Terms, specified to be a Rate of Exchange, within (i) and (ii) above references to "Reference Currency" should be read as references to "Second Currency" and references to "Settlement Currency" as references to "First Currency"; or

(d) a general banking moratorium is declared in respect of banking activities in any Relevant Country.

(5) **Definitions in respect of §5(4) and, if applicable, other Terms and Conditions:**

(a) "Affiliate" means any entity controlled, directly or indirectly, by the Issuer, any entity that controls, directly or indirectly, the Issuer, or any entity under common control with the Issuer. As used herein "control" means ownership of a majority of the voting power of the entity or, as the case may be, the Issuer and "controlled by" and "controls" shall be construed accordingly.

(b) "Exchange Business Day" means

- in respect of a Reference Item for which the Reference Source is an exchange, trading system or quotation system and which is not specified to be a Multi-Exchange Index, any Trading Day on which each Reference Source and each Related Exchange are open for trading during their respective regular trading sessions, notwithstanding any such Reference Source or Related Exchange closing prior to its Scheduled Closing Time;
- (ii) in respect of a Reference Item for which the Reference Source is not an exchange, trading system or quotation system and which is not specified to be a Multi-Exchange Index, any Trading Day on which (aa) the relevant Index Sponsor publishes the level of such Reference Item and (bb) the Related Exchange is open for trading during its regular trading session(s), notwithstanding such Related Exchange closing prior to its Scheduled Closing Time; and
- (iii) in respect of a Reference Item for which the Reference Source is not an exchange, trading system or quotation system and which is specified to be a Multi-Exchange Index, any Trading Day on which (aa) the relevant Index Sponsor publishes the level of such Reference Item, (bb) each Related Exchange is open for trading during its regular trading session(s), notwithstanding such Related Exchange closing prior to its Scheduled Closing Time and (cc) each Relevant Exchange in respect of each Relevant Reference Item is scheduled to be open for trading during its regular trading session(s), notwithstanding such Relevant Exchange closing prior to its Scheduled Closing Time and (cc) each Relevant Exchange in respect of each Relevant Reference Item is scheduled to be open for trading during its regular trading session(s), notwithstanding such Relevant Exchange closing prior to its Scheduled Closing Time.
- (c) "Hedging Arrangements" means the arrangements the Issuer makes to have available to it the relevant cash amounts or assets to be paid or delivered under the Securities as these fall due. This may involve the Issuer investing directly or indirectly in the Underlying. An indirect investment might be made by an Affiliate or agent of the Issuer or other third party making an investment in the Underlying. Alternatively an indirect investment might involve the Issuer or an Affiliate, agent or other third party entering into or acquiring a derivative contract referencing the Underlying. The Issuer will select Hedging Arrangements which are efficient for it in the context of the tax, regulatory and business environment in which it operates. The Issuer may also adjust Hedging Arrangements from time to time but it will not always be able to avoid adverse costs, taxes or regulatory changes which affect its Hedging Arrangements.
- (d) **"Hedging Party**" means any Affiliate or agent of the Issuer or other third party providing the Issuer with Hedging Arrangements as described in the definition of Hedging Arrangements above.
- (e) **"Index Sponsor**" means (i) in relation to a Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item which is an index specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms, the sponsor specified therein for such index; and (ii) in relation to any other Reference

Item or Relevant Reference Item which is an index, the entity determined by the Calculation Agent to be principally responsible for the determination and publication of such index provided that, in either case, references to an Index Sponsor shall include any Successor Sponsor.

- (f) **"Multi-Exchange Index**", if applicable, means each Reference Item specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms to be a Multi-Exchange Index.
- (g) "Reference Currency" (i) in relation to a Reference Item, if so specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms, is the Reference Currency or (in the case of a Basket Constituent) is the Basket Constituent Currency, each as specified under such heading or, if not specified there, is the Settlement Currency; and (ii) in relation to a Relevant Reference Item, is the currency in which such asset is denominated or quoted or with which it is most closely connected, as determined by the Calculation Agent.
- (h) "Reference Item" means each asset or reference basis (i) specified, under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms, to be the Underlying or; (ii) in the case of a basket of assets or reference bases, comprising the Underlying. For the avoidance of doubt: A Basket Constituent shall be deemed a Reference Item.
- (i) "Reference Source", in relation to a Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item, as applicable, is as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms or any successor to any such Reference Source, acceptable to and as determined by the Calculation Agent or, if not defined there, the reference source or reference sources determined by the Calculation Agent to be applicable to the valuation of the Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item, as applicable for the purposes of determining its relevant level or value. If more than one source is specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms each of these sources is a reference source.
- (j) "Related Exchange" means, unless otherwise defined under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms, with respect to a Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item, each exchange, trading system or quotation system whose trading has an effect on the overall market for options contracts or futures contracts on the Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item, and any successor acceptable to the Calculation Agent, as determined by the Calculation Agent.
- (k) "Relevant Country" means, as determined by the Calculation Agent, each of:
 - any country (or any political or regulatory authority thereof) in which a Reference Currency or the Settlement Currency is the legal tender or currency; and
 - (ii) any country (or any political or regulatory authority thereof) with which a Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item or, if a security, the relevant issuer has a material connection and, in determining what is material the Calculation Agent may, without limitation, refer to the country in which any such issuer is incorporated or, in relation to an index, the country or countries in which the Index or Relevant Reference Item(s) is calculated or published and/or such other factor(s) as it may deem appropriate.
- (I) **"Relevant Exchange**" means, unless otherwise defined under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms, with respect to a Relevant Reference Item, the primary exchange on which such Relevant Reference Item is listed or traded and any

successor acceptable to the Calculation Agent, as determined by the Calculation Agent.

- (m) "Relevant Reference Item" means, in respect of a Reference Item specified to be an index, any index or other constituent used for the calculation or determination of such index or any asset or reference basis constituting such Reference Item at the relevant time.
- (n) "Relevant Time" means, with respect to a Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item,
 - (i) where the Reference Item is not, under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms, specified to be a Multi-Exchange Index and in relation to each Relevant Reference Item, the relevant time by reference to which the Calculation Agent determines the level or value of such Reference Item or Relevant Reference Item; and
 - (ii) where the relevant Reference Item is an index and is under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms, specified to be a Multi-Exchange Index,
 - 1. for the purposes of determining whether a Market Disruption has occurred,
 - a. in respect of any Reference Item, the Scheduled Closing Time on the relevant Reference Source in respect of such Reference Item; and
 - b. in respect of any options contracts or futures contracts on or relating to such Reference Item, the close of trading on the Related Exchange; and
 - 2. in all other circumstances, the time at which the official closing level of such index is calculated and published by the relevant Index Sponsor.
- (o) **"Scheduled Closing Time**" means, in respect of a Reference Source, a Related Exchange or Relevant Exchange and a Trading Day, the scheduled weekday closing time of such Reference Source, Related Exchange or relevant Exchange on such Trading Day, without regard to after hours or any other trading outside of the regular trading session hours.
- (p) "Settlement Currency" is as defined in the Product Terms.
- (q) "Ultimate Trading Day" means the eighth Trading Day unless otherwise specified in the Product Terms.

§6 Adjustment Events and Adjustment/Termination Events

(1) Adjustment Events

The occurrence of any of the following events set out under "General Events" or "Specific Events" below, in each case, in respect of a Reference Item (as specified in the Product Terms under the heading "Underlying") shall constitute an "**Adjustment Event**":

General Events:

- (a) an event occurs which materially affects, or is likely to materially affect, the theoretical economic value of such Reference Item, which has an economic, dilutive or concentrative effect on the theoretical economic value of such Reference Item, or otherwise materially disrupts the economic link between the value of such Reference Item and the Securities subsisting immediately prior to the occurrence of such event; and/or
- (b) a Reference Item, or the underlying constituent(s) or reference basis(es) for any Reference Item, is materially modified.

Specific Events:

any of the events or circumstances specified as Adjustment Events in para. (5) below.

The occurrence of any such Adjustment Event which materially affects, or is likely to materially affect, the economic value of the Issuer's payment and/or delivery obligations in respect of the Securities as compared to before and after the occurrence of such an Adjustment Event in a way which has not been reflected in the pricing and economic parameters of the Securities.

As a result the Issuer shall be entitled to make adjustments to the Terms and Conditions following the occurrence of any such Adjustment Event as set out in para. (2) below or if it determines that it is not able to make an appropriate adjustment pursuant to para. (2) below may elect to treat the Adjustment Event as an Adjustment/Termination Event under para. (3) below. See para. (3)(c) below. This is part of the economic risk Securityholders bear when investing in the Securities and the basis on which the price and economic parameters of the Securities are determined.

If Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms and the proposed adjustment relates to the Essential Characteristics of the Securities, the Issuer shall only be entitled to exercise the adjustments provided for in §6(2) or in §6(5) if the Adjustment Events qualify as Restricted Events.

For the avoidance of doubt, an event or circumstance may at the same time qualify as an Adjustment Event under more than one of the above items (a)-(c) and each of the Adjustment Events in relation to a Reference Item set out in para. (5) below shall constitute an Adjustment Event.

(2) **Consequences of an Adjustment Event**

Following the determination by the Calculation Agent that an Adjustment Event has occurred, the Calculation Agent may, in its reasonable discretion, either (i) make no adjustments to the Terms and Conditions, or (ii) make such adjustments to the Terms and Conditions as it, in its reasonable discretion, determines necessary or appropriate in order to (a) account for the effect of such Adjustment Event, and/or (b) to preserve as nearly as practicable the value of the Issuer's payment and/or delivery obligations in respect of the Securities as compared to before and after the occurrence of such Adjustment Event and the economic link between the Underlying and the Securities, and will determine when these adjustments become effective. This may include, without limitation, where the Underlying, or the relevant Reference Item, is an index (in each case as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms) determining the level of that index on that date using, in lieu of a published level for that index, the level for that index as at that date as determined by the Calculation Agent in accordance with the formula for and method of calculating that index last in effect prior to the relevant Adjustment Event but using only those Relevant Reference Items that comprised that index immediately prior to the event. This may also include, without limitation. where the Underlying, or the relevant Reference Item, is a Managed Basket (in each case as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms), determining that the basket becomes static and that the Securityholders are granted an additional exercise date, which shall not be earlier than six weeks following and excluding the date on which the Issuer has informed the Securityholders and the Calculation Agent of the occurrence of an Adjustment Event (an "Additional Exercise Date").

In using its discretion, the Calculation Agent will take into account the implications of different potential adjustments for the Issuer and Securityholders.

Unless Non-Consideration of Cost has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, such adjustments may take into account and pass on to Securityholders any increased direct or indirect cost to the Issuer as a result of or in connection with the relevant Adjustment Event including, without limitation, any tax, duty, withholding, deduction or other charge whatsoever (including but not limited to a change in tax consequences) for the Issuer. Such change in tax consequences may include, but is not limited to, any changes resulting from any Hedging Arrangements of the Issuer in relation to the Securities.

The Calculation Agent may, but need not, determine the appropriate adjustment by reference to the adjustment in respect of such event made by a Related Exchange to options or futures contracts on the relevant Reference Item traded on that Related Exchange. Any such adjustment may take into account, as the Calculation Agent deems appropriate, any tax, duty, withholding, deduction or other charge whatsoever (including but not limited to a change in tax consequences) for the Issuer as a result of the Adjustment Event.

Upon making any such adjustment, the Calculation Agent shall give notice as soon as practicable to the Securityholders in accordance with §16, stating the adjustment made to the Terms and Conditions and giving brief details of the relevant Adjustment Event.

If Minimum Redemption Payable has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Calculation Agent will not make any adjustments that would reduce the Issuer's obligations to less than the Minimum Redemption.

If Adjustment/Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms and notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Terms and Conditions, in exercising its discretion and/or in making any election, determination or adjustment, the Issuer, the Calculation Agent and any other relevant Agent shall do so in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, to preserve or restore the economics of the agreed terms, as far as possible. Any such election, determination or adjustment shall not create a significant imbalance between the rights and obligations of the Issuer compared to the Securityholders, to the detriment of the Securityholders.

(3) Adjustment/Termination Event

The occurrence of any of the following events set out under "General Events" or "Specific Events" below, in each case, in respect of (i) the Securities; or (ii) a Reference Item (as specified in the Product Terms under the heading "Underlying") shall constitute an "Adjustment/Termination Event":

General Events:

- (a) an event occurs which materially affects, or is likely to materially affect, the method by which the Calculation Agent determines the level or price of any Reference Item or the ability of the Calculation Agent to determine the level or price of any Reference Item;
- (b) a Reference Item is materially modified or affected, whether as a result of a de-listing, merger event, tender offer, termination, redemption, insolvency, nationalisation, a material change in the formula or method for calculating such Reference Item or a material change in its Investment Guidelines, policies, strategy, management or constitutional documents or any other event which the Calculation Agent determines, in its reasonable discretion, constitutes a material modification of or materially affects a Reference Item;
- (c) an Adjustment Event has occurred in respect of which the Calculation Agent determines that it is not able to make an appropriate adjustment pursuant to §6(2) above;
- (d) the Issuer determines that:
 - (i) the performance of its obligations under the Securities has or will become illegal (an "**Illegality Event**"); or
 - (ii) the performance of its obligations under the Securities has or will become practically impossible in whole or in part; or
 - the performance of its obligations under the Securities has or will become not reasonably practical in whole or in part or such performance would incur materially increased direct or indirect costs, taxes, duties or expenses (as compared to the position on the Issue Date); or
 - (iv) unless Adjustment / Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, it is or will become illegal or not reasonably practical for the Issuer to acquire, establish, re-establish, substitute, maintain, unwind or dispose of its Hedging Arrangements with respect to the Securities, in whole or in part, or the Issuer will incur materially increased direct or indirect costs, taxes, duties or expenses or fees in acquiring, establishing, re-establishing, substituting, maintaining, unwinding or disposing of its Hedging Arrangements (as compared to the position on the Issue Date), including, without limitation, due to any increase in tax liability, decrease in tax benefits or other adverse effect on the tax position of the Issuer,

(without limitation the Issuer may determine this in circumstances where there is a change in applicable law or regulation (including without limitation, any tax law) in any relevant jurisdiction or interpretation by any court, tribunal or regulatory authority of any such relevant law or regulation (including any action taken by a taxing authority), a decline in the number of appropriate third parties with whom to contract or with whom to contract on reasonable terms in relation to any Reference Item, a material lack of liquidity in the market for any shares, options, instruments or other assets typically used for offsetting risk in relation to a Reference Item);

- (e) unless Adjustment / Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Issuer determines that it is unable, after using commercially reasonable efforts, to realise, recover or remit the proceeds of any Hedging Arrangement(s);
- (f) the Issuer determines, at any time, that a Market Disruption exists on any Ultimate Trading Day pursuant to §5 and that any valuation methods provided in §5 for this case would not be appropriate for the purposes of making the relevant calculation, and the Issuer then elects to treat such Market Disruption as an Adjustment/Termination Event;
- (g) a Force Majeure Event occurs. For these purposes a "Force Majeure Event" means an event or circumstance which prevents or materially affects the performance of the Issuer's obligations and may include a system failure, fire, building evacuation, natural or man-made disaster, act of God, armed conflict, act of terrorism, riot or Iabour disruption or any similar intervening circumstances; and/or
- (h) liquidity or market conditions in relation to any Reference Item (including the trading of any Reference Item) are materially adversely affected other than where this leads to a Market Disruption; and/or

Specific Events:

any of events or circumstances specified as Adjustment/Termination Events in para. (5) below.

The occurrence of any Adjustment/Termination Event may have the result that the Issuer is not able to continue to perform its obligations under the Securities or, unless Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, to maintain its Hedging Arrangements or will incur increased costs, taxes, or expenses in so doing, and such inability or increased costs, taxes, or expenses have not been reflected in the pricing and economic parameters of the Securities. As a result the Issuer shall be entitled to make adjustments to the Terms and Conditions or to substitute a Reference Item or, if Minimum Redemption Payable has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, to pay the Minimum Redemption, any Coupon Amounts or other amounts or deliver the Physical Delivery Amount, as applicable, or, if Minimum Redemption Payable has not been specified to apply in the Product Terms, to cancel and terminate the Securities following the occurrence of any such Adjustment/Termination as set out in para. (4) below. This is part of the economic **risk Securityholders bear when investing in the Securities and the basis on which the price and economic parameters of the Securities are determined.**

If Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms the Issuer shall only be entitled to take the actions provided for in §6(4) or in §6(5) if the Adjustment/ Termination Events qualify as Restricted Events.

For the avoidance of doubt, an event or circumstance may at the same time qualify as an Adjustment/Termination Event under more than one of the above items (a)-(i) and each of the Adjustment/Termination Events in relation to a Reference Item set out in para. (5) below shall constitute an Adjustment/Termination Event.

(4) **Consequences of an Adjustment/Termination Event:**

Following the determination by the Calculation Agent that an Adjustment/Termination Event has occurred, the Calculation Agent may take any of the following actions. In particular, it should be noted that para. (c) below allows a termination and cancellation of the Securities:

(a) other than in respect of an Adjustment/Termination Event in §6(3)(c) above, the Calculation Agent may make such adjustments to the Terms and Conditions as it, in its reasonable discretion, determines necessary or appropriate in order to (i) account for the effect of such Adjustment/Termination Event, and/or (ii) to preserve as nearly as practicable the value of the Issuer's payment and/or delivery obligations in respect of the Securities as compared to before and after the occurrence of such Adjustment/Termination Event and the economic link between the Underlying and the Securities and determine when these adjustments become effective. This may include, without limitation, where the Underlying, or the relevant Reference Item, is an index (in each case as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms) determining the level of that index on that date using, in lieu of a published level for that index, the level for that index as at that date as determined by the Calculation Agent in accordance with the formula for and method of calculating that index last in effect prior to the relevant Adjustment/Termination Event but using only those Relevant Reference Items that comprised that index immediately prior to the event.

In using its discretion, the Calculation Agent will take into account the implications of different potential adjustments for the Issuer and Securityholders.

Unless Non-Consideration of Cost has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, such adjustments may take into account and pass on to Securityholders any increased direct or indirect cost to the Issuer as a result of or in connection with the relevant Adjustment/Termination Event including, without limitation, any tax, duty, withholding, deduction or other charge whatsoever (including but not limited to a change in tax consequences) for the Issuer. Such change in tax consequences may include, but is not limited to, any changes resulting from any Hedging Arrangements of the Issuer in relation to the Securities.

The Calculation Agent may, but need not, determine the appropriate adjustment by reference to the adjustment in respect of such event made by a Related Exchange to options or futures contracts on the relevant Reference Item traded on that Related Exchange or the adjustments that would follow from the rules and precedents set by an exchange or trading system or quotation system to account for the relevant Adjustment/Termination Event that in the determination of the Calculation Agent would have given rise to an adjustment by the exchange or trading system or quotation system if such options or futures contracts were traded thereon.

If Minimum Redemption Payable has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Calculation Agent will not make any adjustments that would reduce the Issuer's obligations to less than the Minimum Redemption.

If Adjustment/Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms and notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Conditions, in exercising its discretion and/or in making any election, determination or adjustment, the Issuer, the Calculation Agent and any other relevant Agent shall do so in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, to preserve or restore the economics of the agreed terms, as far as possible. Any such election, determination or adjustment shall not create a significant imbalance between the rights and obligations of the Issuer compared to the Securityholders, to the detriment of the Securityholders.

- (b) if Underlying Replacement has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Calculation Agent may substitute the relevant Reference Item affected by the Adjustment/Termination Event with a Replacement Asset, as specified in the Product Terms, on or after the effective date of such Adjustment/Termination Event. However, if the relevant Adjustment/Termination Event is a Merger Event and the consideration granted for the relevant Reference Item as part of the Merger Event consists of assets other than cash that are not already included in the Underlying, as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms, then the Calculation Agent may at its option adjust the Underlying to include the relevant quantity (determined with regard to the economic terms of the Securities) of such assets to which a holder of the Reference Item would be entitled prior to the occurrence of the Merger Event. The Calculation Agent shall make such adjustments to the Terms and Conditions as it in its reasonable discretion deems appropriate to account for such substitution or additional assets. If Adjustment/Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms and notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Conditions, in exercising its discretion and/or in making any election, determination or adjustment, the Issuer, the Calculation Agent and any other relevant Agent shall do so in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, to preserve or restore the economics of the agreed terms, as far as possible. Any such election, determination or adjustment shall not create a significant imbalance between the rights and obligations of the Issuer compared to the Securityholders, to the detriment of the Securityholders;
- (c)

if

- (i) the Calculation Agent is not able to determine or effect an appropriate adjustment pursuant to §6(4)(a) or §6(4)(b) above or
- (ii) unless Non-Consideration of Cost has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the direct and indirect costs to the Issuer to effect appropriate adjustments pursuant to §6(4)(a) or §6(4)(b) resulting from and connected with effecting such adjustments, as determined by the Calculation Agent, would if deducted (on a pro rata amount per Security) from the amount(s) payable (disregarding such adjustment), reduce an amount payable to less than the Minimum Redemption,

the Securities may be terminated and cancelled by the Issuer giving notice to Securityholders as soon as practicable in accordance with §16, which notice shall contain brief details of the Adjustment/Termination Event and of the payout amount ("Adjustment / Termination Notice").

If the Securities are so terminated and cancelled, the Issuer will, if and to the extent permitted by applicable law, pay an amount to each Securityholder in respect of each Security held by such Securityholder equal to the Market Value of a Security taking into account the relevant Adjustment/Termination Event less a Security's proportionate share of the direct and indirect cost to the Issuer of unwinding any underlying related Hedging Arrangements unless Non-Consideration of Cost has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, all as determined by the Calculation Agent in its reasonable discretion.

In case Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms:

- (i) in case of a termination and cancellation pursuant to a Restricted Force Majeure Event, the Issuer will, if and to the extent permitted by applicable law, pay an amount to each Securityholder in respect of each Security held by such Securityholder equal to the Market Value of a Security taking into account the relevant Adjustment/Termination Event, less any costs necessary for the payment of the Security's Market Value pursuant to such early termination;
- (ii) in case of a termination and cancellation pursuant to a Restricted Change, the Issuer will, if and to the extent permitted by applicable law, pay an amount to each Securityholder in respect of each Security held by such Securityholder equal to the Market Value of a Security taking into account the relevant Adjustment/Termination Event, The Adjustment / Termination Notice shall also state that Securityholders have the right to select settlement under the Securities at their scheduled Settlement Date by payment of the Settlement Redemption Amount, and contain a description of the procedure for a Securityholder to exercise its option, including the form of the notice that a Securityholder must complete to exercise its option (the "Option Notice") and the final date on which a Securityholder may exercise the option (the "Option Cut-off Date"). A Securityholder may exercise such option in respect of some or all of the Securities held by such Securityholder by delivery of a duly completed Option Notice to the Principal Agent, with a copy to the relevant Clearing Agent, not later than the Option Cut-off Date specified in the Adjustment / Termination Notice (a notice validly delivered in accordance with this provision shall be a "Valid Notice"). In respect of each Security in respect of which a Securityholder has delivered a Valid Notice, the Issuer shall pay the Settlement Redemption Amount on the scheduled Settlement Date for the Securities.

In the event of a termination in accordance with this paragraph (ii), no costs will be charged to the Securityholder and, if Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable, any payout amount will be increased by the Issuer Costs Reimbursement Amount.

Payment will be made in such manner as shall be notified to the Securityholders in accordance with §16.

Upon payment of the respective payout amount, the Issuer shall have no further obligation whatsoever under the Securities.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Italian Securities which are Notes intended to be listed and admitted to trading on an Italian regulated market or Italian multilateral trading facility so requiring, such amount paid as a result of the Securities' termination and cancellation shall be at least equal to the Nominal Amount in respect of each Security.

The Calculation Agent shall, as soon as practicable after receipt of any written request from a Securityholder to do so, advise such Securityholder of any

determination made by it pursuant to this §6 which occurs on or before the date of receipt of such request. The Calculation Agent shall make available for inspection by Securityholders copies of any such determinations.

As used herein, and, if applicable, other Terms and Conditions:

"**Market Value**", in relation to a Security, means the fair market value of such Security as determined by the Calculation Agent in the Settlement Currency, by reference to such factor(s) as it determines appropriate at the relevant time and which may include the following, without limitation:

- (a) market prices or values for the underlying asset(s) and other relevant economic variables (such as interest rates and, if applicable, exchange rates) at the relevant time;
- (b) the remaining life of the Securities had they remained outstanding to scheduled maturity and/or any scheduled early redemption date;
- (c) unless the Adjustment/Termination Event is neither a Force Majeure Event nor an Illegality Event, the value at the relevant time of any Minimum Redemption which would have been applicable had the Securities remained outstanding to scheduled maturity and/or any scheduled early redemption date;
- (d) internal pricing models;
- (e) prices at which other market participants might bid for Securities similar to the Securities;
- (f) any relevant quotations or other relevant market data in the relevant market(s) which may include relevant rates, prices, yields, yield curves, volatilities, spreads, correlations and any options or other derivative pricing model; and
- (g) information of the type described in (f) above from internal sources of the Issuer or any of its Affiliates if that information is of a type used by the Issuer in its regular course of business for the valuation of similar instruments as the Securities.

"**Settlement Redemption Amount**", means, in relation to a Security, the higher of (a) the Minimum Redemption and (b) an amount determined in accordance with the following formula:

(Savings Component Value + Derivative Value) $\times (1 + r)^n$

Where:

"**Savings Component Value**" means, in respect of a Security, the present value of the Minimum Redemption on the date on which the event triggering early redemption occurs.

"**Minimum Redemption**" means, unless otherwise specified within the Product Terms, zero.

"Security Component" means 100 per cent. of the Nominal Amount or, in case of Certificates, the Issue Price, of the relevant Security.

"Derivative Component" means, in respect of a Security, the option component or embedded derivative(s) in respect of the nominal amount or, in case of certificates, the issue price of the Security equal to the Nominal Amount or, in case of certificates, the Issue Price, which provides exposure to the Underlying, the terms of which are fixed on the trade date of the Securities (as determined by the Calculation Agent) in order to enable the Issuer to issue such Security at the relevant price and on the relevant terms. For the avoidance of doubt, the Security Component in respect of the nominal amount, or in case of Certificates, the issue price, of the Security is excluded from the Derivative Component.

"**Derivative Value**" means, in respect of a Security, the greater of zero and the value (if any) of the Derivative Component in respect of such Security, as calculated by the Calculation Agent on the date the Issuer gives the Adjustment / Termination Notice by reference to such factor(s) as it determines appropriate at the relevant time and which may include the following, without limitation:

- (a) any relevant quotations or other relevant market data in the relevant market(s) which may include relevant rates, prices, yields, yield curves, volatilities, spreads, correlations and any options or other derivative pricing model;
- (b) information of the type described in (a) above from internal sources of the Issuer or any of its Affiliates if that information is of a type used by the Issuer in its regular course of business for the valuation of similar derivatives.

"n" means the remaining term of the Securities expressed in years (or fractions thereof), calculated from (but excluding) the date the Issuer gives the Adjustment / Termination Notice to (and including) the Settlement Date, as determined by the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

"r" means the annualised interest rate that the Issuer offers on the date that the Issuer gives the Adjustment / Termination Notice for a security with a maturity date that is the Settlement Date of the Securities, taking into account the credit risk of the Issuer, as determined by the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

"ICRA" means the Issuer Costs Reimbursement Amount.

"Issuer Costs Reimbursement Amount" means, in respect of one Security, an amount equal to the product of (a) and (b), where:

- (a) are the total costs of the Issuer (including, without limitation, structuring costs) paid by the original Securityholder as part of the Issue Price of the Security, as determined by the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner; multiplied by
- (b) is the quotient of:
 - (i) the number of calendar days falling in the period commencing on, but excluding, the date on which the Issuer gives the Adjustment / Termination Notice and ending on, and including, the Settlement Date of the Securities; divided by

 (ii) the number of calendar days falling in the period commencing on, but excluding, the Issue Date of the Securities and ending on, and including, the Settlement Date of the Securities.

(5) Specific Adjustment Events and Adjustment/Termination Events in relation to different Reference Items

Set out below are Adjustment Events and Adjustment/Termination Events where the Reference Item (as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms) is any of the following: an Index, a Share, an Other Security, a Commodity, a Rate of Exchange, a Futures Contract or a Managed Basket.

(a) Share

Where the Underlying, or a relevant Reference Item, is a Share, in each case as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms:

- (i) In addition to §6(1)(a)-(c) (inclusive), the following shall each be an Adjustment Event:
 - 1. a subdivision, consolidation or reclassification of relevant Shares (unless it has resulted in a Merger Event) or a free distribution or dividend of any such shares to existing holders by way of bonus, capitalisation or similar issue;
 - 2. a distribution, issue or dividend to existing holders of the relevant Shares of (1) such additional shares, or (2) other share capital or securities granting the right to payment of dividends and/or the proceeds of liquidation of the Share Company equally or proportionately with such payments to holders of such Shares, or (3) share capital or other securities of another issuer as a result of a "spinoff" or other similar transaction, or (4) any other type of securities, rights or warrants or other assets, in any case for payment (in cash or in other consideration) at less than the prevailing market price as determined by the Calculation Agent;
 - 3. an extraordinary dividend;
 - 4. a call by the Share Company in respect of relevant Shares that are not fully paid;
 - 5. a repurchase by or on behalf of the Share Company or any of its subsidiaries of relevant Shares whether out of profits or capital and whether the consideration for such repurchase is cash, securities or otherwise;
 - 6. in respect of a Share Company, an event that results in any shareholder rights being distributed, or becoming separated from shares of common stock or other shares of the capital stock of such Share Company pursuant to a shareholder rights plan or arrangement directed against hostile takeovers that provides upon the occurrence of certain events for a distribution of preferred stock, warrants, debt

instruments or stock rights at a price below their market value as determined by the Calculation Agent;

- 7. any redemption of shareholder rights referred to under 6 above; and
- 8. any other event that may have a diluting or concentrative or other effect on the theoretical value of the relevant Shares.
- (ii) In addition to §6(3)(a)-(h) (inclusive) the following shall each be an Adjustment/Termination Event:
 - 1. A "**De-Listing**" which means, for any Share for which the Reference Source is an exchange or a trading system or a quotation system, the Reference Source announces that pursuant to the rules of such Reference Source, such Share ceases (or will cease) to be listed, traded or publicly quoted on the Reference Source for any reason (other than a Merger Event or Tender Offer) and is not immediately relisted, re-traded or re-quoted on an exchange, trading system or quotation system acceptable to the Calculation Agent;
 - 2. an "**Insolvency**" which means by reason of the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, bankruptcy, insolvency, dissolution or winding-up of or any analogous proceeding affecting a Share Company (A) all the Shares of that Share Company are required to be transferred to a trustee, liquidator or other similar official; or (B) holders of the shares of that Share Company become legally prohibited from transferring them;
 - 3. "Merger Event" which means, in respect of any relevant Shares, any (i) reclassification or change of such Shares that results in a transfer of or an irrevocable commitment to transfer all of such Shares outstanding to another entity or person; (ii) consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding share exchange of a Share Company with or into another entity or person (other than a consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding share exchange in which such Share Company is the continuing entity and which does not result in a reclassification or change of all of such Shares outstanding); (iii) takeover offer, exchange offer, solicitation, proposal or other event by any entity or person to purchase or otherwise obtain 100 per cent. of the outstanding Shares of the Share Company that results in a transfer of or an irrevocable commitment to transfer all such Shares (other than such Shares owned or controlled by such other entity or person); or (iv) consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding share exchange of the Share Company or its subsidiaries with or into another entity in which the Share Company is the continuing entity and which does not result in a reclassification or change of all such Shares outstanding but results in the outstanding Shares (other than Shares owned or controlled such other entity) immediately prior to such event collectively representing less than 50 per cent. of the outstanding Shares immediately following such event, in each case if the Merger Date is on or before the last possible date on which the Calculation Agent could be required by the Terms and Conditions to determine the price or value of the relevant Share;
 - 4. "**Nationalisation**" which means all the relevant Shares or all or substantially all of the assets of a Share Company are nationalised,

expropriated or are otherwise required to be transferred to any governmental agency, authority, entity or instrumentality thereof; and

5. **"Tender Offer"** which means a takeover offer, tender offer, exchange offer, solicitation, proposal or other event by any entity or person that results in such entity or person purchasing, or otherwise obtaining or having the right to obtain, by conversion or other means, greater than 10 per cent. and less than 100 per cent. of the outstanding voting shares of the Share Company, as determined by the Calculation Agent, based upon the making of filings with governmental or self-regulatory agencies or such other information as the Calculation Agent.

As used here in:

A "**Merger Date**" means the closing date of a Merger Event or, where a closing date cannot be determined under the local law applicable to such Merger Event, such other date as determined by the Calculation Agent.

"Share Company" means with respect to a Share, the issuer specified for such Share under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms.

(b) Index

Where the Underlying, or a relevant Reference Item, is an Index, in each case as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms:

- (i) In addition to §6(1)(a)-(c) (inclusive), the following shall each be an Adjustment Event:
 - 1. Any Index is not calculated or announced by the Index Sponsor specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms but is calculated by a successor sponsor (the "**Successor Sponsor**") acceptable to the Calculation Agent.
 - 2. Any such Index is replaced by a successor index using, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, the same or a substantially similar formula for and method of calculation as used in the calculation of the Index specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms.

The consequences of such Adjustment Event may be, in each case that the relevant Index will be the index so calculated and announced by such Successor Sponsor or that successor index, as the case may be.

(ii) In addition to §6(3)(a)-(h) (inclusive) the following shall each be an Adjustment/Termination Event:

On or prior to any date with respect to which the Calculation Agent is required to determine the level of an Index, the relevant Index Sponsor or, if applicable, the Successor Sponsor (1) makes or announces that it will make a material change in the formula for or the method of calculating that Index or in any other way materially modifies that Index; or (2) permanently cancels that Index; or (3) fails to calculate and announce that Index and, in each case, the provisions of (5)(b)(i) above do not apply.

(c) **Other Security**

Where the Underlying, or a relevant Reference Item, is an Other Security, in each case as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms:

(i) In addition to §6(1)(a)-(c) (inclusive), the following shall each be an Adjustment Event:

other than a De-Listing, an Insolvency or a Termination (a) the Reference Issuer amends the terms and conditions of the relevant Other Securities or irreversibly converts the relevant Other Securities into different securities; and/or (b) the aggregate amounts due under the Other Securities are altered (other than due to any scheduled redemption, amortisation or prepayment).

- (ii) In addition to §6(3)(a)-(h) (inclusive) the following shall each be an Adjustment/Termination Event:
 - 1. a "**De-Listing**" which means, for any Other Security for which the Reference Source is an exchange, a trading system or a quotation system, the Reference Source announces that pursuant to the rules of such Reference Source, such Other Security ceases (or will cease) to be listed, traded or publicly quoted on the Reference Source for any reason and is not immediately re-listed, re-traded or re-quoted on an exchange, trading system or quotation system acceptable to the Calculation Agent;
 - 2. an "Insolvency" which means the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, bankruptcy, insolvency, dissolution, winding-up or other cessation of business operations or any analogous proceeding in relation to a Reference Issuer; and
 - 3. a "**Termination**" which means, in relation to an issue of Other Securities, such issue has been terminated, cancelled or otherwise ceased to be outstanding for any reason.

As used here in:

"**Reference Issuer**" means the entity specified as the issuer of the relevant Other Security within the Product Terms.

(d) **Commodity**

Where the Underlying, or a relevant Reference Item, is a Commodity, in each case as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms, and which may be determined by reference to a futures contract (a "**Futures Contract**"):

- (i) In addition to §6(1)(a)-(c) (inclusive), the following shall each be an Adjustment Event:
 - 1. a relevant Commodity or relevant Futures Contract is traded on the Reference Source as compared to the Issue Date in a different quality

or different content, constitution or composition (for example in a different degree of purity or with a different point of origin);

- 2. any other event or measure as a result of which the Commodity or relevant Futures Contract, as traded on the Reference Source, is changed or altered; and
- 3. a material suspension of, or a material limitation imposed on, trading in the Futures Contract or Commodity on the Reference Source or in any other relevant futures contract, options contract or commodity on any exchange, trading system or quotation system, where such event is determined by the Calculation Agent not to be a Market Disruption.
- (ii) In addition to §6(3)(a)-(h) (inclusive) the following shall each be an Adjustment/Termination Event:
 - 1. the permanent discontinuation of trading, in a relevant Futures Contract or Commodity on the relevant Reference Source, the disappearance of, or of trading in, the Commodity or the disappearance or permanent discontinuance or unavailability of any relevant price or value for a Commodity or Futures Contract (notwithstanding any availability of the related Reference Source or the status of trading in the relevant Futures Contract or the Commodity);
 - 2. the occurrence of a material change in the formula for or method of calculating any relevant price or value for a Commodity or Futures Contract after the Issue Date;
 - 3. the failure of the Reference Source to announce or publish any relevant price or value for a Commodity or Futures Contract (or the information necessary for determining any such price or value) or the temporary or permanent discontinuance or unavailability of the Reference Source, where such event is determined by the Calculation Agent not to be a Market Disruption; and
 - 4. where the Reference Source for a relevant Commodity is an exchange or a trading system or a quotation system, the Reference Source announces that pursuant to the rules of such Reference Source, any material options or futures contract on or relating to such Commodity ceases (or will cease) to be listed, traded or publicly quoted on the Reference Source for any reason.

(e) Rate of Exchange

Where the Underlying, or a relevant Reference Item, is a foreign rate of exchange (a "**Rate of Exchange**") referring to two or more currencies (each a "**Relevant Currency**"), in each case as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms:

In addition to §6(1)(a)-(c) (inclusive), the following shall each be an Adjustment Event:

- a Relevant Currency is, in its function as legal tender, in the country or jurisdiction, or countries or jurisdictions, maintaining the authority, institution or other body which issues such Relevant Currency, replaced by another currency, or merged with another currency to become a common currency;
- a Relevant Currency in its function as legal tender ceases, for any reason, to be legal tender in the country or jurisdiction, or countries or jurisdictions, maintaining the authority, institution or other body which issues such Relevant Currency; and
- (iii) where the Reference Source for any Rate of Exchange is an exchange or a trading system or a quotation system, the Reference Source announces that pursuant to the rules of such Reference Source, the rate of exchange between the relevant First Currency and Second Currency ceases (or will cease) to be listed, traded or publicly quoted on the Reference Source for any reason and is not immediately re-listed, re-traded or re-quoted on an exchange, trading system or quotation system acceptable to the Calculation Agent.

As used here in:

"First Currency" means the currency appearing first in the definition of the relevant Rate of Exchange or, in the case of a Rate of Exchange referring to more than two currencies, the currency referred to first in each constituent rate of such Rate of Exchange.

"**Second Currency**" means the currency appearing second in the definition of the relevant Rate of Exchange or, in the case of a Rate of Exchange referring to more than two currencies, the currency referred to second in each constituent Rate of Exchange.

(f) Futures Contract

Where the Underlying, or a relevant Reference Item, is a Futures Contract, in each case as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms:

- (i) In addition to §6(1)(a)-(c) (inclusive), the following shall each be an Adjustment Event:
 - 1. the terms and conditions of the relevant Futures Contract, or its underlying concepts or reference assets or bases, are materially modified;
 - 2. any other event or measure as a result of which the Futures Contract, as traded on the Reference Source, is changed or altered; and
 - 3. a material suspension of, or a material limitation imposed on, trading in the Futures Contract on the Reference Source or in any other relevant futures contract or options contract on any exchange, trading system or quotation system, where such event is determined by the Calculation Agent not to be a Market Disruption.
- (ii) In addition to §6(3)(a)-(h) (inclusive) the following shall each be an Adjustment/Termination Event:

- 1. the permanent discontinuation of trading, in a relevant Futures Contract on the relevant Reference Source, the disappearance or permanent discontinuance or unavailability of any relevant price or value for a Futures Contract (notwithstanding any availability of the related Reference Source or the status of trading in the relevant Futures Contract);
- 2. a material change in the formula for or method of calculating any relevant price or value for a Futures Contract;
- 3. the failure of the Reference Source to announce or publish any relevant price or value for a Futures Contract (or the information necessary for determining any such price or value) or the temporary or permanent discontinuance or unavailability of the Reference Source, where such event is determined by the Calculation Agent not to be a Market Disruption;
- 4. where the Reference Source for a Futures Contract is an exchange or a trading system or a quotation system, the Reference Source announces that pursuant to the rules of such Reference Source, such Futures Contract ceases (or will cease) to be listed, traded or publicly quoted on the Reference Source for any reason; and
- 5. the Futures Contract has been terminated, cancelled or otherwise ceased to be outstanding for any reason.

(g) Fund Shares

Where the Underlying, or relevant Reference Item, is a Fund Share, in each case as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms:

- (i) In addition to §6(1)(a)-(c) (inclusive) the following shall each be an Adjustment Event:
 - 1. a subdivision, consolidation or reclassification of relevant Fund Shares (unless an Adjustment/Termination Event) or a free distribution or dividend of any such Fund Shares to existing holders by way of bonus, capitalisation or similar issue;
 - 2. a distribution or dividend to existing holders of relevant Fund Shares of (1) such Fund Shares, or (2) other share capital or securities granting the right to payment of dividends, redemption amounts or other amounts and/or delivery of assets and/or the proceeds of liquidation of the Fund equally or proportionately with such payments or deliveries to holders of such Fund Shares, or (3) share capital or other securities of another issuer acquired by the Fund as a result of a "spin-off" or other similar transaction, or (4) any other type of securities, rights or warrants or other assets, in any case for payment (in cash or otherwise) at less than the prevailing market price as determined by the Calculation Agent;
 - 3. an extraordinary dividend;
 - 4. a call by the Fund in respect of relevant Fund Shares that are not fully paid;

- 5. with respect to a Fund an event that results in any shareholder rights pursuant to a shareholder rights agreement or other plan or arrangement of the type commonly referred to as a "poison pill" being distributed, or becoming separated from shares of common stock or other shares of the capital stock of such Fund (provided that any adjustment effected as a result of such an event shall be readjusted upon any redemption of such rights);
- 6. the occurrence of a tender offer (a "**Tender Offer**") by any entity or person to purchase more than 10 per cent. but less than 50 per cent. of the outstanding voting shares of any class of shares of the Fund, as determined by the Calculation Agent based upon the making of filings with governmental agencies and/or the nature and term of the Tender Offer;
- 7. any failure by a Fund or any Specified Party to deliver or publish or cause to be delivered or published information that such Fund or such Specified Party has agreed to deliver or publish pursuant to (a) any Fund Information Documents or (b) any agreement entered into between (i) the relevant Fund or Specified Party and (ii) the Issuer, any Hedging Party, or the Calculation Agent, such agreement providing for an obligation on the part of the relevant Fund or Specified Party to provide certain information to such party (or parties as applicable);
- 8. the Calculation Agent determines, that the reported net asset value of a Fund Share of a Fund is not reflective of the liquidation proceeds that a Hedging Party in such Fund Shares would receive in respect of a notional liquidation of those Fund Shares by the date described in the actual or documented liquidity terms of such Fund Shares;
- 9. any material change in the formula for or the method of calculating or any change in the periodicity of the calculation or publication of the net asset value or other price or value of the relevant Fund Share, or in the composition or weighting of the prices or assets on the basis of which such net asset value or other price or value is calculated; or
- 10. any other event that may have, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, a dilutive or concentrative or other effect on the theoretical value of the Fund Shares.
- (ii) In addition to §6(3)(a)-(h) (inclusive) the following shall each be an Adjustment/Termination Event:
 - 1. for any Fund Share for which the Reference Source is an exchange, a trading system or a quotation system, the Reference Source announces that pursuant to the rules of such Reference Source, the Fund Share ceases (or will cease) to be listed, traded or publicly quoted on the Reference Source for any reason and is not immediately re-listed, re-traded or re-quoted on an exchange, trading system or quotation system acceptable to the Calculation Agent;
 - 2. the Fund repurchases, redeems or is required by any applicable regulatory authority to repurchase or redeem relevant Fund Shares (other than in accordance with the normal redemption or realisation

procedures for such Fund Shares) whether out of profits or capital and whether the consideration for such repurchase is cash, securities or otherwise;

- 3. in relation to a Fund Share, (A) the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, bankruptcy, insolvency, dissolution, winding-up or other cessation of trading of or any analogous proceeding in relation to (i) the relevant Fund or (ii) the relevant Master Fund or (iii) unless replaced with a successor acceptable to the Calculation Agent, the relevant Specified Party or (B) all such Fund Shares are required to be transferred to a trustee, liquidator or other similar official;
- 4. the occurrence of any of the following events:
 - a. any litigation, arbitration, investigation, proceeding or regulatory or governmental action exists, is commenced or is threatened in relation to a Fund, its Master Fund or any Specified Party; or
 - unless Adjustment / Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, any change in the legal, tax, accounting or regulatory treatment of a Fund and/or its Master Fund and/or Specified Party which would have an adverse impact for the Issuer and/or Hedging Party as a holder of Fund Shares in such Fund;
- 5. in respect of a Fund, its Manager or its Master Fund:
 - a. an irrevocable commitment to transfer all of the relevant Fund Shares or shares or units in such Master Fund outstanding; or
 - b. a consolidation, amalgamation or merger of such Fund, such Manager or such Master Fund with or into another fund or fund manager other than a consolidation, amalgamation or merger in which such Fund or its Master Fund or its Manager is the continuing Fund, Master Fund or Manager, as the case may be; or
 - c. a takeover offer for such Fund, Master Fund or Manager that results in a transfer of or an irrevocable commitment to transfer all of the relevant Fund Shares or shares or units in such Master Fund or all the shares of such Manager (other than Fund Shares or shares owned or controlled by the offeror);
- 6. any Specified Party of the Fund and/or any Specified Party of the Master Fund ceases to act in its relevant capacity as service provider to the Fund or the Master Fund, as the case may be, and is not immediately replaced in such capacity by a successor acceptable to the Calculation Agent;
- a material modification or breach of the investment objectives, investment policies, investment strategy, investment process or investment guidelines (however described) ("Investment Guidelines") of the Fund or the Master Fund;

- 8. a material modification or breach of the conditions in place for the relevant Fund and/or the relevant Master Fund (including but not limited to a modification or breach of the Fund Information Document or the memorandum and articles of association or other constitutional documents of the Fund or any prospectus, information memorandum or similar document (including any document supplementing, amending or restating the same) or memorandum and articles of association or other Fund);
- 9. the currency of denomination of any Fund Shares of a Fund is amended and/or the net asset value of the Fund Shares of a Fund is no longer calculated in the currency that applied on the Issue Date;
- 10. interruption, breakdown or suspension of the calculation or publication of the net asset value or other value or price of the Fund and/or Master Fund;
- 11. a material modification of the type of assets in which the Fund and/or the Master Fund invests or the trading practices of the Fund or the Master Fund (including but not limited to a material deviation from the Investment Guidelines set out in any Fund Information Document);
- 12. the non-execution or partial execution or delayed execution by or on behalf of the Fund for any reason of a subscription or redemption order in respect of any Fund Shares given by the Issuer and/or any Hedging Party;
- 13. any redemption of Fund Shares occurs in whole or in part otherwise than by payment of an amount in cash;
- 14. the Fund otherwise suspends subscriptions or redemptions of any Fund Shares;
- 15. any event or circumstance (whether or not in accordance with the constitutive documents and investment guidelines of the Fund) in respect of the Fund or Master Fund (as applicable) which mandatorily obliges the Issuer and/or any Hedging Party to sell or otherwise dispose of any Fund Shares (or the Fund to sell or otherwise dispose of any master fund shares);
- 16. the Fund or any party acting on its behalf imposes any restriction, charge or fee in respect of a redemption or issue of Fund Shares (other than any restriction, charge or fee in existence as at the Issue Date of the Securities);
- 17. the Fund (i) introduces a new redemption fee, or modifies a redemption fee, (ii) introduces a new subscription fee, a or modifies a subscription fee, (iii) introduces a new management fee or modifies an existing management fee, (iv) introduces a new performance fee or modifies an existing performance fee, (v) introduces or modifies any lock-up fees, or (vi) introduces a bid/offer spread (or other charge however described) or modifies any bid/offer spread or modifies any other charge howsoever described which, in each case, the Issuer and/or any Hedging Party would have to bear in respect of any shares of the Fund;

- 18. the Fund, the Master Fund, any Specified Party, the manager of the Master Fund or the Manager has any relevant licence, authorisation or registration cancelled or revoked by any applicable regulatory authority and/or the Issuer and/or any Hedging Party is required by an applicable regulatory authority to dispose of any Fund Shares held in connection with any Hedging Arrangements relating to the Securities;
- 19. unless Adjustment / Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the inability of the Issuer and/or any Hedging Party to perform any hedging activities on any relevant day at such price as it determines is appropriate, and in the case of any Fund Shares, a day in respect of which the Fund would ordinarily be able to accept subscriptions or redemptions, as the case may be, (which constitutes a hedging activity), at, or at a value that equates to, the net asset value of the Fund Shares for such day;
- 20. unless Adjustment / Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Fund or any Specified Party defaults under, modifies or terminates any rebate agreements in place with the Issuer and/or Hedging Party, in each case as determined by the Calculation Agent;
- 21. there is a change in the liquidity in the Fund or Master Fund in respect of the frequency of subscriptions or redemptions from that described in the Fund Information Document;
- 22. the total assets under management of the Fund reduce to an amount which, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, would lead to the number and/or aggregate net asset value of shares held, or that would be held, by a Hedging Party, being more than the Holding Threshold of the aggregate of the number of shares in issue by the Fund and/or the total assets under management of the Fund;
- 23. unless Adjustment / Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, there is a change in the taxation treatment in any relevant jurisdiction in respect of any payments and/or deliveries made by a Fund or any reinvested amounts held by a Fund in respect of any Fund Shares as a result of which the amounts and/or assets realised by the Issuer in connection with Hedging Arrangements relating to the Securities are materially reduced or otherwise adversely affected; or
- 24. any other event occurs in relation to the relevant Fund or the relevant Fund Shares, which, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, has a material adverse effect on the value of such Fund Shares and/or, unless Adjustment / Termination Restriction has been specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Hedging Arrangements of the Issuer in connection with the Securities and which is not an Adjustment Event.

The following definitions shall apply:

"**Fund**" means, with respect to a Fund Share, the issuer or obligor specified for such Fund Share in the definition of "Underlying", in the Product Terms;

"Fund Information Document" means, in relation to a Fund and a Fund Share, any prospectus, information memorandum or similar document relating to the Fund and/or the Fund Share (including any document supplementing, amending or restating the same), all as determined by the Calculation Agent;

"**Fund Share**" means each fund share, interest or unit held by an investor in a Fund or any other interest specified as such in the definition of "Underlying" in the Product Terms;

"Holding Threshold" means 10 per cent unless otherwise defined in the Product Terms;

"**Manager**" means, in relation to a Fund, any entity described as such in relation to the Fund in any relevant Fund Information Document or which provides investment, managerial, broking or arrangement or similar services (however described) to the Fund, all as determined by the Calculation Agent; "**Master Fund**" means, in relation to a Fund, any entity described as such in relation to the Fund in any relevant Fund Information Document or which acts as a master fund or umbrella fund or similar entity (however described) in relation to the Fund, all as determined by the Calculation Agent;

"**Specified Party**" means, in relation to a Fund, the administrator, the investment manager, the custodian, the depositary, the investment advisor, the prime broker (if any) or any other service provider of that Fund.

(h) Managed Basket

Where the Underlying, or relevant Reference Item, is a Managed Basket, in each case as specified under the heading "Underlying" in the Product Terms:

In addition to §6(1)(a)-(c) (inclusive), the following shall each be an Adjustment Event:

- the investment agreement between the Issuer and the Investment Manager, which, *inter alia*, sets out the terms upon which the appointment of the Investment Manager pursuant to such agreement may be terminated (the "Investment Management Agreement") is not executed until the first Basket Rebalancing Date;
- (ii) the Investment Management Agreement is terminated by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion on the following grounds:
 - 1. a material breach by the Investment Manager of a material obligation under the Investment Management Agreement if such breach is not remedied on or before the fifth day after notice of such breach is given to the Investment Manager;
 - 2. persistent, continual or repeated breach of the Investment Management Agreement by the Investment Manager in respect of either one or a number of different provisions of the Investment Management Agreement;
 - 3. subject to the requirements of applicable law, if the Investment Manager (A) institutes any proceedings to adjudicate itself bankrupt or insolvent or there are any such proceedings instituted against it, (B) files a petition seeking or consenting to reorganisation or relief under

any applicable law relating to bankruptcy or insolvency with respect to itself, (C) consents to the appointment of a receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator (or similar official) for itself or for a substantial part of its property, (D) makes any general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, (E) admits in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due, or (F) takes any action in furtherance of any of the foregoing;

- 4. it is, or becomes, unlawful for the Investment Manager to select Reference Items comprising the Underlying;
- 5. the Investment Manager violates applicable laws and regulations when providing its services under the Investment Management Agreement;
- 6. it is inadmissible for the Issuer from a regulatory perspective to maintain the contractual relationship with the Investment Manager; and
- (iii) any other event or measure as a result of which the rebalancing of the basket, becomes impossible.

§7 Form of Securities, Transferability, Status, Securityholders, Set-Off, Eligible Liabilities Redemption Restriction

(1) Form

(a) General

Unless sub-paragraphs (b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h) or (i) below apply, the Securities are represented by a global security (the "**Global Security**"). The Terms and Conditions of each Series of Securities will be attached to the relevant Global Security which will be marked with the ISIN for the relevant Securities as specified in the applicable Final Terms. No definitive Securities will be issued.

Where Multi-Series is stated to be applicable in the Product Terms, each Series shall be represented by a separate Global Security. These General Conditions shall be deemed to apply to each Series separately and references to Securities and related expressions in these General Conditions shall be deemed to be references to the relevant Series.

(i) Global Security - English law governed Securities

If the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be English Law the following applies:

On or prior to the issue date of the Securities, the Global Security will be deposited with a depositary (or, if there is more than one Clearing Agent, a common depositary) for the Clearing Agent(s).

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Certificates or Warrants, the Global Security will be in non-bearer form.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Notes the Global Security will be in bearer form or registered form, as specified in the Product Terms. If the Notes are in registered form, on or prior to the issue date of the Securities the Global Security will be registered in the name of the Clearing Agent or a nominee (or if there is more than one Clearing Agent, a common nominee) of the Clearing Agent(s).

(ii) Global Security - German law governed Securities

If the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be German Law on or prior to the issue date of the Securities, the Global Security will be deposited with a Clearing Agent in Germany and will be in bearer form for the purposes of German law.

(b) Italian Securities

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Italian Securities, the Securities will be dematerialised and centralised with Monte Titoli S.p.A., Piazza degli Affari, 6. I-20123 Milan, Italy, pursuant to Italian Legislative Decree dated 24 February 1998, No. 58, as amended and integrated by subsequent implementing provisions. No global security and no definitive securities will be issued in respect of such Securities.

(c) **Portuguese Securities**

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Securities, the Securities will be dematerialised (forma escritural), represented by book entries (registos em conta) only and centralised through the CVM managed by Interbolsa, Avenida da Boavista, n.º 3433, 4100-138 Porto, Portugal, in accordance with Portuguese law. In respect of Portuguese Securities, certain further amendments may be made to the General Conditions. Any such further amendments will be specified in the relevant Product Terms. The Portuguese Securities will be freely transferable by way of book entries in the accounts held with Affiliate Members of Interbolsa, which includes any custodian banks appointed by Euroclear Bank SA/NV and/or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme for the purpose of holding accounts on behalf of Euroclear Bank SA/NV and/or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme) and each Portuguese Security having the same ISIN shall have the same denomination or unit size (as applicable) and, if admitted to trading on the Euronext Lisbon regulated market ("Euronext Lisbon"), such Portuguese Securities shall be transferrable in lots at least equal to such denomination or unit multiples thereof. No global security and no definitive securities will be issued in respect of the Portuguese Securities.

(d) Spanish Securities

(i) Spanish Securities represented by a Global Security

In the case of Securities which are specified in the Product Terms to be Spanish Securities (Global Security), the Securities will be represented by a Global Security in bearer form. On or prior to the issue date of the Securities, the Global Security will be deposited with a depositary (or, if there is more than one Clearing Agent, a common depositary) for the Clearing Agent(s).

(ii) Spanish Listed Securities

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Spanish Listed Securities, the Securities will be issued in uncertificated, dematerialised bookentry form. They will be registered with and cleared through Iberclear, Palacio de la Bolsa Plaza de la Lealtad, 1 ES-28014 Madrid, Spain, as managing entity of the central registry. Such book-entry securities will be constituted as such by virtue of their entry in the corresponding accounting book of Iberclear.

(e) Swedish Securities

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Swedish Securities, the Securities will be cleared through Euroclear Sweden AB (formerly known as VPC AB), P.O. Box 191, Klarabergviadukten 63, 101 23 Stockholm, Sweden and issued in registered form in accordance with the Swedish Financial Instruments Account Act (SFS 1998:1479; *Lag (1998:1479) om kontoföring av finansiella instrument*). The Securities will be issued in uncertificated book-entry form, as more fully described in the Product Terms. No global security and no definitive securities will be issued in respect of the Securities.

(f) **Finnish Securities**

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Finnish Securities, the Securities will be issued in the Finnish book-entry securities system maintained by Euroclear Finland Ltd. (formerly known as Suomen Arvopaperikeskus Oy), P.O. Box

1110, FI-00101 Helsinki, Finland, as more fully described in the Product Terms. No global security and no definitive securities will be issued in respect of the Securities.

(g) Norwegian Securities

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Norwegian Securities, the Securities will be registered in, and cleared through the Norwegian Central Securities Depositary Verdipapirsentralen ASA, P.O. Box 4, 0051 Oslo, Norway, and issued in registered form in accordance with the Norwegian Securities Registry Act, 2002 (*No: Lov om registrering av finansielle instrumenter av 5. juli 2002 nr 64*). The Securities will be issued in dematerialized and uncertificated book-entry form, as more fully described in the Product Terms. No global security and no definitive securities will be issued in respect of the Securities.

(h) French Securities

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be French Securities, the Securities will be in dematerialised bearer form (*au porteur*) inscribed in the books of Euroclear France (acting as central depositary), 115 rue Réaumur, 75081 Paris Cedex 02, France, which shall credit the accounts of the Account Holders. For the purpose of these Conditions, "**Account Holder**" means any authorised financial intermediary institution entitled to hold securities accounts, directly or indirectly, with Euroclear France, and includes Euroclear and the depositary bank for Clearstream. Title to the French Securities will be evidenced in accordance with Articles L.211-3 et seq. and R.211-1 et seq. of the French Monetary and Financial Code (*Code monétaire et financier*) by book entries (*inscriptions en compte*). No physical document of title (*including certificats représentatifs* pursuant to Article R.211-7 of the French Monetary and Financial Code (*Code monétaire et financier*) will be issued in respect of the French Securities.

(i) Uncertificated SIS Securities

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Uncertificated SIS Securities, the Securities are issued in uncertificated form as uncertificated securities (Wertrechte) in accordance with article 973c of the Swiss Code of Obligations.

In the case of Uncertificated SIS Securities, the form of Securities will be governed by and applicable laws and regulations will be construed by Swiss law exclusively.

The uncertificated securities (*Wertrechte*) will be created by the Issuer by means of a registration in its register of uncertificated securities (*Wertrechtebuch*). Such uncertificated securities will then be entered into the main register (*Hauptregister*) of SIX SIS AG, Baslerstrasse 100, CH-4601 Olten, Switzerland, or any other intermediary in Switzerland recognised for such purposes by SIX Swiss Exchange Ltd (SIX SIS AG or any such other intermediary, the "**Intermediary**"). Once the uncertificated securities are registered in the main register (*Hauptregister*) of the Intermediary and entered into the accounts of one or more participants of the Intermediary, the Uncertificated SIS Securities will constitute intermediated securities ("**Bucheffekten**") in accordance with the provisions of the Swiss Federal Intermediated Securities Act (*Bucheffektengesetz*).

As long as Uncertificated SIS Securities are considered to be intermediated securities (*Bucheffekten*), they are transferrable only by entry of the transferred Uncertificated SIS Securities into a securities account of the transferee.

Neither the Issuer nor the holders nor any third party shall at any time have the right to effect or demand the conversion of the uncertificated securities (*Wertrechte*) into, or the delivery of, a Global Security (*Globalurkunde*) or definitive Securities (*Wertpapiere*).

(2) **Transferability**

(a) General

Unless sub-paragraphs (b) and (c) below apply, each Security is transferable in accordance with applicable law and any rules and procedures for the time being of any Clearing Agent through whose books such Security is transferred. If the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be German Law the Issuer does not accept a cession of its obligations under the Securities.

(b) Italian Securities

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Italian Securities each Security will be freely transferable by way of book entry in the accounts registered on the settlement system of Monte Titoli S.p.A. and, if admitted to trading on Borsa Italiana S.p.A., they shall be transferred in lots at least equal to the Minimum Trade Size (as defined by the Listing Rules of the market organised and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. ("**Regolamento di Borsa**")), or multiples thereof, as determined by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. and indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

(c) French Securities

Title to French Securities shall pass upon, and transfer of such French Securities may only be effected through, registration of the transfer in the accounts of the Account Holders in accordance with the French Monetary and Financial Code (Code monétaire et financier). Except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as required by law, the holder of any French Security shall be deemed to be and may be treated as its owner for all purposes, whether or not it is overdue and regardless of any notice of ownership, or an interest in it, and no person shall be liable for so treating the holder.

(3) Status

The Securities will constitute direct, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer ranking *pari passu* among themselves and *pari passu* with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, subject, however, to statutory priorities conferred to certain unsecured and unsubordinated obligations in the event of resolution measures imposed on the Issuer or in the event of the dissolution, liquidation, insolvency, composition or other proceedings for the avoidance of insolvency of, or against, the Issuer.

At issuance, if Eligible Liabilities Format is specified to apply in the Product Terms, the Securities constituted, in the opinion of the Issuer, non-preferred debt instruments within the meaning of Section 46f(6) sentence 1 of the German Banking Act (*Kreditwesengesetz*).

(4) Securityholders

(a) Global Security - English law governed Securities

In respect of Securities represented by a Global Security, if the Governing Law is specified, in the Product Terms, to be English Law, each person (other than another

Clearing Agent) who is for the time being shown in the records of the relevant Clearing Agent as the holder of a particular amount of the Securities (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by the relevant Clearing Agent as to the amount of Securities standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes except in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the Issuer and the Agents as the holder of such amount of the Securities (and the term "**Securityholder**" shall be construed accordingly) for all purposes other than, in the case of Securities represented by a Global Security, with respect to payments or delivery obligations in respect of such Notes, for which purpose (i) in the case of Securities in bearer form, the bearer of the Global Security and (ii) in the case of Securities (being the relevant Clearing Agent, or nominee or common nominee (as applicable) of the Clearing Agent(s)), in each case shall be treated by such Issuer and any Agent as the holder of such Securities in accordance with and subject to the terms of the Global Security.

(b) Global Security - German law governed Securities

In respect of Securities represented by a Global Security, if the Governing Law is specified, in the Product Terms, to be German Law, the terms "**Securityholder**" and "**Holder of Securities**" will be construed to mean those persons recognised as the legal owner of the Securities pursuant to German law.

(c) Italian Securities

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Italian Securities, the person who is for the time being shown in the records of Monte Titoli S.p.A. as the holder of a particular amount of Securities (in which regard any certificate, record or other document issued by Monte Titoli S.p.A. as to the amount of Securities standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall (except as otherwise required by law) be treated for all purposes by the Issuer, the Agent in Italy and all other persons dealing with such person as the holder thereof and as the person entitled to exercise the rights represented thereby notwithstanding any notice to the construed accordingly).

(d) **Portuguese Securities**

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Securities each person who is for the time being shown in the records (*conta de registo individualizado*) of an Affiliate Member of Interbolsa as the holder of a particular amount of Portuguese Securities (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by the relevant Affiliate Member of Interbolsa as to the amount of Securities standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes except in the case of manifest error) shall be deemed to be the holder of title of such Portuguese Securities and (except as otherwise required by law) be treated as its absolute owner for all purposes (whether or not it is overdue and regardless of any notice of ownership, trust or any other interest therein) and the terms "**Securityholder**" and "**Holder of Securities**" shall be construed accordingly.

No Securityholder will be able to transfer Securities, or any interest therein, except in accordance with Portuguese law and regulations and through the relevant Affiliate Members of Interbolsa.

(e) Spanish Securities

(i) General provisions applicable to Spanish Securities

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Spanish Securities, the person (other than another Clearing Agent) who is for the time being shown in the records of the relevant Clearing Agent, in accordance with the relevant regulations applicable to the relevant Clearing Agent, as the holder of a particular amount of the Securities (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by the relevant Clearing Agent as to the amount of Securities standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes except in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the Issuer and the Agents as the holder of such amount of the Securities (and the terms "Securityholder" and "Holder of Securities" shall be construed accordingly).

(ii) Specific provisions applicable to Spanish Listed Securities

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Spanish Listed Securities, the Securities will be issued in uncertificated, dematerialised bookentry form ("Book-Entry Securities"). The Book-Entry Securities will be constituted as such by virtue of their entry in the corresponding accounting book of Iberclear pursuant to Article 6 of the Spanish Law 24/1988, of 28 July, on the Securities Market and related provisions. The holders of Book-Entry Securities which are admitted to trading on any of the Spanish Stock Exchanges and AIAF will be identified as such (on their own account or for the account of third parties) as appears from the accounting book maintained by Iberclear or the relevant member (entidad adherida) of Iberclear (each an "Iberclear Member"), as the case may be. Therefore, the title to the Book-Entry Securities will be evidenced by book entries and each person shown in the registries maintained by any relevant Iberclear Members as having an interest in the Book-Entry Securities shall be considered, by the Issuer and the Agents, as the holder of the principal amount of Book-Entry Securities recorded therein, and the terms "Securityholder" and "Holder of Securities shall be construed accordingly.

(f) French Securities

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be French Securities, the terms "**Securityholder**" or "**Holder of Securities**" shall mean the individual or entity whose name appears in the account of the relevant Account Holder as being entitled to such Security.

(5) Set-Off

If Eligible Liabilities Format is specified to apply in the Product Terms, no Securityholder may set off his claims arising under the Securities against any claims of the Issuer. No security or guarantee shall be provided at any time securing claims of the Securityholders under the Securities; any security or guarantee already provided or granted in the future in connection with other liabilities of the Issuer may not be used for claims under the Securities.

(6) Eligible Liabilities Redemption Restriction

If Eligible Liabilities Format is specified to apply in the Product Terms, any redemption, repurchase or termination of the Securities prior to their scheduled maturity (including where

made according to §6) is subject to the prior approval of the competent authority, if legally required. If the Securities are redeemed or repurchased otherwise than in such circumstances, then the amounts paid must be returned to the Issuer irrespective of any agreement to the contrary.

§8 Agents

- (1) The Issuer reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Agent and to appoint additional Agents, including Agents for specific countries which as of the Issue Date for an issue of Securities shall be specified in the section "Further Information on the Offering of the Securities" of the applicable Final Terms, provided that no termination of appointment of the Principal Agent shall become effective until a replacement Principal Agent shall have been appointed and provided that, if and to the extent that the Securities are listed on any stock exchange or publicly offered in any jurisdiction, there shall be an Agent having a specified office in each country if so required by the rules and regulations of each such stock exchange and/or the securities regulators in each such jurisdiction. Notice of any appointment, or termination of appointment, or any change in the specified office, of any Agent will be given to Securityholders in accordance with §16. Each Agent acts solely as agent of the Issuer and does not assume any obligation or duty to, or any relationship of agency or trust for or with, the Securityholders. Any calculations or determinations in respect of the Securities made by an Agent shall (save in the case of manifest error) be final, conclusive and binding on the Securityholders.
- (2) Definitions in respect of §8 and, if applicable, other Terms and Conditions:
 - (a) "Agent" means, subject to §8(1) the Principal Agent and, if it is not the Principal Agent in respect of the Securities, each of Deutsche Bank AG, acting through its principal office in Frankfurt am Main, Taunusanlage 12, 60325 Frankfurt am Main, Germany, and through its branch office in London, Winchester House, 1 Great Winchester Street, London EC2N 2DB, United Kingdom (Deutsche Bank AG London) and in respect of Austria Deutsche Bank AG, acting through its Vienna branch, Fleischmarkt 1, 1010 Vienna, Austria, in respect of Luxembourg Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A., acting through its Luxembourg branch, 2 Boulevard Konrad Adenauer, L-1115 Luxembourg, Luxembourg, in respect of Italy Deutsche Bank AG, acting through its Milan branch, Via Filippo Turati 27, 20121 Milano, Italy, in respect of Portugal Deutsche Bank AG, acting through its Portuguese branch, Rua Castilho, 20, 1250-069 Lisbon, Portugal, in respect of Spain Deutsche Bank AG, acting through its Spanish branch, Paseo De La Castellana, 18, 28046 Madrid, Spain and for Securities listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange or defined as Uncertificated SIS Securities in the Product Terms, Deutsche Bank AG, acting through its Zurich branch, Uraniastrasse 9, Post box 3604, 8021 Zurich, Switzerland, and each other Agent, if any, specified in the section "Further Information on the Offering of the Securities" of the applicable Final Terms.
 - (b) **"Principal Agent**" means, subject to §8 para. 1, the Principal Agent specified in the applicable Product Terms or, if no Principal Agent is specified in the Product Terms, Deutsche Bank AG, acting through the office through which the Securities have been issued (as specified in the definition of "Issuer" in the Product Terms).

(3) **Registrar**

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Notes represented by a Global Security in registered form, the Issuer reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Registrar or any successor as provided above, provided that no termination of appointment of the Registrar shall become effective until a replacement Registrar shall have been appointed. The Registrar will maintain a register (the "**Register**") on the terms as agreed between the Issuer and the Registrar, such terms to include that the Register shall at all times be physically located outside the United Kingdom. The Registrar acts solely as agent of the Issuer and does not assume any obligation or duty to, or any relationship of agency or trust for or with, the Securityholders. Any calculations or determinations in respect of the Securities made by the Registrar shall (save in the case of manifest error) be final, conclusive and binding on the Securityholders. The "**Registrar**" shall be such entity specified as such in the Product Terms or any successor as provided above.

§9 Calculation Agent

(1) Role of Calculation Agent, Issuer Determinations and Corrections

Unless otherwise stipulated in the Terms and Conditions, all calculations and determinations required by the Terms and Conditions shall be made by the calculation agent (the **"Calculation Agent"** which expression shall include any successor calculation agent).

The Issuer shall be the Calculation Agent in respect of the Securities, unless the Issuer decides to appoint a successor Calculation Agent in accordance with the provisions below.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Spanish Securities, the Calculation Agent shall, in accordance with the provisions of below, be either the Issuer or the Third Party Calculation Agent as the context requires.

The Issuer reserves the right at any time to appoint another institution as the Calculation Agent, provided that no termination of appointment of the existing Calculation Agent shall become effective until a replacement Calculation Agent shall have been appointed. Notice of any such termination or appointment will be given to the Securityholders in accordance with §16.

The Calculation Agent (except where it is the Issuer or, in the case of Spanish Securities, the Third Party Calculation Agent) acts solely as agent of the Issuer. The Calculation Agent does not assume any obligation or duty to, or any relationship of agency or trust for or with, the Securityholders.

Any calculations or determinations in respect of the Securities made by the Issuer or the Calculation Agent shall be made in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner and shall (save in the case of manifest error) be final, conclusive and binding on the Securityholders.

If Adjustment/Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms and notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Terms and Conditions, in exercising its discretion and/or in making any election, determination or adjustment, the Issuer, the Calculation Agent and any other relevant Agent shall do so in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, to preserve or restore the economics of the agreed terms, as far as possible. Any such election, determination or adjustment shall not create a significant imbalance between the rights and obligations of the Issuer compared to the Securityholders, to the detriment of the Securityholders.

Subsequent to any calculation or determination by the Calculation Agent in respect of the Securities, any subsequently published corrections in respect of any value or price of a Reference Item used by the Calculation Agent in respect of such calculation or determination shall, except as otherwise provided in the Product Terms, only be taken into account by the Calculation Agent to the extent that it is published within the Correction Period specified in the Product Terms or, if earlier, on or before the second Business Day preceeding the day on which a payment or delivery is to be made, the amount of which is determined in whole or in part by reference to such value or price of the Reference Item.

The Calculation Agent may, with the consent of the Issuer, delegate any of its obligations and functions to a third party as it deems appropriate, provided that, in the case of the Third Party Calculation Agent, such third party is not the Issuer.

(2) Role of the Third Party Calculation Agent

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Spanish Securities, any determination(s) in respect of such Spanish Securities which is to be made in accordance with the terms of §1, §3, §5, §6, §12, §17 and §18 or any other part of the Terms and Conditions where the Issuer or the Calculation Agent, as the case may be, is entitled to make determinations at its own option or which involve the exercise of its own discretion, in each case to amend the Terms and Conditions of the Securities, ("Relevant Determinations"), will be made by the Third Party Calculation Agent (being the entity (which shall not be the Issuer) specified as such in the applicable Product Terms, the "Third Party Calculation Agent")). All references to the Issuer or Calculation Agent making any Relevant Determinations, as the case may be, will be construed to refer to such Third Party Calculation Agent making such Relevant Determinations. The Third Party Calculation Agent shall make all such Relevant Determinations to the "best of its knowledge". In making such Relevant Determinations, the Third Party Calculation Agent shall at all times act as a third party service provider and independently of the Issuer. For the purpose of all other determinations specified to be made by the Calculation Agent in respect of Spanish Securities, the Issuer shall be the Calculation Agent. For the avoidance of doubt, Relevant Determinations will not include (i) any exercise by the Issuer of any option or right for any other purpose, including, any right to redeem, cancel or terminate such Securities, (ii) any right to vary or terminate the appointment of any Agent, Registrar or Calculation Agent in accordance with the terms of §8 or §9, as the case may be or (iii) any right to substitute the Issuer or a Branch in accordance with the terms of §13. References to the Issuer or the Calculation Agent, as the case may be, shall be construed accordingly.

For so long as any Spanish Securities are outstanding, the Issuer will procure that a Third Party Calculation Agent is appointed in respect of such Securities and that such Third Party Calculation Agent shall not be the Issuer itself (but may be a subsidiary or Affiliate of the Issuer). The Third Party Calculation Agent may not resign its duties without a successor having been appointed as aforesaid.

(3) **Determination by the Calculation Agent**

In the absence of gross negligence or wilful misconduct on its part, none of the Issuer, the Calculation Agent and any Agent shall have any responsibility for any errors or omissions in the calculation of any amount payable hereunder or in any other determination pursuant to the provisions hereof, to the extent permitted by applicable law.

§10 Taxation

In addition and without prejudice to the provisions of §2(5), the Issuer shall not be liable for or otherwise obliged to pay any tax, duty, charge, withholding or other payment which may arise as a result of the ownership, transfer, presentation and surrender for payment, or enforcement of the Securities. All payments made by the Issuer shall be made subject to any tax, duty, charge, withholding or other payment which may be required to be made, paid, withheld or deducted.

If the Securities are specified in the Product terms to be Notes and Portuguese Securities the Issuer shall not be liable for any failure by a non-resident holder of any such Notes that are Portuguese Securities to comply with any debt instruments withholding tax exemption certification procedures pursuant to Decree-Law 193/2005 of 13 November 2005 (as amended).

With respect to Securities that provide for net dividend reinvestment in respect of either an underlying U.S. security (*i.e.*, a security that pays U.S. source dividends) or an index that includes U.S. securities, all payments on the Securities that reference such U.S. securities or an index that includes U.S. securities are calculated by reference to dividends on such U.S. securities that are reinvested at a rate of 70%. In calculating the relevant payment amount, the holder will be deemed to receive, and the Issuer will be deemed to withhold, 30% of any dividend equivalent payments (as defined in Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986) in respect of the relevant U.S. securities. The Issuer will not pay any additional amounts to the holder on account of the Section 871(m) amount deemed withheld.

§11 Presentation Period and Limitation

In the case of Securities represented by a Global Security, any payments will, subject to as provided below, be made in the manner provided in §3 and otherwise in the manner specified in the Global Security, if applicable. For all other Securities, any payments will be made in the manner provided in §3.

Where the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Securities represented by a Global Security in bearer form, payments of all amounts shall be made against presentation or surrender, as the case may be, of the Global Security, if applicable, at the specified office of any Agent. A record of each payment made will be made on the Global Security by the relevant Agent, if applicable and such record shall be prima facie evidence that the payment in question has been made.

Where the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Securities represented by a Global Security in registered form, payments of all amounts shall be made to the person shown on the Register at the close of business on the business day before the due date for payment (being the relevant Clearing Agent, or nominee or common nominee (as applicable) of the Clearing Agent(s)) as the holder of such Securities, and if no further payment falls to be made on the Securities, on surrender of the Global Security to or to the order of the Registrar. A record of each payment made will be made in the Register by the relevant Agent and such record shall be prima facie evidence that the payment in question has been made. For the purpose of this paragraph, "**business day**" means a day on which the relevant Clearing Agent(s) is (or are, if applicable) open for business.

Each of the persons shown in the records of a Clearing Agent as the holder of a particular number or nominal amount of the Securities must look solely to the relevant Clearing Agent for his share of each such payment so made by the Issuer to, or to the order of, the holder of the Global Security or the relevant Clearing Agent, as applicable.

(1) English law governed Securities

If the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be English Law, any claim to receive payments under the Securities, will become void unless the Global Security has been presented or the claim otherwise made in accordance with these Terms and Conditions within a period of five years (in relation to the payment of any Coupon Amount) and ten years (in relation to the payment of any other amount), in each case, after the Relevant Date therefor. As used herein, the "**Relevant Date**" means the date on which such payment first becomes due, except that, if the full amount of the moneys payable has not been duly received by the relevant Agent on or prior to such due date, it means the date on which, the full amount of such moneys having been so received, notice to that effect is duly given to the Securityholders in accordance with §16.

(2) German law governed Securities

If the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be German Law, the presentation of the Global Security, if applicable, takes place by way of surrender of the respective coownership units of the Global Security to the account of the Issuer at the Clearing Agent. The time limit for presentation pursuant to §801 para. 1 sentence 1 of the German Civil Code relating to securities being payable has been reduced to 1 year. Any claim to receive payments under the Securities, which has been presented within the period, will become time-barred after a period of two years starting at the end of the time period for presentation and four years in relation to the payment of Coupon Amounts starting at the end of the relevant time period for presentation.

(3) Italian law governed Securities

If the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be Italian Law, the right to receive payment of interest lapses five years after the date on which such interest becomes payable. The right to receive the repayment of the principal amount lapses ten years after the date on which the principal amount of the Securities became payable. The limitation on the right to receive the payment of interest and the repayment of the principal amount is for the benefit of the Issuer.

(4) Spanish law governed Securities

If the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be Spanish Law, the right to receive payment of any Coupon Amounts which are payable yearly or in shorter periods lapses five years after the date on which such Coupon Amount becomes payable and the right to receive payment of any other Coupon Amounts or any amount(s) payable in respect of principal lapses fifteen years after the date on which any relevant amount becomes payable. The limitation on the right to receive such payments is for the benefit of the Issuer.

(5) **Portuguese law governed Securities**

If the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Law, the right to receive payment of any Coupon Amount lapses five years after the date on which such Coupon Amount becomes payable. The right to receive payment of any amount(s) payable in respect of principal lapses twenty years after the date on which any relevant amount becomes payable. The limitation on the right to receive such payments is for the benefit of the Issuer.

§12 Events of Default; Resolution Measures

(1) Events of Default.

Unless Eligible Liabilities Format is specified to apply in the Product Terms, if any of the events set out in (a) – (d) below occurs, each Securityholder shall be entitled to declare his Securities due:

- (a) the Issuer fails to make any payment or perform any delivery obligation in respect of the Securities within thirty (30) days of the relevant due date after the Principal Agent has received notice thereof from a Securityholder; or
- (b) the Issuer fails duly to perform any other obligation arising from the Securities, if such failure continues for more than sixty (60) days after the Principal Agent has received notice thereof from a Securityholder; or
- (c) the Issuer announces its inability to meet its financial obligations or ceases its payments; or
- (d) a court in Germany opens insolvency proceedings against the Issuer, or the Issuer applies for or institutes such proceedings or offers or makes an arrangement for the benefit of its creditors generally.

The right to declare Securities due shall terminate if the situation giving rise to it has been cured before the right is exercised.

If the Securities are declared due each Securityholder shall be entitled to demand immediate payment of an amount in respect of each Security held by such Securityholder equal to the Market Value of a Security less a Security's proportionate share of the direct and indirect cost to the Issuer of unwinding any underlying related Hedging Arrangements, all as determined by the Calculation Agent in its reasonable discretion.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Italian Securities which are Notes intended to be listed and admitted to trading on an Italian regulated market or Italian multilateral trading facility so requiring, such amount paid as a result of the occurrence of an Event of Default shall be at least equal to the Nominal Amount in respect of each Security.

(2) Resolution Measures

If Eligible Liabilities Format is specified to apply in the Product Terms, each Securityholder acknowledges and accepts that under the relevant resolution laws and regulations as applicable to the Issuer from time to time, the Securities may be subject to the powers exercised by the competent resolution authority to

- (a) write down, including write down to zero, the claims for payment of the principal amount, the interest amount or any other amount in respect of the Securities;
- (b) convert that claims into ordinary shares of (i) the Issuer or (ii) any group entity or (iii) any bridge bank or other instruments of ownership qualifying as common equity tier 1 capital (and the issue to or conferral on the counterparty of such instruments); and/or
- (c) apply any other resolution measure, including, but not limited to, (i) any transfer of the Securities to another entity, (ii) the amendment, modification or variation of the terms and conditions of the Securities or (iii) the cancellation of the Securities

(each, a "Resolution Measure").

The Securityholders shall be bound by any Resolution Measure. No Securityholder shall have any claim or other right against the Issuer arising out of any Resolution Measure. In particular, the exercise of any Resolution Measure shall not constitute an event of default.

By its acquisition of the Securities, each Securityholder acknowledges and accepts the measures and effects according to the preceding paragraphs and that this § 12 is exhaustive on the matters described herein to the exclusion of any other agreements, arrangements or understandings between the Securityholder and the Issuer relating to the subject matter of this terms and conditions of the Securities.

(3) Quorum.

In the events specified in para. (1)(b) above, any notice declaring Securities due shall, unless at the time such notice is received any of the events specified in para. (1)(a), (c) or (d) entitling Securityholders to declare their Securities due has occurred, become effective only when the Issuer has received such notices from the Securityholders accounting for at least 10 per cent. of the total number or nominal amount of Securities of the relevant series then outstanding.

(4) Form of Notice.

Any notice, including any notice declaring Securities due, in accordance with para. (1) above shall be made by means of a written declaration delivered by hand or registered mail to the Principal Agent at its principal office.

§13 Substitution of Issuer and Branch

(1) **Substitution of Issuer**

The Issuer, or any previous substituted company, may at any time, without the consent of the Securityholders substitute for itself as principal obligor under the Securities any company (the "**Substitute**"), being any subsidiary or Affiliate, subject to the following conditions being satisfied (the "**Primary Conditions**"):

- (a) the obligations of the Substitute under the Securities being irrevocably and unconditionally guaranteed by Deutsche Bank AG (unless it is the Substitute) and claims under the guarantee have the same rank as claims under the Securities;
- (b) all actions, conditions and steps required to be taken, fulfilled and done (including the obtaining of any necessary consents) to ensure that the Securities represent legal, valid and binding obligations of the Substitute having been taken, fulfilled and done and being in full force and effect;
- (c) the Issuer shall have given at least 30 days' prior notice of the date of such substitution to the Securityholders in accordance with §16;
- (d) where relevant, the applicability of Resultion Measures described in §12 (2) is ensured; and
- (e) the substitution has been approved by the competent authority, if legally required.

If Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, a Substitute may only be appointed if the following cumulative conditions are satisfied: (i) either (x) a Substitution Event has occurred or (y) the Issuer (or the entity that has substituted the Issuer in accordance with this provision) continues to exist and irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees the payment obligations of the Substitute; (ii) the Primary Conditions are satisfied; and (iii) all Additional Conditions are satisfied.

A "Substitution Event" means any of the following situations:

- (a) the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, bankruptcy, insolvency, dissolution or winding up of or any analogous proceedings affecting the Issuer;
- (b) a divestment in respect of the Issuer, required by any court, tribunal, regulatory authority or similar administrative or judicial body;
- (c) the cancellation, suspension or revocation of any relevant authorisation or licence of the Issuer, by any governmental, legal or regulatory authority;
- (d) a consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding share exchange in respect of the Issuer, with or into another entity or person; or
- (e) a takeover offer, tender offer, exchange offer, solicitation proposal or other event by any entity or person to purchase or otherwise obtain a controlling stake in the Issuer.

The "Additional Conditions" means each of the following conditions:

(a) the Substitute has at least the same long-term credit rating as the Issuer (or the entity that has substituted the Issuer in accordance with this provision);

- (b) the Issuer (or the entity that has substituted the Issuer in accordance with this provision) gives a representation that there is no outstanding or delayed payment or indication that an imminent payment may be delayed or of any default in the payment of principal or interest; and
- (c) an undertaking from the Issuer (or the entity that has substituted the Issuer in accordance with this provision) that it will indemnify the Securityholder against the adverse financial impact of the tax and regulatory regime to which it is subject and that it will not charge the Securityholder any costs relating to the substitution.

In the event of any substitution of the Issuer, any reference in the Terms and Conditions to the Issuer shall from the time of effective substitution be construed as a reference to the Substitute.

(2) **Substitution of Branch**

The Issuer shall have the right upon notice to Securityholders in accordance with §16 to change the office through which it is acting for the purpose of the Securities, the date of such change to be specified in such notice provided that no change can take place prior to the giving of such notice.

§14 Purchases of Securities

The Issuer may, but is not obliged to, purchase Securities at any price in the open market or by tender or private agreement, subject to the prior approval of the competent authority, if legally required. Any Securities so purchased may be held or resold or surrendered for cancellation.

§15 Further Issuances of Securities

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time without the consent of Securityholders or any of them to create and issue further securities so as to be consolidated and form a single series with the Securities.

§16 Notices

(1) **Delivery/Publication**

Notices to the Securityholders will be valid if:

- (a) delivered to the Clearing Agent(s) for communication by the Clearing Agent(s) to the Securityholders; and/or
- (b) subject to it not being specified otherwise in the relevant Final Terms, published on the internet page www.xmarkets.db.com or on any substitute page or service notified to Securityholders by publication on such internet page.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Securities any reference to Clearing Agent in the sub-paragraph (a) above shall instead be read as reference to the relevant Affiliate Member of Interbolsa.

(2) Effective Date

Notices referred to above will become effective:

- (a) if delivered pursuant to para. (1)(a) above, on the Business Day after such delivery to the Clearing Agent or all the Clearing Agents (if more than one);
- (b) if published pursuant to para. (1)(b) above, on the date of such publication; or
- (c) if delivered pursuant to para. (a) and published pursuant to para.(1)(b), on the earlier of (i) the Business Day after such delivery to the Clearing Agent or all the Clearing Agents (if more than one) (as described in (1)(a) above, and/or (ii) the date of such publication as described in (1)(b) above.

If the Securities are specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Securities any reference to Clearing Agent in the sub-paragraphs (a) and (c) above shall instead be read as reference to the relevant Affiliate Member of Interbolsa. Furthermore, in the case of Portuguese Securities, no such notice shall become effective prior to it being disclosed through the website of the Portuguese Securities Market Commission (*Comissão do Mercado de Valores Mobiliários*) (www.cmvm.pt), if such disclosure is required.

(3) Luxembourg Stock Exchange publication

If and for so long as the Securities are listed on the official list of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and the rules of the exchange so require, notices to the Securityholders will be published on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's website, www.bourse.lu.

(4) Borsa Italiana Publication

If and for so long as the *Securities* are listed on the Borsa Italiana and the rules of the exchange so require, notices to the Securityholders will be published on the Borsa Italiana's website, www.borsaitaliana.it.

(5) **Euronext Lisbon Publication**

If and for so long as the Portuguese Securities are listed on the Euronext Lisbon regulated market, any notices shall be published through the website of the Portuguese Securities Market Commission (www.cmvm.pt), and comply with any additional Euronext Lisbon rules.

(6) Spanish Stock Exchanges and AIAF

If and for so long as the Spanish Securities are listed on any Spanish regulated market and the rules of the exchange or market so require, notices to the Securityholders will be published on the website of the Spanish Securities Market Commission (*Comisión Nacional del Mercado de Valores*) at www.cnmv.es and, if required, the website of the relevant regulated market.

(7) SIX Swiss Exchange Publication

If and for so long as the Securities are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange and so long as the rules of the SIX Swiss Exchange so require, all notices in respect of the *Securities* will be validly given without cost to the holders of such Securities either (i) by means of electronic publication on the internet website of the SIX Swiss Exchange (www.six-swiss-exchange.com, where notices are currently published under the address www.six-swiss-exchange.com/news/official_notices/search_en.html), or (ii) otherwise in accordance with the regulations of the SIX Swiss Exchange. Any notices so given will be deemed to have been validly given on the date of such publication or if published more than once, on the first date of such publication.

§17 Redenomination

(1) **Redenomination**

Redenomination in Euro

The Issuer may, without the consent of the Securityholders, on giving notice to the Securityholders in accordance with §16, elect that, with effect from the Adjustment Date specified in the notice, the Securities shall be redenominated in euro.

The election will have effect as follows:

- (a) where the Settlement Currency is the National Currency Unit of a country which is participating in the third stage of European Economic and Monetary Union, such Settlement Currency shall be deemed to be an amount of euro converted from the original Settlement Currency into euro at the Established Rate, subject to such provisions (if any) as to rounding as the Issuer may decide and as may be specified in the notice, and after the Adjustment Date, all payments in respect of the Securities will be made solely in euro as though references in the Terms and Conditions to the Settlement Currency were to euro;
- (b) where the Terms and Conditions contain an exchange rate or any of the Terms and Conditions are expressed in a currency (the "Original Currency") of a country which is participating in the third stage of European Economic and Monetary Union, such exchange rate and/or any other currency terms of the Terms and Conditions shall be deemed to be expressed in or, in the case of an exchange rate, converted for or, as the case may be into, euro at the Established Rate; and
- (c) such other changes shall be made to the Terms and Conditions as the Issuer may decide to conform them to conventions then applicable to instruments expressed in euro.

If Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, the Issuer shall only be entitled to exercise the rights provided for in this paragraph (1) pursuant to a Restricted Event having occurred.

(2) Adjustment

The Issuer may, without the consent of the Securityholders, on giving notice to the Securityholders in accordance with §16, make such adjustments to the Terms and Conditions as the Issuer may determine to be appropriate to account for the effect on the Terms and Conditions of the third stage of European Economic and Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty.

If Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms, the Issuer shall only be entitled to exercise the rights provided for in this paragraph (2) pursuant to a Restricted Event having occurred.

(3) Associated Costs

Notwithstanding the provisions of para. (1) and (2) above, none of the Issuer, the Calculation Agent and any Agent shall be liable to any Securityholder or other person for any commissions, costs, losses or expenses in relation to or resulting from the transfer of euro or any currency conversion or rounding effected in connection therewith, unless if Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction and Non-Consideration of Cost are specified to apply

in the Product Terms, in which case the Securityholder shall not bear any costs pursuant to the redenomination or adjustment pursuant to this §17.

(4) Definitions in respect of §17 and, if applicable, other Terms and Conditions:

Redenomination

- (a) **"Adjustment Date**" means a date specified by the Issuer in the notice given to the Securityholders pursuant to this Condition which falls, if the currency is that of a country not initially participating in the third stage of European Economic and Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty, on or after such later date as such country does so participate.
- (b) **"Established Rate**" means the exchange rate for the conversion of the Original Currency (including compliance with rules relating to rounding in accordance with applicable European Union regulations) into euro established by the Council of the European Union pursuant to Article 140 para. 4 (formerly 109 I (4)) of the Treaty.
- (c) **"National Currency Unit**" means the unit of the currency of a country, as those units are defined on the day before the start of the third stage of European Economic and Monetary Union or, in connection with the expansion of such third stage, to any country which has not initially participated in such third stage.
- (d) "Settlement Currency" is as defined in the Product Terms.
- (e) **"Treaty**" means the treaty on the Functioning of the European Union.
- (5) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Terms and Conditions, in exercising its discretion and/or in making any election, determination or adjustment as foreseen in this §17, the Issuer shall do so in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, to preserve or restore the economics of the agreed terms, as far as possible. Any such election, determination or adjustment shall not create a significant imbalance between the rights and obligations of the Issuer compared to the Securityholders, to the detriment of the Securityholders.

§18 Modifications

(1) German law governed Securities

If Governing Law is specified in the Product terms to be German law the following applies:

(a) Issuer's Right of Rescission

Obvious spelling and calculation errors in the Product Terms, including those where the information provided clearly cannot be reconciled with the Issue Price or valuedetermining factors of the Security, give rise to a right of rescission on the part of the Issuer. Immediate notice of such rescission must be given in accordance with §16 (1) as soon as the Issuer has become aware of the error concerned. The publication must make reference to §18 of this document and indicate the information in the Product Terms affected by the error. The term of the Securities ends with immediate effect as a result of the rescission.

(b) Issuer's Right of Correction and Securityholders' Right of Redemption

If the Issuer does not make use of its right of rescission, it may correct obvious errors within the meaning of para. (a) by correcting the Product Terms. A correction of the Product Terms is to be notified immediately in accordance with §16(1) and with reference to §18 of this document as soon as the Issuer becomes aware of the error concerned. In this event, however, each Securityholder is entitled to redeem his/her holdings of Securities before the correction takes effect. Such a redemption must be made by notifying the Principal Agent within four weeks of the publication of the correction. It shall take effect upon receipt by the Issuer of the notice of redemption. A redemption has the same effect as a rescission in accordance with para. (a).

The Issuer determines the content of the correction on the basis of the information that would have been provided if the error had not occurred. The correction must be reasonable for the Securityholders taking into account the economic purpose of the Securities. This is only the case if, as a result of the correction, the economic value of the Securities is adjusted to their Issue Price at the time of issue. The correction takes effect four weeks after the day of notification and the publication must make reference to this four-week deadline and the Securityholders' Redemption Right.

(c) Cash Amount in the Event of a Rescission or Redemption

In the event of a rescission by the Issuer in accordance with para. (a) or a redemption by Securityholders in accordance with para. (b), the affected Securityholders will receive an amount equal to the market price of the Securities on the next Business Day after the rescission or redemption takes effect; the resulting payment is due on the fifth Business Day after this date. If a Securityholder proves that the market price is lower than the amount he/she paid to acquire the Securities, less any payments already made by the Issuer, he/she will be entitled to the corresponding amount. This does not affect the Securityholder's right to claim damages for any loss incurred as a result of negative interest (*Vertrauensschaden*) in accordance with §122 para. 1 of the German Civil Code.

For Securities listed in the regulated market or for trading over-the-counter at a stock exchange (referred to in the following as "**Listing**") the market price within the meaning of para. (a) and para. (b) shall be the closing price published by the stock exchange on the relevant date. In the case of multiple stock exchanges this shall be the closing price at the stock exchange where the largest turnover of the Securities

took place at last. If a closing price was not published on this date or if a Market Disruption occurred, the provisions of §5 shall apply provided that the Reference Item for the purpose of these provisions shall be the Security itself. In the case of Securities without a Listing, the market price shall be determined by the Calculation Agent in its reasonable discretion (§315 of the German Civil Code) and in consultation with an expert.

(d) Contradictory or Incomplete Information

Notwithstanding Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive and if information in the Product Terms is recognisably in contradiction with other information, or if the Product Terms are recognisably incomplete, the Issuer may correct or amend the Product Terms immediately by publication in accordance with §16. Such correction or amendment takes place either, if the interpretation of the terms alone leads to a specific content becoming applicable, on the basis of this content, and otherwise on the basis of the information that would have applied if the error on the part of the Issuer had not occurred.

(e) Major Increase in Market Price Caused by Immediately Recognisable Error

If the erroneous content of any of the terms of the Securities, and its correct content, are clearly apparent to an expert investor for the relevant Security, and if the difference between the erroneous and correct content gives rise to a market price of the Security, based on the erroneous content, which is more than 30 per cent. higher at the time of the initial issue, the correct content shall apply in place of the erroneous content. The Issuer may also invoke the unlawful application of an erroneous term against individual Securityholders where this is appropriate to the circumstances of individual cases.

If Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms and the proposed adjustment relates to the Essential Characteristics of the Securities, the Issuer shall only be entitled to make the changes foreseen in this paragraph (1) pursuant to the occurrence of a Restricted Event. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Terms and Conditions, in exercising its discretion and/or in making any election, determination or adjustment, the Issuer shall do so in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, to preserve or restore the economics of the agreed terms, as far as possible. Any such election, determination or adjustment shall not create a significant imbalance between the rights and obligations of the Issuer compared to the Securityholders, to the detriment of the Securityholders.

(2) Securities not governed by German law

If Governing Law is specified in the Product terms to be any other law than German law the following applies:

The Issuer may, to the extent permitted by applicable law and subject to as provided below, modify the Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms without the consent of the Securityholders or any of them in any manner which the Issuer may deem reasonably necessary (i) in order to maintain or preserve the intended commercial purpose of the Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms; or (ii) if such modification does not materially adversely affect the interests of the Securityholders or is of a formal, minor or technical nature or intended to correct a manifest or proven error or to cure, correct or supplement any defective provision contained therein. Notice of any such modification will be given to the Securityholders in accordance with §16 but failure to give, or non-receipt of, such notice will not affect the validity of any such modification.

The Issuer may exercise the above discretion for the reasons or in the circumstances described above (i.e. in order to maintain or preserve the intended commercial purpose of the Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms or if such modification does not materially adversely affect the interests of the *Securityholders* or is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is intended to correct any errors or defective provisions in the Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms). In each of these cases the Issuer will first satisfy itself that the exercise of the discretion is reasonable and necessary and it will consider if there is any reasonable alternative which would not entail additional material costs for the Issuer and/or its Affiliates. Following any modification pursuant to this §18, the Issuer may in its discretion amend and restate the applicable Final Terms.

If Additional Adjustment / Termination Restriction is specified as applicable in the Product Terms and the proposed adjustment relates to the Essential Characteristics of the Securities, the Issuer shall only be entitled to make the changes foreseen in this paragraph (2) pursuant to the occurrence of a Restricted Event. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Terms and Conditions, in exercising its discretion and/or in making any election, determination or adjustment, the Issuer shall do so in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, to preserve or restore the economics of the agreed terms, as far as possible. Any such election, determination or adjustment shall not create a significant imbalance between the rights and obligations of the Issuer compared to the Securityholders, to the detriment of the Securityholders.

(3) Securities with proprietary indices as Reference Items

If the Underlying or a Relevant Reference Item is an index and such index represents a Proprietary Index, the relevant index description for such index is deemed to be part of the Product Terms in respect to amendments effected by the Index Sponsor. Amendments to the index description effected by the Index Sponsor shall be treated, if such amendments fulfil the preconditions for amendments, corrections and supplements of the Product Terms as set out in the General Conditions, as if the respective amendments, corrections and supplements have been effected by the Issuer or the Calculation Agent effective with regard to the Underlying (including all Relevant Reference Items included in the index). If an amendment to the index description effected by the Index Sponsor does not fulfil the preconditions as set out in the General Conditions, such amendment will not be considered in applying the Terms and Conditions. In such case, the Calculation Agent will calculate the level of the index, to the extent necessary, on basis of the index description effective immediately prior to the relevant amendment to the index description.

"**Proprietary Index**" means an index in respect of which the Issuer or its subsidiary is the Index Sponsor.

§19 Severability

If any of the provisions of the Terms and Conditions is or becomes invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. The invalid or unenforceable provision shall be replaced by a valid provision, which, to the extent legally possible, serves the economic purposes of the invalid or unenforceable provision. The same applies to any gaps in the Terms and Conditions.

§20 Governing Law, Place of Jurisdiction and Place of Performance

(1) English law governed Securities

Subject to as provided under (6) below, if the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be English Law, the Securities and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Securities are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law. No person shall have any right to enforce any term or condition of the Securities under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999, but this does not affect any right or remedy of any person which exists or is available apart from that Act.

The courts of England are to have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arise out of or in connection with the Securities (including a dispute relating to any noncontractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Securities).

(2) German law governed Securities

Subject to as provided under (6) below, if the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be German Law, the Securities are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, German law. The place of jurisdiction for all proceedings arising from matters provided for in the Terms and Conditions shall, to the extent legally permitted, be Frankfurt am Main. The place of performance of any obligation of the Issuer under the Terms and Conditions is Frankfurt am Main.

(3) Italian law governed Securities

Subject to as provided under (6) below, if the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be Italian Law, the Securities are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, Italian law. The exclusive place of jurisdiction for all proceedings arising from or relating to matters provided for in the Terms and Conditions, including non-contractual matters and tort liabilities shall, to the extent legally permitted, be Milan. Obligations of Deutsche Bank AG under the Securities will be performed only through Deutsche Bank AG, Milan Branch and the place of performance of any obligation of the Issuer under the Terms and Conditions is Milan. In the event that, for reasons outside of its control, the Issuer is unable to perform any of its obligations in Milan (whether as a result of a change in law, regulation or otherwise), an investor is not entitled to require performance of such obligation(s) in any other jurisdiction or place.

(4) **Portuguese law governed Securities**

Subject to as provided under (6) below, if the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be Portuguese Law, the Securities and any non-contractual obligations in connection therewith, are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, Portuguese law. The exclusive place of jurisdiction for all proceedings arising from matters provided for in the Terms and Conditions shall be Portugal and within the Portuguese jurisdiction, to the extent legally permitted, any such proceedings shall be held before the courts of Lisbon. Obligations of Deutsche Bank AG under the Securities will be performed only through Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal em Portugal and the place of performance of any obligation of the Issuer under the Terms and Conditions is Lisbon. In the event that, for reasons outside of its control, the Issuer is unable to perform any of its obligations in Lisbon (whether as a result of a change in law, regulation or otherwise), an investor is not entitled to require performance of such obligation(s) in any other jurisdiction or place.

(5) Spanish law governed Securities

Subject to as provided under (6) below, if the Governing Law is specified in the Product Terms to be Spanish Law, the Securities are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, Spanish law. The exclusive place of jurisdiction for all proceedings arising from matters provided for in the Terms and Conditions shall, to the extent legally permitted, be, and any such legal proceedings shall be held before the courts of, Madrid. All the obligations of the Issuer under the Terms and Conditions are to be performed exclusively from Madrid through Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal en España and all payments are to be originated in Madrid for all purposes. As a consequence, in the event that, for reasons outside of its control, the Issuer is unable to perform its obligations from Madrid through Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal en España in Spain (whether as a result of a change in law, regulation, by administrative decision, force majeure or otherwise), an investor may not require that such obligations are performed from or originated by the Issuer acting through another branch or in any jurisdiction other than Spain.

(6) **Exemptions**

The provisions of (1)(b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h) or (i) apply without prejudice to the provisions of this (20.)

§21 Portuguese Securities

This §21 only applies to Portuguese Securities.

(1) Meetings of Securityholders

Subject to the provisions of the applicable Product Terms and subject to the prior approval of the competent authority, if legally required, Securityholders of a given series of Portuguese Securities have the right to hold meetings to consider certain matters specified in the Portuguese Companies Code, enacted by Decree-Law 262/86, of 2 September 1986 (as amended) and article 15 of Decree-Law 172/99 of 22 May 1999 (as amended) or which otherwise affect their interests, including the modification or abrogation of any of the Terms and Conditions of the relevant series of Portuguese Securities and the appointment of a common representative as representative of their interests, under the terms of articles 355 to 359 of the Portuguese Companies Code and article 15 of Decree-Law 172/99 of 22 May 1999 (as amended). The common representative must be a firm of lawyers, a firm of certified auditors, a financial intermediary, an entity authorized to provide investors representation services in any Member State of the European Union or a natural person with full legal capacity, even if it is not a Securityholder; in any case, the common representative must be independent and not be associated with any specific group of interests or be under any circumstances which may effect its independence, as set out in the Portuguese Companies Code.

A meeting of holders of Portuguese Securities of a given series may be convened by (A) the common representative, at any time, or if (i) the common representative refuses to convene such a meeting or (ii) the meeting fails to be convened because a common representative has not been appointed, (B) the management of Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal em Portugal. A meeting must in any case be convened by the common representative or the management of Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal em Portugal if so requested by holders of Portuguese Securities holding not less than five per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the Portuguese Securities of the relevant series. Otherwise, such holders will be able to resort to court in order to obtain the convocation of the meeting. Every meeting of holders of Portuguese Securities shall be held on the date, and at the time and place, approved by the common representative or the management of Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal em Portugal, as the case may be, as specified in the notice for such meeting of holders of Portuguese Securities. For the purposes of convening any such meeting, a convening notice shall be disseminated at least 30 calendar days prior to the date of the meeting, (i) in accordance with all laws and regulations applicable to such dissemination (including any rules and regulations of Interbolsa, the CMVM and of any stock exchange where the Portuguese Securities are admitted to trading), and (ii) through the website of the CMVM (www.cmvm.pt).

(2) **Provisions of information to Interbolsa**

For any series of Portuguese Securities, the Principal Agent shall provide information to Interbolsa regarding the amounts payable to the holders of such Portuguese Securities no later than the fourth Business Day prior to the date on which such amounts are to be paid to the relevant Securityholders or such later date as may be accepted by Interbolsa in respect of the relevant Securities. The Issuer will provide the Principal Agent, on request, and no later than such fourth Business Day (or, in respect of any later date acceptable to Interbolsa, no later than that later date) with any such information relating to these amounts payable as Interbolsa may require.

Annex 1

FORM OF EXERCISE NOTICE

DEUTSCHE BANK AG

[Up to] [] [Form of Security] relating to [Underlying] (the "Securities")

Any capitalised terms not defined herein shall bear the same meaning as that in the Terms and Conditions of the relevant Securities.

This form is not applicable in respect of Uncertificated SIS Securities. The form for Uncertificated SIS Securities may be obtained on request to the Principal Agent.

When completed this notice should be sent by the Securityholder to the Principal Agent and copied to the relevant Clearing Agent, or in the case of Portuguese Securities, the relevant Affiliate Member of Interbolsa, and in the case of French Securities, the relevant Account Holder. The most recent form of this notice may be obtained on request to the Principal Agent.

To: Deutsche Bank AG [London Winchester House 1 Great Winchester Street London EC2N 2EQ

> Attention: [] EIMG Fax: [] +44 (0)113 336 1979 E-Mail: transaction-mngt.group@db.com] [OR INSERT ALTERNATIVE ADDRESS DETAILS FOR ISSUER]

cc:

[*Clearing Agent/Affiliate Member of Interbolsa/Account Holder Details*] [Euroclear Bank SA/NV] [address] Attention: [] Fax: [] Phone: []

Clearstream Banking S.A. [address] Attention: [] Fax: [] Phone: []

[If other clearing system, insert details]

[Subject to as set out below, if this notice is determined to be incomplete or not in proper form (in the determination of the Principal Agent), or is not copied to the Clearing Agent, or in the case of Portuguese Securities, copied to the relevant Affiliate Member of Interbolsa, *and in the case of French Securities, copied to the relevant Account Holder,* immediately after being delivered or sent to the Principal Agent, it shall be void.

If this notice is subsequently corrected to the satisfaction of the Principal Agent, it shall be deemed to be a new notice submitted at the time such correction is delivered to the Principal Agent and copied to the Clearing Agent, or in the case of Portuguese

Securities, copied to the relevant Affiliate Member of Interbolsa, and in the case of French Securities, copied to the relevant Account Holder.

PLEASE USE BLOCK CAPITALS

1. Number of the Securities

The number of the Securities being exercised is as follows:

2. Account details:

[I/We*] hereby irrevocably instruct and authorise the [Clearing Agent/Affiliate Member of Interbolsa/Account Holder] to debit on or before the Settlement Date the account specified below with the number of the Securities being exercised and [I/we*] hereby authorise the Principal Agent to so direct the [Clearing Agent/Affiliate Member of Interbolsa/Account Holder] on [my/our*] behalf.

Account details: [*delete as appropriate]

[If cash settled, insert below and renumber paragraphs accordingly:

3. Cash amounts

The account with the [Clearing Agent/Affiliate Member of Interbolsa/Account Holder] to be credited with any Cash Amount(s), Disruption Settlement Amount, Adjustment Amount and any other cash amounts payable to [me/us*] is as follows:

Account details:] [*delete as appropriate]

[If not physically settled, delete (4) below and renumber paragraphs accordingly:

4. Physical Delivery Amount

The account with [*insert relevant Physical Delivery Clearing System*(s)] to be credited with the Physical Delivery Amount(s) is as follows:

Account details:

5. Securityholder Expenses

[I/We*] hereby undertake to pay all Securityholder Expenses and the aggregate Strike and any other cash amounts, if applicable, payable in connection with the exercise and settlement of the relevant Securities and [I/we*] hereby irrevocably instruct the [Clearing Agent/Affiliate Member of Interbolsa/Account Holder] to deduct an amount or amounts in respect thereof from any cash amount due to [me/us*] as referred to under 3 above and/or to debit [my/our*] account with the [Clearing Agent/Affiliate Member of Interbolsa/Account Holder] specified below with an amount or amounts in respect thereof, in each case on or after the Exercise Date and [I/we*] hereby authorise the Principal Agent to so direct the [Clearing Agent/Affiliate Member of Interbolsa/Account Holder] on [my/our*] behalf.

Account details: [*delete as appropriate]

6. Certification of non-U.S. beneficial ownership

The undersigned hereby [certify/ies*] that, as of the date hereof, neither the person exercising the Securities that are the subject of this notice nor any person on whose behalf

the Securities are being exercised is a U.S. person or a person within the United States and that no cash amounts, and in the case of a physical delivery of an Underlying, no securities or other property have been or will be transferred in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person in connection with any exercise thereof. As used herein "United States" means the United States of America (including the States and the District of Columbia and its possessions), and "U.S. person" means (i) an individual who is a resident of the United States; (ii) a corporation, partnership or other entity organised in or under the laws of the United States or any political subdivision thereof or which has its principal place of business in the United States; (iii) any estate or trust which is subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of the source of its income; (iv) any trust if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust and if one or more United States trustees have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust; (v) a pension plan for the employees, officers or principals of a corporation, partnership or other entity described in (ii) above; (vi) any entity organised principally for passive investment, 10 per cent. or more of the beneficial interests in which are held by persons described in (i) to (v) above if such entity was formed principally for the purpose of investment by such persons in a commodity pool the operator of which is exempt from certain requirements of Part 4 of the United States Commodity Futures Trading Commission's regulations by virtue of its participants being non-U.S. persons; or (vii) any other "U.S. person" as such term may be defined in Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or a person who does not come within the definition of a non-United States person under Rule 4.7 of the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended.

[*delete as appropriate]

7. Use of Exercise Notice

[I/We*] authorise the production of this notice in any applicable administrative or legal proceedings.

[*delete as appropriate]

Names(s) of Securityholder(s):

Signed/By:

Dated:

Annex 2

FORM OF DELIVERY NOTICE

DEUTSCHE BANK AG

[Up to] [] [Form of Security] relating to [Underlying] (the "Securities")

Any capitalised terms not defined herein shall bear the same meaning as that in the Terms and Conditions of the relevant Securities.

When completed this notice should be sent by the Securityholder to the Principal Agent and copied to the relevant Clearing Agent and, in the case of French Securities, the relevant Account Holder. The most recent form of this notice may be obtained on request to the Principal Agent.

To: Deutsche Bank AG [London Winchester House 1 Great Winchester Street London EC2N 2EQ

> Attention: EIMG Fax: +44 (0)113 336 1979 E-mail: transaction-mngt.group@db.com] [OR INSERT ALTERNATIVE ADDRESS DETAILS FOR ISSUER]

cc:

[*Clearing Agent/Account Holder Details*] [Euroclear Bank SA/NV] [address] Attention: [] Fax: [] Phone: []

Clearstream Banking S.A. [address] Attention: [] Fax: [] Phone: []

[If other clearing system, insert details]

Subject to as set out below, if this notice is determined to be incomplete or not in proper form (in the determination of the Principal Agent and, in the case of French Securities, the relevant Account Holder), or is not copied to the Clearing Agent immediately after being delivered or sent to the Principal Agent, it shall be void.

If this notice is subsequently corrected to the satisfaction of the Principal Agent, it shall be deemed to be a new notice submitted at the time such correction is delivered to the Principal Agent and copied to the Clearing Agent.

PLEASE USE BLOCK CAPITALS

1. Number of the Securities

The aggregate nominal amount or number of the Securities in respect of which this notice shall apply is as follows:

2. Account details:

[I/We*] hereby irrevocably instruct and authorise the [Clearing Agent/Account Holder] to debit on or before the Settlement Date the account specified below with the aggregate nominal amount or number of the Securities which are the subject of this notice and [I/we*] hereby authorise the Principal Agent to so direct the [Clearing Agent/Account Holder] on [my/our*] behalf.

Account details: [*delete as appropriate]

3. Physical Delivery Amount

The account with [*insert relevant Physical Delivery Clearing System*(s)] to be credited with the Physical Delivery Amount is as follows:

Account details:

4. Cash amounts

The account with the [Clearing Agent/Account Holder] to be credited with any Disruption Settlement Amount, Adjustment Amount and any other cash amounts payable to [me/us*] is as follows:

Account details:] [*delete as appropriate]

5./6. Securityholder Expenses

[I/We*] hereby undertake to pay all Securityholder Expenses and any other cash amounts, if applicable, payable in connection with the exercise and/or settlement of the relevant Securities and [I/we*] hereby irrevocably instruct the [Clearing Agent/Account Holder] to deduct an amount or amounts in respect thereof from any cash amount due to [me/us*] as referred to in **4 above** and/or to debit [my/our*] account with the [Clearing Agent/Account Holder] specified below with an amount or amounts in respect thereof, in each case on or after the Exercise Date or Cut-off Date, as applicable, and [I/we*] hereby authorise the Principal Agent to so direct the [Clearing Agent/Account Holder] on [my/our*] behalf.

Account details: [*delete as appropriate]

6./7. Certification of non-U.S. beneficial ownership

The undersigned hereby [certify/ies*] that, as of the date hereof, neither the person exercising or holding the Securities that are the subject of this notice nor any person on whose behalf the Securities are being exercised or redeemed is a U.S. person or a person within the United States and that no cash amounts, and in the case of a physical delivery of an Underlying, no securities or other property have been or will be transferred in the United

States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person in connection with any exercise or redemption thereof. As used herein "United States" means the United States of America (including the States and the District of Columbia and its possessions), and "U.S. person" means (i) an individual who is a resident of the United States; (ii) a corporation, partnership or other entity organised in or under the laws of the United States or any political subdivision thereof or which has its principal place of business in the United States; (iii) any estate or trust which is subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of the source of its income; (iv) any trust if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust and if one or more United States trustees have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust; (v) a pension plan for the employees, officers or principals of a corporation, partnership or other entity described in (ii) above; (vi) any entity organised principally for passive investment, 10 per cent. or more of the beneficial interests in which are held by persons described in (i) to (v) above if such entity was formed principally for the purpose of investment by such persons in a commodity pool the operator of which is exempt from certain requirements of Part 4 of the United States Commodity Futures Trading Commission's regulations by virtue of its participants being non-U.S. persons; or (vii) any other "U.S. person" as such term may be defined in Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or a person who does not come within the definition of a non-United States person under Rule 4.7 of the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended.

[*delete as appropriate]

[7./8.] Use of Delivery Notice

[I/We*] authorise the production of this notice in any applicable administrative or legal proceedings.

[*delete as appropriate]

Names(s) of Securityholder(s):

Signed/By:

Dated:

Annex 3 A

FORM OF RENOUNCEMENT NOTICE

(to be used if the Governing Law is specified to be English Law, in the Product Terms)

DEUTSCHE BANK AG

[Up to] [] [Form of Security] relating to [Underlying] (the "Securities")

Any capitalised terms not defined herein shall bear the same meaning as that in the Terms and Conditions of the relevant Securities.

When completed this notice should be sent by the Securityholder to the Agent in Italy. The most recent form of this notice may be obtained on request to the Agent in Italy.

To: [Deutsche Bank S.p.A., Direzione Generale - Ufficio Titoli Piazza del Calendario, 3 20126 Milan (Italy)

> Attention: Andrea Moioli Phone no. +39 02 4024 3864 Fax no. +39 02 4024 2790]

cc: [*Issuer Details*] [address] Attention: [] Fax: [] Phone: []

[Subject to as set out below, if this notice is determined to be incomplete or not in proper form (in the determination of the Agent in Italy), or is not copied to the Issuer immediately after being delivered or sent to the Agent in Italy, it shall be void.

If this notice is subsequently corrected to the satisfaction of the Agent in Italy, it shall be deemed to be a new notice submitted at the time such correction is delivered to the Agent in Italy.

PLEASE USE BLOCK CAPITALS

We/I the undersigned Holder(s) of the Securities

hereby communicate that we are renouncing the automatic exercise on the Exercise Date of the rights granted by the Securities in accordance with the Terms and Conditions of the Securities. We understand that as a result we shall have no right to receive any amounts in respect of the Securities we hold.

Series No. of the Securities:

Number of Securities the subject of this notice:

The undersigned understands that if this Renouncement Notice is not completed and delivered as provided in the Terms and Conditions or is determined to be incomplete or not in proper form (in the determination of the Agent in Italy), it will be treated as null and void.

If this Renouncement Notice is subsequently corrected to the satisfaction of the Agent in Italy, it will be deemed to be a new Renouncement Notice submitted at the time such correction was delivered to the Agent in Italy.

Expressions defined in the Terms and Conditions shall bear the same meanings in this Renouncement Notice.

Place and date:

Signature of the Securityholder

Name of beneficial owner of the Securities

Signature

Annex 3 B

FORM OF RENOUNCEMENT NOTICE

(to be used if the Governing Law is specified to be German Law in the Product Terms)

DEUTSCHE BANK AG

[Up to] [] [Form of Security] relating to [Underlying] (the "Securities")

Any capitalised terms not defined herein shall bear the same meaning as that in the Terms and Conditions of the relevant Securities.

When completed this notice should be sent by the Securityholder to the Agent in Italy and copied to his/her financial intermediary, accountholder at Monte Titoli. The most recent form of this notice may be obtained on request to the Agent in Italy.

To: [Deutsche Bank S.p.A., Direzione Generale - Ufficio Titoli Piazza del Calendario, 3 20126 Milan (Italy)

> Attention: Andrea Moioli Phone no. +39 02 4024 3864 Fax no. +39 02 4024 2790]

cc: Financial Intermediary accountholder at Monte Titoli

[•]

(the "Financial Intermediary")

cc: [*Issuer Details*] [address] Attention: [] Fax: [] Phone: []

[Subject to as set out below, if this notice is determined to be incomplete or not in proper form (in the determination of the Agent in Italy), or is not copied to the Issuer and the Financial Intermediary immediately after being delivered or sent to the Agent in Italy, it shall be void.

If this notice is subsequently corrected to the satisfaction of the Agent in Italy, it shall be deemed to be a new notice submitted at the time such correction is delivered to the Agent in Italy.

PLEASE USE BLOCK CAPITALS

We/I the undersigned Holder(s) of the Securities

hereby communicate that we hold the securities through the Financial Intermediary indicated above and we are hereby renouncing the automatic exercise on the Exercise Date of the rights granted by

the Securities in accordance with the Terms and Conditions of the Securities. We understand that as a result we shall have no right to receive any amounts in respect of the Securities we hold.

Series No. of the Securities:

Number of Securities the subject of this notice:

The undersigned understands that if this Renouncement Notice is not completed and delivered as provided in the Terms and Conditions or is determined to be incomplete or not in proper form (in the determination of the Agent in Italy), it will be treated as null and void.

If this Renouncement Notice is subsequently corrected to the satisfaction of the Agent in Italy, it will be deemed to be a new Renouncement Notice submitted at the time such correction was delivered to the Agent in Italy.

Expressions defined in the Terms and Conditions shall bear the same meanings in this Renouncement Notice.

Place and date:

Signature of the Securityholder

Annex 3 C

FORM OF RENOUNCEMENT NOTICE

(to be used if the Governing Law is specified to be Italian Law, in the Product Terms)

DEUTSCHE BANK AG

[Up to] [] [Form of Security] relating to [Underlying] (the "Securities")

Any capitalised terms not defined herein shall bear the same meaning as that in the Terms and Conditions of the relevant Securities.

When completed this notice should be sent by the Securityholder to the Agent in Italy. The most recent form of this notice may be obtained on request to the Agent in Italy.

To: [Deutsche Bank S.p.A., Direzione Generale - Ufficio Titoli Piazza del Calendario, 3 20126 Milan (Italy) Attention: Andrea Moioli

Phone no. +39 02 4024 3864 Fax no. +39 02 4024 2790]

cc: [*Issuer Details*] [address] Attention: [] Fax: [] Phone: []

[Subject to as set out below, if this notice is determined to be incomplete or not in proper form (in the determination of the Agent in Italy), or is not copied to the Issuer immediately after being delivered or sent to the Agent in Italy, it shall be void.

If this notice is subsequently corrected to the satisfaction of the Agent in Italy, it shall be deemed to be a new notice submitted at the time such correction is delivered to the Agent in Italy.

PLEASE USE BLOCK CAPITALS

We/I the undersigned Holder(s) of the Securities

Series No. of the Securities:

hereby communicate that we are renouncing the automatic exercise on the Exercise Date of the rights granted by the Securities in accordance with the Terms and Conditions of the Securities. We understand that as a result we shall have no right to receive any amounts in respect of the Securities we hold.

Number of Securities the subject of this notice:

The undersigned understands that if this Renouncement Notice is not completed and delivered as provided in the Terms and Conditions or is determined to be incomplete or not in proper form (in the determination of the Agent in Italy), it will be treated as null and void.

If this Renouncement Notice is subsequently corrected to the satisfaction of the Agent in Italy, it will be deemed to be a new Renouncement Notice submitted at the time such correction was delivered to the Agent in Italy.

Expressions defined in the Terms and Conditions shall bear the same meanings in this Renouncement Notice.

Place and date:

Signature of the Securityholder

Name of beneficial owner of the Securities

Signature

INDEX OF DEFINITIONS

Definitions	References					
Account Holder	§7(1)(h)					
Additional Exercise Date	§6(2)					
Adjustment Amount	§1(2)(b)					
Adjustment Date	§17(4)(a)					
Adjustment Event	§6(1)					
Adjustment/Termination Event	§6(3)					
Adjustment/Termination Notice	§6(4)(c)					
Administrator	§6(5)(g)					
Affiliate	§5(5)(a)					
Affiliate Members of Interbolsa	§7(1)(c)					
Agent	§8(2)(a)					
Basket Constituent	§1(3)(e)					
Basket Constituent Currency	§1(3)(f)					
Basket Constituent Level	§1(3)(g)					
Basket Constituent Percentage Weight	§1(3)(h)					
Basket Constituent Weight	§1(3)(i)					
Book-Entry Securities	§7(4)(e)(ii)					
Bucheffekten	§7(1)(i)					
Business Day	§1(3)(j)					
Business Day Convention	§4(3)(l)					
Calculation Agent	§9(1)					
Cash Amount	§1(3)(a)					
Certificates	Second paragraph of "General Conditions" section					
Clearing Agent	§1(3)(k)					

Definitions	References				
Commodity	§6(5)(d)				
Control	§5(5)(a)				
Coupon	§4(3)(e)				
Coupon Amount	§4(3)(d)				
Coupon Calculation Period	§4(3)(k)				
Coupon Cessation Date	§4(3)(c)				
Coupon Payment Date	§4(3)(b)				
Coupon Period	§4(3)(g)				
Coupon Period End Date	§4(3)(j)				
Cut-off Date	§2(3)(a)				
CVM	§1(3)(p)				
Day Count Fraction	§4(3)(f)				
De-Listing	§6(5)(a)(ii)1, §6(5)(c)(ii)1				
Delivery Details	§2(2)(e)(iv), §2(2)(e)(x), §2(3)(b)(iii)				
Delivery Notice	§2(2)(f), §2(3)(b)				
Designated Maturity	§5(3)(a)				
Disruption Settlement Amount	§3(9)				
Distribution	§3(7)				
Essential Characteristics	§1(3)(l)				
Established Rate	§17(4)(b)				
Euronext Lisbon	§7(1)(c)				
Euro-zone	§5(3)(b)				
Exchange Business Day	§5(5)(b)				
Exchange Rate	§1(3)(m)				
Exercise Date	§2(2)(a)(i)				
Exercise Notice	§2(2)(e)				

Definitions	References				
Exercise Period	§2(2)(a)(ii)				
Final Reference Level	§1(3)(n)				
First Currency	§6(5)(e)				
Force Majeure Event	§6(3)(g)				
French Securities	§1(3)(o)				
Fund	§6(5)(g)				
Fund Information Document	§6(5)(g)				
Fund Share	§6(5)(g)				
Futures Contract	§6(5)(d)				
General Conditions	First paragraph of "General Conditions" section				
Global Security	§7(1)(a)				
Hedging Arrangements	§5(5)(c)				
Hedging Party	§5(5)(d)				
Holder of Securities	§7(4)				
Iberclear	§1(3)(k)(v)				
Iberclear Member	§7(4)(e)(ii)				
Illegality Event	§6(3)(d)(i)				
Index Sponsor	§5(5)(e)				
Initial Issue Price	§4(3)(m)				
Initial Valuation Date	§1(3)(p)				
Insolvency	§6(5)(a)(ii)2, §6(5)(c)(ii)2				
Integral Exercise Amount	§2(2)(h)(i)				
Interbolsa	§1(3)(q)				
Interest Rate	§5(2)				
Intermediary	§7(1)(i)				
Intermediated Securities	§7(1)(i)				

Definitions	References				
Intervening Period	§3(10)				
Investment Guidelines	§6(5)(g)(ii)7				
Investment Management Agreement	§6(5)(h)(i)				
Issue Date	§4(3)(h)				
Issue Volume	§4(3)(n)				
Issuer	§1(3)(r)				
Italian Listed Securities	§2(2)(c)				
Listing	§18(1)(c)				
Manager	§6(5)(g)				
Market Disruption	§5(4)				
Market Relevant Time	§5(3)(c)				
Market Value	§3(9); §6(4)(c)				
Master Fund	§6(5)(g)				
Maximum Exercise Amount	§2(2)(h)(ii)				
Merger Date	§6(5)(a)				
Merger Event	§6(5)(a)(ii)3				
Minimum Exercise Amount	§2(2)(h)(iii)				
Multi-Exchange Index	§5(5)(f)				
Multiplier	§1(3)(s)				
National Currency Unit	§17(4)(c)				
Nationalisation	§6(5)(a)(ii)4				
Nominal Amount	§4(3)(a)				
Notes	Second paragraph of "General Conditions" section				
Observation Date(s)	§5(1)(b)				
Original Currency	§17(1)(b)				
Payment Day	§3(5)(b)				

Definitions	References				
Physical Delivery Amount	§1(3)(c)				
Physical Delivery Clearing System	§1(3)(b)				
Physical Delivery Unit	§1(3)(d)				
Principal Agent	§8(2)(b)				
Proprietary Index	§18(3)				
Product Terms	First paragraph of "General Conditions" section				
Quota	§2(2)(h)				
Rate of Exchange	§6(5)(e)				
Redemption Date	§2(4)(a)				
Redemption Notice	§2(4)(a)				
Redemption Notice Time Span	§2(4)(b)				
Redemption Period	§2(4)(c)				
Redemption Right	§2(4)				
Reference Banks	§5(3)(d)				
Reference Currency	§5(5)(g)				
Reference Issuer	§6(5)(c)				
Reference Item	§5(5)(h)				
Reference Source	§5(5)(i)				
Register	§8(3)				
Registrar	§8(3)				
Regolamento di Borsa	§7(2)(b)				
Related Exchange	§5(5)(j)				
Relevant Country	§5(5)(k)				
Relevant Currency	§6(5)(e)				
Relevant Date	§11(1)				
Relevant Determinations	§9(2)				

Definitions	References				
Relevant Exchange	§5(5)(l)				
Relevant Market	§5(3)(f)				
Relevant Reference Item	§5(5)(m)				
Relevant Time	§5(5)(n)				
Renouncement Notice	§2(2)(c)				
Renouncement Notice Cut-Off Time	§2(2)(c)				
Representative Amount	§5(3)(e)				
Resolution Measure	§12(2)				
Restricted Change	§1(3)(t)				
Restricted Event	§1(3)(v)				
Restricted Force Majeure Event	§1(3)(u)				
Scheduled Closing Time	§5(5)(o)				
Scheduled Valuation Date	§5(1)(a)				
Second Currency	§6(5)(e)				
Security	§1(1)				
Securityholder Expenses	§2(5)				
Securityholders	§1(1), §7(4)				
Series	§1(1)				
Settlement	§1(3)(w)				
Settlement Currency	§1(3)(x), §5(5)(p), §17(4)(d)				
Settlement Disruption	§3(9)				
Settlement Disruption Event	§3(9)				
Share Company	§6(5)(a)				
Spanish Securities	§1(3)(y)				
Substitute	§13(1)				
Substitute Market	§5(3)(g)				

Definitions	References			
Successor Sponsor	§6(5)(b)(i)1			
Tender Offer	§6(5)(a)(ii)5, §6(5)(g)(i)6			
Termination	§6(5)(c)(ii)3			
Terms and Conditions	First paragraph of "General Conditions" section			
Third Party Calculation Agent	§9(2)			
Trading Day	§1(3)(z)			
Treaty	§17(4)(e)			
Ultimate Trading Day	§5(5)(q)			
Uncertificated SIS Securities	§2(2)(d)			
Underlying	§1(3)(aa)			
Valuation Date	§1(3)(bb)			
Value Date	§4(3)(i)			
Warrants	Second paragraph of "General Conditions" section			

v. **PRODUCT TERMS**

[The following "**Product Terms**" of the Securities shall, for the relevant series of Securities, complete and put in concrete terms the General Conditions for the purposes of such series of Securities. A version of these Product Terms as amended and completed for the specific issuance will be contained in the applicable Final Terms.]

[The following information describes the content of the relevant "**Product Terms**" of the Securities, which completes and puts in concrete terms the General Conditions for the relevant series of Securities for the purposes of such series of Securities. A version of the description of these Product Terms as amended and completed for the specific issuance will be contained in the applicable Final Terms.]

[*insert if applicable*: Product Terms and General Conditions together constitute the "**Terms and Conditions**" of the relevant Securities.]

[The following Product Terms start with a general part applicable to all products, followed by general definitions for all Certificates, Warrants and Notes, each then followed by product-specific definitions which should be inserted in place of the more general prompts, if applicable, and end with an additional general part applicable to all products. The following Product Terms, hence, comprise, as applicable, the sections

- "General Definitions applicable to the Securities",
- "General Definitions applicable to Certificates" supported, where applicable, by the product-specific definitions,
- "General Definitions applicable to Warrants" supported, where applicable, by the product-specific definitions,
- "General Definitions applicable to Notes" supported, where applicable, by the productspecific definitions, and,
- "Further Definitions applicable to the Securities"."

In the event of any inconsistency between these Product Terms and the General Conditions, these Product Terms shall prevail for the purposes of the Securities.

In case of a further issuance or re-issuance of Securities issued under the Base Prospectus dated 24 August 2016 the following applies:

- Chapter "V. Product Terms General Definitions applicable to the Securities " on pages 235 262
- Chapter "V. Product Terms General Definitions applicable to Certificates" on pages 263 -266
- Chapter "V. Product Terms Specific Definitions applicable to Certificates" on pages page 267 – 271
- Chapter"V. Product Terms General Definitons applicable to Warrants" on pages 272 275
- Chapter "V. Product Terms Specific Definitions applicable to Warrants" on pages 276 287
- Chapter "V. Product Terms General Definitions applicable to Notes" on pages 288 289

- Chapter "V. Product Terms Specific Definitions applicable to Notes" on pages 290 291
- Chapter "V. Product Terms Further Definitions applicable to the Securities" on pages 292 300

This information is incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus.

In case of a further issuance or re-issuance of Securities issued under the Base Prospectus dated 25 November 2015 the following applies:

- Chapter "V. Product Terms General Definitions applicable to the Securities " on pages 237 – 263
- Chapter "V. Product Terms General Definitions applicable to Certificates" on pages 264 – 267
- Chapter "V. Product Terms Specific Definitions applicable to Certificates" on pages 265 268 – 272
- Chapter"V. Product Terms General Definitons applicable to Warrants" on pages 273 276
- Chapter "V. Product Terms Specific Definitions applicable to Warrants" on pages 277 288
- Chapter "V. Product Terms General Definitons applicable to Notes" on pages 289 290
- Chapter "V. Product Terms Specific Definitions applicable to Notes" on pages 291 292
- Chapter "V. Product Terms Further Definitions applicable to the Securities" on pages 293 301

This information is incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus.

In case of a further issuance or re-issuance of Securities issued under the Base Prospectus dated 27 February 2015 the following applies:

- Chapter "V. Product Terms General Definitions applicable to the Securities " on pages 235 – 258
- Chapter "V. Product Terms General Definitions applicable to Certificates" on pages 259 264
- Chapter "V. Product Terms Specific Definitions applicable to Certificates" on pages 265 267 and 270 - 271
- Chapter"V. Product Terms General Definitions applicable to Warrants" on pages 272 275
- Chapter "V. Product Terms Specific Definitions applicable to Warrants" on pages 276 288
- Chapter "V. Product Terms General Definitions applicable to Notes" on pages 289 290
- Chapter "V. Product Terms Specific Definitions applicable to Notes" on pages 291 293
- Chapter "V. Product Terms Further Definitions applicable to the Securities"on pages 294 301

This information is incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus.

In all other cases, the following applies:

General Definitions applicable to the Securities

General Information

Security Type	[Certificate][Warrant][Note]			
	[insert marketing name of product if applicable]			
	[Type: [Put][Call] [<i>Insert product type</i>]]			
ISIN	[]			
[WKN	[]]			
[Valoren	[]]			
Issuer	[Deutsche Bank AG, Frankfurt am Main]			
	[Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch]			
	[Deutsche Bank AG, Milan Branch]			
	[Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal em Portugal]			
	[Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal en España]			
Number of the Securities	[up to] [<i>insert number</i>] [<i>insert amount</i>] [<i>insert type</i>] [Securities] [Certificates] [Warrants] [Notes] [<i>insert marketing name of product if</i> <i>applicable</i>] [at [<i>insert amount</i>] each] with an aggregate nominal amount of [up to] [<i>insert amount</i>]]			
[Initial Issue Price]	[[<mark>insertamount</mark>] [insertpercentage] per [Certificate][Warrant][Note][<mark>insert_marketing_name_of_product_if</mark> <mark>applicable</mark>] [Security] [until the Issue Date] [(excluding)]]			
	[(plus subscription surcharge of [<i>insert amount</i>][<i>insert percentage</i>] [of the] [Initial Issue Price][Nominal Amount])].]			
[Issue Price]	[[On the Issue Date] [initially] [<i>insert amount</i>] [per [Certificate][Warrant][Note][Security]] [The Issue Price [per [<i>insert</i> type] [Security] [Certificate] [Warrant] [Note] [<i>insert marketing name</i> <i>of product if applicable</i>]] [(plus subscription surcharge of [<i>insert</i> <i>amount</i>][<i>insert percentage</i>] of the [Issue Price] [initial Issue Price] [Nominal Amount]])] will first be determined on the Issue Date and then be reset continuously.]			
	[Initially] [<i>insert amount</i>] [per [<i>insert type</i>] [Security][Certificate][Warrant][Note] [<i>insert marketing name of</i> <i>product if applicable</i>]] [(plus subscription surcharge of [<i>insert</i> <i>amount</i>][<i>insert percentage</i>] of the [Issue Price] [initial Issue Price] [Nominal Amount]])]. [Following issuance of the Securities, the [Issue Price] [price of the Securities] will be reset continuously.]			

Underlying

Underlying [*If the* Securities relate to an Underlying A and an Underlying B insert: A and repeat for Underlying B] [Insert where single Underlying:

Type: [Share] [Index] [Other Security] [Commodity] [Rate of Exchange] [Futures Contract] [Fund Share] [Interest Rate] [*if the Underlying according to* §5(4) (c) of the General Conditions is to be deemed an Emerging Market Underlying, insert:, Emerging Market Underlying (§5(4) (c) General Conditions)]

Name: []

[The price for [] on the Reference Source] [(price index)] [(performance index)] [(monthly futures contract []] [RIC: []]

, which is replaced on the Replacement Date by the relevant Successor Future if a Replacement Event occurs.

If a replacement is made, all references to the future as Underlying in the Product Terms shall be deemed to apply for the Successor Future. [Also with effect on the Replacement Date, the Calculation Agent shall make adjustments, if any, to one or more of the conditions as the Calculation Agent deems appropriate to account of the Replacement Event. The adjustments will be made to preserve the economic position of the Securityholder before the replacement, and will reflect the difference, if any, between the the official closing price of the future and the official closing price of the Successor Future before the replacement became effective.]

If the Calculation Agent determines in its reasonable discretion that a Successor Future is not available, the Issuer will cancel the Securities as provided in §6 (4) (d) of the General Conditions.]

Sponsor or issuer: []

[Reference Source: [] [page [] of the information provider Thomson Reuters] [page [] of the information provider Bloomberg]]

[Barrier Reference Source: [] [page [] of the information provider Thomson Reuters] [page [] of the information provider Bloomberg]]

[Multi-Exchange Index: [applicable][not applicable]]

[Related Exchange: []]

[Relevant Exchange: []]

[Fund Business Day: [applicable][not applicable]]

[Reference Currency: []]

[Currency Exchange: Currency Exchange [applies][is not applicable].]

[Base Currency: []]

[Foreign Currency: []]

[ISIN: []]

[If there is no Underlying insert: None]

[Insert where Basket.

A Basket of assets comprised as follows: [insert details of respective type or types of the Underlying – Shares, Indices, Other Securities, Commodities, Rates of Exchange, Futures Contracts, Fund Units or Shares and/or Interest Rates:]

Type of Basket Con- stituent	[if the Underlying according to §5(4) (c) of the General Conditions is to be deemed an Emerging Market Underlying, insert: Emerging Market Underlying (§5(4) (c) General Conditions)]	Name of Basket Con- stituent	Sponsor or issuer of Basket Con- stituent	Reference Source	Security Code / ISIN of Basket Con- stituent
[Share] [Index] [Multi- Exchange Index] [Other Security] [Commodity] [Rate of Exchange] [Futures Contract] [Fund Share]	[Specify for each Basket Constituent, if applicable:] [Yes][No]	[Insert name]	[Insert details]	[Insert Reference Source]	[Insert WKN/ISIN <u>,</u> if applicable]

[Interest Rate]				
Name of Basket Con- stituent	[Basket Con- stituent Per- centage Weight]	[Basket Con- stituent Weight]	[Basket Constituent Currency]	[Basket Con- stituent Relevant Exchange Time and Basket Con- stituent Relevant Exchange Date]
[]	[]	[]	[]	[]
Name of Basket Constituen t	Relevant Basket Con- stituent Value		[Related Exchange]	[Basket Currency Exchange]
[]	[]		[]	[Applicable]
				[Not applicable]

[Include the following as required for specific terms below:]

Name of Baske t Con- stitue nt	Multi plier	Barrier Deter- mination Amount determina tion	Initial Refe- rence Level[Barrier Per- centage Level	Basket Con- stituent Barrier	Basket Con- stituent Deter- mina- tion Per- centag e Level
[]	[]	[]	[]	[]	[]	[]

[Include the following where the underlying relates to separate portfolios.]

Name of Basket Con- stituent	Basket Con- stituent Percentag e Weight for the Portfolio A ("Portfolio A")	Basket Con- stituent Percentage Weight for the Portfolio B ("Portfolio B")	Basket Con- stituent Percentage Weight for the Portfolio C ("Portfolio C")	Basket Con- stituent Percentag e Weight for the Portfolio [] ("Portfolio []")
[]	[]	[]	[]	[]

]

[Underlying Replacement Underlying Replacement applies] [If not applicable, delete line item]

[Replacement Asset

[*If the Underlying is a future that is regularly rolled, insert:* Successor Future

[*If the Underlying is a future that is regularly rolled, insert*: Replacement Date

[*If the Underlying is a future that is regularly rolled, insert:* Replacement Event

[<mark>If the Underlying is a future that is regularly rolled, insert:</mark> Price Differential

[*If Rolling Costs are taken into account, insert: Rolling Costs*

[If the Underlying is a future, which is continuously replaced, and the Rollover Factor is determined on the basis of the Initial Reference Level or the level of the Successor Future insert: Rollover Factor

[]]

The futures contract listed on the Reference Source, which is the same underlying concept as the future as Underlying and the shortest remaining term at the time the Replacement Event occurs, provided that the term is not less than [].]

[a][the] Trading Day [determined by the Calculation Agent following a Replacement Event] [following the day on which the Replacement Event occurs].]

[means [the future as Underlying has a remaining term of [*insert number*] Trading Days] [options contracts on the future as Underlying cease (or will cease) to be listed, traded or publicly quoted on the Reference Source for any reason and are not immediately re-listed, re-traded or re-quoted on an exchange, trading system or quotation system acceptable to the Calculation Agent].]

means, in respect of a day, the difference between the last Reference Level of the Underlying [to be replaced] and the official closing price of the determined Successor Future published by the Reference Source prior to the immediately preceding Replacement Date.]

In respect of a Replacement Event, the product of the last price of the Successor Future [published on the relevant Reference Source] prior to [the replacement taking effect] [the Replacement Date] and [] per cent.]

[(a) for the period commencing on (and including) the Issue Date and ending on the first Rollover Replacement Time, 1 and

(b) in respect of each subsequent period which commences with a Rollover Replacement Time and ends on the subsequent Rollover Replacement Time, the product of (i) and (ii), where:

 $(\ensuremath{\mathbf{i}})$ is the Rollover Factor applicable to the immediately preceding period and

(ii) is the quotient of:

(aa) the Reference Level of the Underlying immediately preceding the Rollover Replacement Time at the commencement of this period minus the Rollover Fees (as numerator) and

(bb) the sum of the Reference Level of the Successor Future immediately following the Rollover Replacement Time at the commencement of this period and the Rollover Fees (as denominator)

subject to any adjustment in accordance with §6 of the General Conditions.] []]

- [Rollover Replacement Time [in each case [] [[] [a.m.] [p.m.] on the *Replacement Date*], unless the Calculation Agent considers a Market Disruption to have occurred at this time. If a Market Disruption has occurred at such time, the Rollover Replacement Time is the time, as soon as the **Market Disruption** ceases and the price for the Underlying can be determined. If, due to the Market Disruption, the Reference Level for the Underlying or Successor Future, as the case may be, cannot be determined [by] [], the Calculation Agent determines the Reference Level for this Rollover Replacement Time in its reasonable discretion taking prevailing market conditions at such time, the most recently reported, published or listed level or price of the Underlying or Successor Future, as the case may be, and other factors it considers relevant into account.] []]
- [Rollover Fees the product of the Reference Level of the Successor Future at the Rollover Replacement Time and [] per cent.]

Product Details

Settlement [Cash Settlement]

[Physical Delivery]

[Insert where physical delivery or cash settlement can apply:

1. [If the Issuer has selected [in its [full] discretion] Physical Delivery, and has given notice of this to the Securityholders in accordance with §16 not less than [*insert notice period*] prior to the Settlement Date,] [provided that such selection shall only be possible if:

[[on [*insert date*] [during [*insert time period*] [the Observation Period]], the Barrier Determination Amount has not been [equal to or] above the [Strike][[Upper] Barrier],]

[[on] [*insert date*][at any time during [*insert time period*] [the Observation Period]], the Barrier Determination Amount has been below [or equal to] the [Strike][[Upper] Barrier],]

[the Final Reference Level is [above] [below] than the [Strike][[Upper] Barrier],]]

[If the Securityholder, in [an Exercise][a Delivery] Notice according to §2, has requested Physical Delivery,]

[If the Final Reference Level is below [or equal to] the [[Upper] Barrier][Determination Level][Strike][Cap],]

[lf:

[(A) the Final Reference Level [of any Basket Constituent] is below the [[Upper][Lower] Barrier][Determination Level][Strike] [for such Basket Constituent], [and]

(B) [[at any time][during [] [the Observation Period]] [], the Barrier Determination Amount [of any Basket Constituent] has not been above or equal to the [Strike][[Upper] Barrier] [for such Basket Constituent],] [[at any time] [during [] [the Observation Period]] [], the Barrier Determination Amount [of any Basket Constituent] has been below or equal to the [Strike][[Upper] Barrier] [for such Basket Constituent],] [the Final Reference Level is above [or equal to] the [Strike][[Upper] Barrier],]] [and

(C) the Final Reference Level of any of the Basket Constituents is not equal to or above the [[Upper][Lower] Barrier][Determination Level][Strike] for such Basket Constituent]

[If [[at no point] [] during [] [the Observation Period]] [on the [Valuation Date] []] [] the Barrier Determination Amount [has [not] been] [is [not]] below [or equal to] the [Strike] [[Upper][Lower] Barrier][Determination Level]]

Physical Delivery,

2. otherwise, Cash Settlement]]

Settlement Currency [EUR] [USD] [insert currency]

[<mark>Specify if a different Settlement Currency applies for Coupon Amounts</mark>]

[Reference Currency

[<mark>Insert unless included</mark> within "Underlying" above]

[Nominal Amount [insert amount] [per Security]]

[insert currency]

[Maximum Amount [Insert amount][[per Security][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level [multiplied by the Multiplier]]

> [is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion increase this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer

expects to increase this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer increases this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[Minimum Amount [Insert amount][[per Security][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level [multiplied by the Multiplier]]

> [is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion increase this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to increase this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer increases this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[Minimum Redemption Applicable] Payable

[Minimum Redemption [Insert amount][per Security][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level [multiplied by the Multiplier]] [The [Nominal Amount] []][plus any interest amount payable []][][subject to previous redemption of the Securities][including, without any reduction, in case of a previous redemption of the Securities][]]

[Non-Consideration of	Applicable]
Cost	

[Adjustment / Applicable] Termination Restriction

[Additional Adjustment / Applicable] Termination Restriction

[Eligible Liabilities Applicable] Format

[Multiplier

[Insert Multiplier]

[The quotient of the [Nominal Amount] [100] [*insert number*] (as numerator) and the [Initial Reference Level] [Strike] [multiplied by []] (as denominator)]

[The product of (i) the quotient of the [Nominal Amount] [100] [] (as numerator) and the Strike (as denominator) and (ii) the Exchange Rate on the [Valuation Date] [on the first Business Day following the Valuation Date]]

[If the securities are European style insert: The quotient of:

- (a) [][*if there is a management (or similar) fee insert*: [] x [100 per cent. [][Redemption Years] x [*insert level of management (or similar) fee*] per cent. (as numerator); and
- (b) the Initial Reference Level (as denominator)]

[<mark>If the securities are American or Bermudan style or the periodic</mark> accrual is to be reflected insert<mark>:</mark>

[On the Issue Date [] and]

- (a) [In] [in] relation to the first Multiplier Adjustment Date, [[][100 per cent. [*insert level of management (or similar) fee*] per cent.]] [*if the multiplier is based on the Initial Reference Level insert*: the quotient of:
 - (i) [][[[] x] 100 per cent. [insert level of management (or similar) fee] per cent.] (as numerator); and
 - (ii) the Initial Reference Level (as denominator)]

[the product of:

- (i) the Multiplier on the Issue Date and
- (ii) [] [100 per cent [insert level of management (or similar) fee] per cent]]
- (b) in relation to each subsequent Multiplier Adjustment Date, the product of:
 - (i) the Multiplier on the immediately preceding Multiplier Adjustment Date; and
 - (ii) [] [100 per cent. [insert level of management (or similar) fee] per cent.]]

[in relation to a Basket Constituent [the [*insert amount*] [*insert value*] [*insert percentage*] determined for such Basket Constituent in the column "Multiplier" in Underlying above] [a number equal to the quotient of:

(a) [*insert value*] (as numerator) and

(b) the Initial Reference Level for this Basket Constituent (as denominator).]]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend

expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increase] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[Multiplier Adjustment [][Each Exercise Date]] Date

[Redemption Determination Amount The [official] [closing value] [closing price] [closing level] [net asset value] [price] [Relevant Reference Level Value] [price published under "Settlement Prices"] [auction price] of [the Underlying][a Basket Constituent] [on the Reference Source] [[the][*insert name of auction price*] at [*insert time*]] [by [London [Silver] fixing] [] at [*insert time*]] [, as calculated on the basis of the EUR/[*insert second currency*] and EUR/[*insert first currency*] exchange rates determined by the Calculation Agent[, irrespective of any corrections published later [by] [at] the Reference Source in this regard].]]

[Redemption Threshold [Insert if Redemption Thresholds the same: [insert value] [[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]]

[Insert if Redemption Thresholds different:

- (a) In respect of the First Observation Date, [*insert value*] [[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]
- (b) In respect of the [] Observation Date, [*insert value*] [[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]
- (c) In respect of the Last Observation Date, [insert value] [[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]]

[is [insert the most unfavourable value for the investor]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [insert the most favourable value for the investor If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[Barrier Determination Amount]

[Barrier Determination Amount

[An amount (which shall be deemed to be a monetary value in the [Reference Currency][Settlement Currency]) equal to the] [[The] [official closing] [value] [price] [level] [of the Underlying] [Relevant Reference Level Value] [guoted by] [or] [published on] [the Reference Source] [the Barrier Reference Source] [at any time] [between [9] [] a.m. and [5] [] p.m. local time in Frankfurt am Main (including the values from the XETRA[®] closing auction)] [insert time] [on an Observation Date] [during the Observation Period] [on the Reference Page [] [or []] [of the information provider Thomson Reuters] [of the information provider Bloomberg] [] [under [the [<Latest>] []] column][]] [[and] in the row [] [under the column []] [(where the [higher][lower] of both values is relevant)]] [(as calculated and published on a continuous basis[exclusive of the level calculated on the basis of a midday auction or any other intraday auctions])] [, irrespective of any corrections published later [by] [at] the Reference Source in this regard]].

In the event of an Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index insert: The level of the Underlying (as calculated and published on a continuous basis exclusive of the level calculated on the basis of a midday auction or any other intraday auctions) quoted by the Reference Source between [9] [] a.m. and around [5.30] [] p.m. (when Securities are issued) local time in Frankfurt am Main (including the values from the XETRA® closing auction) on an Observation Date, and the level of the X-DAX® Index (ISIN: DE000A0C4CA0) [(as calculated and published on a continuous basis)] quoted between the first determination of the X-DAX® Index (when Securities are issued [8] [] a.m.) and the time of publication of the opening level of the Underlying, and between around [5.30] [] p.m. (when Securities are issued) local time in Frankfurt am Main and the final determination of the X-DAX® Index (when Securities are issued [10.15] [] p.m., local time in Frankfurt am Main) on an Observation Date [, irrespective of any corrections published later [by] [at] the Reference Source in this regard]. [During the XETRA® closing auction starting at [17:30] [] (when Securities are issued) the Underlying and the X-DAX® Index will be guoted in parallel until the end of the XETRA® closing auction. Within this period, the relevant Barrier Determination Amount will be the [higher][lower] of these values.]]

[*if the Underlying is not specified to be a Basket and the Barrier Observation is not European style insert*. [At any time on any day during the Observation Period, an amount equal to the value quoted by or published on the Reference Source at such time on such day [, irrespective of any corrections published later [by] [at] the Reference Source in this regard].] [On any day during the Observation Period, an amount equal to the Relevant Reference Level Value quoted by or published on the Reference Source at such time on such day [, irrespective of any corrections published later [by] [at] the Reference Source in this regard].]

[Insert for One Touch or No Touch Warrants: The [value] [price] [level] of the Underlying as quoted or published by the Reference Source at any time on a Trading Day during the Observation Period [, as published in the [<Latest>] [] column] [[and] [with respect to the Lower

Barrier] in the row [] [in the column []] [(where the [higher][lower] of both values is relevant)]] [[and] [with respect to the Upper Barrier] in the row [] [in the column []] [(where the [higher][lower] of both values is relevant)]] [, as published under [<Bid>] [<Ask>] []] [, as published under [<Bid>] [<Ask>] [] with respect to the Lower Barrier and under [<Bid>] [<Ask>] [] with respect to the Upper Barrier] [(as calculated and published on a continuous basis)] [, irrespective of any corrections published later [by] [at] the Reference Source in this regard].]

[if the Underlying is specified to be a Basket insert:

In relation to a Basket Constituent and [any time on] any Observation Date, an amount (which shall be deemed to be a monetary value in the [Reference Currency][Settlement Currency]) [equal to [the sum of the products for each Basket Constituent of:

- (a)] [the Basket Constituent Level of the relevant Basket Constituent][*insert mode for determination*] on such Observation Date[; and]
- (b) [*if Basket Currency Exchange is not specified to apply insert*: the Basket Constituent Weight of such Basket Constituent on such Observation Date.

As a formula:

Barrier Determination Amount_t =
$$\sum_{i}^{n} P_{i, t} \times BCW_{i, t}$$
]

- (b) [*if Basket Currency Exchange is specified to apply, insert*: the quotient of
 - the Basket Constituent Weight of such Basket Constituent on such Observation Date (as numerator); and
 - the Exchange Rate for converting the Basket Constituent Currency of such Basket Constituent into [the Reference Currency] on such Observation Date (as denominator)

As a formula:

Barrier Determination Amount_t =
$$\sum_{i}^{n} P_{i,i} \times \frac{BCW_{i,i}}{ER_{i,i}}$$
]

where:

n	=	number of Basket Constituents in the Basket
P i, t	=	the Basket Constituent Level i on day t
BCW i, t	=	Basket Constituent Weight i on day t
if Basket Currency Exchange is specified to apply insert:		

[equal to [[the Reference Level][] of the *Basket*][the Basket Constituent Level of such Basket Constituent] [at such time] on such Observation Date]]

[*if the Underlying is specified to be a Basket insert*: In respect of each Basket Constituent, [the Relevant Reference Level Value of such Basket Constituent on [the] [any] [Observation Date] [Coupon Observation Date] [Coupon Determination Date] [*insert date*] quoted by the Reference Source][an amount equal to the price or level of such Basket Constituent determined in the manner specified in the column "**Barrier Determination Amount determination**" in relation to such Basket Constituent in the definition of Underlying above on [the] [any] [Observation Date] [Coupon Observation Date] [Coupon Determination Date] [Coupon Dat

[If a Market Disruption has occurred and is continuing at such time [on such Observation Date], no Barrier Determination Amount shall be calculated for such time.]

[Lower Barrier Determination Amount Determination Amount Determination Amount (At any time on][On] any relevant Trading Day an amount (which shall be deemed to be a monetary value in the [Reference Currency][Settlement Currency]) equal to the Relevant Reference Level Value on such day quoted by or published on the Reference Source as specified in the information on the Underlying [*insert method of determination*]. [If a Market Disruption has occurred and is continuing at such time on such day, no Lower Barrier Determination Amount shall be calculated for such [time][day]].]

[]]

[Determination Level [Insert value][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[Observation Date [Each [Trading Day][day] during the Observation Period [and the Valuation Date].]

[[<mark>insert date</mark>], [insert date] and [insert date]]

[[*insert date*] (the "First Observation Date"), [*insert date*] (the "[] Observation Date") [repeat if necessary] and [*insert date*] (the "Last Observation Date")]

[If the Barrier is different in respect of each Observation Date define dates as "First Observation Date", "[] Observation Date" and "Last Observation Date"]

[If a Market Disruption has occurred in respect of [one or more Basket Constituents][the Underlying] on any such day, no Barrier Determination Amount shall be calculated for such day.]]

[Observation Period [insert period]

[[In relation to a Basket Constituent, the][The] period from [and including][but excluding] [the Issue Date][the Initial Valuation Date][*insert date*] [*insert time*] to [but excluding][and including] [the Valuation Date][*insert date*] [*insert time*] at [the relevant time for determination of the [official] [closing level] [closing price] of the *Underlying* on the *Reference Source* on the *Exercise Date*] [the relevant time for determination of the relevant time for determination of the Final Reference Level on the Valuation Date] [the relevant time for determination of the Termination of the Barrier Determination Amount on the Termination Date] [at [*insert time*] on the Valuation Date] [the latest relevant time for the determination of the Final Reference Level for that Basket Constituent on the relevant Valuation Date]].]

- [Lower Observation The period from [and including] [] to [and including] [] [the relevant time for the determination of the Final Reference Level on the [last occurring] Valuation Date]]
- [Quanto Factor []]
- [Redemption Years [][The quotient of:
 - (a) the number of calendar days from and including [the Value Date] up to and including the [Termination Date] (as numerator); and
 - (b) 365 (as denominator).]]
- [Participation Factor [[] per cent.] [Insert value]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increase] this value, this will be announced immediately on

the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[Physical Delivery Amount [Physical Delivery Units x Multiplier]

[An amount of the following assets: [the relevant Underlying or another asset permitted as Underlying]

Asset	Number of units of such asset	
[]	[]]

[A number of units of [such asset] [name of such asset: []] [the] [Underlying]] [[] [(]ISIN: [][)]], equal to the quotient of (a) [the product of the [relevant] Final Reference Level and the Multiplier] [the Nominal Amount] [] (as numerator) and (b) the [relevant] [Net Asset Value (NAV) of such asset][][Strike] [Barrier] [Determination Level] (as denominator)[, multiplied by []].]

[state number] units of the [Underlying] [[] (ISIN: []]

[Aggregation does not apply]

[Adjustment Amount: [an amount in the Settlement Currency, which is the product of the remaining fraction [of the Physical Delivery Amount] [, state relevant Multiplication Factor] and the [relevant][Net Asset Value (NAV)] [] [Final Reference Level]]

[an amount equal to the product of the remaining fraction [, state relevant Multiplication Factor] and the applicable Final Reference Level converted to the Settlement Currency at the Exchange Rate on the first Business Day following the Valuation Date.]

[an amount equal to the product of the remaining fraction [, state relevant Multiplication Factor] and the applicable Final Reference Level converted to the Settlement Currency at the Exchange Rate on the Valuation Date.]]

[Physical Delivery Clearing System: []]

[Delivery Notice does not apply]

[Insert if the Security is a Note and Physical Delivery is applicable:

Cut-off Date: []]

[Physical Delivery Units [[] unit[s] of the [basket constituting the] Underlying][where the intention is to deliver a basket, insert details of the relevant Basket Constituents]

[[] unit[s] of [] [certificate[s]] [] relating to [] [the Underlying]]

[A number of [certificates relat	ng to] [] [Basket Constituent[s]] equal
to []]	-

[consideration should be given to appropriate disclosure in respect of the terms of any certificates to be delivered]

[A number of units of each Basket Constituent equal to the Basket Constituent Weight for the relevant Basket Constituent[, in each case rounded down to the nearest whole number of units]]

[]

[Delete line item where Cash Settlement only or where Physical Delivery Amount stated above and definition not required. Where Physical Delivery Units are included, insert Multiplier below where relevant]

[Initial Reference Level [*If the Initial Reference Level is determined by reference to a Portfolio insert*: For each Portfolio]

[If defined before issuance, insert level]

[The Reference Level on the Initial Valuation Date] [The arithmetic average of the Reference Levels on all Initial Valuation Dates] []]

[*if the Underlying is specified to be a Basket insert*: In relation to a Basket Constituent the [Initial Reference Level specified for this Basket Constituent in the above definition of Underlying][Reference Level of this Basket Constituent on the Initial Valuation Date]]]

[Ultimate Trading Day [For the purpose of determining the [Initial Reference Level] []: The [] Trading Day]

[Otherwise: The [] Trading Day]

[]] [If not applicable, delete line item]

[Final Reference Level]

[Final Reference Level	[If the Final Reference Level is determined by reference to a Portfolio <mark>insert</mark> : For each Portfolio]
	[The Reference Level on the Valuation Date] [The arithmetic average of the Reference Levels on all Valuation Dates]
	[<i>if the Underlying is specified to be a Basket insert</i> . In relation to a Basket Constituent the Reference Level of this Basket Constituent on the Valuation Date]]
[Reference Level	[In respect of [any Series] [and] [any [relevant] day] an][An] amount (which shall be deemed to be a monetary value in the [Reference Currency][Settlement Currency]) equal to:

[if the Underlying is not specified to be a Basket insert:

[where the Initial Reference Level and the Final Reference Level are not determined in the same manner insert:

(a) in respect of [a][an][the] [Initial Valuation Date][Valuation Date]:]

[if the Settlement Currency is not the same as the Reference Currency and if the Security is not a quanto product insert if applicable: the quotient of (i)]

[where the Initial Reference Level and the Final Reference Level are not determined in the same manner, insert: an amount determined in the same manner as the sponsor would calculate the Relevant Reference Level Value on such day except that, in making such calculation the Calculation Agent shall substitute [] for []]

[otherwise insert: the Relevant Reference Level Value on such day quoted by or published on the Reference Source as specified in the information on the Underlying]

[insert method of determination]

[where the Settlement Currency is not the same as the Reference Currency insert if applicable: (as numerator) and (ii) the Exchange Rate on such day (as denominator)]]

If the Underlying is not specified to be a Basket and is a Rate of Exchange insert: [the [[Bid] [Ask]] exchange rate] [the Relevant Value of the Underlying as the exchange rate] [[at [insert time]] [[insert place] local time] [at the relevant Exchange Time] [(or at such time approximate thereto as the Calculation Agent determines to be practicable)] on such day between [insert first currency] and [insert second currency] (expressed as the number of units of [insert second currency] or a fraction thereof required to buy one unit of [insert first *currency*]) as [determined by] [quoted by] [published on] the Reference Source [on the relevant subpage] [, based on the [EUR][]/[insert second currency] and [EUR][]/[insert first *currency* [Bid] [Ask] exchange rates [determined] [published] [on the relevant subpages] by the Reference Source on such day [at [insert time]] [[insert place] local time] [at the relevant Exchange Time] [(or at such time approximate thereto as the Calculation Agent determines to be practicable)].]]

[where the Initial Reference Level and the Final Reference Level are not determined in the same manner insert:

(b) in respect of any other day: [insert method as above]]

[if the Underlying is specified to be a Basket insert:

the sum of the products for each Basket Constituent [of each portfolio] of:

- (a) the Basket Constituent Level of the relevant Basket Constituent [of the relevant Portfolio] on the relevant day; and
- (b) [*if Basket Currency Exchange is not specified to apply insert:* the Basket Constituent Weight of such Basket Constituent [of the relevant Portfolio] on such day.

As a formula:

Reference Level_t =
$$\sum_{i}^{n} P_{i, t} \times BCW_{i, t}$$
]

- (b) [*if Basket Currency Exchange is specified to apply, insert*: the quotient of
 - the Basket Constituent Weight of such Basket Constituent [of the relevant Portfolio] on such day (as numerator); and
 - the Exchange Rate for converting the Basket Constituent Currency of such Basket Constituent [of the relevant Portfolio] into the [Settlement Currency][Reference Currency] on such day (as denominator).

As a formula:

Reference Level_t =
$$\sum_{i}^{n} P_{i,t} \times \frac{BCW_{i,t}}{ER_{i,t}}$$
]

where:

n

= number of Basket Constituents in the [Basket][Portfolio]

P _{i, t} =	the Basket Constituent Level i on day t
---------------------	---

BCW _{i, t} = Basket Constituent Weight i on day t

[if Basket Currency Exchange is specified to apply insert:

ER _{i, t} = Exchange Rate i on day t.]]

[OR if the Underlying is specified to be a Basket and the Reference Level is calculated as a reference separately for each Basket Constituent insert: in respect of each Basket Constituent, the price or level of that Basket Constituent on that day as determined in the manner described in the column "Relevant Basket Constituent Value" in relation to such Basket Constituent under "Underlying" above.]

[*Insert where applicable*: Such amount shall be converted [1:1] into the Settlement Currency [at the Exchange Rate] on [*specify date*] [the Business Day following the Valuation Date] [the Valuation Date] [or if this day is not a Business Day, the immediately [succeeding] [preceding] Business Day].]]

[Relevant Reference	The [official] [closing value] [closing price] [closing level] [net asset
Level Value	value] [price] [price published under "Settlement Prices"] [auction
	price] of [the Underlying][a Basket Constituent] [on the Reference
	Source] [[the][insert name of auction price] at [insert time]] [by [London
	[Silver] fixing] [] at [insert time]] [, as calculated on the basis of the
	EUR/[insert second currency] and EUR/[insert first currency]
	exchange rates determined by the Calculation Agent[, irrespective of
	any corrections published later [by] [at] the Reference Source in this
	regard].]]

[Basket Constituent [In respect of a Basket Constituent [and any day], an amount (which shall be deemed to be a monetary value in the [Reference Currency][Settlement Currency]) equal to:

[insert if definition not the same as in General Condition 1(3)(g)] [where the Initial Reference Level and the Final Reference Level are not determined in the same manner insert:

- (a) in respect of [a[n]/the] [Initial Valuation Date][Valuation Date][
], an amount calculated [in the same manner as the sponsor or issuer of the Basket Constituent, as specified under the definition of Underlying above, would calculate the [
][Relevant Reference Level Value] of such Basket Constituent on such day, except that in making such calculation the Calculation Agent shall substitute [] for []] [to be equal to the [[] [Relevant Reference Level Value] of such Basket Constituent the Constituent Reference Level Value] of such Basket Constituent [] on such day []]; and
- (b) [any other day] [],] the price or level of such Basket Constituent [on such day] determined in the manner specified in the column "Relevant Basket Constituent Value" in the definition of Underlying above.]]

[Redemption]

[Redemption Right Redemption Right of the Issuer applies]

[If the Issuer's right to redeem securities can only be exercised on specific dates, specify, for example: Notwithstanding §2(4), the Redemption Date specified in any Redemption Notice must be a Coupon Payment Date falling on or after [].]

[If not applicable, delete line item]

[If Redemption Right has been specified as applicable and the Cash Amount payable on such redemption is

[Notwithstanding the above, if the Securities are redeemed [on a [Redemption Date]][pursuant to the exercise by the Issuer of the Redemption Right], the Cash Amount shall be [the amount set out below in respect of [the immediately preceding][such] Redemption Date:

different than that above insert.	Rede	emption Date	Cash Amount
	[]		[]
	[]		[]
	[]		[]
][]]		
	the Se Busine this c	t where applicable: Such amount ettlement Currency [at the Exchan ess Day following the Valuation D lay is not a Business Day, th eding] Business Day].]]	ge Rate] on [<mark>specify date</mark>] [the bate] [the Valuation Date] [or if
[Redemption Period	date]	eriod from [but excluding][and inc [to [but excluding][and including not a Business Day, the next foll] [<i>insert date</i>][, or if any such
[Redemption Notice Time Span	[]]		
[Coupon			
[Coupon Payment	[Coup	on Payment applies.] [Coupon Pa	ayment does not apply.]
	[<mark>if Cοι</mark>	upon Payments are conditional, ir	<mark>nsert</mark> .
	(a)	If [at any time] [on at least one Observation Period] [on a Cou Final Reference Level] [the Rel [] is [above] [below] [or equal t the Coupon Payment will be Payment Date,	bon Observation Date [] [the evant Reference Level Value] o] [the Coupon Threshold] [],
	(b)	if [at no point] [on no day] [] [du Period] [on no Coupon Obse Reference Level] [the Relevant [above] [below] [or equal to] [th Coupon Payment will be made.]	rvation Date] [] [the Final Reference Level Value] [] is ne Coupon Threshold] [], no
		[In this case the Coupon Payme if the Underlying [closes at or ab at least one day in a later Coupe	ove the Coupon Threshold on
		[If a Coupon Amount becomes Date falling on a Settlement Dat paid together with the Cash Settlement Date.]]	e, the Coupon Amount will be
		applicable, delete line item	

[<mark>If not applicable, delete line item</mark>]

[Coupon Observation Date	[]]	
[Coupon Observation Period	[] [The period from [but excluding [<i>insert date</i>] [to [but excluding][Valuation Date]].]]	
[Coupon Calculation Period	[<mark>insert period</mark>]]	
[Coupon Threshold	[][[] per cent. of the Initial Referen	ce Level]]
[Bonus Coupon Threshold	[]]	
Coupon Amount	[in relation to each Nominal A outstanding Nominal Amount] [in re- relation to the Issue Volume] [as s <i>linked callable securities or where o</i> that, if the Issuer has exercised in Amount shall be payable [for the [fi [<i>If not applicable, delete line item</i>]	elation to the Initial Issue Price] [in pecified in §4 (3) (d)][][for basket otherwise relevant insert. provided ts Redemption Right, no Coupon
	[is [<i>insert the most unfavourable v</i> can in its reasonable discretion in Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking conditions, particularly the current the [Underlying][Basket Constituen relation to the [Underlying][Bask determining the terms and condi- expects to increase this value a <i>favourable value for the investor</i>]. this will be announced immedia Valuation Date] or the Business Date Valuation Date] in accordance with	ncrease this value on the [Issue Business Day following the [Issue into account the current market interest rate[,][and] the volatility of it][and the dividend expectation in et Constituent]]. At the time of itions of the Security the Issuer at maximum to [<i>insert the most</i> If the Issuer increases this value, ately on the [Issue Date][Initial ay following the [Issue Date][Initial
[Coupon	[Insert for floating rate securities Reference Rate] [[value] [price] [Value] of the Underlying] [multiplies the relevant Coupon Determination	level] [Relevant Reference Level d by the Multiplication Factor] on
	[Insert for Fixed Rate Securities w cent. per annum.][Insert for Fixed F up coupon: For each Coupon Per relevant Coupon Period below:	Rate Securities which have a step-
	Coupon Period	Coupon
	First Coupon Period	[] per cent. per annum
	Second Coupon Period	[] per cent. per annum
	Third Coupon Period	[] per cent. per annum

][repeat as necessary]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*] and the Issuer can in its reasonable discretion increase this value to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*] on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. If the Issuer increases this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[Insert for Fixed/Floating Rate Securities: [] per cent. per annum in respect of each Coupon Period to and including the Coupon Period ending on [insert Reset Date] and thereafter [the [EURIBOR Rate] [insert Reference Rate] [[value] [price] [level] [Relevant Reference Level Value] of the Underlying] on the relevant Coupon Determination Date [plus][minus] the Margin].]

[] [subject to a minimum of the Minimum Coupon [.]] [and] [a maximum of the Maximum Coupon.]

[Insert for Fixed Rate Securities which have a Minimum Coupon and a Bonus Coupon:

If the Underlying is [] [above] [below] [or equal to] [the Bonus Coupon Threshold] [the Coupon Threshold] [] [on a [Coupon Observation Date] [during the Coupon Observation Period], [] per cent. p.a., [subject to a minimum of the Minimum Coupon] [and] [a maximum of the Maximum Coupon]]

[If the Underlying is [above] [below] [or equal to] [the Bonus Coupon Threshold] [the Coupon Threshold] [on a Coupon Observation Date] [during the Coupon Observation Period], [the Coupon Amount] [[] per cent. p.a.], [subject to a minimum of the Minimum Coupon] [and] [a maximum of the Maximum Coupon][, otherwise the Minimum Coupon.]]

[Insert for Floating/Fixed Rate Securities with lock in feature: [[] times the [value] [price] [level] [Relevant Reference Level Value]] of the Underlying fixed [on the relevant Coupon Determination Date] []] [[the EURIBOR Rate] [] [multiplied by the Multiplication Factor] on the relevant Coupon Determination Date] in respect of each Coupon Period until but excluding the Coupon Period, in respect of which [[] times the [value] [price] [level] [Relevant Reference Level Value]] of the Underlying] [[the EURIBOR Rate] [] [multiplied by the Multiplication Factor]] amounts to [[] per cent. p.a.] on the Coupon Determination Date, and for this and every following Coupon Period [] per cent. p.a. [[plus][minus] the Margin].]]

[Maximum Coupon

[] [per cent.] [per annum]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion increase this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to increase this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer increases this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[Minimum Coupon [] [per cent.] [per annum]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion increase this value to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*] on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to increase this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer increases this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[Coupon Determination [insert date]

Date

[The [second last] [] [*TARGET Settlement Day*] [Business Day] [] before the commencement of the relevant *Coupon Period*.]

[the [*insert date*] [[*insert number*] [Trading Day] [calendar day] of every [month][quarter][year] from and including [*insert date*] up to and including [*insert date*] (the "Final Coupon Determination Date")] [[*insert date*] (the "First Coupon Determination Date"), the [*insert date*] (the "Second Coupon Determination Date"), [[*insert date*] (the "[•] Coupon Determination Date")] and the [*insert date*] (the "Final Coupon Determination Date")] [or, if such day is not a Trading Day, the next following Trading Day]]

[TARGET SettlementAny day on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time GrossDaySettlement Express Transfer (TARGET2) System is open.]

[Insert following line items if Coupon is determined by reference to EURIBOR. Otherwise insert relevant items for

The rate for deposits in EUR for a period of the *Designated Maturity* which appears on [[Bloomberg [EUR003M][EUR006M] <Index>]/[the Reuters Screen EURIBOR01 Page]] (or any EURIBOR Successor Source) as of [11:00] [] a.m., Brussels time, on the relevant Coupon Determination Date. If such rate does not appear on [[Bloomberg [EUR003M][EUR006M] <Index>][the Reuters Screen EURIBOR01

any other interest rate: EURIBOR Rate	Page]] (or such EURIBOR Successor Source as hereinafter), the EURIBOR Rate for that Coupon Determination Date will be determined on the basis of the rates at which deposits in EUR are offered by the Reference Banks at approximately [11:00] [] a.m., Brussels time, on that Coupon Determination Date to prime banks in the Euro-zone interbank market for a period of the Designated Maturity commencing on that Coupon Determination Date and in an amount (a "EURIBOR Representative Amount") that is representative of a single transaction in that market at the relevant time assuming calculations are based on the actual number of days in such period divided by 360. The Calculation Agent will request the principal Euro-zone office of each of the Reference Banks to provide a quotation of its rate. If at least two quotations are provided as requested, the EURIBOR Rate for that Coupon Determination Date will be the arithmetic mean of the quotations. If fewer than two quotations are provided as requested, the EURIBOR Rate for that Coupon Determination Agent, at approximately [11:00] [] a.m., Brussels time, on that Coupon Determination Date for loans in EUR to leading European banks for a period of the Designated Maturity commencing on that Coupon Determination Date and in a EURIBOR Representative Amount.]	
[EURIBOR Successor Source	 (a) The successor display page, other published source, information vendor or provider that has been officially designated by the sponsor of [[Bloomberg [EUR003M[EUR006M] <index>][Reuters Screen EURIBOR01 Page]]; or</index> 	
	(b) if the sponsor has not officially designated a successor display page, other published source, service or provider (as the case may be), the successor display page, other published source, service or provider, if any, designated by the relevant information vendor or provider (if different from the sponsor).]]	
[Margin	[[] per cent. per annum.][<i>if variable Margin, amend as applicable</i>]]	
[Day Count Fraction	[As defined under no. [] within §4 (3) (f)]	
	[Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual (ISDA)]	
	[Actual/Actual (ICMA Rule 251)]	
	[Actual/365 (Fixed)]	
	[Actual/360]	
	[30/360 Bond Basis]	
	[360/360 Bond Basis]	
	[30E/360 or Eurobond Basis]	
	[30E/360 (ISDA)]]	

[Coupon Period	[As specified in §4 (3) (g)] [<mark>insert period] [Clarify if Coupon</mark> commences on a day other than the Value Date or the Business Day following the Issue Date <mark>]</mark>
	[The period commencing on (and including) the Value Date to (but excluding) the first Coupon Period End Date and each period commencing on (and including) a Coupon Period End Date to (but excluding) the next following Coupon Period End Date.]
	[The period commencing on (and including) the Value Date to (but excluding) the Coupon Payment Date.]]
[Adjusted Coupon Period	[Applicable][Not applicable]]
[Unadjusted Coupon Period	[Applicable][Not applicable]]
[Business Day	[Following Business Day Convention]
Convention	[Modified Following Business Day Convention]
	[Preceding Business Day Convention]
	[FRN Business Day Convention]
[Coupon Period End Date	[insert date(s)]
Date	
	[For adjusted Coupon Periods insert: If there is no numerical counterpart to this day in a calendar month in which a Coupon Period End Date should fall or a Coupon Period End Date would otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business Day, [where using the Following Business Day Convention insert: the Coupon Period End Date is postponed to the next day which is a Business Day.] [where using the Modified Following Business Day Convention insert: the Coupon Period End Date is postponed to the next day which is a Business Day.] [where using the Modified Following Business Day Convention insert: the Coupon Period End Date is postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would then fall in the following calendar month, in which case the Coupon Period End Date is brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.] [where using the Preceding Business Day Convention insert: the Coupon Period End Date is brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.] [where using the FRN Business Day Convention insert: the Coupon Period End Date is postponed to the next following Business Day.] [where using the FRN Business Day Convention insert: the Coupon Period End Date is postponed to the next following Business Day unless that would then fall in the next calendar month, in this case (i) the Coupon Period End Date is brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and (ii) every subsequent Coupon Period End Date is in each case the last Business Day of the month [insert number] [months] [insert other fixed period] after the preceding applicable Coupon Period End Date.]]]]

	unless it would then fall in the following calendar month, in which case the Coupon Payment Date is brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.] [where using the Preceding Business Day Convention insert: the Coupon Payment Date is brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.] [where using the FRN Business Day Convention insert: the Coupon Payment Date postponed to the next following Business Day unless that would then fall in the next calendar month, in this case (i) the Coupon Payment Date is brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and (ii) every subsequent Coupon Payment Date is in each case the last Business Day of the month [insert number] [months] [insert other fixed period] after the preceding applicable Coupon Payment Date.]] [and the Settlement Date]]
[Coupon Cessation Date	[] [the last][][day[s]] before [the Settlement Date][]] [The Settlement Date] [if there is only one Coupon Payment Date insert: The Coupon Payment Date]
[Designated Maturity	[]] [<mark>If not applicable, delete line item</mark>]
[Reset Date	[][[each of][] (the " First Reset Date "), [] (the " Second Reset Date ") and [] (the " Third Reset Date ") [<i>repeat for each Reset Date</i>]]]]

Relevant Dates

Issue Date Value Date	[<mark>insert date</mark>] [<mark>insert date</mark>]
[Termination Date	[<i>insert date</i>][(a)] If the Securityholder has exercised the Security, or if the Security is deemed to be exercised, the relevant Exercise Date [] and (b)] if the Issuer has elected to redeem the Security in accordance with §2([4] [<i>insert other number, if any</i>]) of the General Conditions, the relevant Redemption Date] [If a Barrier Event occurs, the [first] relevant Observation Date [on which such Barrier Event occurs]].[If a Redemption Event occurs, the [first] relevant Observation Date [on which such Redemption Event occurs]]]
[Valuation Date[s]	[<mark>insert date</mark>]

[The [*insert number*] [Trading Day[s] [*insert for basket underlying:* for all the Basket Constituents]] [calendar day[s]] [after [*insert date*]] [of each [week][month][calendar quarter][calendar year] from and including [*insert date*] to and including [*insert date*]]]

[The Termination Date] [The Exercise Date] [The first Trading Day following the Exercise Date] [If no Barrier Event has occurred, the next Trading Day following the relevant Termination Date] [If no Redemption Event has occurred, the relevant Termination Date] [and if such day is not a Trading Day, the next following Trading Day]

[Include all Valuation Dates if more than one]

[If the Final Reference Level is to be determined on several consecutive days consider whether Averaging should be applicable]]

[Initial Valuation Date[s]

[<mark>insert date</mark>]

[In the case of an early closing of the Subscription Period of the Securities (a) due to reaching the total subscription volume stated under "Early Closing of the Subscription Period of the Securities" in the section "Further information about the Offering of the Securities" or (b) if, at a time during the Subscription Period, the Issuer determines in its reasonable discretion that, taking into account the current market conditions at this time, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][relevant Basket Constituent] [and the dividend expectations in relation to the [Underlying][relevant Basket Constituent]], it would be impossible for it to establish Hedging Arrangements for subscriptions received in relation to the Securities at a later date without the Issuer incurring increased costs which are not taken into account in the price of the Securities or the conditions of the Securities, the Issuer may, in its reasonable discretion, bring forward the Initial Valuation Date to an earlier point in time.

If the Issuer brings forward the Initial Valuation Date, the bringing forward and the new date of the Initial Valuation Date will be announced immediately after the Issuer has determined the existence of the events described above under (a) and (b) in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]

[The [*insert number*] [Trading Day[s] [*insert for basket underlying*: for all the Basket Constituents]] [calendar day[s]] [after [*insert date*]] [of each [week][month][calendar quarter][calendar year] from and including [*insert date*] to and including [*insert date*]]]

[Include all Initial Valuation Dates if more than one]

[If the Initial Reference Level is to be determined on several consecutive days consider whether Averaging should be applicable]]

[Settlement Date

[<mark>insert date</mark>]

[In respect of [the earlier of] the Exercise Date [and the Termination Date], the [third][*insert number*] Business Day following [(a) if a Barrier Event occurs, the [relevant Observation Date][Termination Date][] or (b) otherwise] the [relevant][last occurring] Valuation Date [or, if there is more than one Valuation Date, the last occurring Valuation Date.] [(a) in the event of a Redemption Event, [relevant][last occurring] Valuation Date][Termination Date] or (b) otherwise] [relevant][last occurring] Valuation Date][there is more than one Valuation Date] or (b) otherwise] [relevant][last occurring] Valuation Date [or, if there is more than one Valuation Date] [last occurring] Valuation Date [or, if there is more than one Valuation Date, the last occurring Valuation Date[, probably [*insert date*]].]

[The [*insert number*][third][fifth][immediately succeeding] Business Day following [the Termination Date][the Valuation Date] [*if there is more than one Valuation Date insert:* the last occurring Valuation Date][, probably [*insert date*]]] [If a Barrier Event could occur, insert:

- (a) if a Barrier Event has occurred, the relevant Termination Date or
- (b) if a Barrier Event has not occurred, the relevant Valuation Date [, probably [*insert date*].]

[If a Knock-In Event could occur, insert.

- (a) if a Knock In Event has occurred, the relevant Termination Date or
- (b) if a Knock In Event has not occurred, the relevant Valuation Date [, probably [*insert date*].]

[If a Redemption Event could occur, insert:

- (a) if a Redemption Event has occurred, the relevant Termination Date or
- (b) if a Redemption Event has not occurred, the relevant Valuation Date [, probably [*insert date*].]

[The [third][fifth][*insert number*] [Business Day][Payment Day] following the [the earlier of: (a) the relevant Observation Date on which a [Barrier Event] [Redemption Event] occurs and (b)] [last occurring] [Valuation Date][Reset Date] [The last occurring Valuation Date] [The Coupon Payment Date scheduled to fall in [] [, probably [*insert date*].]

[*insert if redemption right applies*: provided, however, that if a Redemption Notice is delivered by the Issuer pursuant to the Redemption Right, the Settlement Date shall be the Redemption Date specified in such Redemption Notice.]

General Definitions applicable to Certificates

[Insert following provisions for all certificates as applicable, except where these include a corresponding product-specific prompt below. Where product-specific prompts are applicable, such product-specific prompts should be inserted in place of (and in the same order as) the corresponding prompt set out below (immediately followed by all related prompts which do not correspond to a prompt below).

Delete for warrants and notes.]

Product Details

Cash Amount	[<i>For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one</i> Security insert. In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]
	[Final Reference Level [x Rollover Factor] [x Quanto factor] x <u>FinalReference Level</u> Multiplier][InitialReference Level x <mark>[insert number</mark>] [x Multiplier]]
	[provided that the Cash Amount will not be [above the Maximum Amount] [and will not be] [less than the Minimum Amount].]
[<mark>Insert where applicable</mark> :	Such amount shall be converted [1:1] into the Settlement Currency [at the Exchange Rate] on [<i>specify date</i>] [the Business Day following the Valuation Date] [the Valuation Date] [or if this day is not a Business Day, the immediately [succeeding] [preceding] Business Day].]
[<mark>Insert where applicable</mark> :	[provided that the Cash Amount will not be [above the Maximum Amount] [and will not be] [less than the Minimum Amount].] [The Cash Amount will be [equal to] at least [<i>insert amount</i>] [the Minimum Amount].]]
For Italian Securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is greater than 1 Security insert.	The amount payable in respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount shall be the product of (i) the Cash Amount for each Security (determined as provided above) and (ii) the Minimum Exercise Amount.]
[Specified Reference Level	[<i>Insert value</i>][per Security][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level] [multiplied by the Multiplier]]
	[is [<i>insert the most unfavourable value for the investor</i>]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion increase this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to increase this value at maximum to [<i>insert the most favourable value for the investor</i>]. If the Issuer increases this value,

this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[Bonus Amount [Insert value][per Security][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level] [multiplied by the Multiplier]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion increase this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to increase this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer increases this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

- [First Bonus Amount [*insert amount*][per Security] [[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]]
- [Second Bonus Amount [*insert amount*][per Security] [[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]]

[Cap

[Insert value][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion increase this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to increase this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer increases this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[[Upper] Barrier [[*insert value*][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level] [*If the Underlying is a basket, insert*: In relation to a Basket Constituent, [][the product of the Barrier Percentage Level for such Basket Constituent and the Basket Constituent Level for such Basket Constituent on the Initial Valuation Date]]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At

the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to increase this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[If the Barrier is different for one or more Observation Dates insert:

[*If the Underlying is a basket insert*: In relation to a Basket Constituent:]

- [in][In] respect of the First Observation Date, [][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level] [*If the Underlying is a basket inser*t: [the product of the Barrier Percentage Level for such Basket Constituent and the Basket Constituent Level for such Basket Constituent on the Initial Valuation Date];
- (b) in respect of the [] Observation Date, [][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level] [*If the Underlying is a basket insert*: [the product of the Barrier Percentage Level for such Basket Constituent and the Basket Constituent Level for such Basket Constituent on []]; and
- in respect of the Last Observation Date, [][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level] [*If the Underlying is a basket insert:* [the product of the Barrier Percentage Level for such Basket Constituent and the Basket Constituent Level for such Basket Constituent on []].]
- [Lower Barrier [Insert value][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to increase this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[Barrier Percentage Level [In relation to a *Basket Constituent*, the percentage rate specified for such Basket Constituent in the column "**Barrier Percentage Level**" in "Underlying" above.][]]

[Strike [Insert value][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on

the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

- [Performance Factor [In relation to each Basket Constituent, a percentage equal to (a) minus (b) where:
 - (a) is equal to the quotient of (i) (as a numerator) and (ii) (as a denominator) where:
 - (i) is equal to the *Reference Level* for such Basket Constituent on the Valuation Date; and
 - (ii) is equal to the Initial Reference Level for such Basket Constituent; and
 - (b) is 1.]

[]]

Specific Definitions applicable to Certificates

Product No. 1: Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery)

Product No. 2: Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement)

Product Details

[Insert the following provisions for Discount Certificates:

Cash Amount

[For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one Security insert: In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]

[Insert if physical delivery is planned:[the][The] Maximum Amount.]

[Insert if only Cash Settlement applies:

- (a) if the Final Reference Level is above [or equal to] the Cap, the Maximum Amount,
- (b) if the Final Reference Level is below [or equal to] the Cap, the Final Reference Level multiplied by the Multiplier.]

[In case of (b) such amount shall be converted [1:1] into the Settlement Currency [at the Exchange Rate] on [*specify date*] [the Business Day following the Valuation Date] [the Valuation Date] [or if this day is not a Business Day, the immediately [succeeding] [preceding] Business Day].]

Product No. 3: Bonus Certificate

Product No. 4: Bonus Certificate with Cap

Product No. 5: BonusPro Certificate

Product No. 6: BonusPro Certificate with Cap

Product No. 7: Easy Bonus Certificate

Product No. 8: Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap

Product Details

[Insert for Bonus Certificates, BonusPro Certificates and Easy Bonus Certificates:

Cash Amount

[For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one Security insert. In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]

- (a) [If][if] the [Final Reference Level on the Valuation Date] [the Barrier Determination Amount at [any time] [all times] during the Observation Period] [has been][is] [equal to or] above the Barrier, the higher of:
 - (i) the Bonus Amount and
 - (ii) the product of the Final Reference Level and the Multiplier,
- (b) otherwise, the product of the Final Reference Level and the Multiplier

[, subject to a maximum of the Maximum Amount]

[, provided that the Cash Amount will not be above the Maximum Amount.]

[In case of (a)(ii) and (b) such amount shall be converted [1:1] into the Settlement Currency [at the Exchange Rate] on [*specify date*] [the Business Day following the Valuation Date] [the Valuation Date] [or if this day is not a Business Day, the immediately [succeeding] [preceding] Business Day].]

]

]

Product No. 9: Reverse Bonus Certificate

Product No. 10: Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap

Product No. 11: Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap

Product Details

Insert following provisions for Reverse Bonus Certificates, Reverse Bonus Certificates with Cap and Digital Reverse Bonus Certificates with Cap:

Cash Amount	[<i>For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one</i> Security insert: In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]				
	(a)	[If][if] the Barrier Determination Amount has at no po during the Observation Period been above [or equal to] Barrier, [the Bonus Amount][the higher of:			
		(i)	the Bonus Amount and		
		(ii)	the product of the Multiplier and the sum of the Initial Reference Level and (A), where (A) is the difference between the Initial Reference Level and the Final Reference Level].		
	(b)	Initial I	vise the product of the Multiplier and the sum of the Reference Level and (A), where (A) is the difference en the Initial Reference Level and the Final Reference		
		This amount cannot be negative	mount cannot be negative		
	[, subject to a maximum of the Maximum Amount].				
	[, provided that the Cash Amount will not be above the Maximum Amount.]				
		[1:1] in [<mark>specit</mark> Date]	se of (a)(ii) and (b) such amount shall be converted no the Settlement Currency [at the Exchange Rate] on fy date] [the Business Day following the Valuation [the Valuation Date] [or if this day is not a Business the immediately [succeeding] [preceding] Business		
Reverse Level	Double	e the Ini	tial Reference Level		

Product No. 12: Outperformance Certificate

Product Details

Insert the following provisions for Outperformance Certificates:

Cash Amount			ecurities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one t: In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]
	(a)	Strike	the Final Reference Level is below or equal to the , the product of the Final Reference Level and the lier and
	(b)) if the Final Reference Level is above the Strike, the pro- of (i) and (ii), where	
		(i)	is the sum of the Strike and the Outperformance Amount, and
		(ii)	is the Multiplier.
Outperformance Amount	Final F	Referen	ual to the product of (a) the difference between (i) the ce Level and (ii) the Strike, and (b) the Participation at to a minimum of zero.

]

Product No. 13: Sprint Certificate

Product Details

[Insert the following provisions for Sprint Certificates:

Cash Amount

[For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one Security insert: In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]

- (a) If the Final Reference Level is above or equal to the Strike and below the Cap, the product of (i) the Strike plus the product of (x) the Final Reference Level minus the Strike and (y) the Participation Factor and (ii) the Multiplier;
- (b) if the Final Reference Level is equal to or above the Cap, the Maximum Amount;
- (c) if the Final Reference Level is below the Strike, the Final Reference Level multiplied by the Multiplier.

[In case of (a) and (c) such amount shall be converted [1:1] into the Settlement Currency [at the Exchange Rate] on [*specify date*] [the Business Day following the Valuation Date] [the Valuation Date] [or if this day is not a Business Day, the immediately [succeeding] [preceding] Business Day].]

General Definitions applicable to Warrants

[Insert following provisions for all warrants, except where these include a corresponding product-specific prompt below. Where product-specific prompts are applicable, such product-specific prompts should be inserted in place of (and in the same order as) the corresponding prompt set out below (immediately followed by all related prompts which do not correspond to a prompt below).

Delete for certificates and notes.]

Product Details

Barrier

[Cash Amount	[For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one Security insert. In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]
[<i>If Settlement does not mean Physical Delivery only</i>]	[If the definition of Security Type specifies "Call":
	(Final Reference Level – Strike) x Multiplier]
	[If the definition of Security Type specifies "Put":
	(Strike – Final Reference Level) x Multiplier]
	[provided that this amount will not be greater than the specified Maximum Amount.]
	[The Cash Amount will be [equal to] at least [<i>insert amount</i>] [the Minimum Amount].]
[<i>Insert where applicable</i> :	Such amount shall be converted [1:1] into the Settlement Currency [at the Exchange Rate] on [<i>specify date</i>] [the Business Day following the Valuation Date] [the Valuation Date] [or if this day is not a Business Day, the immediately [succeeding] [preceding] Business Day].]
[Insert where applicable:	The Cash Amount will be [equal to] at least [<i>insert amount</i>] [the Minimum Amount].]
For Italian Securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is greater than 1 Security insert.	The amount payable in respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount shall be the product of (i) the Cash Amount for each Security (determined as provided above) and (ii) the Minimum Exercise Amount.]
[Сар	[<mark>insert level</mark>]]
[Barrier]	

[Insert value][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[If the Security is specified to be a WAVE: []]

[If the Security is specified to be a WAVE Unlimited:

- (1) On the Issue Date: []
- (2) On each subsequent day: the Strike on such day]

[If the Security is specified to be a WAVE XXL:

- (1) During the period from and including the Issue Date to and including the first Adjustment Date: [].
- (2) On each subsequent day: an amount determined by the Calculation Agent for the Adjustment Date immediately preceding such day, to be equal to:

[*If the definition of Security Type specifies "Call", insert*: the sum of the Strike for this Adjustment Date and the Barrier Adjustment Amount, [minus the Dividend Factor, provided such date was a Dividend Adjustment Date, subject to a Minimum Amount of zero,] [minus (A) the Price Differential and [plus] (B) the Rolling Costs] [minus the Price Differential] [rounded [upwards] [to the nearest two decimal places] [to whole [] units]].]

[*If the definition of Security type specifies "Put" insert*: (a) minus (b), [rounded downwards [to the nearest two decimal places] [to whole [] units]],

where

 (a) is equal to the Strike for this Adjustment Date [minus the Dividend Factor, provided such date was a Dividend Adjustment Date, subject to a Minimum Amount of zero,] [minus (A) the Price Differential and (B) the Rolling Costs] [minus the Price Differential]

and

(b) is equal to the Barrier Adjustment Amount.]]

[Other than in respect of Issue Date, the Issuer will give notice of the Barrier by publication in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions as soon as practicable after the Adjustment Date.] [Other than in respect of Issue Date, the Barrier will be published on the

website of the Issuer www.xmarkets.db.com as soon as practicable after the Adjustment Date.]

[Strike]

[Strike

[Insert value][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[*If the Security is specified to be a WAVE XXL or WAVE Unlimited*: Will be adjusted daily and is

- (1) in respect of the Issue Date [*insert amount*] and
- (2) in respect of every [Business Day] [day] during the period from the Issue Date to the first Adjustment Date (inclusive), the sum of
 - (a) the Strike valid on the Issue Date, and
 - (b) the Financing Component [accrued until this date]
- (3) in respect of every [Business Day] [day] following the first Adjustment Date, [at any time], the sum of
 - (a) the Strike applicable on the immediately preceding Adjustment Date [*if the Underlying is a share or price index insert*. minus the relevant Dividend Factor provided such day is a Dividend Adjustment Date, subject to a minimum of zero] [*If the Underlying is a future that is regularly rolled, insert*: minus [*if Rolling Costs are taken into account, insert*. (A)] the Price Differential, [*if Rolling Costs are taken into account, insert*. and [plus] (B) the Rolling Costs]]

and

(b) the Financing Component [accrued until this date]]

[The Issuer will give notice, in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions, of the Strike [for each Adjustment Period] as soon as practicable [after the first day of such Adjustment Period].] [The Strike [for each Adjustment Period] will be published on the website of the Issuer www.xmarkets.db.com as soon as practicable [after the first day of such Adjustment Period].]]

Relevant Dates

[Termination Date

[The Exercise Date] [insert if WAVE, Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant or Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant: if a Barrier Event has occurred, the day on which such Barrier Event occurred, otherwise, the relevant Exercise Date]

[Insert if WAVE XXL or WAVE Unlimited:

The earliest of:

- If a Barrier Event occurred, the [*insert if WAVE XXL*: last day of the Stop Loss Reference Level Valuation Period] [*insert if WAVE Unlimited*: day on which such Barrier Event occurred];
- (b) if the Securityholder has exercised the *Security*, or if the Security is deemed to be exercised, the relevant Exercise Date; and
- (c) if the Issuer elects to redeem the Security, the relevant Redemption Date.]

[*If the Securities are One Touch Barrier Warrants insert:* (1) if a Knock In Event has occurred, the relevant day on which such Knock In Event occurred (2) otherwise, []]

[*If the Securities are No Touch Barrier Warrants insert:* (1) if a Barrier Event has occurred, the relevant day on which such Barrier Event occurred (2) otherwise, []]]

Specific Definitions applicable to Warrants

Product No. 16: WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant

Product No. 17: WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

Product No. 18: WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant

Product No. 19: WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

Product No. 20: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant

Product No. 21: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

Product No. 22: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant

Product No. 23: WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

Product No. 24: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant

Product No. 25: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

Product No. 26: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrants

Product No. 27: WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index

Product Details

[Insert following provisions for Knock Out Warrants:

[Cash Amount

[<mark>If Settlement does not</mark> mean Physical Delivery <mark>only</mark>] [For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one Security insert. In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]

[If the Security is specified to be a WAVE XXL or WAVE Unlimited:

- (1) [if][If], in the determination of the Calculation Agent,
 - [(a)] the Barrier Determination Amount [or []] has at any time during the Observation Period been [equal to the Barrier or]

[*If the definition of Security Type specifies "Call", insert*: below the Barrier,]

[If the definition of Security Type specifies "Put", insert: above the Barrier,] [or

(b) [the Strike is zero on an Adjustment Date,][]]

[If the Security is specified to be a WAVE:

- (1) If, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, the Barrier Determination Amount has [at any time during the Observation Period] [[at no point] [] during [] [the Observation Period]] [on the [Valuation Date] []] [] been [equal to the Barrier or]
 - [*If the definition of Security Type specifies "Call", inse*rt: below the Barrier]
 - [*If the definition of Security Type specifies "Put", insert*: above the Barrier]]

(such event a "Barrier Event")

[If the Security is specified to be a WAVE or WAVE Unlimited:

[zero] [the Minimum Amount].

[If the definition of Security Type specifies "Call", insert:

- (2) otherwise: (Final Reference Level Strike) x Multiplier]
 [*If the definition of Security Type specifies "Put", insert:*
- (2) otherwise: (Strike Final Reference Level) x Multiplier]]

[If the Security is specified to be a WAVE XXL:

[<mark>If the definition of Security Type specifies "Call", insert</mark>:

(Stop Loss Reference Level – Strike) x Multiplier;

(2) otherwise: (Final Reference Level – Strike) x Multiplier]
 [*If the definition of Security Type specifies "Put", insert:*

(Strike – Stop Loss Reference Level) x Multiplier;

(2) otherwise: (Strike – Final Reference Level) x Multiplier]]

[The Cash Amount will be [equal to] at least [*insert amount*] [the Minimum Amount].]

[Barrier]

Amount

[Barrier Adjustment [In respect of an Adjustment Date, the product of:

- (a) the Barrier Adjustment Factor and
- (b) the Strike for this Adjustment Date [minus the Dividend Factor, provided such date was a Dividend Adjustment Date, subject to a Minimum Amount of zero,] [minus (A) the Price Differential and [plus] (B) the Rolling Costs] [minus the Price Differential]

provided that the Barrier Adjustment Amount shall not be less than the Minimum Barrier Adjustment Amount and shall not be more than a Maximum Barrier Adjustment Amount, if specified.][]]

[Maximum Barrier Adjustment Amount	[<i>Insert amount</i>] [[] per cent. of the Strike]]]
[Minimum Barrier Adjustment Amount	[<i>Insert amount</i>] [[] per cent. of the Strike]]]
[Barrier Adjustment Factor	[(1) On the Issue Date [] and
	(2) in respect of the relevant Adjustment Date [a percentage determined by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion by reference to such factors as it deems appropriate with the aim of maintaining the same probability as at the Issue Date that a Cash Amount will not be zero if a Barrier Event were to occur. The Issuer may consider factors such as the volatility and/or liquidity of the Underlying.]
	[]]
[Adjustment Date	[Following (and excluding) the Issue Date, each of the following days: [] [the [] day of each month] [<i>If the Underlying is a future insert:</i> any day on which a Replacement Event occurs] [<i>If the Underlying is a share or a price index insert:</i> and each Dividend Adjustment Date] or, if any such day is not a Business Day, the next following Business Day] []]
[Dividend Adjustment Date	[In respect of a Dividend [for one or several Relevant Reference Item(s)], the Business Day immediately preceding the first day on which the [Underlying][Relevant Reference Item(s)] [is][/are] traded or quoted ex dividend in respect of such Dividend on the respective Reference Source as determined by the Calculation Agent][].]
[Dividend Factor	[In respect of the Underlying and as determined by the <i>Calculation Agent</i> , each cash dividend (each a " Dividend ") declared and paid by the Issuer of the Underlying [<i>if the definition of Security Type specifies "Call" insert</i> : less such amount of any tax, duty, withholding, deduction or other charge whatsoever that the Calculation Agent in its reasonable discretion determines] [<i>if the definition of Security Type specifies "Put" insert</i> : including but not limited to any tax, duty, withholding, deduction or other charge that] would have been sustained or incurred in relation to the dividends, by a German tax resident private investor as a result of holding the Underlying][[]]
	[In respect of a Relevant Reference Item and as determined by the Calculation Agent, the product of (a) each cash dividend (each a " Dividend ") declared and paid by the Issuer of the Relevant Reference Item [<i>if the definition of Security Type specifies "Call" insert</i> : less such amount of any tax, duty, withholding, deduction or other charge whatsoever that the Calculation Agent in its reasonable discretion determines] [<i>if the definition of Security Type specifies "Put" insert</i> : including but not limited to any tax, duty, withholding, deduction or incurred in relation to the dividends, by a German tax resident private investor as a result of holding the Relevant Reference Item in the Underlying on the Dividend Adjustment Date.

If on a Dividend Adjustment Date more than one Relevant Reference Item in respect of a Dividend is for the last time traded cum dividend on the respective Reference Source, the Dividend Factor means the sum of the values determined according to sentence 1 for each single affected Relevant Reference Item.]][]]

[Strike]

[Einoncing	Component
Financing	Component

[In respect of any day, the product of:

(1) [If the definition of Security Type specifies "Call":

the sum of the Reference Rate determined for the immediately preceding Reference Rate Adjustment Date and the Interest Adjustment Factor]

[If the definition of Security Type specifies "Put", insert:

(a) minus (b),

where

- (a) is the Reference Rate determined for the immediately preceding Reference Rate Adjustment Date and
- (b) is the Interest Adjustment Factor,]
- (2) in respect of any day during the period from the Issue Date to the following first Adjustment Date (inclusive), the Strike on the Issue Date;

in respect of each day following the first Adjustment Date, the Strike applicable on the immediately preceding Adjustment Date [*if the Underlying is a future that is regularly rolled insert*: minus [*if Rolling Costs are taken into account insert*: (A)] the Price Differential, [*if Rolling Costs are taken into account insert*: and [plus] (B) the Rolling Costs] [*if the Underlying is a share or a price index insert*:, minus the Dividend Factor provided such date was a Dividend Adjustment Date, subject to a minimum of zero], and

- (3) the number of calendar days from the Adjustment Date immediately preceding such day or for a day during the period from the Issue Date to the first Adjustment Date, from (and excluding) the Issue Date to (and including) such date, divided by [360] [365] []],
- []]

[Reference Rate [In respect of any day, the Interest Rate published on the Reference Rate Adjustment Date immediately preceding such day or in respect of any day during the period from the Issue Date to the first Reference Rate Adjustment Date (and including) published on the Issue Date [on the [] page of the information service provider [Thomson Reuters] [Bloomberg]] [on the [] website] [under []] [for one month] [for [].] []

	[In respect of any day, the result on the Reference Rate Adjustment Date immediately preceding such day or in respect of any day during the period from the Issue Date to the first Reference Rate Adjustment Date (and including) the result on the Issue Date of a) [] [, as published [on the [] page of the information service provider [Thomson Reuters] [Bloomberg]] [,] on the [] website] [under []] [for one month],] minus b) [], [, as published on the [] page of the information service provider [Thomson Reuters] [Bloomberg]] [,] [on the [] website] [under []] [for one month]].
	[is zero.]]
[Reference Rate Adjustment Date	[Following (and excluding) the Issue Date, each of the following days: [] [the [] day of each month] [<i>If the Underlying is a future insert:</i> any day on which a Replacement Event occurs] [<i>If the Underlying is a share or a price index insert:</i> and each Dividend Adjustment Date] or, if any such day is not a Business Day, the next following Business Day] []]
[Interest Adjustment Factor	[]]

[Stop Loss Reference Level]

[Stop Loss Reference Level	[An amount (which shall be deemed to be a monetary value in the [Settlement Currency] [Reference Currency]) determined by the Calculation Agent, in its reasonable discretion [on the basis of the proceeds of the unwinding of hedging transactions] as [the fair market [price] [level]] [] of the Underlying [at such time as the Issuer in its reasonable discretion shall select taking into account factors such as the liquidity of the Underlying] within the Stop Loss Reference Level Valuation Period.][<i>Insert amount</i>]]
[Stop Loss Reference Level Valuation Period	[The period which begins at the time when the Barrier Event occurs and ends not more than [one][three][<i>insert number</i>] hour[s] later, provided that if a Market Disruption as defined by §5 occurs at any time during such period, such period will be extended by a time equal to the time the Market Disruption is subsisting. If the Stop Loss Reference Level Valuation Period ends after the official close of trading or, in the absence of such official close, after the close of trading or quotations on the Reference Source [or on a Dividend Adjustment Date][or on a Replacement Date], the Stop Loss Reference Level Valuation Period shall be extended on the next following Trading Day on such Reference Source by a period equal to that amount of time which would otherwise have fallen after such close.][<i>insert period</i>]]

]

Product No. 28: One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant

Product No. 29: One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant

Product No. 30: One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant

Product No. 31: No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant

Product No. 32: No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant

Product No. 33: Inline Warrant

Product Details

Insert following provisions for single underlying One Touch Single Barrier / One Touch Dual Barrier / No Touch Single Barrier or Inline Warrants:

Cash Amount

[For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one Security insert: In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]

[If the Securities are Single Barrier Warrants insert:

(1) [if][If], in the determination of the Calculation Agent, the Barrier Determination Amount at any time during the Observation Period

> [if the definition of Security Type specifies "Call" and the Securities are One Touch Barrier Warrants insert: is or has been above [or equal to] the Barrier] [if the definition of Security Type specifies "Call" and the Securities are No Touch Barrier Warrants insert: is or has been below [or equal to] the Barrier]

> [*if the definition of Security Type specifies "Put" and the* Securities are One Touch Barrier Warrants insert: is or has been below [or equal to] the Barrier] [*if the definition of* Security Type specifies "Put" and the Securities are No Touch Barrier Warrants insert: is or has been above [or equal to] the Barrier]

> [*if the Securities are One Touch Barrier Warrants insert*: (such event a "**Knock In Event**"), the One Touch Amount

(2) otherwise, [the Minimum Amount] [*insert amount*]]

[*if the Securities are No Touch Barrier Warrants insert*: (such event a "**Barrier Event**"), [the Minimum Amount] [*insert amount*]

(2) otherwise, the No Touch Amount]

[if the Securities are Inline Warrants insert.

(1) [if] [lf], in the determination of the Calculation Agent, the Barrier Determination Amount is or has been [equal to or] below the Lower Barrier or [equal to or] above the Upper Barrier at any time during the Observation Period, [*if the Securities are One Touch Barrier Warrants insert*: (such event a "**Knock In Event**"), the One Touch Amount

(2) otherwise, [the Minimum Amount] [*insert amount*]]

[*if the Securities are No Touch Barrier Warrants insert*: (such event a "**Barrier Event**"), [the Minimum Amount] [*insert amount*]

(2) otherwise, the No Touch Amount]]

[<mark>If the Securities are One</mark> Touch Barrier Warrants insert.

One Touch Amount

[<mark>If the Securities are No</mark> Touch Barrier Warrants <mark>insert</mark>:

No Touch Amount

[*If the Securities are Inline Warrants insert*: Upper Barrier [insert amount][per Security]]

[insert amount][per Security]]

[<mark>insert level</mark>]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

If the Securities are Inline [insert level] [is [insert the most unfavourable value for the investor]. Warrants insert: Lower The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this Barrier value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [insert the most favourable value for the investor]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

Product No. 34: Duo Inline Warrant

Product Details

Insert following provisions for Duo Inline Warrants:

Cash Amount	[<i>For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one</i> Security insert: In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]		
	[if the Securities are Inline Warrants insert.		
	(1)	[if] [If], in the determination of the Calculation Agent, the Barrier Determination Amount for Underlying A or Underlying B is or has been [equal to or] below the Lower Barrier for the respective Underlying or [equal to or] above the Upper Barrier for the respective Underlying at any time during the Observation Period (such event a " Barrier Event "), [the Minimum Amount] [<i>insert amount</i>]	
	(2)	otherwise, the No Touch Amount]	
No Touch Amount	[<i>insert amount</i>] [per Security]		
Barrier Determination Amount	In resp	ect of Underlying A:	
Amount	The [value] [price] [level] of the Underlying A as quoted or published by the Reference Source at any time on a Trading Day during the Observation Period [, as published in the [<latest>] [] column] [[and] [with respect to the Upper Barrier] in the row [] [under the column []] [(where the [higher][lower] of both values is relevant)]] [[and] [with respect to the Lower Barrier] in the row [] [under the column []] [(where the [higher][lower] of both values is relevant)]] [, as published under [<bid>] <ask>] [(as calculated and published on a continuous basis)] [, irrespective of any corrections published later [by] [at] the Reference Source in this regard].]</ask></bid></latest>		
	In respect of Underlying B:		
	The [value] [price] [level] of the Underlying B as quoted or published by the Reference Source at any time on a Trading Day during the Observation Period [, as published in the [<latest>] [] column] [[and] [with respect to the Upper Barrier] in the row [] [under the column []] [(where the [higher][lower] of both values is relevant)]] [[and] [with respect to the Lower Barrier] in the row [] [under the column []] [(where the [higher][lower] of both values is relevant)]] [, as published under [<bid>] <ask>] [(as calculated and published on a continuous basis)] [, irrespective of any corrections published later [by] [at] the Reference Source in this regard].]</ask></bid></latest>		
Upper Barrier	In resp	ect of Underlying A: [<i>insert level</i>]	
	can in i [Issue [Issue	ert the most unfavourable value for the investor]. The Issuer ts reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the	

volatility of the Underlying A [and the dividend expectation in relation

to the Underlying A]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

In respect of Underlying B: [insert level]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the Underlying B [and the dividend expectation in relation to the Underlying B]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

Lower Barrier In respect of Underlying A: [insert level]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the Underlying A [and the dividend expectation in relation to the Underlying A]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

In respect of Underlying B: [insert level]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the Underlying B [and the dividend expectation in relation to the Underlying B]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increase] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

]

Product No. 35: Digital Call Warrant

Product No. 36: Digital Put Warrant

Product Details

Insert following provisions for single underlying One Touch Single Barrier / One Touch Dual Barrier / No Touch Single Barrier / Inline or Digital Warrants:

Cash Amount

[For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one Security insert. In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]

(1) [if][If], in the determination of the Calculation Agent, the Final Reference Level

[*If the definition of Security Type specifies "Call", insert*: is above [or equal to] the Barrier]

[*If the definition of Security Type specifies "Put", insert*: is below [or equal to] the Barrier]

the Digital Amount

[*insert amount*][per Security]]

(2) otherwise, [the Minimum Amount] [*insert amount*]]

[*If the Securities are Digital Warrants insert*: Digital Amount Product No. 37: Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant

Product Details

[Insert the following provisions for Down and Out Put Barrier Warrants:

Cash Amount [For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one Security insert: In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]

> (a) [if][If], in the determination of the Calculation Agent, the Barrier Determination Amount at any time during the Observation Period is or has been below [or equal to] the Barrier (such event referred to as a "**Barrier Event**"),

> > the Minimum Amount,

(b) if a Barrier Event has not occurred, an amount equal to:

(Strike - Final Reference Level) x Multiplier,

but at least the Minimum Amount.

Product No. 38: Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant

Product Details

[Insert the following provisions for Up and Out Call Barrier Warrants:

Cash Amount [For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one Security insert: In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]

> (a) [if][If], in the determination of the Calculation Agent, the Barrier Determination Amount at any time during the Observation Period is or has been above [or equal to] the Barrier (such event referred to as a "**Barrier Event**"),

> > the Minimum Amount,

(b) if a Barrier Event has not occurred, an amount equal to:

(Final Reference Level - Strike) x Multiplier,

but at least the Minimum Amount.

General Definitions applicable to Notes

[Insert following provisions for all notes, except where these include a corresponding product-specific prompt below. Where product-specific prompts are applicable, such product-specific prompts should be inserted in place of (and in the same order as) the corresponding prompt set out below (immediately followed by all related prompts which do not correspond to a prompt below).

Delete for certificates and warrants.]

Product Details

Cash Amount

[For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one Security insert: In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]

[[the][The] Nominal Amount]

[Nominal Amount +]

(Nominal Amount xParticipation Factor x (Final Reference Level - Initial Reference Level) Initial Reference Level

[subject to a minimum of [*insert currency*] [*insert amount*]] [[and] a maximum of [*insert currency*] [*insert amount*]]

[Insert where applicable: Such amount shall be converted [1:1] into the Settlement Currency [at the Exchange Rate] on [specify date] [the Business Day following the Valuation Date] [the Valuation Date] [or if this day is not a Business Day, the immediately [succeeding] [preceding] Business Day].]

[Insert where applicable: [subject to a minimum of [insert currency] [insert amount]] [[and] a maximum of [insert currency] [insert amount]]]

[For Italian Securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is greater than 1 Security insert:

shall be the product of (i) the Cash Amount for each Security (determined as provided above) and (ii) the Minimum Exercise Amount.]

The amount payable in respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount

[Barrier

[*if the Underlying is not specified to be a basket and the Barrier Observation is European style insert*: [*insert value*][][[] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]]

[*if the Underlying is specified to be a Basket insert*: [*insert value*] [In respect of each *Basket Constituent*, [] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level for such Basket Constituent]]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[*if the Underlying is not specified to be a Basket insert*. [*Insert value*][[]] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level]]

[is [*insert the most unfavourable value for the investor*]. The Issuer can in its reasonable discretion [decrease][increase] this value on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] taking into account the current market conditions, particularly the current interest rate[,][and] the volatility of the [Underlying][Basket Constituent][and the dividend expectation in relation to the [Underlying][Basket Constituent]]. At the time of determining the terms and conditions of the Security the Issuer expects to [decrease] [increase] this value at maximum to [*insert the most favourable value for the investor*]. If the Issuer [reduces][increases] this value, this will be announced immediately on the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] or the Business Day following the [Issue Date][Initial Valuation Date] in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.]]

[*if the Underlying is specified to be a Basket insert*: In respect of each Basket Constituent [] per cent. of the Initial Reference Level of this Basket Constituent.]]

]

[Strike

Specific Definitions applicable to Notes

Product No. 39: Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)

Product No. 40: Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)

Product No. 41: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)

Product No. 42: Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)

Product No. 43: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)

Product No. 44: Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)

Product No. 45: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery)

Product No. 46: Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement)

Product Details

[Insert following product-specific provisions for Reverse Convertible Notes:

Cash Amount

[For Italian securities where the Minimum Exercise Amount is one Security insert: In respect of each Minimum Exercise Amount,]

[Insert in the event of an early redemption:

- (a) [if][If] on an Observation Date the Redemption Determination Amount has been above [or equal to] the Redemption Threshold (a Redemption Event), the Nominal Amount or
- (b) if a Redemption Event has not occurred]

[<mark>If the settlement may be by cash settlement or physical delivery and no Minimum Amount is specified, insert</mark>: [t][T]he Nominal Amount.]

[If the settlement may only be by cash settlement and no Minimum Amount or Barrier is specified, insert:

[(a)][(i)][if][If] the Final Reference Level is below [or equal to] the Strike, the product of the Final Reference Level and the Multiplier,

[(b)][(ii)] otherwise, the Nominal Amount.]

[If the settlement may only be by cash settlement, no Minimum Amount, but a Barrier is specified and barrier observation does not only take place on the Valuation Date, insert:

 [(a)][(i)] [if][If] (A) the Final Reference Level is below [or equal to] the Strike and (B) [during the Observation Period][on an Observation Date][on the Valuation Date] the Barrier Determination Amount has been [below [or equal to]] [above [or equal to]] the Barrier,

[an amount equal to:

the quotient of:

- (A) the product of (x) [EUR 100][the Multiplier][*insert amount*] and (y) the Final Reference Level (as numerator) and
- (B) the Strike (as denominator)]

[the product of the Final Reference Level and the Multiplier]

[(b)][(ii)] otherwise, the Nominal Amount.]

[If the settlement may only be by cash settlement, no Minimum Amount, but a Barrier is specified and barrier observation only takes place on the Valuation Date, insert.

[(a)][(i)] [if] [lf] the Final Reference Level has been below [or equal to] the Barrier,

[an amount equal to:

the quotient of:

- (A) the product of (x) [EUR 100][the Multiplier][*insert amount*] and (y) the Final Reference Level (as numerator) and
- (B) the Strike (as denominator)]

[the product of the Final Reference Level and the Multiplier]

[(b)][(ii)] otherwise, the Nominal Amount.]

[If the settlement may be by cash settlement only and a Minimum Amount is specified, insert:

[(a)][(i)][if][If] the Final Reference Level is [equal to or] above the Strike, the Nominal Amount;

[(b)][(ii)]	otherwise,	the	Minimum
Amount.]			
otherwise, the Minimum Amount.]		ount.]	

[An amount equal to the product of (a) Final Reference Level and (b) the Multiplier.]

]

Further Definitions applicable to the Securities

[Insert as appropriate for all security types]

Relevant Dates

[First Exchange Trading Day	[insert date]]
[Final Exchange Trading Day	[<mark>insert date</mark>]]
[Exercise Date[s]	[] [<mark>Insert single date for European Style and each date for</mark> Bermudan Style. Delete for American Style]
	[The [first][last][<mark>insert_number</mark>] [Each] Business Day of each [week][calendar_month][calendar_quarter][calendar_year][<mark>insert</mark> <mark>period</mark>] during the Exercise Period]
	[(a) If a Barrier Event occurs, the Termination Date or
	(b) otherwise [<mark>insert date</mark>]]
	[(a) If a Knock In Event occurs, the Termination Date or
	(b) otherwise [<mark>insert date</mark>]]
	[(a) If a Redemption Event occurs, the Termination Date or
	(b) otherwise [<i>insert date</i>]]
	[<i>For WAVE XXL or WAVE Unlimited:</i> The Business Day following the [<i>insert number</i>] calendar day of [<i>insert month</i>] each calendar year during the Exercise Period]]
Further Information	
[Type of Exercise	[European Style] [American Style] [Bermudan Style]]
[Exercise Period	[The period from [and including] [the Value Date] [<mark>insert date</mark>] to [including] [but excluding][<i>insert date</i>][, or if either day is not a Business Day, the next following Business Day]]
	[Insert for American Style and Bermudan Style if used above.]
	[<i>For WAVE XXL or WAVE Unlimited</i> : The period commencing on [and including the Value Date].]
	[Delete for European Style and Bermudan Style if not used above.]
[Automatic Exercise	Automatic Exercise is [not] applicable]

	[NB: Automatic Exercise will always apply for Italian securities]
[Listing Type	[including Accrued Interest] [plus Accrued Interest]]
[Minimum Exercise Amount	[<i>insert amount</i>] [being the minimum number of Securities which can be traded in accordance with the Listing Rules of the market managed and organised by Borsa Italiana S.p.A.]]
	[Delete for European Style unless Securities are Italian securities]
[Integral Exercise Amount	[insert amount]]
	[Delete for European Style unless Securities are Italian securities]
[Maximum Exercise Amount	[<mark>insert amount</mark>]]
	[Delete for European Style]
[Exchange Rate	[Include where Currency Exchange applies and/or the securities are Italian securities. Otherwise delete line item]
	[]
	The Exchange Pate is determined by reference to the exchange

[The Exchange Rate is determined by reference to the exchange rate between the Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency [or between the Basket Constituent Currency and the Reference Currency or the Settlement Currency, as the case may be], [on the basis of [the WMR Spot Fixing] [] [at [*insert time*]] [([*insert place*] local time)] as published [under the [Ask] [] rate on the relevant subpage] [] for the relevant exchange rate between the Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency on the page [<0#WMSPOTI>] [] of the information provider [Thomson Reuters] [Bloomberg] [].] [[calculated by [] and] published on the page [] of the information provider [Thomson Reuters] [Bloomberg] []].]

[If the Exchange Rate is not calculated nor published as aforesaid [[by] [at] [*insert time*] [([*insert place*] local time)] []] on any day, [the Exchange Rate shall be determined by reference to the exchange rate between the Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency [or between the Basket Constituent Currency and the Reference Currency or the Settlement Currency, as the case may be], [] [on the basis of [] which is published on the page [] of the information provider [Thomson Reuters] [Bloomberg] [].]] [the Exchange Rate shall be determined by reference to the exchange rate between the Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency [or between the Basket Constituent Currency and the Reference Currency or the Settlement Currency, as the case may be], calculated by reference to such reference source(s) that the Calculation Agent deems to be reasonably appropriate.]]

[If, at the specified time, the [] is not published on the page [] of the information provider [Thomson Reuters] [Bloomberg] [] and,

	thus, the exchange rate between the Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency [or between the Basket Constituent Currency and the Reference Currency or the Settlement Currency, as the case may be,] is not published, the Exchange Rate shall be determined by reference to the exchange rate between the Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency [or between the Basket Constituent Currency and the Reference Currency or the Settlement Currency, as the case may be], calculated by reference to such reference source(s) that the Calculation Agent deems to be reasonably appropriate.]]
	[If, [at] [until] [<i>insert time</i>] [([<i>insert place</i>] local time)], [the WMR Spot Fixing] [] [under the [Ask] [] rate on the relevant subpage] [] for the relevant exchange rate between the Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency is not published on the page [<0#WMSPOTI>] [] of the information provider [Thomson Reuters] [Bloomberg] [], the Exchange Rate shall be determined by reference to the exchange rate between the Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency [or between the Basket Constituent Currency and the Reference Currency or the Settlement Currency, as the case may be], calculated by reference to such reference source(s) that the Calculation Agent deems to be reasonably appropriate.]]
[Relevant Exchange Time	[For the purposes of converting the Basket Constituent Currency into the Reference Currency: The Relevant Exchange Time for the Basket Constituent]
	Otherwise: []]
[Business Day	a day [on which the Trans-European Automated Real-time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET2) system is open,] [and] [,] [on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the Business Day Location[s] specified in the Product Terms] [and] [,] [on which each relevant Clearing Agent settles payments] [and] [<i>If physical delivery applies, insert</i> for the purposes of making any delivery of a Physical Delivery Unit, a day on which each relevant Physical Delivery Clearing System is open for the acceptance and execution of settlement instructions]. Saturday [and] [,] Sunday [and 24 December and 31 December each year] are not considered Business Days.]
[Business Day Locations	[Frankfurt am Main] [London and Frankfurt am Main] [London, Frankfurt am Main and []] []]
[Payment Day Locations	[Frankfurt am Main] [London and Frankfurt am Main] [London, Frankfurt am Main and []] []]
[Clearing Agent	[insert if different from §1(3)(k) and insert address]
[Clearing Agent	[<i>insert if different from §1(3)(k) and insert address</i>] [Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., 1 boulevard Albert II, 1210 Bruxelles, Belgium]

[For Uncertificated SIS Securities insert. SIX SIS AG, Olten Switzerland]]

[Global Security] [Italian Securities] [Portuguese Securities] [Spanish Listed Securities] [Spanish Securities (Global Security)] [Swedish Securities] [Finnish Securities] [Norwegian Securities] [French Securities] [Uncertificated SIS Securities]]

> [English law] [German law] [Italian law] [Portuguese law] [Spanish law]

- (1) If, pursuant to these Product Terms, the Settlement Currency is Chinese renminbi ("CNY"), subject to current tax or other laws and regulations and in deviation from §3(3) of the General Conditions, the Issuer will pay amounts due by means of a transfer to an account denominated in CNY and held by the recipient of the payment at a bank in Hong Kong.
- (2) §3(2) of the General Conditions does not apply in this case.
- If the Issuer is not able to make the payments due under (3) the Securities entirely in CNY because of a CNY Currency Event, the Issuer can (i) postpone these payments, (ii) make these payments in the Relevant Currency instead of in CNY or (iii) redeem the Securities early.
 - (i) Postponement of Payment. Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary, if the Issuer is not able to make the payments due under the Securities in Hong Kong in full in CNY at maturity because of a CNY Currency Event, subject to early redemption in its reasonable discretion, it may (i) postpone the relevant payment to the [insert number] Business Day after the day on which the CNY Currency Event has ceased to exist unless the CNY Currency Event persists for [insert number] consecutive calendar days after the relevant Coupon Payment Date or Settlement Date, as applicable, or (ii) make such payments on the Coupon Payment Date or the Settlement Date, as applicable, (in full or in part) in the Relevant Currency in the amount of the Relevant Currency Equivalent of the respective CNY amount.

If the Issuer decides to postpone the payment and the CNY Currency Event persists for more than [insert number] consecutive calendar days after the relevant due date, then the Issuer makes the relevant payment in the Relevant Currency in the amount of the Relevant Currency Equivalent of the respective CNY amount on the Business Day following the [insert number] calendar day after the

[Form of Securities

Governing Law

[Further settlement provisions if CNY is the Settlement Currency:

relevant Coupon Payment Date or Settlement Date, as applicable.

If the Existence of a CNY Currency Event is determined, then by 2 p.m. Hong Kong time on the Rate Determination Date, the Issuer will (i) inform the Calculation Agent and (ii) notify the Securityholders in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions of the occurrence of a CNY Currency Event and the decision of the Issuer to postpone the payments or to make the payments in the Relevant Currency. In these cases, the Issuer will arrange for this notice to be given to the Securityholders as soon as reasonably possible in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.

- (ii) Payments in the Relevant Currency. If the Issuer decides to make the payments in the Relevant Currency, then the payments will be made to the Securityholders in the Relevant Currency Equivalent of the relevant CNY amount. The obligations of the Issuer under the relevant Security in respect of this payment are deemed to be fulfilled by a payment made in accordance with this provision.
- (iii) Redemption. If the Issuer decides to redeem the Securities, the Securities will be redeemed with a notice period of not less than 10 and not more than 30 days by an (irrevocable) notice to the Securityholders in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions. The Issuer may redeem all the Securities, but not some only. The Securities are redeemed immediately after the end of the notice period. In the case of redemption, each Security will be redeemed at the Relevant Currency Equivalent of the fair market price including the Relevant Currency Equivalent of any interest accrued up to (but excluding) the date of redemption.
- (4) Unavailability of the Spot Rate If (a) the Issuer decides to make the payments in the Relevant Currency and (b) it proves impossible to obtain the Spot Rate on the Rate Determination Date, the Issuer in its reasonable discretion may (i) postpone the Rate Determination Date until the next Business Day on which the Spot Rate is available, unless the unavailability of the Spot Rate persists for [insert number] consecutive calendar days after the day which would have been the Rate Determination Date if the Spot Rate had been available ("Original Rate Determination Date") or (ii) instruct the Calculation Agent to calculate the Spot Rate taking account of all the information deemed appropriate. including price information obtained from the foreign exchange market for

CNY without physical delivery in Hong Kong or elsewhere and the Relevant Currency/CNY rate of exchange on the domestic foreign exchange market of the People's Republic of China.

If the Issuer decides to postpone the Rate Determination Date and the unavailability persists until the [*insert number*] consecutive calendar day after the Original Rate Determination Date, then (a) the Rate Determination Date is the first Business Day following the [*insert number*] consecutive calendar day after the Original Rate Determination Date and (b) the Calculation Agent determines the Spot Rate in accordance with the method explained under (ii) in the previous sentence. In the event of a postponement of the Rate Determination Date, the relevant Coupon Payment Date or the Settlement Date, as applicable, is postponed to the second Rate Determination Business Day after the Rate Determination Date.

After the Issuer has determined that the Spot Rate is unavailable on the Rate Determination Date, (i) it will immediately inform the Calculation Agent and (ii) notify the Securityholders in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions of the unavailability of the Spot Rate and the decision by the Issuer to postpone the Rate Determination Date or to instruct the Calculation Agent to determine the Spot Rate. In these cases, the Issuer will arrange for this notice to be given to the Securityholders as soon as reasonably possible in accordance with §16 of the General Conditions.

(5) For the purposes of these Product Terms, the following terms have the following meanings:

"CNY Trader" means an independent, internationally recognised foreign exchange trader who is active in the CNY exchange market in Hong Kong, as determined in each case in the reasonable discretion of the Calculation Agent.

"CNY Currency Event" means Inconvertibility, Nontransferability and Illiquidity.

"**Hong Kong**" means the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China.

"Illiquidity" means that the general CNY exchange market in Hong Kong becomes illiquid (without this being due to Inconvertibility or Non-transferability), as determined in each case by the Calculation Agent in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner following consultation with two CNY Traders and that, despite reasonable efforts, the Issuer is consequently unable to obtain sufficient CNY in order to satisfy in full its obligation to make payments under the Securities. "Inconvertibility" means that the Calculation Agent (in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner) determines that it is impossible or impracticable for it despite reasonable efforts to convert any amount due under the Securities on the general CNY exchange market in Hong Kong (other than where such impossibility is due solely to the failure of the Issuer to comply with any law, rule or regulation enacted by any Governmental Authority, unless such law, rule or regulation is enacted after the relevant Issue Date of the Securities and it is impossible or impracticable despite reasonable efforts for the Issuer, due to an event beyond its control, to comply with such a law, rule or regulation).

"Non-transferability" means that the Calculation Agent (in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner) determines that it is impossible or impracticable for it despite reasonable efforts to transfer CNY between accounts inside Hong Kong or from an account inside Hong Kong to an account outside Hong Kong (other than where such impossibility or impracticability is due solely to the failure of the Issuer to comply with any law, rule or regulation enacted by any Governmental Authority, unless such law, rule or regulation is enacted after the relevant Issue Date of the Securities and it is impossible or impracticable despite reasonable efforts for the Issuer, due to an event beyond its control, to comply with such law, rule or regulation).

"**Spot Rate**" means, in respect of a Rate Determination Date, the Relevant Currency/CNY spot exchange rate for the purchase of the Relevant Currency with CNY on the over-the-counter CNY exchange market in Hong Kong, as determined in each case by the Calculation Agent at around 11.00 a.m. Hong Kong time on such date in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

"Rate Determination Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which the commercial banks in Hong Kong, Peking [and []] are open for ordinary business (including dealings in foreign exchange).

"Rate Determination Date" means the day which, subject to an adjustment, is two Rate Determination Business Days before the Coupon Payment Date or the Settlement Date, as applicable, for payment of the relevant amount.

"Governmental Authority" means any de facto or de jure state body (or any agency or institution thereof), any court, any tribunal, any administrative or other governmental authority of Hong Kong or any other (private or public) entity (including the central bank) charged with the regulation of the financial markets of Hong Kong. "Relevant Currency Equivalent" of a CNY amount means the relevant CNY amount converted into the Relevant Currency using the Spot Rate for the relevant Rate Determination Date, as determined in each case by the Calculation Agent at around 11.00 a.m. Hong Kong time on the Rate Determination Date and in each case promptly notified to the Issuer.

(6) References. References to "Hong Kong dollar", "HKD" and "HK\$" are to the legal currency of Hong Kong, and references to "Renminbi", "RMB" and "CNY" are to the legal currency of the People's Republic of China (mainland China) excluding Hong Kong, the Macao Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China and Taiwan.]

[Renouncement Notice Cut- off time	[<mark>insert date</mark>]] [Insert for Italian securities which are certificates or warrants]	
[Separate Reference Item Determination	Separate Reference Item Determination applies] [<i>Include for baskets or where more than one underlying if applicable, otherwise delete line item</i>]	
[Correction Period	[]] [<mark>If not applicable, delete line item</mark>]	
[Averaging	Averaging applies [with regard to the following Reference Item Determinations: []].][<i>If not applicable, delete line item</i>]	
[Averaging Disruption Date	[§5(1)(b)(ii) is applicable.] []] [<mark><i>If not applicable, delete line item</i>]</mark>	
[Par Value Redemption	Par Value Redemption applies] [<i>If not applicable, delete line item</i>]	

[<mark>If Exercise Notice, Delivery Notice or Renouncement Notice is different from the form attached to the General Conditions, insert:</mark>

Form of [Exercise/Delivery/Renouncement] Notice]

[<mark>set out form</mark>]

VI. FORM OF FINAL TERMS³

Final Terms [no. [•]] dated [•]

DEUTSCHE BANK AG [LONDON BRANCH] [MILAN BRANCH] [SUCURSAL EM PORTUGAL] [SUCURSAL EN ESPAÑA]

Issue of [up to] [*insert quantity*] [*insert amount*] [*insert type*] [Certificates] [Warrants] [Notes] [*insert other marketing name if applicable*] [*if applicable, insert the following*: corresponds to product no. [*insert product no. of Base Prospectus*] in the Base Prospectus] [] [at [*insert amount*] each with an aggregate nominal amount of [up to]

[insert amount]] [per Series]

relating to [*insert Underlying*] (the "Securities")

under its [X-markets] Programme for the issuance of [Certificates] [and][,] [Warrants] [and] Notes

[Initial Issue Price: [[insert amount] [insert percentage] per

[Certificate][Warrant][Note][*insert marketing name of product if applicable*] [Security] [until the Issue Date] [(excluding)]]

[(plus subscription surcharge of [*insert amount*][*insert percentage*] [of the] [Initial Issue Price][Nominal Amount])].]

Issue Price: [[insert amount] [insert percentage] per [Certificate][Warrant][Note][insert marketing name of product if applicable] [Security]]

[(plus subscription surcharge of [[*insert amount*] [*insert percentage*] [of [the Issue Price][the initial Issue Price][Nominal Amount]]]]

[the Issue Price per [Certificate][Warrant][Note][*insert other marketing name of product if applicable*] [Security]] [(plus subscription surcharge of [[*insert amount*] [*insert percentage*] [the [Issue Price][initial Issue Price][Nominal Amount]])] will first be determined on the Issue Date and then be reset continuously.]

[On the Issue Date] [[initially] [[*insert amount*] [insert percentage] per [Certificate][Warrant][Note][*insert marketing name of product if applicable*] [Security]] [(plus subscription surcharge of [*insert amount*][*insert percentage*] of the [Issue Price][initial Issue Price][Nominal Amount]])]. [Following issuance of the Securities, the [Issue Price] [price of the Securities] will be reset continuously.]

[WKN/ISIN: [•]]

For any further issuance of Securities under this Base Prospectus or the Base Prospectus dated 24 August 2016, 25 November 2015, 27 February 2015, 20 March 2014 or 12

³ THE FINAL TERMS OF THE SECURITIES SHALL ONLY CONTAIN THE INFORMATION PERMISSIBLE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ART 22 PARA. 4 OF THE REGULATION (EC) NO 809/2004 AS AMENDED BY THE DELEGATED REGULATION OF 30 MARCH 2012 OF THE EUROPEAN COMMISSION AND THE DELEGATED REGULATION OF 4 JUNE 2012 OF THE EUROPEAN COMMISSION.

September 2013 insert. The [Certificates][Warrants][Notes] are part of a single series of Securities within the meaning of §15 of the General Conditions, i.e. they have the same WKN or ISIN and the same characteristics as previously issued securities (collectively the "Securities"). The aforementioned previously issued Securities were issued under the Final Terms [no. [•]] dated [•] (the "First Final Terms") [*In the case of further issuance of [Certificates][Warrants][Notes] insert:* [•]] [to the Base Prospectus dated [24 August 2016] [25 November 2015] [27 February 2015] [20 March 2014] [12 September 2013].]

[In case of a re-issuance of Final Terms for Securities issued under Base Prospectus dated 24 August 2016, 25 November 2015, 27 February 2015, 20 March 2014 or 12 September 2013 insert. The Issuer previously issued [Certificates][Warrants][Notes] with WKN [•] / ISIN [•] (the "Securities") under the Final Terms [no. [•]] dated [•] (the "First Final Terms") to the Base Prospectus dated [24 August 2016] [25 November 2015] [27 February 2015] [20 March 2014] [12 September 2013] as supplemented (the "First Base Prospectus"). The offer of the Securities shall be continued after the expiry of the First Final Terms.]

This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Securities described herein and comprises the following parts:

[For retail offers insert:

Overview over the Security]

Terms and Conditions (Product Terms)

Further Information about the Offering of the Securities

Issue-Specific Summary

These Final Terms have been prepared for the purposes of Article 5 (4) of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated 9 June 2017 (including the information incorporated by reference) [as amended by the [supplement] [supplements] dated [•]],(the "Base Prospectus"). Terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning given in the General Conditions set out in the Terms of the Securities. Full information on the Issuer and the Securities is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus. A summary of the individual issuance is annexed to the Final Terms.

[*In case of a publication of the Final Terms on* (www.xmarkets.db.com) insert: The Base Prospectus dated 9 June 2017, any supplements and the Final Terms, together with their translations or the translations of the Summary in the version completed and put in concrete terms by the relevant Final Terms are published according to Art. 14 (2) (c) of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended), as implemented by the relevant provisions of the EU member states, on the Issuer's website (www.xmarkets.db.com)]

[In case of a publication of the Final Terms on (www.investment-products.db.com) insert : The Base Prospectus dated 9 June 2017, any supplements together with translations of the Summary are published according to Art. 14 (2) (c) of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended), as implemented by the relevant provisions of the EU member states, on the Issuer's website (www.xmarkets.db.com) and the Final Terms together with their translations and the translations of the Summary in the version completed

and put in concrete terms by the relevant Final Terms on the Issuer's website (www.investment-products.db.com)]

and (i) in case of admission to trading of the Securities on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu), (ii) in case of admission to trading of the Securities on the Borsa Italiana, on the website of Borsa Italiana (www.borsaitaliana.it), (iii) in case of admission to trading of the Securities on the Euronext Lisbon regulated market or in case of a public offering of the Securities in Portugal, on the website of the Portuguese Securities Market Commission (*Comissão do Mercado de Valores Mobiliários*) (www.cmvm.pt), (iv) in case of admission to trading of the Securities on a Spanish stock exchange or AIAF, on the website of the Spanish Securities Market Commission (*Comisión Nacional del Mercado de Valores*) (www.cnmv.es).

In addition, the Base Prospectus dated 9 June 2017 shall be available free of charge at the registered office of the Issuer, Deutsche Bank AG [, Mainzer Landstrasse 11-17, 60329 Frankfurt am Main][,][and] [its London Branch, at Winchester House, 1 Great Winchester Street, London EC2N 2DB][,][and] [its Milan branch, Via Filippo Turati 27, 20121 Milan, Italy][,][and] [its Portuguese branch, Rua Castilho, 20, 1250-069 Lisbon, Portugal][,][and] [its Spanish branch, Paseo De La Castellana, 18, 28046 Madrid, Spain][,] [and] [its Zurich Branch, Uraniastrasse 9, PF 3604, CH-8021 Zurich, Switzerland (where it can also be ordered by telephone +41 44 227 3781 or fax +41 44 227 3084)].

[The above mentioned Base Prospectus dated 9 June 2017, under which the Securities described in these Final Terms are being issued, will cease to be valid as of [•]. From that date these Final Terms must be read together with the base prospectus for the issuance of [Certificates, Warrants and Notes] [•] in its respective current version, which succeeds the Base Prospectus dated 9 June 2017. The respective current version base prospectus for the issuance of [Certificates, Warrants and Notes] [•] will be published on the website www.xmarkets.db.com.]

[Insert Table of Contents if applicable:

Table of Contents

Overview over the Security and Terms and Conditions (Product Terms)......[]

[WKN:]

[][]	
[amend for further WKN if applicable: []]	I

Further Information about the Offering of the Securities
[]
Issue-Specific Summary[]

[]]

For retail offers, the following may be inserted at the option of the Issuer:

Overview over the Security

1. Product Description/How it works

• Product Type

[•] [Certificate] [Warrant][Note] [Reverse Convertible Note] / Bearer Note

Market Expectation

[If the Security is a Discount Certificate (Physical Delivery) (product no. 1), insert.

The [Discount Certificate] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [*insert Underlying*] will be at least [*insert Cap*] [EUR][•] [index points] at maturity.]

[If the Security is a Discount Certificate (Cash Settlement) (product no. 2), insert:

The [Discount Certificate] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will be at least [insert Cap] [EUR][•] [index points] at maturity.]

[If the Security is a Bonus Certificate (product no. 3), insert:

The [Bonus Certificate] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not [reach or] fall below [insert Barrier] [the Barrier] during the term. If the purchase price is above [insert Bonus Amount], investors have to expect the Underlying to be considerably higher than [insert Bonus Level] at maturity.]

[If the Security is a Bonus Certificate with Cap (product no. 4), insert:

The [Bonus Certificate with Cap] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not [reach or] fall below [insert Barrier] [the Barrier] during the term. [If the Bonus Amount is lower than the Maximum Amount insert. If the purchase price is above [insert Bonus Amount], investors have to expect the Underlying to be considerably higher than [insert Bonus Level] at maturity.]

[If the Security is a **Bonus Pro Certificate (product no. 5)**, insert:

The [BonusPro Certificate] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not [reach or] fall below [insert Barrier] [the Barrier] during the Observation Period. If the purchase price is above [insert Bonus Amount], investors have to expect the Underlying to be considerably higher than [insert Bonus Level] at maturity.]

[If the Security is a BonusPro Certificate with Cap (product no. 6), insert:

The [BonusPro Certificate with Cap] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not [reach or] fall below [insert Barrier] [the Barrier] during the Observation Period. [If the Bonus Amount is lower than the Maximum Amount insert: If the purchase price is above [insert Bonus Amount], investors have to expect the Underlying to be considerably higher than [insert Bonus Level] at maturity.]

[If the Security is an Easy Bonus Certificate (product no. 7), insert.

The [Easy Bonus Certificate] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not [reach or] fall below [insert Barrier] [the Barrier] at maturity. [If the purchase price is above [insert Bonus Amount], investors have to expect the Underlying to be considerably higher than [insert Bonus Level] [the Bonus Level] at maturity.]

[If the security is an Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap (product no. 8), insert.

The [Easy Bonus Certificate with Cap] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not [reach or] fall below [insert Barrier] [the Barrier] at maturity.]

[If the Security is a Reverse Bonus Certificate (product no. 9), insert.

The [Reverse Bonus Certificate] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not reach or exceed [insert Barrier] [the Barrier] during the Observation Period. If the purchase price is above [insert Bonus Amount], investors have to expect the Underlying to be considerably lower than [insert Bonus Level] at maturity.]

[If the Security is a Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap (product no. 10), insert:

The [Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not reach or exceed [insert Barrier] [the Barrier] during the Observation Period. [If the Bonus Amount is lower than the Maximum Amount insert: If the purchase price is above [insert Bonus Amount], investors have to expect the Underlying to be considerably lower than [insert Bonus Level] at maturity.]

[If the Security is a Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap (product no. 11), insert:

The [Digital Reverse Bonus Certificate with Cap] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] during the Observation Period will not [reach or] exceed [insert Barrier] [the Barrier]. [If the Bonus Amount is lower than the Maximum Amount insert: If the purchase price is above [insert Bonus Amount], investors have to expect the Underlying to be considerably lower than [the Bonus Level] at maturity.]

[If the Security is an Outperformance Certificate (product no. 12), insert:

The [Outperformance Certificate] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will have performed very positively at maturity.]

[If the Security is a **Sprint Certificate (product no. 13)**, insert:

The [*Sprint Certificate*] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [*insert Underlying*] will be [EUR][•] [index points] at maturity.]

[If the Security is a Call Warrant or a Discount Call Warrant(product no. 14), insert:

The [Discount] [Call Warrant] *[insert other marketing name, if any]* is aimed at investors who assume that the [price][level] of [the] [*insert Underlying*] will [rise] [be at least equal to the Cap at maturity].]

[If the Security is a Put Warrant or a Discount Put Warrant(product no. 15), insert:

The [Discount] [Put Warrant] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will [fall] [not exceed the Cap at maturity].]

If the Security is a WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant (product no. 16) or a WAVE (Knock Out) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index (product no. 17), insert:

The [WAVE Call Warrant] [insert in the event of an additional barrier determination: with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will rise.]

If the Security is a WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant (product no. 18) or a WAVE (Knock Out) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index (product no. 19), insert:

The [WAVE Put Warrant] [insert in the event of an additional barrier determination: with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will fall.]

[If the Security is a WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant (product no. 20) or a WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index (product no. 21), insert:

The [WAVE Unlimited Call Warrant] [insert in the event of an additional barrier determination: with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will rise.]

[If the Security is a WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant (product no. 22) or a WAVE Unlimited (Knock Out) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index (product no. 23), insert:

The [WAVE Unlimited Put Warrant] [*insert in the event of an additional barrier determination*: with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index] [*insert other marketing name, if any*] is aimed at investors who assume that the [price][level] of [the] [*insert Underlying*] will fall.]

[If the Security is a WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Call Warrant (product no. 24) or a WAVE XXL (Knock Out) Call Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index (product no. 25), insert:

The [WAVE XXL Call Warrant] [insert in the event of an additional barrier determination: with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will rise.]

[If the Security is a WAVE XXL (Knock Out Perpetual) Put Warrant (product no. 26) or a WAVE XXL (Knock Out) Put Warrant with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX[®] Index (product no. 27), insert:

The [WAVE XXL Put Warrant] [insert in the event of an additional barrier determination: with Additional Barrier Determination X-DAX® Index] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will fall.

[If the Security is a One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant (product no. 28), insert:

The [One Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [insert Reference Level: [price] [level] []] of [the] [insert Underlying] will exceed [or reach] [insert Barrier] at least once during the Observation Period.]

[If the Security is a One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant (product no. 29), insert:

The [One Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [insert Reference Level: [price] [level] []] of [the] [insert Underlying] will fall below [or reach] [insert Barrier] at least once during the Observation Period.]

[If the Security is a One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant (product no. 30), insert:

The [One Touch Dual Barrier Warrant] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [insert Reference Level: [price] [level] []] of [the] [insert Underlying] will fall below [or reach] [insert Lower Barrier] or exceed [or reach] [insert Upper Barrier] at least once during the Observation Period.]

[If the Security is a No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant (product no. 31), insert:

The [No Touch Single Barrier Call Warrant] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [insert Reference Level: [price] [level] []] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not fall below [or reach] [insert Barrier] at any time during the Observation Period.]

[If the Security is a No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant (product no. 32), insert:

The [No Touch Single Barrier Put Warrant] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [insert Reference Level: [price] [level] []] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not exceed [or reach] [insert Barrier] at any time during the Observation Period.]

[If the Security is an Inline Warrant (product no. 33), insert:

The [Inline Warrant] *[insert other marketing name, if any]* is aimed at investors who assume that the [*insert Reference Level*: [price] [level] []] of [the] [*insert Underlying*] will not fall below [or reach] [*insert Lower Barrier*] or exceed [or reach] [*insert Upper Barrier*] at any time during the Observation Period.]

[If the Security is aDuo Inline Warrant (product no. 34), insert:

The [Inline Warrant] *[insert other marketing name, if any]* is aimed at investors who assume that the [*insert Reference Level*: [price] [level] []] of [the] [*insert Underlying A*] will not fall below [or reach] [*insert Lower Barrier*] or exceed [or reach] [*insert Upper Barrier*] at any time during the Observation Period and that simultaneously the [*insert Reference Level*: [price] [level] []] of [the] [*insert Underlying B*] will not fall below [or reach] [*insert Lower Barrier*] or exceed [or reach] [*insert Upper Barrier*] at any time during the Observation Period and that simultaneously the [*insert Reference Level*: [price] [level] []] of [the] [*insert Underlying B*] will not fall below [or reach] [*insert Lower Barrier*] or exceed [or reach] [*insert Upper Barrier*] at any time during the Observation Period.]

[If the Security is a Digital Call Warrant (product no. 35), insert:

The [Digital Call Warrant] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [insert Reference Level: [price] [level] []] of [the] [insert Underlying] will [reach or] exceed [insert Barrier] on the Valuation Date.]

[If the Security is a Digital Put Warrant (product no. 36), insert:

The [Digital Put Warrant] [insert other marketing name, if any] is aimed at investors who assume that the [insert Reference Level: [price] [level] []] of [the] [insert Underlying] will [reach or] fall below [insert Barrier] on the Valuation Date.]

[If the Security is a Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant (product no. 37), insert:

The [Down and Out Put Barrier Warrant] *[insert other marketing name, if any]* may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] []] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not [reach or] fall below the Barrier at any time during the Observation Period. Additionally, investors have to expect the [price] [level] of the Underlying to be [equal to or] below the Strike on the Valuation Date.]

[If the Security is an **Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant (product no. 38)**, insert:

The [Up and Out Call Barrier Warrant] *[insert other marketing name, if any]* may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] []] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not [reach or] exceed the Barrier at any time during the Observation Period. Additionally, investors have to expect the [price] [level] of the Underlying to be [equal to or] above the Strike on the Valuation Date.]

[If the Security is a **Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) (product no. 39)** or a **Reverse Convertible Note (Cash** Settlement) (product no. 40), insert:

The [Reverse Convertible Note] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will be at least [insert Strike] at maturity.]

[If the Security is a Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Delivery) (product no. 41) or a Barrier Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) (product no. 42), insert:

The [Barrier Reverse Convertible Note] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will be at least equal to [insert Strike] at maturity or will at least not reach or fall below [insert Barrier] before or at maturity.]

[If the Security is a Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Settlement) (product no. 43) or a Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) (product no. 44), insert:

The [Barrier Pro Reverse Convertible Note] *[insert other marketing name, if any]* may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will be at least [insert Strike] at maturity or at least not reach or fall below [*insert Barrier*] during the Observation Period.]

[If the Security is an Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Physical Settlement) (product no. 45) or an Easy Reverse Convertible Note (Cash Settlement) (product no. 46), insert:

The [Easy Reverse Convertible Note] [insert other marketing name, if any] may be suitable for investors who believe that the [price][level] of [the] [insert Underlying] will not [reach or] fall below [insert Barrier] at maturity.]

General information on how the product works

<u>Product Description</u> [Insert description of the relevant Security from section "III. D. General Description of the Securities" of the Base Prospectus, leaving out terms not relevant for the Security, and/or replacing them with their defined content, as appropriate; information or product types not already set out in the Base Prospectus may not be included.]

[Insert as appropriate: The Underlying is determined in the Reference Currency; the amounts so determined will be converted into the Settlement Currency on the basis of the relevant Exchange Rate.]

[Insert as appropriate: [The [•] Certificate] [The [•] Warrant] [The [•] Note] [The [•] Reverse Convertible Note] is currency protected [at maturity], i.e. although the Underlying is determined in the Reference Currency, [the amounts so determined will be converted 1:1 into the Settlement Currency] [the Cash Amount is determined [in the Settlement Currency] without reference to the movement of the exchange rate [between the Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency] [based on the performance of the Underlying only]][the number of underlyings or assets specified as the Physical Delivery Amount to be delivered so determined and any Adjustment Amounts will be converted without reference to the movement of the exchange rate between the Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency during the term] [insert as appropriate corresponding wording for baskets] (quanto).]

[Insert as appropriate: The determination of [the Initial Reference Level] [and] [the Final Reference Level] is based on the arithmetic average of the [prices] [levels] of the Underlying on [the Initial Valuation Dates] [and] [the Valuation Dates] [respectively].

[Insert as appropriate: During the term investors will not receive any current income, such as interest.]

[[Likewise, investors] [Investors] are not entitled to assert any claims [in respect of the [Underlying] [Basket Constituents]] [deriving from the [Underlying] [Basket Constituents]] [(e.g. voting rights[, dividends])].]

]

For a description of issue-specific risks see section "II. Risk Factors" of the Base Prospectus and elements D.2 and D.6 of the issue-specific summary attached to the Final Terms.

3. Availability

2. Risks

Tradability

Following the Issue Date, the [[•] Certificate] [[•] Warrant] [[•] Note] [[•] Reverse Convertible Note] may generally be purchased or sold [on exchange or] off-exchange.

[Under normal market conditions the Issuer will continuously provide indicative (non-binding) bid and ask prices for the [within the Expected bid-offer spread] (market making) [[•] *Certificate*] [[•] *Warrant*] [[•] *Note*] [[•] Reverse Convertible Note] under. However, the Issuer is under no legal obligation to do so. In extraordinary market situations or in the case of technical disruptions, it may be temporarily difficult or impossible to buy or sell the [[•] Certificate] [[•] Warrant] [[•] Note] [[•] Reverse Convertible Note].]

· Factors determining the market price during the term

In particular, the following factors may adversely affect the price of the [[•] Certificate] [[•] Warrant] [[•] Note][[•] Reverse Convertible Note]:

- [the [price] [level] of the Underlying [falls] [rises]]
- [[normally] an [decrease] [increase] in the volatility (key figure for the frequency and intensity of the anticipated fluctuations of the [price] [level] of the Underlying)]
- [a [fall] [rise] in the general interest rates]
- [the difference in interest rates between the currency of the [[•] Certificate] [[•] Warrant] [[•] Note][[•] Reverse Convertible Note] and the currency of the Underlying [rises] [falls]]
- [the expectation regarding future dividends [raises] [falls]]
- [a deterioration of Issuer's creditworthiness]
- [additional relevant factors]

Conversely, the factors may also increase the price of the [[•] Certificate] [[•] Warrant] [[•] Note][[•] Reverse Convertible Note]. Individual factors may reinforce or offset each other.

For a description of the risks in respect of market price determining factors during the term see section "3. Market price determining factors" under "II.D. Risk Factors Relating to the Market Generally" in the Base Prospectus.

4. Costs/Distribution Fees

Determination of the price by the Issuer

Both the initial Issue Price of the [[•] Certificate] [[•] Warrant] [[•] Note] [[•] Reverse Convertible Note] and the bid and ask prices quoted by the Issuer during its term are based on the Issuer's internal pricing models. Accordingly, unlike in an on exchange trading, for example for shares, the prices quoted during the term are not based on supply and demand. The prices in particular contain a margin which the Issuer determines at its free discretion and which may cover, in addition to the Issuer's proceeds, the structuring costs of the [[•] Certificate] [[•] Warrant] [[•] Note] [[•] Reverse Convertible Note], any applicable sales cots (distribution fee) and other costs.

[Purchase costs

• [The transaction between an investor and its bank (principal bank) is agreed at a fixed or determinable price (fixed price transaction). This price includes all purchase costs and generally a fee for the bank (principal bank).]

[Where a fixed or determinable price has been agreed for a transaction between an investor and its bank (principal bank) (fixed price transaction), this price includes all purchase costs and generally a fee for the bank (principal bank). Otherwise, the transaction will be concluded on behalf of the bank (principal bank) with a third party for the account of the investor (commission transaction). [The fee for this transaction comprises (a) a transaction fee of between EUR [2.00] [*insert amount*] and EUR [29.00][*insert amount*] and (b) an additional fee in the amount of up to [1][*insert amount*] per cent of the purchase price. Depending on the securities account model used, the additional fee (b) may be set at a minimum of between EUR [15.00] [*insert amount*] and EUR [99.00] [*insert amount*] for each transaction; this only covers the additional fee, not the transaction fee under (a).] [Depending on the securities account model used by the investor's bank (principal bank) the fees for the commission transaction may be agreed for example as a percentage of the purchase price, if applicable with a minimum fee and/or maximum fee per transaction or as a fixed fee which applies independent from any transaction for a predetermined period (monthly, quarterly etc.).] The fees for commission transactions as well as third-party costs and expenses will be stated separately in the securities statement.]

[In addition to the [[Initial] Issue Price][Nominal Amount], the bank (principal bank) will receive a subscription surcharge of up to [1.50] per cent of the [Nominal Amount][[Initial] Issue Price] from the investor as part of the purchase price.]]

Running costs

- [Management fees: []]
- Investors will incur costs in the amount agreed with the safekeeping bank (principal bank) for the custody of the
 [[•] Certificate] [[•] Warrant] [[•] Note] [[•] Reverse Convertible Note] in the investor's securities account (custody
 charges).Further post-purchase costs (e.g. costs of sale) may be incurred.

[Distribution fee

[addition to the [Initial] Issue Price, the bank (principal bank) will receive a subscription surcharge of [up to] [*insert amount*] [1] per cent of the [[Initial] Issue Price][Nominal Amount] from the investor as part of the purchase price.]
 [Placement fee: [up to] [1.50] [*insert amount*] per cent of the [[Initial] Issue Price] [purchase price] []. The Issuer will either pay the placement fee from the issue proceeds as a one-off turnover-related distribution fee to the bank that sold the [[•] Certificate] [[•] Warrant] [[•] Note] [[•] Reverse Convertible Note] to the customer (principal bank),

or grant the latter a corresponding discount from the [[Initial] Issue Price] [purchase price].] [The bank (principal bank) will receive from the Issuer] as [a][an] [running / annual] distribution fee:] [up to] [*insert amount*][per cent] [EUR] [] of the [current price] [purchase price] [[calculated on the basis of the price per [[•] Certificate] [[•] Warrant] [[•] Note] [[•] Reverse Convertible Note] at the end of [*insert month*] every year][]]. [If the principal bank is the Issuer, the distribution fee will be credited internally to the unit managing the (custody) account.]]

1

Terms and Conditions

[The following "**Product Terms**" of the Securities shall, for the relevant series of Securities, complete and put in concrete terms the General Conditions for the purposes of such series of Securities. The Product Terms and General Conditions together constitute the "**Terms and Conditions**" of the relevant Securities.]

[The following "**Product Terms**" of the Securities describe the contents of the relevant Product Terms of the Securities, which complete and put in concrete terms the General Conditions for the relevant series of Securities for the purposes of such series of Securities.

[Insert product-specific Product Terms as contained in "V. Product Terms", comprising, as applicable, the sections

- "General Definitions Applicable to the Securities",
- "General Definitions applicable to Certificates" supported, where applicable, by the product-specific definitions,
- "General Definitions applicable to Warrants" supported, where applicable, by the product-specific definitions,
- "General Definitions applicable to Notes" supported, where applicable, by the productspecific definitions,
- "Additional Definitions applicable to the Securities"

each as completed for the specific issue and assigned corresponding to the sub-headings]

Further Information about the Offering of the Securities

LISTING AND TRADING

Listing and Trading

[Application [has been] [will be] made to list the Securities on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to list them on the [Regulated market] [Euro MTF] of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, which is [not] a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC].

[Application [has been] [will be] made to [admit to trading] [include in trading] [list] [and quote] the Securities on the [regulated] [] [market] [*Freiverkehr*] of the [[Frankfurt] [Stuttgart] [Spanish] [] Stock Exchange] [Borsa Italiana] [NYSE Euronext Lisbon] [AIAF Fixed Income Securities Market][, which is [not] a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC] [*insert all relevant regulated markets*].

[Application [has been] [will be] made to [admit to trading] [include in trading] [list] [and quote] [each Series of the] [the] [Securities] on [*insert all relevant regulated markets*], which [is] [are] [not] a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC]. [The Securities have been [listed] [admitted to trading] [included in trading] on the [regulated] [] market of the [] Stock Exchange [*insert all relevant regulated markets*], which [is] [are] [not] [a] regulated market[s] for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC.]

[Application will be made to list the *Securities* on the SIX Swiss Exchange. Application has been made for the Securities to be admitted to trading on SIX Sructured Products] [with effect from []].]

[No application has been made to admit the Securities to the regulated market of any exchange.]

[][Not applicable]

[][Not applicable]

[] Securities, being the number of Securities which can be traded in accordance with the Listing Rules of the market managed and

Minimum Trade Size

Estimate of total expenses related to admission to trading

[In case of admission of the Securities to the SeDeX market of the Borsa Italiana, insert: Minimum Trade Size

organised by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. ("*Regolamento di Borsa*")]

Investor minimum subscription amount	[][Not applicable]
Investor maximum subscription amount	[][Not applicable]
[The Subscription Period]	[Applications to subscribe for the Securities may be made [over the distribution agent[s]] from [] [(inclusively)] until [] [inclusively].]
	[The Issuer reserves the right for any reason to reduce the number of [each Series of] Securities offered.]
[The Offering Period]	[The offer of [each Series of] the Securities starts on [] [and ends on []].]
	[Continuous offer]
	[The Issuer reserves the right for any reason to reduce the number of [each Series of] Securities offered.]
[Offer Price]	[The Offer Price will be determined according to the respective market conditions.]
Cancellation of the Issuance of the Securities	[Not applicable]
	[The Issuer reserves the right for any reason to cancel the issuance of the Securities.]
	[In particular, the issuance of the Securities is conditional, amongst other matters, on the Issuer receiving valid subscriptions for Securities amounting to an aggregate subscription value of at least [] on or prior to []. In the event that this condition is not satisfied, the Issuer may cancel the issuance of the Securities as of [].]
[Early Closing of the Subscription Period of	[[Not applicable]
the Securities]	[The Issuer reserves the right for any reason to close the Subscription Period early.] [If the aggregate subscription of the Securities at any time on any Business Day prior to [] reaches [], the Issuer will close the subscription of the Securities at such time on such Business Day, without any prior notification.]]
[Early Closing of the Offering Period of the Securities]	[[Not applicable]

[The Issuer reserves the right for any reason to close the Offering Period early.]]

Conditions to which the offer is subject:

Description of the application process:⁴

Description of possibility to reduce subscriptions and manner for refunding excess amount paid by applicants:⁵

Details of the method and time limits for paying up and delivering the Securities:

Manner in and date on which results of the offer are to be made public:⁶

Procedure for exercise of any right of preemption, negotiability of subscription rights and treatment of subscription rights not exercised:

Categories of potential investors to which the Securities are offered and whether tranche(s) have been reserved for certain countries:⁷

[][Not applicable]

[][Not applicable]

[][Not applicable]

[Not applicable] [Investors will be notified by the Issuer [or the relevant financial intermediary] of their allocations of Securities and the settlement arrangements in respect thereof. [Each Series of the] [The] Securities will be issued on the Issue Date and the Securities will be delivered on the Value Date against payment to the Issuer of the net subscription price.]

[][Not applicable]

[][Not applicable]

[Qualified investors within the meaning of the Prospectus Directive] [Non-qualified investors][Qualified investors within the meaning of the Prospectus Directive and nonqualified investors]

[The Offer may be made in [Luxembourg][,] [and] [Belgium][,] [and] [Denmark][,] [and] [Finland][,] [and] [France][,] [and] [Ireland][,] [and] [Italy][,] [and] [Germany][,] [and] [Norway][,] [and] [the Netherlands][,] [and] [Austria][,] [and] [Poland] [,] [and] [Portugal][,] [and] [Sweden][,] [and] [the Kingdom of Spain[,] [and] [the Czech Republic][,] [and] [the United Kingdom] [and []] to any person which complies with all other requirements for investment as set out in the Base Prospectus or otherwise determined by the Issuer and/or the relevant financial intermediaries]. In other EEA countries, offers will only be made pursuant to an exemption under the

⁴ NOT APPLICABLE UNLESS FULL APPLICATION PROCESS IS APPLIED IN RELATION TO THE ISSUE.

⁵ NOT APPLICABLE UNLESS FULL APPLICATION PROCESS IS APPLIED IN RELATION TO THE ISSUE.

⁶ NOT APPLICABLE UNLESS THE ISSUE AN "UP TO" ISSUE WHEN DISCLOSURE MUST BE INCLUDED.

⁷ IF THE OFFER IS BEING MADE SIMULTANEOUSLY IN THE MARKETS OF TWO OR MORE COUNTRIES, AND IF A TRANCHE HAS BEEN OR IS BEING RESERVED FOR CERTAIN OF THESE, INDICATE ANY SUCH TRANCHE.

Prospectus Directive as implemented in such jurisdictions.]

Process for notification to applicants of the amount allotted and the indication whether dealing may begin before notification is made:

Amount of any expenses and taxes specifically charged to the subscriber or purchaser:

Name(s) and address(es), to the extent known to the Issuer, of the placers in the various countries where the offer takes place.

Consent to use of Prospectus:

[][Not applicable]

[][Not applicable]

[][Not applicable as at the date of these Final Terms]

[The Issuer consents to the use of the Prospectus by all financial intermediaries (general consent).]

[General consent to the later resale and final placement of the Securities by the financial intermediar[y][ies] is given in relation to [Austria][,] [and] [Belgium][,] [and] [Denmark][,] [and] [Finland][,] [and] [France][,] [Germany][,] [and] [Ireland][,] [and] [Italy][,] [and] [Luxembourg][,] [and] [the Netherlands][,] [and] [Norway][,] [and] [the Netherlands][,] [and] [Norway][,] [and] [Poland] [,] [and] [Portugal][,] [and] [the Kingdom of Spain][,] [and] [Sweden][,] [and] [the Czech Republic][,] [and] [the United Kingdom].]

[The Issuer consents to the use of the Prospectus by the following financial intermediaries (individual consent): [*insert name*[s] and address[es].]

[Individual consent to the later resale and final placement of the Securities by the financial intermediar[y][ies] is given in relation to [Austria][,] [and] [Belgium][,] [and] [Denmark][,] [and] [Finland][,] [and] [France][,] [and] [Germany][,] [and] [Ireland][,] [and] [Italy][,] [Luxembourg][,] [and] [and] [the Netherlands][,] [and] [Norway][,] [and] [Poland] [,] [and] [Portugal][,] [and] [the Kingdom of Spain][,] [and] [Sweden][,] [and] [the Czech Republic][,] [and] [the United Kingdom] and for [insert name[s] and address[es]] [and [give details]].]

[Such consent is also subject to [].]

The subsequent resale or final placement of Securities by financial intermediaries can be made [as long as this Prospectus is valid in

accordance with Article 9 of the Prospectus Directive] [•].]

FEES

[Margin included in the Issue Price of the []] Securities (for pricing, the margin will be deducted throughout the term and is equal to the sum of the fees paid by the Issuer to the distributors, the issuer margin and the Subscription Surcharge; further information included under II. E. 5 and 7):

Fees paid by the Issuer to the distributor

[Trailer Fee⁸

[Placement Fee

[][Not applicable]

[[up to] [] [[]per cent. of the [relevant [price] [purchase price]] [[Initial][initial] Issue Price (without subscription surcharge)]]] [not applicable]]

[[up to] [] [[]per cent. of the [[Initial] [initial] Issue Price (without subscription surcharge)] [relevant [price] [purchase price]]]

[During the Subscription Period [[up to] [] [[]per cent. of the [[Initial] [initial] Issue Price (without subscription surcharge) and after the end of the Subscription Period [up to] [] [[]per cent. of the current selling price (without subscription surcharge)]

[not applicable]]

[][Not applicable]

[Fees charged by the Issuer to the Securityholders post issuance

SECURITY RATINGS

Rating

[] [This credit rating has] [These credit ratings have] been issued by [insert full name of the legal entity which has given the rating]. [insert full name of legal entity which has given the rating] [is not established in the European Union but a European Union affiliate has applied for registration under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 September 2009 on

⁸

THE ISSUER MAY PAY PLACEMENT AND TRAILER FEES AS SALES-RELATED COMMISSIONS TO THE RELEVANT DISTRIBUTOR(S). ALTERNATIVELY, THE ISSUER CAN GRANT THE RELEVANT DISTRIBUTOR(S) AN APPROPRIATE DISCOUNT ON THE ISSUE PRICE (WITHOUT SUBSCRIPTION SURCHARGE). TRAILER FEES MAY BE PAID FROM ANY MANAGEMENT FEE REFERRED TO IN THE PRODUCT TERMS ON A RECURRING BASIS BASED ON THE UNDERLYING. IF DEUTSCHE BANK AG IS BOTH THE ISSUER AND THE DISTRIBUTOR WITH RESPECT TO THE SALE OF ITS OWN SECURITIES, DEUTSCHE BANK'S DISTRIBUTING UNIT WILL BE CREDITED WITH THE RELEVANT AMOUNTS INTERNALLY. FURTHER INFORMATION ON PRICES AND PRICE COMPONENTS IS INCLUDED IN PART II (RISK FACTORS) IN THE BASE PROSPECTUS – SECTION E "CONFLICTS OF INTEREST" UNDER ITEMS 5 AND 6.

credit rating agencies, amended by Regulation No. 513/2011 of the European (EC) Parliament and of the Council of 11 May 2011, indicating the intention to issue ratings, although notification of the corresponding registration decision (including the decision to endorse ratings which were issued by []) has not yet been provided by the relevant competent authority.] [is established in the European Union and has applied for registration under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 September 2009 on credit rating agencies, amended by Regulation (EC) No. 513/2011 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 May 2011, although notification of the registration decision has not yet been provided by the relevant competent authority.] [[is][is not] established in the European Union and [is][is not] registered [(pursuant to the list of registered and certified credit rating agencies published on the website of the European Securities and Markets Authority (http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/Listregistered-and-certified-CRAs)] under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 of the

Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 September 2009 on credit rating agencies, amended by Regulation (EC) No. 513/2011 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 May 2011.]]

[The Securities have not been rated.]

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE

Interests of Natural and Legal Persons involved in the Issue

[REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES]

[Reasons for offer

[[Save for the Distributor[s] regarding the fees as set out under "Fees" above], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the issue of the Securities has an interest material to the offer][]

[]]

(See "Reasons for the Offer, Use of Proceeds, Estimated Net Proceeds and Total Expenses" wording in the Base Prospectus – if reasons for offer different from making profit and/or hedging certain risks will need to include those

reasons here and in this case the following two items also required)

[Estimated net proceeds []] (If proceeds are intended for more than one use will need to split out and present in order of priority. If proceeds insufficient to fund all proposed uses state amount and sources of other funding) [Estimated total expenses []] (Expenses are required to be broken down into each principal intended to "use" and presented in order of priority of such "uses") **[PUBLICATION OF NOTICES** Publication of notices Notices will, in deviation from §16(1)(b) of the General Conditions, be published on the website www.investment-products.db.com.] **[RANKING OF THE SECURITIES** Ranking of the Securities The Issuer believes that the Securities [will] fall within the scope of Sec 46f (7) of the German Banking Act (Kreditwesengesetz, "KWG") and [will] constitute Preferred Senior Obligations as described in *[insert reference to relevant* section in base prospectus] [chapter "III. General Information on the Programme" section "C. General Description of the Programme" under "Ranking of Securities"]. However, investors should note that in a German insolvency proceeding or in the event of the imposition of resolution measures with respect to the Issuer, the competent resolution authority or court would determine whether unsecured and unsubordinated Securities issued under the Programme qualify as Preferred Senior Obligations or as Non-Preferred Senior Obligations.]

[U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations

[The Securities are [not] 871(m) Securities for purposes of Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986.] [Based on market conditions on the date of these Final Terms, the Issuer has made a preliminary determination that the Securities are [not] 871(m) Securities for purposes of Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986. This is a preliminary determination only

that is subject to change based on market conditions on the Issue Date. [If the Issuer's final determination is different then it will give notice of such determination.]]]

INFORMATION RELATING TO THE UNDERLYING

[Information on [the] [each] Underlying, on the past and future performance of the Underlying and its volatility [can be obtained] [on the public website on www.[maxblue.de] []] [and on the [Bloomberg] [or] [Reuters] page as provided for each security or item composing the Underlying.] [*If no public information exists, insert:* is available at the offices of [*insert address/telephone number*].]

[In case of admission of the Securities to the SeDeX market of the Borsa Italiana, insert: The information regarding the Underlying is publicly available in the major Italian domestic newspapers (e.g., "II Sole 24 Ore" and/or "*MF*") as well as international financial newspapers (e.g., "*The Financial Times*" and/or "*The Wall Street Journal Europe*").]

[In case of listing of the *Securities* on the *SIX Swiss Exchange*, insert the information on the *Underlying* required by section 4 of scheme F of the *SIX Swiss Exchange* and the tax information required by section 3.2.12 of scheme F, to the extent such information is not already included elsewhere in the *Final Terms*.]

[<mark>If the underlying is an index or basket of indices which is/are **not** composed by Deutsche Bank or a legal entity belonging to Deutsche Bank Group, insert:</mark>

Information on the Underlying, on the past and future performance of the Underlying and its volatility can be obtained [on the public website on www.[maxblue.de] []] [on the [Bloomberg] [or] [Reuters] page as provided for the, or each, index, as the case may be, composing the Underlying under "Underlying" in the Product Terms above].

The sponsor of the, or each, index composing the Underlying also maintains an Internet Site at the following address where further information may be available in respect of the Underlying (including a description of the essential characteristics of the index, comprising, as applicable, the type of index, the method and formulas of calculation, a description of the individual selection process of the index components and the adjustment rules).

[Name of Index Sponsor] [Website]

[Insert relevant disclaimer for each index]

[If the underlying is an index or basket of indices which is/are composed by Deutsche Bank or a legal entity belonging to Deutsche Bank Group, insert for each issue the relevant index description[s] as included in this Base Prospectus by supplement: []]]

Further Information Published by the Issuer

[The Issuer does not intend to provide any further information on the Underlying].] [The Issuer will provide further information relating to the Underlying on [*insert source*] [and update the information on an ongoing basis following issuance of the Securities]. Such information will include [*describe information*].]

[COUNTRY SPECIFIC INFORMATION:

[Insert applicable country]

[Additional information relating to Belgian law: In respect of public offers of Securities in Belgium, the Issuer could be required to comply with the provisions of the Belgian Code of Economic Law, especially the provisions on unfair terms in the application of the terms and conditions as set out in the Base Prospectus and the relevant Final Terms relating to such Securities in Belgium, insofar as these provisions are applicable. In this respect, every significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy relating to the information included in the Base Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment of the Securities and which arises or is noted between the time when the Base Prospectus is approved and the final closing of the offer of the Securities to the public or, as the case may be, the time when trading of the Securities on a regulated market begins, shall be mentioned in a supplement to the Base Prospectus.]

Agent in [<mark>insert</mark> applicable country]

[*If Germany is applicable country insert*: The Agent in Germany is Deutsche Bank AG. The Agent acts through [its principal office in Frankfurt am Main] [being as at the Issue Date at the following address:] [Taunusanlage 12, 60325 Frankfurt am Main, Germany] [and] [its branch office in London], [being as at the Issue Date at the following address:] [Winchester House 1, Great Winchester Street, London EC2N 2DB, United Kingdom].]

[*If Austria is applicable country insert*: The Agent in Austria is Deutsche Bank AG acting through its branch in Vienna, being as at the Issue Date at the following address: Fleischmarkt 1, 1010 Vienna, Austria.]

[*If Luxembourg is applicable country insert*: The Agent in Luxembourg is Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A., acting through its Luxembourg branch, being as at the Issue Date at the following address: 2 Boulevard Konrad Adenauer, L-1115 Luxembourg, Luxembourg.]

[*If Italy is applicable country insert*: The Agent in Italy is Deutsche Bank S.p.A., acting through its principal office in Milan, being as at the Issue Date at the following address: Piazza del Calendario, 3-20126 Milan, Italy.]

[*If Belgium is applicable country insert*: The Agent in Belgium is Deutsche Bank AG, acting through its branch in Brussels, being as at the Issue Date at the following address: Avenue Marnixlaan 17, 1000 Brussels, Belgium.]

[If Securities are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange or are specified in the Product Terms to be Uncertificated SIS Securities insert: The Agent is Deutsche Bank AG, acting through its Zurich branch, being as at the Issue Date at the following address: Uraniastrasse 9, Postfach 3604, 8021 Zurich, Switzerland.]

[Insert information for other countries: []]

Annex to the Final Terms

Issue-Specific Summary

[Please insert, leaving out design options and terms not relevant for the Security, and/or replacing them with their defined content, the completed issue-specific summary of the Security, where the issue-specific summary shall only contain the information and options permissible in accordance with Art 24 para. 3 of the Regulation (EC) No 809/2004 as amended by the Delegated Regulation of 30 March 2012 of the European Commission and the Delegated Regulation of 4 June 2012 of the European Commission and the Delegated Regulation.]

VII. FINAL TERMS FOR THE CONTINUATION OF THE PUBLIC OFFER

For the purpose of the continuation of the public offer of Securities issued under the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 24 August 2016 the Form of Final Terms mentioned on page 134 of this Base Prospectus is incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus dated 9 June 2017 (see part "III. G. Information incorporated by reference").

The ISINs listed in the table contained in part "X. Continued Offers" of this Base Prospectus relate to Final Terms under the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 24 August 2016, which precedes this Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 9 June 2017 and ceases to be valid as of 24 August 2017. From that date the Final Terms under the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 24 August 2016 must be read together with the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 24 August 2016 must be read together with the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 9 June 2017, which succeeds the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 24 August 2016 must be read together with the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 24 August 2016 must be read together with the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 24 August 2016 must be read together with the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 24 August 2016 must be read together with the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 24 August 2016 must be read together with the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 24 August 2016 must be read together with the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 24 August 2016.

The Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 24 August 2016 and the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes of Deutsche Bank AG dated 9 June 2017 are published in electronic form on the website of the Issuer (https://www.xmarkets.db.com/DE/ENG/BaseProspectus) under section "Base Prospectuses" and are available free of charge at the registered office of the Issuer, Deutsche Bank AG, Mainzer Landstrasse 11-17, 60329 Frankfurt am Main.

The Final Terms for the ISINs listed in the table contained in part "X. Continued Offers" of this Base Prospectus are published in electronic form on the website of the Issuer (www.xmarkets.db.com) as part of the information about the relevant Securities and are available free of charge at the registered office of the Issuer, Deutsche Bank AG, Mainzer Landstrasse 11-17, 60329 Frankfurt am Main.

VIII. GENERAL INFORMATION ON TAXATION AND SELLING RESTRICTIONS

A. GENERAL TAXATION INFORMATION

1. Introduction

Purchasers and/or sellers of Securities may be required to pay stamp taxes and other charges in accordance with the laws and practices of the country of transfer of the Securities in addition to the issue price or purchase price of the Securities. The Issuer assumes no responsibility for withholding taxes at source.

Transactions involving the Securities (including purchases, transfers, exercise or non-exercise or redemption, the accrual or receipt of any interest payable on the Securities and the death of a holder of any Securities) may have tax consequences for holders and potential purchasers which may depend, amongst other things, upon the tax status of the holder or potential purchaser and may relate to – amongst other taxes and duties – stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax, income tax, corporation tax, trade tax, capital gains tax, withholding tax, solidarity surcharge and inheritance tax.

§10 (Taxation) in the General Conditions should be considered carefully by all potential purchasers of any Securities.

Potential purchasers of Securities are advised to consult their own tax advisors as to the tax consequences of transactions involving the Securities.

2. US withholding tax pursuant to section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code

Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and the provisions issued thereunder stipulate that for certain financial instruments (such as for Securities) a withholding tax (of up to 30% and potentially subject to the application of double taxation treaties) shall be imposed if the payment (or amount deemed a payment) on the financial instruments is contingent upon, or determined by reference to, the payment of a dividend from sources within the United States.

Pursuant to these U.S. provisions, certain payments (or amounts deemed payments) under certain equity-linked instruments that refer to the performance of U.S. equities or certain indices that contain U.S. equities, as an underlying or a basket component, shall be treated as "dividend equivalents" and shall be subject to U.S. withholding tax of 30% (or, potentially, a lower double tax treaty rate). The aforementioned tax liability shall apply even if pursuant to the terms of the Securities no actual dividend-related amount is paid or an adjustment is made and thus investors may only be able to determine with difficulty or not at all any connection between the dividend related amount and the payments to be made in respect of the securities.

It is thus possible that withholding under Section 871(m) may apply to the Securities (making such a Security an "871(m) Security"), particularly if an underlying reference security makes payments of dividends from sources within the United States. In such case U.S. withholding tax may be due, pursuant to the relevant U.S. provisions, on payments (or amounts deemed payments) made in respect of Securities issued (or whose features have changed significantly) on or after 1 January 2017 (however, the implementation rules issued for the U.S. provisions stipulate that the tax liability will be phased in, not commencing until 1 January 2018 for some securities).

With respect to Securities that provide for net dividend reinvestment in respect of either an underlying U.S. security or an index that includes U.S. securities, all payments on the Securities that reference such U.S. securities or an index that includes U.S. securities are calculated by reference to dividends on such U.S. securities that are reinvested at a rate of 70%. In calculating the relevant payment amount, the holder will be deemed to receive, and the Issuer will be deemed to withhold, 30% of any dividend equivalent payments (as defined in Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986) in respect of the relevant U.S. securities. The Issuer will not pay any additional amounts to the holder on account of the Section 871(m) amount deemed withheld.

The applicable Final Terms may indicate whether the Issuer has determined that Securities are 871(m) Securities. If an amount of interest, principal or other payments on the Securities is deducted

or withheld, neither the Issuer nor any paying agent or other person pursuant to the terms of the Securities would be obliged to pay additional amounts to Securityholders as a result of the deduction or withholding, in which case Securityholders would thus potentially receive less interest or principal than expected. In the worst case, the payments to be made in respect of the Security would be reduced to zero or the amount of tax due may even exceed the payments to be made in respect of the Security (for example, if the securities were to expire worthless and no payment was made to investors).

3. Czech Republic

The information set out below is of a general nature and relates only to certain principal Czech withholding tax considerations. Accordingly, it does not deal with any other Czech tax consequences of acquiring, holding or disposing of Securities, which may be relevant to a decision to purchase Securities, and is not intended to be, nor should it be regarded as, legal or tax advice. Prospective holders of Securities should seek, in the light of their individual situation, their own professional advice as to the consequences of acquiring, holding or disposing of Securities in all relevant jurisdictions. The information is based on the tax laws of the Czech Republic as in effect on the date of this Base Prospectus and their prevailing interpretations available on or before such date. All of the foregoing is subject to change, which could apply retroactively and could affect the continued validity of this summary.

Withholding tax

All interest and other payments to be made by an Issuer under the Securities may be made free of withholding on account of any taxes imposed by the Czech Republic.

Securing tax

In general, Czech tax residents (or Czech permanent establishments of Czech tax non-residents) acquiring investment instruments are required, under their own responsibility, to withhold and to remit to Czech tax authorities a 1 per cent. securing tax from the purchase price when purchasing investment instruments, such as the Securities, from a seller who is resident for tax purposes outside the European Union or the European Economic Area. Such obligation can be eliminated under a tax treaty concluded between the Czech Republic and the country in which the seller is a tax resident. Furthermore, it can be waived in advance based on a decision of Czech tax authorities.

4. Luxembourg

The following information is based on the laws presently in force in Luxembourg, though it is not intended to be, nor should it be construed to be, legal or tax advice. The information contained within this section is limited to Luxembourg withholding tax issues and prospective investors in the Securities should therefore consult their own professional advisers as to the effects of state, local or foreign laws, including Luxembourg tax law, to which they may be subject.

Please be aware that the residence concept used under the respective headings below applies for Luxembourg income tax assessment purposes only. Any reference in the present section to a withholding tax or a tax of a similar nature, or to any other concepts, refers to Luxembourg tax law and/or concepts only.

1.1 Non-resident Holders of Securities

Under Luxembourg general tax laws currently in force, there is no withholding tax on payments of principal, premium or interest made to non-resident holders of Securities, nor on accrued but unpaid interest in respect of the Securities, nor is any Luxembourg withholding tax payable upon redemption or repurchase of the Securities held by non-resident holders of Securities.

1.2 Resident Holders of Securities

Under Luxembourg general tax laws currently in force and subject to the law of 23 December 2005, as amended (the "**Relibi Law**"), there is no withholding tax on payments of principal, premium or interest made to Luxembourg resident holders of Securities, nor on accrued but unpaid interest in respect of Securities, nor is any Luxembourg withholding tax payable upon redemption or repurchase of Securities held by Luxembourg resident holders of Securities.

However, under the Relibi Law payments of interest or similar income made or ascribed by a paying agent established in Luxembourg to an individual beneficial owner who is resident of Luxembourg will be subject to a withholding tax of 20 per cent.

Such withholding tax will be in full discharge of income tax if the beneficial owner is an individual acting in the course of the management of his/her private wealth. Responsibility for the withholding of the tax will be assumed by the Luxembourg paying agent. Payments of interest under the Securities coming within the scope of the Relibi Law will be subject to withholding tax of 20 per cent.

5. Germany

The following is a general discussion of certain German tax consequences of the acquisition, holding and disposal of Securities. It does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all tax considerations that may be relevant to a decision to purchase Securities, and, in particular, does not consider any specific facts or circumstances that may apply to a particular purchaser. This summary is based on the laws of Germany currently in force and as applied on the date of this Base Prospectus, which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive or retrospective effect.

As each series or tranche of Securities may be subject to a different tax treatment due to the specific terms of such series or tranche as set out in the respective Final Terms, the following section only provides some general information on the possible tax treatment. Tax consequences that may arise if an investor combines certain series of Securities so that he or she derives a certain return are not discussed herein.

The law as currently in effect provides for a reduced tax rate for certain investment income. There is an on-going discussion in Germany whether the reduced tax rate should be increased or abolished altogether so that investment income would be taxed at regular rates. It is still unclear, whether, how and when the current discussion may result in any legislative change.

Prospective purchasers of the Securities are advised to consult their own tax advisors as to the tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of the Securities, including the effect of any state, local or church taxes, under the tax laws of Germany and each country of which they are residents or otherwise subject to tax or whose tax laws apply to them for other reasons.

Resident

The section "Tax Residents" refers to persons who are tax residents of Germany (*i.e.* persons whose residence, habitual abode, statutory seat, or place of effective management and control is located in Germany). "Individual Securityholder" means an individual that is considered the owner of a Security for German tax purposes and whose Security forms part of his or her non-business assets (*Privatvermögen*).

Withholding tax on ongoing payments and capital gains

Ongoing payments received by an Individual Securityholder will be subject to German withholding tax (*Abgeltungsteuer*) if the Securities are kept or administered in a custodial account with a German branch of a German or non-German bank or financial services institution, a German securities trading company or a German securities trading bank (each, a **Disbursing Agent**, *auszahlende Stelle*). The tax rate is 25 per cent. (plus solidarity surcharge at a rate of 5.5 per cent. thereon, the total withholding being 26.375 per cent.). If the Individual Securityholder is subject to church tax, a church tax surcharge will also be withheld unless the Individual Securityholder has filed a blocking

notice (*Sperrvermerk*) with the Federal Central Tax Office (*Bundeszentralamt für Steuern*) in which case the Individual Securityholder will be assessed to church tax.

The same treatment applies to capital gains from the disposal, redemption, repayment, assignment or (under certain circumstances) settlement of Securities (i.e. the difference between the proceeds from the disposal after deduction of expenses directly related to the disposal and the cost of acquisition) derived by an Individual Securityholder provided the Securities have been kept or administered in a custodial account with the same Disbursing Agent since the time of their acquisition. If similar Securities kept or administered in the same custodial account were acquired at different points in time, the Securities first acquired will be deemed to have been sold first for the purposes of determining the capital gains. Where Securities are issued in a currency other than Euro any currency gains or losses are part of the capital gains. In case of a physical settlement of certain Securities which grant the Issuer or the Individual Securityholder the right to opt for a physical delivery of a predetermined number of underlying securities instead of a (re)payment of the Securities' nominal amount, generally no withholding tax has to be withheld by the Disbursing Agent as such exchange of the Securities into the predetermined number of underlying securities does not result in a taxable gain or loss for the Individual Securityholder. Under these circumstances acquisition costs of the Securities are regarded as acquisition costs of the underlying securities received by the Individual Securityholder upon physical settlement. However, withholding tax will then generally apply to any gain from the disposition of the securities received in exchange for the Securities. In other cases, e.g. where the Security has no nominal amount or the Underlying is not a Security, the physical settlement may trigger withholding tax that will be payable by the Individual Securityholder to the Disbursing Agent.

To the extent the Securities have not been kept or administered in a custodial account with the same Disbursing Agent since the time of acquisition, upon the disposal, redemption, repayment or assignment withholding tax applies at a rate of 26.375 per cent. (including solidarity surcharge, plus church tax, if applicable) to 30 per cent. of the disposal proceeds (including interest accrued on the Securities and paid separately (**Accrued Interest**, *Stückzinsen*), if any), unless the current Disbursing Agent has been notified of the actual acquisition costs of the Securities by the previous Disbursing Agent or by a statement of a bank or financial services institution within the European Economic Area or from certain other countries (*e.g.* Switzerland or Andorra).

In computing any German tax to be withheld, the Disbursing Agent may - subject to certain requirements and restrictions - deduct from the basis of the withholding tax negative investment income realised by the Individual Securityholder via the Disbursing Agent (*e.g.* losses from sale of other securities with the exception of shares). The Disbursing Agent may also deduct Accrued Interest on the Securities or other securities paid separately upon the acquisition of the respective security by the Individual Securityholder. In addition, subject to certain requirements and restrictions the Disbursing Agent may credit foreign withholding taxes levied on investment income in a given year regarding securities held in the custodial account with the Disbursing Agent to the extent such foreign withholding taxes cannot be reclaimed in the respective foreign country.

In addition, for Individual Securityholders an annual allowance (*Sparer-Pauschbetrag*) of EUR 801 (EUR 1,602 for married couples and registered lifetime partnerships filing jointly) applies to all investment income received in a given year. Upon the Individual Securityholder filing an exemption certificate (*Freistellungsauftrag*) with the Disbursing Agent, the Disbursing Agent will take the allowance into account when computing the amount of tax to be withheld. No withholding tax will be deducted if the Securityholder has submitted to the Disbursing Agent a certificate of non-assessment (*Nichtveranlagungs-Bescheinigung*) issued by the competent local tax office.

German withholding tax will not apply to gains from the disposal, redemption, repayment or assignment of Securities held by a corporation as Securityholder while ongoing payments, such as interest payments under a coupon, are subject to withholding tax. Losses and foreign taxes are not taken into account when calculating the withholding tax. The same rules apply where the Securities form part of a trade or business (*Betriebsvermögen*) or are related to income from letting and leasing of property subject to further requirements being met.

Taxation of current income and capital gains

The personal income tax liability of an Individual Securityholder deriving income from capital investments under the Securities is, in principle, settled by the tax withheld. To the extent withholding tax has not been levied, such as in case of Securities kept in custody abroad, the Individual Securityholder must report his or her income and capital gains derived from the Securities on his or her tax return and then will also be taxed at a rate of 25 per cent. (plus solidarity surcharge and church tax thereon, where applicable). If the withholding tax on a disposal, redemption, repayment or assignment has been calculated from 30 per cent. of the disposal proceeds (rather than from the actual gain), an Individual Securityholder may and in case the actual gain is higher than 30 per cent. of the disposal proceeds must also apply for an assessment on the basis of his or her actual acquisition costs. Further, an Individual Securityholder may request that all investment income of a given year is taxed at his or her lower individual tax rate based upon an assessment to tax with any withholding tax withheld in excess of the tax assessed being refunded. In each case, the deduction of expenses (other than transaction costs) on an itemized basis is disallowed. The utilization of losses from the disposal or redemption of Securities may be restricted. According to the tax authorities losses from a worthless expiration of financial instruments not qualifying as options or the sale at a price not covering the disposal costs may be non-deductible altogether.

Where Securities form part of a trade or business or the income from the Securities qualifies as income from the letting and leasing of property the withholding tax, if any, will not settle the personal or corporate income tax liability. Where Securities form part of the property of a trade or business, each year the part of the difference between the issue or purchase price and the redemption amount (if such amount is fixed at the time of the acquisition) attributable to such year as well as interest accrued must be taken into account as interest income. The respective Securityholder will have to report income and related (business) expenses on the tax return and the balance will be taxed at the Securityholder's applicable tax rate. Withholding tax levied, if any, will be credited against the personal or corporate income tax of the Securityholder. Where Securities form part of the property of a German trade or business the current income and the proceeds from the disposal, redemption, settlement, repayment or assignment of the Securities may also be subject to German trade tax.

Where according to an applicable accounting standard Securities include an embedded derivative the Noteholder may have to account for a receivable and a derivative. The deduction of losses from derivatives may be ring-fenced as follows. Generally the deductibility of capital losses from Securities which qualify for tax purposes as forward/futures transaction is limited. These losses may only be applied against profits from other forward/futures transactions derived in the same or, subject to certain restrictions, the previous year. Otherwise these losses can be carried forward indefinitely and, within certain limitations, applied against profits from forward/futures transactions hedging risks from the Securityholder's ordinary business, unless the underlying is a stock in a corporation. Further special rules apply to credit institutions, financial services institutions and finance companies within the meaning of the German Banking Act.

German Investment Tax Act

If a Security (in particular a Security which is physically settled by delivery of fund shares, fund units or similar instruments or a Security which replicates the performance of an investment fund) was considered to qualify as an investment fund unit within the meaning of the German Investment Tax Act (*Investmentsteuergesetz*), tax consequences different from those discussed above would apply. A Securityholder subject to German taxation may then be required to include into his or her taxable income unrealized gains from the appreciation in value of the Security which may be deemed to be a portion of the fair market value of the Security at the relevant time. In general, the taxed unrealized gains will be deductible in computing the capital gain derived from the disposal, redemption or termination of the Security.

Non resident

Interest, including Accrued Interest, and capital gains are not subject to German taxation, unless (i) the Securities form part of the business property of a permanent establishment, including a permanent representative, or a fixed base maintained in Germany by the Securityholder; or (ii) the income otherwise constitutes German-source income. In cases (i) and (ii) a tax regime similar to that explained above under "*Tax Residents*" applies.

Non-residents of Germany are, in general, exempt from German withholding tax on interest and the solidarity surcharge thereon. However, where the interest is subject to German taxation as set forth in the preceding paragraph and the Securities are kept or administered in a custodial account with a Disbursing Agent, withholding tax may be levied under certain circumstances. Where Securities are not kept in a custodial account with a Disbursing Agent and interest or proceeds from the disposal, assignment or redemption of a Security are paid by a Disbursing Agent to a non-resident, withholding tax generally will also apply. The withholding tax may be refunded based on an assessment to tax or under an applicable tax treaty.

Inheritance and Gift Tax

No inheritance or gift taxes with respect to any Securities will arise under the laws of Germany, if, in the case of inheritance tax, neither the deceased nor the beneficiary, or, in the case of gift tax, neither the donor nor the donee, is a resident of Germany and such Security is not attributable to a German trade or business for which a permanent establishment is maintained, or a permanent representative has been appointed, in Germany. Exceptions from this rule apply to certain German expatriates.

Other Taxes

No stamp, issue or registration taxes or such duties will be payable in Germany in connection with the issuance, delivery or exercise of the Securities. Currently, net assets tax (*Vermögensteuer*) is not levied in Germany.

6. United Kingdom

The following applies only to persons who are the beneficial owners of Securities and is a summary of the Issuer's understanding of current United Kingdom tax law (as applied in England and Wales) and published HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) practice relating only to United Kingdom withholding tax treatment of payments of interest in respect of Notes, payments of interest on the Warrants and the Certificates ("W&C Securities") and stamp duties on the issue, exercise and transfer of W&C Securities. References in this section to interest shall mean amounts that are treated as interest for the purposes of United Kingdom taxation. The following does not deal with any other types of payments in respect of the Securities (including those which are classified as annual payments or as manufactured payments for United Kingdom tax purposes) and it does not deal with any United Kingdom taxation implications of acquiring, holding, exercising, disposing or the settlement or redemption of Securities. The United Kingdom tax treatment of prospective holder of Securities depends on their individual circumstances and may be subject to change in the future. Prospective holder of Securities who may be subject to tax in a jurisdiction other than the United Kingdom or who may be unsure as to their tax position (including the United Kingdom tax treatment of any payment made by the Issuer in respect of the Securities) should seek their own professional advice.

Prospective holders of the Securities should be aware that the particular terms of issue of any series of Securities as specified in the relevant Final Terms may affect the tax treatment of that and other series of Securities.

(A) NOTES

Withholding tax

Payments of interest on the Notes that does not have a United Kingdom source may be made without deduction or withholding on account of United Kingdom income tax. If interest paid on the

Notes does have a United Kingdom source, then payments may be made without deduction or withholding on account of United Kingdom income tax in any of the following circumstances.

Payments of interest on the Notes may be made without deduction of or withholding on account of United Kingdom income tax where the Issuer is and continues to be a bank within the meaning of section 991 of the Income Tax Act 2007 ("ITA 2007"), and the interest on the Notes is and continues to be paid in the ordinary course of the Issuer's business within the meaning of section 878 of the ITA 2007.

Payments of interest on the Notes may also be made without deduction of or withholding on account of United Kingdom income tax provided that the Notes carry a right to interest and are and continue to be listed on a "recognised stock exchange" within the meaning of section 1005 of the ITA 2007. The Luxembourg Stock Exchange is a recognised stock exchange. The Notes will satisfy this requirement if they are officially listed in Luxembourg in accordance with provisions corresponding to those generally applicable in EEA states and are admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Provided, therefore, that the Notes carry a right to interest and are and remain so listed, interest on the Notes will be payable without withholding or deduction on account of United Kingdom tax whether or not the Issuer is a bank and whether or not the interest is paid in the ordinary course of its business.

Interest on the Notes may also be paid without withholding or deduction on account of United Kingdom tax where the maturity of the Notes is less than 365 days and those Notes do not form part of a scheme or arrangement of borrowing intended to be capable of remaining outstanding for more than 364 days.

In other cases, where the interest is treated as having a United Kingdom source, an amount must generally be withheld from payments of interest on the Notes on account of United Kingdom income tax at the basic rate (currently 20 per cent.), subject to any available exemptions and reliefs, including an exemption for certain payments of interest to which a company within the charge to United Kingdom corporation tax is beneficially entitled. However, where an applicable double tax treaty provides for a lower rate of withholding tax (or for no tax to be withheld) in relation to a holder of Notes, HMRC can issue a notice to the Issuer to pay interest to the holder of Notes without deduction of tax (or for interest to be paid with tax deducted at the rate provided for in the relevant double tax treaty).

(B) WARRANTS AND CERTIFICATES

Withholding tax

Payments made on the W&C Securities which constitute (or are treated as) interest may be made without deduction or withholding on account of United Kingdom income tax where such interest is not regarded as having a United Kingdom source.

Where payments are made on the W&C Securities which constitute (or are treated as) interest and are regarded as having a United Kingdom source, the withholding tax treatment of such payments should be the same as for interest payments on the Notes, as set out above at section (A).

Stamp Duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax

(a) Issue and Transfer

No United Kingdom stamp duty reserve tax ("**SDRT**") should be payable on the issue or transfer of a W&C Security provided that:

(i) no register of the W&C Securities is kept in the United Kingdom;

(ii) no W&C Security will give its holder the right to subscribe for, or otherwise acquire, either stock, shares or loan capital (or an interest in, or right arising out of, stock, shares or loan capital) which is, or are, either registered in a register kept in the United Kingdom, or shares that are "paired with

shares issued by a body corporate incorporated in the United Kingdom", in each case for the purposes of section 99 of the Finance Act; and

(iii) in relation to W&C Securities which provide for physical delivery and constitute unconditional agreements to transfer the asset(s) to be physically delivered on settlement, that the asset(s) to be physically delivered on settlement is not or are not chargeable securities within the meaning of section 99 of the Finance Act 1986.

United Kingdom stamp duty may be payable on any issue, documentary transfer or documentary agreement to transfer the W&C Securities or any interest in the W&C Securities.

(b) Exercise

No stamp duty or SDRT should be payable on the exercise of W&C Securities that are cash settled. However, stamp duty and SDRT may be payable in relation to the exercise of W&C Securities that are physically settled.

7. Austria

This section on taxation contains a brief summary of the Issuer's understanding with regard to certain important principles which are of significance in connection with the purchase, holding or sale of the Securities in the Republic of Austria. This summary does not purport to exhaustively describe all possible tax aspects and does not deal with specific situations which may be of relevance for certain potential investors. The following comments are rather of a general nature and included herein solely for information purposes. They are not intended to be, nor should they be construed to be, legal or tax advice. This summary is based on the currently valid tax legislation, case law and regulations of the tax authorities, as well as their respective interpretation, all of which may be amended from time to time. Such amendments may possibly also be effected with retroactive effect and may negatively impact on the tax consequences described. It is recommended that potential purchasers of the Securities consult with their legal and tax advisors as to the tax consequences of the purchase. holding or sale of the Securities. Tax risks resulting from the Securities (in particular from a potential qualification as a foreign investment fund within the meaning of sec. 188 of the Austrian Investment Funds Act 2011 (Investmentfondsgesetz 2011)) shall in any case be borne by the purchaser. For the purposes of the following it is assumed that the Securities are legally and factually offered to an indefinite number of persons.

General remarks

Individuals having a domicile (*Wohnsitz*) and/or their habitual abode (*gewöhnlicher Aufenthalt*) in Austria are subject to income tax (*Einkommensteuer*) in Austria on their worldwide income (unlimited income tax liability; *unbeschränkte Einkommensteuerpflicht*). Individuals having neither a domicile nor their habitual abode in Austria are subject to income tax only on income from certain Austrian sources (limited income tax liability; *beschränkte Einkommensteuerpflicht*).

Corporations having their place of management (*Ort der Geschäftsleitung*) and/or their legal seat (*Sitz*) in Austria are subject to corporate income tax (*Körperschaftsteuer*) in Austria on their worldwide income (unlimited corporate income tax liability; *unbeschränkte Körperschaftsteuerpflicht*). Corporations having neither their place of management nor their legal seat in Austria are subject to corporate income tax only on income from certain Austrian sources (limited corporate income tax liability; *beschränkte Körperschaftsteuerpflicht*).

Both in case of unlimited and limited (corporate) income tax liability Austria's right to tax may be restricted by double taxation treaties.

Income taxation of the Securities

Pursuant to sec. 27(1) of the Austrian Income Tax Act (*Einkommensteuergesetz*), the term investment income (*Einkünfte aus Kapitalvermögen*) comprises:

• income from the letting of capital (*Einkünfte aus der Überlassung von Kapital*) pursuant to sec. 27(2) of the Austrian Income Tax Act, including dividends and interest;

- income from realised increases in value (*Einkünfte aus realisierten Wertsteigerungen*) pursuant to sec. 27(3) of the Austrian Income Tax Act, including gains from the sale, redemption and other realisation of assets that lead to income from the letting of capital, including zero coupon bonds and broken-period interest; and
- income from derivatives (*Einkünfte aus Derivaten*) pursuant to sec. 27(4) of the Austrian Income Tax Act, including cash settlements, option premiums received and income from the sale or other realisation of forward contracts like options, futures and swaps and other derivatives such as index certificates.

Also the withdrawal of the Securities from a securities account (*Depotentnahme*) and circumstances leading to a restriction of Austria's taxation right regarding the Securities *vis-à-vis* other countries, *e.g.*, a relocation from Austria (*Wegzug*), are in general deemed to constitute a sale (*cf.* sec. 27(6) (1) and (2) of the Austrian Income Tax Act).

Individuals subject to unlimited income tax liability in Austria holding the Securities as a nonbusiness asset are subject to income tax on all resulting investment income pursuant to sec. 27(1) of the Austrian Income Tax Act. Investment income from the Securities with an Austrian nexus (inländische Einkünfte aus Kapitalvermögen), basically meaning income that is paid by an Austrian paying agent (auszahlende Stelle) or an Austrian custodian agent (depotführende Stelle), is subject to withholding tax (Kapitalertragsteuer) at a flat rate of 27.5%. No additional income tax is levied over and above the amount of tax withheld (final taxation pursuant to sec. 97(1) of the Austrian Income Tax Act). Investment income from the Securities without an Austrian nexus must be included in the investor's income tax return and is subject to income tax at the flat rate of 27.5%. In both cases upon application the option exists to tax all income subject to income tax at a flat rate pursuant to sec. 27a(1) of the Austrian Income Tax Act at the lower progressive income tax rate (option to regular taxation pursuant to sec. 27a(5) of the Austrian Income Tax Act). The acquisition costs must not include ancillary acquisition costs (Anschaffungsnebenkosten; sec. 27a(4)(2) of the Austrian Income Tax Act). Expenses such as bank charges and custody fees must not be deducted (sec. 20(2) of the Austrian Income Tax Act); this also applies if the option to regular taxation is exercised. Sec. 27(8) of the Austrian Income Tax Act, inter alia, provides for the following restrictions on the offsetting of losses: negative income from realized increases in value and from derivatives may be neither offset against interest from bank accounts and other non-securitized claims vis-à-vis credit institutions (except for cash settlements and lending fees) nor against income from private foundations, foreign private law foundations and other comparable legal estates (Privatstiftungen, ausländische Stiftungen oder sonstige Vermögensmassen, die mit einer Privatstiftung vergleichbar sind); income subject to income tax at a flat rate pursuant to sec. 27a(1) of the Austrian Income Tax Act may not be offset against income subject to the progressive income tax rate (this equally applies in case of an exercise of the option to regular taxation); negative investment income not already offset against positive investment income may not be offset against other types of income. The Austrian custodian agent has to effect the offsetting of losses by taking into account all of a taxpayer's securities accounts with the custodian agent, in line with sec. 93(6) of the Austrian Income Tax Act, and to issue a written confirmation to the taxpayer to this effect.

Individuals subject to unlimited income tax liability in Austria holding the Securities as a business asset are subject to income tax on all resulting investment income pursuant to sec. 27(1) of the Austrian Income Tax Act. Investment income from the Securities with an Austrian nexus is subject to withholding tax at a flat rate of 27.5%. While withholding tax has the effect of final taxation for income from the letting of capital, income from realised increases in value and income from derivatives must be included in the investor's income tax return (nevertheless income tax at the flat rate of 27.5%). Investment income from the Securities without an Austrian nexus must always be included in the investor's income tax return (generally income tax at the flat rate of 27.5%). In both cases upon application the option exists to tax all income subject to income tax at a flat rate pursuant to sec. 27a(1) of the Austrian Income Tax Act at the lower progressive income tax rate (option to regular taxation pursuant to sec. 27a(5) of the Austrian Income Tax Act). The flat tax rate does not apply to income from realised increases in value and income from derivatives if realizing these types of income constitutes a key area of the respective investor's business activity (sec. 27a(6) of the

Austrian Income Tax Act). Expenses such as bank charges and custody fees must not be deducted (sec. 20(2) of the Austrian Income Tax Act); this also applies if the option to regular taxation is exercised. Pursuant to sec. 6(2)(c) of the Austrian Income Tax Act, depreciations to the lower fair market value and losses from the sale, redemption and other realisation of financial assets and derivatives in the sense of sec. 27(3) and (4) of the Austrian Income Tax Act, which are subject to income tax at the flat rate of 27.5%, are primarily to be offset against income from realised increases in value of such financial assets and derivatives and with appreciations in value of such assets within the same business unit (*Wirtschaftsgüter desselben Betriebes*); only 55% of the remaining negative difference may be offset against other types of income.

Corporations subject to unlimited corporate income tax liability in Austria are subject to corporate income tax on income in the sense of sec. 27(1) of the Austrian Income Tax Act from the Securities at a rate of 25%. Income in the sense of sec. 27(1) of the Austrian Income Tax Act from the Securities with an Austrian nexus is subject to withholding tax at a flat rate of 27.5%. However, a 25% rate may pursuant to sec. 93(1a) of the Austrian Income Tax Act be applied by the withholding agent, if the debtor of the withholding tax is a corporation. Such withholding tax can be credited against the corporate income tax liability.Under the conditions set forth in sec. 94(5) of the Austrian Income Tax Act no withholding tax is levied in the first place. Losses from the sale of the Securities can be offset against other income.

Private foundations (*Privatstiftungen*) pursuant to the Austrian Private Foundations Act (*Privatstiftungsgesetz*) fulfilling the prerequisites contained in sec. 13(3) and (6) of the Austrian Corporate Income Tax Act (*Körperschaftsteuergesetz*) and holding the Securities as a non-business asset are subject to interim taxation at a rate of 25% on interest income, income from realised increases in value and income from derivatives (*inter alia*, if the latter are in the form of securities). Pursuant to the Austrian tax authorities' view, the acquisition costs must not include ancillary acquisition costs. Expenses such as bank charges and custody fees must not be deducted (sec. 12(2) of the Austrian Corporate Income Tax Act). Interim tax does generally not fall due insofar as distributions subject to withholding tax are made to beneficiaries in the same tax period. Investment income from the Securities with an Austrian nexus is in general subject to withholding tax at a flat rate of 27.5%. However, a 25% rate may pursuant to sec. 93(1a) of the Austrian Income Tax Act be applied by the withholding agent, if the debtor of the withholding tax is a corporation. Such withholding tax can be credited against the tax falling due. Under the conditions set forth in sec. 94(12) of the Austrian Income Tax Act no withholding tax is levied.

Individuals and corporations subject to limited (corporate) income tax liability in Austria are taxable on income from the Securities if they have a permanent establishment (Betriebsstätte) in Austria and the Securities are attributable to such permanent establishment (cf. sec. 98(1)(3) of the Austrian Income Tax Act, sec. 21(1)(1) of the Austrian Corporate Income Tax Act). In addition, individuals subject to limited income tax liability in Austria are also taxable on interest in the sense of sec. 27(2)(2) of the Austrian Income Tax Act and accrued interest (including from zero coupon bonds) in the sense of sec. 27(6)(5) of the Austrian Income Tax Act from the Notes if the (accrued) interest has an Austrian nexus and if withholding tax is levied on such (accrued) interest. This does not apply to individuals being resident in a state with which automatic exchange of information exists. Interest with an Austrian nexus is interest the debtor of which has its place of management and/or its legal seat in Austria or is an Austrian branch of a non-Austrian credit institution; accrued interest with an Austrian nexus is accrued interest from a security issued by an Austrian issuer (sec. 98(1)(5)(b) of the Austrian Income Tax Act). The Issuer understands that no taxation applies in the case at hand.

Pursuant to sec. 188 of the Austrian Investment Funds Act 2011 as changed in the course of the implementation of Directive 2011/61/EU, the term "foreign investment fund" comprises (i) undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities the member state of origin of which is not Austria; (ii) alternative investment funds pursuant to the Austrian Act on Alternative Investment Fund Managers (*Alternative Investmentfonds Manager-Gesetz*) the state of origin of which is not Austria; and (iii) secondarily, undertakings subject to a foreign jurisdiction, irrespective of the legal form they are organized in, the assets of which are invested according to the principle of risk-

spreading on the basis either of a statute, of the undertaking's articles or of customary exercise, if one of the following conditions is fulfilled: (a) the undertaking is factually, directly or indirectly, not subject to a corporate income tax in its state of residence that is comparable to Austrian corporate income tax; (b) the profits of the undertaking are in its state of residence subject to corporate income tax that is comparable to Austrian corporate income tax, at a rate of less than 15%; or (c) the undertaking is subject to a comprehensive personal or material tax exemption in its state of residence. Certain collective investment vehicles investing in real estate are exempted. Up to now the tax authorities have not yet adapted the Austrian Investment Fund Guidelines (*Investmentfondsrichtlinien*) to the legislation as currently in force. In case of a qualification as a foreign investment fund the tax consequences would substantially differ from those described above: A special type of transparency principle would be applied, pursuant to which generally both distributed income as well as deemed income would be subject to Austrian (corporate) income tax.

Austrian inheritance and gift tax

Austria does not levy inheritance or gift tax.

However, certain gratuitous transfers of assets to private law foundations and comparable legal estates (*privatrechtliche Stiftungen und damit vergleichbare Vermögensmassen*) are subject to foundation transfer tax (*Stiftungseingangssteuer*) pursuant to the Austrian Foundation Transfer Tax Act (*Stiftungseingangssteuergesetz*). Such tax is triggered if the transferor and/or the transferee at the time of transfer have a domicile, their habitual abode, their legal seat or their place of management in Austria. Certain exemptions apply in case of a transfer *mortis causa* of financial assets within the meaning of sec. 27(3) and (4) of the Austrian Income Tax Act (except for participations in corporations) if income from such financial assets is subject to income tax at a flat rate pursuant to sec. 27a(1) of the Austrian Income Tax Act. The tax basis is the fair market value of the assets transferred minus any debts, calculated at the time of transfer. The tax rate is in general 2.5%, with higher rates of applying in special cases.

In addition, a special notification obligation exists for gifts of money, receivables, shares in corporations, participations in partnerships, businesses, movable tangible assets and intangibles. The notification obligation applies if the donor and/or the donee have a domicile, their habitual abode, their legal seat or their place of management in Austria. Not all gifts are covered by the notification obligation: In case of gifts to certain related parties, a threshold of EUR 50,000 per year applies; in all other cases, a notification is obligatory if the value of gifts made exceeds an amount of EUR 15,000 during a period of five years. Furthermore, gratuitous transfers to foundations falling under the Austrian Foundation Transfer Tax Act described above are also exempt from the notification obligation. Intentional violation of the notification obligation may lead to the levying of fines of up to 10% of the fair market value of the assets transferred.

Further, it should be noted that gratuitous transfers of the Securities may trigger income tax at the level of the transferor pursuant to sec. 27(6) (1) and (2) of the Austrian Income Tax Act (see above).

8. Switzerland

The following discussion is a summary of certain material Swiss tax considerations relating to (i) securities issued by any of the issuers where the holder is tax resident in Switzerland or has a tax presence in Switzerland or (ii) securities where the paying agent, custodian or securities dealer is located in Switzerland. The discussion is based on legislation as of the date of this Base Prospectus. It does not aim to be a comprehensive description of all the Swiss tax considerations that may be relevant for a decision to invest in securities. The tax treatment for each investor depends on the particular situation. All investors are advised to consult with their professional tax advisors as to the respective Swiss tax consequences of the purchase, ownership, disposition, lapse, exercise or redemption of securities (or options embedded therein) in light of their particular circumstances.

Swiss Withholding Tax

Dividend, interest and other payments by an issuer on securities it issues are not subject to Swiss federal withholding tax provided that the respective issuer is at all times resident and managed outside Switzerland for Swiss tax purposes.

Income Taxation

Securities held as Private Assets by a Swiss Resident Holder

(a) Structured Products

If a security classifies as a structured product, its income taxation depends on whether the bond and the derivative financial instrument(s) embedded therein are recorded separately from each other and whether the security classifies as a structured product with or without a predominant one-time interest payment.

Non-transparent derivative financial instruments: If the embedded bond is not recorded separately from the embedded derivative financial instrument(s), the security classifies as non-transparent structured product and any return over the initial investment classifies as a taxable interest payment. Non-transparent derivative financial instruments generally include a predominant one-time interest payment. If so, Swiss resident private investors will be taxed on any interest payments and on any gains, including capital and foreign exchange gains. realised on the securities (differential taxation method). Transparent derivative financial instruments without a predominant one-time interest payment: If the embedded bond is recorded separately from the embedded derivative financial instrument(s) and the yield-tomaturity predominantly derives from periodic interest payments and not from a one-time interest-payment (see below "-Transparent derivative financial instruments with a predominant one-time interest payment"), then any periodic interest payment and the onetime interest payment is taxed when paid to the holder of the security. A gain, including interest accrued, realised on the sale of a security is a tax-free private capital gain, whereas a loss is a non-tax-deductible private capital loss (see below "Capital Gains Taxation -Securities held as Private Assets by a Swiss Resident Holder"). The same applies if the security is redeemed except that interest accrued is taxed when paid.

Transparent derivative financial instruments with a predominant one-time interest payment: If the embedded bond is recorded separately from the embedded derivative financial instrument(s) and the yield-to-maturity predominantly derives from a one-time interest-payment such as an original issue discount or a repayment premium, and not from periodic interest payments, then any periodic interest payments at sale or redemption of the security as well as the difference between the value of the embedded bond at sale or redemption and its value at issuance or purchase, as applicable, converted, in each case, into Swiss francs at the rate of exchange prevailing at the time of sale, redemption, issuance or purchase constitutes taxable income (modified differential taxation method). A value decrease on the embedded bond realised on the sale or redemption of the security may be offset against any gains (including periodic interest payments) realised within the same taxation period from all financial instruments with a predominant one-time interest payment. Any residual return realised on the embedded derivative financial instrument(s) is a tax-free private capital gain, and any residual loss is a non-tax-deductible private capital loss (see below "Capital Gains Taxation – Securities held as Private Assets by a Swiss Resident Holder").

(b) Notes

Notes without a predominant one-time interest payment: If a security classifies as a pure bond without a predominant one-time interest payment (the yield-to-maturity predominantly derives from periodic interest payments and not from a one-time interest-payment), Swiss resident private investors will be taxed on the periodic and any one-time interest payments, converted into Swiss francs at the rate of exchange prevailing at the time of payment. A gain, including interest accrued, realised on the sale of a security is a tax-free private capital gain, whereas a loss is a non-tax-deductible private capital loss (see below "Capital Gains Taxation – Securities held as Private Assets by a Swiss Resident Holder").

Notes with a predominant one-time interest payment: If a security classifies as a pure bond with a predominant one-time interest payment (the yield-to-maturity predominantly derives from a one-time interest-payment such as an original issue discount or a repayment premium and not from periodic interest payments), Swiss resident private investors will be taxed on any periodic interest payments and on any gains, including capital and foreign exchange gains, realised on the securities (differential taxation method).

(c) Pure Derivative Financial Instruments

Periodic and one-time dividend equalisation payments realised on a security which classifies as a pure derivative financial instrument (such as pure call and put options, including low exercise price options with a maturity not exceeding one year, pure futures, static certificates replicating an index or a basket of at least five shares and with a fixed maturity or an annual redemption right) and which is held as part of their private assets constitute taxable investment income. Any other return will be classified as a tax-exempt capital gain or a non-tax deductible capital loss (see below "Capital Gains Taxation – Securities held as Private Assets by a Swiss Resident Holder").

(d) Low Exercise Price Options (LEPO)

According to the current practice of the Swiss Federal Tax Administration, low exercise price options are given if the *Underlying* has been pre-financed by at least 50 per cent. at the time of issuance.

For low exercise price options with a maturity exceeding one year, the interest component of the low exercise price option (i.e. issue discount) constitutes taxable investment income. Any other return will be classified as a tax-exempt capital gain or a non-tax deductible capital loss (see below "Capital Gains Taxation – Securities held as Private Assets by a Swiss Resident Holder").

(e) Fund-like Products

An individual holding a fund-like product as part of private assets only receives taxable income (which he or she must report annually) over such portion of the distributions (in case the fund is distributing the income realised on the underlying investments) or earnings credits (in case the fund is reinvesting the income realised on the underlying investment) as derived from dividends and interest (less attributable costs) on the underlying investments. Any distributions or credits deriving from capital gains realised on the underlying investments is a non-tax-deductible private capital loss. Such taxation will only apply if dividend and interest income (less attributable costs) and capital gains and losses are reported and distributed separately. Any gain realised within a taxation period on the sale of a fund-like instrument (including accrued dividends and interest) is exempt from income taxation as a private capital gain, and, conversely, any loss realised is a non-tax-deductible capital loss (see below "Capital Gains Taxation – Securities held as Private Assets by a Swiss resident Holder").

Securities held as Assets of a Swiss Business

Corporate entities and individuals who hold securities as part of a trade or business in Switzerland (in the case of residents abroad carried on through a permanent establishment or a fixed place of business in Switzerland) are required to recognise any payments on, and any capital gains or losses realised on the sale or redemption of, such securities (irrespective of their classification) in their income statement and will be taxed on any net taxable earnings for the respective taxation period.

The same taxation treatment also applies to Swiss-resident individuals who are classified by the tax authorities as "professional securities dealers" for reasons of, *inter alia*, frequent dealing and leveraged investments in securities.

Capital Gains Taxation

Securities held as Private Assets by a Swiss Resident Holder

A gain or a loss realised by an individual resident in Switzerland upon the sale or other disposal of a security held as part of his or her private assets, is a tax-free private capital gain or a non-tax deductible capital loss, respectively, unless such individual is classified by the tax authorities as a "professional securities dealer" for reasons of, *inter alia*, frequent dealing and leveraged investments in securities. If an individual is classified as "professional securities dealer" he or she will be taxed in accordance with the principles set forth above under "Securities held as Assets of a Swiss Business". Concerning the separation into a tax-exempt capital gains or non-tax deductible capital loss component, as applicable, and a taxable income component of a security, see the breakdown principles set forth above with regard to the different instruments under "Income Taxation – Securities held as Private Assets by a Swiss Resident Holder").

Securities held as Assets of a Swiss Business

Capital gains realised on securities held as assets of a Swiss business are taxed in accordance with the taxation principles set forth above under "Income Taxation – Securities held as Swiss Business Assets".

Stamp Taxes

Swiss Federal Issue Stamp Tax

The securities are not subject to Swiss federal stamp tax on the issuance of securities.

Swiss Federal Securities Turnover Tax

Dealings in securities which classify as pure derivative financial instruments (such as pure call and put options, including low exercise price options (LEPOs) with a maturity not exceeding twelve months, pure futures with a maximal pre-financing of 25 per cent., static certificates replicating an index or a basket of at least five shares and with a fixed maturity or an annual redemption right) are not subject to the Swiss federal securities turnover tax.

Dealings in securities which have been issued by an issuer outside of Switzerland and which classify as structured products, share-like instruments (including Low Exercise Price Options on shares with a maturity exceeding twelve months) or fund-like instruments are subject to Swiss federal securities turnover tax of 0.3 per cent. on the consideration paid, however, only if a Swiss securities dealer (as defined in the Swiss federal stamp tax act) is a party or intermediary to the transaction and no exemption applies.

Dealings in bonds and structured products with a maturity not exceeding one year are exempt from Swiss federal securities turnover tax.

The delivery of an underlying taxable security at exercise or redemption to the holder of the security is subject to Swiss federal securities turnover tax of 0.3 per cent. in case a security issued by an issuer outside Switzerland is delivered, and of 0.15 per cent. in case a security issued by a domestic issuer is delivered, however, in each case, only if a Swiss domestic securities dealer (as defined in the Swiss federal stamp tax act) is a party or intermediary to the transaction and no exemption applies.

Gift, Inheritance and Estate Taxes

Subject to an applicable international tax treaty in an international scenario, transfers of securities may be subject to cantonal and/or communal inheritance tax, estate tax or gift tax if the deceased person had his or her last domicile in Switzerland, the donor is resident in Switzerland, or in the case of a foreign deceased or donor the transfer involves an unincorporated business (partnership or sole proprietorship) in Switzerland and securities are held as part of such business. No such taxes exist at the federal level. Rates depend upon the existing relationship (i.e. the relationship between the deceased and the heirs, or between the donor and the donee) and the size of the inheritance or gift. Interspousal gifts and gifts to descendants, as well as inheritances collected by the surviving spouse

and descendants are frequently exempt or taxed at very low rates (up to 6 per cent.). Gifts and inheritances received from unrelated persons attract rates ranging from 20 per cent. to 40 per cent. The taxable base is usually the market value of the property transferred.

Net Worth and Capital Taxes

A holder of securities who is a resident individual in Switzerland or is a non-Swiss resident holding securities as part of a Swiss business operation or a Swiss permanent establishment, is required to report securities as part of private assets or as part of Swiss business assets, as applicable, and is subject to annual cantonal and/or communal private wealth tax on any net taxable wealth (including the securities); in the case of a non-Swiss resident individual holding securities as part of a Swiss business operation or a Swiss permanent establishment to the extent the aggregate taxable wealth is allocable to Switzerland. Incorporated holders of securities are subject to cantonal and communal capital tax on net taxable equity, in the case of non-Swiss resident incorporated holders to the extent the aggregate net taxable equity is allocable to Switzerland. No net worth and capital taxes exist at the federal level.

Non-Swiss Resident Holders

A holder of a security who is not resident in Switzerland for tax purposes and who during the taxation period has not engaged in trade or business carried on through a business operation or permanent establishment in Switzerland, will be subject to neither to income tax and capital gains tax nor net wealth or capital tax in Switzerland.

Automatic Exchange of Information in Tax Matters

On November 19, 2014, Switzerland signed the Multilateral Competent Authority Agreement (the "**MCAA**"). The MCAA is based on article 6 of the OECD/Council of Europe administrative assistance convention and is intended to ensure the uniform implementation of Automatic Exchange of Information (the "**AEOI**"). The Federal Act on the International Automatic Exchange of Information in Tax Matters (the "**AEOI Act**") entered into force on January 1, 2017. The AEOI Act is the legal basis for the implementation of the AEOI standard in Switzerland.

The AEOI is being introduced in Switzerland through bilateral agreements or multilateral agreements. The agreements have, and will be, concluded on the basis of guaranteed reciprocity, compliance with the principle of speciality (i.e. the information exchanged may only be used to assess and levy taxes (and for criminal tax proceedings)) and adequate data protection.

Switzerland has concluded a multilateral AEOI agreement with the EU (replacing the EU savings tax agreement) and has concluded bilateral AEOI agreements with several non-EU countries.

Based on such multilateral agreements and bilateral agreements and the implementing laws of Switzerland, Switzerland will begin to collect data in respect of financial assets, including, as the case may be, Products, held in, and income derived thereon and credited to, accounts or deposits with a paying agent in Switzerland for the benefit of individuals resident in a EU member state or in a treaty state from, depending on the effectiveness date of the agreement, 2017 or 2018, as the case may be, and begin to exchange it from 2018 or 2019.

9. Belgium

The following is a general description of certain Belgian tax considerations relating to an investment in the Securities. It does not purport to be a complete analysis of all tax considerations relating to the Securities. Prospective purchasers of the Securities should consult their tax advisers as to the consequences under the tax laws of the country of which they are resident for tax purposes and the tax laws of Belgium of acquiring, holding and disposing of the Securities. This summary is based upon the law as in effect on the date of this prospectus and is subject to any change in law that may take effect after such date. Any payment of interest (as defined by Belgian tax law) on the Securities made through a paying agent in Belgium will in principle be subject to Belgian withholding tax on the gross amount of the interest, currently at the rate of 30 per cent. If the repurchase, redemption or exercise is in full or in part settled by means of a delivery of securities or other assets by the Issuer, interest includes any positive difference between the market value of those assets on the date of their payment or attribution and the initial issue price of the Securities. In the event interest is paid in the form of delivery of securities, the market value of those securities will be deemed at least equal to their value (prior to the date of the payment or attribution) as determined in the most recent publication by the Belgian Government of the value of securities listed on a Belgian stock exchange (such publication is issued monthly, on the 20th of each month) or on a similar foreign stock exchange.

For Belgian tax purposes, if interest is in a foreign currency, it is converted into euro on the date of payment or attribution.

On 25 January 2013, the Belgian tax authorities issued a circular letter on the Belgian tax treatment of income from structured securities characterised by an uncertain return on investment due to the variation of the coupons or the repayment terms at maturity, such as securities whose return is linked to the evolution of underlying products. According to the circular letter, the transfer of structured securities to a third party (other than the issuer) results in taxation as interest income of the "pro rata interest", calculated on an unclear formulae. In addition, any amount paid in excess of the initial issue price upon redemption or repayment of the structured securities is considered as interest for Belgian tax purposes. It is highly debatable whether the circular letter is in line with Belgian tax legislation. Furthermore, it is unclear whether the Belgian tax authorities will seek to apply the principles set out in the circular letter to the Securities.

It is assumed that any gains realised upon redemption or repayment by the Issuer will indeed be viewed as interest by the Belgian tax authorities (and any such gains are therefore referred to as "interest" for the purposes of the following paragraphs), but that the effective taxation of the "pro rata interest" in case of a sale to a third party (i.e. other than the Issuer) would not be possible, on the basis that it is currently impossible to determine the amount of the "pro rata interest".

Taxation applicable to individuals resident in Belgium

Belgian resident individuals, ie individuals who are subject to Belgian personal income tax, who are holding the Securities as a private investment are normally subject to the following tax treatment with regard to the Securities in Belgium. Other rules may be applicable in certain specific cases, especially when the investors hold the Securities within the framework of their professional activity, or when transactions regarding the Securities fall outside the scope of the normal management of their own private estate.

Any periodic coupon payment as well as any cash payment and/or delivery of a physical delivery amount made by the Issuer in excess of the issue price (upon full or partial redemption, whether or not at maturity, or upon purchase by the issuer) will be treated as interest for Belgian tax purposes and will be subject to a Belgian withholding tax of 30 per cent (calculated on the interest received after deduction of any non-Belgian withholding taxes) if collected through a financial intermediary established in Belgium. If Belgian withholding tax has been withheld, the income will not be taxed further, and need not be reported in the personal income tax return.

Nevertheless, Belgian resident individuals may elect to declare interest on the Securities in their personal income tax return. Also, if the interest is paid outside Belgium without the intervention of a Belgian paying agent, the interest received (after deduction of any non-Belgian withholding tax) must be declared in the personal income tax return. Interest income which is declared this way will in principle be taxed at a flat rate of 30 per cent (or at the relevant progressive personal income tax rate(s), taking into account the taxpayer's other declared income, whichever is more beneficial) and no local surcharges will be due. The Belgian withholding tax levied may be credited against the income tax liability.

Belgian resident individuals are currently not liable to Belgian income tax on the capital gains (if any) realised upon disposal of the Securities to a third party, provided that the Securities have not been used for their professional activity and that the capital gain is realised within the framework of the

normal management of their private estate. Capital losses realised upon disposal of the Securities held as a non-professional investment are in principle not tax deductible.

Taxation applicable to Belgian corporations

Companies that are subject to Belgian corporate tax are normally subject to the tax treatment described below with regard to the Securities.

Interest received by Belgian resident companies on the structured Securities will be subject to Belgian corporate income tax at the applicable corporate income tax rates (the ordinary corporate income tax rate is 33.99 per cent, but lower rates apply to small income companies under certain conditions). If the income has been subject to a foreign withholding tax, a foreign tax credit will be applied on the Belgian tax due. For interest income, the foreign tax credit is generally equal to a fraction where the numerator is equal to the foreign tax and the denominator is equal to 100 minus the rate of the foreign tax, up to a maximum of 15/85 of the net amount received (subject to some further limitations). Capital losses are in principle tax deductible. The income which is treated as interest for Belgian tax purposes is subject to a Belgian withholding tax of 30 per cent if it is collected through a financial intermediary established in Belgium. An exemption of withholding tax may apply if certain formalities are complied with. For zero or capitalisation bonds, an exemption will only apply if the Belgian company and the Issuer are associated companies within the meaning of article 105, 6° of the Royal Decree of 27 August 1993 implementing the Belgian Income Tax Code of 1992.

Belgian withholding tax, if due, can be offset against the investor's corporate tax, but only in proportion to the period during which the company held the Securities.

Capital gains realised on the sale of the Securities are taxable, irrespective of whether such structured Securities relate to shares or other assets or indices, while capital losses are in principle tax deductible.

Taxation applicable to entities subject to the legal entities' tax

Belgian non-profit legal entities, ie entities that are subject to the Belgian tax on legal entities, are subject to the following tax treatment with respect to the Securities in Belgium.

Any periodic coupon payment as well as any cash payment and/or delivery of a physical delivery amount made by the Issuer in excess of the issue price (upon full or partial redemption, whether or not at maturity, or upon purchase by the Issuer) will be subject to a Belgian withholding tax of 30 per cent if collected through a financial intermediary established in Belgium. If Belgian withholding tax has been withheld, the interest will not be taxed further. Holders of the Securities who collect the payment abroad without Belgian withholding tax are required to declare this income and to pay the withholding tax on their own initiative.

Capital gains realised on the sale of the Securities to third parties on the secondary market before maturity are generally not taxable for Belgian non-profit legal entities. Capital losses realized on a sale of the Securities are not tax deductible.

Taxation applicable to Organisations for Financing Pensions ("OFP")

Income from the Securities, including capital gains realized on a sale or settlement of the Securities, derived by Organisations for Financing Pensions will be exempt from Belgian corporate income tax. Subject to certain conditions, any Belgian withholding tax levied on the interest will be fully creditable against any corporate income tax due and any excess amount will in principle be refundable.

Taxation applicable to non-Belgian residents

Investors who are non-residents of Belgium for Belgian tax purposes and are not holding the Securities through a Belgian establishment and do not invest the Securities in the course of their Belgian professional activity will in principle not incur or become liable for any Belgian tax on income or capital gains (save as the case may be, in the form of withholding tax).

Any periodic coupon payment as well as any cash payment and/or delivery of a physical delivery amount made by the Issuer in excess of the issue price (upon full or partial redemption, whether or not at maturity, or upon purchase by the Issuer) will be subject to a Belgian withholding tax of 30 per cent if collected through a financial intermediary established in Belgium, unless the investor is resident in a country with which Belgium has concluded a double taxation agreement and delivers the requested affidavit. If the income is not collected through a financial institution or other intermediary established in Belgium, no Belgian withholding tax is due.

Non-resident investors that do not hold the Securities through a Belgian establishment can also obtain an exemption of Belgian withholding tax on interest from the Securities paid through a Belgian credit institution, a Belgian stock market company or a Belgian-recognized clearing or settlement institution, provided that they deliver an affidavit to such institution or company confirming (i) that the investors are non-residents, (ii) that the Securities are held in full ownership or in usufruct and (iii) that the Securities are not held for professional purposes in Belgium.

Non-resident individuals who do not use the Securities for professional purposes and who have their fiscal residence in a country with which Belgium has not concluded a tax treaty or with which Belgium has concluded a tax treaty that confers the authority to tax capital gains on the Securities to Belgium, will be subject to tax in Belgium if the capital gains are obtained or received in Belgium and are deemed to be realized outside the scope of the normal management of the individual's private estate. Capital losses are generally not deductible.

Inheritance duties

No Belgian inheritance duties will be due in respect of the Securities if the deceased holder of the Securities was not a Belgian resident at the time of his or her death, even if the Securities were held in custody in Belgium.

Tax on stock exchange transactions

Secondary market trades in respect of the Securities may give rise to a tax on stock exchange transactions (taks op beursverrichtingen / taxe sur les opérations de bourse) of 0.09 per cent for debt instrument or 0.27 per cent for other securities if (i) they are carried out through a financial intermediary established in Belgium, or (ii) deemed to be carried out in Belgium, which is the case if the order is directly or indirectly made to a professional intermediary established outside of Belgium, either by private individuals with habitual residence in Belgium, or legal entities for the account of their seat or establishment in Belgium. The tax is due both on the sale and the acquisition leg of the transaction. The amount of the tax, however, is currently capped at EUR 1,300 for transactions involving debt instruments or EUR 1,600 for transactions involving other securities, per party and per transaction, and various types of investors (including credit institutions, insurance companies, pension funds and all non-residents of Belgium) are exempted from this tax. A separate tax is due by each party to the transaction, and both taxes are collected by the professional intermediary. However, if the intermediary is established outside of Belgium, the tax will in principle be due by the ordering private individual or legal entity, unless that individual or entity can demonstrate that the tax has already been paid. Professional intermediaries established outside of Belgium can, subject to certain conditions and formalities, appoint a Belgian representative for tax purposes, which will liable for the tax on stock exchange transactions in respect of the transactions executed through the professional intermediary.

The European Commission has published a proposal for a Directive for a common financial transactions tax (the "**FTT**"). The proposal currently stipulates that once the FTT enters into force, the participating Member States shall not maintain or introduce taxes on financial transactions other than the FTT (or VAT as provided in the Council Directive 2006/112/EC of November 28, 2006 on the common system of value added tax). For Belgium, the tax on stock exchange transactions should thus be abolished once the FTT enters into force. The proposal is still subject to negotiation between the participating Member States and therefore may be changed at any time.

10. France

The following is a summary based on the laws and regulations in full force and effect in France as at the date of this Base Prospectus, which may be subject to change in the future, potentially with retroactive effect. Investors should be aware that the comments below are of a general nature and do not constitute tax advice and should not be understood as such. Prospective investors are therefore advised to consult their own qualified advisors so as to determine, in the light of their individual situation, the tax consequences of the subscription, purchase, holding, redemption or disposal of the Securities.

Withholding taxes

The following is a summary addressing only the French compulsory withholding tax treatment of income arising from the holding of the Securities. This summary is prepared on the assumption that the Issuer is not and will not be a French resident for French tax purposes and the Securities (and any transactions in connection with the Securities) are not and will not be attributed or attributable to a French branch, permanent establishment or other fixed place of business of the Issuer in France.

All payments by the Issuer in respect of the Securities will be made free of any compulsory withholding or deduction for or on account of any income tax imposed, levied, withheld, or assessed by France or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein.

However, if the Securities are treated (based on their individual terms and conditions) as debt instruments for tax purposes, pursuant to Article 125 A of the French *Code général des impôts*, interest and assimilated income paid by a paying agent *(établissement payeur)* established in France and received by individuals who are fiscally domiciled (*domiciliés fiscalement*) in France are subject to a 24% withholding tax (which is deductible from their personal income tax liability in respect of the year in which the payment has been made). Social contributions (CSG, CRDS and other related contributions) are also levied by way of withholding at aggregate global rate of 15.5% on such interest and assimilated income.

Transfer tax and other taxes

The following may be relevant in connection with Securities which may be settled, redeemed or repaid by way of physical delivery of certain listed shares (or certain assimilated securities) issued by an issuer located in France or securities representing such shares (or assimilated securities).

Pursuant to Article 235 *ter* ZD of the French *Code général des impôts*, a financial transaction tax (the **French FTT**) applies to any acquisition for consideration, resulting for acquisitions prior to 1st January 2018 in a transfer of ownership, of (i) an equity security *(titre de capital)* within the meaning of Article L 212-1 A of the French *Code monétaire et financier* or an assimilated equity security *(titre de capital assimilé)* within the meaning of Article L 211-41 of the French *Code monétaire et financier*, admitted to trading on a recognised stock exchange when the said security is issued by a company whose registered office is situated in France and whose market capitalisation exceeds EUR1 billion on 1 December of the year preceding the year in which the imposition occurs (the **French Shares**) or (ii) a security (*titre*) representing French Shares (irrespective of the location of the registered office of the issuer of such securities). The rate of the French FTT is 0.3% of the acquisition value of the securities. There are a number of exemptions from the French FTT and prospective investors should revert to their counsel to identify whether they can benefit from them.

If the Financial Transaction Tax applies to an acquisition of shares, this transaction is exempt from transfer taxes (*droits de mutation à titre onéreux*) which generally apply at a rate of 0.1% to the sale of shares issued by a company whose registered office is situated in France, provided that in case of shares listed on a recognised stock exchange, transfer taxes are due only if the transfer is evidenced by a written deed or agreement.

11. Italy

The statements herein regarding taxation are based on the laws in force in Italy as at the date of this Base Prospectus and are subject to any changes in law occurring after such date, which changes could be made on a retroactive basis. The following summary does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all the tax considerations which may be relevant to a decision to subscribe for, purchase, own or dispose of the Securities and does not purport to deal with the tax consequences applicable to all categories of investors, some of which (such as dealers in securities or commodities) may be subject to special rules. The following summary does not analyse the tax issues that may arise from the Physical Delivery on redemption or settlement of the Securities and in case of Substitution of the Issuer (see previous § 13 of the General Conditions). Prospective purchasers of the Securities are advised to consult their own tax advisers concerning the overall tax consequences of their ownership of the Securities.

Tax treatment of the Securities

The Securities may be subject to different tax regimes depending on whether:

- they represent derivative financial instruments through which the Securityholder purchases indirectly underlying financial instruments; or
- they represent a debt instrument implying a "use of capital" (*impiego di capitale*), through which the Securityholder transfers to the Issuer a certain amount of capital, for the economic exploitation of the same, subject to the unconditional right to obtain the entire reimbursement of such amount at maturity; or
- they represent a debt instrument implying a "use of capital" (*impiego di capitale*), through which the Securityholder transfers to the Issuer a certain amount of capital, for the economic exploitation of the same, and qualifying as atypical securities according to Article 8 of Law Decree N° 512 of 30 September 1983.

Securities representing derivative financial instruments

Payments as well as capital gains, in respect of Securities which qualify as derivative financial instruments, received and/ or realised by Securityholders (not engaged in entrepreneurial activities to which the Securities are connected) which are Italian resident individuals on the sale or transfer for consideration of the Securities or redemption thereof are subject to a 26 per cent. capital gains tax, which applies under the following taxation regimes "*Regime della dichiarazione*", "*Regime del risparmio amministrato*" and "*Regime del risparmio gestito*" as described under paragraph "Capital Gains Tax" below.

Capital Gains Tax

A 26 per cent. capital gains tax (*imposta sostitutiva*) is applicable on any capital gain realised on the disposal of the Securities by Securityholders included among the following categories of Italian resident persons: (i) individuals not engaged in an entrepreneurial activity to which the Securities are effectively connected, (ii) non commercial partnerships or *de facto* partnerships, (iii) private or public institutions not carrying out mainly or exclusively commercial activities, or (iv) investors exempt from Italian corporate taxation ("**IRES**").

Subject to certain limitations and requirements (including a minimum holding period), Italian resident individuals not engaged in an entrepreneurial activity may be exempt from Italian capital gain taxes, including the *imposta sostitutiva* on payments as well as capital gains realised from the Securities if the Securities are included in a long-term savings account (*piano di risparmio a lungo termine*) that meets the requirements set forth in Article 1(100-114) of Law No. 232 of 11 December 2016 (the **Finance Act 2017**).

In respect of the application of *imposta sostitutiva*, taxpayers may opt for one of the three regimes described below:

- (a) Under the Regime della dichiarazione, which is the default regime for Italian resident individuals not engaged in an entrepreneurial activity to which the Securities are effectively connected, the imposta sostitutiva on capital gains will be chargeable, on a cumulative basis, on all capital gains, net of any off-settable capital losses, realised by the Italian resident individual holding the Securities. In this instance, "capital gains" means any capital gain not connected with an entrepreneurial activity pursuant to all sales or redemptions of the Securities carried out during any given fiscal year. Italian resident individuals holding the Securities not in connection with an entrepreneurial activity must report the overall amount of the capital gains realised in any fiscal year, net of any off-settable capital losses, in the annual tax return and pay the *imposta sostitutiva* on those capital gains together with any balance income tax due for such year. Capital losses in excess of capital gains may be carried forward against capital gains realised in any of the four succeeding fiscal years. Pursuant to Law Decree No. 66 of 24 April 2014, as converted into law with amendments by Law No. 89 of 23 June 2014 (the "Decree N°. 66"), capital losses may be carried forward to be offset against capital gains of the same nature realised after 30 June 2014 for an overall amount of 76.92 per cent of the capital losses realised from 1 January 2012 to 30 June 2014.
- (b) As an alternative to the tax declaration regime, Italian resident individual holding the Securities not in connection with an entrepreneurial activity may elect to pay the *imposta sostitutiva* separately on any capital gain realised on each sale or redemption of the Securities (*Regime del risparmio amministrato*). Such separate taxation of capital gains is allowed subject to:
 - (i) the Securities being deposited with Italian banks, SIMs or certain authorised financial intermediaries; and
 - (ii) an express election for *Regime del risparmio amministrato* being timely made in writing by the relevant Securityholder.

The depository must account for the *imposta sostitutiva* in respect of any capital gain realised on each sale or redemption of the Securities (as well as in respect of any capital gain realised upon the revocation of its mandate), net of any incurred capital loss. The depository must also pay the relevant amount to the Italian tax authority on behalf of the taxpayer, deducting a corresponding amount from the proceeds to be credited to the Securityholder or using funds provided by the Securityholder for this purpose. Under the *Regime del risparmio amministrato*, where a sale or redemption of the Securities results in a capital loss, such capital loss may be deducted from any capital gain subsequently realised, within the same Securities management, in the same fiscal year or in the following fiscal years up to the fourth. Under the *Regime del risparmio amministrato*, the Securityholder is not required to declare the capital gains in the annual tax return. Pursuant to Decree N°. 66, capital losses realized up to 30 June 2014 may be offset against capital gains realized after the date with the following limitations for an amount equal to 76.92 per cent, for capital losses realized from 1 January 2012 to 30 June 2014.

(c) In the Regime del risparmio gestito, any capital gain realised by Italian resident individuals holding the Securities not in connection with an entrepreneurial activity who have entrusted the management of their financial assets, including the Securities, to an authorised intermediary, will be included in the computation of the annual increase in value of the managed assets accrued, even if not realised, at year-end, and subject to the *imposta sostitutiva*, to be paid by the managing authorised intermediary. Any depreciation of the managed assets accrued at year-end may be carried forward against increase in value of the managed assets accrued in any of the four succeeding fiscal years. The Securityholder is not required to report the capital gains realised in the annual tax return. Pursuant to Decree N°. 66, investment potfolio losses accrued up to 30 June 2014 may be set off against investment portfolio profits accrued after that date with the following limitations for an amount equal to 76.92 per cent, for investment portfolio losses accued from 1 January 2012 to 30 June 2014.

Any capital gain deriving from the sale or redemption of the Securities and realised by Italian resident companies (including Italian permanent establishments of foreign entities to which the Securities are connected), similar commercial entity, commercial partnership or Italian resident individuals engaged in an entrepreneurial activity to which the Securities are effectively connected would not be subject to *imposta sostitutiva*, but must be included in the relevant Securityholder's income tax return and therefore subject to the general Italian corporate tax levied at a rate of 24 per cent. (pursuant to Law No. 208 of 28 December 2015, a 3.5% surtax for an overall IRES tax rate of 27.5 per cent applies to Italian banks and certain financial institutions, including Italian branches of foreign banks and certain financialinstitutions) or to personal income taxation (as business income), as the case may be, according to the ordinary rules. In certain circumstances, depending on the "status" of the Securityholder, such proceeds may also have to be included in its taxable base for regional income tax on productive activities (IRAP, currently applicable at a rate of 3.9 per cent.; the IRAP rate may be increased in certain Italian regions up to 0.92 per cent. The IRAP tax rate is increased to 4.65 per cent. and 5.90 per cent. for the categories of companies indicated, respectively, under article 6 and article 7 of Legislative Decree no. 446 of 15 December 1997).

Capital gains realised on Securities held by Italian investment funds, *Fondi Lussemburghesi Storici* a SICAF (an Italian investment company with fixed share capital) or a SICAV (an investment company with variable capital) established in Italy (the **"Fund"**) and either (i) the Fund or (ii) its manager is subject to the supervision of a regulatory authority and the relevant Securities are hel by an authorised intermediary, the Fund will not be subject to imposta *sostitutiva*, but will be included in the annual accrued increase of their net asset value. The net asset value will not be subject to tax with the Fund, but any distribution or any other income received upon redemption or disposal of the units or of the shares by the unitholders or shareholders may be subject to a withholding tax of 26 per cent. (the **"Collective Investment Fund Tax"**).

Capital gains realized on Securities held by real estate investment funds and Italian real estate SICAFs, both qualifying as such from a legal and regulatory perspective (the **"Real Estate Funds"**), to which the provisions of Law Decree N° 351 of 25 September 2001, Law Decree N° 78 of 31 May 2010, converted into Law N° 122 of 30 July 2010 and Legislative Decree N° 44 of 4 March 2014, all as amended, apply, will neither be subject to any *imposta sostitutiva*, nor to any other income tax with the Real Estate Funds.

Capital gains on the Securities held by an Italian resident pension fund (subject to the regime provided for by Article 17 of the Italian Legislative Decree N°252 of 5 December 2005) will not be subject to *imposta sostitutiva*, but will be included in the result of the relevant portfolio accrued at the end of the tax period, to be subject to a 20 per cent. substitute tax.

Capital gains realised by non-Italian resident Securityholders are not subject to Italian taxation provided that the Securities are held outside Italy or the capital gain derives from transaction executed in regulated market.

Securities having 100% capital protection guaranteed by the Issuer

Legislative Decree N°. 239 of 1 April 1996, as a subsequently amended, (the "**Decree N°. 239**") provides for the applicable regime with respect to the tax treatment of interest, premium and other income (including the difference between the redemption amount and the issue price) from securities falling within the category of bonds (*obbligazioni*) or debentures similar to bonds (*titoli similari alle obbligazioni*) issued, *inter alia*, by banks and by non-Italian resident issuers. For this purpose, pursuant to Article 44 of Presidential Decree N°. 917 of 22 December 1986, securities similar to bonds are securities that (i) incorporate an unconditional obligation to pay, at maturity, an amount not lower than their nominal value and (ii) do not grant to the relevant holders any right to directly or indirectly participate to the management of the issuer or of the business in relation to which they are issued or to control the same management.

Italian Resident Securityholders

Where the Italian resident Securityholder is:

- (i) an individual not engaged in an entrepreneurial activity to which the Securities are connected (unless the investor has opted for the application of the *risparmio gestito regime* – please refer to paragraph "Capital Gains Tax" above for an analysis of such regime); or
- (ii) a non-commercial partnership; or
- (iii) a non-commercial private or public institution; or
- (iv) an entity exempt from Italian corporate income taxation,

interest, premium and other income relating to the *Securities* are subject to a substitute tax (*imposta sostitutiva*), levied at the rate of 26 per cent. In the event that the *Securityholders* described under (i) and (iii) above are engaged in an entrepreneurial activity to which the *Securities* are connected, the *imposta sostitutiva* applies as a provisional tax and may be deducted from the taxation on income due.

Subject to certain limitations and requirements (including a minimum holding period), Italian resident individuals not acting in connection with an entrepreneurial activity may be exempt from any income taxation, including the *imposta sostitutiva*, on interest, premium and other income relating to the Securities if the Securities are included in a long-term savings account (*piano di risparmio a lungo termine*) that meets the requirements set forth in Article 1(100-114) of the Finance Act 2017.

Where an Italian resident Securityholder is a company or similar commercial entity or a permanent establishment in Italy of a foreign company to which the Securities are effectively connected and such Securities are deposited with an Italian resident intermediary, interest, premium and other proceeds from such Securities will not be subject to *imposta sostitutiva*, but must be included in the relevant Securityholder's income tax return and are therefore subject to general Italian corporate taxation (and, in certain circumstances, depending on the "status" of the Securityholder, also to IRAP).

Pursuant to Decree N°. 239, *imposta sostitutiva* is applied by banks, SIMs, fiduciary companies, SGRs, stockbrokers and other entities identified by a decree of the Ministry of Finance (each an "**Intermediary**") resident in Italy, or permanent establishment in Italy of a non Italian resident Intermediary, which intervene, in any way, in the collection of interest, premium and other income or in the transfer of the Securities. For the purpose of the application of the *imposta sostitutiva*, a transfer of Securities includes any assignment or other act, either with or without consideration, which results in a change of the ownership of the relevant Securities or in a change of the Intermediary with which the Securities are deposited.

Where the Securities are not deposited with an Intermediary, the *imposta sostitutiva* is applied and withheld by any Italian financial intermediary paying interest to a Securityholder or, absent that, by the Issuer.

Interest, premium and other proceeds relating to the Securities held by a Fund, will not be subject to the *imposta sostitutiva* at the Fund level, but any distribution or any other income received upon redemption or disposal of the units or of the shares by the unitholders or shareholders may be subject to the Collective Investment Fund Tax.

Interest, premium and other income on to the Securities held by Italian Real Estate Funds are subject neither to the imposta sostitutiva nor to any other income tax in the hands of the Real Estate Funds.

Where an Italian resident Securityholder is a pension fund (subject to the regime provided for by article 17 of the Legislative Decree No. 252 of 5 December 2005) and the Securities are deposited with an Italian resident intermediary, interest, premium and other income relating to the Securities and accrued during the holding period will not be subject to *imposta sostitutiva*, but must be included in the result of the relevant portfolio accrued at the end of the tax period, to be subject to a 20 per cent. substitute tax.

Non-Italian Resident Securityholders

No *imposta sostitutiva* is applied on payments made by non-Italian resident issuers to non-Italian resident Securityholders.

Pursuant to Decree N°. 239, payments made by an Italian resident issuer to non-Italian resident Securityholders are subject to a substitute tax at the rate of 26 per cent. in the Republic of Italy if made to beneficial owners who are non-Italian resident entities or individuals without a permanent establishment in Italy to which the Securities are effectively connected, which are not eligible for the exemption from substitute tax and/or do not timely and properly comply with the requirements set forth in Decree N°. 239 and the relevant application rules in order to benefit from the exemption from substitute tax. As to non-Italian resident beneficial owners, the substitute tax may apply at lower or nil rate under double taxation treaties entered into by Italy, where applicable, and in any case subject to proper compliance with subjective and procedural requirements provided for.

The 26 per cent. (or the lower rate provided for by the relevant applicable double taxation treaty) substitute tax will be generally applied by any Italian resident qualified financial intermediaries that will intervene, in any way, in the collection of interest on the Securities or in the transfer of the Securities.

Interest will not be subject to the 26 per cent. substitute tax if made to beneficial owners who are non-Italian resident beneficial owners of Securities not having a permanent establishment in Italy to which the Securities are effectively connected, provided that:

- such non-Italian resident beneficial owners are resident for tax purposes in a country which recognises the Italian fiscal authorities' right to an adequate exchange of information, as listed in the Italian Ministerial Decree of 4 September 1996, as amended by Ministerial Decree of 23 March 2017 and possibly further amended by future decrees issued pursuant to Article 11(4)(c) of Decree 239 (as amended by Legislative Decree No.147 of 14 September 2015) (the "White List"); and
- all the requirements and procedures set forth in Decree N°. 239 and the relevant implementing rules in order to benefit from the exemption from the substitute tax have been promptly and properly complied with.

Decree N°. 239, as amended and restated, also provides for additional exemptions from the substitute tax for payments of interest in respect of the Securities made to:

- international bodies and organisations established in accordance with international agreements ratified in Italy;
- foreign institutional investors resident or established in countries listed in the White List even if they do not posses the "status" of taxpayer in their own country of establishment; and
- Central Banks or entities managing official State reserves.

To ensure payment of interest in respect of the Securities without the application of the substitute tax, non Italian resident "qualified" investors must:

- be the beneficial owners of payments of interest on the Securities or foreign institutional investors not subject to tax;
- timely deposit the Securities together with the coupons relating to such Securities directly or indirectly with an Italian authorised financial Intermediary or with a non-Italian resident entity participating in a centralised securities management system which is in contact, via computer, with the Italian Ministry of Economy and France, and
- promptly file with the relevant depository a self-declaration stating, *inter alia*, to be resident, for tax purposes, or established, as the case may be, in a country which recognises the Italian fiscal authorities' right to an adequate exchange of information as listed in the White List. Such self-declaration which is requested neither for international bodies nor for entities set up in accordance with international agreements ratified by Italy nor for foreign Central

Banks or entities managing official State reserves - must comply with the requirements set forth by Italian Ministerial Decree of 12 December 2001 and is valid until withdrawn or revoked. Additional statements may be required for non-Italian resident Securityholders who are institutional investors.

Capital Gains Tax

Please refer to paragraph "Capital Gains Tax" above for an analysis of the regime.

Securities qualifying as atypical securities

Payments in respect of Securities which qualify as "Atypical securities" under Article 8 of Law Decree N° 512 of 30 September 1983 ("**Decree N. 512**") made by non-Italian resident issuers are subject to a withholding tax, levied at the rate of 26 per cent.

The 26 per cent. withholding tax is levied by any Italian resident entity which intervenes in the collection of payments on the Securities or in their repurchase or transfers. In case the payments on the Securities are not received through any aforementioned Italian resident entity, Italian resident individual Securityholders are required to report the payments in their income tax return and subject them to a final withholding tax at 26 per cent. rate. Italian resident individual Securityholders may elect instead to pay ordinary income tax at the progressive rates applicable to them in respect of the payments; if so, the Italian resident individual Securityholders should generally benefit from a tax credit for any withholding tax possible applied outside Italy.

The 26 per cent. withholding tax does not apply to payments made to a non-Italian resident Securityholder and to an Italian resident Securityholder which is (i) a company (including Italian permanent establishments of foreign entities) or similar commercial entity, (ii) a commercial partnerships or (iii) a private or public institution carrying out commercial activities.

Payments in respect of Securities which qualify as "Atypical securities" under Article 5 of Law Decree N° 512 made by Italian resident issuers are subject to a withholding tax, levied at the rate of 26 per cent. as well.

In particular, where the Securityholder is (i) an Italian resident individual engaged in an entrepreneurial activity to which the Securities are connected, (ii) an Italian resident company or a similar Italian resident commercial entity, (iii) a permanent establishment in Italy of a foreign entity to which the Securities are effectively connected, (iv) an Italian resident commercial partnership or (v) an Italian resident commercial private or public institution, the above-mentioned 26 per cent. withholding tax is a provisional withholding tax. In all other cases, including when the Securityholder is a non-Italian resident, the withholding tax is a final withholding tax. Double taxation treaties entered into by Italy may apply allowing for a lower (or, in certain cases, nil) rate of withholding tax in case of payments to non-Italian resident Securityholders, subject to proper compliance with relevant subjective and procedural requirements.

Subject to certain limitations and requirements (including a minimum holding period), Italian resident individuals not acting in connection with an entrepreneurial activity may be exempt from any income taxation, including the withholding tax on interest, premium and other income relating to the Securities (qualifying as Atypical securities under either Article 5 or Article 8 of Decree N. 512) that are classified as atypical securities, if the Securities are included in a long-term savings account (*piano di risparmio a lungo termine*) that meets the requirements set forth in Article 1(100-114) of Finance Act 2017.

Inheritance and gift taxes

Pursuant to Law Decree N°. 262 of 3 October 2006, converted into Law N°. 286 of 24 November 2006, the transfers of any valuable asset (including shares, bonds or other securities) as a result of death or donation are taxed as follows:

 transfers in favour of spouses and direct descendants or direct ancestors are subject to an inheritance and gift tax applied at a rate of 4 per cent. on the value of the inheritance or gift exceeding EUR 1,000,000 for each beneficiary;

- (b) transfers in favour of relatives to the fourth degree or relatives-in-law to the third degree are subject to an inheritance and gift tax at a rate of 6 per cent. on the entire value of the inheritance or the gift. Transfers in favour of brothers/sisters are subject to the 6 per cent. inheritance and gift tax on the value of the inheritance or gift exceeding EUR 100,000 for each beneficiary; and
- (c) any other transfer is subject to an inheritance and gift tax applied at a rate of 8 per cent. on the entire value of the inheritance or gift.

If the transfer is made in favour of persons with disabilities, the tax applies on the value exceeding EUR 1,500,000 for each beneficiary.

An anti-avoidance rule is provided by Law N°383 of 18 October 2001 for any gift of assets (such as the Securities) which, if sold for consideration, would give rise to capital gains subject to the 26 per cent. capital gains tax. In particular, if the donee sells the securities for consideration within five years from the receipt thereof as a gift, the donee is required to pay the relevant *imposta sostitutiva* on capital gains as if the gift has never taken place.

Transfer tax

Contracts relating to the transfer of Securities are subject to a Euro 200.00 registration tax as follows: (i) public deeds and notarised deeds are subject to mandatory registration; (ii) private deeds are subject to registration only in the case of voluntary registration.

Tax monitoring obligations

Pursuant to Italian Law Decree No. 167 of 28 June 1990, converted by Law No. 227 of 4 August 1990, as subsequently amended, individuals, non-commercial institutions and non-commercial partnerships resident in Italy, under certain conditions, will be required to report in their yearly income tax return, for tax monitoring purposes, the amount of Securities held abroad during each tax period.

The requirement applies also where the persons above, being not the direct holder of the financial instruments, are the actual owner of the instrument.

Furthermore, the above reporting requirement is not required to comply with respect to: (i) Securities deposited for management with qualified Italian financial intermediaries; (ii) contracts entered into through their intervention, upon condition that the items of income derived from the Securities have been subject to tax by the same intermediaries; or (iii) if the foreign investments are only composed by deposits and/or bank accounts and their aggregate value does not exceed a \in 15,000 threshold throughout the year.

Stamp duty

Pursuant to Article 19(1) of Decree No. 201 of 6 December 2011 ("**Decree 201**"), a proportional stamp duty applies on an annual basis to the periodic reporting communications sent by financial intermediaries, carrying out their business activity within the Italian territory, to their clients for the Securities deposited therewith. The stamp duty applies at the current rate of 0.2 per cent.; this stamp duty is determined on the basis of the market value or — if no market value figure is available — the nominal value or redemption amount of the Securities held. If the client is not an individual, the stamp duty cannot be higher than \in 14,000.00.

Based on the wording of the law and the implementing decree issued by the Italian Ministry of Economy on 24 May 2012, the stamp duty applies to any investor who is a client (as defined in the regulations issued by the Bank of Italy on 20 June 2012) of an entity that exercises in any form a banking, financial or insurance activity within the Italian territory. The communication is deemed to be sent to the customers at least once a year, even for instruments for which it is not mandatory.

Wealth tax

Pursuant to Article 19(18) of Decree 201, Italian resident individuals holding the Securities outside the Italian territory are required to pay an additional tax at the current rate of 0.2 per cent.

This tax is calculated on the market value of the Securities at the end of the relevant year or — if no market value figure is available — the nominal value or the redemption value of such financial assets held outside the Italian territory. Taxpayers are entitled to an Italian tax credit equivalent to the amount of wealth taxes paid in the State where the financial assets are held (up to an amount equal to the Italian wealth tax due).

Italian Financial Transaction Tax

Italian shares and other participating instruments, as well as depositary receipts representing those shares and participating instruments irrespective of the relevant issuer (cumulatively referred to as "**In-Scope Shares**"), received by a Securityholder upon physical settlement of the Securities may be subject to a 0.2 per cent. Italian financial transaction tax (the "**IFTT**") calculated on the value of the Securities, as determined according to Article 4 of Ministerial Decree of 21 February 2013, as amended (the "**IFTT Decree**").

Investors in certain equity-linked securities or derivatives mainly having as underlying or mainly linked to In-Scope Shares are subject to IFTT at a rate ranging between \in 0.01875 and \in 200 per counterparty, depending on the notional value of the relevant derivative transaction or transferable securities, calculated according to Article 9 of the IFTT Decree. IFTT applies upon subscription, negotiation or modification of the derivative transactions or transferable securities. The tax rate may be reduced to a fifth if the transaction is executed on certain qualifying regulated markets or multilateral trading facilities.

12. Poland

The following information of certain Polish taxation matters is based on the laws and practice in force as of the date of this Base Prospectus and is subject to any changes in law and the interpretation and application thereof, which changes could be made with retroactive effect. The following information does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all the tax consequences and considerations that may be relevant to acquisition, holding, disposing and redeeming of or cancelling (as applicable) the Securities, and does not purport to deal with the tax consequences applicable to all categories of investors. The following information is not intended to be, nor should it be construed to be, legal or tax advice. It is recommended that potential purchasers of Warrants and Certificates (the "**Securities**") consult with their legal and tax advisors as to the tax consequences of the purchase, holding, sale or redemption.

The reference to "interest" as well as to any other terms in the paragraphs below means "interest" or any other term as understood in Polish tax law.

Taxation of income

Polish resident individuals

Under Art. 3.1 of the Personal Income Tax Act dated 26 July (the **PIT Act**), natural persons, if residing in the Republic of Poland, are liable for tax on their total income (revenue) irrespective of the location of the sources of revenue (unlimited obligation to pay tax).

Under Art. 3.1a of the PIT Act, a Polish tax resident individual is a natural person who has his/her centre of personal or business interests located in Poland or who stays in Poland for longer than 183 days in a year, unless any relevant tax treaty dictates otherwise.

Interest income

Under Art. 30a.7 of the PIT Act, interest income does not cumulate with general income subject to the progressive tax rate, but under Art. 30a.1.2 of the PIT Act it is subject to a 19 *per cent*. flat rate tax.

Under Art. 41.4 of the PIT Act, interest payers, other than individuals not acting within the scope of his/her business activity, should withhold the 19 per cent. Polish tax on any interest payment.

Under Art. 41.4d of the PIT Act, the entities operating securities accounts for individuals, acting as tax remitters, should withhold this interest income if such interest income (revenue) has been earned in Poland and is connected with securities registered in said accounts, and the interest payment to the individual (the taxpayer) is made through said entities.

There are no regulations defining in which cases income earned (revenue) by a Polish tax resident should be considered income (revenue) earned in Poland. However, as of 1 January 2017 a new regulation addressing the source of income with respect to non-residents has been in force and it cannot be excluded that in practice the tax authorities will consider that the same situations should indicate a Polish source of income for Polish tax residents. Pursuant to Art. 3.2b of the PIT Act, income (revenues) earned in the Republic of Poland by non-residents shall include in particular income (revenues) from:

- 1. work performed in the Republic of Poland based on a service relationship, employment relationship, outwork system and co-operative employment relationship irrespective of the place where remuneration is paid;
- 2. activity performed in person in the Republic of Poland irrespective of the place where remuneration is paid;
- 3. economic activity pursued in the Republic of Poland, including through a foreign establishment located in the Republic of Poland;
- 4. immovable property located in the Republic of Poland or rights to such property, including from its disposal in whole or in part, or from disposal of any rights to such property;
- 5. securities and derivatives other than securities, admitted to public trading in the Republic of Poland as part of the regulated stock exchange market, including those obtained from the disposal of these securities or derivatives, or the exercise of rights resulting from them;
- 6. the transfer of ownership of shares in a company, of all rights and obligations in a partnership without legal personality, or units in an investment fund or a collective investment undertaking, in which at least 50% of the value of assets is constituted, directly or indirectly, by immovable properties located in the Republic of Poland, or rights to such immovable properties;
- 7. the receivables settled, including receivables put at disposal, paid out or deducted, by natural persons, legal persons, or organisational units without legal personality, having their place of residence, registered office, or management board in the Republic of Poland, irrespective of the place of concluding and performing the agreement.

The above list is not exhaustive; therefore, the tax authorities may also consider that income (revenues) not listed above is sourced in Poland.

Given the above, each situation should be analysed to determine whether interest earned by a Polish tax resident individual from the Securities is considered to be income sourced in Poland and whether the entity operating the securities account for the individual will withhold the tax.

Although this is not clearly regulated in Polish tax law, in fact, foreign entities do not act as Polish withholding tax remitters. Therefore, it should be expected that the issuer itself or a non-Polish entity operating the securities account for the individual will not withhold the tax.

Under Art. 45.3b of the PIT Act (and Art. 45.3c of the Polish PIT Act with respect to securities held in Polish omnibus accounts), if the tax is not withheld, the individual is obliged to settle the tax himself/herself by 30 April of the following year.

Separate, specific rules apply to interest income on securities held in Polish omnibus accounts (within the meaning of the provisions of the Act on Trading in Financial Instruments, hereinafter **Omnibus Accounts**). Under Art. 41.10 of the PIT Act, insofar as securities registered in Omnibus

Accounts are concerned, the entities operating Omnibus Accounts through which the amounts due are paid are liable to withhold the flat-rate income tax on interest income. The tax is charged on the day of placing the amounts due at the disposal of the Omnibus Account holder.

Pursuant to Art. 30a.2a of the PIT Act, with respect to income (revenue) from interest transferred to taxpayers holding rights attached to securities registered in Omnibus Accounts whose identity has not been revealed to the tax remitter in accordance with the Act on Trading in Financial Instruments, a 19% flat-rate tax is withheld by the tax remitter (under Art. 41.10 of the PIT Act the entity operating the Omnibus Account) from the aggregate income (revenue) released for the benefit of all such taxpayers through the Omnibus Account holder.

Under Art. 30a.9 of the PIT Act, withholding tax incurred outside Poland (including countries which have not concluded a tax treaty with Poland), up to an amount equal to the tax paid abroad, but not higher than 19 per cent. tax on the interest amount, could be deducted from the Polish tax liability. Double tax treaties can provide other methods of withholding tax settlements.

Other income

Income other than interest derived by a Polish tax resident individual from financial instruments held as non-business assets, qualify as capital income according to Art. 17 of the PIT Act. This income does not cumulate with the general income subject to the progressive tax scale but is subject to a 19 per cent. flat rate tax. The costs of acquiring the securities are recognised at the time the revenue is achieved. In principle, this income should be settled by the taxpayer by 30 April of the year following the year in which the income was earned. No tax or tax advances are withheld by the person making the payments.

Securities held as business assets

If an individual holds the Securities as a business asset, in principle, the income should be taxed in the same way as other business income. The tax, at the 19 per cent. flat rate, or the 18 per cent. to 32 per cent. progressive tax rate depending on the choice and meeting of certain conditions by the individual, should be settled by the individual himself/herself.

Polish resident corporate income taxpayers

Under Art. 3.1 of the Corporate Income Tax Act dated 15 February 1992 (the **CIT Act**) the entire income of taxpayers who have their registered office or management in Poland is subject to tax obligation in Poland, irrespective of where the income is earned.

The appropriate tax rate is the same as the tax rate applicable to business activity, ie 19 per cent. for a regular corporate income taxpayer or 15 per cent.for small and new taxpayers.

Polish tax resident corporate income taxpayer is income tax in respect of securities (both on any capital gains and on interest/discount) following the same principles as those which apply to any other income received from business activity. As a rule, for Polish income tax purposes interest is recognised as revenue on a cash basis, i.e. when it is received and not when it has accrued. In respect of capital gains, the cost of acquiring the Securities will be recognised at the time the revenue is achieved.

Although no Polish withholding tax should apply on interest payable to Polish corporate income taxpayers, under specific rules applying to interest income on securities held in Omnibus Accounts, under Art. 26.2a of the CIT Act, for income (revenue) from interest transferred to taxpayers holding rights attached to securities registered in Omnibus Accounts whose identity has not been revealed to the tax remitter in accordance with the Act on Trading in Financial Instruments, a 20 per cent flat-rate tax is withheld by the tax remitter from the aggregate income (revenue) released for the benefit of all such taxpayers through the Omnibus Account holder. If such tax is withheld for a Polish tax resident corporate income taxpayer, to receive a refund of such tax, the entity should contact its tax advisor.

Non-resident individuals and corporate income taxpayers

Under Art. 3.2a of the PIT Act, natural persons, if they do not reside in Poland, are liable to pay tax only on income (revenue) earned in Poland (limited obligation to pay tax).

Under Art. 3.2 of the CIT Act, in the case of taxpayers who do not have their registered office or management in Poland, only the income they earn in Poland is subject to tax obligation in Poland.

Non-Polish tax resident individuals and corporate income taxpayers are subject to Polish income tax only on income earned in Poland. Until 1 January 2017, there were no provisions clarifying the territory where such income for corporate income tax purposes is generated. Since that date, under Art. 3.3 of the CIT Act, income (revenues) earned in the Republic of Poland by non-residents shall include in particular income (revenues) from:

- 1. all types of activity pursued in the Republic of Poland, including through a foreign establishment located in the Republic of Poland;
- 2. immovable property located in the Republic of Poland or rights to such property, including from its disposal in whole or in part, or from the disposal of any rights to such property;
- 3. securities and derivatives other than securities, admitted to public trading in the Republic of Poland as part of the regulated stock exchange market, including those obtained from the disposal of these securities or derivatives, or the exercise of rights resulting from them;
- 4. the transfer of ownership of shares in a company, of all rights and obligations in a partnership without legal personality, or units in an investment fund or a collective investment undertaking, in which at least 50% of the value of assets is constituted, directly or indirectly, by immovable properties located in the Republic of Poland, or rights to such immovable properties;
- 5. the receivables settled, including receivables put at disposal, paid out or deducted, by natural persons, legal persons, or organisational units without legal personality, having their place of residence, registered office, or management board in the Republic of Poland, irrespective of the place of concluding or performing the agreement.

Similar provisions are included in Art. 3.2b of the PIT Act.

It should be noted that the list of incomes (revenues) gained in Poland, as provided in Art. 3.3. of the CIT Act and Art. 3.2b of the PIT Act is not exhaustive, therefore, other income (revenues) may also be considered as earned in Poland.

Even though the above list of circumstances in which income (revenue) is sourced in Poland is not exhaustive, it could be argued that in principle payments under the securities issued by a foreign entity are not sourced in Poland unless one of the cases indicated above occurs (in particular, the Securities are traded on the Warsaw Stock Exchange or the payment is made by a Polish entity or individual).

If the payment is considered as interest sourced in Poland and the payer of the interest is a tax remitter under Polish tax regulations, the withholding tax at 20 per cent under Art. 21.1.1 of the CIT Act or at 19 per cent under Art. 30a.1.2 of the PIT Act should apply. It should be noted, however, that although this is not clearly regulated in the Polish tax law, in fact, foreign entities do not act as Polish withholding tax remitters.

Moreover, if the payment under the Securities is considered to be sourced in Poland, then the relevant double tax treaty (if any) should be verified to check whether Polish taxation applies at all or whether the withholding tax rate is reduced under the given tax treaty. For example, most of the tax treaties concluded by Poland provide for a tax exemption for Polish income tax on capital gains derived from Poland by a foreign tax resident. To benefit from a tax treaty, a foreign investor should present the relevant certificate of its tax residency. Moreover, many tax treaties provide protection only for beneficial owners. Pursuant to Art. 4a.29 of the CIT Act, beneficial owner shall mean the entity receiving a given receivable for its own benefit, not being an intermediary, representative, trustee, or another entity obliged to transfer the receivable in whole or in part to another entity.

Under Art. 26.1 of the CIT Act, interest payers, other than individuals not acting within the scope of his/her business activity, should withhold the 20 per cent. Polish tax on any interest payment. Similar provision concerning interest payments to the individuals is provided in Art. 41.4 of the PIT Act.

Separate, specific rules apply to interest income on securities held in Omnibus Accounts. Also, in cases where Polish withholding tax should not apply on interest payable to non-Polish tax residents (natural persons or corporate income taxpayers), under specific rules applicable to interest income on securities held in Omnibus Accounts there is a risk that such tax would be withheld. Under Art. 26.2a of the CIT Act, with respect to income (revenue) from interest transferred to taxpayers holding rights attached to securities registered in Omnibus Accounts whose identity has not been revealed to the tax remitter in accordance with the Act on Trading in Financial Instruments, a 20% flat-rate tax is withheld by the tax remitter from the aggregate income (revenue) released for the benefit of all such taxpayers through the Omnibus Accounts whose identity has not been revealed to securities registered in Omnibus Account holder. Under Art. 30a.2a of the PIT Act, with respect to income (revenue) from interest transferred to taxpayers holding rights attached to securities registered in Omnibus Account holder. Under Art. 30a.2a of the PIT Act, with respect to income (revenue) from interest transferred to taxpayers holding rights attached to securities registered in Omnibus Accounts whose identity has not been revealed to the tax remitter in accordance with the Act on Trading in Financial Instruments, a 19% flat-rate tax is withheld by the tax remitter from the aggregate income (revenue) released for the benefit of all such taxpayers through the Omnibus Account holder. If such tax is withheld for non-Polish tax resident taxpayers, to receive a refund of such tax, the entity should contact its tax advisor.

If a foreign recipient of income acts through a permanent establishment in Poland to which interest is related, as a matter of principle it should be treated in the same manner as a Polish tax resident.

Tax on civil law transactions

Neither an issuance of the Securities nor a redemption of the Securities is subject to tax on civil law transactions.

Under Art. 1.1.1.a of the Tax on Civil Law Transactions Act dated 9 September 2000 (the **PCC Act**), agreements for the sale or exchange of assets or proprietary rights are subject to tax on civil law transactions. The Securities should be considered as representing proprietary rights. Transactions are taxable if their subjects are:

- assets located in Poland or proprietary rights exercisable in Poland;
- assets located abroad or proprietary rights exercisable abroad if the acquirer's place of residence or registered office is located in Poland and the civil law transaction was carried out in Poland.

Although this is not clearly addressed in the law, in principle the Securities should not be considered as rights exercisable in Poland, consequently, the tax would apply only if the purchaser was Polish and the transaction was concluded in Poland.

If the sale or exchange of the Securities is subject to PCC, then the tax at 1% of the market value of the Securities should be payable within 14 days after the sale or exchange agreement is entered into. However, if such agreement has been entered into in notarial form, the tax due should be withheld and paid by the notary public. Tax on the sale of the Securities is payable by the entity acquiring the Securities. In the case of exchange agreements, in principle, tax on civil law transactions should be payable by both parties jointly and severally.

However, under Art. 9.9 of the PCC Act, a PCC exemption applies to the sale of property rights constituting financial instruments (such as the Securities): a) to investment companies and foreign investment companies, b) via investment companies or foreign investment companies, c) as part of organised trading, d) outside organised trading by investment companies and foreign investment companies, if those rights were acquired by those companies under organised trading (within the meaning of the provisions of the Act of 29 July 2005 on Trading in Financial Instruments.

Remitter's liability

Under Art. 30 of the Tax Code dated 29 August 1997, a tax remitter failing to fulfil its duty to calculate, withhold or pay tax to a relevant tax authority is liable for the tax that has not been withheld or that

has been withheld but not paid, up to the value of all its assets. The tax remitter is not liable if the specific provisions provide otherwise or if tax has not been withheld due to the taxpayer's fault. In such case, the relevant tax authority will issue a decision concerning the taxpayer's liability.

13. Portugal

For Portuguese Securities issued by Deutsche Bank AG acting through its Portuguese Branch and centralized in Interbolsa

The following is a summary of the current Portuguese tax treatment at the date hereof in relation to certain aspects of the Portuguese taxation of payments in respect of the Portuguese Securities that are Certificates, Warrants and Notes. The statements do not deal with other Portuguese tax aspects regarding such Portuguese Securities and relate only to the position of persons who are absolute beneficial owners of such Securities. The following is a general guide, does not constitute tax or legal advice and should be treated with appropriate caution. The holders of such Portuguese Securities who are in any doubt as to their tax position should consult their own professional advisers.

Income tax applicable to Certificate holders

The positive difference, if any, between the minimum amount guaranteed and the subscription price of the Certificates qualifies as investment income, which is subject to Personal Income Tax ("**PIT**") and Corporate Income Tax ("**CIT**") in Portugal and is also subject to withholding tax in Portugal (further details regarding the regime applicable in such circumstances are set out below). The relevant withholding, if applicable, to a given beneficial owner of Certificates will be made by the Affiliate Member of Interbolsa (which may or not be the Issuer) through which such beneficial owner holds the Certificates.

Any income arising from Certificates that do not guarantee a minimum income to the Certificate holders qualifies under Portuguese tax law as a capital gain and therefore no withholding tax applies.

PIT

Investment Income

Resident

Investment income obtained by tax resident individuals, and by non-resident individuals through a Portuguese permanent establishment, from Certificates shall be withheld at the flat rate of 28 per cent., unless the individual opts to aggregate such income to his taxable income, which will be calculated subject to progressive rates of up to 48 per cent. An additional solidarity charge of 2.5 per cent. applies on income in excess than €80,000 up to €250,000 and at 5 per cent. on income in excess of €250,000. Also, if the option of income aggregation is made, an additional surcharge is due for the tax year of 2017 according to the taxpayer taxable income, as follows: (i) 0.88 per cent for taxable income exceeding €20,261 up to €40,522; (ii) 2.75 per cent for taxable income exceeding €40,522 up to €80,640 and (iii) 3.21 per cent for taxable income above €80,640. Investment income paid or made available to accounts opened in the name of one or more accountholders acting on behalf of one or more unidentified third parties is subject to a final withholding tax rate of 35 per cent., unless the relevant beneficial owner(s) of the income is/are identified, in which case, the withholding tax rates applicable to such beneficial owner(s) will apply.

Non resident

Investment income obtained by non-resident individuals without a permanent establishment located in Portugal to which the income may be attributable, from Certificates issued by Portuguese entities is subject to withholding tax at a rate of 28 per cent., which is the final tax on that income. A withholding tax rate of 35 per cent. applies in case of investment income payments to individuals resident in the countries and territories included in the Portuguese "blacklist" (countries and territories listed in Ministerial Order (*Portaria*) no. 292/2011, of 8 November 2011, and by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 345-A/2016, of 30 December 2016). Investment income paid or made available to accounts opened in the name of one or more accountholders acting on behalf of one or more

unidentified third parties is subject to a final withholding tax rate of 35 per cent., unless the relevant beneficial owner(s) of the income is/are identified, in which case, the withholding tax rates applicable to such beneficial owner(s) will apply (i.e. 28 per cent. or 35 per cent. in the case of individuals resident in blacklisted countries or territories). Under the tax treaties entered into by Portugal that are in full force and effect on the date of this Prospectus, the withholding tax rate may be reduced provided that the relevant formalities (including certification of residence by the tax authorities of the jurisdiction of residence of the beneficial owners of the investment income) are met. The reduction may apply at source or by way of a refund of the excess tax.

Capital gains

Resident

Gains obtained by tax resident individuals and by non-resident individuals through a Portuguese permanent establishment on transactions related to Certificates (with the exception of the remuneration arising from Certificates that guarantee the holder the right to receive a minimum value in excess of the subscription value) are subject to Portuguese capital gains taxation.

The taxable income subject to PIT is determined by the positive difference between the consideration received from the sale, transfer or redemption of the Certificates and their acquisition price. Any expenses directly and pertinently connected with the transaction are considered to be irrelevant for purpose of assessing the relevant taxable gain.

Individuals may choose between (i) the taxation of the positive balance between capital gains and losses (losses resulting from transactions with parties resident in the countries and territories included in the Portuguese "blacklist" (countries and territories listed in Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 150/2004, of 13 February 2004, amended by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 292/2011, 8 November 2011, and by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 345-A/2016, of 30 December 2016) at the autonomous rate of 28 per cent., or (ii) to aggregate that income to the remaining taxable income.

When aggregation is chosen, the taxable income will be subject to the general progressive personal income tax rates up to 48 per cent. An additional solidarity charge of of 2.5 per cent. applies on income in excess than €80,000 up to €250,000 and at 5 per cent. on income in excess of €250,000. Also, if the option of income aggregation is made, an additional surcharge will also be due for the tax year of 2017 according to the taxpayer taxable income, as follows: (i) 0.88 per cent for taxable income exceeding €20,261 up to €40,522; (ii) 2.75 per cent for taxable income exceeding €40,522 up to €80,640 and (iii) 3.21 per cent for taxable income above €80,640. The option for aggregation allows an individual to carry forward any losses related to Certificates during a five year period. However, such losses may only be used to offset future gains deriving from transactions related to Certificates.

Non resident

As far as the taxation of capital gains is concerned, gains obtained by non-resident individuals without a permanent establishment located in Portugal to which the income may be attributable, on transactions related to Certificates issued by Portuguese entities are subject to PIT taxation at a tax rate of 28 per cent.. However, such capital gains shall be exempt from PIT whenever the seller is not resident in a country and territory included in the Portuguese "blacklist" (countries and territories listed in Ministerial Order (*Portaria*) no. 150/2004, of 13 February 2004, amended by Ministerial Order (*Portaria*) no. 292/2011, 8 November 2011, and by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 345-A/2016, of 30 December 2016). Under the tax treaties entered into by Portugal, such gains are usually not subject to Portuguese PIT, but the applicable rules should be confirmed on a case by case basis. There is no Portuguese withholding tax on capital gains made on Certificates.

CIT

Investment income

Resident

Investment income in respect of the Certificates obtained by legal persons resident in Portugal for tax purposes and by non-resident legal persons with a permanent establishment in Portugal to which the income is attributable, is included in the taxable profits of such legal persons and is subject to a tax rate of 21 per cent. or at a 17 per cent. tax rate on the first $\leq 15,000$ in the case of small or medium-sized enterprises to which may be added a municipal surcharge ("*derrama municipal*") of up to 1.5 per cent. of such taxable profits. A State Surcharge ("*derrama estadual*") will be payable at the following rates: 3 per cent. on the part of a corporate taxpayer's taxable profits exceeding $\leq 1,500,000$ up to $\leq 7,500,000$; 5 per cent. on the part of the taxable profits exceeding $\leq 35,000,000$; and 7 per cent on the part of such taxable profits exceeding $\leq 35,000,000$.

As a general rule, withholding tax at a rate of 25 per cent. applies on investment income, any amounts so withheld being deemed to be a payment on account of the final tax due. Financial institutions, pension funds, retirement and/or education savings funds, share savings funds, venture capital funds, undertaking for collective investment incorporated under the laws in Portugal and some exempt entities are not subject to Portuguese withholding tax. Investment income paid or made available to accounts opened in the name of one or more accountholders acting on behalf of one or more unidentified third parties is subject to a final withholding tax rate of 35 per cent., unless the relevant beneficial owner(s) of the income is/are identified, in which case, the withholding tax rates applicable to such beneficial owner(s) will apply.

Non resident

Investment income obtained by non-resident legal persons without a permanent establishment in the Portuguese territory to which the income is attributable, from Certificates issued by Portuguese entities is subject to withholding tax at a rate of 25 per cent. which is the final tax payable on that income. A withholding tax rate of 35 per cent. applies in case of investment income payments to legal persons resident in the countries and territories included in the Portuguese "blacklist" (countries and territories listed in Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 150/2004, of 13 February 2004, amended by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 292/2011, 8 November 2011, and by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 345-A/2016, of 30 December 2016). Investment income paid or made available to accounts opened in the name of one or more accountholders acting on behalf of one or more unidentified third parties is subject to a final withholding tax rate of 35 per cent., unless the relevant beneficial owner(s) of the income is/are identified, in which case, the withholding tax rates applicable to such beneficial owner(s) will apply (i.e. 25 per cent. or 35 per cent. in the case of legal persons resident in blacklisted countries or territories). Under the tax treaties entered into by Portugal, which are in full force and effect on the date of this Prospectus, the withholding tax rate may be reduced provided that the relevant formalities (including certification of residence by the tax authorities of the jurisdiction of residence of the beneficial owners of the investment income) are met. The reduction may apply at source or by way of a refund of the excess tax.

Capital gains

Resident

Gains obtained by legal persons resident in Portugal for tax purposes and by non-resident legal persons with a permanent establishment in Portugal to which the income is attributable, on transactions related to Certificates (with the exception of the remuneration arising from Certificates that guarantee the holder the right to receive a minimum value in excess of the subscription value), are subject to Portuguese capital gains taxation.

The taxable income subject to CIT shall be subject to a tax rate of 21 per cent. or at a 17 per cent. tax rate on the first \in 15,000 in the case of small and medium-sized enterprises applicable on the taxable profits, to which may be added a municipal surcharge ("*derrama municipal*") of up to 1.5 per cent. of such taxable profits. A State Surcharge ("*derrama estadual*") will be payable at the following rates: 3 per cent. on the part of a corporate taxpayer's taxable profits exceeding \in 1,500,000 up to \in 7,500,000; 5 per cent. on the part of the taxable profits exceeding \in 7,500,000 up to \in 35,000,000; and 7 per cent on the part of such taxable profits exceeding \in 35,000,000. There is no Portuguese withholding tax on capital gains made on Certificates.

Non resident

As far as the taxation of capital gains is concerned, gains obtained by legal persons without a permanent establishment in the Portuguese territory to which the income is attributable, on transactions related to Certificates issued by Portuguese entities are in principle subject to CIT taxation at a tax rate of 25 per cent.. However, such capital gains shall be exempt from CIT whenever the seller (i) is not more than 25% directly or indirectly held by Portuguese resident entities and/or (ii) is not resident in a country and territory included in the Portuguese "blacklist" (countries and territories listed in Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 150/2004, of 13 February 2004, amended by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 292/2011, 8 November 2011), and by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 345-A/2016, of 30 December 2016). For the first exception (i.e. if the seller is held directly and indirectly more than 25% by Portuguese resident entities) the capital gains are still exempt if the following requirements are cumulatively met: (i) the beneficial owner is resident in an EU Member State, in an European Economic Area Member State which is bound to cooperate with Portugal under an administrative cooperation arrangement in tax matters similar to the exchange of information schemes in relation to tax matters existing within the EU Member States, or in a country with which Portugal has a double tax treaty in force which foresees the exchange of information; (ii) the beneficial owner is subject and not exempt from a tax referred to on article 2 of Council Directive 2011/96/UE of 30 November 2011, or from a tax of similar nature with a rate not lower than 60 per cent of the Portuguese IRC rate (currently 12.6 per cent.); (iii) the beneficial owner holds, directly or indirectly, at least 10 per cent. of the share capital or voting rights for at least 1 year uninterruptedly of the entity disposed; (iv) the beneficial owner is not part of an arrangement or series of arrangements which have been put into place for the main purpose or one of the main purposes of obtaining a tax advantage. Under the tax treaties entered into by Portugal, such gains are usually not subject to Portuguese CIT, but the applicable rules should be confirmed on a case by case basis. There is no Portuguese withholding tax on capital gains made on Certificates.

Other taxes

A 10% stamp duty applies to the acquisition through gift or inheritance of Certificates by an individual except when the beneficiary is the respective spouse, *de facto* spouce, parent or children. Legal persons are subject to CIT on the acquisition through gift or inheritance of Certificates, when issued by an entity domiciled in the Portuguese territory.

Warrants

Income tax applicable to Warrants holders

PIT

Capital gains

Resident

Income arising from autonomous Warrants is characterised as capital gains and subject to PIT.

Individuals may choose between (i) the taxation of the positive balance between capital gains and losses (losses resulting from transactions with parties resident in the countries and territories listed in Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 150/2004, of 13 February 2004, amended by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 292/2011, 8 November 2011, and by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 345-A/2016, of 30 December 2016, are excluded) at the autonomous rate of 28 per cent., or (ii) to aggregate that income to the remaining taxable income.

When aggregation is chosen, the taxable income will be subject to the general progressive personal income tax rates up to 48 per cent. An additional solidarity charge of 2.5 per cent. applies on income in excess than €80,000 up to €250,000 and at 5 per cent. on income in excess of €250,000. Also, if the option of income aggregation is made, an additional surcharge will also be due for the tax year of 2017 according to the taxpayer taxable income, as follows: (i) 0.88 per cent for taxable income exceeding €20,261 up to €40,522; (ii) 2.75 per cent for taxable income exceeding €40,522 up to €80,640 and (iii) 3.21 per cent for taxable income above €80,640. The option for aggregation allows an individual to carry forward any losses related to Warrants during a five year period. However, such losses may only be used to offset future gains deriving from transactions related to Warrants.

In either cases, there is no Portuguese withholding tax on capital gains made on autonomous Warrants.

Non resident

As far as the taxation of capital gains is concerned, gains obtained by non-resident individuals without a permanent establishment located in Portugal to which the income may be attributable, on transactions related to Warrants issued by Portuguese entities and traded on regulated stock markets are subject to PIT taxation at a standard 28 percent rate. However, such capital gains shall be exempt from PIT whenever the seller is not resident in a country and territory included in the Portuguese "blacklist" (countries and territories listed in Ministerial Order (*Portaria*) no. 150/2004, of 13 February 2004, amended by Ministerial Order (*Portaria*) no. 292/2011, 8 November 2011, and by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 345-A/2016, of 30 December 2016). Under the tax treaties entered into by Portugal, such gains are usually not subject to Portuguese PIT, but the applicable rules should be confirmed on a case by case basis.

There is no Portuguese withholding tax on capital gains made on autonomous Warrants.

CIT

Capital gains

Resident

The positive difference between capital gains and capital losses on the sale or exercise of the autonomous Warrants is included in taxable profit and is subject to CIT at a 21 per cent. tax rate or

at a 17 per cent. tax rate on the first €15,000 in the case of small and medium-sized enterprises applicable on its taxable income, to which may be added a municipal surcharge ("*derrama municipal*") of up to 1.5 per cent. of such taxable income. A State Surcharge ("*derrama estadual*") will be payable at the following rates: 3 per cent. on the part of a corporate taxpayer's taxable profits exceeding €1,500,000 up to €7,500,000; 5 per cent. on the part of the taxable profits exceeding €7,500,000 up to €35,000,000; and 7 per cent on the part of such taxable profits exceeding €35,000,000. There is no Portuguese withholding tax on capital gains made on autonomous Warrants.

Non resident

Capital gains derived from the sale of autonomous Warrants issued by Portuguese entities and obtained by non-resident legal persons without a permanent establishment located in Portugal to which the income may be attributable, are subject to CIT taxation at a tax rate of 25 per cent. However, such capital gains shall be exempt from CIT whenever the seller (i) is not more than 25% directly or indirectly held by Portuguese resident entities and/or (ii) is not resident in a country and territory included in the Portuguese "blacklist" (countries and territories listed in Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 150/2004. of 13 February 2004. amended by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 292/2011. 8 November 2011, and by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 345-A/2016, of 30 December 2016) and the Warrant is not traded on regulated stock markets. For the first exception (i.e. if the seller is held directly and indirectly more than 25% by Portuguese resident entities) the capital gains are still exempt if the following requirements are cumulatively met: (i) the beneficial owner is resident in an EU Member State, in an European Economic Area Member State which is bound to cooperate with Portugal under an administrative cooperation arrangement in tax matters similar to the exchange of information schemes in relation to tax matters existing within the EU Member States, or in a country with which Portugal has a double tax treaty in force which foresees the exchange of information; (ii) the beneficial owner is subject and not exempt from a tax referred to on article 2 of Council Directive 2011/96/UE of 30 November 2011, or from a tax of similar nature with a rate not lower than 60 per cent of the Portuguese IRC rate (currently 12.6 per cent.); (iii) the beneficial owner holds, directly or indirectly, at least 10 per cent. of the share capital or voting rights for at least 1 year uninterruptedly of the entity disposed; (iv) the beneficial owner is not part of an arrangement or series of arrangements which have been put into place for the main purpose or one of the main purposes of obtaining a tax advantage. Under the tax treaties entered into by Portugal, such gains are usually not subject to Portuguese CIT, but the applicable rules should be confirmed on a case by case basis. There is no Portuguese withholding tax on capital gains made on autonomous Warrants.

Other taxes

A 10% stamp duty applies to the acquisition through gift or inheritance of autonomous Warrants by an individual except when the beneficiary is the respective spouse, *de facto* spouse, parent or children. There is no wealth tax in Portugal. Legal persons are subject to CIT on the acquisition through gift or inheritance of autonomous Warrants, when issued by an entity domiciled in Portuguese the territory.

Notes

Economic benefits derived from interest, accrued interest, amortisation and reimbursement premiums and other instances of remuneration arising in respect of Notes are designated as investment income for Portuguese tax purposes. However the difference between the sales proceeds and the acquisition cost, net of interest accrued from the last interest payment date or from the date of issue, placement or endorsement if payment has not occurred, to the date of transfer, shall be classified for Portuguese tax purposes as a capital gain,

PIT

Resident

Interest and other types of investment income obtained from Notes held by a Portuguese resident individual, or by a non-resident individual through a Portuguese permanent establishment, is subject

to PIT. If payment of interest or other investment income is made available to Portuguese resident individuals, withholding tax applies at a rate of 28 per cent., which is the final tax payable on that income unless the individual elects to include such income in his taxable income (income being subject to tax at progressive rates of up to 48 per cent). An additional solidarity charge of 2.5 per cent. applies on income in excess than €80,000 up to €250,000 and at 5% on income in excess of€250,000. Also, if the option of income aggregation is made, an additional surcharge will also be due for the tax year of 2017 according to the taxpayer taxable income, as follows: (i) 0.88 per cent for taxable income exceeding €20,261 up to €40,522; (ii) 2.75 per cent for taxable income exceeding €40,522 up to €80,640 and (iii) 3.21 per cent for taxable income above €80,640. Accrued interest qualifies as interest for tax purposes.

Investment income paid or made available to accounts opened in the name of one or more accountholders acting on behalf of one or more unidentified third parties is subject to a final withholding tax rate of 35 per cent., unless the relevant beneficial owner(s) of the income is/are identified, in which case, the withholding tax rates applicable to such beneficial owner(s) will apply.

Non resident

Interest and other types of investment income obtained by non-resident individuals without a Portuguese permanent establishment to which the income is attributable, from Notes issued by Portuguese entities is subject to withholding tax at a rate of 28 per cent., which is the final tax payable on that income. A withholding tax rate of 35 per cent, applies in case of investment income payments to legal persons resident in the countries and territories included in the Portuguese "blacklist" (countries and territories listed in Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 150/2004, of 13 February 2004, amended by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 292/2011, 8 November 2011, and by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 345-A/2016, of 30 December 2016). Investment income paid or made available to accounts opened in the name of one or more accountholders acting on behalf of one or more unidentified third parties is subject to a final withholding tax rate of 35 per cent., unless the relevant beneficial owner(s) of the income is/are identified, in which case, the withholding tax rates applicable to such beneficial owner(s) will apply (i.e. 28 per cent. or 35 per cent. in the case of legal persons resident in blacklisted countries or territories). Under the tax treaties entered into by Portugal, which are in full force and effect on the date of this Prospectus, the withholding tax rate may be reduced, provided that the relevant formalities (including certification of residence by the tax authorities of the jurisdiction of residence of the beneficial owners of the interest and other investment income) are met. The reduction may apply at source or by way of a refund of the excess tax.

Pursuant to the special debt securities tax regime described below, interest and capital gains deriving from Notes are PIT exempt provided certain conditions apply.

CIT

Resident

Interest and other investment income derived from Notes obtained by legal persons resident for tax purposes in Portugal and by non-resident legal persons with a permanent establishment in Portugal to which the income is attributable, are included in the taxable profits of such legal persons and are subject to a 21 per cent. tax rate or at a 17 per cent. tax rate on the first $\leq 15,000$ in the case of small and medium-sized enterprises, to which may be added a municipal surcharge ("*derrama municipal*") of up to 1.5 per cent. of such taxable profits. A State Surcharge ("*derrama estadual*") will be payable at the following rates: 3 per cent. on the part of a corporate taxpayer's taxable profits exceeding $\leq 1,500,000$ up to $\leq 7,500,000$; 5 per cent. on the part of the taxable profits exceeding $\leq 35,000,000$; and 7 per cent on the part of such taxable profits exceeding $\leq 35,000,000$.

As a general rule, withholding tax at a rate of 25 per cent. applies on interest and other investment income, any amounts so withheld being deemed to be a payment on account of the final tax due. Financial institutions, pension funds, retirement and/or education savings funds, share savings funds, venture capital funds, undertaking for collective investment incorporated under the laws in Portugal and some exempt entities are not subject to Portuguese withholding tax.

Non resident

Interest and other types of investment income obtained by non-resident legal persons without a Portuguese permanent establishment to which the income is attributable, from Notes issued by Portuguese entities are subject to withholding tax at a rate of 25 per cent., which is the final tax payable on that income. A withholding tax rate of 35 per cent. applies in case of investment income payments to legal persons resident in the countries and territories included in the Portuguese "blacklist" (countries and territories listed in Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 150/2004. of 13 February 2004, amended by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 292/2011, 8 November 2011, and by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 345-A/2016, of 30 December 2016). Investment income paid or made available to accounts opened in the name of one or more accountholders acting on behalf of one or more unidentified third parties is subject to a final withholding tax rate of 35 per cent., unless the relevant beneficial owner(s) of the income is/are identified, in which case, the withholding tax rates applicable to such beneficial owner(s) will apply (i.e. 25 per cent. or 35 per cent. in the case of legal persons resident in blacklisted countries or territories). Under the tax treaties entered into by Portugal, which are in full force and effect on the date of this Prospectus, the withholding tax rate may be reduced, provided that the relevant formalities (including certification of residence by the tax authorities of the jurisdiction of residence of the beneficial owners of the interest and other investment income) are met. The reduction may apply at source or by way of a refund of the excess tax.

Pursuant to the special debt securities tax regime described below, interest and capital gains deriving from Notes are CIT exempt provided certain conditions apply.

Other taxes

A 10% stamp duty applies to the acquisition through gift or inheritance of Notes by an individual except when the beneficiary is the respective spouse, *de facto* spouce, parent or children. There is no wealth tax in Portugal. Legal persons are subject to CIT on the acquisition through gift or inheritance of Notes, when issued by an entity domiciled in Portuguese the territory.

Special debt securities tax regime

Pursuant to Decree-Law no. 193/2005, of 7 November, as amended from time to time (hereinafter, "Decree-Law 193/2005"), investment income paid, and capital gains realised, by Note holders not resident in Portugal in respect of debt securities registered (i) with a centralised system of registration of securities (such as the Central de Valores Mobiliários, managed by Interbolsa), (ii) with an international clearing system whose managing entity has its head-office or place of effective management in an EU Member State or EEA Country (provided, in this case, that such State is bound to cooperate with Portugal under an administrative cooperation arrangement in tax matters similar to the exchange of information schemes in relation to tax matters existing within the EU Member States) or (iii) integrated in other centralised systems authorised by the Portuguese Government will be exempt from Portuguese income tax provided the following requirements are met: (i) the Noteholders are not resident in the Portuguese territory (and do not have any registered or deemed permanent establishment therein to which interest is attributable); and (ii) the Noteholders are not resident in countries or territories included in the Portuguese "blacklist" (countries and territories listed in Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 150/2004, of 13 February 2004, amended by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 292/2011, 8 November 2011, and by Ministerial Order (Portaria) no. 345-A/2016, of 30 December 2016), with the exception of central banks and governmental agencies located in those blacklisted jurisdictions or of blacklisted jurisdictions that have a double taxation treaty in force or a tax information exchange agreement in force with Portugal;

Pursuant to Decree-Law 193/2005 several procedures must be met in order for the above exemptions to apply. These vary depending on whether the Notes are domestic cleared notes – held through a direct or indirect registered entity – or internationally cleared notes – held through an entity managing an international clearing system.

If the conditions for the exemption to apply are met but, due to inaccurate or insufficient information, tax was withheld, a special refund procedure is available under the special regime approved by

Decree-law no. 193/2005. The refund claim is to be submitted to the direct or indirect registering entity (entity that does not perform the role of direct registering entity but is a client of the latter and provides custody, register and portfolio management, or similar services) of the Notes within six months from the date the withholding took place. A special tax form for these purposes is available to download at www.portaldasfinancas.gov.pt.

The refund of withholding tax in other circumstances, or after the six months period set out above, is to be claimed from the Portuguese tax authorities under the general procedures and within the general deadlines. The absence of evidence of non-residence in respect of any non-resident entity that benefits from the above mentioned tax exemption regime shall result in the loss of the tax exemption and consequent submission to the above applicable Portuguese general tax provisions.

Administrative Cooperation in the field of taxation

The EU Savings Directive was repealed by Council Directive 2015/2060, of 10 November 2015. The aim was the adoption of a single and more comprehensive cooperation system in the field of taxation in the European Union under Council Directive 2011/16/EU, of 15 February 2011. Notwithstanding the repeal of the Savings Directive as of 1 January 2016, certain provisions will continue to apply for a transitional period.

The new regime under Council Directive 2011/16/EU, as amended by Council Directive 2014/107/EU, of 9 December 2014, introduced the automatic exchange of information in the field of taxation concerning bank accounts and is in accordance with the Global Standard released by the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development in July 2014 (the Common Reporting Standard). This regime is generally broader in scope than the Savings Directive.

Under Council Directive 2014/107/EU, financial institutions are required to report to the Tax Authorities of their respective Member State (for the exchange of information with the State of Residence) information regarding bank accounts, including depository and custodial accounts, held by individual persons residing in a different Member State or entities which are controlled by one or more individual persons residing in a different Member State, after having applied the due diligence rules foreseen in the Council Directive. The information refers not only to personal information but also to the account balance at the end of the calendar year, and (i) in case of depository accounts, income paid or credited in the account during the calendar year; or, (ii) in the case of custodial accounts, the total gross amount of interest, dividends and any other income generated, as well as the proceeds from the sale or redemption of the financial assets paid or credited in the account during the calendar year south, broker, nominee, or otherwise as an agent for the account holder, among others. Portugal has implemented Council Directive 2014/107/EU into Portuguese law through Decree Law no. 64/2016, of 11 October 2016.

FATCA

Portugal has implemented, through Law 82-B/2014 of 31 December 2014 and Decree-Law 64/2016 of 11 October 2016, the legislation based on the reciprocal exchange of information with the United States of America on financial accounts subject to disclosure (the "Financial Reporting Regime") in order to comply with Sections 1471 through 1474 of FATCA. Under such legislation the Issuer will be required to obtain information regarding certain accountholders and report such information to the Portuguese tax authorities which, in turn, will report such information to the Inland Revenue Service of the United States of America.

14. Spain

The following is a summary of current Spanish law and practice relating to the withholding tax treatment of the Securities. The statements herein regarding Spanish taxes and withholding taxes in Spain are based on the laws in force as well as administrative interpretations thereof in Spain as at the date of this Base Prospectus (without prejudice of regional tax regimes in the Historical Territories of the Basque Country and the Community of Navarre or provisions passed by

Autonomous Communities which may apply to investors for certain taxes)and are subject to any changes in law occurring after such date, which changes could be made on a retroactive basis. The following summary does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all the tax considerations which may be relevant to a decision to subscribe for, purchase, own or dispose of the Securities and does not purport to deal with the tax consequences applicable to all categories of investors, some of which (such as dealers in securities or commodities) may be subject to special rules. Prospective holders or beneficial owners of Warrants should be aware that some structured or exotic warrants have not yet been analysed by the Spanish General Directorate for Taxes with regards to their tax implications. Prospective holders or beneficial owners of the Securities are advised to consult their own tax advisers concerning the overall tax consequences of their ownership and disposition of the Securities.

Tax Treatment of Securities Issued by Entities Other Than Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal en España

(A) WARRANTS

Following the criterion of the Spanish Directorate-General for Taxation in several rulings (amongst others, rulings dated 8 July 2003 and 27 August 2007), income earned by Spanish residents under Warrants should be considered as capital gains, in which case no withholdings on account of Personal Income Tax ("PIT") or Corporate Income Tax ("CIT") will have to be deducted.

Notwithstanding that, Spanish resident individuals recognizing capital gains will still be subject to PIT, to be declared in their annual tax returns together with any other financial income, according to the following rates: 19. per cent. for financial income up to EUR 6,000; 21. per cent. for financial income between EUR 6,000.01 and EUR 50,000; and 23. per cent. for financial income in excess of EUR 50,000.

However, when certain income included in the taxpayer's taxable base has already been taxed abroad, the taxpayer shall be entitled to a tax credit against the PIT taxable base for the lowest amount of the following: (i) the amount effectively paid abroad; and (ii) the amount resulting from applying the average tax rate to the taxable base effectively taxed abroad.

Likewise, Spanish resident companies or Non-Resident Income Taxpayers acting through a permanent establishment in Spain earning such income will still be subject to CIT, to be declared in their annual tax returns, at a general rate of 25 per cent.. However, when certain income included in the taxpayer's taxable base has already been taxed abroad, the taxpayer shall be entitled to a tax credit against the CIT or Non-Resident Income Tax ("NRIT") taxable base for the lowest amount of the following: (i) the amount effectively paid abroad; and (ii) the amount that should have been paid in Spain in the case that such income had been obtained in Spain.

(B) NOTES AND CERTIFICATES

Where Notes and Certificates are issued by an Issuer which is not a Spanish tax resident entity and does not have a permanent establishment in Spain to which the issue of the Notes and Certificates is connected, the Issuer should not be obliged to deduct withholdings on account of Spanish income taxes.

Where a financial institution (either resident in Spain or acting through a permanent establishment in Spain) acts as depositary of the Notes and Certificates or intervenes as manager on the collection of any income under the Notes and Certificates (acting in such role, a "**Relevant Financial Institution**"), such Relevant Financial Institution will be responsible for making the relevant withholding on account of Spanish tax on any income deriving from the Notes and Certificates, provided that such income had not been previously subject to withholding tax in Spain.

Furthermore, any such Relevant Financial Institution may become obliged to comply with the formalities set out in Spanish tax regulations when intervening in the transfer or reimbursement of the Notes and Certificates.

(i) PIT - Individuals with tax residence in Spain

Withholding tax will apply at the applicable rate, currently 19. per cent. in respect of interest payments made under the Notes and Certificates. In addition, income obtained upon transfer, redemption or repayment of the Notes and Certificates may also be subject to PIT withholdings, currently 19. per cent. Notwithstanding this, when the Notes (i) are represented in book-entry form, (ii) are admitted to trading on a Spanish secondary stock exchange and (iii) generate explicit yield, holders can benefit from a withholding tax exemption in respect of the income arising from the transfer or reimbursement of the Notes, exception made of income derived from accounts entered into with financial institutions, provided that such income were based on financial instruments, such as Notes and Certificates. However, under certain circumstances, when a transfer of the Notes has occurred within the 30-day period immediately preceding any relevant coupon payment date such holders may not be eligible for such withholding tax exemption.

In any event, holders who are resident for tax purposes in Spain may credit any Spanish withholding tax suffered on income obtained under the Notes and Certificates against their final PIT liability for the relevant fiscal year.

Notwithstanding the above, Spanish resident individuals earning such income will still be subject to PIT –to be declared in their annual tax returns together with any other financial income – according to the following rates: 19. per cent. for financial income up to EUR 6,000; 21. per cent. for financial income between EUR 6,000.01 and EUR 50,000; and 23. per cent. for financial income in excess of EUR 50,000.

However, when certain income included in the taxpayer's taxable base has already been taxed abroad, the taxpayer shall be entitled to a tax credit against the PIT taxable base for the lowest amount of the following: (i) the amount effectively paid abroad; and (ii) the amount resulting from applying the average tax rate to the taxable base effectively taxed abroad.

(ii) CIT – Legal entities with tax residence in Spain

The current withholding tax in Spain is 19. per cent. Amounts withheld in Spain, if any, can be credited against Spanish final CIT liability.

However, holders of the Notes and Certificates who are Corporate Income Taxpayers can benefit from a withholding tax exemption when the Notes and Certificates are admitted to trading on an organised stock exchange in an OECD state (the "**OECD Exemption**").

Similarly, when the Notes and Certificates (i) are represented in book-entry form and (ii) are admitted to trading on a Spanish secondary stock exchange or in the Spanish Alternative Fixed Income Market ("MARF"), holders who are Corporate Income Taxpayers or Non-Residents' Income Taxpayers acting through a Spanish permanent establishment can benefit from a withholding tax exemption (the "**Domestic Exemption**") in respect of income arising from the Notes and Certificates.

Spanish resident companies earning such income will still be subject to CIT to be declared in their annual tax returns, at a general 25 per cent. However, when certain income included in the taxpayer's taxable base has already been taxed abroad, the taxpayer shall be entitled to a tax credit against the CIT taxable base for the lowest amount of the following: (i) the amount effectively paid abroad; and (ii) the amount that should have been paid in Spain in the case that such income had been obtained in Spain.

(iii) NRIT – Non-Resident Investors acting through a Permanent Establishment in Spain

Ownership of the Notes and Certificates by investors who are not resident for tax purposes in Spain will not in itself create the existence of a permanent establishment in Spain.

If the Notes and Certificates form part of the assets of a permanent establishment in Spain of a person or legal entity who is not resident in Spain for tax purposes, the tax rules applicable to income deriving from such Notes and Certificates are, generally, the same as those previously set out for Spanish Corporate Income Taxpayers. See (ii) "CIT - *Legal Entities with tax residence in Spain*" above.

Tax Treatment of Securities Issued by Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal en España

(A) WARRANTS

Following the criterion of the Spanish Directorate-General for Taxation in several rulings (amongst others, rulings dated 8 July 2003 and 27 August 2007), income earned by Spanish residents under Warrants should be considered as capital gains, in which case no withholdings on account of PIT or CIT will have to be deducted.

Notwithstanding that, Spanish resident individuals recognizing capital gains will still be subject to PIT, to be declared in their annual tax returns together with any other financial income, according to the following rates: 19. per cent. for financial income up to EUR 6,000; 21. per cent. for financial income between EUR 6,000.01 and EUR 50,000; and 23. per cent. for financial income in excess of EUR 50,000.

Likewise, Spanish resident companies or Non-Resident Income Taxpayers acting through a permanent establishment in Spain earning such income will still be subject to CIT or NRIT, respectively, to be declared in their annual tax returns, at a general 25 per cent.

(B) NOTES AND CERTIFICATES

(i) PIT - Individuals with tax residence in Spain

Withholding tax will apply at the applicable rate, currently 19. per cent. in respect of interest payments made under the Notes and Certificates. In addition, income obtained upon transfer, redemption or repayment of the Notes and Certificates may also be subject to PIT withholdings, currently 19. per cent. Notwithstanding this, when the Notes (i) are represented in book-entry form, (ii) are admitted to trading on a Spanish secondary stock exchange and (iii) generate explicit yield, holders can benefit from a withholding tax exemption in respect of the income arising from the transfer or reimbursement of the Notes, exception made of income derived from accounts entered into with financial institutions, provided that such income were based on financial instruments, such as Notes and Certificates. However, under certain circumstances, when a transfer of the Notes has occurred within the 30-day period immediately preceding any relevant coupon payment date such holders may not be eligible for such withholding tax exemption.

In any event, holders who are resident for tax purposes in Spain may credit any Spanish withholding tax suffered on income obtained under the Notes and Certificates against their final PIT liability for the relevant fiscal year.

Either (a) Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal en España or (b) Relevant Financial Institutions (either resident in Spain or acting through a permanent establishment in Spain) acting as depositary of the Notes and Certificates or intervening as manager in the collection of any income under the Notes and Certificates, will be responsible for making the relevant withholding (if any) on account of Spanish tax on any income deriving from the Notes and Certificates, as well as may become obliged to comply with the formalities set out in the regulations developing the Law on Spanish PIT.

Notwithstanding the above, Spanish resident individuals earning such income will still be subject to PIT –to be declared in their annual tax returns together with any other financial income – according to the following rates: 19. per cent. for financial income up to EUR 6,000; 21. per cent. for financial income between EUR 6,000.01 and EUR 50,000; and 23. per cent. for financial income in excess of EUR 50,000.

(ii) CIT - Legal Entities with tax residence in Spain

Any income arising from the Notes and Certificates is, as a general rule, subject to withholding tax at the applicable rate, currently 19. per cent. However, in accordance with Section 61(s) of regulations developing the Law on CIT, Spanish Corporate Income Taxpayers (which for the sake of clarity, include Spanish tax resident funds and Spanish tax resident pension funds) can also benefit from the OECD Exemption.

The Spanish Directorate General of Taxes (*Dirección General de Tributos*) issued a ruling dated 27 July 2004 in which it determined that securities, such as the Notes and Certificates, issued in Spain may benefit from the OECD Exemption if the relevant securities are both admitted to trading on an organised stock exchange in an OECD state and placed in an OECD State other than Spain. Where this requirement is not met, the Issuer will be required to make the corresponding withholdings.

Additionally, in accordance with Section 61(q) of regulations developing the Law on CIT, Spanish Corporate Income Taxpayers (which for the sake of clarity, include Spanish tax resident funds and Spanish tax resident pension funds) can also benefit from the Domestic Exemption.

Notwithstanding the above, amounts withheld (if any) may be credited by the relevant holders of Notes and Certificates against their final CIT liability.

Either (a) Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal en España or (b) Relevant Financial Institutions (either resident in Spain or acting through a permanent establishment in Spain) acting as depositary of the Notes and Certificates or intervening as manager in the collection of any income under the Notes and Certificates will be responsible for making the relevant withholding (if any) on account of Spanish tax on any income deriving from the Notes and Certificates, as well as may become obliged to comply with the formalities set out in the regulations developing the Law on Spanish CIT.

Spanish resident companies earning such income will still be subject to CIT to be declared in their annual tax returns, at a general 25 per cent.

(iii) NRIT – Non-Resident Investors acting through a Permanent Establishment in Spain

Ownership of the Notes and Certificates by investors who are not resident for tax purposes in Spain will not in itself create the existence of a permanent establishment in Spain.

If the Notes and Certificates form part of the assets of a permanent establishment in Spain of a person or legal entity who is not resident in Spain for tax purposes, the tax rules applicable to income deriving from such Notes and Certificates are, generally, the same as those previously set out for Spanish Corporate Income Taxpayers. See (ii) "CIT - *Legal Entities with tax residence in Spain*" above.

(iv) NRIT — Non-Spanish Tax Resident Investors not acting through a Permanent Establishment in Spain

Interest and other income deriving from the Notes and Certificates will be tax exempt in Spain and exempt from Spanish withholding tax when obtained by persons who are resident for tax purposes in a Member State of the European Union (other than Spain) or by a permanent establishment of such persons in another Member State of the European Union (other than Spain), provided that such income is not obtained through a country or territory regarded as a tax haven (pursuant to Royal Decree 1080/1991, of 5 July or any other regulation which may replace, amend or supplement this) and provided further that any such person provides the Issuer with a certificate of tax residence issued by the competent authorities of their jurisdiction of residence prior to the date on which any relevant payment is made or becomes due. Such certificate is valid for a one-year period.

Holders of Notes and Certificates who are resident for tax purposes in a jurisdiction which has ratified a Double Tax Treaty ("**DTT**") (other than a Member State of the European Union) will be subject to NRIT and Spanish withholding tax on income obtained from the Notes and Certificates at the reduced rates (or subject to any exemption) set out in the DTT, if any. Such holders will have to evidence their tax residence by delivering to the Issuer, prior to the date on which any relevant payment is made or becomes due, a tax residence certificate within the meaning of the applicable DTT issued by the competent authorities of their jurisdiction of residence or, as the case may be, the equivalent document set out in the order which further develops the applicable DTT. Such certificate of tax residence is valid for a one-year period.

The Issuer will withhold from any interest payment and any income arising from the repayment of the Notes and Certificates at the general rate applicable from time to time, which is currently 19 per

cent., or at the reduced rate set out in the applicable DTT, unless the application of a tax exemption is evidenced, as described above.

Notwithstanding the above, these holders will be tax exempt in Spain on any income arising from the transfer of the Notes and Certificates on a Spanish official secondary stock exchange, provided that they are resident in a jurisdiction which has ratified a DTT with Spain containing an exchange of information clause.

Other taxes

(A) INDIRECT TAXES

Whatever the nature and residence of the investor, the acquisition and transfer of the Securities will be exempt from indirect taxes in Spain, i.e. exempt from Transfer Tax and Stamp Duty and exempt from Value Added Tax.

(B) NET WEALTH TAX ("NWT")

(i) Individuals with tax residency in Spain

Only individual holders of Securities would be subject to the NWT as legal entities are not taxable persons under NWT.

Relevant taxpayers will be all those individuals who have their habitual residence in Spain regardless of the place where their assets or rights are located or could be exercised and whose net wealth is higher than EUR 700,000, as this amount is considered as exempt from NWT.

Spanish resident taxpayers should include in their NWT self-assessment the Securities for the following amounts:

- (a) if they are listed in an official market, the average negotiation value of the fourth quarter; and
- (b) in other case, its nominal value (including redemption premiums).

The value of the Securities together with the rest of the taxpayer's wealth, once reduced by the deductible in rem liens and encumbrances which reduce the rights and assets values and the personal debts of the taxpayer, shall be taxed at a tax rate between 0.2 to 2.5 per cent.

Finally, please note that the Spanish regions are entitled to modify (i) the threshold of net wealth exempt from taxation; (ii) the tax rates; and (iii) the tax benefits and exemptions to be applied in their territory.

In accordance with article 4 of Royal Decree-law 3/2016, of 2 December, a full exemption on NWT will apply in tax year 2018 unless such exemption is revoked.

(ii) Individuals with no tax residency in Spain

Individuals resident in a jurisdiction which has ratified a DTT in relation to the NWT would generally not be subject to such tax in Spain. Otherwise, non-Spanish resident individuals whose properties and rights located in Spain, or that can be exercised within the Spanish territory exceed EUR700,000 would be subject to the NWT, the applicable general rates ranging between 0.2 and 2.5 per cent.

Non-Spanish resident individuals who are residents in the EU or in the European Economic Area can apply the legislation of the Spanish region in which the highest value of the assets and rights of the individuals are located.

However, non-Spanish resident individuals will be exempt from the NWT in respect of the Securities whose income is exempt from NRIT as described above.

In accordance with article 4 of Royal Decree-law 3/2016, of 2 December, a full exemption on NWT will apply in tax year 2018 unless such exemption is revoked.

Non-Spanish resident companies are not subject to NWT.

(C) INHERITANCE AND GIFT TAX ("IGT")

(i) Individuals with tax residency in Spain

Individuals resident in Spain who acquire ownership or other rights over any Securities by inheritance, gift or legacy will be subject to IGT. The applicable effective tax rates range between 7.65 per cent and 81.6 per cent, depending on several factors such as family relationship and preexisting heritage. However, it is necessary to take into account that the IGT (including certain tax benefits) has been transferred to the Spanish regions. Therefore, an analysis must be made in each specific case to determine to what extent any regional legislation might be applicable, since there might be differences in respect of the final taxation under IGT depending on the region in which an investor resides.

(ii) Companies with tax residency in Spain

Companies resident in Spain which acquire ownership or other rights over the Securities by inheritance, gift or legacy are not subject to IGT, as income obtained will be subject to CIT.

(iii) Individuals and companies with no tax residency in Spain

Non-Spanish resident individuals that acquire ownership or other rights over the Securities by inheritance, gift or legacy, will not be subject to IGT provided that the Securities were not located in Spain and the rights deriving from them could not be exercised within Spanish territory. Otherwise, they may be subject to IGT, except as provided in any applicable DTT.

The acquisition of Securities by inheritance, gift or legacy by non-resident companies is not subject to the IGT, as income obtained will be subject to the NRIT, except as provided in any applicable DTT.

REPORTING OBLIGATIONS TO THE SPANISH TAX AUTHORITIES

Spanish resident holders of the Securities or non-resident holders with a permanent establishment in Spain to which the Securities are effectively connected should seek advice from their tax adviser as to whether they should include the Securities in the annual reporting (Form 720) to the Spanish Tax Authorities declaring assets and rights held outside Spain (filing in respect of the Securities held as of 31 December 2017 will be due by 31 March 2018). Failure to meet this reporting obligation may trigger significant tax penalties and other tax implications.

FATCA

Spain has implemented, through the Intergovernmental Agreement of 14 May 2013 and the Order HAP/1136/2014, of 30 June 2014, the legal framework based on reciprocal exchange of information on financial accounts subject to disclosure in order to comply with provisions of U.S. law commonly referred to "FATCA" (Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act).

15. The proposed financial transactions tax (FTT)

On 14 February 2013, the European Commission published a proposal (the "**Commission's Proposal**") for a Directive for a common FTT in Belgium, Germany, Estonia, Greece, Spain, France, Italy, Austria, Portugal, Slovenia and Slovakia (the "**participating Member States**").

The Commission's Proposal has very broad scope and could, if introduced apply to certain dealings in the Securities (including secondary market transactions) in certain circumstances.

However, Estonia has since stated that it will not participate.

Under the Commission's Proposal the FTT could apply in certain circumstances to persons both within and outside of the participating Member States. Generally, it would apply to certain dealings in the Securities where at least one party is a financial institution, and at least one party is established in a participating Member State. A financial institution may be, o be deemed to be, "established" in a participating Member State in a broad range of circumstances, including (a) by transacting with a person established in a participating Member State or (b) where the financial instrument which is subject to the dealings is issued in a participating Member State.

However, the FTT proposal remains subject to negotiation between the participating Member States. It may therefore be altered prior to any implementation. Additional EU Member States may decide to participate.

Prospective holders of the Securities are advised to seek their own professional advice in relation to the FTT.

16. The Netherlands

General

The following summary outlines the principal Dutch tax consequences of the acquisition, holding, settlement, redemption and disposal of the Securities, but does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all Dutch tax considerations that may be relevant. For purposes of Dutch tax law, a Securityholder may include an individual or entity who does not have the legal title of these Securities, but to whom nevertheless the Securities or the income thereof is attributed based on

specific statutory provisions or on the basis of such individual or entity having an interest in the Securities or the income thereof. This summary is intended as general information only for Securityholders who are residents or deemed residents of the Netherlands for Dutch tax purposes. This summary is intended as general information only and each prospective investor should consult a professional tax adviser with respect to the tax consequences of the acquisition, holding, settlement, redemption and disposal of the Securities.

This summary is based on tax legislation, published case law, treaties, regulations and published policy, in each case as in force as of the date of this Prospectus, and does not take into account any developments or amendments thereof after that date whether or not such developments or amendments have retroactive effect.

This summary does not address the Dutch corporate and individual income tax consequences for:

- (i) investment institutions (fiscale beleggingsinstellingen);
- (ii) pension funds, exempt investment institutions (vrijgestelde beleggingsinstellingen) or other Dutch tax resident entities that are not subject to or exempt from Dutch corporate income tax;
- (iii) Securityholders holding a substantial interest (aanmerkelijk belang) or deemed substantial interest (fictief aanmerkelijk belang) in the Issuer and Securityholders of whom a certain related person holds a substantial interest in the Issuer. Generally speaking, a substantial interest in the Issuer arises if a person, alone or, where such person is an individual, together with his or her partner (statutorily defined term), directly or indirectly, holds or is deemed to hold (i) an interest of 5% or more of the total issued capital of the Issuer or 5% or more of the issued capital of a certain class of shares of the Issuer, (ii) rights to acquire, directly or indirectly, such interest or (iii) certain profit-sharing rights in the Issuer;
- (iv) persons to whom the Securities and the income from the Securities are attributed based on the separated private assets (afgezonderd particulier vermogen) provisions of the Dutch Income Tax Act 2001 (Wet inkomstenbelasting 2001); and
- (v) entities which are a resident of Aruba, Curacao or Sint Maarten that have an enterprise which is carried on through a permanent establishment or a permanent representative on Bonaire, Sint Eustatius or Saba and the Securities are attributable to such permanent establishment or permanent representative.

For the purpose of the Dutch tax consequences described herein, it is assumed that the Issuer is neither a resident of the Netherlands nor deemed to be a resident of the Netherlands for Dutch tax purposes.

Where this summary refers to the Netherlands, such reference is restricted to the part of the Kingdom of the Netherlands that is situated in Europe and the legislation applicable in that part of the Kingdom.

This summary does not describe the consequences of the exchange or the conversion of the Securities.

Dutch Withholding Tax

All payments made by the Issuer under the Securities may be made free of withholding or deduction for any taxes of whatsoever nature imposed, levied, withheld or assessed by the Netherlands or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein.

Dutch Corporate and Individual Income Tax

If a Securityholder is a resident of the Netherlands or deemed to be a resident of the Netherlands for Dutch corporate income tax purposes and is fully subject to Dutch corporate income tax or is only subject to Dutch corporate income tax in respect of an enterprise to which the Securities are attributable, income derived from the Securities and gains realised upon the redemption, settlement or disposal of the Securities are generally taxable in the Netherlands (at up to a maximum rate of 25%).

If an individual is a resident of the Netherlands or deemed to be a resident of the Netherlands for Dutch individual income tax purposes, income derived from the Securities and gains realised upon the redemption, settlement or disposal of the Securities are taxable at the progressive rates (at up to a maximum rate of 52%) under the Dutch Income Tax Act 2001, if:

- (i) the individual is an entrepreneur (ondernemer) and has an enterprise to which the Securities are attributable or the individual has, other than as a shareholder, a coentitlement to the net worth of an enterprise (medegerechtigde), to which enterprise the Securities are attributable; or
- (ii) such income or gains qualify as income from miscellaneous activities (resultaat uit overige werkzaamheden), which includes activities with respect to the Securities that exceed regular, active portfolio management (normaal, actief vermogensbeheer).

If neither condition (i) nor condition (ii) above applies, an individual that holds the Securities, must determine taxable income with regard to the Securities on the basis of a deemed return on income from savings and investments (sparen en beleggen), rather than on the basis of income actually received or gains actually realised. This deemed return on income from savings and investments is fixed at a percentage of the individual's yield basis (rendementsgrondslag) at the beginning of the calendar year (1 January), insofar as the individual's yield basis exceeds a certain threshold (heffingvrij vermogen). The individual's yield basis is determined as the fair market value of certain qualifying assets held by the individual less the fair market value of certain qualifying liabilities on 1 January. The fair market value of the Securities will be included as an asset in the individual's yield basis. The deemed return percentage to be applied to the yield basis increases progressively depending on the amount of the yield basis. The deemed return on income from savings and investments is taxed at a rate of 30%.

Dutch Gift and Inheritance Tax

Dutch gift or inheritance taxes will not be levied on the occasion of the transfer of a Security by way of gift by, or on the death of, a Securityholder, unless:

- (i) the Securityholder is, or is deemed to be, resident in the Netherlands for the purpose of the relevant provisions; or
- (ii) the transfer is construed as an inheritance or gift made by, or on behalf of, a person who, at the time of the gift or death, is or is deemed to be resident in the Netherlands for the purpose of the relevant provisions.

Dutch Value Added Tax

In general, no value added tax will arise in respect of payments in consideration for the issue of the Securities or in respect of a cash payment made under the Securities, or in respect of a transfer of Securities.

Other Dutch Taxes and Duties

No registration tax, customs duty, transfer tax, stamp duty or any other similar documentary tax or duty will be payable in the Netherlands by a holder in respect of or in connection with the subscription, issue, placement, allotment, delivery or transfer of the Securities.

B. GENERAL SELLING AND TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

1. Introduction

The distribution of the Base Prospectus and the offering of the Securities in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose possession the Base Prospectus come are required by the Issuer to inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions.

2. United States of America

The Securities have not been, and will not be, registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and trading in the Securities has not been approved by the United States Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the "CFTC") under the United States Commodity Exchange Act (the "Commodity Exchange Act"). Any offer or sale of the Securities must be made in a transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Regulation S thereunder. No Securities, or interests therein, may at any time be offered, sold, resold, pledged, exercised, redeemed or delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of (or on behalf of), any U.S. person or to others for offer, sale, resale, pledge, exercise, redemption or delivery, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, any U.S. person. No Securities may be exercised or redeemed by or on behalf of a U.S. person or a person within the United States. "United States" means the United States of America (including the States and the District of Columbia), its territories, its possessions and other areas subject to its jurisdiction, and "U.S. person" means (i) an individual who is a resident of the United States; (ii) a corporation, partnership or other entity organised in or under the laws of the United States or any political subdivision thereof or which has its principal place of business in the United States; (iii) any estate or trust which is subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of the source of its income; (iv) any trust if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust and if one or more United States trustees have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust; (v) a pension plan for the employees, officers or principals of a corporation, partnership or other entity described in (ii) above; (vi) any entity organised principally for passive investment, 10 per cent. or more of the beneficial interests in which are held by persons described in (i) to (v) above if such entity was formed principally for the purpose of investment by such persons in a commodity pool the operator of which is exempt from certain requirements of Part 4 of the United States Commodity Futures Trading Commission's regulations by virtue of its participants being non-U.S. persons; or (vii) any other "U.S. person" as such term may be defined in Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or a person who does not come within the definition of a non-United States person under Rule 4.7 of the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended.

Prior to the exercise of a Warrant or Certificate and/or a physical delivery of an Underlying in respect of a Security, the holder thereof will be required to represent that, among other things, the holder is not a U.S. person, the Security was not exercised on behalf of a U.S. person and no cash, and in the case of a physical delivery of an Underlying, no securities or other property have been or will be transferred in the United States or to, or the account of benefit of, a U.S. person in connection with any exercise or redemption thereof.

Any person purchasing Warrants or Certificates is deemed to agree with the Issuer and, if different, the seller of such Warrants or Certificates that (i) it will not at any time offer, sell, resell or deliver, directly or indirectly, any Warrants or Certificates so purchased in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, any U.S. person, (ii) it is not purchasing any Warrants or Certificates of such series for the account or benefit of any U.S. person and (iii) it will not make offers, sales, re-sales or deliveries of any Warrant or Certificate (otherwise acquired), directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, any U.S. person.

3. European Economic Area

In relation to each member state of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each a "**Relevant Member State**"), with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant Member State (the "**Relevant Implementation Date**") the Securities have not been offered and will not be offered to the public in that Relevant Member State except, with effect from and including the Relevant Implementation Date, the Securities may be offered to the public in that Relevant Member State:

- (a) during the period beginning one weekday after the date of approval of the Base Prospectus in relation to the Securities which has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State or in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent authority in that Relevant Member State, in accordance with the Prospectus Directive in each case, and ending on the date which is twelve months after the date of publication, provided that the Final Terms were published in relation to these Securities no later than the date of the public offer, and were submitted to the competent authority in the Relevant Member State;
- (b) to legal persons which are qualified investors within the meaning of the *Prospectus Directive* (as defined below); or
- (c) in other circumstances under Art. 3 (2) of the Prospectus Directive (as defined below),

For the purposes of this provision, an "offer of Securities to the public" in relation to any Securities in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Securities to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the Securities, if a measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Member State results in deviation; "**Prospectus Directive**" means Directive 2003/71/EC (as last amended by the Directive 2014/51/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014). In addition and from 1 January 2018, the Securities have not been offered, sold or otherwise made available and will not be offered, sold or will be otherwise made available in relation to any retail investor in a Relevant Member State, except a key information document ("**KID**") required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (the "**PRIIPs Regulation**") has been prepared for offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in that Relevant Member State, provided that the PRIIPs Regulation obligate the issuer to publish a KID for the Securities in that Relevant Member State. For the avoidance of doubt, such KID must be prepared, *inter alia*, in accordance with the language requirements of the PRIIPs Regulation.

For the purposes of this provision the expression "retail investor" means a person who is (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "**MiFID II**"), or (ii) not a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive.

The expression "offer" includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Securities to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the Securities.

4. Belgium

With regard to Notes having a maturity of less than 12 months and/or qualifying as money market instruments within the meaning of the Belgian Prospectus Act (as defined below) (and which therefore fall outside the scope of the Prospectus Directive), this Base Prospectus has not been submitted for approval to the Belgian Financial Services and Markets Authority (*Autoriteit voor Financiële Diensten en Markten/Autorité des services et marches financiers*) (the **Belgian FSMA**) and, accordingly, such Notes may not be distributed in Belgium by way of a public offering, as defined for the purposes of the law of 16 June 2006 on public offerings of investment instruments and the admission of investment instruments to trading on regulated markets, as amended from time to time (the **Belgian Prospectus Act**).

In the case of fund linked Notes, Warrants or Certificates issued under this Programme, the relevant underlying funds may not be registered in Belgium with the Belgian FSMA in accordance with the Belgian law of 3 August 2012 on the collective investment undertakings satisfying the conditions set out in Directive 2009/65/EC and undertakings for investment in receivables, as amended or replaced from time to time (the **UCITS Law**) or the Belgian law of 19 April 2014 on alternative collective investment undertakings and their managers, as amended or replaced from time to time (the **AIFM Law**), as applicable, and, if so, such fund linked Securities cannot be offered publicly in Belgium unless Cash Settlement applies. The shares and other securities issued by these funds cannot be offered publicly in Belgium.

The Securities shall not be physically delivered in Belgium, except to a clearing system, a depository or other institution for the purpose of their immobilisation in accordance with Article 4 of the Belgian Law of 14 December 2005.

5. Czech Republic

No offers or sales of any Securities may be made in the Czech Republic through a public offering, except if in compliance with the Act of the Czech Republic No. 256/2004 Coll., on Conducting Business in the Capital Market, as amended (the "Capital Market Act"). A public offering is, subject to several exemptions set out in the Capital Market Act, any communication to a broader circle of persons containing information on the Securities being offered and the terms under which they may acquire the Securities and which are sufficient for the investor to make a decision to subscribe for, or purchase, such Securities.

No action has been taken or will be taken which would result in the Securities being deemed to have been issued in the Czech Republic or pursuant to Czech law, the issue of the Securities being classed as "accepting of deposits from the public" by the relevant Issuer in the Czech Republic under Section 2(2) of the Act of the Czech Republic No. 21/1992 Coll., on Banks, as amended (the "Banks Act"), or requiring a permit, registration, filing or notification to the Czech National Bank or other authorities in the Czech Republic in respect of the Securities in accordance with the Capital Market Act, the Banks Act or practice of the Czech National Bank.

All of the laws of the Czech Republic applicable to the conduct of business in the Czech Republic, including the laws applicable to the provision of investment services (within the meaning of the Capital Market Act) in the Czech Republic, in respect of the Securities have been complied with.

No action has been taken or will be taken which would result in the issue of the Securities being considered an intention to manage assets by acquiring funds from the public in the Czech Republic for the purposes of collective investment pursuant to defined investment policy in favour of the investors under the Act of the Czech Republic No. 240/2013 Coll., on Management Companies and Investment Funds, as amended (the "MCIFA"), which implements the Directive 2011/61/EU. Any issue, offer or sale of the Securities has been or will be carried out in strict compliance with the MCIFA.

6. United Kingdom

An invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("**FSMA**") may only be communicated or caused to be communicated in connection with the issue or sale of any Securities in circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA would not, if the Issuer was not an authorised person, apply to the Issuer.

All applicable provisions of the FSMA must be complied with in respect to anything carried out in relation to any Securities in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

7. Italy

The offering of the Securities has not been registered pursuant to Italian securities legislation and, accordingly, no Securities may be offered, sold or delivered, nor may copies of the Base Prospectus or of any other document relating to the Securities be distributed in the Republic of Italy, except:

- to qualified investors (*investitori qualificati*), as defined pursuant to Article 100 of Legislative Decree No. 58 of 24 February 1998, as amended (the "Financial Services Act") and Article 34-ter, first paragraph, letter b) of CONSOB Regulation No. 11971 of 14 May 1999, as amended from time to time ("Regulation No. 11971"); or
- (b) in other circumstances which are exempted from the rules on public offerings pursuant to Article 100 of the Financial Services Act and Article 34-ter of Regulation No. 11971.

Any offer, sale or delivery of the Securities or distribution of copies of the Base Prospectus or any other document relating to the Securities in the Republic of Italy under (a) or (b) above must:

- (a) be made by an investment firm, bank or financial intermediary permitted to conduct such activities in the Republic of Italy in accordance with the Financial Services Act, CONSOB Regulation No. 16190 of 29 October 2007 (as amended from time to time) and Legislative Decree No. 385 of 1 September 1993, as amended (the "Banking Act"); and
- (b) comply with any other applicable laws and regulations or requirement imposed by CONSOB, the Bank of Italy (including, the reporting requirements, where applicable, pursuant to Article 129 of the Banking Act and the implementing guidelines of the Bank of Italy, as amended from time to time) and/or any other Italian authority..

Please note that in accordance with Article 100-bis of the Financial Services Act, where no exemption from the rules on public offerings applies under (i) and (ii) above, the subsequent distribution of the Securities on the secondary market in Italy must be made in compliance with the public offer and the prospectus requirement rules provided under the Financial Services Act and Regulation No. 11971.

Failure to comply with such rules may result in the sale of such Securities being declared null and void and in the liability of the intermediary transferring the financial instruments for any damages suffered by the investors.

8. France

Offer to the public in France: the Securities will only be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, to the public in France and the Components of the Base Prospectus, the relevant Final Terms and any other offering material relating to the Securities will only be distributed to the public in France in the period beginning on the date of publication of the relevant Final Terms, in accordance with Articles L.412-1 and L.621-8 of the French Monetary and Financial Code (*Code monétaire et financier*) and the *Règlement général of the Autorité des marchés financiers*, and ending at the latest within the 12-month period after the date of the visa of the Base Prospectus;

Private placement in France: the Securities will not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, to the public in France and the Components of the Base Prospectus, the relevant Final Terms and any other offering material relating to the Securities will not be distributed to the public in France, and such offers, sales and distributions will be made in France only to (a) providers of investment services relating to portfolio management for the account of third parties (*personnes fournissant le service d'investissement de gestion de portefeuille pour compte de tiers*), and/or (b) qualified investors (*investisseurs qualifiés*) acting for their own account but other than individuals, all as defined in, and in accordance with, articles L.411-1, L.411-2 and D.411-1 of the French Monetary and Financial Code (*Code monétaire et financier*).

9. Poland

In addition to the rules applicable to the European Economic Area as described above, in connection with any private placement in the Republic of Poland (**Poland**), no permit has been obtained from the Polish Financial Supervision Authority (**Polish FSA**) regarding the issue of the Securities, nor has the issue of the Securities been notified to the Polish FSA in accordance with applicable procedures. Accordingly, the Securities may not be offered publicly in Poland, as defined in the Act on Public Offerings, the Conditions Governing the Introduction of Financial Instruments to Organised Trading, and Public Companies dated 29 July 2005, as amended (consolidated text, 2016, item

1639) (the **Act on Public Offerings**) as a communication provided in any form and in any manner, addressed to at least 150 persons in the territory of one Member State or to an unspecified addressee, which contains sufficient information on the securities to be offered and the terms and conditions of their acquisition, so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase these securities (**Polish Public Offering**). Each holder of Securities, by the purchase of Securities, is deemed to confirm that it is aware that no such permit has been obtained nor such notification made.

Each holder of Securities is deemed to represent, that it has not offered, sold or delivered and shall not offer, sell or deliver the Securities in Poland in the manner defined as a Polish Public Offering as part of its initial distribution or otherwise to residents of Poland or in Poland. Each holder of Securities is deemed to acknowledge, that the acquisition and holding of the Securities by residents of Poland may be subject to restrictions imposed by Polish law (including foreign exchange regulations), and that offers and sales of Securities to Polish residents or in Poland in secondary trading may also be subject to restrictions.

10. Portugal

The Issuer, each holder of the Securities, and each Distributor has represented and agreed and each further Distributor appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree. that regarding any offer or sale of Securities in Portugal or to individuals resident in Portugal or having a permanent establishment located in the Portuguese territory, it will procure that any distributor of Securities agrees that all laws and regulations in force in Portugal, including (without limitation) the Portuguese Securities Code (Código dos Valores Mobiliários), any regulations issued by the Portuguese Securities Market Commission (Comissão do Mercado de Valores Mobiliários) including (if applicable) its Regulation 2/2012 on complex financial products (produtos financeiros complexos) and any other applicable protocols agreed with that Commission (or any law or regulation amending, superseding or replacing it and in force at any moment that requires the publication of a key investor information document, such as Regulation (EU) no. 1286/2014 of the European Parliament and Of The Council of 26 November 2014 on key information documents for packaged retail and insurance-based investment products (PRIIPs)), as well as Commission Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004 (as amended) implementing the Prospectus Directive (as amended) will be complied with in respect of any placement or distribution of Securities, and other than in compliance with all such laws and regulations: (i) it has not directly or indirectly taken any action or offered, advertised, marketed, invited to subscribe, gathered investment intentions, sold or delivered and will not directly or indirectly take any action, offer, advertise, market, invite to subscribe, gather investment intentions, sell, re-sell, re-offer or deliver any Securities in circumstances which could qualify as a public offer (oferta pública) of securities and/or (if applicable) as a relevant complex financial products placement, pursuant to the Portuguese Securities Code and other applicable securities legislation and regulations, notably in circumstances which could gualify as a public offer and/or (if applicable) as a relevant complex financial products placement, addressed to individuals or entities resident in Portugal or having a permanent establishment located in Portugal, as the case may be; (ii) all offers, sales and distributions by it of the Securities have been and will only be made in Portugal in circumstances that, pursuant to the Portuguese Securities Code, qualify only as a private placement of Securities (oferta particular) and (if applicable) as a placement of complex financial products which is not relevant under the abovementioned CMVM Regulation 2/2012 (or any law or regulation amending, superseding or replacing it and in force at any moment), as well as any other applicable CMVM protocols; (iii) it has not distributed, made available or caused to be distributed and will not distribute, make available or cause to be distributed, the Base Prospectus, or any other offering material relating to the Securities, to the public in Portugal. Furthermore, (a) if the Securities are subject to a private placement addressed exclusively to qualified investors (investidores qualificados), such private placement will be considered as a private placement of securities pursuant to the Portuguese Securities Code; (b) private placements addressed by

companies open to public investment (sociedades abertas) or by issuers of securities listed on a regulated market shall be notified to the CMVM for statistics purposes.

11. Switzerland

The distribution of the Securities in Switzerland will comply with any laws, regulations or guidelines in Switzerland from time to time, including, but not limited to, any regulations made by the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority FINMA and/or the Swiss National Bank (if any) in relation to the distribution offer, sale, delivery or transfer of the Securities or the distribution of any offering or making material in Switzerland in respect of such Securities.

12. Luxembourg

This Base Prospectus has not been approved by and will not be submitted for approval to the Luxembourg Financial Sector Surveillance Authority (*Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier*) for purposes of an offer of Securities to the public in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg ("**Luxembourg**") in accordance with the Luxembourg law dated 10 July 2005 on prospectuses for securities, as amended (*loi du 10 juillet 2005 relative aux prospectus pour valeurs mobilières, telle que modifiée*) (the "**Prospectus Act**"). An offer of Securities to the public in Luxembourg may however be made:

- (a) at any time, to qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Act;
- (b) at any time, to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Act 2005) subject to obtaining the prior consent of the relevant Dealer or Dealers nominated by the Issuer for any such offer; or
- (c) in any other circumstances falling within article 5 (2) of the Prospectus Act,

No offer of Securities referred to in (a) to (c) above shall require the Issuer or any Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to article 5 of the Prospectus Act or supplement to a prospectus pursuant to article 13 of the Prospectus Act.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression "an offer of Securities to the public" in relation to any Securities in Luxembourg means the communication in any form by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Securities to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe to these Securities.

13. Austria

In addition to the cases described in the European Economic Area selling restrictions in respect of an offer of the Securities to the public under the Prospectus Directive (including Austria) above, the Securities may be offered to the public in Austria only:

- if the following conditions have been satisfied:
 - (i) the Base Prospectus, including any supplements but excluding any Final Terms, which has been approved by the Austrian Financial Market Authority (*Finanzmarktaufsichtsbehörde*, the "**FMA**") or, where appropriate, approved in another Member State within the European Economic Area and notified to the FMA, all in accordance with the Prospectus Directive, has been published at least one Austrian bank working day prior to the commencement of the relevant offer of the Securities to the public; and
 - (ii) the applicable Final Terms for the Securities have been published and filed with the FMA prior to the date of commencement of the relevant offer of the Securities to the public; and
 - (iii) a notification with the Austrian Control Bank (*Oesterreichische Kontrollbank Aktiengesellschaft*), all as prescribed by the Austrian Capital Market Act

(*Kapitalmarktgesetz, Federal Law Gazette No. 625/1991* as amended, the "**KMG**"), has been filed as soon as possible prior to the commencement of the relevant offer of the Securities to the public; or

– otherwise in compliance with the KMG.

For the purposes of this Austrian selling restriction, the expression "**an offer of the Securities to the public**" means the communication to the public in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Securities to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the Securities.

14. General

The Securities may only be offered or sold in compliance with all applicable securities laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction in which any purchase, offer, sale or delivery of Securities is made or in which this Base Prospectus is distributed or held and where any consent, approval or permission required for the purchase, offer, sale or delivery of Securities under the laws and regulations in force in such jurisdiction is obtained.

With regard to each issue of Securities, certain other additional restrictions may be set out in the applicable Final Terms.

IX. DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER

A description of Deutsche Bank AG is contained in

- the Registration Document of Deutsche Bank AG dated 10 April 2017 (English version), as amended by the First Supplemental Registration Document dated 23 May 2017
- the Consolidated Financial Statement (IFRS) of Deutsche Bank AG for the Fiscal Year ending 31 December 2015 (audited),
- the Consolidated Financial Statement (IFRS) of Deutsche Bank AG for the Fiscal Year ending 31 December 2016 (audited) (English version) as well as in the Non - Consolidated Financial Statements and Management Report (HGB) of Deutsche Bank AG for the Fiscal Year ending 31 December 2016 (audited), and
- the Interim Report of Deutsche Bank Group as of 31 March 2017 (unaudited).

This information are incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus under chapter "III. G. Information Incorporated by Reference".

X. CONTINUED OFFERS

The public offer of the Securities with the following ISINs which first started under the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes dated 24 August 2016 is continued under this Base Prospectus after the Base Prospectus for the issuance of Certificates, Warrants and Notes dated 24 August 2016 ceases to be valid:

DE000DL75ED4	DE000DL75JQ5	DE000DL7GN06	DE000DL8GPM4	DE000DM4B1K5
DE000DL75EE2	DE000DL75JR3	DE000DL7GN14	DE000DL8GPN2	DE000DM4B1L3
DE000DL75EJ1	DE000DL75JS1	DE000DL7GN22	DE000DL8GPP7	DE000DM4B218
DE000DL75EZ7	DE000DL7D1V9	DE000DL7GN30	DE000DL8GPQ5	DE000DM4B226
DE000DL75FZ4	DE000DL7D1W7	DE000DL7GN48	DE000DL8GPR3	DE000DM4B234
DE000DL75G06	DE000DL7D309	DE000DL7GND0	DE000DL8GPS1	DE000DM4B242
DE000DL75G14	DE000DL7D317	DE000DL7GNE8	DE000DL8GPT9	DE000DM4B259
DE000DL75G22	DE000DL7GJV0	DE000DL7GNF5	DE000DL9QGQ1	DE000DM4B267
DE000DL75G30	DE000DL7GJW8	DE000DL7GNG3	DE000DL9QGR9	DE000DM4B275
DE000DL75G48	DE000DL7GJX6	DE000DL7GNH1	DE000DL9QGS7	DE000DM4B283
DE000DL75G55	DE000DL7GJY4	DE000DL7GNJ7	DE000DL9QGT5	DE000DM4B291
DE000DL75G63	DE000DL7GJZ1	DE000DL7GNK5	DE000DL9QGU3	DE000DM4B2A4
DE000DL75G71	DE000DL7GK09	DE000DL7GNL3	DE000DL9QGV1	DE000DM4B2B2
DE000DL75G89	DE000DL7GK17	DE000DL8GM89	DE000DL9QGW9	DE000DM4B2C0
DE000DL75G97	DE000DL7GK90	DE000DL8GM97	DE000DL9QGX7	DE000DM4B2D8
DE000DL75GM0	DE000DL7GKA2	DE000DL8GMA6	DE000DL9QGY5	DE000DM4B2E6
DE000DL75GN8	DE000DL7GKB0	DE000DL8GMB4	DE000DL9QGZ2	DE000DM4B2F3
DE000DL75GP3	DE000DL7GKC8	DE000DL8GMC2	DE000DL9QH00	DE000DL75GA5
DE000DL75GQ1	DE000DL7GKD6	DE000DL8GMD0	DE000DL9U7W1	DE000DL75GB3
DE000DL75GR9	DE000DL7GKE4	DE000DL8GME8	DE000DL9U7X9	DE000DL75GC1
DE000DL75GS7	DE000DL7GKF1	DE000DL8GMF5	DE000DL9U7Y7	DE000DL75GD9
DE000DL75GT5	DE000DL7GKG9	DE000DL8GMG3	DE000DL9U7Z4	DE000DL75GE7
DE000DL75GU3	DE000DL7GL99	DE000DL8GMH1	DE000DL9U804	DE000DL75GF4
DE000DL75GV1	DE000DL7GLA0	DE000DL8GMU4	DE000DL9U812	DE000DL75GG2
DE000DL75GW9	DE000DL7GLB8	DE000DL8GMV2	DE000DL9U820	DE000DL75GH0
DE000DL75GX7	DE000DL7GLC6	DE000DL8GMW0	DE000DL9U838	DE000DL75GJ6
DE000DL75HX5	DE000DL7GLD4	DE000DL8GMX8	DE000DL9U846	DE000DL75GK4
DE000DL75HY3	DE000DL7GLE2	DE000DL8GMY6	DE000DL9U853	DE000DL75GL2
DE000DL75HZ0	DE000DL7GLF9	DE000DL8GMZ3	DE000DM0KPC3	DE000DL75GY5
DE000DL75J03	DE000DL7GLG7	DE000DL8GN05	DE000DM0KPD1	DE000DL75GZ2
DE000DL75J11	DE000DL7GLH5	DE000DL8GN13	DE000DM4B168	DE000DL75H05
DE000DL75J29	DE000DL7GLT0	DE000DL8GN21	DE000DM4B176	DE000DL75H13
DE000DL75J37	DE000DL7GLU8	DE000DL8GP03	DE000DM4B184	DE000DL75H21
DE000DL75J45	DE000DL7GLV6	DE000DL8GP11	DE000DM4B192	DE000DL75H39
DE000DL75J52	DE000DL7GLW4	DE000DL8GP29	DE000DM4B1A6	DE000DL75H47
DE000DL75J60	DE000DL7GLX2	DE000DL8GP37	DE000DM4B1B4	DE000DL75H54
DE000DL75JH4	DE000DL7GLY0	DE000DL8GP45	DE000DM4B1C2	DE000DL75H62
DE000DL75JJ0	DE000DL7GLZ7	DE000DL8GP52	DE000DM4B1D0	DE000DL75H70
DE000DL75JK8	DE000DL7GM07	DE000DL8GP60	DE000DM4B1E8	DE000DL75H88
DE000DL75JL6	DE000DL7GM15	DE000DL8GP78	DE000DM4B1F5	DE000DL75J78
DE000DL75JM4	DE000DL7GMX0	DE000DL8GP86	DE000DM4B1G3	DE000DL75J86
DE000DL75JN2	DE000DL7GMY8	DE000DL8GP94	DE000DM4B1H1	DE000DL75J94
DE000DL75JP7	DE000DL7GMZ5	DE000DL8GPL6	DE000DM4B1J7	DE000DL75JA9

DE000DL75JB7	DE000DL7GM49	DE000DL8GPE1	DE000DM4B1W0	DE000DM20TB0
DE000DL75JC5	DE000DL7GM56	DE000DL8GPF8	DE000DM4B1X8	DE000DM20TC8
DE000DL75JD3	DE000DL7GM64	DE000DL8GPG6	DE000DM4B1Y6	DE000DM20TD6
DE000DL75JE1	DE000DL7GM72	DE000DL8GPH4	DE000DM4B1Z3	DE000DM20TE4
DE000DL75JF8	DE000DL7GM80	DE000DL8GPJ0	DE000DM4B200	DE000DM20TF1
DE000DL75JG6	DE000DL7GM98	DE000DL8GPK8	DE000DM4B2G1	DE000DM20TG9
DE000DL75JT9	DE000DL7GMA8	DE000DL8GPU7	DE000DM4B2H9	DE000DM20TH7
DE000DL75JU7	DE000DL7GN55	DE000DL8GPV5	DE000DM4B2J5	DE000DM20TJ3
DE000DL75JV5	DE000DL7GN63	DE000DL8GPW3	DE000DM4B2K3	DE000DM20TK1
DE000DL75JW3	DE000DL7GN71	DE000DL8GPX1	DE000DM4B2L1	DE000DM20TL9
DE000DL75JX1	DE000DL7GN89	DE000DL8GPY9	DE000DM4B2M9	DE000DM20TM7
DE000DL75JY9	DE000DL7GN97	DE000DL8GPZ6	DE000DM4B2N7	DE000DM20TN5
DE000DL75JZ6	DE000DL7GNA6	DE000DL8GQA7	DE000DM4B2P2	DE000DM20TP0
DE000DL75K00	DE000DL7GNB4	DE000DL8GQB5	DE000DM4B2Q0	DE000DM20TQ8
DE000DL75K18	DE000DL7GNC2	DE000DL8GQC3	DE000DM4B2R8	DE000DM20TR6
DE000DL75K26	DE000DL7GNM1	DE000DL9QH18	DE000DM4B2S6	DE000DM20TS4
DE000DL7D1X5	DE000DL7GNN9	DE000DL9QH26	DE000DM4B2T4	DE000DM20TT2
DE000DL7D1Y3	DE000DL7GNP4	DE000DL9QH34	DE000DM4B2U2	DE000DM20TU0
DE000DL7D325	DE000DL7GNQ2	DE000DL9QH42	DE000DM4B2V0	DE000DM20TV8
DE000DL7D333	DE000DL7GNR0	DE000DL9QH59	DE000DM1NGW2	DE000DM20TW6
DE000DL7GK25	DE000DL7GNS8	DE000DL9QH67	DE000DM1NGX0	DE000DM20TX4
DE000DL7GK33	DE000DL7GNT6	DE000DL9QH75	DE000DM1NGY8	DE000DM290A9
DE000DL7GK41	DE000DL7GNU4	DE000DL9QH83	DE000DM1NGZ5	DE000DM290B7
DE000DL7GK58	DE000DL8GMJ7	DE000DL9QH91	DE000DM1NH09	DE000DM290C5
DE000DL7GK66	DE000DL8GMK5	DE000DL9QHA3	DE000DM1NH17	DE000DM290D3
DE000DL7GK74	DE000DL8GML3	DE000DL9QHB1	DE000DM1NH25	DE000DM290E1
DE000DL7GK82	DE000DL8GMM1	DE000DL9U861	DE000DM1NH33	DE000DM290F8
DE000DL7GKH7	DE000DL8GMN9	DE000DL9U879	DE000DM1NH41	DE000DM29R09
DE000DL7GKJ3	DE000DL8GMP4	DE000DL9U887	DE000DM1NH58	DE000DM29R17
DE000DL7GKK1	DE000DL8GMQ2	DE000DL9U895	DE000DM1NH66	DE000DM29R25
DE000DL7GKL9	DE000DL8GMR0	DE000DL9U8A5	DE000DM1NH74	DE000DM29R33
DE000DL7GKM7	DE000DL8GMS8	DE000DL9U8B3	DE000DM1NH82	DE000DM29R33
DE000DL7GKN5	DE000DL8GMT6	DE000DL9U8C1	DE000DM1NH82	DE000DM29R41
DE000DL7GKP0	DE000DL8GN39	DE000DL9U8D9	DE000DM1NHA6	DE000DM29R58
DE000DL7GKQ8	DE000DL8GN47	DE000DL9U8E7	DE000DM1NHA0	DE000DM29R00
DE000DL7GLJ1				DE000DM29R74
	DE000DL8GN54	DE000DM0KPE9	DE000DM1NHC2	
DE000DL7GLK9	DE000DL8GN62	DE000DM0KPF6	DE000DM1NHD0	DE000DM29R90
DE000DL7GLL7	DE000DL8GN70	DE000DM4B1M1	DE000DM1NHE8	DE000DM29RA7
DE000DL7GLM5	DE000DL8GN88	DE000DM4B1N9	DE000DM1NHF5	DE000DM29RB5
DE000DL7GLN3	DE000DL8GN96	DE000DM4B1P4	DE000DM20T48	DE000DM29RC3
DE000DL7GLP8	DE000DL8GNA4	DE000DM4B1Q2	DE000DM20T55	DE000DM29RD1
DE000DL7GLQ6	DE000DL8GNB2	DE000DM4B1R0	DE000DM20T63	DE000DM29RE9
DE000DL7GLR4	DE000DL8GPA9	DE000DM4B1S8	DE000DM20T71	DE000DM29RF6
DE000DL7GLS2	DE000DL8GPB7	DE000DM4B1T6	DE000DM20T89	DE000DM29RG4
DE000DL7GM23	DE000DL8GPC5	DE000DM4B1U4	DE000DM20T97	DE000DM29RH2
DE000DL7GM31	DE000DL8GPD3	DE000DM4B1V2	DE000DM20TA2	DE000DM29RJ8

	DE000DN 4201142	DE000D1427664		
DE000DM29RK6	DE000DM29U12	DE000DM2Z6S1	DE000DM2Z8Y5	DE000DM3KLX2
DE000DM29RL4	DE000DM29U20	DE000DM2Z6T9	DE000DM2Z8Z2	DE000DM3KLY0
DE000DM29RM2	DE000DM29U38	DE000DM2Z6U7	DE000DM2Z906	DE000DM3KLZ7
DE000DM29RN0	DE000DM29U46	DE000DM2Z6V5	DE000DM2Z914	DE000DM3KM03
DE000DM29RP5	DE000DM29U53	DE000DM2Z6W3	DE000DM2Z922	DE000DM3KM11
DE000DM29RQ3	DE000DM29U61	DE000DM2Z6X1	DE000DM2Z930	DE000DM3KM29
DE000DM29RR1	DE000DM29U79	DE000DM2Z6Y9	DE000DM2Z948	DE000DM3KM37
DE000DM29RS9	DE000DM2BCE2	DE000DM2Z6Z6	DE000DM2Z955	DE000DM3KM45
DE000DM29RT7	DE000DM2BCG7	DE000DM2Z708	DE000DM36AZ5	DE000DM3KM52
DE000DM29SY5	DE000DM2BCJ1	DE000DM2Z716	DE000DM36B08	DE000DM3KM60
DE000DM29SZ2	DE000DM2D531	DE000DM2Z724	DE000DM36B16	DE000DM3KM78
DE000DM29T07	DE000DM2D549	DE000DM2Z732	DE000DM36B24	DE000DM3KM86
DE000DM29T15	DE000DM2D556	DE000DM2Z740	DE000DM36B32	DE000DM3UWW0
DE000DM29T23	DE000DM2D564	DE000DM2Z757	DE000DM36B40	DE000DM3UWY6
DE000DM29T31	DE000DM2D572	DE000DM2Z765	DE000DM36B57	DE000DM3UX08
DE000DM29T49	DE000DM2D580	DE000DM2Z773	DE000DM36B65	DE000DM3UX24
DE000DM29T56	DE000DM2D598	DE000DM2Z781	DE000DM36B73	DE000DM3UX40
DE000DM29T64	DE000DM2D5A7	DE000DM2Z799	DE000DM36B81	DE000DM3UX65
DE000DM29T72	DE000DM2D5B5	DE000DM2Z849	DE000DM36B99	DE000DM3UX81
DE000DM29T80	DE000DM2D5C3	DE000DM2Z856	DE000DM36BA6	DE000DM3UXA4
DE000DM29T98	DE000DM2D5D1	DE000DM2Z864	DE000DM36BB4	DE000DM3UXC0
DE000DM29TA3	DE000DM2D5E9	DE000DM2Z872	DE000DM36BC2	DE000DM3UXE6
DE000DM29TB1	DE000DM2D5F6	DE000DM2Z880	DE000DM36BD0	DE000DM3UXG1
DE000DM29TC9	DE000DM2D5G4	DE000DM2Z898	DE000DM36BE8	DE000DM3UXJ5
DE000DM29TD7	DE000DM2D5H2	DE000DM2Z8A5	DE000DM3CUE0	DE000DM3UXL1
DE000DM29TE5	DE000DM2D5J8	DE000DM2Z8B3	DE000DM3CUF7	DE000DM3UXN7
DE000DM29TF2	DE000DM2D5K6	DE000DM2Z8C1	DE000DM3CUG5	DE000DM3UXQ0
DE000DM29TG0	DE000DM2S4Y3	DE000DM2Z8D9	DE000DM3CUH3	DE000DM3UXS6
DE000DM29TH8	DE000DM2Z5N4	DE000DM2Z8E7	DE000DM3CUJ9	DE000DM3UXU2
DE000DM29TJ4	DE000DM2Z5P9	DE000DM2Z8F4	DE000DM3CUK7	DE000DM3UXW8
DE000DM29TK2	DE000DM2Z5Q7	DE000DM2Z8G2	DE000DM3CUL5	DE000DM3UXY4
DE000DM29TL0	DE000DM2Z5R5	DE000DM2Z8H0	DE000DM3CUM3	DE000DM3UY07
DE000DM29TM8	DE000DM2Z5S3	DE000DM2Z8J6	DE000DM3CUN1	DE000DM3UY23
DE000DM29TN6	DE000DM2Z5T1	DE000DM2Z8K4	DE000DM3CUP6	DE000DM3UY49
DE000DM29TP1	DE000DM2Z5U9	DE000DM2Z8L2	DE000DM3FM42	DE000DM3UY64
DE000DM29TQ9	DE000DM2Z5V7	DE000DM2Z8M0	DE000DM3FM59	DE000DM3UY80
DE000DM29TR7	DE000DM2Z5W5	DE000DM2Z8N8	DE000DM3JCQ7	DE000DM3UYA2
DE000DM29TS5	DE000DM2Z5X3	DE000DM2Z8P3	DE000DM3JCR5	DE000DM3UYC8
DE000DM29TT3	DE000DM2Z5Y1	DE000DM2Z8Q1	DE000DM3JCS3	DE000DM3UYE4
DE000DM29TU1	DE000DM2Z5Z8	DE000DM2Z8R9	DE000DM3JCT1	DE000DM3UYG9
DE000DM29TV9	DE000DM2Z6L6	DE000DM2Z8S7	DE000DM3JCU9	DE000DM3UYJ3
DE000DM29TW7	DE000DM2Z6M4	DE000DM2Z8T5	DE000DM3JCV7	DE000DM3UYL9
DE000DM29TX5	DE000DM2Z6N2	DE000DM2Z8U3	DE000DM3JCW5	DE000DM3UYN5
DE000DM29TY3	DE000DM2Z6P7	DE000DM2Z8V1	DE000DM3JCX3	DE000DM3UYQ8
DE000DM29TZ0	DE000DM2Z6Q5	DE000DM2Z8W9	DE000DM3JCY1	DE000DM3UYS4
DE000DM29U04	DE000DM2Z6R3	DE000DM2Z8X7	DE000DM3JCZ8	DE000DM3UYU0
			•	

	DE000DM3XN80			DE000DM4KJ07
DE000DM3UYW6 DE000DM3UYY2	DE000DM3XN80	DE000DM3XVG9 DE000DM3XVH7	DE000DM3YND1 DE000DM3YNE9	DE000DM4KJ07 DE000DM4KJ15
DE000DM30112 DE000DM3V2N4	DE000DM3XQP0	DE000DM3XVH7	DE000DM31NE9	DE000DM4KJ13
DE000DM3XKK4	DE000DM3XQQ8	DE000DM3XVK1	DE000DM31NF0	DE000DM4LD02
DE000DM3XKL2	DE000DM3XQX0	DE000DM3XVK1	DE000DM31N04 DE000DM31NH2	DE000DM4LD10
DE000DM3XKE2	DE000DM3XQ34	DE000DM3XVL9	DE000DM31NH2 DE000DM31NJ8	DE000DM4LD28
DE000DIVISXKIVIO DE000DM3XKN8	-			
	DE000DM3XQU0	DE000DM3XVN5 DE000DM3XVP0	DE000DM3Z0F0	DE000DM4LD44
DE000DM3XKP3	DE000DM3XQV8		DE000DM3Z0G8	DE000DM4LD51
DE000DM3XKQ1	DE000DM3XQW6	DE000DM3XVQ8	DE000DM3Z0H6	DE000DM4LD69
DE000DM3XKR9	DE000DM3XQX4	DE000DM3XVR6	DE000DM3Z0J2	DE000DM4LD77
DE000DM3XKS7	DE000DM3XQY2	DE000DM3YLP9	DE000DM3Z0K0	DE000DM4LD85
DE000DM3XKT5	DE000DM3XQZ9	DE000DM3YLQ7	DE000DM3Z0L8	DE000DM4LD93
DE000DM3XKU3	DE000DM3XR03	DE000DM3YLR5	DE000DM3Z0M6	DE000DM4LDA3
DE000DM3XKV1	DE000DM3XR11	DE000DM3YLS3	DE000DM3Z0N4	DE000DM4LDB1
DE000DM3XKW9	DE000DM3XR29	DE000DM3YLT1	DE000DM3Z0P9	DE000DM4LDC9
DE000DM3XKX7	DE000DM3XR37	DE000DM3YLU9	DE000DM3Z0Q7	DE000DM4LDD7
DE000DM3XKY5	DE000DM3XR45	DE000DM3YLV7	DE000DM3ZZ27	DE000DM4LDE5
DE000DM3XKZ2	DE000DM3XR52	DE000DM3YLW5	DE000DM3ZZ35	DE000DM4LDF2
DE000DM3XL09	DE000DM3XR60	DE000DM3YLX3	DE000DM3ZZ84	DE000DM4LDG0
DE000DM3XL17	DE000DM3XR78	DE000DM3YLY1	DE000DM3ZZ92	DE000DM4LDH8
DE000DM3XL25	DE000DM3XR86	DE000DM3YLZ8	DE000DM4GSE3	DE000DM4LDJ4
DE000DM3XL33	DE000DM3XR94	DE000DM3YM07	DE000DM4GSF0	DE000DM4LDK2
DE000DM3XL41	DE000DM3XRA0	DE000DM3YM15	DE000DM4KHA6	DE000DM4LDL0
DE000DM3XL58	DE000DM3XRB8	DE000DM3YM23	DE000DM4KHB4	DE000DM4LDM8
DE000DM3XL66	DE000DM3XRC6	DE000DM3YM31	DE000DM4KHC2	DE000DM4LDN6
DE000DM3XL74	DE000DM3XRD4	DE000DM3YM49	DE000DM4KHD0	DE000DM4LDP1
DE000DM3XL82	DE000DM3XRE2	DE000DM3YM56	DE000DM4KHE8	DE000DM4LDQ9
DE000DM3XL90	DE000DM3XUX6	DE000DM3YM64	DE000DM4KHF5	DE000DM4LDR7
DE000DM3XLA3	DE000DM3XUY4	DE000DM3YM72	DE000DM4KHG3	DE000DM4LDS5
DE000DM3XMD5	DE000DM3XUZ1	DE000DM3YM80	DE000DM4KHH1	DE000DM4LQH0
DE000DM3XME3	DE000DM3XV07	DE000DM3YM98	DE000DM4KHJ7	DE000DM4LQJ6
DE000DM3XMF0	DE000DM3XV15	DE000DM3YMA9	DE000DM4KHK5	DE000DM4LQK4
DE000DM3XMG8	DE000DM3XV23	DE000DM3YMB7	DE000DM4KHL3	DE000DM4LQL2
DE000DM3XMH6	DE000DM3XV31	DE000DM3YMC5	DE000DM4KHM1	DE000DM4LQM0
DE000DM3XMJ2	DE000DM3XV49	DE000DM3YMD3	DE000DM4KHN9	DE000DM4LQN8
DE000DM3XMK0	DE000DM3XV56	DE000DM3YME1	DE000DM4KHP4	DE000DM4LQP3
DE000DM3XML8	DE000DM3XV64	DE000DM3YMF8	DE000DM4KHQ2	DE000DM4LQQ1
DE000DM3XMZ8	DE000DM3XV72	DE000DM3YMG6	DE000DM4KHR0	DE000DM4MFN9
DE000DM3XN07	DE000DM3XV80	DE000DM3YMH4	DE000DM4KHS8	DE000DM4MFP4
DE000DM3XN15	DE000DM3XV98	DE000DM3YMJ0	DE000DM4KHT6	DE000DM4MFQ2
DE000DM3XN23	DE000DM3XVA2	DE000DM3YMK8	DE000DM4KHU4	DE000DM4MFR0
DE000DM3XN31	DE000DM3XVB0	DE000DM3YML6	DE000DM4KHV2	DE000DM4MFS8
DE000DM3XN49	DE000DM3XVC8	DE000DM3YMM4	DE000DM4KHW0	DE000DM4MFT6
DE000DM3XN56	DE000DM3XVD6	DE000DM3YMN2	DE000DM4KHX8	DE000DM4MG99
DE000DM3XN64	DE000DM3XVE4	DE000DM3YNB5	DE000DM4KHY6	DE000DM4MGA4
DE000DM3XN72	DE000DM3XVF1	DE000DM3YNC3	DE000DM4KHZ3	DE000DL7S9A9

DE000DL84JG8	DE000DL9VHU1 DE000DL9VHV9	DE000DM159N9 DE000DM159P4	DE000DM3JGQ8	DE000DM4A467 DE000DM4A475
DE000DL84JH6			DE000DM3JGR6	
DE000DL84JJ2	DE000DL9VHW7	DE000DM159Q2	DE000DM3JGS4	DE000DM4GUQ3
DE000DL84JK0	DE000DL9VHX5	DE000DM159R0	DE000DM3JGT2	DE000DM4GUR1
DE000DL84JL8	DE000DL9VHY3	DE000DM159S8	DE000DM3JGU0	DE000DM4GUS9
DE000DL84JM6	DE000DL9VHZ0	DE000DM15WQ2	DE000DM3JGV8	DE000DM4KPC5
DE000DL84JN4	DE000DL9VJ01	DE000DM15WR0	DE000DM3JGW6	DE000DM4KPD3
DE000DL84JP9	DE000DL9VJ19	DE000DM15WS8	DE000DM3JGX4	DE000DM4LZE8
DE000DL84JV7	DE000DL9VJ92	DE000DM15WT6	DE000DM3JGY2	DE000DM4LZF5
DE000DL84JW5	DE000DL9VJA9	DE000DM15WU4	DE000DM3JGZ9	DE000DM4LZG3
DE000DL84JX3	DE000DL9VJB7	DE000DM15WV2	DE000DM3JH03	DE000DM4LZH1
DE000DL84JY1	DE000DL9VJC5	DE000DM1QA52	DE000DM3JH11	DE000DM4MMF1
DE000DL84JZ8	DE000DL9VJD3	DE000DM1QA60	DE000DM3JH29	DE000DM4MMG9
DE000DL84K09	DE000DL9VJE1	DE000DM1QA78	DE000DM3JH37	DE000DM4MMH7
DE000DL88WV1	DE000DL9VJF8	DE000DM1QA86	DE000DM3JH45	DE000DM4MMX4
DE000DL8BXJ5	DE000DL9Y8T1	DE000DM1QA94	DE000DM3JH52	DE000DM4MMY2
DE000DL8WE48	DE000DL9Y8U9	DE000DM1QAA4	DE000DM3JH60	DE000DL778S6
DE000DL92PG8	DE000DL9Y8V7	DE000DM1QAB2	DE000DM3JH78	DE000DL7D1R7
DE000DL92PH6	DE000DL9Y8W5	DE000DM1QAC0	DE000DM3JH86	DE000DL7LQ89
DE000DL92PJ2	DE000DL9Y8X3	DE000DM1QAK3	DE000DM3JHX2	DE000DL7LQ97
DE000DL92PK0	DE000DL9Y8Y1	DE000DM1QAL1	DE000DM3JHY0	DE000DL7S8G8
DE000DL945U7	DE000DL9Y9E1	DE000DM1QAM9	DE000DM3JHZ7	DE000DL7S8H6
DE000DL945V5	DE000DL9Y9F8	DE000DM27X29	DE000DM3JJ01	DE000DL7XDB0
DE000DL945W3	DE000DM002E0	DE000DM2D4P8	DE000DM3JJ19	DE000DL7XDC8
DE000DL945X1	DE000DM002F7	DE000DM2D4Q6	DE000DM3JJ27	DE000DL7XDG9
DE000DL945Y9	DE000DM0JC27	DE000DM2D4R4	DE000DM3JJ35	DE000DL7XET0
DE000DL96PT2	DE000DM0JC35	DE000DM2D788	DE000DM3JJ43	DE000DL7XEX2
DE000DL9HCN6	DE000DM0JC43	DE000DM2QAJ3	DE000DM3JJ50	DE000DL7XJQ5
DE000DL9R9D2	DE000DM0JC50	DE000DM2S5T0	DE000DM3JJ68	DE000DL84FK8
DE000DL9R9E0	DE000DM0JC68	DE000DM2S653	DE000DM3JJ76	DE000DL84FL6
DE000DL9R9X0	DE000DM0JC76	DE000DM36BQ2	DE000DM3JJ84	DE000DL84FM4
DE000DL9SZT1	DE000DM0JC84	DE000DM36BR0	DE000DM3JJ92	DE000DL84FN2
DE000DL9SZU9	DE000DM0JC92	DE000DM36BS8	DE000DM3JJA6	DE000DL84FP7
DE000DL9SZV7	DE000DM0JCA7	DE000DM36BT6	DE000DM3KMT8	DE000DL84FQ5
DE000DL9SZW5	DE000DM0JCB5	DE000DM36BU4	DE000DM3KMU6	DE000DL84FR3
DE000DL9SZX3	DE000DM0JCC3	DE000DM36BV2	DE000DM3KMV4	DE000DL84FS1
DE000DL9SZY1	DE000DM0JCD1	DE000DM36BW0	DE000DM3KMW2	DE000DL84FT9
DE000DL9SZZ8	DE000DM0JCE9	DE000DM36BX8	DE000DM3KMX0	DE000DL84FX1
DE000DL9T004	DE000DM0JCF6	DE000DM36BY6	DE000DM3Y9C9	DE000DL84FY9
DE000DL9T079	DE000DM0JCG4	DE000DM3AFV9	DE000DM3Y9D7	DE000DL84FZ6
DE000DL9T087	DE000DM0JCH2	DE000DM3CV02	DE000DM3Z0Y1	DE000DL84G05
DE000DL9VHP1	DE000DM0T1E2	DE000DM3CV10	DE000DM3Z0Z8	DE000DL84G13
DE000DL9VHQ9	DE000DM0T7Z4	DE000DM3CV28	DE000DM3Z102	DE000DL84G21
DE000DL9VHR7	DE000DM0T804	DE000DM3CV36	DE000DM3Z110	DE000DL84G39
DE000DL9VHS5	DE000DM0XUD4	DE000DM3FNR0	DE000DM4A3U1	DE000DL84G47
DE000DL9VHT3	DE000DM10WC3	DE000DM3FNS8	DE000DM4A3V9	DE000DL84G54
	ı			

	DE000DL9M314	DE000DL9VGL2	DE000DM0JBS1	
DE000DL84G62 DE000DL84G70	DE000DL9M314	DE000DL9VGL2	DE000DM0JB51	DE000DM1Q5S5 DE000DM1Q5T3
	DE000DL9M330 DE000DL9M348	DE000DL9VGIN0 DE000DL9VGN8	DE000DM0JBU7	
DE000DL88VV3 DE000DL88VW1	DE000DL9M348			DE000DM1Q5U1
		DE000DL9VGP3	DE000DM0JBV5	DE000DM1Q5V9
DE000DL8B335	DE000DL9M4D8	DE000DL9VGS7	DE000DM0JBW3	DE000DM1Q5W7
DE000DL8B343	DE000DL9M4E6	DE000DL9VGT5	DE000DM0JS45	DE000DM1Q5X5
DE000DL8B350	DE000DL9M4F3	DE000DL9VGU3	DE000DM0JS52	DE000DM25NV0
DE000DL8B368	DE000DL9M6T9	DE000DL9VGV1	DE000DM0JS60	DE000DM25NW8
DE000DL8B376	DE000DL9M6U7	DE000DL9VGW9	DE000DM0JS78	DE000DM29P01
DE000DL8B384	DE000DL9M6W3	DE000DL9VGX7	DE000DM0JS86	DE000DM29P19
DE000DL8B3B8	DE000DL9M6X1	DE000DL9VGY5	DE000DM0JS94	DE000DM29P27
DE000DL8B3C6	DE000DL9M6Y9	DE000DL9VGZ2	DE000DM0JSE5	DE000DM29P35
DE000DL8B3D4	DE000DL9M6Z6	DE000DL9VH03	DE000DM0JSF2	DE000DM29PJ2
DE000DL8B3E2	DE000DL9M7G4	DE000DL9VH11	DE000DM0JSU1	DE000DM29PK0
DE000DL8B3F9	DE000DL9M7H2	DE000DL9VH29	DE000DM0KJG7	DE000DM29PS3
DE000DL92NN9	DE000DL9M7J8	DE000DL9VH37	DE000DM0KJH5	DE000DM29PV7
DE000DL92NP4	DE000DL9M7K6	DE000DL9VH45	DE000DM0WFR7	DE000DM29PW5
DE000DL92NQ2	DE000DL9M7L4	DE000DL9Y7U1	DE000DM10TS5	DE000DM29PX3
DE000DL92NR0	DE000DL9R8J1	DE000DL9Y7V9	DE000DM158P6	DE000DM29PY1
DE000DL945E1	DE000DL9R8K9	DE000DL9Y7W7	DE000DM158Q4	DE000DM29PZ8
DE000DL945F8	DE000DL9R8L7	DE000DL9Y822	DE000DM158R2	DE000DM29Q00
DE000DL945G6	DE000DL9R8N3	DE000DL9Y830	DE000DM158S0	DE000DM29Q18
DE000DL945H4	DE000DL9R8P8	DE000DL9Y848	DE000DM158T8	DE000DM29Q26
DE000DL945J0	DE000DL9R8Q6	DE000DL9Y855	DE000DM158U6	DE000DM29Q34
DE000DL96UF1	DE000DL9SWE0	DE000DL9Y863	DE000DM158V4	DE000DM29Q42
DE000DL9M264	DE000DL9SWF7	DE000DL9Y871	DE000DM158W2	DE000DM29Q59
DE000DL9M272	DE000DL9SWG5	DE000DM001Q6	DE000DM158X0	DE000DM29Q67
DE000DL9M280	DE000DL9SWH3	DE000DM001R4	DE000DM158Y8	DE000DM29Q75
DE000DL9M298	DE000DL9SWJ9	DE000DM001S2	DE000DM158Z5	DE000DM29Q83
DE000DL9M2A8	DE000DL9SWS0	DE000DM0HPC9	DE000DM15905	DE000DM29Q91
DE000DL9M2B6	DE000DL9SWT8	DE000DM0HPD7	DE000DM15913	DE000DM29QA9
DE000DL9M2C4	DE000DL9SWU6	DE000DM0HPL0	DE000DM15921	DE000DM29QB7
DE000DL9M2G5	DE000DL9SWV4	DE000DM0HPM8	DE000DM15939	DE000DM29QC5
DE000DL9M2H3	DE000DL9SWW2	DE000DM0HPQ9	DE000DM15947	DE000DM29QD3
DE000DL9M2J9	DE000DL9SWX0	DE000DM0HPR7	DE000DM15954	DE000DM29QE1
DE000DL9M2K7	DE000DL9SWY8	DE000DM0HPS5	DE000DM15962	DE000DM2D4D4
DE000DL9M2L5	DE000DL9SWZ5	DE000DM0HPT3	DE000DM15970	DE000DM2D4E2
DE000DL9M2M3	DE000DL9VGB3	DE000DM0HPU1	DE000DM1Q5C9	DE000DM2D4F9
DE000DL9M2N1	DE000DL9VGC1	DE000DM0HPV9	DE000DM1Q5D7	DE000DM2D4G7
DE000DL9M2R2	DE000DL9VGD9	DE000DM0HPW7	DE000DM1Q5E5	DE000DM2D5X9
DE000DL9M2S0	DE000DL9VGE7	DE000DM0HPX5	DE000DM1Q5F2	DE000DM2D5Y7
DE000DL9M2T8	DE000DL9VGF4	DE000DM0J2Z7	DE000DM1Q5G0	DE000DM2QB68
DE000DL9M2W2	DE000DL9VGG2	DE000DM0J318	DE000DM1Q5H8	DE000DM2QB76
DE000DL9M2X0	DE000DL9VGH0	DE000DM0J326	DE000DM1Q5J4	DE000DM2QB92
DE000DL9M2Y8	DE000DL9VGJ6	DE000DM0J334	DE000DM1Q5Q9	DE000DM2S554
DE000DL9M2Z5	DE000DL9VGK4	DE000DM0JBR3	DE000DM1Q5R7	DE000DM2S5B8

	1	· · · · ·		I
DE000DM2WS12	DE000DM3CUW2	DE000DM3JFV0	DE000DM3YPC8	DE000DM3Z0T1
DE000DM2ZD16	DE000DM3CUX0	DE000DM3KMH3	DE000DM3YPD6	DE000DM3Z0U9
DE000DM2ZD24	DE000DM3FP80	DE000DM3KMJ9	DE000DM3YPE4	DE000DM3Z0V7
DE000DM2ZD32	DE000DM3JEH2	DE000DM3KMK7	DE000DM3YPF1	DE000DM3Z0W5
DE000DM2ZD40	DE000DM3JEJ8	DE000DM3KML5	DE000DM3YPG9	DE000DM4A343
DE000DM2ZD57	DE000DM3JEK6	DE000DM3KMM3	DE000DM3YPH7	DE000DM4A350
DE000DM2ZD65	DE000DM3JEL4	DE000DM3KMN1	DE000DM3YPJ3	DE000DM4A368
DE000DM2ZD73	DE000DM3JEM2	DE000DM3XNK8	DE000DM3YPK1	DE000DM4A376
DE000DM2ZD81	DE000DM3JEN0	DE000DM3XNL6	DE000DM3YPL9	DE000DM4A384
DE000DM2ZE49	DE000DM3JEP5	DE000DM3XNM4	DE000DM3YPM7	DE000DM4A3D7
DE000DM2ZE56	DE000DM3JEQ3	DE000DM3XNN2	DE000DM3YPN5	DE000DM4A3E5
DE000DM2ZE64	DE000DM3JER1	DE000DM3XNP7	DE000DM3YPP0	DE000DM4GU16
DE000DM2ZE72	DE000DM3JES9	DE000DM3XNQ5	DE000DM3YPQ8	DE000DM4GU24
DE000DM2ZE80	DE000DM3JET7	DE000DM3XP21	DE000DM3YPR6	DE000DM4KNM9
DE000DM2ZE98	DE000DM3JEU5	DE000DM3XP39	DE000DM3YPS4	DE000DM4KNN7
DE000DM2ZEA5	DE000DM3JEV3	DE000DM3XP47	DE000DM3YQ45	DE000DM4LZ89
DE000DM2ZEN8	DE000DM3JEW1	DE000DM3XP54	DE000DM3YQ52	DE000DM4LZ97
DE000DM2ZEP3	DE000DM3JEX9	DE000DM3XP62	DE000DM3YQ60	DE000DM4LZA6
DE000DM2ZEQ1	DE000DM3JEY7	DE000DM3XPV0	DE000DM3YQ78	DE000DM4LZB4
DE000DM2ZER9	DE000DM3JEZ4	DE000DM3XPW8	DE000DM3YQ86	DE000DM4MLG1
DE000DM2ZES7	DE000DM3JF05	DE000DM3XPX6	DE000DM3YQ94	DE000DM4MLH9
DE000DM2ZET5	DE000DM3JF13	DE000DM3XPY4	DE000DM3YQE2	DE000DM4MLJ5
DE000DM2ZEW9	DE000DM3JF21	DE000DM3XPZ1	DE000DM3YQF9	DE000DM4MLK3
DE000DM2ZEX7	DE000DM3JF39	DE000DM3XQ04	DE000DM3YQG7	DE000DM4MLL1
DE000DM2ZEY5	DE000DM3JF47	DE000DM3XQ12	DE000DM3YQH5	DE000DM4MLM9
DE000DM2ZEZ2	DE000DM3JF54	DE000DM3XQ87	DE000DM3YQJ1	DE000DM4MLN7
DE000DM2ZF06	DE000DM3JF62	DE000DM3XQ95	DE000DM3YQK9	DE000DM4MLP2
DE000DM2ZF97	DE000DM3JF70	DE000DM3XQA2	DE000DM3YQP8	DE000DM4MLQ0
DE000DM2ZFA2	DE000DM3JF88	DE000DM3XQB0	DE000DM3YQQ6	DE000DM4P5B9
DE000DM2ZFB0	DE000DM3JFC0	DE000DM3XQC8	DE000DM3YQR4	DE000DM4P5K0
DE000DM2ZFC8	DE000DM3JFD8	DE000DM3XQD6	DE000DM3YQS2	DE000DM4P5S3
DE000DM2ZFD6	DE000DM3JFE6	DE000DM3XQE4	DE000DM3YQT0	DE000DM20RR0
DE000DM2ZFE4	DE000DM3JFF3	DE000DM3Y0K1	DE000DM3YQU8	DE000DM20RS8
DE000DM36BF5	DE000DM3JFG1	DE000DM3Y0L9	DE000DM3YQV6	DE000DM20RT6
DE000DM36BG3	DE000DM3JFH9	DE000DM3Y0M7	DE000DM3YQW4	DE000DM20RU4
DE000DM36BH1	DE000DM3JFJ5	DE000DM3YNR1	DE000DM3YQX2	DE000DM20RV2
DE000DM36BJ7	DE000DM3JFK3	DE000DM3YNS9	DE000DM3YQY0	DE000DM20RW0
DE000DM36BK5	DE000DM3JFL1	DE000DM3YNT7	DE000DM3YQZ7	DE000DM20RX8
DE000DM36BL3	DE000DM3JFM9	DE000DM3YP12	DE000DM3YR02	DE000DM20RY6
DE000DM36BM1	DE000DM3JFN7	DE000DM3YP20	DE000DM3YR10	DE000DM20RZ3
DE000DM36BN9	DE000DM3JFP2	DE000DM3YP38	DE000DM3YR28	DE000DM20S07
DE000DM36BP4	DE000DM3JFQ0	DE000DM3YP46	DE000DM3YR36	DE000DM20S15
DE000DM3AEZ3	DE000DM3JFR8	DE000DM3YP53	DE000DM3YR44	DE000DM20S23
DE000DM3CUT8	DE000DM3JFS6	DE000DM3YP61	DE000DM3YR51	DE000DM20S31
DE000DM3CUU6	DE000DM3JFT4	DE000DM3YPA2	DE000DM3YR69	DE000DM20S49
DE000DM3CUV4	DE000DM3JFU2	DE000DM3YPB0	DE000DM3Z0S3	DE000DM20S56

DE000DM20S64	DE000DM2VX24	DE000DM3JD15	DE000DM3V184	DE000DM3XSG5
DE000DM20S72	DE000DM2VX24	DE000DM3JD33	DE000DM3V184	DE000DM3XSH3
DE000DM20572	DE000DM2VX32	DE000DM3JD51	DE000DM3XLU1	DE000DM3XSJ9
DE000DM20598	DE000DM2VX40	DE000DM3JD72	DE000DM3XLV9	DE000DM3XSK7
DE000DM20538	DE000DM2VX65	DE000DM3JD98	DE000DM3XLW7	DE000DM3XSL5
DE000DM20SB2	DE000DM2VX03	DE000DM3JDB7	DE000DM3XLX5	DE000DM3XSM3
DE000DM20SC0	DE000DM2VX73	DE000DM3JDD3	DE000DM3XLX3	DE000DM3XSN1
DE000DM203C0	DE000DM2VX81	DE000DM3JDF8	DE000DM3XLZ0	DE000DM3XSP6
DE000DM29RT7	DE000DM2VXA4	DE000DM3JDH4	DE000DM3XL20	DE000DM3XSP0
DE000DM29824	DE000DM2VXA4	DE000DM3JDK8	DE000DM3XM08	DE000DM3XVX4
DE000DM29308	DE000DM2VXB2	DE000DM3JDK8	DE000DM3XM10	DE000DM3XVX4
DE000DM29310	DE000DM2VXC0	DE000DM3JDP7	DE000DM3XM24	DE000DM3XV72
	DE000DM227E9			
DE000DM29S32		DE000DM3JDR3	DE000DM3XM40	DE000DM3XW06
DE000DM29UE3	DE000DM2Z7F6	DE000DM3JDT9	DE000DM3XM57	DE000DM3XW14
DE000DM29UF0	DE000DM2Z7G4	DE000DM3JDV5	DE000DM3XM65	DE000DM3XW22
DE000DM29UG8	DE000DM2Z7H2	DE000DM3JDX1	DE000DM3XM73	DE000DM3XW30
DE000DM29UH6	DE000DM2Z7J8	DE000DM3JDZ6	DE000DM3XM81	DE000DM3XW48
DE000DM29UJ2	DE000DM2Z7K6	DE000DM3JE14	DE000DM3XM99	DE000DM3XW55
DE000DM29UK0	DE000DM2Z7L4	DE000DM3UZL6	DE000DM3XMA1	DE000DM3XW63
DE000DM29UL8	DE000DM2Z7M2	DE000DM3UZN2	DE000DM3XMB9	DE000DM3XW71
DE000DM29UM6	DE000DM2Z7N0	DE000DM3UZQ5	DE000DM3XMC7	DE000DM3XW89
DE000DM29UN4	DE000DM2Z7P5	DE000DM3UZS1	DE000DM3XRR4	DE000DM3XW97
DE000DM29UP9	DE000DM2Z7Q3	DE000DM3UZU7	DE000DM3XRS2	DE000DM3XWA0
DE000DM29UQ7	DE000DM2Z7R1	DE000DM3UZW3	DE000DM3XRT0	DE000DM3XWB8
DE000DM29UR5	DE000DM2Z7S9	DE000DM3UZY9	DE000DM3XRU8	DE000DM3XWC6
DE000DM29US3	DE000DM2Z7T7	DE000DM3V002	DE000DM3XRV6	DE000DM3XWD4
DE000DM29UT1	DE000DM2Z989	DE000DM3V028	DE000DM3XRW4	DE000DM3XWE2
DE000DM29UU9	DE000DM2Z997	DE000DM3V044	DE000DM3XRX2	DE000DM3XWF9
DE000DM29UV7	DE000DM2Z9A3	DE000DM3V069	DE000DM3XRY0	DE000DM3XWG7
DE000DM29UW5	DE000DM2Z9B1	DE000DM3V085	DE000DM3XRZ7	DE000DM3XWH5
DE000DM29UX3	DE000DM2Z9C9	DE000DM3V0A5	DE000DM3XS02	DE000DM3XWJ1
DE000DM29UY1	DE000DM2Z9D7	DE000DM3V0C1	DE000DM3XS10	DE000DM3XWK9
DE000DM2VN18	DE000DM2Z9E5	DE000DM3V0E7	DE000DM3XS28	DE000DM3XWL7
DE000DM2VN34	DE000DM2Z9F2	DE000DM3V0G2	DE000DM3XS36	DE000DM3YMT9
DE000DM2VWQ2	DE000DM2Z9G0	DE000DM3V0J6	DE000DM3XS44	DE000DM3YMU7
DE000DM2VWR0	DE000DM2Z9H8	DE000DM3V0L2	DE000DM3XS51	DE000DM3YMV5
DE000DM2VWS8	DE000DM2Z9J4	DE000DM3V0N8	DE000DM3XS69	DE000DM3YMW3
DE000DM2VWT6	DE000DM2Z9K2	DE000DM3V0Q1	DE000DM3XS77	DE000DM3YMX1
DE000DM2VWU4	DE000DM2Z9L0	DE000DM3V0S7	DE000DM3XS85	DE000DM3YMY9
DE000DM2VWV2	DE000DM2Z9M8	DE000DM3V0U3	DE000DM3XS93	DE000DM3YMZ6
DE000DM2VWW0	DE000DM398Q6	DE000DM3V0W9	DE000DM3XSA8	DE000DM3YN06
DE000DM2VWX8	DE000DM398R4	DE000DM3V0Y5	DE000DM3XSB6	DE000DM3YN14
DE000DM2VWY6	DE000DM398S2	DE000DM3V101	DE000DM3XSC4	DE000DM3YN22
DE000DM2VWZ3	DE000DM398T0	DE000DM3V127	DE000DM3XSD2	DE000DM3YN30
DE000DM2VX08	DE000DM3FM67	DE000DM3V143	DE000DM3XSE0	DE000DM3YN48
DE000DM2VX16	DE000DM3FM75	DE000DM3V168	DE000DM3XSF7	DE000DM3YN55

DE000DM3YN63	DE000DM4LE27	DE000DM4P4M9	DE000DM3JHK9	DE000DM4KPR3
DE000DM3YN71	DE000DM4LE35	DE000DM4P4N7	DE000DM3JHL7	DE000DM4KPY9
DE000DM3YN89	DE000DM4LE43	DE000DL92PT1	DE000DM3JHM5	DE000DM4KPZ6
DE000DM4KH66	DE000DM4LE50	DE000DL92PU9	DE000DM3JHN3	DE000DM4KQ08
DE000DM4KH74	DE000DM4LE68	DE000DL92PY1	DE000DM3JHP8	DE000DM4KQ16
DE000DM4KH82	DE000DM4LE76	DE000DL94688	DE000DM3JHQ6	DE000DM4KQ24
DE000DM4KH90	DE000DM4LE84	DE000DL96Q09	DE000DM3JHR4	DE000DM4MMJ3
DE000DM4KJ98	DE000DM4LE92	DE000DL9VJ84	DE000DM3JHS2	DE000DM4MMK1
DE000DM4KJA2	DE000DM4LEA1	DE000DL9Y9C5	DE000DM3JHT0	DE000DM4MML9
DE000DM4KJB0	DE000DM4LEB9	DE000DL9Y9D3	DE000DM3JHU8	DE000DM4MMM7
DE000DM4KJC8	DE000DM4LEC7	DE000DM05JT4	DE000DM3JHV6	DE000DM4MMN5
DE000DM4KJD6	DE000DM4LED5	DE000DM05JU2	DE000DM3JHW4	DE000DM4MMP0
DE000DM4KJE4	DE000DM4LEE3	DE000DM05JV0	DE000DM3JJJ7	DE000DM4MMQ8
DE000DM4KJF1	DE000DM4LEF0	DE000DM05JW8	DE000DM3JJK5	DE000DM4MMR6
DE000DM4KJG9	DE000DM4LEG8	DE000DM05JX6	DE000DM3JJL3	DE000DM4MMS4
DE000DM4KJH7	DE000DM4LEH6	DE000DM05K61	DE000DM3JJM1	DE000DM4MMT2
DE000DM4KJJ3	DE000DM4LEJ2	DE000DM05K79	DE000DM3JJN9	DE000DM4MMU0
DE000DM4KJK1	DE000DM4MFU4	DE000DM0D6W1	DE000DM3JJP4	DE000DM4MMV8
DE000DM4KJL9	DE000DM4MFV2	DE000DM0D717	DE000DM3JJQ2	DE000DM4MMW6
DE000DM4KJM7	DE000DM4MFW0	DE000DM0GXN2	DE000DM3JJR0	DE000DM4MMZ9
DE000DM4KJN5	DE000DM4MFX8	DE000DM0GXP7	DE000DM3Y9Y3	DE000DM4MN09
DE000DM4KJP0	DE000DM4MFY6	DE000DM0GXQ5	DE000DM3Y9Z0	DE000DM4MN17
DE000DM4KJQ8	DE000DM4MFZ3	DE000DM0K1R3	DE000DM3YA01	DE000DM4MN25
DE000DM4KJR6	DE000DM4MG08	DE000DM0K1S1	DE000DM3YA19	DE000DM4MN33
DE000DM4KJS4	DE000DM4MG16	DE000DM0K1Z6	DE000DM3YA27	DE000DL92P20
DE000DM4KJT2	DE000DM4MG24	DE000DM0T812	DE000DM3YA35	DE000DL92P38
DE000DM4KJU0	DE000DM4MG32	DE000DM0T820	DE000DM3YA43	DE000DL945P7
DE000DM4KJV8	DE000DM4MG40	DE000DM10X10	DE000DM3YA50	DE000DL9VHF2
DE000DM4KJW6	DE000DM4MG57	DE000DM10X28	DE000DM3YA68	DE000DL9Y8G8
DE000DM4KJX4	DE000DM4MG65	DE000DM10X36	DE000DM3YA76	DE000DL9Y8H6
DE000DM4KJY2	DE000DM4MG73	DE000DM10X44	DE000DM3YA84	DE000DM05L45
DE000DM4KJZ9	DE000DM4MG81	DE000DM10X51	DE000DM3YA92	DE000DM05L52
DE000DM4KK04	DE000DM4MGB2	DE000DM10X69	DE000DM3YAN7	DE000DM05L60
DE000DM4KK12	DE000DM4MGC0	DE000DM10X77	DE000DM3YAP2	DE000DM0D6J8
DE000DM4KK20	DE000DM4MGD8	DE000DM10X85	DE000DM3YAQ0	DE000DM0D6K6
DE000DM4KK38	DE000DM4MGE6	DE000DM10XH0	DE000DM3YAR8	DE000DM0D6P5
DE000DM4KK46	DE000DM4MGF3	DE000DM15WX8	DE000DM3YAS6	DE000DM0D6Q3
DE000DM4KK53	DE000DM4MGG1	DE000DM25S77	DE000DM3YAT4	DE000DM0GWV7
DE000DM4KK61	DE000DM4MGH9	DE000DM2D7G0	DE000DM3YAU2	DE000DM0GWW5
DE000DM4LDV9	DE000DM4MGJ5	DE000DM2H0C0	DE000DM3Z011	DE000DM0GX41
DE000DM4LDW7	DE000DM4P4F3	DE000DM2H0D8	DE000DM3Z029	DE000DM0GX58
DE000DM4LDX5	DE000DM4P4G1	DE000DM2H0E6	DE000DM3Z037	DE000DM0J367
DE000DM4LDY3	DE000DM4P4H9	DE000DM2H0L1	DE000DM3Z0C7	DE000DM0J375
DE000DM4LDZ0	DE000DM4P4J5	DE000DM3AGJ2	DE000DM4A442	DE000DM0J383
DE000DM4LE01	DE000DM4P4K3	DE000DM3FNP4	DE000DM4A459	DE000DM0J391
DE000DM4LE19	DE000DM4P4L1	DE000DM3FNQ2	DE000DM4GVA5	DE000DM0J3A8
	1			

	DE000DM3JGG9	DE000DM3Y1L7		
DE000DM0J3B6 DE000DM0J3C4	DE000DM3JGG9	DE000DM3Y1L7 DE000DM3Y1M5	DE000DM3YQ29 DE000DM4A3Q9	DE000DM4P5L8 DE000DM4P5M6
DE000DM0J3C4	DE000DM3JGN7	DE000DM3Y1N3	DE000DM4A3Q9	DE000DM4P5N4
DE000DM0J3E0	DE000DM3JGN3	DE000DM3Y1N3	DE000DM4G0H2	DE000DM4P5P9
DE000DM0J3F7	DE000DM3JGP0	DE000DM311P8	DE000DM4KN74	DE000DM4P5Q7
				-
DE000DM0WGL8	DE000DM3XNW3	DE000DM3Y1R4	DE000DM4KP09	DE000DM4P5R5
DE000DM0WGM6	DE000DM3XNX1	DE000DM3Y1S2	DE000DM4KP17	DE000DM4P5T1
DE000DM10UE3	DE000DM3XNY9	DE000DM3Y1T0	DE000DM4KP25	DE000DM4P5U9
DE000DM10UF0	DE000DM3XNZ6	DE000DM3Y1U8	DE000DM4KP33	DE000DM4P5V7
DE000DM10UG8	DE000DM3XP05	DE000DM3Y1V6	DE000DM4KP41	DE000DM4P5W5
DE000DM10UN4	DE000DM3XP13	DE000DM3Y1W4	DE000DM4KP74	DE000DM4P5X3
DE000DM10UP9	DE000DM3XPA4	DE000DM3Y1X2	DE000DM4KP82	DE000DM4P5Y1
DE000DM10UQ7	DE000DM3XPB2	DE000DM3Y1Y0	DE000DM4KP90	DE000DM4P5Z8
DE000DM10UR5	DE000DM3XPC0	DE000DM3Y1Z7	DE000DM4KPA9	DE000DM4P606
DE000DM10US3	DE000DM3XPD8	DE000DM3Y204	DE000DM4KPB7	DE000DM4P614
DE000DM29QH4	DE000DM3XPE6	DE000DM3Y212	DE000DM4MLR8	DE000DM4P622
DE000DM29QJ0	DE000DM3XPF3	DE000DM3Y261	DE000DM4MLS6	DE000DM4P630
DE000DM29QK8	DE000DM3XPG1	DE000DM3Y279	DE000DM4MLT4	DE000DM4P648
DE000DM29QL6	DE000DM3XPH9	DE000DM3Y287	DE000DM4MLU2	DE000DM4P655
DE000DM2D6L2	DE000DM3XPJ5	DE000DM3Y295	DE000DM4MLV0	DE000DM4P663
DE000DM2D6M0	DE000DM3XPK3	DE000DM3Y2A8	DE000DM4MLW8	DE000DM4P671
DE000DM2D6N8	DE000DM3XPL1	DE000DM3Y2B6	DE000DM4MLX6	DE000DM4P689
DE000DM2GZX2	DE000DM3XPM9	DE000DM3Y2C4	DE000DM4MLY4	DE000DM4P697
DE000DM2GZY0	DE000DM3XPN7	DE000DM3Y2D2	DE000DM4MLZ1	DE000DM4P6A9
DE000DM2H011	DE000DM3XPP2	DE000DM3Y2E0	DE000DM4MM00	DE000DM4P6B7
DE000DM2H029	DE000DM3XPQ0	DE000DM3Y2F7	DE000DM4MM18	DE000DM4P6C5
DE000DM2H037	DE000DM3XPR8	DE000DM3Y2G5	DE000DM4MM26	DE000DM4P6D3
DE000DM2WSR6	DE000DM3XPS6	DE000DM3Y2H3	DE000DM4MM34	DE000DM4P6E1
DE000DM2ZDD1	DE000DM3XPT4	DE000DM3Y2J9	DE000DM4MM42	
DE000DM2ZDE9	DE000DM3XPU2	DE000DM3Y2K7	DE000DM4MM59	
DE000DM2ZDF6	DE000DM3XQ38	DE000DM3Y2L5	DE000DM4MM67	
DE000DM2ZDG4	DE000DM3XQ46	DE000DM3Y2M3	DE000DM4MM75	
DE000DM2ZDU5	DE000DM3XQ53	DE000DM3Y2N1	DE000DM4MM83	
DE000DM2ZF22	DE000DM3XQ61	DE000DM3Y2P6	DE000DM4MM91	
DE000DM2ZF30	DE000DM3Y188	DE000DM3Y2Q4	DE000DM4MMA2	
DE000DM39YS4	DE000DM3Y196	DE000DM3Y2R2	DE000DM4MMB0	
DE000DM39YT2	DE000DM3Y1A0	DE000DM3Y2S0	DE000DM4MMC8	
DE000DM39YU0	DE000DM3Y1B8	DE000DM3Y2T8	DE000DM4MMD6	
DE000DM39Z72	DE000DM3Y1C6	DE000DM3Y2U6	DE000DM4MME4	
DE000DM39Z80	DE000DM3Y1D4	DE000DM3YPV8	DE000DM4P5C7	
DE000DM39Z98	DE000DM3Y1E2	DE000DM3YPW6	DE000DM4P5D5	
DE000DM39ZA9	DE000DM3Y1F9	DE000DM3YPX4	DE000DM4P5E3	
DE000DM39ZB7	DE000DM3Y1G7	DE000DM3YPY2	DE000DM4P5F0	
DE000DM3AFL0	DE000DM3Y1H5	DE000DM3YPZ9	DE000DM4P5G8	
DE000DM3FP72	DE000DM3Y1J1	DE000DM3YQ03	DE000DM4P5H6	
DE000DM3JGF1	DE000DM3Y1K9	DE000DM3YQ11	DE000DM4P5J2	

NAMES AND ADDRESSES

Issuer

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft

Taunusanlage 12

60325 Frankfurt am Main

Germany

also acting through the following branch offices:

Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Winchester House

1 Great Winchester Street

London EC2N 2DB

United Kingdom

Deutsche Bank AG, Milan Branch

Via Filippo Turati 27

20121 Milan

Italy

Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal em Portugal

Rua Castilho, 20

1250-069 Lisbon

Portugal

Deutsche Bank AG, Sucursal en España

Paseo De La Castellana, 18

28046 Madrid

Spain

SIGNATURES

Frankfurt am Main, 9 June 2017

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft